
Note:  This certifies that a copy of this agenda was posted in the entrance to the Tri-City Medical Center at 4002 Vista Way, 
Oceanside, CA 92056 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  Any writings or documents provided to the Board members of 
Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this Agenda is available for public inspection in the Administration Department 

located at the Tri-City Medical Center during normal business hours. 

Note:  If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3348 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting 
 so that we may provide reasonable accommodations. 

     TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT      
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING 
November 17, 2022 – 3:30 o’clock p.m. 

In accordance with California Government Code Section 54953 teleconferencing  
will be used by the Board members and appropriate staff members during this meeting. 

Members of the public will also be able to participate by telephone, using the  
following dial in information: 

Dial in #: (669-900-6833) To Listen and Address the Board when called upon:  
Meeting ID: 878 6799 8894; Passcode: 939181 

The Board may take action on any of the items listed 
below, unless the item is specifically labeled 

“Informational Only” 

Agenda Item 
Time 

Allotted Requestor 
1 Call to Order 3 min. Standard 
2 Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 
3 Approval of agenda 2 min Standard 

4 Public Comments – Announcement 
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on 
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of 
Directors.  Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three 
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors. 

NOTE:  Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the 
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, 
immediately prior to Board Communications.   

2 min. Standard 

5 Reports – Information Only 

a) Foundation Report – Jennifer Paroly

b) Chief Nurse Executive – Candice Parras

10 min. 

10 min. 

Foundation 
President 

CNE 

6 September 2022 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO 

7 New Business 

a) Board Swearing in Ceremony 5 min. Chair 

8 Old Business – None - - 

9 Chief of Staff – No Credentials this month - - 



  
Agenda Item 

Time 
Allotted 

 
Requestor 

 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda                          -2-                                                         November 17, 2022 

 
10
  

Consideration of Consent Calendar 
 
Requested items to be pulled require a second 
 

(1) Approval of Resolution 820, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of 
the Tri-City Healthcare District Re-Ratifying the State of Emergency 
and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings. 

 
(2) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Richard Smith, Medical Director 

for Infection Control for a term of 36 months, beginning December 1, 
2022 and ending November 30, 2025, at an hourly rate of $176 for 
an annual cost not to exceed $63,360 and a total 3-year term cost 
not to exceed $190,080. 
 

(3) Approval of an agreement with David Amory. MD, James Andry, 
MD, Erin Farrelly, MD, Andrew Hartman, MD, Serve Kaska, MD, 
Hannah Kirby, MD, Kyle Mombell, MD, Grant Seiden, MD, Morgan 
Silldorf, MD. and Erik Stark, MD. to provide ED On-Call Coverage 
Panel for Orthopedics-General and Foot & Ankle, for a term of 24 
months, beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2024, 
at an annual cost of $746,125 and a total term cost of $1,492,250. 
 

(4) Approval of an agreement with Yuan Lin, MD and Darrell Wu for 
second surgical assist services for registered TCMC hospital 
patients for Cardiovascular bypass procedures for a term of 22 
months beginning November 1, 2022 and ending August 31, 2024 at 
a cost not to exceed $501,750.00. 

10 min. 
 

Standard 
 

 .  
(5) Administrative Committees 

A.  Policies 
1.  Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures 

a. Collection of a Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture 
Procedure 

b. Fall Risk Procedure Tool Procedure 
c. Newborn Screening Collection of Specimen Procedure 
d. Patient Complaints & Grievances 
e. Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal 

Death Care and Disposition) 
f. Pronation Therapy for the Mechanically Ventilated 

Patient 
g. Pyxis Connect Scanner Procedure (DELETE) 
h. Safe Medical Device Act Tracking 
i. Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or 

Diagnostic Procedure 
j. Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of 

Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care 
Patient Policy 

k. Skin and Wound Care Policy 
l. Specimen Labeling Procedure 
 

2. Administrative 200 District Operations  
a. Cash Elective Surgical Procedures 263 
b. Mandatory Reporting Requirements 236 
c. Purchase of Budgeted Capital Assets 252 
d. Self-Pay Billing Collections Policy 

 
3. Administrative 500 District Operations  

  



  
Agenda Item 

Time 
Allotted 

 
Requestor 

 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda                          -3-                                                         November 17, 2022 

a. Advanced Beneficiary Notification 503 
b. Compliance Program Overview 532 
c. Disclosure of Protected Health Information 513 
d. Disposal of Confidential Records 510 
e. Hiring and Employment:  Duty to Report Suspected 

Misconduct Potential Compliance Irregularity 544 
f. Education and Training; As-Needed Education and 

Training 549 
g. HIPAA Mitigation 591 
h. Monitoring Compliance – Auditing & Reporting – Annual 

Compliance Workplan 552 
i. Pending Debarment, Criminal Charges or Adverse 

Action against Covered Contractors – 540 
j. Rights to Request Privacy for Protected Health 

Information 526 
k. Screening Covered Contractors – 539 
l. Use and Disclosure of Protected Information for 

Fundraising 525 
m. Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons 

Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), 
including Personal Representatives 593 

4. Emergency Department 
a. Culture Follow Up, Emergency Department 

 
5. Emergency Operations Procedure (EOP) Manual 

a. 4006-Influx of Infectious Patient Epidemic Influenza or 
other (DELETE) 

b. 4006 – IC-ED (DELETE) 
c. 4009 Traffic Control in the Event of a Disaster Security 

(DELETE) 
d. 4010 Disaster Procedure for Earthquake (DELETE) 
e. 4012 Employee Disaster Call Back Procedure-Hospital 

Wide 
f. 4013 Bomb Threat 
g. 4023 Communications Department Specific 
h. 4026 Code Orange Disaster Plan-Emergency 

Department Specific (DELETE) 
i. 4036 Plan-Food and Nutrition Department (DELETE) 
j. 4061 Staffing Resource Department Specific (DELETE) 
k. 4065 Radiation Accidents 
l. 4068 Mitigation, Preparation, Response and Recovery 

Plan – Emergency Department Specific (DELETE) 
m. 4071 Disaster Plan Activation Hospital Wide (DELETE) 
n. 4072 HEICS Command Structure-Hospital Wide 

(DELETE) 
o. 4073 Introduction to Disaster HEICS – An Overview 

Hospital Wide (DELETE) 
p. 4078 Chemical Disaster Emergency Department 

Specific 
q. Authorization for Volunteer Caregivers During Disasters 
r. Chemical Exposure Plan 
s. Clean Zone 
t. Damage Assessment 
u. Disruption of Service 
v. Hazardous Substance Flowchart (DELETE) 
w. Location of Disaster Work Station 4003 
x. Patients that Require Decon 
y. Personnel Expectations 



  
Agenda Item 

Time 
Allotted 

 
Requestor 

 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda                          -4-                                                         November 17, 2022 

z. Procedure for Decon Tent 
aa. Purpose and Authority (DELETE) 
bb. Response to Wild Fires  
cc. Scope of Response (DELETE) 
dd. Triage Disaster Box (Delete) 
ee. Utility Mgmt Response Reference 
ff. Victim Tracking 

 
6. Environment of Care Manual 

a. 1135 Waiver, Requesting Policy 
b. Environmental and Waste Management for Ebola Virus 

Disease Procedure (DELETE) 
c. Hazardous Material Waste Training Procedures 

 
7. Food & Nutrition 

a. Clinical Nutrition Dietitian Staffing Policy 
b. Emergency Preparedness – Meals for all Nutricopia 

Policy 
c. Emergency Preparedness Food & Nutrition Disaster 

Plan Policy 
d. Nutritional Care and Assessment for Infants Admitted to 

NICU Policy 
 

8. Home Care 
a. Anticoagulation Therapy 
b. Central Venous Access Devices Procedure 
c. Emergency Preparedness Management Disaster Plan 
d. Medication Management 

 
9. Outpatient Infusion Center 

a. Age Specific Guidelines 
b. Data Management 
c. Diagnostic Tests 
d. Disseminating Medical Information 
e. Emergency Evacuation 
f. Environment of Care 
g. Fire Alarm – Evacuation Plan 
h. History and Physical 
i. Medical Emergencies 
j. Patient Discharge 
k. Patient Instructions 
l. Patient Record Content 
m. Physician/AHP Orders and Request for Service Orders 

Policy (DELETE) 
n. Scope of Services 
o. Staffing Plan 
p. Standards of Care 

 
10. Patient Care Management 

a.  Utilization Management Plan Policy 
 

11. Progressive Care unit 
a. Admission Process for Progressive Care Unit (PCU) 
b. Hunger Strike, CDCR 

 
12. Pulmonary Rehab 

a. Emergency Response Plan 
b. Patient Enrollment 



  
Agenda Item 

Time 
Allotted 

 
Requestor 

 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda                          -5-                                                         November 17, 2022 

c. Patient Referral 
 

13. Radiology 
a. Screening for Pregnancy in Patients Scheduled for 

Diagnostic Radiology Procedures 
 

14. Rehabilitation 
a.  Behavior Management/Supervision Technique 
b. Community Out-Reach Groups 800 
c. Job Site Assessment 609 
d. Occupational Therapy Assistant Supervision 707 
e. Occupational Therapy Policy – 702 
f. Supervision of Patient, OP 1106 Policy 

 
15. Security 

a. Code Adam – Infant Abduction 503 
b. Code Red – Security Department Response 504 
c. High Risk Patient or Visitor 509 
d. Psychiatric Patient Escorts 216 
e. Security Department Reports – 111 

 
16. Women & Newborn Services 

a. Cord Gas Collection 
b. Group eta Streptococcal (GBS) Prevention and 

Treatment in Labor ad Newborn Follow-up 
c. Hearing Screening Program:  Newborn and Infants 
d. Neonatal Delivery Room Attendance Policy 
e. Newborn Hearing Screening:  Inpatient and Outpatient 

Hearing Screening of Newborn and Infants Using 
Biological Equipment (DELETE) 

f. Newborn Hearing Screening: State of California 
Reporting (DELETE) 

g. Pitocin Administration for Induction/Augmentation 
h. Preclampsia Care Guidelines 

 
17. Wound Care 

a.  Adverse Reaction to Meds (DELETE) 
b. Age-Specific Guidelines 
c. Continuum of Care 
d. Diagnosis Specific Guidelines 
e. Diagnostic Tests 
f. Environment of Care 
g. History & Physical 
h. Hospital Admission from the Center 
i. Hypo-Hyperglycemia Management 
j. Medical Emergencies 
k. Medical Record Review 
l. Minor Debridement 
m. Nutritional Screening 
n. Scope of Services 
o. Standards of Care 
p. Standards of Care – 1 
q. Vascular Screen 

 
  (6)  Minutes  

     a) September 29, 2022 – Regular Meeting 
    b) September 29, 2022 – Special Meeting 

      c) October 12, 2022 – Special Meeting 



Agenda Item 
Time 

Allotted Requestor 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda         -6-      November 17, 2022 

(7) Meetings and Conferences – None

(8) Dues and Memberships –
a) 2023 California Special Districts Association (CSDA)

Membership Renewal - $8,810.00

(9) Reports
a) Lease Report – (September, 2022)
b) Reimbursement Disclosure Report – (September, 2022)

11 Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 10 min. Standard 

12 Comments by Members of the Public 
NOTE:  Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3) 
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on 
any item not on the agenda. 

5-10
minutes 

Standard 

13 Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. Standard 

14 Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. Standard 

15 Report from Chairperson 3 min. Standard 

16 Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 1.5 hours 

17 Adjournment 



RESOLUTION NO. 820 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT RE-RATIFYING 

THE STATE OF EMERGENCY AND RE-AUTHORIZING 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, Tri-City Healthcare District ("District") is committed to preserving 
and fostering access and participation in meetings of its Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) makes provisions for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b )(3), subject to 
the existence of certain emergency conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the 
Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of 
disaster, or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions 
that are within the District's boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human
caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote vaccines, masking, and social distancing, and that 
meeting in person at the hospital would present imminent risks to the health and safety of 
attendees; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted Resolution No. 803 on 
September 30, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the Board of Directors 
of the District to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in 
Government Code section 54953(e), the Board of Directors must reconsider the 
circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in the District, and the Board of 
Directors has done so; and 

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District and vaccine compliance, 
masking, and social distancing measures are required to be followed on the premises of 
the hospital for the continued health and safety of the patients, workers, and public; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of 
Directors does hereby find that the District shall conduct its meetings without compliance 

7



with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as authorized 
by Government Code section 54953(e), and that such meetings shall comply with the 
requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 
Govermnent Code section 54953(e); 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of 
Directors as follows: 

Section 1: Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2: Affinnation that a Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors 
hereby considers the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims 
that a local emergency persists throughout the District. 

Section 3: Re-Ratification of the Governor's Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency. The Board of Directors hereby ratifies the Governor's Proclamation of a 
State of Emergency. 

Section 4: Remote Teleconference Meetings. The District's Chief Executive 
Officer is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the 
intent and purpose of this resolution, including conducting open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of 
the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 
Tri-City Healthcare District held on November 17, 2022, by the following roll call vote: 

A YES: Directors: 

NOES: Directors: 

ABSTAIN: Directors: 

ABSENT: Directors: 

ATTEST: 

Gigi Gleason, Secretary 
Board of Directors 

Rocky J. Chavez, President 
Board of Directors 

2 
8



~~ 
Tri-City Medical Center 

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DATE OF MEETING: November 17, 2022 

NAME OF AGREEMENT: Medical Director Agreement for Infection Control 

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel Other: 

Status of Agreement New Agreement 
Renewal - New x Renewal - Same 
Rates Rates 

Physician's Name: Richard Smith, M.D. 

Area of Service: Infection Control 

Term of Agreement: 36 months, Beginning December 1, 2022- Ending Nov 30, 2025 

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES 

Rate/Hour Hours per Month Hours per Year Monthly Cost Annual Cost 36 Month Term Cost 
Not to Exceed Not to Exceed Not to Exceed Not to Exceed Not to Exceed 

$176 30 360 $5,280 $63,360 $190,080 

Description of Services/Supplies: 

• Provide infectious disease clinical consu ltation as requested by medical st aff 

• Develop, implement and eva luate an infection control plan to mitigate inappropriate prescribing of antibiotics 
based on evidence-based, best practices in the contemporary practice of infect ious disease 

• Assure quality of preventative measures and risk aversion 

• Establish and eva luate po licies and procedures for medica l and nursing ca re, including new treatment 
modalities, drug information and management protocols 

• Recommend, develop and implement new services related to infect ion control and prevention 

• Identify equipment and supply needs, and coordinate standardization of instrumentation/equipment for pat ient 
ca re as it relates to infection prevention 

• Co-lead Infection Control meetings and attend other Hospital and Medical Staff meetings in order to accomplish 
the duties of this ro le 

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: x Yes No 

Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: x Yes No 

Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: x Yes No 

Budget ed Item: x Yes No 

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Gene Ma, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 

Motion: 

I move that t he TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Richa rd Smith as M edica l Director of Infection 
Control for a term of 36 months, beginning December 1, 2022 and ending November 30, 2025, at an hourly rate of $176, 
for an annual cost not to exceed $63,360, and a total 3-year term cost not to exceed $190,080. 

9



~~ 
Tri-City Medical Center 

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DATE OF MEETING: November 17, 2022 
NAME OF AGREEMENT: ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - ORTHOPEDICS- General, Foot & Ankle 

Type of Agreement Medical Directors x Panel Other: 

Status of Agreement x New Agreement 
Renewal - New Renewal - Same 
Rates Rates 

Physician's Name: David Amory, M.D., James Andry, M.D., Erin Farrelly, M.D., Andrew Hartman, M.D., Serge Kaska, 
M.D., Hannah Kirby, M.D., Kyle Mom bell, M .D., Grant Seiden, M.D., Morgan Silldorff, M .D., Erik 
Stark, M.D. 

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call : Orthopedics 

Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning November 1, 2022 - Ending October 31, 2024 

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES 
Shared Call agreement with Entire ED call panel for Orthopedic Surgery 

Rate/Day 
Panel Days 

Panel Annual Cost 
Service During Term 

General 
Mon-Fri: $1,750 515 days $901,250 
Sat/Sun/Holidays: $1,800 215 days $387,000 

Foot & Ankle 
Mon-Fri : $250 515 days $128,750 
Sat /Sun/Holidays: $350 215 days $75,250 

Total Term 
$1,492,250 

Cost 

Description of Services/Supplies: 

• Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Orthopedics specia lty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy 
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Call : Duties of the On-Ca ll Physician) 

• Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory 
requirements. 

Document Submitted to Lega l for Review: x Yes No 

Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: x Yes No 

Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes x No 

Budgeted Item: x Yes No 

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jonathan Gonzalez, Director-Medical Staff Services/ Gene Ma, Chief 
Medical Officer 

Motion: 

I move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with David Amory, M .D., James Andry, M.D., Erin 
Farrelly, M .D., Andrew Hartman, M.D., Serge Kaska, M.D., Hannah Kirby, M .D., Kyle Mombell, M.D., Grant Seiden, M .D., 
Morgan Silldorff, M .D., and Erik Stark, M.D. to provide ED On-Ca ll Coverage Panel for Orthopedics-General and Foot & 
Ankle, for a term of 24 months, beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2024, at an annual cost of 
$746,125 and a total term cost of $1,492,250. 

10



Type of Agreement 

Status of Agreement x 

Physicians Name: 

~~ 
Tri-City Medical Center 

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DATE OF MEETING: November 17, 2022 

ED Call Agreement 

Medical Directors Panel 

New Agreement 
Renewal -
New Rates 

Yuan Lin, M.D./Dr. Darrell Wu, M .D. 

x Other: Coverage 

Renewal - Same 

Rates 

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call : CVT Surgery Assist 

Term of Agreement: 22 months, Beginning, Nov. 1, 2022 - Ending, Aug. 31, 2024 

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES 

Total 

Rate/Day Days per Year Annual Cost Term Cost 

$750 
Year 1: 365 days 

$274,500 $501,750 
Year 2: 304 days 

Position Responsibilities: 

• Provide 24/7 patient coverage for CVT Surgery Assis t services to the primary 
CVT surgeon taking call in acco rdance with Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 
(Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician) 

• Complete related medical records in accordance with a ll Medical Staff, 
accreditation, and regulatory requirements. 

Document Submitted to Legal for Review x Yes No 

Approved by Chief Compliance Officer x Yes No 

Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: x Yes No 

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Johnathan Gonzales, Manager, Medical Staff, 
Gene Ma, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 

Motion: 
I move to approve the ED ca ll agreement with a Yuan Lin, M .D. and Dr. Darrell Wu, MD. 
for second surgical assist services for registered TCMC hospital patients for Cardiovascular 
bypass procedures for a term of 22 months beginning November 1, 2022 and ending August 31, 
2024 at a cost not to exceed $501, 750. 

11



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONTACT: Candice Parras, CPCS 

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations 
Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures 

1. Collection of a Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture Procedure 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

2. Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approva l 

3. Newborn Screening Collection of Specimen Procedure 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

4 . Patient Complaints & Grievances 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
5. Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death 2 year review, Forward to BOD 

Care and Disposition) practice change for Approval 

6. Pronation Therapy for the Mechanically Ventilated Patient NEW 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

7 . Pyxis Connect Scanner Procedure DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

8. Safe Medical Device Act Tracking 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 
9. Sedation/ Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic 2 year review, Forward to BOD 

Procedure practice change for Approval 
10. Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of 

3 year review, Forward to BOD 
Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient 
Policy 

practice change for Approval 

11 . Skin and Wound Care Policy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

12. Specimen Labeling Procedure 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
Administrative 200 District Operations 

1. Cash Elective Surgical Procedures 263 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approva l 

2 . Mandatory Reporting Requirements 236 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approva l 

3 . Purchase of Budgeted Capital Assets 252 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

4. Self-Pay Bill ing Collections Policy NEW 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
Administrative 500 Compliance 

1. Advanced Beneficiary Notification 503 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

2 . Compliance Program Overview 532 
3yr review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

3. Disclosure of Protected Health Information 513 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

4 . Disposal of Confidential Records 510 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
5 . Hiring and Employment; Duty to Report Suspected 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

Misconduct Potential Compliance lrrec:::iularity 544 practice chanc:::ie for Aooroval 
6 . Education and Training; As-Needed Education and Training 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

549 practice chanqe for Aooroval 

D <:>no 1 12



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONTACT: Candice Parras, CPCS 

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations 

7. HIPAA Mitigation 591 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice change for Approval 

8. Monitoring Compliance - Auditing & Reporting - Annual 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
Compliance Workplan 552 practice change for Approval 

9. Pending Debarment, Criminal Charges or Adverse Action 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
against Covered Contractors - 540 practice chanqe for Approval 

10. Rights to Request Privacy for Protected Health Information 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
526 practice chanqe for Approval 

11. Screening Covered Contractors - 539 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 
12. Use and Disclosure of Protected Information for Fundraising 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

525 practice chanqe for Approval 
13. Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal 
practice change for Approval 

Representatives 593 
Emergency Department 

1. Culture Follow Up, Emergency Department 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice change for Approval 

Emergency Operations Procedure (EOP) Manual 

1. 4006- Influx of Infectious Patient Epidemic Influenza or other DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

2. 4006-IC-ED DELETE Forward to BOD 
for Aooroval 

3. 4009 Traffic Control In The Event Of A Disaster Security DELETE Forward to BOD 
for Aooroval 

4. 4010 Disaster Procedure for Earthquake DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

5 . 4012 Employee Disaster Call Back Procedure-Hospital Wide 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

6. 4013 Bomb Threat 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
7 . 4015 Emergency Preparedness Management Disaster Plan 

DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

Administration for Approval 

8. 4023 Communications Department Specific 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice change for Approval 

9. 4026 Code Orange Disaster Plan-Emergency Department DELETE Forward to BOD 
Specific for Approval 

10. 4036 Plan-Food and Nutrition Department 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

11 . 4061 Staffing Resource Department Specific 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

12. 4065 Radiation Accidents 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
13. 4068 Mitigation, Preparation, Response and recovery Plan- DELETE Forward to BOD 

Emerqencv Department Sepcific for Approval 

14. 4071 Disaster Plan Activation Hospital Wide 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
15. 4072 HEICS Command Structure-Hospital Wide DELETE Forward to BOD 

D<>n o ? 13



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONT ACT· Candice Parra CPCS s, 

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations 
for Approval 

16. 4073 Introduction to DisasterHEICS An Overview Hospital DELETE Forward to BOD 
Wide for Approval 

17. 4078 Chemical Disaster Emergency Department Specific 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

18. Authorization for Volunteer Caregivers During Disasters 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

19. Chemical Exposure Plan 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice chanqe for Approval 

20. Clean_Zone 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice chanqe for Approval 

21. Damage Assessment 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Aooroval 

22. Disruption of Service 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

23. Hazardous_Substance_Flowchart DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

24. Location of Disaster Work Station 4003 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

25. Patients_ That_Require_Decon 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

26. Personnel Expectations 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

27. Procedure_for_Decon_Tent 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice chanqe for Aooroval 

28. Purpose and Authority DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

29. Response to Wild Fires 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

30. Scope of Response 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

31 . Triage Disaster Box 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

- - for Approval 

32. Unidentified_Patients 
DELETE Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

33. Utility_Mgmt_Response_Ref 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

34. Victim Tracking 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
Environment of Care Manual 

1. 1135 Waiver, Requesting Policy NEW 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
2. Environmental and Waste Management for Ebola Virus Forward to BOD 

Disease Procedure DELETE for Approval 

3. Hazardous Material Waste Training Procedures 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice change for Approval 

14



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONT ACT· Candice Parras CPCS ' 
Food & Nutrition 

1. Clinica l Nutrition Dietitian Staffing Policy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

2. Emergency Preparedness - Meals for All Nutricopia Policy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
3. Emergency Preparedness Food Nutrition Disaster Plan 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

Policy practice chanae for Approval 
4. Nutritional Care and Assessment for Infants Admitted to 3 year review, Forward to BOD 

NICU Policy practice change for Approval 
Home Care 

1. Anticoagulation Therapy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

2. Central Venous Access Devices Procedure 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

3. Emergency Preparedness Management Disaster Plan 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

4. Medication Management 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 
Outpatient Infusion Center 

1. Age-Specific Guidelines 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

2. Data Management 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

3. Diagnostic Tests 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Aooroval 

4. Disseminating Medical Information 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

5. Emergency Evacuation 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

6. Environment of Care 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

7 . Fire Alarm_Evacuation Plan 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

8 . History and Physical 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

9. Medical Emergencies 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Aooroval 

10. Patient Discharge 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

11 . Patient Instructions 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

12. Patient Record Content 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
13. Physician/AHP Orders and Request for Services Orders DELETE 

Forward to BOD 
Policy for Approval 

14. Scope of Services 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

15. Staffing Plan 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice change for Approval 

15



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONTACT· Candice Parras CPCS 
' 

16. Standards of Care 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

Patient Care Manaaement 

1. Utilization Management Plan Policy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 
Proaressive Care Unit 

1. Admission Process For Progressive Care Unit (PCU) NEW 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

2. Hunger Strike, CDCR 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice chanqe for Approval 

Pulmonarv Rehab 

1. Emergency Response System 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 

2. Patient Enrollment 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 

3. Patient Referral 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approva l 

Radioloav 
1. Screening for Pregnancy in Patients Scheduled for Forward to BOD 

Diaonostic Radioloov Procedures 
NEW for Approval 

Rehabilitation 

1. Behavior Management/ Supervision Technique 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

2. Community Out-Reach Groups 800 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

3. Job Site Assessment 609 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 

4. Occupational Therapy Assistant Supervision 707 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

5 . Occupational Therapy Policy - 702 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

6. Supervision of Patient, OP 1106 Policy 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 
Securitv 

1. Code Adam - Infant Abduction 503 3 year review Forward to BOD 
for Approval 

2. Code Red - Security Department Response 504 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice chanqe for Approval 

3. High Risk Patient or Visitor 509 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

4. Psychiatric Patient Escorts 216 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

5 . Security Department Reports - 111 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
practice change for Approval 

Women & Newborn Services 

1. Cord Gas Collection 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 
2. Group Beta Streptococcal (GBS) Prevention and Treatment 2 year review, Forward to BOD 

in Labor and Newborn Follow UP practice chanqe for Approval 

16



ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA 
November 7th, 2022 

CONT ACT· C d" P an ice arras, CPCS 

3. Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Aooroval 

4. Neonatal Delivery Room Attendance Policy 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Aooroval 
5. Newborn Hearing Screening : Inpatient and Outpatient 

Hea~ing Screening of Newborn and Infants Using Biological DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

Equipment for Approval 

6. Newborn Hearing Screening: State of California Reporting DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Aporoval 

7. Pitocin Administration for Induction/Augmentation 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanQe for Approval 

8. Preeclampsia Care Guidelines 
2 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanQe for Approval 
Wound Care 

1. Adverse Reaction to Meds DELETE 
Forward to BOD 

for Aooroval 

2. Age-Specific Guidelines 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Approval 

3. Continuum of Care 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Approval 

4. Diagnosis Specific Guidelines 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Aoproval 

5. Diagnostic Tests 3 year review 
Forward to BOD 

for Aoproval 

6. Environment of Care 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanQe for Approva l 

7. History & Physical 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanqe for Approval 

8. Hospital Admission from the Center 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanqe for Approval 

9. Hypo-Hyperglycemia Management 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanae for Approval 

10. Medical Emergencies 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

practice chanqe for Approval 

11 . Medical Record Review 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Approval 

12. Minor Debridement 3 year review, Forward to BOD 
oractice chanae for Aooroval 

13. Nutritional Screening 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Aooroval 

14. Scope of Services 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Approval 

15. Standards of Care 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Approval 

16. Standards of Care- 1 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanae for Approval 

17. Vascular Screen 
3 year review, Forward to BOD 

oractice chanqe for Approval 

17



\~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Distribution: 
Patient Care Services 

PROCEDURE: COLLECTION OF BLOOD SPECIMEN BY SKIN PUNCTURE 
Purpose: To outline the procedure for collection of blood specimen by skin puncture. 
Supportive Data: Skin puncture is applicable for: 

1. Severely burned patients 
2. Extremely obese patients 
3. Patients with thrombotic tendencies 
4. Patients with malignancies for whom venipuncture is reserved for therapeutic 

purposes 
5. Geriatric patients or patients in whom superficial veins are not accessible or fragile 
6. Patients performing tests at home (e.g. blood glucose) 
7. Newborn/pediatric patients 

Equipment: 1. Tenderfoot (NSY) and Preemie Tenderfoot (NICU) 
2. Automatic lancet device 
3. Heel warmer 
4. Alcohol prep pad or Chlorhexidine Gluconate prep pad and Saline wipe 
5. Capillary blood collection tubes 
6. Gauze Pads 
7. Spot BandaQes 

A. PROCEDURE: 
1. Verify order for blood sampling. 
2. Identify the patient per Patient Care Services Policy: Identification , Patient. 
3. Ensure the blood specimen is collected from the individual designated on the specimen labels 

4. 

Patient Care 
Service 
Content 
Exoert 

03/00; 05/12; 
11 /15; 03/17, 

12/21 

or requisition slip. 
Choose the Puncture Site: 
a. Each patient should be assessed individually to choose the optimal blood-sampling 

b . 
c. 

d. 

e. 

Clinical 

method. 
i. Venipuncture should be performed in the event finger stick cannot be obtained. 
It is recommended greater than 2ml be drawn via venipuncture. 
Nonpharmacologic comfort measures should be considered for patients undergoing 
painful procedures such as skin puncture. 
Infant Heel Stick: 
i. Warm the infant's heel: Use a heel warmer according to manufacturer's 

ii. 

iii. 
iv. 

v. 

vi. 

instructions. 
Registered Nurse may provide the patient with oral sucrose and pacifier per 
physician/Allied Healthcare Professional (AHP) order. 
Provide developmental positioning (for example swaddling or holding). 
Site of Puncture: The blood must be obtained from the 
infant's heel using the most medial or lateral portion of 
the plantar surface of the heel, where "medial" is defined 
as closest to the midline of the body, "lateral" is defined 
as away from the midline of the body, and "plantar 
surface" as the walking surface of the foot. 
Assess the sampling site and select an area without 
excessive previous punctures, hematomas, or infection. 

\I 
Contraindications to performing heel sticks are bruising or hematoma on the feet; 
feet that are edematous, injured, or infected; and feet with anomalies upon which 
pressures should be avoided . 

Children and Adult Finger Stick: 

Nursing Pharmacy & Medical Professional 
Policies & Executive Department Therapeutics Executive 

Admini 
Affairs Board of 

of Pathology strati on Directors Procedures Committee Committee Committee Committee 

06/12, 11/15, 06/12, 12/15, 03/16, 08/17, 10/12, 04/16, 11/12, 05/16, 12/12, 05/16, 
05/17, 04/22 05/17, 05/22 08/22 n/a 

09/17' 09/22 
11/22 

10/17, n/a 10/17 

18



Patient Care Services 
Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture 
Page 2 of 3 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 
11. 

i. 

ii. 
iii. 

The puncture shall be on the palmar surface (pad) of 
the distal phalanx and not at the side or tip of the 
finger. 
Avoid puncturing the fifth finger if possible. 
The skin puncture site must be warm and not 
swollen (edematous). 

Clean the Puncture Site: 
a. Disinfect the site for sample collection with alcohol pad and allow it to dry. Betadine or 

iodine shall not be used to clean and disinfect skin-puncture sites. 
i. For NICU infants: disinfect skin surfaces with Chlorhexadine Gluconate prep 

pads (available in NICU). Wipe away all disinfectant with saline wipe after 
procedure is complete. Alcohol should not be utilized for NICU infants. 

Select Puncture Device: 
a. Infants: Use an automated heel lancing device that is appropriate size for the patient to 

perform the heel stick to ensure the proper depth. 
b. Finger Sticks: Use the appropriate automatic lancet device to ensure the proper depth. 
Order of Draw: If multiple specimens are to be collected, including preservative (EDTA -
Lavender Cap) specimens, the EDTA specimen is drawn first to assure adequate volume (at 
least to the bottom 250 uL line but not more than the 500 uL line) and accurate 
hematology test results. Recap and mix IMMEDIATELY. Other additive specimens (Green top) 
are collected next and clotted specimens (Red top) last. 
Perform the puncture: 
a. Puncture the chosen site that has been prepared. 
b. Wipe the first drop of blood with dry gauze pad since it is most likely to contain excess 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f . 
g. 

tissue fluid. 
A second drop of blood will form over the puncture site. When a micro collection device 
touches this drop, blood will flow into the tubes by capillary action. 
During specimen collection, allow capillaries to refill (apply gentle pressure and then 
release) Avoid excessive squeezing of the heel). Fill specimen containers to the 
specified volume. 
Allow blood drops to fall freely into the tube (avoid scooping or scraping blood from the 
heel or finger). 
Fill specimen containers to the specified volume. Cap the tube when it is filled. 
Each additive tube must be mixed by gentle inversion 8-10 times immediately after 
collection. 

Post Puncture Bleeding: 
a. Infant's Heel: Hold a gauze pad pressed against the puncture site until the bleeding 

b. 
stops. 
Finger Stick: Apply pressure with a clean gauze pad until bleeding stops. Place a 
bandage on the site, if necessary. 

Dispose the automated lancing device in a sharps container. 
Labeling Policy: 
a. Refer to Patient Care Services Specimen Labeling Procedure. 

B. REFERENCE(S): 
1. MacDonald , MG, and cl Ramasethu. Folk LA. Capillary heel stick blood sampling. 4iR-e4 

Philadelphia: Lippincott 1/1/illiams and Wilkins, 2007. 93. Print. 
61. Ohlsson, Shah VS A. "Venipuncture versus heel lance for blood sampling in term neonates." 

Cochrane Database System. 19 Apr. 2010. Web 24 May 
2012. www.2.cochrane.org/reviews/en/ab001452.html. 

~2. Robbins, Meyers R. Pediatric Nutrition Practice Group. 2nct ed. Chicago: American Dietetic 
Association, 2011. Print. 

4.-3. Heel Stick (Neonatal) Extended Text. (n.d.). Retrieved March 4th, 2022, from Point 
of Care Elsevier Performance Manager: https://point-of-

19



Patient Care Services 
Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture 
Page 3 of 3 

care.elsevierperformancemanager.com/skills/1233/extended
text?skillld=NN_003&virtualname=tricity-caoceanside#scrollToTop 

~ Walton, IJM, MG MaslJonald, and J Ramasothu. Atlas of wosedures in neonatology. 4"'-e4 
Philadelphia: Lippincott VVilliams and Wi111ins, 2007. 84. Print. 

20



~0) Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services 

PROCEDURE: FALL RISK PROCEDURE AND SCORE TOOL 
Purpose: To provide a comprehensive fall risk assessment on all patients each shift and implement 

aooropriate fall risk interventions based upon the patient's identified fall risk factors. 
Supportive Data: Requires a Registered Nurse (RN) to evaluate and identify risk factors for falls, develop 

an appropriate plan of care for prevention, perform a comprehensive evaluation of falls 
that occur, and revise the olan of care as annrooriate for fall orevention. 

Eauioment: Fall Risk Score Tool 

A. PROCEDURE: 
1. The registered nurse (RN) completes the Morse Fall Risk Assessment on every patient, 

including visually assessing and interviewing the patient, to determine the patient's fall risk 
score and secondary risk factors: 
a. Upon admission to the hospital 
b. Upon admission or transfer to another level of care 
c. Once a shift 
d. After any fall occurs 
e. When there is a change in the patient's status (physiological, functional, or cognitive) 

2. Review the patient's medications for any that may alter the patient's ambulatory stability (see 
Medication Fall Alert Reference Text). 

3. All patients receive the following Universal Fall Precautions as appropriate: 
a. Adequate lighting 
b. Assistive devices within easy reach 
c. Bed in low position 
d. Bed wheels and wheelchair brakes locked 
e. Assure call light and possessions are within easy reach 
f. Clean and dry surfaces 
g. Hand rails and grab bars accessible 
h. Hourly rounding 
i. Non-skid slippers or footwear are worn during ambulation 
j. Orient patients to their bed area, unit facilities, and how to get assistance 
k. Patient/family fall prevention education (uses the Patient and Family Guide and review 

Fall Prevention section) 
I. Review Partnering for Fall Prevention- My Safety Plan, with patient and their family. This 

is not a permanent part of the chart and shall remain at bedside in discharge folders. 
i. Excluding patients in Behavioral Health Services, Progressive Care Unit, -aflG 

Women and Newborn Services, and Surgical Services 
m. Rooms free of clutter 
n. Side rails up times two (2) 

4. The patient's primary RN shall implement an individual Interdisciplinary Plan of Care (IPOC) for 
the fall risks identified. Appropriate interventions based on the patient's fall risk score shall be 
selected and documented on the IPOC. These include but are not limited to: 

Department 
Review 

6/06, 1/08, 6/09, 
09/15, 04/16, 
09117, 05122 

a. Low Risk Patients (equals 0 - 35 total score): 
i. Reinforce use of grab bars near toilets. 
ii. Reinforce possible medication side effects that could increase risk of falling. 
iii. Limit administration of combinations of medications that may increase fall risk 

when possible. 
iv. Select suitable chairs with armrests that are an appropriate height for rising and 

sitting. 
v. Encourage patient to move/change position slowly. 
vi. Place patients with urgency near toilets or use commodes. 

Clinical Nurse Pharmacy& Medical Professional Board of 
Policies & Executive Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs 

Procedures Council Committee Committee Committee Directors 

11/11, 10/15, 11/11, 10/15, 
11/15, 11/16, 

2/12, 01/16, 2/12, 1/16, 
06/16, 03/18, 7/16, 03/18, n/a 03/18, 09/22 

11/22 01117, 04118, 
01/17, 04/18 

06122 07/22 nla 

21



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 2 of 8 

vii. Instruct male patients prone to dizziness to sit while voiding. 
b. Moderate Risk Patients (equals 36 - 44 total score): 

i. Implement Universal and Low Risk interventions. 
ii. Ambulate patients with assistance. 
iii. Re-orient confused patients. 
iv. Move confused patients close to nurse's station. 
v. Encourage family members to sit with confused patients. 
vi. Use bed exit alarms. 
vii. Use chair alarms. 
viii. Teach activity limits to patient and family. 
i>c barge fall risk sign shall be placed at the head of the bed for moderate risk 

patients. 
*-cix. Post the A-fall risk signage I tab magnet shall be placed on the paton or near 

the patient's room, wall or unit designated locationient's doorframe with the 
designated bed indicated on the magnet. 

c. High Risk Patients (equals 45 or more total score) require: 
i. Implement Universal, Low, and Moderate Risk interventions. 
ii. Place fall risk wristband on patient. 

a. High Risk Rounding: strongly encourage patient to use the bathroom or 
Bedside Commode at least every four (4) to six (6) hours while awake if 
they have not gone when offered during hourly rounding {does not include 
patients with indwelling urinary catheters such as foleys). 

iii. Remain with patient while toileting or showering. 
a. Document if patient refuses. 

iv. Ensure commode is available at bedside if patient is unable to ambulate to the 
bathroom with assistance. 

d. Responsibilities: 
i. Fall Risk Armbands: 

a. The RN or designee is responsible for placing the armbands on the wrist 
of patients identified as high risk (45 or more). 

b. The RN or designee is responsible for removing the armband upon 
change in fall risk score or upon discharge. 

ii. barge fall Risk laminates: 
a. The R~I or designee is responsible for placing, updating, and/or removing 

the large fall Risk laminates over the head of the patient's bed. 
iihii. -Fall R-i:isk Signage and or Tabsmagnots: 

a. The RN or Gdesignee is responsible for posting lacing, updating, and/or 
removing the fall risk signage I tabmagnot on tho patient's doorframo 
with tho designated bod indicated on tho magnet. 

b. The nurse leaderAssistant Nurse Manager (ANM)/chargo nurse I 
designee -sshall check for appropriateness of signage I tab during 
rounds. 

e. The primary RN shall reassess the patient every shift for needs and change in status. 
i. When patient is reassessed and has a change in risk level, interventions are 

added or discontinued as indicated. 
f. The primary RN shall note and document the availability of family/friends to stay with the 

patient. The care plan shall be revised with any patient status change. or the absence of 
fa.rnfly, 

g. The patient's fall risk status and family presence shall be reported during hand-off 
communication. 

h. If a patient falls, the nurse leaderANM or or -designee shall conduct an immediate 
educational debriefing for all staff involved. 

22



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 3 of 8 

i. Ensure the fall event is entered in the hospital reporting system e.g., AR 
incident report and Post fall Htiddle shall 8e completed 8y the /\NM or 
43sRL~ 

ii. Ensure the fall events is documented in the medical record by the RN 
i,iii. Conduct a post-fall huddle after reviewing the fall event documented in RL 

and the fall event documented in the medical record. 
ii.iv. TThe fall event and the post fall huddle documentation he inoidont report and 

Post fall Htiddle shall 8e reviewed 8y the DirectoFJManager and Risk 
Management. 

i. Surgical Services and eeach outpatient care area and Emergency Department will 
assess patients for the risk for falls 8ased on their own ti nit specific gtiidelines, and 
intervene as appropriate. 

B. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
1. Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Specific Fall Precautions: 

a. Appropriate interventions shall be used based on the Patient Care Services Fall Risk 
Procedure with the exception of the following: 
i. Fall signageStoplight magnets and overhead lam inates-are not required. 
ii. Due to patient and RN ratios for ICU, observation is ongoing and High Risk 

Rounding is not required. 
b. Moderate and/or high-risk patients require RN, Physical Therapist, or Patient Mobility 

Technicians (PMT) Lift Team Technician assistance with getting out of bed (reqtiires 
physician order). 

2. Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services (PANS) and Labor and Delivery Unit specific fall precautions: 
a. AU-j:lPatients post anesthesia/sedationin PANS area and La8or and Delivery Unit are 

considered high fall risk due to {39Sf-anesthesia/sedation-staltls. 
b. Appropriate interventions shall be used based on the Patient Care Services Fall Risk 

Procedure. 
i. Place call light within reach of bedside. 
ii. Assist patients to bathroom and ambulate wearing shoes or non-slip socks. 
iii. RN, Advance Care Tech, Peri-Operative Aide or family member must be in 

attendance behind curtain to assist out-patient while dressing prior to discharge. 
c. Fall Risk signage magnets and overhead laminates areis not required. 

3. EDmergenoy Department (ED) specific fall precautions: 
a. Patients seen in the ED are scored fer falls tising KINDER1 falls Saale, which is an 

evidenced 8ased 8est practice tool developed specifically fer ED. 
1*a. Fall risk assessment is performed by an RN upon initial assessment, using the Morse 

Fall Risk Assessment.~ 
i. The patient is doomed not at risl~. 
ii. The patient is deemed at risk if there is a yes answer to any qtiostion. 

&.b. Reassessments are performed with any change of condition. 
4c. If a patient falls in the ED the patient automatically becomes an at risk for falls patient. 
&.d. The following interventions are instituted based on the patient's risk value: 

i. Universal Falls precautions are initiated on all patients in the ED. 
ii. At risk for falls precautions (include but not limited to): 

a. Enootirage family to remain with patient 
1*a. Encourage patient to change position slowly 
&.b. Increase intervals of nursing observation 
4c. Patients shall be assisted to bathroom and with ambulation 
&.d. Fall Risk armband or booties placed on patient 

4. Imaging Services: 
a. See Radiologylmaging Services: Patient Safety Standards of CareGeneral Safety 

Management 128 Pelioy for Unit Specific Interventions 

23



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 4 of 8 

C. FORM(S): 
1. Morse Fall Scale - Sample 
2. Partnering for Fall Prevention- My Safety Plan 
3. Post Fall l=luddle Sample 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Policy: Incident Report - Quality Review Report (QRR) RL Solutions 
2. Fall Risk Algorithm 
3. Medication Fall Alert Reference Text 

24



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 5 of 8 

Morse Fall Scale - Sample 

Item 

1. History of falling (immediate or previous) 

2. Secondary diagnosis (2': 2 111edical diagnoses in chart) 

3. Ambulatory aid 
None/bedrest/nurse assist Crutches/cane/walker 
Furniture 

4. Intravenous therapy/heparin lock 

5. Gait 
Normal/bedrest/wheelchair 
Weak* 
Impairedt 

6. Mental status 
Oriented to own ability 
Overestimates/forgets li1nitations 

Total Score': Tally the patient score and record. 
<25: Low risk 
25-45: Moderate risk 
>45: High risk 

Iten1 Score Patient Score 

No 0 
Yes 25 ---
No 0 
Yes 15 ---

0 
15 
30 ---
No 0 
Yes 20 ---

0 
10 
20 ---

0 
15 ---

---

*Weak gait: Short steps (may shuffle), stooped but able to lift head while walking, may seek support from furniture while walking, 
but with light touch (for reassurance). 
t Impaired gait: Short steps with shuffle; 1nay have difficulty arising from chair; head do\vn; significantly i1npaired balance, requiring 
furniture, support person, or walking aid to walk. 
t Suggested scoring based on Morse JM, Black C, Oberle K, et al. A prospective study to identify the fall-prone patient. Soc Sci Med 
l 989; 28( l ):8 l-6. However, note that Morse herself said that the appropriate cut-points to distinguish risk should be determined by 
each institution based on the risk profile of its patients. For details, see Morse JM, , Morse RM, Tylko SJ. Develop1nent of a scale to 
identify the fall-prone patient. Can J Aging l 989;8;366-7. 

25



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 6 of 8 

Post Fall Huddle - Sample Questions 

• 
Morse Fall Scale 

·~ History of Fall in ld~t ~ MonthS 
¢ Type of Fall 
¢ /.divrty at -im~ of Fa' 

Secondary Dragnom 
Use of Ambulatory Aid 
IV or I\' Lock 
Gail 
' lental st.,tus 

Iii lorse Fat Score 
Participati·1e in F11ll Pr~11rnt1on 

ii Post fall Evaluation 
.~ © Type cf Fall 
·~ 

O Date, 11mc of Foll 
¢ Provider Informed 
0 PJt1~nt Stor/ 
<9Fa11Witnm 
¢ F<'l llAss ist 
0 fa ll Location 
¢ tod 1~1t; at -ime of Fa ll 

Positten When Found 
Speetal Conditions at Time of Fall 

~ f311 Pe aWl OJUtj 

Immediate Po~t Fall St<Jtu~ 
Virtual Patient Obst rvJbOn in lfst 

Yes 
Accidental 
fall f1om commodt 

Yes 
Ncnt, btdrest, wheelctiair, nurse 
'l'cs 
Weak 
Oriented to own ability 

Y~s 

Amdental 
11/28t2021 3:00 
Farhoomand, Kaveh S 00 
RN m room to asslt pt from commode to bed. While transl em 
Witnmed 
Asmtt<l 

Patient room 
fall from Commode, Transferring 

No apparent tnJu,les from fall 
No change from bimline 
No 

·~ 

26



Patient Care Se/Vices 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 7 of 8 

'Date:_/_/ __ Time: ___ _ 

Setting: FIN#: Entered By: 

! Reason for Audit: To involve front lino staff in idontifyfng prob/en1s and solutions, and in creating chango in thoirwork anvironn1ont. To promoto trust j 

j and learn building among team men1bers. To promote a positive Cufturo of Safety without individual blarne. 

: Instructions· 

1. Hold the Huddle as soon as possibf' 
2. Involve the patient, staff involved int 

:3. Meeting is organized by primary RN 
' 

: *Indicates tf)at an ansv-1er is req 
' 

' 
iew 

,2013 Post Fall Huddle !comments I 
I 

1." What was the lastest Fall Risk~ : 
: 

2." How did you find out that this p< 
' 

' 

' DELETE Form 

' 

3." What was the patient doing at t 

( 

' 
4." Prior to the patient fall, what wa 

• 

5 ... Prior to the fall, was the patient 
the fall? 

(Example-Did staff assist the patient to the toilet and then left the patient 
alone?) 

Page 1 of 2 

27



Patient Care Services 
Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool Procedure 
Page 8 of 8 

----------·-----·---·-----·-------------·----- ·----~---··---
: 6. *Why do you think the patient fell? 

I do not know [] 

Confusion [] 

Catastrophic event (stroke, arrhythmia) [] 

Arms or legs got weak [] 

~ 

' 

• 

' 

7.* Prior to the fall, identify the ancillary 
room 

DELETE Form 
' 

• 

' 

. 

; 8.* Did you do hourly rounding? 

' 9. The last time you did hourly roundin 

• 

' 

• 

• 
: 10: What could you have done to preve 

11. *What will you do differently in the fut 

! 12.* Post Fall Checklist 
• 

• 
Documentation in the Medica1 l"\ecoru levent, priys exam, lnlervent1on J 

. Morse Fall Risk Score Updated [] 

13.* RN: Patient Ratio (1 : _) 

: Please fill in the number of patients the RN was assigned to. 

: 14.* Did you fee! as though your patient assignment was appropriate? Yes I No 

------------------ ---·-·------------~·-·- .. ----- ·-·-

Page 2of2 

----------, 

• 

• 

• 

' 

' 

------·--------·----~ 

28



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Fall Risk Procedure Algorithm 

I RN Assessment Using Morse Fall Risk Assessment j 

Low Risk 
• Universal Precautions 
• Follow Plan of Care 

Interventions in the Fall 
Risk Procedure 

Revision 04/18. 05/22 

\V 

Is the patient: 
Low Risk (0-35) 

Moderate Risk (36-44) or 
High Risk (45+) 

Moderate Risk 
• Universal Precautions and Low 

Risk Interventions 
• Follow Plan of Care Interventions 

in the Fall Risk Procedure 

\ I 

PostlaGe Fall Risk 
SignageMagnet on the I 
Tab on Patient's Door 

Name 

Patient Care Services Procedure: Fall Risk Procedure and Score Tool 

High Risk 
• Universal Precautions, 

Low and Moderate Risk 
Interventions 

• Follow Plan of Care 
Interventions in the Fall 
Risk Procedure 

• Place Fall Risk 
Wristband on Patient 

• High Risk Rounding 

Remain with Patient 
While Toileting or 

Showering 

\J I 

Post lase-Fall Risk 
Signage I TabMagnet aR 

the Patient's Door Frame 

29



Medication Fall Alert Reference Text 

Medication Fall Alert 
Below are Medications That May Affect Patients' Fall Risk Level 

*Denotes individual drugs associated with highest risk of dizziness or falls in each category 
Category One 
1. Antihistamines 

a. Chlortrimeton (Chlorpheniramine Maleate) 
b. *Benadryl (Diphenhydramine Hydrochloride} 
c. Dramamine (Dimenhydrinate) 
d. Vistaril (Hydroxyzine) 
e. Antivert (Meclizine) 

2. Cardiac Drugs 
a. Tenormin (Atenolol) 
b. Capoten (Captopril) 
c. Cardizem (Diltiazem) 
d. Vasotec (Enalapril) 
e. Zestril (Lisinopril) 
f. Lopressor (Metoprolol) 
g. *Procardia (Nifedipine) 
h. lnderal (Propranolol} 

3. Hypotensive Agents 
a. Catapres (Clonidine) 
b. Apresoline (Hydralazine) 
c. Trandate (Labetalol) 
d. *Minipress (Prazosin) (Especially first dose syncope) 
e. *Hytrin (Terazosin) 
f. *Cardura (Doxazosin) 

Category Two 
1. Neurotoxic Chemotherapeutic Drugs 

a. lfex (lfosfamide) 
b. Vincasar (Vincristine) 
c. Platinol (Cisplatin) 
d. Methotrexate 
e. Cytosar-U (Cytarabine) 
f. Adrucil (5-fluorouracil) 
g. Taxol (Paclitaxel) 

2. Vasodilating Agents 
a. lsordil (lsosorbide Dinitrate) 
b. *Nitrostat (Nitroglycerin) 

3. Opiate Agonists 
a. Codeine (Includes cough syrups and Tylenol #3) 
b. Vicodin (Hydrocodone) 
c. *Morphine 
d. Percocet (Oxycodone) 

4. Anticonvulsants 
a. Phenobarbital 
b. *Valium (Diazepam) 
c. Dilantin (Phenytoin) 
d. Tegretol (Carbamazepine) 

Category Three 
1. Psychotherapeutic Agents 

a. *Anafranil (Clomipramine) 
b. * Elavil (Amitriptyline) 

30



c. *Sinequan (Doxepin) 
d. Zoloft (Sertraline) 
e. Desyrel (Trazodone) 
f. *Tofranil (Jmipramine) 
g. *Surmontil (Trimipramine) 

2. Antipsychotic Agents 
a. *Serentil (Mesoridazine) 
b. *Thorazine (Chlorpromazine) 
c. *Clozaril (Clozapine) 
d. *Mellaril (Thioridazine) 

3. Benzodiazepines 
a. Xanax (Alprazolam) 
b. *Librium (Chlordiazepoxide) 
c. *Dalmane (Flurazepam) 
d. Ativan (Lorazepam) 
e. Restoril (Temazepam) 
f. Halcion (Triazolam) 

4. Diuretics 
a. Lasix ( Furosemide) 
b. Bumex ( Bumetanide) 
c. Demadex ( Torsemide) 

5. Miscellaneous Anxiolytics, Sedatives & Hypnotics 
a. Equanil (Meprobamate) 

31



Partnering for Fall Prevention - My Safety Plan 
Directions: This is a tool to partner with the patient and family for education of the 
patient 's fall risk factors and strategies to reduce risk of falls and keep the patient safe. 

Partnering for Fall Prevention - Our Safety Plan for You 
We care about you and your safety. We want to partner with you and your 
family to prevent falls. 
Your medic al examassessment shows you may be at risk for falls. 
You are at risk for fa lls or injury for one or more of the following reasons: 

D You are unsteady (appear as if you need help) when you walk or 
stand up alone. 

D You may take medications that make you bleed easily if you fall. 

D You are taking medications that may make you light headed or dizzy when you stand and 
may make you lose your balance and fall fall more easily. 

D Your medical history shows an increased risk for broken bones, due to: ______ _ 

D Your grecent surgerisurgerye& or procedures puts you at risk for falling, such 
as: ________ _ 

D Medical equipment (sequential devices, foot pumps, infusion pump etc.,)-and medical 
devices that are required for our care such as oxygen tubing, urinary catheter 

B -

O Other: _________________________ _ 

You and your family can help us keep you safe by doing the following: 
./ Show I know how to use my call light 

D RN : Patient demonstrated correct use of call light to notify nursing staff 
./ I i,•1ill aAlways use the call light to contact the nurse . I promise to s 
./ Stay in bed and call my-a nurse or nursing assistant for help. 

o Whenever I need to get up 
o Whenever I need help reaching something that is out of my reach 
e-Whenever I am feeling dizzy or sleepy from medications 

./ Always call my nurse or nursing assistant for help 
o Before tyring to get back in bed after sitting in the c hair 
o Before tyring to go to the bathroom or return to bed after someone helps me to the 

bathroom 
./ I will a lways call the nurse and -not ask family or my visitors for help getting out of bed or trying 

to get back in bed 
o I will wear my skid-proof slipper socks and yellow wrist band 
o I have a bed a larm that is active a t a ll times. It i,.vill alert nursing staff ,..,,hen I am out of bed. I i,vill 

no t turn o ff the a larm . 
./ I will not use the over-bed table to help me stand; it is on wheelsreUei:s and may cause me to 

fall if I lean on it. 

g R~J : Reviewed falls prevention plan with patient and family 

g Patient unable to sign the form 

g Patient refuses to sign the form 
Patient Initials/Date/Time: 
RN Signature/Date/Time: 

32



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services 

PROCEDURE: NEWBORN SCREENING, COLLECTION OF SPECIMEN 
Purpose: All newborn babies are required to have a newborn screening test before the baby is 

discharged. Proper collection is mandatory. This procedure specifically addresses the 
proper collection of these blood specimens for the California Newborn Screening Program 
to detect such inborn errors as phenylketonuria (PKU}, galactosemia, hypothyroidism, and 
other metabolic/genetic disorders. 

Suooortive Data: Required under California Department of Health Newborn Screening ·Title 17. 
Equipment: 1. Newborn Screening Form 

2. Skin cleanser per unit standards 
3. Sterile Lancet type device 
4. Dry gauze 
5. Heel Warmer 
6. Single dose, pre-filled twist-tip vial Sucrose 24% (RN to administer, if ordered) (note: 

this is outside the scooe of practice for ohlebotomistl 

A. PROCEDURE: 

Patient 
Care 

Content 
Expert 

1. Initial newborn screening specimens shall be collected on State provided filter forms 
a. Clinical staff shall accurately complete the demographic data. The follow-up outpatient 

provider (physician) and provider number must be completely accurate. 
i. A ballpoint pen should be used to print clearly. 
ii. If the form is not completed in its entirety, the lab must contact the nurse to 

complete the form. 
b. The nurse or phlebotomist must fill in the date, time of collection, and initial as the 

collector. 
2. Follow proper patient identification and labeling procedure: 

a. Verify the infant's name and medical record number on the armband against all the 
demographics on the Newborn Screening Form. 

b. Place additional infant label on back of Newborn (NB) Screen Blood Collection card to 
ensure specimen test card is still identified with NB should the top page with infant label 
become separated. Attach label to back side of lower portion. Lab will not process if it is 
separated. 

c. Verify all information on the Newborn Screening Form is correct with a second RN. 
3. Timing of Collection: 

a. In postpartuFR oCollect the specimen between 24-48 hours of age. 
9. In neonatal intensive oare unit (NIGU) oolleot the speoiFRen at 48 hours of age. 
&.-b. If for any reason (e.g., transfusion, discharge earlier than 12 hours or hospital error) the 

specimen is collected prior to 12 hours, a second specimen will be required. 
Ehc. In Critically ill newborns, the attending NICU Physician.~A.llied l=loalth Professional (Al=lP) 

may postpone the collection of newborn screening specimen until the newborn's 
emergency condition is stabilized. 

4. Dried Blood Spot (DBS) Collection: Instructions for collecting adequate dried blood spots are on 
the back of the California Newborn Screening Specimen Collection Card. 
a. Do not handle the blood collection area of specimen collection card prior to, during, or 

following sampling. 
b. A new test request form must be used for each collection. If a mishap occurs during a 

collection, use a new specimen collection card. 

Clinical Nursing Perinatal Department Department Medical Professional 
Policies & Leadership Collaborati of of Executive Ad mini 

Affairs 
Board of 

Eixesutive stration Directors 
IJepaFtmeRt 

Procedures 
G9uRGil 

ve Practice Pediatrics Pathology Committee Committee 

Review 
03/00, 05/12, 05/12, 
05/12, 02/15, 08/16, 03/16, 09/12, 10/12, 11/17, 11/12, 
02/15, 11/16, 02/15, 07/17, 03122 08/17, 04122 09/17, 08/22 10/17, 09/22 11122 nla 12/17 

11/16, 02121 03/17, 10121 05/17, 11/21 

33



Patient Care Services 
Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure 
Page 2 of 3 

c. Do not use capillary tubes for collecting the blood to apply to the card. It can damage the 
filter paper, resulting in an inadequate specimen. 

d. See Patient Care Services Procedure: Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture 
for specimen collection. 

e. Follow instructions on Newborn Screening Collection card. 
i. Fill all circles. 

5. Use of Venous or Arterial Blood: 
a. A heel stick is strongly preferred. 
b. If unable to obtain a heel stick specimen due to prematurity or other issues with infant, 

arterial or venous blood may be used after the line has been properly cleared. 
c. Allow blood to freely drop from the syringe onto the filter paper, filling each circle 

completely. 
d. Mark "Other" in type of specimen category on test request form, and indicate source of 

blood (Umbilical Arterial Catheter, etc.) 
6. Infants Requiring Transfusions. If a transfusion is anticipated: 

a. Collect the specimen prior to the transfusion of red blood cells (RBC), even if the 
newborn is under 12 hours of age. Infants who are transfused with red blood cells must 
have a specimen collected prior to the transfusion. (Transfusions with plasma, platelets, 
or albumin will not significantly affect the screening.) 

b. If the neonate is less than 12 hours old at the time the pre-transfusion specimen is 
collected or if no adequate specimen was obtained prior to transfusion, a specimen 
should be collected 24 - 48 hours after the last transfusion. 

7. Processing Newborn Screening Forms: 
a. Allow the blood to thoroughly dry at room temperature for at least three (3) hours and 

follow hospital policy for processing the specimen. Keep away from heat lamps, direct 
sunlight, and humidity. 
&,i. Note: Touching or smearing the blood spots should be avoided. Blood spots on 

the filter paper should not be heated, stacked or allowed to touch other surfaces 
during the drying process. 

&.-b. The health care provider will order the Newborn Metabolic Screening (NBMS) test in the 
Electronic health record (EHR). 

Ehc. Do not seal tho bag containing the s~ooimen. Place in an unsealed paper envelop 
d. The newborn screening requisition form will be taken to the Laboratory and the clerical 

staff will receive them and place the Accession Number on the slip. 
e,i. Note: The lab staff will call nursing for information if the forms are not completely 

filled out. 
kl. The clerical staff will log these specimens on the Newborn Screening Form log. 

Specimens that are awaiting transport shall be stored at room temperature, away from 
heat and moisture. 

8. Document completion and RN verification/ witness of the newborn screen in the EHR. 

B. LABORATORY: 
1. The clerical or phlebotomy staff will receive the specimen in the Laboratory Information System 

(LIS) and place the Accession Number on the slip. 
a. If dispatched receive using the miscellaneous reference lab as the location. 
b. If the patient was discharged and the NBMS discontinued or was not initially ordered, re

order the NBMS using Department Order Entry using Miscellaneous Reference Lab as 
the location. 

2. Check the NBMS collection form for completeness and that the collection time is greater than 12 
hours of age. 
a. Lab staff will call nursing for information if the forms are not completely filled out. 

3. The clerical staff will log these specimens on the Newborn Screening Form Log and place them 
in the appropriate bin in the Chemistry refrigerator #5 at 2-8 degrees C for courier pickup. 

34



Patient Care Services 
Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure 
Page 3 of 3 

4. Completion in Gerner: 
a. Using Batch Result Entry enter Newborn Metabolic Screening. 
b. A list of NBMSs will display. The default entry is "See Separate Report". 

i. Be sure all accession numbers have a check mark displayed. 
c. Click Verify. 

C. PROCEDURE IN EVENT SPECIMEN IS NOT COLLECTED PRIOR TO DISCHARGE: 
1. Notify the appropriate Department LeaderUnit Clinical Manager that the specimen was not 

collected. Arrangements for follow-up of infant will be made by the appropriate Department 
LeaderUnit Clinical Manager. 

2. If no specimen is obtained for Newborn Screening, fill in "Specimen Not Obtained" section on 
the Newborn Metabolic Screening form. Situations which might apply include: 
a. A newborn that is transferred to another facility. 

i. The receiving hospital is responsible for obtaining the specimen. 
b. A newborn that expires prior to 48 hours of age. 
c. Staff error results in infant being discharged without specimen being collected. 

3. If newborn's parent(s) refuses testing, the "Newborn Screening Test Refusal" (NBS-TR) form 
must be completed and submitted. 

4. NBS-TR forms may be obtained from the OB Clinical Manager, OB Charge Nurse, OB Patient 
Data Coordinator, or the NICU Unit Secretary. 

D. PROCEDURE IN EVENT NBS RESULT IS INVALID OR ABNORMAL: 
1. The performing laboratory contacts the pediatrician provided on the NBS form for 

recollection of an invalid result, abnormal results and subsequent testing needs ... 
4. The performing laboratory contacts the pediatrician provided on the NBS form for 

abnormal results and subsequent testing needs. 

~E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. NICU Pain Management, Neonates & Infants Policy 

I ~F. REFERENCE(S): 
1. "Blood Collection on Filter Paper for Neonatal Screening Programs" NCCLS Document LA4-A2 

Vol. 12, No. 13, July 2002. 
2. AWHONN Evidence-based Clinical Practice Guideline. Neonatal Skin Care. 2008. 
3. Besuner, P. (2007). Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses -

Templates for Protocols and Procedures for Maternity Services, 2nd Edition. Washington, DC 
4. State of California Website, www.dhs.ca.gov.pcfh/gdb/html/NBS/ProgramOVforProviders.htm 
5. The California Newborn Screening Program. (2013, April). New Addition to Newborn Screening: 

Severe Combined Immunodeficiency (SCIO). Newborn Screening News Issue #16, pp.1-4 

35



ISSUE DATE: 

I REVISION DATE: 

01/86 

{&)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

FlATleNT CARE SeRVICeS 

SUBJECT: Grievance Policy- Patient and/or 
Patient Representative Camplaints 
and Grievances 

12/93; 01/97; 06/97; 08/97; 11/97, POLICY NUMBER: 8610- 318 
03/00; 09/00, 06/02, 04/03, 04/09, 
03/11, 06/1105/12; 01/16 

Clinical Flalicies & Flracedures Cammittee Appraval: 1Q.'15 
Nurse eirncutive Cammittee Appraval: 1Q/15 
Administrative Content Expert: 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

08/22 
08/22 

n/a 
~.09/22 
11/22 
~ .. n/a 
01/16 

1. To provide a process that substantively addresses grievances and complaints from 
patients or patient representatives as a method of improving patient care and services 
delivered through problem resolution; to traol< and analyze patient grievances and 
complaints; and, to identify specific issues or trends which can be improved. To provide 
patient's and/or patient's representative, a path to verbally, or in writing, register a 
concern or complaint regarding any aspect of their care experience and be assured 
that the issue is addressed through a timely and through process. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Complaint is an mcpression of displeasure or discontent about a situation (housekeeping issue, 

food dissatisfaction, els.) requiring a response tal~en to address the concern at ar issue. Post 
hospital verbal communication regarding patient care that would routinely have been handled by 
staff present if the communication had occurred during the hospital stay is typically considered a 
complaint. 

2. A "patient grievance" is a farmal ar infarmal written ar verl:lal camplaint that is made-ta 
the haspital l:ly a patient, ar the patient's representative, regarding the patient's care 
(when the cam plaint is net resalved at the time af the camplaint by staff present) 
Grievance is a written or verbal complaint (when the verbal complaint about patient care is not 
resolved at the time of the complaint by staff present) by a patient, or the patient's 
representative, regarding the patient's care, alleged abuse or neglect, issues related to the 
hospital's compliance with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services Hospital Conditions of 
Participation, or a Medicare beneficiary billing complaint related to rights and limitations. 
a. Types of complaints/grievances: 

i. Billing issues are not usually considered grievances for tho purposes of 
requirement unless a Medicare beneficiary billing complaint is related to rights 
and limitations. 

ii. A written complaint is always considered a grievance, whether from an inpatient, 
outpatient, released/discharged patient or their representative regarding the 
patient care provided, abuse or neglect, or the hospital's compliance with 

36



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policy· Patient and/or Patient Representative 
Page 2 of? 

Conditions of Participation. for the purpose of the reEJuireR'lent an ER'lail or faJ< is 
considered "written." 
1) lnforR'lation obtained with patient satisfaction survey(s) does not usually 

R'leet the definition of a grio>1anoe. If an "identified" individual v1rites or 
attaches a written ooR'lplaint on the survey and reEJuosts resolution, then 
tho ooR'lplaint R'loots tho definition of a grievance. 

iii. Patient ooR'lplaints that boGOR'IO grievances also include situations whore a 
patient or a patient's representative telephones tho hospital with a ooR'lplaint 
regarding their patient oars or with an allegation of abuse or neglect, or failure of 
the hospital to GOR'lply with one or R'lore Conditions of Participation, or other 
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) reEJuireR'lents. Those post 
hospital verbal GOR'IR'lunioations regarding patient care that would routinely have 
been handled by staff present if the GOR'IR'IUnioation had occurred during the 
stay/visit are not reEJuired to be defined as a grievance. 

i. /\II verbal or written ooR'lplaints regarding alleged abuse, neglect, patient harR'I or 
hospital GOR'lplianoe with CMS roEJuiroR'lents, are to be considered a grievance 
for the purposes of these reEJuireR'lents. 

2. 'IVhenever the patient or the patient's representative's reEJuests that his or her GOR'lplaint be 
handled as forR'lal ooR'lplaint or grievance or when the patient reEJuests a response froR'I the 
hospital, the ooR'lplaint is considered a grievance and all the reEJuiroR'lents apply. 

1. Patient Representative: Is the person who has authority, under California law, to make 
health care decisions on behalf of the patient. 

2. Concern: Concerns expressed by the patient and/or patient representative to a 
representative of the hospital during a patient's stay which can be resolved at the time 
of the occurrence and to the satisfaction of the patient and/or patient representative. 

3. Grievance: A formal, written or verbal grievance that is filed by a patient, when a 
patient issue cannot be resolved promptly by staff present. Any allegations regarding 
quality of care or premature discharge shall be defined as a grievance for the 
purposes of this policy. 

4. Verbal: Face to face expression or telephone to a hospital staff member, physician or 
volunteer. 

5. Written: 
a. The patient and/or patient's representative may email, fax or write their 

concerns in a letter to the hospital. 
b. The patient and/or patient's representative may file their concern with the state 

Department of Public Health Services, the Joint Commission, the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid, the Office of Civil Rights, and/or any other body 
overseeing the operations of the facilities 

B. POLICY: 
1. Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) encourages questions and concerns to be resolved 

at the time they are presented and for employees to support one another to facilitate a 
speedy resolution. Each employee has the responsibility and authority to be an active 
participant in maintaining the highest standards of patient and/or patient's 
representative's satisfaction before, during and after the patient's stay. 

2. When the patient and/or patient's representative's expectations are not met, they are 
entitled to register their concern and receive information of action(s) taken for its 
resolution. At no time should a patient and/or patient's representative feel threatened 
or intimidated because they have voiced a concern. 

3. If the concern is regarding the quality of care or premature discharge, the patient 
and/or patient's representative has the right to refer the case to the appropriate Peer 
Review Organization (Medicare beneficiary) that is outlined in the patient handbook 
provided at admission. 

37



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policy~ Patient andlor Patient Representative 
Page 3 of 7 

4. The Tri -City Healthcare District Board of Director's is responsible for the effective operation of 
the grievance process and delegates its authority herein for the review and resolution of 
grievances to the Risk Manager or designee. Compliance Cemmittoe. Grievance Cornrnilteo. 
+AB Patient Relations gpocialistRisk Management shall operate and maintain the hospital's 
grievance mechanism designed to process and resolve patient complaints and formal 
grievances l'ihile rnaintainin§I a cernwehensivo rocerd of cernplaints presontod to Tri City 
HealthCare District (TCHD). 

5. Upon admission, patients will be provided with information summarizing the patient's 
right to file a formal grievance or complaint. All patients will receive a Patient's Bill of 
Rights upon admission. The information provided to the patient and/or patient 
representative shall contain the address and telephone number for the State agency as 
well as The Joint Commission. Patients and/or patient representatives have the right to 
voice concerns freely and to voice recommended changes. Patients and/or patient 
representatives have the right to voice concerns and recommendations without fear of 
retaliation . 
.'.{., 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Staff should attempt to resolve any concern to the satisfaction of the patient and/or 

patient's representative, within the policies and procedures of the facilities. The 
department charge nurse/supervisor, manager, or director should be made aware of the 
concern and should be actively involved in the resolution of the issue. 

The Hespital Compliance Officer shall be netified ef any concern that involves a 
compliance related matter. Such matters include, but are net limited to, a 
prebable violatien of law or a violatien of the facilities' obli!Jatien te provide 
items or services that meet professienally reco!Jnized standards of health care 
quality ""'here such violation presented an imminent dan§ler to the health, safety, 
or well bein!J of a patient or placed the patient in hi!Jh risk situatiens. 

2. If the manager/director is unable to resolve the situation at the time that it is expressed or 
if further resources or investigation are necessary, the issue will be communicated and 
documented up the chain of command. 
a. Grievances will be communicated to Risk Management where the concern will be 

logged as part of the incident reporting system for data analysis and referral to 
the appropriate hospital manager, director, administrator or peer review person(s) 
or department(s), as appropriate. 

i. Within 7 business days of receipt of a grievance, a written response 
will be sent to the patient and/or patient's representative 
acknowledging receipt of their concerns. 

ii. If the investigation of the grievance cannot be completed within 7 
business days, the patient and/or patient's representative will be 
informed that the hospital is still working to resolve the grievance 
and will follow up with a written response within 30 business days. 

b. At the conclusion of the investigation, the responsible manager, director and/or 
administrator involved with the patient will be responsible for providing the 
content needed for the written response to the concern. 

i. All grievances will be reviewed monthly, or as needed by the 
Grievance Committee. 

ii. Grievances will be addressed in a timely process according to the 
nature of the issue, the seriousness of the allegations, and the 
potential for harm to the patient. Regardless of the nature of the 
issue, all grievances must be responded to, in writing, to the patient 
and/or patient representative within at least 30 business days of 
receipt. The written notice will be communicated to the patient 
and/or patient's representative in a language and manner the patient 

38



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policyw Patient and/or Patient Representative 
Page4of7 

and/or patient's representative understands. The written notice will 
contain: 

1. The name of the hospital contact person, 
2. The steps taken on behalf of the patient and/or patient's 

representative to investigate the grievance, 
3. The outcome of the review, 
4. The date of completion 

iii. A grievance will be considered resolved when the patient is 
satisfied with the action(s) taken on their behalf. 

iv. In situations where the hospital has taken appropriate and 
reasonable actions on the patient and/or patient representative's 
behalf in order to resolve the grievance and the patient and/or 
patient's representative remains unsatisfied with the hospital's 
actions, the hospital may consider the grievance closed. 

c. If in the course of the investigation an opportunity to improve care or services to 
future patients has been identified, action will be taken. 

d. Risk Management will track timely follow-up to concerns, communicate 
opportunities to improve care to appropriate departments and report 
trends/patterns to the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement through 
Patient Safety Committee as part of the quality improvement process. 

e. Records and documents pertaining to concerns and grievances shall be 
maintained by-TCHDthe facilities for a minimum of six years and shall be open to 
inspection by the California Department of Public Health Services and the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services during such six-year periods. 

1. Patient Education 
a. Upon admission, patients 'Nill be provided with information summarizing the patient's 

right to file a formal grievance or complaint. All patients will receive a Patient's @ill of 
Rights upon admission. The information provided to the patient/patient representative 
shall oontain the address and telephone number for the State agency to all 
patients/patient representatives, as well as The Joint Commission. Patients have the 
right to voice complaints or oonoerns freely and to voice recommended changes. 
Patients have the right to voice complaints and reoommendation without fear of 
retaliation. 

2. Receipt of oomplaints: 
a. All patient/family complaints regarding medical or nursing care ·..viii be disoussed first with 

the individuals at the lowest possible level in the organization. Every hospital employee 
is accountable for receiving and managing verbal complaints from patients/families. 
i. Attempts to resolve patient/family concerns or complaints will be made at 

bedside with individuals involved. Expression of a concern or voicing a complaint 
regarding patient care will in no way compromise the EjUality of services 
delivered. 

ii. Any unresolved oomplaint/ooncern Viii! be reported to the Clinical Leader 
supervisor! or designee. The Clinical LeadeFSupervisor/ or designee will attempt 
to resolve. If the oomplaint is resolved to their satisfaction, no further follow up is 
reEjuired. If no resolution, the /Jirector/Manager/designee will become involved in 
resolution efforts. If still no resolution, the parties may involve the Director of Risi< 
Management or the Chief ~luFSe Eicecutive in the resolution efforts. 

b. Processing of unresolved verbal complaints: 
i. Receipt of a verbal oomplaint is to be addressed promptly by the staff present 

("staff present" inoludes any hospital staff present at the time of the complaint or 
who can Ejuicl<ly be at the patient's looation (i.e. nursing, administration, nursing 
supervisors, patient advocate, etc.) to resolve the patient's complaints. 
1. If the verbal complaint is resolved, no further action is reEjuired 

39



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policy- Patient and/or Patient Representative 
Page 5 of 7 

ii. Unresolved complaints shall be entered into Rb Solutionsthe ocsurrense 
reporting software system (Rb Solutions) immediately stating facts of the 
complaint and any attempts at resolution. (A complaint/grievance is considered 
resolved when the patient is satisfied with the actions tal~en on their behalf.) 
1. The Patient Relations SpocialistRisk Management will review the 

information for completeness or the nood to follow up. 
2. The Glinisal beaaer/Elesigneemanagor of tho involved area will review 

tho unsolvodunresolvea compliantsomplaint and enter any resolution 
actions taken into Rb Solutions. 

d. The Patient Relations SpecialistRisk Management will follow up with the 
patient as needed. 

iii. Patients choosing not to voioe complaints to unit staff providing their care may 
ohoose to call the Patient Representative. In the absence of the Patient 
Representative, Risk Management the Patient Relations Specialist or 
Administrative Supervisor may be called. 

c. Complaints not resolved on the spot by staff present are "grievances". 
d. Grievanoes made about situations endangering the patient (neglect/abuse), given the 

seriousness of the allegations and potential to harm patients, require immediate 
investigation and review. 

e. Grievances require written notice (response) to the patient within seven (7) days. 
i. The written response shall contain the name of the hospital oontaot person and 

identify the steps taken on behalf of the patient to investigate the grievance, the 
results of the grievance preoess and the date of completion. 

ii. The written notice of the hospital's determination regarding the grievance must 
be communicated to the patient or patient's representative in a language and 
manner the patient or patient's legal representative understands. 

iii. If the grievance is not resolved within seven (7) days and if investigation is not 
complete or if corrective action is still being evaluated, the hospital's response 
should address that the hospital is still worl1ing to resolve the complaint and that 
the hospital will follow up with another written response within thirty days. 

iv. Every effort will be made to resolve all grievances as soon as possible. In 
oollaboration with the manager/director of the involved area of the grievance, the 
hospitals written notice (letter) to the patient will be prepared and sent by the 
Patient Relations Specialist and/or the Director of Risk Management for which 
the oomplaint involves. 

f. /\written complaint is always considered a griovanoo. To process written complaints: 
i. Upon written receipt of complaint from patient or patient representative, the 

department receiving shall date tho complaint and immediately place it into Rb 
Solutions. (Emails may be utili.:od as a method of oommunication of grievances 
only if tho patient has emailed their oomplaint/griovanoo and/or are asking for a 
written response via email.) 

ii. Onoe the oomplaint has been entered electronically, the appropriate Manager(s) 
of the area(s) involved will be automatioally notified. 

iii. /\ call will be plaoed to the patient, investigation conducted and actions 
thoroughly documented in Rb Solutions by the Risk Management Patient 
Relations Specialist/Mmanager(s) of the area(s) within four days. 

iv. Cases requiring immediate action or intervention may be shared direotly 
from the Director of Risl1 Managerment or his/her designee to the Department 
Chairman or Chairman of Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement 
Committee as outlined in the Medical Staff On Going Professional Praotice 
Evaluation/Peer Review Policy (871 Q 8Q9)polisies. 

.. The Patient Relations Specialist or Director of Risk Management will draft a 
response letter containing those findings documented in Rb Solutions. It shall 
contain the name of the hospital contact person, the steps taken on behalf of the 

40



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policy- Patient and/or Patient Representative 
Page 6 of 7 

patient to investigate the grievance, the reslJlts of the grievance process and the 
date of cornpletion. Risk Management The Patient Relations Specialist will 
doclJrnont sarne and scan tho lotter into Rb SollJtions and rnail the lotter. after 
review by tho Risk Managornont Director's approval. 

vi. Risk Managornont Director will provide oversight to all lotter responses. 
Response letters are not to be sont by tf\o other individlJals except as narnod 
heroin. 

~- Patient Roprosontativo/ Patient Relations Specialist Responsibilities: 
a. For each cornplaint received by tho Patient Representative or Risk Management 

Patient Relations Specialist ho/she will: 
i. Enter the infermation into Rb SollJtions. The data collected regarding patient 

grievanoes, as well as other cornplaints that not defined as grievanoes (as 
determined by the hospital) rnay be inoorporated into the hospital's Perforrnance 
lrnprovernent Prograrn by reporting tf\rolJgR tfle Compliance Committee and 
the Patient Safety Committee. 

ii. GornrnlJnicate with patient the projected tirne of response and/or resollJtion, 
irnrnediate and/or ldp to 24 72 holJrs for verbal feedback and seven (7) days for 
written feedback. Acknowledgernent letter for all grievances is to be rnailed within 
72 holJrs by the Patient Relations Speoialist. 

iii. Assist appropriate leadership with cornplaint review, fasts, and discovery ldpon 
roqlJests. 

iv. SholJld a patient or designated patient representative disagree with cornplaint 
findings, they will contact tho Patient Relations Specialist and/or the Director of 
Risk Managornent. Grievance Gornrnittee/A Patient Gare Conference rnay be 
offered as a process for resollJtion. The California Departrnent of Pl!blic Health 
and The Joint Gornrnission rnay be offered as an agency for cornplaint resollJtion 
to all patients. 

4. lndividlJal ancillary departrnent' responsibilities: 
a. When received by an ancillary departrnent, a cornplaint specific to that departrnent shall 

be forrnally acknowledged irnrnediately by the rnanager(s) of the area(s). The corn plaint 
will be entered into Rb SollJtions within 72 holJrs. 

b. Any written doclJrnentation slJbrnitted to the departrnent will be scanned into Rb 
SollJtions by the departrnent. 

c. /\II patient complaints shall be answered prornptly (e.g. within seven (7) working days 
vvith a closing staternent reflecting availability of individlJal departrnent, as well as tho 
Patient Relations Specialist/Patient Representatives as a futlJro problern resolJrces. 

5. ResollJtions of the grievance: 
a. VI/hen a patient cornmlJnicatos a grievance to the hospital via email the hospital rnay 

provide its response via ornail. 
b. There rnay be sitlJations where the hospital has taken appropriate and reasonable 

actions on the patient's behalf in order to resolve tho patient's grievance and tho patient 
or the patient's representative rernains lJnsatisfied with the hospital's aotions. In this 
sitlJation the hospital rnay offer the Grievance Gornmittee other alternatives as a 
rnethod for resollJtion. It will be necessary to rnaintain doclJmentation of its efforts and 
dernonstrate cornpliance with CMS reqlJirernents. 

c. In written responses, the hospital is not reqlJireEl to incllJde staternents that oolJld be 
lJSeEl in legal aotion against the hospital, blJt the hospital rnlJst provide adeqlJate 
inforrnation to address each itern as stated in this reqlJirernent. 

D. GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE/PATIENT CARE CONFERE~ICE COMMITTEE: 
1. The Grievance Gornrnittee shall consist of Chief ~llJrsing ElceclJtive or designee, Patient 

Relations Specialist, Risk Managernent, Perforrnanoe lrnprovernent and other departrnents 
and/or rnernbers as indioated. 

41



Patient Care Services 
Grievance Policy- Patient and/or Patient Representative 
Page 7 of 7 

E-,D. 

2. The Grievance Cenm1ittee shall meet as needed te evaluate grievances and cemfllaints frem 
flrier menth and review reselutiens. 

;<. Refler!s frem Grievance Committee shall 8e integrated inte the hesflital fJerformance 
imfJFevomont flregram. 

4. The governing 8edy has tho rosf)ensi8ility of tho oversight of the grievance flrecoss and 
delegates tho review and roselutien ef cemfllaints te tho Grievance Committee. Tho Grievance 
'Nill flrevido te tho governing 8edy at least annually. 

a. Tho Grievance Cemmittoo shall meet te review grievances una81o te 80 resolved at 8y the 
involved manager, flatient relations and risk management. 

REFERENCES: 
1. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Conditions of Participation Rev. 200, 02-

21-202G-1-e 
2. The Joint Commission (TdC) LO.Q1 .Q;3.Q1; Rl.Q1 .G7.Q1; MS.Q9.Q1 .G1 2Q1 a Hospital 

Accreditation Manual 2021 
3. California Hospital Association Consent Manual 2G-1-92020 

Rl!b/•.Tl!C COCUMl!NTS: 
1. Patient Cornfllaints & Grievances Flew Chart 

42



Distribution: 
~~ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services 
PROCEDURE: PERINATAL DEATH (MISCARRIAGE, STILLBIRTH AND NEONATAL DEATH CARE 

AND DISPOSITION\ 
Purpose: To assist the family in coping with a perinatal death via miscarriage, stillbirth or 

neonatal death, obtain mementos, if applicable and provide postmortem care. Families 
exoeriencina a Perinatal death shall be orovided sunnort for orievina. 

Supportive Data: Data shows that assisting families in making memories during a perinatal death helps 
validate the lost life and can help facilitate an effective grieving process. Use of 
multidisciplinary resource support during this time also has a vital role in helping these 
grieving families. 

Equipment: 1. Personal protective equipment 
2. Infant scale 
3. Disposable measuring tape 
4. ID bracelets, if applicable 
5. Disposition preparation items for transfer to the morgue -(Chux, baby blanket, 

instrument packing drape, tape and 3x 5 card) 
6. Authority for Release of Deceased/ Miscarriage Form - triplicate, if applicable 
7. Authorization for Autopsy form, if applicable 
8. Camera 
9. Grief packet, including: 

• Mementos folder 
• Mementos box 
• Dischar!:)e Instruction Form 

A. POLICY: 
1. Families who experience a perinatal death during pregnancy or shortly after birth may grieve for 

their baby and the loss of an entire lifetime with that child. Caring, supportive people can help 
families move through the initial crisis toward re-establishing their lives without their babies. 

2. It is important to meet the needs of bereaved parents and their family during the initial crisis of 
their perinatal loss by offering comprehensive care that includes compassion and an 
interdisciplinary perspective. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Miscarriage 

a. Assign patient to a room away from other patients and unit activity to promote a private 
and quite atmosphere free from chaos, laboring patients and crying babies if possible. 
i. If miscarriage greater than 16 weeks estimated gestational age (EGA) occurs in 

the ED and the ED provider initiates an Obstetrical consult, arrangements may 
be made to transfer the patient to the labor and delivery (L&D) unit for admission 
and care coordination as available per the L&D Charge RN. 

ii. Efforts shall be made to ensure the patient has necessary supports to assist her 
through this difficult time if not already present. 

2. Newborn or stillbirth 

Patient 
Care 

Services 
Content 
Expert 

Revisien 
9at& 

12/08; 6/11, 
09/21 

a. Complete the same patient admission requirements to the unit per standards of care for 
the patient and for the newborn if born alive. See Standards of Care for lntrapartum, 
Postpartum and Newborn Care. 

Nursing Perinatal 
Clinical Leadership Department Collaborative Pharmacy& Medical 

Admini Professional Board of 
Policies & li*esuti1.fe ofOB/GYN Practice Therapeutics Executive strati on Affairs Directors Procedures 

~ 
Divisisn of Committee Committee Committee 

Neenatelegy 

04/11, 10/16, 
04/11, 05/11, 

06/11, 03/17, 06/11, 10/16, 12/16, 12/21 01/17, 08/22 n/a 02/17, 11/22 
10/21 11/21 09/22 

n/a 03/17 

43



Patient Care Se1Vices 
Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition) 
Page 2 of 6 

i. If the delivery is a stillbirth, there will NOT be a medical record created for baby. 
All of the delivery information is charted in the mother's chart. 
1) Identification band information shall be entered on the bands manually 

and include: 
a) Last name and baby's sex, if known 
b) Patient's first and last name 
c) Patient's medical record number 

2) Attach one band to the stillbirth's ankleafffi for identification for remains 
disposition. 

3) The other baby band/parent bands can be saved and included as a part 
of the memory making process. 

ii. If the delivery is a LIVE birth, but then later dies, the banding process for the 
baby is followed per unit routine and is usually computer generated. 
1) One band shall remain on the baby's ankleafffi for identification for 

remains disposition. 
2) The other baby band/parent bands can be saved and included as part of 

the memory making process. 
iii. The patient shall be included in the decision of where she would like to remain 

post-delivery and for the remainder of her stay. Transfer off the unit may be 
coordinated with a providers order, once the patient is stable, and as indicated. 

3. Staffing considerations should include recognition that this situation may require more intense 
psychosocial and emotional support and assignments adjusted, as indicated. 

4. Post a special bereavement card outside the entrance to the patient to notify staff entering the 
space that a loss/ death has occurred to ensure sensitivity. 

5. Inform Social Services and/or pastoral care of the perinatal death to ensure alternate support 
measures are offered to the family. 
a. Social Services can evaluate any psychosocial needs, provide bereavement support and 

discuss disposition options with the family if desired. 
i. For miscarriage see Patient Care Service Procedure: Miscarriage and Stillbirth 

Identification and Disposition Process. 
ii. A "Comfort Cub" may be given to the family to assist with bereavement support 

and shall be determined by the social worker. 
b. Pastoral care provides both spiritual comfort and support to families and can provide 

blessings, naming ceremony, baptism and/or a memorial service as indicated. 
6. Discuss the anticipated plan of care with the patient including these options as appropriate: 

a. To see and hold their pregnancy tissue/baby. 
i. The family may wish to hold the newborn/fetus immediately after delivery. 
ii. Care should be taken to treat anything that comes from the mother's body with 

respect. 
iii. It is helpful to prepare them for what they will see: color, shiny skin, fused eyes, 

translucency, tiny hands and feet, any defects, skin sluffage, deformities, 
coloring, etc. 

iv. When handling the remains it is important to use gloves and complete good hand 
hygiene 

v. Ask the family if they have an outfit they want the baby to wear, a special blanket 
to wrap him/her, when appropriate 
1) If no outfit, staff can offer donated outfit layettes from the angel room. 

Have the family seleol one. 
b. Weigh and measure the length of the remains, if able. 
c. Obtain footprints, if able Or, if loss is small, can trace around the baby's hands, feet 

and/or body on paper background to represent size. 
i. The application of acetone to the surface of the foot and then use of a black 

marker (rather than an ink pad) will make prints clearer in this small gestation 

44



Patient Care Services 
Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition) 
Page 3 of 6 

7. 

8. 

9. 

d. 

e. 
f. 
g. 

Complete newborn identification certificate/card with parent's name and birth 
information. 
Discuss naming the baby 
Cut locks of the baby's hair if available. 
Obtain photos upon verbal consent 
i. The parents may take their own photos on personal camera 
ii. A hospital camera may be used for non-medical photography after verbal 

iii. 
consent is obtained from the parents. 
When appropriate, attempt to capture candids with the baby and family 
interactions as well as posed positions to highlight some of the physical attributes 
of the newborn/stillbirth. 

h. Ask family if they want to bathe the baby and facilitate as indicated. 
Collect all of the mementos and place them in the memory box including any photos, memento 
booklet, the outfit the baby was wearing, the blanket and hat and any other mementos. 
a. The Labor and Delivery unit has a dedicated room where the memento box and other 

memory making supplies are stored. 
b. If parents refuse mementos, they remain in a locked file in Women's & Newborn 

Services Department. 
If the family desires to make arrangements for the miscarriage disposition, ensure the Authority 
for Miscarriage Remains Release form is completed. 
a. Staff should move the remains to an appropriate and private room to prepare for 

transport. 
b. 

c. 

It is important that placement of the remains for transport not be done in the parent's 
presence to ensure dignity is maintained. 
Send remains to the Laboratory using the corresponding tissue requisition and per PCS 
Procedure: Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Process. 

When the family is ready for the stillbirth/newborn remains (baby) to be brought to the morgue, it 
is important that the preparation and positioning of the baby be performed in a way that combats 
the combined effects of rigor mortis, algormortis (cooling of the body), and permanent 
discoloration in case the parents wish to view the baby at another time. 
a. The baby should be unclothed except for a diaper in place, if desired and have an 

identification band located on its ankleami. 
b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

Place on a chucks pad first, the body supine. 
i. Care should be taken to not place any textured blankets or towels on exposed 

skin because it may leave permanent impressions. 
Support the head in position, by having two rolled 
towels/chux pads positioned at each side of the head to 
keep it upright. 
i. If the head is left unsupported, it may fall to one 

side and blood may collect in the soft facial 
tissues, leaving permanent discolorations. 

Fold the arms with a towel roll inserted under the arms at 
the side of the body to support the position. 
i. Place the hands crossed or next to each other on 

the chest. 
Wrap the body in the chux and baby blanket mummy-
fashion to secure positioning, followed by an instrument packing drape which shall be 
taped in place. 
Complete an index card with the following information and tape it to the outside of the 
baby's wrap: 
i. Baby's last name and gender (baby girl/baby boy) 
ii. Mother's name and medical record number 

1) May use an admission sticker 
2) Newborn's medical record number if a newborn death 

45



Patient Care Services 
Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition) 
Page 4 of 6 

iii. Date and time of delivery 
iv. Weight (gms) and length (cm) 
v. Attending provider 

g. Coordinate transfer to the morgue per PCS: Release of the Deceased Procedure. 
i. Ensure the morgue log book is completed when bringing baby to and from the 

morgue for family viewing. 
10. Give the family bereavement support material to review as indicated and discharge instructions 

for follow-up: 
a. Provide information about medical care options available to them by their provider 

depending on their perinatal loss diagnosis 
b. Include in the plan of care regarding post procedure and/or post delivery options, and 

disposition options. 
c. For a miscarriage please review the "Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release form" 

with the family, per Patient Care Services (PCS) procedure: Miscarriage and Stillbirth 
identification and disposition process. 

d. For a stillbirth or neonatal death, please review the "Release of the Deceased form" with · 
the family per PCS procedure: Miscarriage and Stillbirth identification and disposition 
process. 

11. A grief oheoklist should be oompleted to provide information on what has been done. 

C. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Document the miscarriage and/or delivery information and other interventions in the Perinatal 

Death Ad Hoo formmother's Electronic Medical Record, including the disposition ofwi#\ fetal 
remains. 

2. If born alive, document admission items per standards of care in the Electronic Medical Record, 
oomplete Perinatal Death Ad Hoo form, including the disposition of the newborn. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Patient Care Service Procedure: Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Process 
2. Women and Newborn Services Standards of Care for lntrapartum 
3. Women and Newborn Services Standards of Care Postpartum 
4. Women and Newborn Services Standards of Care Newborn Care 
5. Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Form Sample 
e. Authority for Release of the Deoeased Form Sample 

E. REFERENCES: 
1. Wilke, J. & Limbo, R. (2012) Bereavement training in perinatal death (fih ed.). La Crosse: 

Gunderson Lutheran Medical Foundation, Inc. 
2. Simpson, K. & Creehan, P. (2021:1-4) AWHONN Perinatal nursing (451

h ed.). Philadelphia: 
Lippincott, Williams & Wilkins. 

3. Rosenbaum, J., Renaud-Smith, J., & Zollfrank, R. (2011) Neonatal end-of-life spiritual support 
care. The Journal of Perinatal and Neonatal Nursing 25(1), 61-69. 

4. Mattson, S., & Smith, J.E. (2016-1-). Core-curriculum to maternal-newborn nursingo(451
h Ed.). 

Philadelphia: Saunders. 

46



Patient Care Services 
Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition) 
Page 5 of 6 

Authority for Release of Deceased Form - Sample 

Test, Fred MRI! 0000054:' 6002100:'24 

1 48 7--66-5555 Room # 5 16 

0 

Oce-msi~ C.\ 91056 

Na.t ofkin: Test,Fred 

Patient a donor: Yes 

R~atio n: Pt PhoneNumber: ( 111) 111-11 11 

Attending Ph~· iician: T~st, D~lE Physician 

Pronounced Time: 04 04101614:56 l\fed.ical E:uminer Notified: Y:s 

I adtno"lTled~e the rece:' tof ersonal effects ~ncibo. dew.mctoJ. 

Dat 

Ih 

DELETE 
lHortua 

RecHn 

DateT 

Return 

RecHn 

Tri-CitY l\Iedical Center .. 
Authority for Release of Deceased 

Test, ' =' 
02 02 1954 61 YeMS ).fa.le 
TC\IC ]npatieJit 6002100 724 

Wain~o.: 55555 

PLEASE U.\KE COPY OF ORIGII\_\L \UfH F_.\lfil.Y SJGN_.\.TIJRES FORl\IORTU_o\RY PICK UP SER\lCE 

47



Patient Care Seivices 
Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillbirth and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition) 
Page 6 of6 

Authority for Release of the Deceased Form - Sample 

A miscarriage Is validated when the Estimated Gestational Age (EGA) Is less than 20 weeks and/or when the head to 
buttocks length Is less than 16.5 cm and the heel to toe length is less than 3.1 cm per Patient Care Services Miscarriage 
and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Process Procedure. 

Do the pregnancy remains meet miscarriage criteria? 

YES __ Please transfer the miscarriage remains to the Laboratory and review disposition options below. 

Nurse Name ___________ Date ___ Provider Name ____________ .Date __ _ 

Please be advised that you have choices concerning the final disposition of miscarriage remains, If desired. 

HOSPITAL DISPOSITION 
According to regulations, the hospital will dispose of the miscarriage under the terms and conditions customarily used. 
The hospital cannot return the remains to you. 

I wish for Tri-City Medical Center to arrange for the disposition of remains under the terms and conditions customarily 
used. 
Patient Signature Date ______ _ 

ARRANGED DISPOSITION 
If you would like to make alternate arrangements, the remains must be released to an approved agency for proper burial 
or cremation by a licensed funeral director or mortuary. PLEASE READ and INITIAL the Items BELOW: 

1. I wish to make arrangements with a licensed funeral director or mortuary and understand that I am responsible for all 
expenses. YES __ 
2. I understand that If arrangements are not made with a funeral home/mortuary wilh'in 30 days, the Laboratory 
Department will dispose of the remains under the terms and conditions customarily used by the hospital. YES __ 
3. Due to regulatory guidelines, there may be reasons the remains may not be able lo be released. YES __ _ 

____________ .hereby authorize Tri-City Medical Center to release the remains to: 

Patient 
( l To:--------------------------------Mortuary/Procurement Agency Area CodefPhona Number 

Date I Signature I Area Code/ Phone 
Number I Email eddress 

Mortuary Notified: Date ________ _ Time ______ _ Initials-------

MORTICIAN'S RECEIPT OF REMAINS 

Received from TRl~C!TY MEDICAL CENTER, the pregnancy remains from, (Name) 

(Date) 

Released By: 

Public Administrator Notified: 

(Time) 

~~ Tri·City Medical Center 
4002 Vlsla Way• Oceanside • CA • 92056 

(Signature of Mortuary Transporter) 

Date: _____ _ 

Dale: 

AUTHORITY FOR MISCARRIAGE REMAINS 

llll!ll~l~l~llllllll Ill 111 
RELEASE 

llme: _____ _ 

llme: 
Affix Patient 

Initials 

Whlta: Medical Record Make (4) copies (1) Pa~enl, (2) Admlntstra!IOJa Supcrvlscr(J) Laboratory (4} Mortuary 

48



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services 

PROCEDURE: PRONATION THERAPY FOR THE MECHANICALLY VENTILATED PATIENT 
Purpose: To assist ICU staff in safely caring for the mechanically ventilated patient requiring 

pronation therapy; to outline inclusion and exclusion criteria for pronation therapy; to 
identify the equipment and personnel needed before, during and after performing the 
prone maneuver; and to outline the steps to safely turning a patient on mechanical 
ventilation to the orone oosition. 

Supportive Data: Prone positioning is an adjunct, short term, supportive therapy for critically ill patients 
with Adult Respiratory Distress Syndrome (ARDS) with severe hypoxemia. Prone 
positioning helps to recruit alveoli, leading to reduced Ventilator Induced Lung Injury 
(VILI), improved oxygenation, improved ventilation, improved mobilization of secretions 
and reduced mortality. When the body is placed in a prone position, pleural pressures, 
comoliance, and volume distribution in different reaions of the lunas chanae. 

Equipment: 1. For Manual Proning: 
a. Two flat sheets 
b. Three pillows 
c. One large white chux pad 
d. One blue chux pad 
e. Two Hover mats 
f. ECG electrodes 
g. Silicone composite foam dressings for pressure points (Prone Pack) 
h. Bite block 
i. Ophthalmic lubricant 
j. Clamp, in case the patient needs to be disconnected from ventilator 

2. FOF F!FDRiR§ usiR§ RotoPFORe +tieFa13y Systeffl 
a. RotoPFORe +t1ef813y Systeffl eed 
9. +we GAW< 13ads 
G. eGG elee!FOdes 
d. SilieoRe GOFflfJOSite foaffl dmssiR§S foF flFessuFe i:ioiRls 
o. Gi:itittialfflie lueFiGaRI 
f. eye f)a!GR, Of paper !ape lo Giese eyelids 

""' G' 
,_ 

·~" .... ...J ... .._ '- " 
·~· .. .. . 

I A. DEFINITIONS: 
1. ARDS: A life threatening respiratory condition characterized by hypoxemia, and stiff lungs. 
2. Kinetic Therapy: A slow, gentle, side-to-side rotation of the patient to an angle between 40-62 

degrees. 
3. P/F Ratio: Partial pressure of arterial oxygen (Pa02 ) +fraction of inspired oxygen (Fi0 2 ) X 100. 
4. Prone positioning: the process of turning a patient with precise, safe motions from their back 

onto their abdomen so the patient is lying face down. 
5. RoloPFORe +tierai:iy Sysleffl: A eed desi13Red lo plaee a palieRI ·.villi aeule pulffloRary 

GOFflpliealioRS SUGA as aGulo ILIA§ ifl:iuFy aRd /\RDS iR !tie flFORe flOSilioR aRd prnvide kiRotie 
IReFOpy. 

&.-5. Severe hypoxomia: A condition in which the P/F ratio is < 150 mm Hg with an Fi02 of at least 
60% and positive end-expiratory pressure (PEEP) of at least 4 cm H20 and a tidal volume close 
to 6 ml/kg of predicted body weight. 

7-,6. Spontaneous Awakening Trial (SAT): A period of time during which a mechanically ventilated 
patient's sedative medications are discontinued to assess for the ability to comfortably engage 
in a trial of spontaneous breathing. 

Patient Care Clinical Pharmacy & Medical Professional 
Services Policies and Nursing Critical Care Therapeutics Executive Admini Affairs Board of 
Content Procedures Leadership Committee Committee Committee stration Committee Directors 
Exoert Committee 

111/20 NEW 12/20 08121 08122 nla 10/22 11122 nla 

49



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 2 of 10 

l?r.7. Spontaneous Breathing Trial (SST): An assessment of a mechanically ventilated patient's ability 
to breathe while receiving minimal or no ventilator support. 

9,8. Train of four (TOF): A peripheral nerve stimulator tool used to monitor the level of paralyzation 
of the patient undergoing intravenous neuromuscular blockade therapy. A stimulator delivers 
four electrical impulses in succession, eliciting a baseline twitch response after each stimulus 
("4/4") with 10 mA. 

B. POLICY 
1. A Physician or Allied Health Professional (AHP) order is required for initiation and 

discontinuation of pronation therapy. 
2. Pronation therapy will be provided for 16 to 20 hours per 24-hour day, with a schedule of prone 

and supine time specified in the Physician/AHP order. 
a. For manual proning, an alternating schedule of 16-20 hours prone and 4-8 hours supine 

is recommended. 
9. For flFOning with the RotoProne Therapy Z>ystem, an initial prone time of 20 hours is 

reoommended, followed ey an alternating sohedule of 1 hour supine and 6 hours prone. 
3. While on manual pronation therapy, the patient shall be repositioned every two hours. 

a. The patient may be manually tilted using pillows on the side the face is turned toward. 
b. The head shall be turned from side to side. 

i. Ensure ears are not kinked. 
c. Reposition arms in "swimmers' freestyle position": place one arm straight down at the 

side; opposite arm bent at 90 degree angle, arm reaching up with palm down. The head 
should be facing same direction as the bent arm. 

4. While in prone position, eyes shall be protected with ocular lubricant every 42' hours and pm. 
5. Patients undergoing pronation therapy shall be adequately sedated to a RASS score of -4 to -5. 

a. Assess and document RASS every 1 hour. 
6. If neuromuscular blockade is used, titrate to a TOF of 214. 

a. Assess and document TOF every 4 hours or per physician/AHP orders. 
7. At least five staff required to perform manual turns 

a. Primary RN will communicate plan and assign roles to team 
b. Minimum of 2 staff (i.e. RN, Lift Team Technician) on each side of the patient at the 

shoulders and hips. 
c. Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP) shall act as the team leader and stand at the head 

of bed to secure endotracheal tube (ETT) 
g_ All manual turns are done on a oount of 3 as direoted ey the team leader. 
9,8. The Physician/Allied Health Care Provider shall be present during the initial manual prone 

maneuver to deem patient viable for current and future turns, to ensure the turn is done safely, 
and to assist in the event the patient suddenly decompensates. 

-Uh9. ABGs shall be drawn approximately 15 minutes prior to the initial prone maneuver, 
approximately 30 minutes after the initial turn, then per Physician/AHP orders (i.e. every 4 
hours until stable, daily while prone and, PRN). 

'14.-10. The P/F ratio shall be calculated with each ABG, and monitored to trend for improvement. 
'1-6-11. Every 2 hours and prn: 

a. Clear ETT, oral cavity and nose of secretions 
b. Assess face, elbows, knees, toes and genitals for breakdown. 
c. Provide oral care 
d. Reposition patient's head to face opposite side while manually proned . 

.:J..&.-12. In the event of a cardiac arrest, call a Code Blue, and return patient to supine position as soon 
as possible (for the manually proned patient, when adequate number staff present). 
a. In the event of a cardiopulmonary arrest and the patient cannot be turned supine, 

perform cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) in the prone position over the midthoracic 
spine. 
i. Position hands one vertebral level below the line crossing both the inferior angles 

of the scapula. 

50



Patient Care Seivices 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 3of10 

ii. Perform CPR at the same depth and rate as if the patient were supine . 
.:J.4.13. When the patient is in the supine position: 

a. Perform systems assessment; assess face, elbows, knees, toes, and genitals for skin 
breakdown. 

b. Perform SAT/SBT if possible. 
c. Perform hygiene care. 
d. Perform diagnostic tests if ordered. 
e. Provide passive range of motion (ROM) exercises. 
f. Perform any scheduled dressing changes prior to the next prone maneuver. 
g. Raise head of bed to 30 degrees or as tolerated. 
h. Reposition patient every 2 hours. 

C. INCLUSION CRITERIA FOR PRONE POSITIONING 
1. ARDS with severe hypoxemia. 
2. Fi02 '.:: 0.6 
3. PEEP'.:: 10 cm H,O 
4. P/F ratio_::: 150 mm Hg 
5. Chest x-ray showing bilateral patchy alveolar infiltrates 

D. EXCLUSION CRITERIA FOR PRONE POSITIONING 
1. Unstable cervical, thoracic, lumbar, pelvic, skull, or facial fractures 
2. Cervical or skeletal traction 
3. Uncontrolled ICP 
4. Weight< 40 l~g orgreater than{>) 160 kg 
5. Height> 198.12 cm (6'6") 
6. Inability to tolerate face down position 
7. Massive hemoptysis 
8. Relative contraindications exist (risk to benefit ratio to be considered): 

a. Severe hemodynamic instability 
b. History of difficult intubation 
c. Excessive size or bulk that precludes the ability to manually turn within the bed frame 
d. Intra-Aortic Balloon Pump {IABP) therapy 
e. Thoracic outlet syndrome 
f. Pregnancy (consult with obstetrics) 
g. Recent thoracic or tracheal surgery (consult with surgeon) 
h. Abdominal compartment syndrome 
i. Acute pulmonary embolism or deep vein thrombosis 

E. PROCEDURE FOR MANUAL PRONING: 
1. Trial Positioning 

a. When clinically indicated, a trial of prone positioning will be performed to assess for 
potential problems. The patient will be slowly turned on one side and assessed for: 
i. Heart rate and blood pressure instability 
ii. Sp02 < 90% 
iii. Patient safety 

b. If the Physician/AHP is satisfied that the patient can tolerate the prone position, proceed 
with full prone positioning as outlined below. 

2. Preparation: 
a. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves and appropriate PPE based on the patient's signs 

and symptoms and indications for isolation precautions~ 
b. Verify the correct patient using two identifiers. 
c. Explain the procedure to the patient/family. 
d. Hold tube feeding 1 hour prior to proning (may resume once in prone position). 
e. Gather supplies 

51



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 4of10 

f. Perform any dressing changes necessary and/or scheduled for the time period the 
patient is scheduled to be proned 

g. Empty Foley catheter bag and securement device. 
h. Empty any other drainage bags. 
i. Assess and verify the prescribed level of sedation has been achieved. 
j. Disconnect unnecessary cables, lines, or tubes. 
k. Untangle cables, lines, tubes that need to stay on the patient. 
I. Place all lines in the upper torso over the right or left shoulder of the patient, with the 

exception of chest tubes which should be placed at the foot of the bed. Place all lines in 
the lower torso at the foot of the bed. 

m. Place protective foam dressings on pressure points: 
i. Cheeks 
ii. Chin 
iii. Anterior shoulders to chest 
iv. Bilateral iliac crest 
v. Bilateral knees 
vi. Bilateral tops of feet 

n. Apply skin protectant (i.e. Cavalon skin barrier) to face prn to protect skin from oral 
secretions. 

o. Lubricate eyes. 
p. Insert bite block, if applicable (i.e. swollen or protruding tongue). 
q. Assure ETT is secured, and re-tape if necessary. 

i. Document ETT marking at the lip 
r. Gather necessary staff (minimum of 5). 

i. Primary RN (Leader) at head of bed 
1) Assigns roles 
2) Supports the head and neck 
3) Ensures procedure is being followed correctly 
4) Calls the turns on the count of 3. 

ii. RCP at the head of bed secures the airway and monitors ventilator tubing. 
iii. Additional RNs and/or Lift Team Technicians assist with turning and body 

alignment post-turn. 
iv. Physician/AHP available 

s. Assure reintubation equipment and ambu bag with peep valve and inline filter are 
available. 

t. Obtain arterial blood gas (ABG) 15 minutes prior to initial turn, otherwise as ordered or 
PRN 

u. Preoxygenate with 100% Fi02 for 2-3 minutes prior to turn. 
3. Manual Proning Maneuver: 

a. Place a new clean flat sheet under a Hover mat under the patient (roll side-to-side) 
b. Ensure patient privacy and remove patient gown. 
c. If patient is on a low air-loss surface, adjust the inflation to Max Inflate. 
d. Remove headboard and pillow. Lower side rails. 
e. Loop vent tubing above patient's head to prevent accidental disconnection or kinking 

during turn maneuver. 
f. Tuck both hands under patient's hips. 
g. Remove anterior ECG leads and pulse oximeter. 
h. Place a blue chux on top of patient's abdomen/pelvis, absorbent side against patient. 
i. Place one pillow across the chest, one pillow across the abdomen, and one pillow 

across the shins. 
i. Fewer pillows may be used depending on patient size and body features. 

j. Place a large white chux (or a flat white sheet) over the pillows. 
k. Place the second Hover mat, slick side up, on top of the white chux (or sheet). 

i. Can be used to reposition patient while in the prone position. 

52



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 5of10 

I. Place another flat sheet on top of the Hover mat. 
m. Avoid disconnecting the patient from the ventilator unless it is deemed unavoidable. 

i. If the patient has to be disconnected from the ventilator, clamp the ETT at end 
expiration before disconnecting and then unclamp after reconnecting. 

n. Determine which direction patient will turn, based on location of IV lines. The side of the 
IV site will be UP during each turn: 
i. If IV lines are on the right side of the upper body, patient will turn towards the left 

(the right side of the body will be UP). 
ii. If IV lines are on the left side of the upper body, the patient will turn towards the 

right (the left side of the body will be UP). 
o. Roll top and bottom sheets together toward the patient 

i. "Receiving Team" on same the side the patient will turn towards rolls sheets 
downward toward the patient, tucking under. 

ii. "Delivering Team" on opposite side the patient will turn towards rolls sheets 
upward toward the patient. 

p. On the Lead's count of 3, slide patient to edge of bed away from the direction of the turn. 
q. On the Lead's count of 3, do Y:! turn towards the direction of the turn onto patient's side 

(away from "Delivering Team"). 
r. "Receiving Team" will guide patient down into prone position. 
s. "Delivering Team" will pull the rolled sheets to complete the turn. 
t. The Lead RCP will guide patient's head down to a side-lying position on a foam head 

support pillow. 
u. Apply ECG electrodes to patient's back (reversed positions). 
v. Place patient in swimmer's position (arm is placed upward with shoulder in neutral 

position and elbow at 90 degrees). 
w. If patient is on a low air-loss surface, adjust inflation as appropriate. 
x. Use pillows for positioning as needed: 

i. Place pillows under shins to raise ankles off bed and to maintain dorsiflexion 
ii. Pillows under hips can ease low back discomfort 
iii. Pillows can be used to offload any areas necessary (i.e. drain sites) 
iv. Ensure patient's toes are elevated off the surface of the bed. 
v. For female patients, displace the breasts. Verify the nipples are free from 

pressure. 
vi. For male patients, verify the genitals are hanging freely and not compressed 

between the legs. 
y. Ensure ETT and other catheters and tubes are secure and patent. 
z. Assess patient for proper body alignment: neck, spine, hips and extremities. Avoid 

hyperextension or hyper-abduction (>90 degrees) of the extremities and neck. 
aa. Cover patient, raise side rails. 
bb. Place the bed in reverse Trendelenburg position to decrease edema and risk for 

aspiration 
cc. Resume tube feeding one hour after turn. 
dd. Head will require repositioning side-to-side approximately Q2h while prone 

i. Two people at HOB - one to turn head to opposite side, one to monitor/secure 
ETT 

ii. Place both arms down by patient's side during reposition. 
iii. After repositioning place opposite arm up in swimmer's position. 

ee. Gently reposition patient's body prn to relieve pressure points. 
ff. Continue prone position for 16 to 20 hours as ordered. 
gg. Alert the rest of the unit staff that a patient has been placed in a prone position. Staff 

must be available to quickly return the patient to supine position if the patient's condition 
deteriorates. 

53



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 6of10 

hh. Assess the patient's tolerance to the full prone position. Failure of the respiratory 
rate/effort, heart rate and blood pressure to return to normal 5 to 10 minutes after the 
turn may be the initial sign of intolerance. 
i. Patient must be returned to the supine position in the event of: 

1) Loss of airway 
2) ETT obstruction 
3) Hemoptysis 
4) Heart rate <30 for more than 30 seconds 
5) Mean arterial blood pressure (MAP) < 40 for more than 5 minutes 
6) Cardiac arrest 
7) Rapid deterioration in Sp0 2 and/or blood pressure 
8) Clinically significant drip in oxygenation (>10 mm Hg) or oxygen 

saturation < 85%. 
9) Inability to maintain RASS score of -5 

ii. Institute prone positioning assessments if Sp0 2 > 90% and blood pressure remains 
stable: 
i. Draw ABG approximately 30 minutes after turn, and 4 hours after turn; then 

repeat as indicated or ordered (i.e. every 4 hours until stable, daily in the prone 
position and prn). 

ii. Assess hourly: 
1) RASS score 
2) TOF if applicable 
3) Vital signs 
4) Tolerance to prone position 
5) Security of ETT 

4. Returning Patient to Supine Position 
a. Obtain arterial blood gas (ABG) approximately 15 minutes prior to turn. 
b. Perform steps above in reverse. 
c. Ensure patient privacy and remove patient gown. 
d. If patient is on a low air-loss surface, adjust the inflation to Max Inflate. 
e. Remove headboard and pillow. Lower side rails. 
f. Loop vent tubing above patient's head to prevent accidental disconnection or kinking 

during turn maneuver. 
g. Tuck both hands under patient's hips. 
h. Remove posterior ECG leads and pulse oximeter. 
i. Place a clean blue chux on top of patient, absorbent side against patient. 
j. Remove pillows from top of patient. 
k. Place a large white chux (or a flat white sheet) over the blue chux. 
I. Place a Hover mat, slick side up, on top of the white chux (or sheet). 
m. Place another flat sheet on top of the Hover mat. 
n. Avoid disconnecting the patient from the ventilator unless it is deemed unavoidable. 

i. If the patient has to be disconnected from the ventilator, clamp the ETT at end 
expiration before disconnecting and then unclamp after reconnecting. 

o. Determine which direction patient will turn, based on location of IV lines. The side of the 
IV site will be UP during each turn: 
i. If IV lines are on the right side of the upper body, patient will turn towards the left 

(the right side of the body will be UP). 
ii. If IV lines are on the left side of the upper body, the patient will turn towards the 

right (the left side of the body will be UP). 
p. Roll top and bottom sheets together toward the patient 

i. "Receiving Team" on same the side the patient will turn towards rolls sheets 
downward toward the patient, tucking under. 

ii. "Delivering Team" on opposite side the patient will turn towards rolls sheets 
upward toward the patient. 

54



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 7of10 

q. On the Lead's count of 3, slide patient to edge of bed away from the direction of the turn. 
r. On the Lead's count of 3, do Y, turn towards the direction of the turn onto patient's side 

(away from "Delivering Team"). 
s. "Receiving Team" will guide patient down into prone position. 
t. "Delivering Team" will pull the rolled sheets to complete the turn. 
u. The Lead RCP will guide patient's head down to a side-lying position on a foam head 

support pillow. 
v. If patient is on a low air-loss surface, adjust inflation as appropriate. 
w. Verify proper body alignment. 
x. Replace all monitoring equipment. Apply ECG leads to anterior chest. 
y. Assess placement and patency of all lines and tubes. 
z. Assess post-turn hemodynamic and pulmonary data. 
aa. Notify Physician/AHP of any deviations from baseline assessments and of any 

respiratory deterioration after return to supine position. 
bb. Assess skin condition at pressure points 
cc. Assess for facial edema. Apply ice packs to eyes prn. 
dd. Obtain ABG approximately 4 hours after turn to supine. 

F. PROCEDURE FOR PRONING USING ROTOPRONE THERAPY SYSTEM: 
1. The following patient identification practices shall be implemented for patients requiring 

RotoProne Therapy: 
a. Print and verify two patient wrist ID bands, place one ID band on the patient and attach 

the second ID band to the ventilator. Do not attach the wrist ID band to the ventilator 
tubing. 

b. Patient Identification Verification Process: 
i. Shift Han doff and Break Handoffs two R~Js will verify the patient's identity using 

tile-wrist ID band on the ventilator, if the wrist ID band on the patient is not 
accessible. 

ii. Shift Assessment the primary RN will verify the information en the wrist ID band 
on the patient with another source of information e.g., MAR, census, ID band on 
the ventilator. RTs are also required to implement this verification process. 

G. After verifying the patient's identify using their wrist ID band, the ID band attached to the 
ventilator may be used for scanning and identifying the patient, when the wrist ID band 
on the patient is not accessible. 

d. If either ID band is removed for any reason, the staff removing the band(s) is responsible 
for replacing the band(s) and ensuring accuracy and legibility of the information written 
on tho ID band. 

e. When RotoProne thorapy is discontinued, removo tho pationt ID band from tho ventilator 
and discontinuo this practico modification. 

2. Perform hand hygieno and don glovos and appropriate PPE based on the patient's signs and 
symptoms and indications for isolation precautions. 

a. Verify tho correct patient using two identifiors. 
4. Eicplain the procedure to the patient and onsure that he or she agrees to treatment. 
a. After romoving all removable pieces from the RotoProne (Figure @) surfaco, move the patient 

from tho bed to tho RotoProne surface. 
@. Position the patient in tho centor of tho surface with the head in the attached head support and 

the ears visible through the ear holes on the hoadpioce. 
7. Position all tubes and invasive lines. 

a. /\dd mctension tubing, as necessary, to lines that are too short to be placed at the head 
or end of tho bed. 

b. Align the lines inserted in tho upper torso with either shoulder and position them at the 
head of the bed in the tube management system. 

c. Align chest tubes and lines or tubes placed in the lower torso with either leg and extend 
them through the center hole at the foot of the Rota Prone surface. 

55



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 8of10 

8. Follow tho rnanufaoturor's rooornrnondations for securing the patient on the therapy surface. 
a. Place the leg piece and side paGl<s on the surface. Ensure that the patient is snugly 

secured within the side packs. 
l:J. Place the al:Jdorninal support rnesh over the patient's al:Jdornen. 
o. Position the additional pads on the patient (lower leg pacl<s over the shins, pelvic packs 

along the iliac crests, chest pack). 
d. Tighten the headpiece snugly around the patient's head. 
e. Position all packs snugly over the patient. 
f. Place the face pack on the patient's face, ensuring that the top pad is al:Jove the 

eyel:Jrows and that the side pieces frarne the rnouth. 
9. On the touch screen at the foot of the bed, set therapy on the RotoProne te rotate the patient 

into the prone position by turning the patient toward the direction ef the vontilator. 
10. Check the tubing, airway, and head support and press the corresponding button on the touch 

screen after each check. 
11. Press the "Rotate" button. 
12. Pross and hold the "Rotate and Lower" l:Jutton until the screen changes. 
1 a. Cheol< the tubing, airway, head support, abdorninal support, and arrn slings and then press the 

corresponding button on the screen. 
14. Reoonfirrn the position of the face pack and press the l:Jutton en the touch screen. 
15. Press the "Prone" button and hold it during the entire turning procedure. /\lternatively, press the 

"Prone/Supine" button on the hand control unit. 
1 €1. Check the tul:Jing, airway, and head support and press the corresponding buttons on the touch 

screen after each check. 
17. Press the "Rotate" button. Adjust the rotation and pause tirnes on each side based on the 

patient's response to therapy. 
18. Pross the "Surface Position" button. 
19. Place the patient in reverse Trendelenl:Jurg position by pressing and holding the corresponding 

l:Jutton on the touch screen until the head of the bed is tilted upv.md at a slight angle. 
20. Resurne the tube feeding. 
21. Open the back and foot hatches when the patient is in the prone position. 
22. Deterrnine the length of tirne to leave the patient in the prone position based on his or her 

response to prone positioning. 
2a. After the tirne in the prone position is oornplete, place the patient supine for a designated tirne 

as tolerated. 
a. The positioning schedule is l:Jased on whether the patient is al:Jle to sustain 

irnprovernents in Pa02 rnade while in the prone or supine pesition. 
b. The health care !earn rnay decide to vary tho recornrnended tirne intervals and rotation 

tirnes based on the patient's response to therapy. 
o. Pross the "Therapy Settings" button to change the degree of rotation or pause tirnes. 

24. Turn the patient to the supine position. 
a. Close all open hatches. 
b. Stop the tube feeding. 
o. Press the "Supine" button. 
d. Press and hold the "Rotate and Lower" button until the screen changes. 
e. Check the tubing, airway, and head supper! and press the corresponding button after 

each check. 
f. Press the "Supine" button and hold it during the entire turning procedure. /\lternatively, 

press the "Prone/Supine" button on the hand control. 
g. Insert the looking pin after the patient assurnes the supine position. 
h. Open the packs over the patient as needed for patient care. 
i. Carefully rorneve the face paol<. 

25. Before rotating the supine patient, secure the lower leg packs and either the chest or pelvic 
paol<s over the patient. 

2€1. Rotate the patient as tolerated. 

56



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 9 of10 

27. Place the patient in reverse Trendelenburg position, elevating the head of the bed slightly by 
pressing the "Surface Position" button and then pressing "Reverse Trendelenburg." 

28. Resume the tube feeding. 
29. Discard supplies, remove PPE, and perform hand hygiene. 
30. Document tho procedure in tho patient's record . 

~F. REPORTABLE CONDITIONS: 
1. Notify physician immediately: 

a. Hemodynamic instability 
+.b. Significant bloody drainage or stomach contents from nares or mouth 

2. Notify physician during daily rounds 
2-:-a. Skin breakdown, nonblanchable redness, shearing/friction injuries 

3. Drainage from nares, change in color or character of secretions 

I FhG. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Patient's tolerance of the procedure 
2. Length of time in the prone position 
3. Oxygenation response while in the prone position 
4. Oxygenation response when returned to the supine position 
5. Pre- and post-hemodynamic and pulmonary data 
6. Complications noted during and after the procedure 
7. Amount and type of secretions 
8. Sedation assessment and management (RASS) hourly 
9. TOF every 4 hours if applicable 
10. Pain assessment and management. 
11. Passive ROM provided. 
12. Changes in edema or skin status. 
13. Patient and family education. 

I hH. DISCONTINUING PRONATION THERAPY 
1. Obtain an ABG in the supine position 4 hours after last prone maneuver completed. 
2. The decision to discontinue pronation therapy is made when the following criteria are met: 

a . Fi02 < 0.6 
b. P/F ratio > 150 mm Hg 
c. PEEP < 10 cm H20 

I .hi. PATIENT AND FAMILY EDUCATION: 
1. Assess current understanding of lung/oxygenation problem with family and if possible with 

patient. 
2. Explain turning procedure, along with criteria for returning to supine position. 

I JW. REFERENCE(S): 
1. AACN Pronation Therapy Training Video, retrieved from https://youtu.be/yb1 ppe8Y-70 
2. Bein, T., Grasso, S., Moorer, 0 ., Quintel , M., Guerin, C. , Deja, M., Brondani, A. , 
3. Drahnak, D., & Custer, N. (2015). Prone positioning of patients with Acute Respiratory Distress 

Syndrome. Critical Care Nurse, 32(6): 29-37. 
4. Guerin, C., Reignier, J., Richard, J. C., Bouret, P., Gacouin, A. , Boulain, T. , & Ayzac, L. (2013). 

Prone positioning in severe acute respiratory distress syndrome. New England Journal of 
Medicine, 368(23), 2159-2168. 

5. Kwon, M.J. and others. (2017). Optimizing prone cardiopulmonary resuscitation: Identifying the 
vertebral level correlating with the largest left ventricle cross-sectional area via computed 
tomography scan. Anesthesia & Analgesia , 124(2), 520-523. 
doi: 10.1213/ANE.0000000000001369 

6. Mehta, S. (2016). The standard of care of patients with ARDS: ventilatory settings and rescue 

57



Patient Care Services 
Pronation Therapy for Mechanically Ventilated Patient 
Page 10of10 

therapies for refractory hypoxemia. Intensive Care Medicine, 42:699-711. 
7. Vollman, K., Dickinson, S., & Powers, J. (2017). Pronation therapy. AACN Procedure Manual 

for Critical Care (?'h ed.). St. Louis: Elsevier Sanders. 
8. Wiegand, D.L. (Ed.). (2017). AACN procedure manual for high acuity, progressive, and critical 

care (7th ed.). St. Louis: Elsevier 

I bK. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Clinical Algorithm for Manual Prone Positioning 
2. Checklist for Manual Prone Positioning 
3. Prone Dressing Placement Guide 
4. RotoProne Plaeement Guide 
&.. RotoProne lnstruotions i;;or Use. /\rjo (2Q19) 

58



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Ca DELETE - with computerized 
physician order entry (CPOE) no 

PROCEDURE: PYXIS CONNECT SCANNER longer have paper orders except 
Purpose: To optimize the consistent and efficient use of for chemotherapy which are faxed 

orders. to Pharmacy 
A 
M. PROCEDURE: 

1. Prooossing OrElers: Nursing Responsibilities: . . . 
a. ~Jursing personnel will soan the onginal Phys101ans OrEler Form as soon as possible after 

the orEler is written. 
b. All Physioian OrEler Forms will be soanneEI into the Pyi(is Gonneot System. . 

After soanning the original Physioian OrEler, the letter® (meaning soanneEI) will .be . G. 
stampeEI on the soanneEI orElers. AEIElitional orElers may not be aEIEleEI to the section with 
scanneEI orElers. 

El. lmmeEliate fS+A+) orElers: 
i. l/>.lhen soanning a "S+A+" orEler, select the "S+A+" option from the scanner menu 

soreen. +he scan will appear in reEI with a priority level of "S+A+" in Pyxis 
Gonneot. 

e. If the orEler is unolear or unreaElable, nursing personnel will olarify the orElor before 

soanning. . . · th 
i. If the Pharmaoist reoeives a scanneEI orEler that neeEls olanf1cat1on,e 

Pharmaoist will contact the nursing unit from which the scanneEI Elocument was 

ii. 
rocoiveEI anEI reEjuest clarifioation as neeEleEI. . 
Once the orEler is olarifieEI sy nursing personnel, the orEler 'Mil then so resoanneEI 
through the Pyxis Gonnect System. 

2. Precessing Orders: Pharmacy Responsisility . . . .. 
Soanned orders will automatically route to spec1f1c worl1stat1ons such. that speo1f10 . a. 
pharmaoist personnel will so responsisle for physician order precessing occurnng 1n the 

b. 
hospital. . 
ScanneEI orElers EIUeue up similar to e mail, with the first orEler soanneEI listed at the top 
of the EjUOUO for processing sy Pharmacy personnel. . . 
Each scanneEI order is electrenically stampeEI with the location anEI the time 1t was C. 

El. 
scanned. . h Ph · t 
If orElers in a partioular areas E1Ueue for longer than twenty (20) minutes, t earmarns 
will ask for assistance as available. . . . 
If the pharmacist clarifies or ohanges the order, oorrespond1ng annotations will be e. 
marlleEI on the scanneEI orEler within P)'l(is Gonnect. +he pharmacist will then plaoe a 
new meElication orEler in Gerner as a telephone or versal orEler per the Phys101an Order.s 
policy. The pharmacist will notify nursing of the new orEler anEI inform them 1f the orEler 1s 
S+A+ or urgent. 

3. l::lowntime ProoeElures: 
a. VVhen the scanner is Elown, nursing personnel will notify the Pharmaoy i:::>epartment. 
s. ~luFSing personnel will fal( Physicians OrEler Form to f7€l0) 940 3+8€l .. 
C. When the scanner system returns to normal status, the Pharmacist will soon the orders 

into tho system. . . 
i. A® 'NOuld so stampeEI on the order sefore scanning occurs sy the Pharmacist if 

ii. 
the orEler has been entereEI. . 
For S+A+ orders Eluring Elown time, nursing will notify the pharmacist sy phone. 

El. FORM!Sl: 
-1c- Physicians OrEler Form 

Clinical Nursing Pharmacy Medical Professional 
Department Leadership and Executive Administration Affairs Board of Directors Review Policies & 

iKeGYti\19 Therapeutics Committee Committee Procedures 
Gemmittee Committee 

06105, 08/07. 05/10, 02/14, 05/10, 
11/22 06/10, 03/14, 

06/10. 03/14. 01118 02/14, n/a n/a 01/18, n/a 05/10, 02/14, 11/17, 09/22 12/17, 10/22 10/17, 08/22 

59



ISSUE DATE: 08/12 

REVISION DATE: 08/12, 03/18 

~?) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PATIENT CARE SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Safe Medical Device Act Tracking 
Requirements 

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Review: 11/17Q1.'2209/22 
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: ~09/22 
Nursinge LeadershipexeGutive CounGil Approval: Q.1.11.810/22 
Medical Department or Division Approval: n/a 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02#310/22 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: OU1-3 n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 03/18 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To ensure implants and explants are tracked and recorded according the Safe Medical 

Devices Act Part 821 - Medical Device Tracking. 
-'k-2. To "ensure tracked devices can be traced from the device manufacturing facility to" the 

patient. 

B. POLICY: 
1. The In compliance with the gafe Medical Devices Act of 1990 (effective 8/29/93), aAll implants 

and explants required tracking data will be documented recorded inle the patient's medical 
record. surgical record. 

C. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Permanently implantable device: A device that is intended to be placed into a surgically er 

naturally formed cavity for more than one (1) year to continuously assist, restore, or replace tho 
function of an organ system or structure throughout the useful life of the device. (Does not 
include the devices intended and used for temporary purposes or that are intended for 
mcplanation within one [1] year or less). 

2. Device intended to be implanted in the human body for more than 1 year: means a device 
that is intended to be placed into a surgically or naturally formed cavity of the human 
body for more than 1 year to continuously assist, restore, or replace the function of an 
organ system or structure of the human body throughout the useful life of the device. 
-'k-a. The term does not include a device that is intended and used only for temporary 

purposes or that is intended for explantation in 1 year or less 
3. Life-supporting or life-sustaining device used outside a device user facility: means Aa device 

that is essential, or yields information that is essential, to the restoration or continuation of a 
bodily function important to the continuation of human life that is intended for use outside a 
hospital, nursing home, ambulatory surgical facility, or diagnostic or outpatient treatment facility. 

2A. § 821.55 Confidentiality. (a) Any patient receiving a device subject to tracking 
requirements under this part may refuse to release, or refuse permission to release, the 
patient's name, address, telephone number, and social security number, or other 
identifying information for the purpose of tracking. 

D. PROCEDURE: 

60



Patient Care Services 
Safe Medical Device Act Tracking 
Page 2 of 3 

1. Examples of devices for tracking, including but not limited to: 
a. Permanently implantable devices: 

i. Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm (AAA) stent grafts 
ii. Automatic implantable cardioverter/defibrillator 
iii. Implantable pacemaker pulse generator 
iv. Cardiovascular permanent implantable pacemaker electrode 
v. Silicone gel-filled breast implants 
vi. Replacement heart valve (mechanical only) 
vii. Automatic implantable cardioverter/defibrillator 
viii. Cultured epidermal autographs 
ix. Implanted cerebellar stimulator 
x. Implanted diaphragmatic/phrenic nerve stimulator 
xi. Implantable infusion pumps 
xii. Temporomandibular Joint (TMJ) prosthesis 
xiii. Glenoid fossa prosthesis 
xiv. Mandibular condyle prosthesis 
xv. Thoracic Aortic Aneurysm (T AA) stent graphs 
xvi. Transcatheter Pulmonary Valve (TPV) Prothesis 

b. Life-sustaining or life-supporting devices used outside device user facilities: 
i. Breathing frequency monitors 
ii. Continuous ventilator 
iii. Ventricular bypass (assist) device 
iv. Direct current (DC) defibrillator and paddles 

2. Documentation of Implants (on Implant Record) must include: 
a. Name, address, telephone number and s,;ocial s,;ecurity number of patient(if available) 

of patient receiving the device, unless not released by the patient 11nder § 
821.55(a); 

b. Name/type of implant, size if applicable 
c. Site of implantation 
d. Manufacturer of implant 
e. Catalog number of implant if available 
f. Serial, batch, model, lot number, or other identifier necessary to track device 
g. Expiration date if noted on packaging 
h. Date of implantation 
i. Name, address and phone number of the physician surgeon implanting the device 
i.j. The name, mailing address, and telephone number of the physician regularly 

following the patient if different than the physician implanting the device 
3. If an implantable device has patient user information included in the packaging, this must be 

labeled with the patient's name and sent with the patient. 
4. If the packaging includes a manufacturer tracking device form this must be completed and 

mailed back to the company for their records. 
5. Documentation of explanted items must include: 

a. The date the device was explanted 
b. Name, mailing address, and telephone number of the explanting physician 
c. The date of the patient's death (if applicable} 
d. The date the device was returned to the manufacturer or distributor, permanently retired 

from use, or otherwise permanently disposed of. 
6. Device Tracking Records: 

a. Device tracking records must be maintained for the useful life of the tracked device. 
b. Records required for the device are documented in the patient's electronic health record 

(EHR). 

E. REFERENCE!Sl: 

61



Patient Care Services 
Safe Medical Device Act Tracking 
Page 3 of 3 

1. The Safe Medical Device Act 1990 (SMDA), Medical Device Reporting for User Facilities. 
Retrieved from: https://www.fda .gov/downloads/Medica1Devices/ .. ./UCM095266.pdf 

4-:-2. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 21 . Part 821 - Medical Device Tracking 
Requirements Retrieved from: eCFR : 21 CFR Part 821 -- Medical Device Tracking 
Requirements 

62



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services 

PROCEDURE: SEC,l.IJ'.IQNlANAbGESIA USEC CURING +MER,1.1,PEU+IG QR CIAGNOS+IG 
PRQGECUREPROCEDURAL SEDATION 

Purpose: To establish guidance for the safe management of procedural sedation 
administered to patients undergoing short-term therapeutic or diagnostic 
procedures. admiRistratieR ef sedatives used s13eoifioally fer a level ef sedatieR 
referred le as mederate sedatieRlaRal13esia (13Fe•;ieusly referFed le as "oensoieus 
sedatieR") aRd dee13 sedatieR, deli Reale FeGjuiFed oem13eReRls ef oaFO delivefY aRd 
faoilitale oem13aFa9ilil)' ef oaFe eF13aRi2'atieR wiEle iR sedatieRlaRal13esia. +Fiis 13Feoedure 
dees net a1313ly le tfieFa13eulio/dia13nestio i:JFOGedures wfieR aRestfiesiele13ist is 13reseRI 
er NICU setting. Procedural sedation encompasses a continuum of altered levels 
of consciousness, including mild, moderate, and deep sedation. 

Equipment: The following equipment/supplies are readily available and functional during sedation 

A. 

Patient 
Care 

and recovery periods: 
Emergency cart with cardiac monitor/defibrillator and airway management equipment 
FOadily availa91e 
Cardiac Monitor 
Capnography Monitor 
Pulse oximeter with alarm 
Blood Pressure (BP) Monitor 
Suction Equipment 
Positive-pressure oxygen delivery system availa91e 
Reversal medications -Naloxone (Narcan) and Flumazenil (Romazicon) Feadily 
availa91e 

Cem9ative 
Very /\13itated 

2' /\13itated 

4 Restless 

Q Alert aRd oalm 
4 Drnwsy 

-2 bi13fit aedatieR 

-a Mederate aedatien 
-4 Dee13 aedatieR 

Overly oem9ative er vielent, immediate daRger le staff 
Pulls en er FOmeves tubes er oatheters eF fias aggressive 
behavieF teward staff 
FreGjueRl ReR 13ur13eseful mevemeRl er 13atient ventilater 
dyssyRofireny 
/\Rxieus er a1313FeheRsive but mevements net a13gressive eF 
vigereus 

~let fully alert, but has sllslained, meFO than 10 seoeRds, 
a•Nakenin13 with eye oentaet le veioe 
Briefly, less thaR 10 seoends, awakeRiR13 with eye oentaot le 
VBise 
Any mevemeR!, but ne eye GeRtaet le veiee 
Ne res13ense le veioe, but aRy le mevement le 13hysioal 
stimulatieR 

b 1. Minimal Sedation: A drug-induced state during which patients respond normally to verbal 
commands. Although cognitive function and coordination may be impaired, ventilatory and 
cardiovascular functions are unaffected. This level of sedation is associated with the Richmond 
Agitation Sedation Scale (RASS) score of - 2. 

do-2. Moderate Sedation/Analgesia (Previously referred to as "Conscious Sedation"): A drug-induced 
depression of consciousness during which patients respond purposefully to verbal commands, 
either alone or accompanied by light tactile stimulation. (Note: Reflex withdrawal from painful 

Clinical Nursing& 
Pharmacy& Medical Professional 

Services 
Policies & Leadership Department of 

Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs Board of 
Procedures Exesutive Anesthesiology Directors 

Content Committee Committee Committee 
Expert Committee Gem-

09/06, 10/08, 08/12, 
08/12, 

10/12, 
06/11, 02/12, 02/16, 03/17, 09/18, 03/17, 11/18, 04/17, 10/12, 06/17, 10/12, 06/17, 
11/15; 03/18; 05/16, 4/18, 05/16, 05/22 07122 11/18, 

01/19, 11/22 
n/a 01/19 

09/20; 12/20 08/21 07118, 10/21 09/22 

63



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 2of16 

stimulus is not considered a purposeful response.) No interventions are required to maintain a 
patent airway, spontaneous ventilation is adequate, and cardiovascular function is usually 
maintained. Moderate sedation/analgesia may only be administered during therapeutic, 
diagnostic or surgical procedures. This level of sedation is associated with the RASS score of -
3. 
a. Medications used for Moderate Sedation should be those easily titrated for this purpose. 

Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g. propofol, etomidate, ketamine, and thiopental) are not 
appropriate for moderate sedation and must not be used for this purpose. 

43. Deep Sedation/Analgesia: A drug-induced depression of consciousness during which patients 
cannot be easily aroused but respond purposefully following repeated or painful stimulation. 
Patients may require assistance in maintaining a patent airway and spontaneous ventilation 
may be inadequate. Cardiovascular function is usually maintained. This level of sedation is 
associated with the RASS score of - 4. 
a. A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation (propofol, 

ketamine, or etomidate) or provide monitoring for deep sedation. 
b. Medication administration for deep sedation may only be performed by a physician who 

has been privileged in deep sedation. 
c. Monitoring for deep sedation may be performed by a physician/AHP. 

&4. Anesthesia: Consists of general anesthesia and spinal or major regional anesthesia. It does not 
include local anesthesia. 
a. General anesthesia is a drug-induced loss of consciousness during which patients are 

not arousable, even by painful stimulation. The ability to independently maintain 
ventilatory function is often impaired. Patients often require assistance in maintaining a 
patent airway, and positive pressure ventilation may be required because of depressed 
spontaneous ventilation or drug-induced depression of neuromuscular function. 
Cardiovascular function may be impaired. 

&.-5. Rescue: Rescue of a patient from a deeper level of sedation than intended is an intervention by 
a practitioner proficient in airway management and advanced life support. The qualified 
practitioner corrects adverse physiological consequences of the deeper-than-intended level of 
sedation (such as hypoventilation, hypoxia, and hypotension) and returns the patient to the 
originally intended level of sedation. It is not appropriate to continue the procedure at an 
unintended level of sedation. 

7'-6. Allied Health Professional (AHP): An individual credentialed/privileged to provide specified 
patient care, treatment and services. 

l?r.7. End tidal C0 2 (EtC02 ): The measuring of End tidal C0 2 (EtC02 ) via the Capnography machine 
is not a diagnostic measurement. Rather, EtC0 2 measurements are to give a non-invasive 
trending measurement. Therefore, it is important to establish a patient's baseline EtC0 2 before 
sedation is given. 

9,,8. Respiratory depression~ can be defined as: 
a. EtC0 2 values 1 OmmHg higher or lower than the patient's baseline with an absolute 

maximum of 50mmHg 
b. 10% change in EtC0 2 values above or below a patient's baseline 
c. Apnea that last for fifteen (15) seconds or longer 

B. POLICY: 
1. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) provides for the safe administration of sedatives to minimize 

clinical risks to patients and assure comparability of care throughout the organization. 
2. This policy is intended to discuss the care of patients receiving a speoitio level et sedationt 

analgesia under the care of non-anesthesiologists privileged to administer sedation/analgesia. It 
has been designated to be applicable to procedures performed in a variety of settings and by 
various disciplines. These settings may be inpatient or outpatient and include but are not limited 
to: 

64



Patient Care Se/Vices 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 3of16 

a. Moderate Sedation: Cardiac Catheterization Lab, Critical Care, Telemetry, Diagnostic 
Imaging, Emergency Department, Operating Room/ Endoscopy/ Bronchoscopy, Post 
Anesthesia Care Unit, lnterventional Radiology. 

b. Deep Sedation: Emergency Department 
3. This policy excludes: 

a. Patients who are NOT undergoing therapeutic or diagnostic procedures (i.e., 
preoperative or postoperative sedation, pain management, sedation for insomnia, or 
seizure management) 

b. EITTeF§ent procedures 
&.ob. Patients undergoing major regional anesthesia or general anesthesia. 
d.c. Situations where it is anticipated that the required sedation analgesia will eliminate 

purposeful response to verbal commands or tactile stimulation accompanied by partial or 
complete loss of protective reflexes; such patients require a greater level of care than 
covered in this policy. 

e.cd. Otherwise healthy patients receiving peripheral nerve blocks, local or topical anesthesia. 
f. MiniITTal Sedation,l/l.nxiolytic Rote: if patient slips into the ITToderate sedation level, this 

sedation,lanalgesia prooedure ITTust be iITTpleITTented. 
g-oe. Drug or alcohol withdrawal or prophylaxis. 
Jq.,f, The use of any level of sedation/analgesia in any area of the hospital where an 

anesthesiologist is present. 
hg. Single doses of sedatives and narcotics (oral [PO], intramuscular [JM], or intravenous 

[IV]) given in usual and customary doses for routine non-invasive care of patients 
during procedures such as dressing changes, etc., do not require the provider to follow 
the sedation policy as long as the RASS score remains at a - 1 or below. 

j. The deoision to use a single dose of ITTedioation for arndolysis or pain oontrol or to use 
the sedation polioy should be based on the patient's history and planned procedure. 

4. Patient Consent: 
a. Pre-procedural education, treatments, and services are provided according to the plan of 

care. 
b. Physician/AHP shall be responsible for discussing alternatives and risks prior to 

administration of medication as in any other procedure. 
c. Procedural/Informed consents are required to be signed by all patients before any 

invasive procedure. See Patient Care Services Policy: Consent for Operative or Other 
Procedures for complete details. 

5. Emergency procedures: The pre-sedation assessment shall be completed based on the 
needs and clinical condition of the patient in cases of emergency. The pre-sedation 
assessment may be waived if the patient's condition is prohibitive of completing the 
assessment, or if risk outweighs the benefit to the patient in cases of life-threatening 
emergency. 

6. Consider anesthesia consult for patients with an ASA physical status classification of 
ASA IV or above. 

§...7. The Registered Nurse (RN) will monitor the patient for the presence of pain. Any patient 
undergoing a procedure who expresses concern regarding unresolved pain management has 
the right to request pain relief. Any patient request for temporary cessation or termination of the 
procedure will be honored as expeditiously as possible. 

&..8. Medical Staff Credentialing Requirements: 
a. In order to prescribe and administer moderate or deep sedation/analgesia a 

physician/AHP must have requisite privilege (physician/AHP privileges available on 
TCMC Intranet). See Medical Staff Policy: Criteria for Granting Moderate and Deep 
Sedation/Anesthesia Privileges to Non-Anesthesiologists. 

7,-9. RN Training Requirements: 
a. Moderate sSedation self study and testcomputer-based learning module (annually). 
b. Demonstrate competency in basic dysrhythmia recognition 

65



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 4of16 

c. Current BLS, trainin9 inoluElin9 airway mana9omont, rooo9nition of oarEliovasoular anEI 
mspiratory siElo offoots of soElativos anEI variability of patient responses with FD 

oortifioation over; tv.•o (2) years is mquiroEI. 
d. ACLS required for adult patient population 
Eh-e. ,PALS, ENPC, NRP required fas appropriate to patient populationt. 

i. Healthcare proviElors shall use ohilEI CPR 9uiElolinos for ohilElron from one (1) 
year of a§o to puberty. 
1) gi9ns of puberty inoluElo breast Elovolopmont on tho female anEI 

unElorarm, ohos!, anEI faoial hair on tho male. Onoo a ohilEI maohos 
puberty, healthcare proviElors shall use aElult CPR 9uiElolinos for 
FOSUSCitation. 

ih10. General principles of sedation medication administration:AElministorin9 moElioations: 
a. MoElication aElministration for Eloop soElation may only bo poFformoEI by a physician who 

has boon privilo90EI in Eloop soElation. 
&.-a. Tho physician/AHP ismust be present prior to administering any moElorato 

sedation/analgesia medication. 
e,b. IV sedation/analgesia drugs should be given in small incremental doses that are titrated 

to tho desired endpoints of analgesia and sedation. Sufficient time must elapse between 
doses to allow tho effect of each dose to be assessed before subsequent drug 
administration. When drugs are administered by non-IV routes (PO, rectal, IM, 
intranasal), allowance should be made for tho time required for drug absorption before 
supplementation is considered. 

Ehc. All medications commonly used in moElorato sedation, regardless of their safety profile, 
may produce unintended general anesthesia and may cause cardio-respiratory arrest. 

&.ed. Seo resource on TCMC Intranet for tho list of medications commonly used for moElorato 
sedation/analgesia, reversal agents, and typical dosages for all ages. 

e. Mild/moderate sedation medication administration: 
f. Tho R~I who is Elimotly msponsiblo to aElministor moElications, monitor anEI 

observe tho patient's msponso to moElications shall be with tho patient at all 
times anEI may not onga90 in tasks that woulEI oompromiso continuous 
monitorin9 Elurin9 tho procoElum. 

i. Medication administration for mild/moderate sedation may be performed by 
an RN with the appropriate training (see RN Training Requirements). 

g.ii. Medications used for MoElorato mild or moderate gsedation should be those 
easily titrated for this purpose. Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g., propofol, otomidate, 
ketamino, and thiopontal) are not appropriate for mild or moderate sedation and 
must not be used for this purpose. 

f. Deep sedation medication administration: 
fr.i. Medication administration for deep sedation may only be performed by a 

physician who has boonis privileged in deep sedation. 
i-,ii. A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation 

(e.g., propofol, kotamino, or otomidato) or provide monitoring for deep sedation. 
Q.,11. RoquimEI gtaff, i;;quipmont anEI guppliosStaffing requirements: 

a. Mild/Moderate Sedation 
i. Physician/AHP to perform procedure 
ii. RN dedicated solely to the administration of medication(s) and patient 

monitoring 
1) The RN caring for the patient receiving mild or moderate 

sedation/analgesia should have no competing responsibilities that 
would compromise continuous monitoring and assessment of the 
patient during the administration of sedation. 

2) The nurse providing mild or moderate sedation should be in 
constant attendance with unrestricted immediate visual and 
physical access to the patient. 

66



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 5 of 16 

a) The nurse may perform short, interruptible tasks (e.g., 
opening suture, tying a gown) while remaining in the 
procedure room. 

iii. If applicable, healthcare provider/technical assistant (e.g., RN, Respiratory 
Therapist, technician) to assist the physician/AHP with the procedure. 

b. Deep Sedation 
i. Physician/AHP to perform the procedure 
ii. Physician/AHP to monitor the patient 
iii. If applicable, healthcare provider/ technical assistant (e.g., RN, Respiratory 

Therapist, technician) to assist the physician/AHP with the procedure. 
iv. If requested by the physician/AHP, the RN may document vital signs. 

a. aufficient numbers of qualified staff (in addition to the person performing 
the procedure) are present to evaluate the patient, assist with the 
procedure, provide sedation and/or anesthesia, monitor, and recover tho 
patient. 

b. Minimum ataffing Requirements 
i. Moderate aedation 

1) Physician,l/\l=IP to perform procedure 
2) RN to monitor patient 
3) l=lealthcare provider (e.g., RN, Respiratory Therapist, technician) to assist 

the physioian,l/\l=IP with the procedure 
ii. Deep aedatien 

1) Physician,LAl=IP te perform the procedure 
2) Physician,l/\l=IP to monitor the patient 
3) R~J to assist physioian,l/\l=IP 

C. PROCEDURE PRE-SEDATION: 
1. Pre-procedure RN shall: 

a. Reviews the antioipated needs of the patient are assessed teAssess and plan for the 
appropriate level of post-procedure care. 

b. Ensures a pre-anesthesia,Lsedation assessment is performed by the physician/AHP and 
documented in the health record. Elements of pre-sedation assessment include: 
i. Time and nature of last oral intake. Refer to NPO recommended guidelines 

in Appendix CA. 
ii. American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) classification. Refer to 

Appendix D8 for ASA Physical Status (PS) Classification System. 
i. Airway Assessment: Patient's ability to hyperextend neck, maintain airway 

and open mouth without difficulty, if teeth are intact and Mallampati score. 
a.ii. Plan for sedation. 

c. Ensures a current History and Physical (H&P) is documented in the medical record 
(must be within 30 days prior to procedure). 
i. The H&P shall include current medications and drug allergies and/or 

adverse experience with sedation/analgesia and anesthesia. 
ir.d. Ensure the the physicianl/\l=IP doouments patient's unchanged condition from last 

l=listory and Physical (l=l&P)H&P Update is documented, according to Medical Staff 
Policy #8710-518 Medical Record Documentation Requirements. or performs a 
pertinent pre anesthesia/sedation assessment, to include, but not limited to: 
i. Cardiac, respiratory and/or other major system abnormalities 
ii. Current medioations and drug allergies and/or adverse experience with 

sedation/analgesia and anesthesia. 
iii. /\irNay Assessment: Patient's ability to hypermctend noel<, maintain airway and 

open mouth without diffioulty, if teeth are intaot and mallampati soore. 
iv. Time and nature of last oral intal<e. Reoommended guidelines 

1) Patients should be NPO prior to procedure ti mo for: 

67



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 6of16 

a) Two (2) hours after olear liquids 
b) Eight (8) hours after solids 

2) Oral medioations may be taken with small amounts of oloar liquids. 
d) Patients under ton (1Q) years of ago must be ~IPO fer a period of time as 

indicated below: 
a) Infants 0 to 2 years of ago: 

i) ~Jo solids tho day of procedure 
ii) formula until six (€l) hours before proooduro 
iii) Breast milk until four (4) hours before proooduro 
iv) Clear liquids until two (2) hours prier to procedure 
v) ~IPO thereafter until tho procedure. 

b) Ages d to 10 years: 
i) Ne solids tho day of procedure 
ii) Clear liquids until two (2) hours prier to procedure 
iii) NPO thereafter until the procedure 

v. American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) Physical Status Classification 
-

ASA PS 
Cefinitien e)(aFAples, ineluding but net lirnited te: 

Glassifieatien 
ASA-+ A normal healthy l=loalthy, non smol~ing, no or minimal 

patient. alcohol use 
ASA-J.I A patient with a mild Mild diseases only without substantive 

systemic disease. funotional limitations. Examples inolude (but 
not limited to): ourrent smoker, seoial 
alcehel drinker, pregnanoy, obesity (d0 <: 

BMI <: 40), well controlled DM/l=ITN, mild 
lung disease 

ASAlll /\ patient with severe Substantive funotional limitations; One er 
systemic disease. mere moderate to severe diseases. 

EJ(amplos include (but not limited to): poorly 
controlled DM or 1=1n1, COPD, morbid 
etlosity (BMI "40), aetivo hepatitis, aloohel 
dopondonoo er abuse, implanted 
paoemal~or, moderate reduction of ejeotion 
fraotien, ESRD undergoing re13ularly 
soheduled dialysis, premature infant PCA <: 

@O ""'eeks, history ("d months) of Ml, CV-A, 
TIA, or CAD/stents. 

ASAIV A patient with severe EJ(amples include (but not limited to): recent 
systemic disease that ( <: d months) Ml, CVA, Tl/\, or CAD/stents, 
is a oenstant throat to ongoing eardiae isohomia or severe valve 
l1f&.. dysfunotien, severe roduotion of ejoetion 

fraction, sepsis, DIC, /\RD or ESRD not . _, .. ... . .. _, 

/\SA\' A moribund patient Eimmples include (but net limited to): 
•Nho is net Ol(pected to ruptured abdeminal/thoraoic aneurysm, 
survive without the massive trauma, intracranial bleed with 
operation. mass effect, isohemio bmvel in the face of 

signifioant oardiao pathology er multiple . -' .r. 

/\SAVI Patient deolared brain 
dead whoso organs are 
being removed fer .. -· 

68



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 7of16 

I B. 

€be. Verify physician/AHP orders for sedation. 
~f. Verify the procedural consent form is accurate and complete. 
fog. Verify procedure with patient. 
>r.-h. Ensure IV access is in place (as ordered by physician/AHP): 

i. Appropriate equipment to administer intravenous fluids and drugs including blood 
and blood components is available. 

R,.i. Review/initiate individualized plan of care as appropriate to patient setting. 
2. Immediately Pre-Procedure, RN monitoring or assisting the physician/AHP shall: 

a. Verify the procedural consent form is accurate and complete 
b. Verify procedure with patient 
c. Obtain baseline vital signs: BP, heart rate, respiratory rate, EtCO,, Aldrete, RASS, 

oxygen (02 ) saturation, pain score and document on the Sedation Flowsheet or 
electronic medical record. Note the supplemental oxygen delivery method and 
oxygen flow rate, if applicable. 
i. For pediatric patients, include height and weight. Calculate correct dosage of 

reversal agent for potential administration prior to procedure. 
d. Ensure a "time out" is completed before starting the procedure as described in the 

Patient Care Services Procedure: Universal Protocol. 

INTRA-PROCEDURE FOR PLANNED MODeRAH: SEDATION: 
&.1. Measure/assess on an ongoing basis and document every five (5) minutes or more often if 

significant changes in the patient's condition occurs during the procedure: 
a. BP 
b. Heart rate 

i. Continuous EKG rhythm is recommended for all patients receiving mild or 
moderate sedation/analgesia, and REQUIRED for patients with ASA score of Ill 
or greater. 

c. Respiratory rate 
d. Adequacy of ventilation 
e. EtC0 2 (except for mechanically ventilated patients) 
f. 0 2 Saturation (%) 
g. Supplemental oxygen delivery method (e.g., nasal cannula, simple facemask) 
h. Oxygen flow rate (L/min) 
>r.-i. Level of sedation for adults usin the RASS.; 

A,.j, 

4 Combative Overly oomba!ive or violent, immediate danger to staff 
d Very Agitated Pulls on or removes tubes or oathe!ers er has aggressive 

behavior toward staff 
2 Agitated f'requent non purposeful movement er patient ventilator 

dyssynohrony 
4 Restless AnKieus er apprehensive but movements net aggressive or 

vigorous 
Q 

4 

-4 

Alert and oalm 
Dro',&JSY 

Ugh! Sedation 

Moderate 
Sedation 
Deep Sedation 

No! fully alert, but has sustained, more than 10 seoonds, 
awakening with eye contact to voice 
Briefly, less than 10 seoonds, awakening with eye oen!act 
lo voice 
Any movement, but no eye contaot to voice 

No response te "'oioe, bu! any to movement to physical 
stimulation 

Level of sedation for pediatrics using the Aldrete Score.; 
/\otivi!y: Able to move 4 el\lremi!ies voluntarily or on 

command 
Score: 2 

69



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 8of16 

Breathing 

Giroulatien: 

Gonsciousness: 

Oxygon_aaturation 
(Pulse Oi<imetry): 

hk. Pain level 

Able te meve 2 extremities veluntarily er en 
oemmand 
Able te meve ne maremities en oemmand 
Able te breathe deeply and oeugh freely 

Oyspnea 
Apneic 
gp...jess than er miual te (:::l 20% ef pre anesthetic 
le¥el 
BP is 2Q% te 5Q% ef pre anesthetic level 
BP greater than er oqtml te (2'.:l 5Q% ef pro 
anesthetic level 
Fully awake 
Arousablo 
Net respending 
Greater than (>) 92% en reem air 

Needs supplemental oxygen to maintain greater 
than(>) 9Q% 
Less than (<) 9Q% with OJ<ygen 

aoere: 1 

aoere: Q 
aoore: 2 

Score: 1 
Score: Q 
acere: 2 

Score: 1 
Score: Q 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: Q 
Score: 2 

Score: 1 

Score: Q 

j,-1. 0 2 saturation and heart rate are monitored continuously throughout the procedure. If 0 2 

saturation is not maintained at or above 90%, (unless baseline was below 90%), obtain 
an order for supplemental oxygen and/or anesthesia consult. Supplemental oxygen is 
also recommended during the procedure for the following: 
i. ASA class Ill or greater patients 
ii. Patients whose 0 2 saturation reading is less than 90% pre-procedure while on 

room air 
k,m. The measuring of EtGO, via the capnography maohine is net a diagnostic measurement. 

Rather, EtG0 2 measurements are te give a nen invasive trending measurement. 
Therefore, it is impertant to establish a patient's baseline EtC0 2 (establish baseline 
before sedation is given). 
i. If during the procedure hypoventilation or respiratory depression occurs, 

intervene immediately by: 
1) Repositioning the patient's head to open up the airway 
2) Verbally or physically stimulate the patient to breathe 
3) If the patient is apneic, start bag/mask ventilation. 

ii. Respiratory depression oan be defined as: 
1) EtG02 values 1 QmmHg higher or lower than the patient's baseline with an 

absolute maximum of 5QmmHg 
2) 10% change in EtG02 values above or below a patient's baseline 
a) Apnoa that last for 15 seoonds or longer 

iihii. Important: Respiratory depression may occur after the procedure is complete. 
That is, before the patient returns to a level of consciousness. Continue to 
monitor the patient with EtC0 2 until the patient is fully awake and alert or returns 
to baseline. 

l,n. Medications and fluids including drugs, dosages, route, times and personnel 
administering drugs are documented in the medical record. 

m-co. Any unusual occurrences are documented. 

G. INTRA PROCEDURE PLANNED FOR DEEP SEDATION: 
2. The R~I shall document vital signs as requested by physioianlAHP. 

f*C. POST PROCEDURE CARE, DOCUMENTATION AND DISCHARGE: 

70



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 9 of 16 

1. Patient status isshall be assessed immediately after the procedure and/or administration of 
mild, moderate or deep sedation. 
fr..a. Vital signs are to be completed and documented post-procedurally every five (5) 

minutes times three (3), then every fifteen (15) minutes until return to baseline.-aflG 
vital signs and pain level are continuously monitored and documented every 5 15 
minutes according to the patient's condition or until the vital signs return to the pre 
procedure easeline (minimum recover; time is dG minutes), and the following criteria are 
met: 

a.b. Patient achieves a score of 8 or greater (or pre-sedation baseline), on the Aldrete 
scoring system.7 
Activity: Aele to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 2 

command 
l\ele to move 2 Oldremities voluntarily or on Score: 1 
command 
/\ele to move no extremities on command Score: Q 

Breathing l\ele to breathe deeply and cough freely Score: 2 

Circulation: 

Consciousness: 

Q)(ygen.Saturation 
(Pulse Oximetry): 

Dyspnea 
Apneic 
BP less than or equal to (:"120% of pre anesthetic 
level 
BP is 2Q% to 5Q% of pre anesthetio level 
BP greater than or equal to (:j: 5Q% of pre 
anesthetic level 
Fully av•lake 
l\rousaele 
~Jot responding 
Greater than (>) 92% on room air 

Soore: 1 
Score: Q 
Score: 2 

Soore: 1 
Soore: Q 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: Q 

Score: 2 

Needs supplemental Ol(J'gen to maintain greater Score: 1 
than(>) 9Q% 
Less than (<) 9Q% with OJ(ygen Score: Q 

c. Assess and document patient response to sedation. Refer to attachment for 
definitions of patient response, including Good, Fair and Poor. 

&ed. If the patient does not meet the above criteria, the physician/AHP is notified for further 
orders. 

~- If a reversal agent has been used the patient shall be recovered for an additional ninety 
(90) minutes. 

!hf. Patients must meet the following discharge criteria prior to being discharged home: 
i. Pre-procedure LOC 
ii. Pre-procedure activity 
iii. Vital signs within pre-procedure values 
iv. Oral fluids tolerated 
v. Pain controlled 
vi. Voided 
vii. Evaluate procedure site 
viii. Dressing clean & dry 

e-cg. Obtain a Physician/AHP order for discharge when all criteria are met. 
f.,h. The patient and/or designated adult receives discharge instructions if outpatient and 

accompanied home by a responsible adult. 
&.-2. Monitoring Outcomes: 

a. Outcome data shall be collected in all areas where moderate or deep sedation/analgesia 
is performed. Data shall be aggregated by department/service and practitioner specific. 

71



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 10of16 

The antioipated needs of tho patient are assessed lo the plan for the appropriate level of 
post prooedure oare. 

a.,b. Medical Staff department collects sedation outcome data and forwards to the 
Department of Anesthesia for action as necessary. 

4. Pre prooedure education, lrealmenls, and services are provided according to tho plan of care, 
treatment, and services. 

&.-3. Patient Discharge: 
a. Patients are discharged from the recovery area and the hospital by a qualified 

physician/AHP when they meet discharge criteria. 
b. Patients who have received sedation in the outpatient setting are discharged in the 

company of a responsible, designated person per Patient Care Services Policy: 
Outpatient Post Anesthesia/Procedure Discharge/Transportation Guidelines. 

€.D. RELATED DOCUMENTfS}: 
&.1. Agents Commonly Used for Procedural Sedation 
;h2. Sedation Flow Sheet 8720-1030 - Sample 
3. Patient Care Services Policy: Outpatient Post Anesthesia/Procedure Discharge/Transportation 

Guidelines 
4. Procedural Sedation Patient Response Fields Definitions 

~E. REFERENCEfS}: 
2. Conner, R. (2Q17). Guidelines for Perioperative Practise, 2Q17 Edition. Denver, CO: 

Assooiation of PeriOperative Registered Nurses. 
1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver. 
;h2. ASA Physical Status Classification System. (2G-142019). Retrieved January 11th, 

~eptember 17, 2020, from American Society of Anesthesiologists: 
https://www.asahq.org/resourceslclinioal informationstandards-and-guidelines/asa-physical
status-classification-system 

43. In, U. L, S. K, & L. M (2006). Thelan's Critical Care Nursing Diagnosis and Management (5th 
Edition ed., p. 153). St. Louis, Missouri: Mosby Elsevier. 

4. Nicholau, T. K. (2015). Postanesthesia Scoring System. In R. D. Miller, Miller's Anesthesia (8th 
Edition, p.2942). St. Louis, Missouri: Saunders Elsevier 

5. Rothrock, J.C. & McEwen, D.R. (2019). Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 16'" 
Edition. St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. 

a. 
e. Rothrock, Jane C. (2Q1 a) Almcander's Care of the Patient in :;;urgery, 1 fith Edition. 

72



Patient Care Se/Vices 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 11 of16 

Appendix A 

Richmond Agitation-Sedation Scale (RASS) 

4 Combative Overly combative or violent, 
immediate danger to staff 

3 Very Agitated Pulls on or removes tubes or 
cathete.rs or has aggressive behavior 
toward staff • 

2 Agitated Frequent non purposeful movement 
or patient-ventilator dyssynchrony 

1 Restless Anxious or apprehensive but 
movements not aggressive or 
vigorous 

0 Alert and calm 
-1 Drowsy Not fully alert, but has sustained, 

more than 10 seconds, awakening 
with eve contact to voice 

-2 Light Sedation Briefly, less than 10 seconds, 
awakeninc:i with eve contact to voice 

-3 Moderate Sedation Any movement, but no eye contact to 
voice 

-4 Deep Sedation No response to voice, but any 
movement to physical stimulation 

-5 Unresponsive No response to voice or physical 
stimulation 

73



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 12of16 

Appendix B 

Aldrete Scale 

Activity Able to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on command 
Able to move 2 extremities voluntarily or on command 
Able to move no extremities on command 

Breathing Able to breathe deeply and cough freely 
Dyspnea 
Apneic 

Circulation BP less than or equal to (~ 20% of pre-anesthetic level 
BP is 20% to 50% of pre-anesthetic level 
BP greater than or equal to (:::150% of pre-anesthetic level 

Consciousness Fully awake 
Arousable 
Not responding 

Oxygen Saturation Greater than (>) 92% on room air 
(Pulse Oximetry) Needs supplemental oxygen to maintain greater than (>) 90% 

Less than (<) 90% with oxygen 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: 0 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: 0 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: O 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: 0 

Score: 2 
Score: 1 
Score: O 

74



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 13of16 

Appendix C 

Pre-Procedure NPO Guidelines 

1) Patients should be NPO prior to procedure time for: 
i) Two (2) hours after clear liquids 
ii) Eight (8) hours after solids 

2) Oral medications may be taken with small amounts of clear liquids. 
3) Patients under ten (10) years of age must be NPO for a period of time as indicated below: 

a) Infants 0 to 2 years of age: 
i) No solids the day of procedure 
ii) Formula until six (6) hours before procedure 
iii) Breast milk until four (4) hours before procedure 
iv) Clear liquids until two (2) hours prior to procedure 
v) NPO thereafter until the procedure. 

b) Ages 3 to 10 years: 
i) No solids the day of procedure 
ii) Clear liquids until two (2) hours prior to procedure 
iii) NPO thereafter until the procedure 

75



Patient Care Services 
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure 
Page 14of16 

Appendix D 

American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) Physical Status (PS) Classification 

ASA PS 
Definition Examples, including but not limited to: Classification 

ASAI A normal healthy Healthy, non-smoking, no or minimal alcohol use 
oatient 

ASAll A patient with mild Mild diseases only without substantive functional limitations. 
systemic disease Examples include (but not limited to): current smoker, social 

alcohol drinker, pregnancy, obesity (30 < BMI < 40), well-
controlled DM/HTN, mild lung disease 

ASA Ill A patient with severe Substantive functional limitations; One or more moderate to 
systemic disease severe diseases. Examples include (but not limited to): poorly 

controlled DM or HTN, COPD, morbid obesity (BMI 2:40), active 
hepatitis, alcohol dependence or abuse, implanted 
pacemaker, moderate reduction of ejection fraction, ESRD 
undergoing regularly scheduled dialysis, premature infant 
PCA < 60 weeks, history (>3 months) of Ml, CVA, TIA, or 
CAD/stents. 

ASAIV A patient with severe Examples include (but not limited to): recent(< 3 months) Ml, 
systemic disease that CVA, TIA, or CAD/stents, ongoing cardiac ischemia or severe 
is a constant threat to valve dysfunction, severe reduction of ejection fraction, 
life sepsis, DIC, ARD or ESRD not undergoing regularly 

scheduled dialysis 
ASAV A moribund patient Examples include (but not limited to): ruptured 

who is not expected abdominal/thoracic aneurysm, massive trauma, intracranial 
to survive without the bleed with mass effect, ischemic bowel in the face of 
operation significant cardiac pathology or multiple organ/system 

dysfunction 
ASAVI A declared brain-

dead patient whose 
organs are being 
removed for donor 
purposes 

The addition of "E" to the ASA PS Classification denotes Emergency surgery. An emergency is 
defined as existing when delay in treatment of the patient would lead to a significant increase in the 
threat to life or bodv oart. 

76



Definitions to the Procedural Sedation Patient Response Fields 

Good =All of the following apply: 

02 sat maintained greater than 92% or higher 
BP within 20% of pre-anesthet ic level 
Able to breathe deeply and cough free ly 
Remained hemodynamically stable 
No complications, case completed as planned 
No unplanned escalation to higher leve l of sedation 
No unplanned respiratory support required 
Reversal medications not required (i.e. Naloxone, Flumazenil) 

Fair = One or both of the following apply: 

Required supplemental 02 or minimal respiratory support to maintain 02 sat greater than or equal to 

90% (e.g. chin lift/jaw thrust) 

BP within 20%-50% of pre-anesthetic level 

Poor= One or more of the following apply: 

02 sat < 90% with 02 

BP within 50% of pre-anesthetic level 

Respiratory support required (i.e. placement of nasal trumpet/ oral airway, supraglottic airway, ET tube, 

assisted ventilation with bag-valve-mask) 

Not respond ing to voice or physical stimulation 

Unplanned escalation to deeper level of sedation 

Unplanned transfer to higher level of care 

Reversal Medications Required (i.e. Naloxone, Flumazenil) 

Serious adverse event {Hemodynamic instability requiring intervention, apnea, anaphylaxis, aspiration, 

cardiac arrest, death) 

77



ISSUE DATE: 06/12 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY MANUAL 

SUBJECT: Self-Administered Continuous 
Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin 
(Insulin Pump Therapy) for the 
Acute Care Patient 

REVISION DATE{S}: 02/14 

Department Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: OOM06/19 
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 10/1603/1910/19 
Nurse Executive CmmGil Committee Approval: '1-0/-1-610/19 
Diabetes Task Force Approval: 12/16 
Medi Gal Staff Department er Divisien Apprnval: n/a 
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: 05/22 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 03J.1.7, 07/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/-1-7-, 09/22 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: Gal1-+ n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 05/17 

A. POLICY: 
1. Continuous subcutaneous infusion of insulin (CSll) or insulin pump therapy is an option for 

hospitalized adult patients who desire intensive insulin management. CSll is not initiated in the 
hospital. This policy includes self management of a Continuous Glucose Monitor, if applicable. 

B. CONTRAINDICATIONS: 
1. Altered level of consciousness or change in judgment. 
2. Receiving medications with the potential of inducing altered mental awareness or level of 

consciousness as determined by attending/consulting physician. 
3. Mental and/or physical inability to independently manage the pump (dosing changes and boluses, 

settings, changing infusion sets, tubings, changes, reservoirs with am! insulin, etc. NOTE: 
supplies dependent on specific pump) 

4. Risk for suicide. 
5. Other circumstances identified by the attending/consulting physician. 

C. PROCEDURE: PATIENT ASSESSMENT: 
1. Verify that the patient's attending physician has initiated the appropriate orders"lnsulin Pump 

(CSll) Subcutaneous Self Administered" PowerPlan. 
2. Notify Biomedical Engineering to evaluate the pump or pump/-aREl-Gcontinuous Gglucose 

Mmeter (CGM) combination for safety and obvious damage per Patient Care Services Policy: 
Medical Equipment Brought Into the Facility. 

3. Complete anthe !!!initial Aassessment for iinsulin Ppump Ppatients~ .Verify that patient: 
a. Is alert to time, person and place on admission and then at least once per shift. 
b. Is able to independently perform psychomotor tasks to manage the insulin infusion as 

follows: 
i. Knows and can change basal rate(s). 
ii. Knows and can manage mealtime insulin infusions boluses based on insulin to 

carb ratio(s). 

78



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 2 ofB 

iii. Knows and can manage correction infusions boluses based on insulin sensitivity 
factor(s). 

iv. Can change insertion site, infusion set, tubing, and reservoir with insulin every 72 
hours and prn. or according to specific pump protocol. 
NOTE: there rnight Ile slight differences in Supplies dependffig-on thB specific 
pump. 

v. Fer a Continuous Glucose Monitor (CGM), can change the sensor at appropriate 
intervals. 

c. Has his/her own necessary supplies at the bedside necossary for self-management: 
infusion sets, tubing, reservoirs, insulin, etc. 
i. Note: Insulin brought in from home for use in the hospital must be ordered by the 

physician and verified by the pharmacy according to Patient Services Policy 
(PCS) Medications Brought in by the Patient Policy. 

d. Has signed the Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous 
Infusion of Insulin Insulin Purnp Therapy Patient Agreernent 

e. Is willing to keep written records of insulin infusions using the Patient Insulin Pump 
Record 

4. Check point of care (POC) blood glucose levels as ordered by the physician using the hospital 
meter and use reading to determine insulin dose or readings frorn the patient's continuous 
glucose rnonitor. Patients may use their own Continuous Glucose Meters, but readings are 
not used to determine insulin dosing. 
a. If patient has Type 1 diabetes and lf 2 consecutive POC blood glucose readings are 

above 250 mg/dL (200 mg/dL, if pregnant) within a 4-6 hour interval, obtain order for a 
urine specimen to check for ketones and instruct the patient to change the infusion set, 
insertion site, and reservoir with insulin. 

b. Call the physician for a correction dose of lispro insulin to be administered 
subcutaneously by the nurse when tho POC blood glucose is allove 280 or if the pump 
is disconnected for more than 30 minutes. 

5. Discontinue the pump when ordered by the physician or if the patient's level of consciousness 
suddenly changes. 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES: 
1. Patient must change entire pump set-up including insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with 

insulin at least every 72 hours and PRN as applicableor aooording to speoifio purnp 
protocol. 

2. Nurse will assess insertion site every shift for redness, signs of infection, purulent drainage, or 
leakage. 

3. Patient will change infusion set, tubing, and insertion site if: 
a. Tubing is clogged or infusion set is leaking 
b. Site is red, painful, irritated, and/or there are signs of infection 
G. T'.'vo consecutive POC blood glucose readings are above 280 rng/db (200rng/db if 

pregnant) within a 4 €i hour interval. 
o. 4. Patient must agree to keep blood glucose levels 140-180 mg/dL. Consideration may 

be given to tighter control, i.e. 100-140 mg/dL, if patient desires. 

E. MEDICATION INTERVENTIONS: 
1. If patient is no longer alert or any of the other assessment criteria have changed: 

a. Explain to patient and/or patient's family that the pump will be removed for patient's 
safety. 

b. Obtain orders for basal insulin, mealtime insulin, and correction insulin. Alternatively, 
begin continuous infusion of IV regular insulin according to physician orders. 
o.i. A pump should not be discontinued without starting either subcutaneous or 

intravenous insulin at least 60 minutes before the subcutaneous pump infusion is 
removed. 

79



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 3 ofB 

El.c. Remove the pump and infusions set and instruct a family member to take the pump 
home. If family member is not available, send pump to Pharmacy for safe-keeping. 

e.cd. Continue to measure POC blood glucose levels as ordered. 
Hi. Continue subcutaneous or IV insulin orders until patient is assessed by physician to be 

able to once again, independently, self-manage the pump. 

F. SPECIAL PROCEDURES: 
1. For procedures requiring sedation (surgery, cardiac catheterization, bronchoscopy, endoscopy, 

etc.), the pump will be disconnected. Contact the physician for specific orders for starting IV or 
SC insulin therapy. 

2. Pumps should never be exposed to x-ray beams which may cause the pump to empty its entire 
reservoir of insulin and potentially cause severe hypoglycemia and death. 

3. For CT scans and general x-rays, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump if the pump is not 
in the area of interest. It can be covered with a lead apron. 

4. For MRls, disconnect the pump. Remove the insertion set only if it is metal. 
5. For mammograms and bone density tests, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump. 
6. For ultrasound, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump. 
7. If the pump is stopped for ever-30 minutes or longer, monitor POC blood glucose and 

administer insulin per physician orders (recommend monitoring POC blood glucose 
every 30 minutes until insulin pump resumed or appropriate provider orders initiated)tAe 
pump may need to be reeonneeted for a dose of insulin prior to eontinuing the radiology 
proeedure to prevent rapid onset OKA or a subcutaneous dose of rapid acting insulin 
should be administered .. 

8. In case of hypoglycemia, treat per PCS Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient 
Standardized Procedure. 

G. PUMP INFORMATION: 
1. An external insulin pump is about the size of a pager and contains a reservoir filled with rapid 

acting insulin (lispro, aspart, or glulisine), has a computer chip, and a battery-operated pump. 
Many pump models exist; some have visible tubing, others are self-contained and disposable. 
An insulin pump generally does not automatically control blood glucose levels; however, this 
is an area of intense innovation and at least one pump is able to do this, others will soon 
be on the market. Pump users check their blood glucose levels 4-10 times/day (8-12 times/day 
when pregnant), calculate doses of insulin based on the blood glucose level and/or 
carbohydrate intake and program the pump to deliver a dose (bolus) of insulin. The pump is also 
programmed to deliver continuous basal insulin. 
a. All insulin is delivered through an infusion set 
b. The patient changes the insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with insulin every 72 

hours, or more often as needed as applicableor according to spocific pump 
protocol,, to prevent infection and to promote good insulin delivery. 

2. Refer to the 800 number on the back of the pump or pumplCGM combination if needed for 
technical support. 

3. Diabetic Ketoacidosis (OKA) 
a. Caution: The effect of rapid acting insulin lasts about 4 hours; therefore, if insulin 

delivery is interrupted, OKA can develop rapidly in both non-pregnant and pregnant 
patients. If the insulin pump is removed, physician orders for either subcutaneous (SC) 
or intravenous (IV) insulin should start immediately. 

b. Note: DKA is not likely to occur in patients with type 2 diabetes 
4. The most common causes of OKA in pump users: 

a. Insertion set/tubing is clogged, kinked or leaking 
b. Site has not been changed recently and site is irritated 
c. Failure to treat hyperglycemia appropriately 
d. Insulin has lost potency in the vial of insulin currently in use (check expiration date). 

5. Correction doses: 

80



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin {Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 4 of 8 

a. Most pumps have a built-in feature to limit the amount of insulin delivery for correction 
doses. 

b. Correction dosing is not advised more than once every two hours 
6. After WAeR the pump is discontinued, the patient may resume pump therapy with a physician 

order. 

H. KEY POINTS: 
1. Insulin is delivered either by pump or injection- Not Both 
2. Patient is expected-to self-maintain the fasting and pre-meal blood glucose range of 140-180 

mg/dl. while in the hospital. POC blood glucose levels will be checked by RN using the hospital 
meter. or readings from the patient's eontimmus glueose meter. Patients may use their own 
Continuous Glucose Meters, but readings are not used to determine insulin dosing. 

3. FFor pregnant patients, POC blood glucose targets are as follows: 
a. Antepartum targets: Fasting +G-00 60-89 mg/dl; one hour after first bite of a meal 100-129 

mg/d hp two hours after first bite of meal 100-119 mg/dl, and at HS and overnight 
60-99 mg/dl. 

b. lntrapartum (during labor): 70-110 mg/dl 
c. Postpartum and breastfeeding: Fasting 7Q 99 mg/db, one hour after the first bite of a meal 

1 QQ 15Q mgldb. l=ligher targets may be set for individual patient needs Blood glucose 
target ~varies depending on pre-existing diabetes, diabetes diagnosis after GDM 
and, insulin dependence. or required, but llHigher target levels tolerated in insulin
taking breastfeeding mothers. 

4. The bedside glueose monitor allows for neeessar; aetions to be taken quiokly along with follow up 
eare. l=lov10ver, for aoeurate Nova S!atStrip readings, the hematoorit range must be 25 6Q%. If 
l=ICT is less than 25% the blood glueose may be inaeeurately high; if greater than 6Q%, blood 
glueose may be inaeeurately low. If the hematocrit is below 20% or above 65%, may get a 
flow or bad sample error may display on the Nova Stat Strip device; if you get a blood 
glucose value displays when the hematocrit is below 20% and above 65%, you oanthe 
result is considered-it to be accurate. 

I. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Assure patient has signed the Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous 

Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin 
2. Complete the +initial Aassessment for +insulin Ppump Ppatients 
3. Document insertion site location in the health recordon the Patient Insulin Pum!J Reeord 
4. Provide Ppatient with a supply of the Patient Insulin Pump Record. 
5. Document POC blood glucose readings on the Patient Insulin Pump Record and in the 

€electronic healthmedieal Rrecord. 
6. The Patient Insulin Pump Records are inloudedincluded-seannod into the healthmedieal 

record at discharge. 
7. Ensure that the patient records all self-administered mealtime and correction doses of insulin; 

the basal rate and changes to the basal rate, and the grams of carbohydrate consumed at each 
meal. 

8. Documentation on the Patient Insulin Pump record must include the date of each infusion set 
change and insertion site change (if not the same as set change date). 

J. FORM(S): 
1. Initial Assessment for Insulin Pump Patients - Sample 
2. lnulin Pump Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of 

Insulin - Sample 
3. Patient Insulin Pump Patient Record - Sample 

K. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient 

81



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 5 of 8 

2. Patient Care Services Policy: Medical Equipment Brought Into the Facility 
3. Patient Care Services Policy: Medications Brought in by the Patient 

I L. REFERENCE(S): 
1. American Association of Diabetes Educators, Inpatient Position Statement. The Diabetes 

Educator, In Press, 2009. 
2. American Diabetes Association, Clinical Practice Recommendations - 2002, Continuous 

Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion; Diabetes Care 25: S116 
3. Amorioan Diabetes /\ssooia!ion, atandarEls of Medical Caro 200§, Diabetes Care in the 

Hospital; Diabetes Care 29: g4 42a. Diabetes Care vol. 40, supplement 1, Standards of 
Medical Care in Diabetes--2018, (pp.5144-5151). 

4. American Diabetes Association: Managing Preexisting Diabetes for Pregnancy. Diabetes Care, 
Volume Number 5, May 2008 

5. Cook, et al. Use of Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion (Insulin Pump) Therapy in the Hospital Setting 
- Proposed Guidelines and Outcomes Measures; The Diabetes EDUCATOR; Volume 31, 
Number 6, November/December 2005 

6. Pickup, J and Keen, H. Continuous Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion at 25 years: Evidence base 
for the expanding use of insulin pump therapy in Type 1 Diabetes; Diabetes Care 25: 1079-1087 

7. The Diabetes Educator. Vol. 31 No. 6, November/December 2005. The use of Subcutaneous 
Insulin Infusion (Insulin Pump) in the Hospital Setting: Proposed Guidelines and Outcome 
Measures. 

7'-8. diabetesforecast.org, Consumer Guide for Continuous Glucose Monitors 

82



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 6 of 8 

SAMPLE 
1. Has the attending physician completed the Power Plan Insulin Pump (CSJI) - Subcutaneous Self-Administered? 

a. Yes D No 
2. Is the patient alert to time, place, and person? D Yes D No 
3. The patient has the requisite knowledge to be able to seff-manage the pump if he/she can provide the information 

for the following: 
a. Type of insulin used in the pump: 

D Humalog® (lispro) D Novolog® (aspart) D Apidra® (glulisine) 

b. Basal rates (note: patient may have one or more): 
Basal rate 1 ___ units/hour from __ a.m.lp.m. to __ a.m.lp.m. 
Basal rate 2 units/hour from __ a.m.lp.m. to __ a.m./p.m. 
Basal rate 3 units/hour from __ a.m.lp.m. to __ a.m./p.m. 
Basal rate 4 units/hour from __ a.m.lp.m. to __ a.m.lp.m. 

Basal rate 5 units/hour from __ a.m.lp.m. to __ a.m./p.m. 
Basal rate 6 units/hour from __ a.m./p.m. to __ a.m.lp.m. 

c. Insulin to carb ratio (note: patient may have a different rate for each meal or may only have a fixed amount 
that is taken for each meal): 
Insulin to carb ratio breakfast ___ units of insulin per __ grams of carb 

Insulin to carb ratio lunch units of insulin per __ grams of carb 

Insulin to carb ratio dinner units of insulin per __ grams of carb 

Insulin to carb ratio snack units of insulin per __ grams of carb 
___ units at breakfast; units at lunch; units at dinner 

d. Correction Factor (note: patient may have a correction scale that is used based on pre-meal blood glucose 
levels): 
____ Units for every mgldL over mg/dL (target glucose) 

or one unit will bring blood glucose down mg/d L 
or make copy of written correction scale supplied by patient and add to chart 

4. Does the patient have the physical ability to manage the pump, deliver the doses and make setting changes? D 
yes D no 

5. Does the patient have pump supplies and insulin at bedside? D yes D no 

6. Has the pharmacy verified the insulin? D yes D no 
7. Has Biomedical Engineering evaluated the pump for safety? D yes D no 

8. Has the patient signed the Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of 
Insulin? D yes 0 no 

9. Can patient change basal, prandial and correction settings/doses? D yes D no 
10. Can patient count carbohydrates D yes D no 

NOTE: all yes/no questions must be answered 0 yes" before patient may use pump. 

Pump model and manufacturer---------------
Serial number ---------
Pump/CGM combination device model and manufacturer 
Serial number __________ _ 

Pump customer service number (found on back of pump) 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
4002 Vista Way • Oceanside • CA• 92056 

Initial Assessment for 
Insulin Pump Patients 

8720.NE\IV Page 1Of1 

Affix Patient Label 

Example - Patient Copy Example - Front Office Elrnmple - Billing 

83



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 7 of 8 

SAMPLE 
For your safety and optimal n1edlca1 care during this hosp1talizat1on, vie request that you agree to the follo\v1ng recommendations. If 
you believe that you cannot agree to these recomrnendations, we would like to treat your diabetes VJlth Insulin injections and 
request that you discontinLie the use of your insulin pL1mp. 

1. I agree to hold harmless Tri-City Healthcare District from any recalls, alerts and preventive maintenance brought to my 
attention for my insulin pump and continuous glucose meter, if applicable 

2. I agree to accept total responsibility for maintaining the pump and related equipment as ¥1e!! as self-administered insulin 
boluses and basa! rates. 

3. My insulin pump or insulin pump Continuous Glucose Meter (CGM) combo is approved by the Federal Drug Administration 
(FDA). 

4 I agree to allow Biomedical Engineering to evaluate my pump/pump CGM combo for safety and possible damage 
5. The make, model, and senal number (usually found on the bacl< of the pump) are as follows: 
6 Insulin Putrip make & n1oclel Serial Number __________ _ 

During my hospital stay, I agree to 
1 Tr/ to keep my blood glucose levels in the hospital target range of 140-180 mg/dl 
2. Use the blood glucose test results from the hospital meter for determining insulin rates and doses. The CGM readings will 

not be permitted for rate and dose adjustments. 
3 Write rny basat rate, mealtime and correction insulin boluses on the Patient Insulin Pump Record so the nurse can 

monitor my care 
4. Write the carbohydrate grams or servings consurned for each meal on the Patient Insulin Pump Record. 
5. Write the insertion site, infL1sion set, and reservoir with insulin changes on the Patient Insulin Pump Record. 
6 Change my basal rate 1f cleterm1ned necessary by my physician 
7 Change the Insertion site, 1nfus1on set, and reservoir with insulin every 72 hours or more often tf 

a The insertion site is red, irritated, painful, or if there are signs of infection 
b. The infusion set is leaking or the tubing is clogged 
c Two consecutive capillary blood glucose readings are greater than 250 mg/ell (200 mg/dL 1f pregnant) or less than 50 

mg!dl in a 24 hour period for 2 days. (200 mg/dl if pregnant) 
d A "no delivery* alann occurs on the pump 

8 Provide my 01,vn insulin pump supplies including insulin, whtch I agree to allO\'V the pharmacy to verify 
9 Allow the nurses and physicians caring for me to view the Patient Insulin Pump Record as needed 
10 Allo\'V the nurse to check my pump insertion site for irritation, redness or leaks 
11 Report any symptoms of low blood sugar 
12. Report any pump problems immediately to my nurse. 
13 Ask questions if I do not understand rny doctor's orders for my insulin pump 
14 Have niy pump disconnected 1f I can no longer, independently, rnanage my pu1np and I agree, then, to an alternate 1nsul1n 

delivery method 
15. Send 1ny pu1np and supplies home with a family 1nember for safekeeping if niy pump 1s disconnected or have Tri-City 

Medical Center's Pl1arrnacy department store my pump for safe-keeping. 

I also understand that rny insulin pump may be discontinued or disconnected (either ternporanly or longer) ancJ an alternate method 
of insulin delivery used for any of the following situations. 

1 Changes in my level of consciousness, avvareness, or Judgment 
2. Changes in my physical ability to manage my pump. 
3 Rad1olog1cal procedure such as x-rays, CT scans. MR ls or other procedures 
4. other reasons determined to be medically necessary by my doctor 

Patient S1gnature: ______________________ Date: ____ _ 

WitnessSignature. _____________________ ,Date. ___ _ 

~?/ Tri-City Medical Center 
4002 Vista Way • Oceanside • CA• 92056 

872Q..NEW 

PATIENT AGREEMENT FOR SELF
ADMINISTERED 

CONTINUOUS SUBCUTANEOUS 
INFUSION OF INSULIN 

Page 1 of1 

Affix Patient Label 

Example - Patient Ccpy Example· Front Office Example· 811lmg 
(RllV xx/xll) 

84



Patient Care Services 
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) Policy 
Page 8 of 8 

SAMPLE 
To be kept at the bedside for the patient to complete during hosp1talizat1on. Start a new record each day 

DATE: ____ _ PATIENT NAME: _________________ _ 

Patient to record the following. 
• Date of last infusion set change and insertion site change: (must change every 72 hours) 
• Location of insertion site:------------
• Type of insulin currently rn your pump· DHumalog (lrspro) D Novolog (aspart) D Aprdra (glul1s1ne) 
• Estimated total carbohydrate grams or servings for each meal 
• Nurse will record the Point of Care Blood Glucose (BG) readings that are obtained from the hos pita I meter, which 

you must use to mal<e any rate c11anges or bolus doses, before each meal and at bedtime 

Tell your nurse if 
• Something is wrong wlth your pump, or you do not feel capable of managing your pump 
• You notice redness at the insertion site, or you just changed your insertion site 
• You have symptoms of low blood sugar or high blood sugar 
• Your pump ls unplugged for more than 30 minutes 

POC BG CAR BS BOLUS 
TIME done by consumed amount BASAL 

(grams m Mealtime 
rate Comments 

nurse seNini::a) Correction 

~· 

Basal rate is the "background" 1nsuhn, delivered by the pump continuously, to maintain glucose levels when not eating 

Bolus dose is the "mealtime" insulin taken before meals and/or "correction" insulin used to manage spikes in glucose. 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
4002 Vista Way • Oceanside • CA· 92056 

8720-NEW 

PATIENT INSULIN 
PUMP RECORD 

P.:ige 1 of 1 

Affix Patient Label 

Example - Patient Copy Example - Front Office Example - Btlling 
{Rev XJ1f'l(X) 

85



ISSUE DATE: 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PATIENT CARE SERVICES 

01/06 SUBJECT: Skin and Wound Care Policy 

REVISION DATE: 09/06, 12/08, 07/09, 12/09, 06/10, POLICY NUMBER: l'l.O 
10/13, 04/15, 10/17 

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartmeRt Approval: 0414710/20 
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: ~06/22 

Nursinge LeadershipExesutive Cemmittee Approval: ~07/22 

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0914-709/22 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 10/17, n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 10/17 

PURPOSE: 
1. +Ao purpose of this policy is tTo define healthy maintenance of skin integrity, alteration in skin 

integrity and the process for assessment, treatment and documentation. For the purpose of this 
policy surgical wounds are considered acute wounds which proceed through an orderly and 
timely healing process not requiring interventions to heal. The surgeon provides orders for the 
care of the acute wound. 

2. To prevent pressure injuries a comprehensive visual aRd tactile sl<in iRspection upon admissioR, 
regularly, and as Reeded. I identify risk factors of pressure injury development utilizing the 
Braden Risk Assessment. 

&.3. To identify alterations in skin integrity and implement pressure injury prevention and nursing 
interventions to protect patient~ by: 
a. Removeing all garments, protectors, dressings (including Regative pressure wound vac 

dressings), and removable devices, as medically stable, to assess the skin. 
&.a. Assessing splints, casts, tubes and other devices as potential sites for pressure injury 

development. 
&cb. Ensuring Mmaintenance of healthy skin integrity through clean and dry skin using non 

friction bathing standards with slightly warm non-irritating, non-sensitizing, ph- balanced 
every day and after each incontinence episode. Keep skin well hydrated and 
moisturized. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Arterial Ulcer - a wound which fails to heal secondary to insufficient arterial perfusion, 

commonly located on areas exposed to repetitive trauma (i.e. lateral malleolus, phalangeal 
heads, between the toes, or on tips of toes) and typically has a "punched" out appearance. 

-'h-2. -Biofilm - complex microbial communities containing bacteria and fungi. The 
microorganisms synthesize and secrete a protective matrix that attaches the biofilm 
firmly to a living or nonliving surface 

3. Blanchable - quickly regains redness when pressure is lifted from skin (2-3 seconds) 

86



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aM-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 2of15 

64. Diabetic Ulcer - a wound which fails to heal as a result of elevated glucose levels resulting in 
altered nerve function in the lower extremities. Commonly located on pressure points of the feet 
such as the plantar surface and the metatarsal heads. 

5. Eschar - black or brown necrotic devitalized tissue (scab-like covering). 
6. Erythema - redness of the skin or mucous membranes, caused by hyperemia (increased 

blood flow) in superficial capillaries. 
7. Fascia - band or sheet of connective tissue, primarily collagen, beneath the skin that 

attaches, stabilizes, encloses, and surrounds and separates muscles and internal 
organs. 

~8. Fluctuance - a tense area of skin with a wave-like or boggy feeling upon palpation, this is 
the pus which has accumulated beneath the epidermis. 

9. Friction - sanding away of surface layer of skin occurring with repetitive rubbing, often seen 
under restraints or on elbows/heels, or where skin is fragile and macerated. 

10. Full Thickness - tissue damage involving total loss of epidermis and dermis and extending into 
the subcutaneous tissue and possibly muscle excluding pressure injuries. 

11. Incontinence-associated dermatitis (IAD) • is characterized by erythema and edema of the 
surface of the skin, sometimes accompanied by serous exudate, erosion, or secondary 
cutaneous infection. It is also classified as a form of moisture-associated skin damage 
that occurs when the skin is exposed to urinary, fecal, or dual urinary and fecal 
incontinence 

~12. lntertriginous dermatitis (ITD) - a superficial inflammatory skin condition of the skin's 
flexural surfaces, prompted or irritated by warm temperatures, friction, moisture, 
maceration and poor ventilation. Frequently affected areas being the axilla, abdominal 
folds, and perineum 

13. lschemic -a wound caused by vasoconstriction (contraction of smooth muscle in blood 
vessels) and increase in blood pressure. Do not stage an ischemic, traumatic or 
dermatologic condition as a deep tissue pressure injury (DTPI). 

14. Maceration - erythematous or "water-logged" skin secondary to diaphoresis or incontinence, 
may also be seen around a percutaneous tube that is leaking. 

15. Medical-adhesive-related skin injuries (MARSI). Erythema, epidermal stripping or skin 
tears, erosion, bull a, or vesicle observed after removal of an adhesive ostomy pouching 
system. 

16. Medical Device Related Pressure Injury: This describes an etiology. Medical device 
related pressure injuries result from the use of devices designed and applied for 
diagnostic or therapeutic purposes. The resultant pressure injury generally conforms to 
the pattern or shape of the device. The injury should be staged using the staging system. 

17. Microclimate -temperature, humidity and airflow at patient/ support surface 
4-18. Moisture-associated skin damage (MASO). Injury characterized by the inflammation and 

erosion (or denudation) of the epidermis resulting from prolonged exposure to various 
sources of moisture and potential irritants (e.g., urine, stool, perspiration, wound exudate 
and ostomy effluent). 

&,19. Mucosa! Membrane Pressure Injury: Mucosa! membrane pressure injury is found on 
mucous membranes with a history of a medical device in use at the location of the injury. 
Due to the anatomy of the tissue these ulcers cannot be staged. 

&.-1. Full Thickness - tissue damage involving total loss of epidermis and dermis and extending into 
the subcutaneous tissue and possibly muscle excluding pressure injuries. 

+.-20. Partial Thickness - tissue damage to the epidermis and part of the dermis excluding pressure 
injuries. Abrasions, skin tears, blisters and shallow craters are examples of partial thickness 
woundso .. 

~21. Pressure injury - localized injury to the skin and/or underlying tissue usually over a bony 
prominence, as a result of pressure, or pressure in combination with shear and/or friction. 

87



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aflG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 3of15 

a. Suspected Deep Tissue Injury (DTI) Depth Unknown- Purple or maroon localized area of 
discolored intact skin or blood-filled blister due to damage of underlying soft tissue from 
pressure and/or shear. The area may be preceded by tissue that is painful, firm, mushy, 
boggy, warmer or cooler as compared to adjacent tissue. Deep tissue injury may be 
difficult to detect in individuals with dark skin tones. Evolution may include a thin blister 
over a dark wound bed. The wound may further evolve and become covered by thin 
eschar. Evolution may be rapid exposing additional layers of tissue even with optimal 
treatment. 

b. Category/Stage I Pressure Injury: Non-blanchable erythema -- Intact skin with a 
localized area of non-blanchable erythema, which may appear differently in darkly 
pigmented skin. Presence of blanchable erythema or changes in sensation, 
temperature, or firmness may precede visual changes. Color changes do not 
include purple or maroon discoloration; these may indicate deep tissue pressure 
injury.Intact skin with non blanohable redness ef a leoalized area usually ever a bony 
preminence. Darkly pigmented skin may not have visible blanohing; its color may differ 
from the surreunding area. The area may be painful, firm, soft, "varmer or oeoler as 
oempared te adjacent tissue. Category I may be diffioult te detect in individuals with darlc 
skin tones. May indicate "at risk" persons. 

c. Stage 2 Pressure Injury: Partial-thickness loss of skin with exposed dermis. The 
wound bed is viable, pink or red, moist, and may also present as an intact or 
ruptured serum-filled blister. Adipose (fat) is not visible and deeper tissues are 
not visible. Granulation tissue, slough and eschar are not present. These injuries 
commonly result from adverse microclimate and shear in the skin over the pelvis 
and shear in the heel. This stage should not be used to describe moisture 
associated skin damage (MASO) including incontinence associated dermatitis 
(IAD), intertriginous dermatitis (ITD), medical adhesive related skin injury (MARSI), 
or traumatic wounds (skin tears, burns, abrasions) 
&.- Categery/gtage II: Partial thickness Partial thickness less of dermis presenting 
as a shallew open ulcer with a red pink weund bed, without sleugh. May also present as 
an intact or open/ruptured serum filled er sere sanginous filled blister. Presents as a 
shiny or dry shallew ulcer without sleugh or bruising*. This category should not be used 
te describe skin tears, tape burns, incontinence assooiated dermatitis, maoeratien er 
excoriation. 

*Bruising indicates deep tissue injury. 
d. Stage 3 Pressure Injury: Full-thickness loss of skin, in which adipose (fat) is 

visible in the ulcer and granulation tissue and epibole (rolled wound edges) are 
often present. Slough and/or eschar may be visible. The depth of tissue damage 
varies by anatomical location; areas of significant adiposity can develop deep 
wounds. Undermining and tunneling may occur. Fascia, muscle, tendon, ligament, 
cartilage and/or bone are not exposed. If slough or eschar obscures the extent of 
tissue loss this is an Unstageable Pressure Injury. 

d. Categery,1gtage Ill: f'ull thiolmess skin loss f'ull thickness tissue less. guboutaneeus fat 
may be visible but bene, tendon or muscle isare not exposed. g1ough may be present 
but does net ebsoure the depth of tissue loss. May include undermining and tunneling. 
The depth ef a Category/gtage Ill pressure injuryuloer varies by anatomical location. 
The bridge of the nose, ear, eooiput and malleolus de net have (adipose) subcutaneous 
tissue and Categerytgtage Ill uloers can be shallow. In centrast, areas of significant 
adiposity can develop mctremely deep Categorytgtage Ill pressure injuriesuloers. 
Bone/tenden is not visible or direotly palpable 

e. Stage 4 Pressure Injury: Full-thickness skin and tissue loss with exposed or 
directly palpable fascia, muscle, tendon, ligament, cartilage or bone in the ulcer. 
Slough and/or eschar may be visible. Epibole (rolled edges), undermining and/or 

88



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin a-AG-Care!Wound Care Policy 
Page 4of15 

tunneling often occur. Depth varies by anatomical location. If slough or eschar 
obscures the extent of tissue loss this is an Unstageable Pressure Injury. 

o. Category/Stage IV: full thiclmoss tissue loss full thickness tissue loss with mq:iosod 
bone, tendon or muscle. Slough or oschar may be present. Often includes undermining 
and tunneling. The depth of a Categor;/Stago IV pressure injuryuloer varies by 
anatomical location. The bridge of the nose, ear, occiput and malleolus do not have 
(adipose) subcutaneous tissue and these ulcers can be shallow. Categor;/Stage IV 
ulcers can extend into muscle andlor supporting structures (e.g., fascia, tendon or joint 
capsule) making osteomyelitis or osteitis likely to occur. El(posed bonelmuscle is visible 
or directly palpable 

f. Unstageable Pressure Injury: Obscured full-thickness skin and tissue loss. Full
thickness skin and tissue loss in which the extent of tissue damage within the 
ulcer cannot be confirmed because it is obscured by slough or eschar. If slough 
or eschar is removed, a Stage 3 or Stage 4 pressure injury will be revealed. Stable 
eschar (i.e., dry, adherent, and intact without erythema or fluctuance) on the heel 
or ischemic limb should not be softened or removed. 

f. UnstagoablolUnolassifiod: full thickness skin or tissue loss depth unlrnown full 
thickness tissue loss in which actual depth of the ulcer is completely obscured tiy slough 
(yellow, tan, gray, green or brown) and/or eschar (tan, tirown or tilack) in tho '.vound tied. 
Until enough slough and/or eschar are removed to Ol(pose the tiase of the wound, the 
true depth cannot tie determined; tiut it will tie either a Category/Stage Ill or IV. i>tatile 
(dry, adherent, intact without erythema or fluctuance) eschar en the heels serves as "the 
tiody's natural (tiiological) cover" and should not tie removed. 

22. Re-epithelialization - restoration of epithelium over a wound 
23. Skin Failure - Tissue necrosis associate with multisystem organ failure. 
4'-24. Shear - the mechanical force that is parallel to the skin which can damage deep tissue such as 

muscle. Tissues attached to the bone are pulled in one direction, whereas surface tissues 
remain stationary. Shearing occurs when the head of the bed (HOB) is elevated and the patient 
slides downward in bed. 

&.-25. Sinus Tract - may also be referred to as tunneling; course or path of tissue destruction 
occurring in any direction from the surface or edge of wound resulting in dead space with 
potential for abscess formation. 

&.-26. Skin Tear - a traumatic wound resulting from separation of the epidermis from the dermis. Skin 
tears without tissue loss may be linear type or flap type. Skin tears with tissue loss may be 
partial or complete. 

9'-27. Slough - dead, nonviable tissue; loose, stringy, moist and soft. May be cream colored, 
white, tan, or yellow. Composed of proteinaceous tissue, fibrin, neutrophils and bacteria. 
loose, stringy, non viatile tissue, may tie white, tan, or yellow. 

'14-28. Undermining - area of tissue destruction extending under intact skin along the periphery of a 
wound, commonly seen in shear injuries. 

29. Venous Ulcer - a wound that has failed to heal secondary to venous insufficiency, commonly 
located on the medial aspect of lower leg and ankle or superior to the medial malleolus, will 
typically appear with irregular margins and surrounding skin will have brown/black discoloration, 
there may be evidence of healed ulcer . 

.:J-.:k30. Viable dermis - living dermal tissue 
:f'.,.31. Wound - a disruption of normal structure and function of the integumentary system. Wounds 

are classified as acute, chronic, or refractory. 
a. Acute - a wound which occurs suddenly (i.e. trauma or surgery) and heals in an orderly 

and predictable cascade of events. 

89



Patient Care SeNices Policy Manual 
Skin aREl-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 5of15 

b. Chronic - an acute wound which fails to heal normally (i.e. dehisced surgical wound) or 
a wound that is not healing secondary to a loss of perfusion or some other breakdown in 
tissue integrity (i.e. nutritional status, infections, or elevated glucose levels). 

c. Refractory - a wound which shows no measurable progress for two consecutive weeks 
despite appropriate management. 

C. POLICY: 
1. Skin (lntegumentary) Assessment; 

a. Skin shall be assessed with all nursing department admission assessments, each 
shift and upon transfer thls-includinges Emergency Department and inpatient 
areas.Skin sonElilion shall be assesseEI in soordination with the Braden Risk 
Assessment with all hospital Elepartmen! nursing assessments. 
Skin sondition shall be assessed for all inpatient shift assessments transfers and 
AAN. 

b. Braden Risk Assessment shall be completed with all hospital department nursing 
admission assessments, , upon orElors for inpatient shift aElmission,assessment, 
transfer, and as needed (PRN). anEI aElmission. Reassessmon!s will be upon uni! 
spesifiG stanElarEls anEI PRN. 
i. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit {NICU)/Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 

shall complete newborn skin condition scale 
&.-c. Operating Room (OR)/Peri-Operative Areas assess high risk patient population for 

skin integrity at pressure points which will be affected by patient positioning,..tlflGA 
orElers for inpatient aElmission, anEI aElmission. Reassessments will be upon unit spesifiG 
stanElarEls anEI PR~J .. 

1) Outpatient Areas: (Emergensy Department anEI ProseElural Areas) shoulEI 
assesssomplete both Braden Risk Assessment in sonjunstion with a skin 
assessment. Patients that are evaluated as high risk patient populations for the skin 
integrity at pressure points whioh will be affes!eEI by patient positioning Eluring !he 
proseElure. /\pplisalioninjury development shall have the applisation of prophylas!iG 
Composi!oa foam somposite Elressing, i.e. sasral Elressing, heel Elressing shoulEI be 
sonsiEloroEI. (heels, sasrum, elbows). 

ii. For any area !ha! has Elressing (insluEling wounEI vas) upon aElmission, the Elressing 
shoulEI be removeEI, area assesseEI, skin sonElilion ElosumenteEI anEI appropriate 
Elressing applied. 

-1-td. VAC Elressings shoulEI be removeEI anEI a saline Elressing Gan be useEI until the Vl/ounEI 
Team san be sonsulteEI to replase. 

&e. Skin aAssessment shall be comprehensive (visual and tactile) including but is not limited 
to: 
i. Skin Turgor 
ii. Mucous Membranes Color and Description 
iii. Skin Color 
iv. Skin Temperature 
v. Skin Moisture 
iih-vi. Presence of : 

1) Any skin abnormality including partial or full thickness wounds 
2) Pressure Injuries (DTI I Stage I/ 2 / 3 / 4 or Unstageable) 
3) Skin Tear 
-1-14) Skin Failure 
~5) Surgical Incision 

90



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin 8R€1-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 6of15 

i. Location of all-any skin abnormality including partial or full thickness wounds, 
pressure injuries, skin tears, skin failure or surgical incisions and description of 
skin abnormality and surrounding tissue, description and drainage. 

i>,<.,ii. For any area that has a dressing (including Wound Vacuum) upon 
admission the dressing should be removed, area assessed, skin condition 
documented and appropriate dressing applied. 

e-,f. Assess skin abnormality for signs and symptoms of infection. If any new infection is 
identified, notify physician. 

Ehg. Photograph all skin injuries including partial or full thickness wounds, pressure injuries , 
skin tears, skin failure or non-surgical wounds on admission, at least once every 7 
days, with changes and new discovery and day of discharge or 24 hours prior to the 
day of discharge . Photos shall include: 
i. Measuring guide with the following information: patient initials and location of 

wound, 
ii. If a patient refuses a skin assessments, perform the following: 

1) Identify why patient is refusing to allow assessment, and mitigate 
refusal, educate the patient on the rationale importanse of 
assessment and the risk of developing a pressure injury, 

2) If patient continues to refuse after re-education, notify the physician. 
2. Repositioning Patients 

a. Stable Patients 
iii. Maintain mobility to reduce pressure areas on patient. 
iv. Reposition immobile patients at least every two (2) hours when unable to 

turn self. 
v. Float I elevate heels from the surface of the bed ensuring heels are free 

from any tubes or medical devices. 
vi. Encourage/assist ambulatory patients to change positions in bed. 
vii. Reposition patients in chair every 30 minutes. 
viii. Consider obtaining a chair cushion. 
ix. Do not place patient on reddened areas until redness has completely 

resolved. 
b. Hemodynamically Unstable Patients 

i. Provide mini-turns. 
ii. Weight shift patient with pillow(s). 
iii. Float I elevate heels from surface of bed ensuring heels are free of any 

tubes or medical devices. 
iv. Pelvis injury· log roll patient only with approval of the physician. 
ihv. Cervical fracture - patient must have appropriate fitted cervical collar in 

place then log roll patient and wedge in proper alignment 
vi. For additional information see VCU Hemodynamic Instability Guide 

b3. Documentation: 
a. Braden Risk Assessment and nursing interventions to protect patient, 
b. lntegumentary skin assessment including any skin injuries, 
c. Dressing changes7 

i. Write date, time, initials, and stage "T" for treatment on the dressing prior to 
application. 

b. g11in Care treatment plans. 
d. Initiate appropriate orders and Interdisciplinary plan of 
e. Documentation of Skin Bundle within EMR 

JA. Identify patients at risk for skin breakdown7 
a. Braden Risk Assessment Score less than or equal to (.:j18 

i. Implement interventions in areas of deficit 

91



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aAS-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 7of15 

b. Immobility 
c. Dry Cchapped &skin 
d. Over l=lhydrated &skin 
e. Renal I l=lhepatic !impairment 
f. Low Aalbumin blevels 
(}.-C. Surgery Lasting four (4) Or Moro l=loursor more hours 
fl...d. Diabetic 
he. Sepsis I !infection 
j-J. Patients 'Nith Really bow>Hith really lew a decreased body mass index (BMI) e.g., 19 

or less (for example less than 19) 
k-,g. Spinal Cord Injury 

4,5. Skin protection I wound prevention guidelines and intervention options• 
a. Maintain healthy skin moisture (strengthen skin integrityf.) 

i. Clean incontinent episodes quickly to keep skin dry. 
ii. Use peri-wipesShield pads to clean perineum after stool and& urine. 
iii. Use protective barrier moisture lotion to prevent chaffing. 
iv. Keep irritating substances off the skin i.e. acidic stool. 
v. Use a single moisture wicking pad underpad for incontinent patients to absorb 

moisture. 
i. Use female external containment device for incontinontincontinence females, as 

appropriate. 
ii. Avoid adult diapers on incontinent patients; except during transport or 

during ambulation. 
iii. Use condom catheter for incontinence on male patients as appropriate 
W.iv. Use pH balance non-rinse cleanser 
vii. Avoid adult diapers mmept on incontinent patients mwept during transport or 

during ambulation. 
viii.vi. Use pl=I balancee non rinse aleanser (Sage Comfort wipes). 

&..6. Reduce friction and shearing• 
s.a. Use Elrawslide sheet when repositioning patient in bod. 
9.b. Lift patients off bed when repositioning (to reduce drag). 
a,c. -Evaluate for appropriate assist devices (trapeze bar). 
o.d. Consider use of specialty mattresses for patients at high risk, in addition to turning, 

position and offloading patient every two (2) hours (See Mattress Selection Guide). 
i. Pressure redistribution standard mattress (NPT3, lsoflmc or Sizewise).) 
ii. Pressure reeistribution mattress with a l:Jlower bew Air Less for patients with 

moisture prol:Jlems, incontinence and only 2 intact turning surfaces .. (Pulsate 
Mattress).) 

iii. Pressure RelievingAir fluidized Mattress for patients with flaps/grafts or with 
only 1 intact turning surface., patients that have been "round dewn" er DTI. 
Paraplegic and Quadriplegic patient shall be place on a pressure relievingair 
fluidized surface (Immerse Mattress and Evolution l:Jed). Unstable spine 
patients should not be placed on this surface. 

iv. Bari Bed for patients greater than 350 pounds or difficulty turning and 
positioning. 

f>.7. Reduce pressure and shearing• 
a. Maintain proper alignment I body position. 
b. HOB less than 30 degrees if not contraindicated for patient. 
c. LatcRGatch knee of bed to prevent sliding down in bed. 
d. Consider floating/elevating heels with pillow or heel protectors under ankles. 
e. Off load pressure areas. 

92



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aRG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 8 of 15 

f. Avoid foam rings or donuts. 
g. When side lying.side lying avoid positioning on trochanter and turn off the back at 30 

degree angle. 
h. Consider applying preventative siliconefoam composite dressing to high risk areas. 

7. Maintain mobility to redllce pressllre areas on patient: 
a. Reposition immobile patients at least every 2 hollrs. 
b. Encollrage/assist amblllatory patients to change positions in bed. 
c. Reposition patients in chair every :JG minlltes. 
d. Do not place patient on reddened areas llntil redness has completely resolved. 

8. Care for incontinent patients; 
a. Offer frequent toileting, cued voiding or timed voiding. 
b. Every one (1) hour observation of incontinent episodes and immediate cleansing of area 

after each episode. 
c. Cleanse with peri-wipescomkirt shield perinea! care. 
d. Avoid diapering except when ambulating and during transport. 
e. Use one incontinent pad (avoid chux) on top of draw sheet. 
f. Use incontinence skin barriers I creams I ointments and skin protectants to protect and 

maintain intact skin. 
g. Consider using containment device to contain urine/ I stool. 

9. Nutrition; 
a. Initiate nutrition consult for patients at high risk. 
b. Consider nutrition supplement per physician's order if at high risk. 
c. Offer fluids with each turn unless contraindicated. 
d. Multi-vitamins per physician's order. 

'1-0.D. PROCEDURE TREATMENTf 
+2.1. Apply-Pprophylactic foam composite dressings to identified high risk pressure injury 

areas with low moisture pressure points 
a.g. Apply silicone composite dressing (i.e.: sacral dressing, heel dressing) to low 

moisture high risk areas. or umler medical devices. 
tr.a. Reassess high risk skin areas by peeling back P.prophylactic silicone composite 

dressing every shift 
c.b. Change prophylactic siliconefGam composite dressings every three (3) days and 

pm if soiled. 
El.c. Mark prophylactic prevention dressing with a "P" and the date and time 
e.d. Frequent positioning and off loading every 1 2 hours will assist in the pre•1ention 

of pressure injuries. 
44.2. Stage 1, Stage 2, and Suspect Deep Tissue Injury; 

a. Apply silicone composite dressing, i.e. ie: sacral dressing, heel dressing to blow 
moisture Stage 1 area. 

b. Reassess Stage 1, Stage2, or sguspect dQeep t+:issue i+njury Aarea by peeling back 
silicone composite dressing, i.e. ie: sacral dressing, heel dressing with assessments per 
standards of care. 

c. If~ pl2ressure i+njuries is in a high moisture areas utilize an external urinary 
containment device, anG-apply a protective barrier and leave open to air. 

d. Position patientspatient off area of pl2ressure iAj-ury.injuries 
d.e. Enter a Wound Team Consult via Cerner 

+2.3. Stage 3; 
a. Cleanse wound with normal saline. 
b. Assess for tunnels, tracts, or undermining. 
c. Culture wound after cleansing if ordered. 

93



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aRG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 9of15 

d. If clean and shallow, fill visible wound bed with calcium alginate, 
e. If infected, cleanse, culture and fill cavity with silver impregnated calcium alginate 

(silver) vs (calcium alginateH If dry, silver impregnated calcium alginate may stay in 
place seven (7) days. 

f. If tracts, tunnels or undermining moisten wrap keFIOOstretch gauze with antimicrobial 
wound gel roll with anasept gel and fill cavity, tracts, tunnels, witheF wrap/stretch 
gauze.undermining with l<erlix. 

g. Cover wound with silicone composite dressing, 
h. Change daily and if dressing becomes saturated with drainage, 
fh-i. Consult Wound Team 

i. Enter a referral to the Vl/ound Team Consult via Corner. 
~. Stage 47 

a. Cleanse wound with normal saline, 
b. Assess for tunnels, tracts, or undermining and supporting structures: muscle, bone, 

tendon, or joint capsule, 
c. Culture wound after cleansing, 
d. If clean and shallow, fill visible wound bed with calcium alginate. If infected, cleanse, 

culture and fill cavity with silver impregnated calcium alginate (silver) vs (calcium 
alginateH 

e. If tracts, tunnels, undermining, or non- visible wound bed moisten wrap/stretch gauze 
with antimicrobial wound gel l<erlil( roll with anasept gel and fill cavity, tracts, tunnels, 
or undermining with ~wrap/stretch gauze 

f. Cover wound with silicone composite dressing, 
g. For wounds with high moisture related to incontinence, avoid foam composite 

dressing and apply barrier paste. 
g,h. Change every 12 fleufshoursFS and if dressing becomes saturated with drainage, 
i. Low wound drainage Stage 4 Pressure Injuries • Foam composite dressing with 

Silver can stay in place for up to seven (7) days. Change if dressing becomes 
saturated with drainage 

h. Order pressure relieving mattress, i.e., air fluidized bed, immerse, or low air-loss, 
"'l· Enter a referral to the Consult Wound Team Consult via Gerner. 

:14.5. Unstageable - unable to determine staging of pressure injury; 
a. Relieve excessive moisture, pressure and/or shear, 
b. ConsultEnter a referral to the Wound Team Consult via Gerner. 
c. If only necrotic tissue (eschar) is present, cover the wound with dry gauze dressing until 

specific orders are given, or consult is obtained from Wound Team.'A'OCN 
d. For wounds with a-draining necrotic tissue (eschar/slough), follow Stage IV treatment 
Ehe. options, silver or calcium alginate, changing every 12 fleufshours and if dressing 

becomes saturated with drainage, until specific orders are given, or consult is obtained 
from Wound Team. 

:ta,6. Skin Tear; 
a. Cleanse wound area gently with normal saline. 
b. Approximate skin edges, 
c. Apply siliBerlsilicone contact layer, 

i. Change sitiBer!silicone contact layer every seven days, 
d. If bleeding, consider calcium alginatealignate or calcium alginatealginateigAate with 

silver on top of silicone contact layer, 
e. Wrap area with stretch gauze keffil( and secure with tape. Avoid tape to skin. 

i. Change stretch gauze keffil( every twenty four (241 and as needed for 
saturation, 

f. If unable to use stretch gauze keffil(, apply silicone composite dressing, 

94



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aflG-.Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 10of15 

i. Change silicone composite dressing every tvventy four (243 days to 5 days ) and 
as needed for saturationo 

~7. Partial Thickness Wound+ 
a. Cleanse wound area gently with normal saline. 
b. Apply silicone composite dressing: 

i. Change dressing every three (3) days and as needed for saturation. 
c. If dressing does not adhere or requires replacement more than every three (3) 

days, consult Wound Team. May apply a prophylactic silicone composite 
dressing and wrap/stretch gauze until Wound Team consult obtained. Change 
prophylactic silicone composite dressing daily. 

a. Cleanse wound area gently with normal saline. 
9. Apply silicone composite dressing: 

Chango Foam Composite Dressing QSATIJRDAY, A'ote f>ate anef "T" aR alt 
dresssiRfJS 

i. Remo'le Dressing ARY deessiRg every three (3) days and prn saturation. Rot dated 
a. If dressing does not adhere or requires replacement more than ovary throe (3) days, 

consult Wound Team. May apply silicone composite foam and kerlix until 1Nound Team 
consult o9tained. Change silicone composite foam daily. 

'1+.8. Full Thickness:Pesition Patient Off \l\le1rndFull Thickness 
a. Cleanse wound area gently with normal saline. 
b. Apply silver to wound voido 
c. Apply silicone composite dressingo 

i. Change silicone composite dressing every three (3) days and as needed for 
saturationo 
1) Home Care patients change dressing every 3-5 days. 

d. If wound appears infected, obtain order from physician to culture wound prior to silver 
applicationo 

9. Skin Failure - tissue necrosis associated with multisystem organ failure. 
a. Apply foam composite dressing to necrotic area with tissue ischemic changes -

low moisture 
b. Assess under foam composite dressing every shift. 
c. Change foam composite dressing every three (3) days and as needed. Note date 

and "T" for treatment on all dressings. 
d. Position patient off wound. 
e. Order pressure redistribution mattress, air fluidized (Evolution with Immersion). 
f. High moisture wounds related to incontinence avoid foam composite dressing, 

apply barrier paste. 
g. Consult Wound Team 

~ 10. Medical Device Related Pressure injtlfylnjury Prevention+ 
a. Apply pProphylactic siliconefoam composite dressing with Medicalmedical device 

initiation. 
b. Assess skin under medical device every shift when medical de'lioe is reme'lallle 

or adjustallle 
lr.c. Choose the correct size I shape of medical device(s) to fit the individual. 
God. Cushion and pProtect the skin with thin hydrocolloid dressing, and/ or siliconefoam 

composite dressings in high risk area (i.e., nasal bridge, ears). 
i. Prophylactic silicone composite dressing application, i.e. sacral dressing, heel 

dressing to high risk area. 
-Bi. Assess skin under dressing Peel 9ack every shift ans assess skin: 

a-11) If skin is not intact consult Wound Team via Corner. 
2}ii. Change silicone composite dressing every three (3)fivo (5) days and PRNas 

needed if saturatedo 

95



Patient Care SeJVices Policy Manual 
Skin a-AG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page11 of15 

!J.e. Avoid placement of device(s) over sites of prior or existing pressure injury. 
f. Assess for edema under device(s) and potential for skin breakdown 
c. Ensure staff lmowskno'N the correct use of device(s) and prevention of sl<in break,down. 
d. Be aware of edema under device(s) and potential for skin breal<down. 
~g. Confirm that device(s) are not placed directly under an individual who is bedridden or 

immobile . 

.Q..E. INCONTINENCE SKIN CARE; 
1. Urinary+ 

a. Preventive7 
i. Perform pericare daily and as neededcessary with each incontinent episode 

using incontinence cleanser followed by application of external containment 
device for incontinent females and moisture barrier cream/ointment. 

ii. Use of an absorptive wicking pad or containment device (i.e., external catheter) 
may be necessary. 

b. Dermatitis/irritated red skin+ 
i. Perform pericare daily and as necessary with each incontinent 

episode using incontinence cleanser followed by initiation of 
external urine containment device and application of moisture 
barrier cream/ointment. 

ii. Containment device may be indicated. 
iii. Limit use of adult diaper unless patient is being 

transported or ambulating Optimal to avoid use of absorptive 
brief/diaper. 

W.Cii. Consult Wound Team if no positive response to treatment in forty eight (48) to 
seventy two (72) hours. 

c. Fungal infection+ 

2. Fecal+ 

i. Assess for presence of fungal infection. Signs and symptoms 
include erythema, maceration and satellite lesions; at times the 
infection presents as solid plaques of moist, read areas. The 
chief symptom is pruritus at the site. 

ii. Apply anti-fungal product7 
iii. Containment device may be indicated. 
iv. Limit use of adult diaper unless patient is being 

transported or ambulating Optimal to avoid use of absorptive 
brief/diaper. 

v. Order a low air loss (Pulsate) mMattress to dry out perinea! 
microclimate. 

vi.iii. Consult Wound Team if no positive response to treatment in forty eight (48) to 
seventy !•No (72) hours. 

a. Preventive+ 
i. Perform pericare daily and as necessary with each incontinent episode using 

incontinence cleanser followed by application of moisture barrier cream/ointment. 
1) For frequent loose stooling and enzymatic drainage, obtain order for use 

of a containment device (i.e.Dignicare Stool Management System l 
pouch) is indicated to protect skin ([see Patient Care aervices 
Procodure:PCS atool Management (Rectal Tldbo]) Dignacare :;>tool 
Management aystem). Procedldre. 

b. Denuded/Excoriated Skin+ 

96



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin af\G-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 12 of15 

i. Perform pericare daily and as necessary with each incontinent episode using 
incontinence cleanser followed by application of moisture barrier 
pastecream/ointment every 1 2 hours. 

h-ii. If skin is not broken, obtain order for use of a containment device i.e.Dignicare 
Stool Management System I i:iouch) is inElicateEI to protect skin (see Patient 
Care Services Procedure: Stool Management [Rectal Tube] Dignacare Steel 
Management System ) 

ii. PreceElure] 
ihiii. If skin is broken, apply thick layer of bBarrier paste 1/8 inch thick twice a day 

(BID) and blot clean and reapply as needed after stooling .. Reapply paste 
every 1 2 hours and PRN stooling 

iihiv. Consult Wound Team if no positive response to treatment in forty eight (481 to 
seventy two (721 hours. 

&.-2. Consultation and referral to Wound Team: 
&.-c. Consult when the condition necessitates: 

i. Chronic pressure injury history longer than two (2) weeks, hospital acquired 
pressure injury, any stage 3, stage 4, suspect deep tissue injury, skin failure or 
hospital acquired injury or any full thickness wounds. 

4.-3. Pressure redistribution surface/Specialty specialty bed selection~ 
a. Assure the appropriate selection of pressure redistribution support surface. All 

mattresses require scheduled turning-arul, positioning, anEI floating to prevent pressure 
injuries.ulcers. 

b. Pressure redistribution standard mattressesmattress are indicated for high risk 
patients, stage 1-3. (isoflex.(lsoflexNIJ'!PT3 and SizewiseH 

c. BlowerLow Air loss Mattress (rental) with a blower, (Pulsate) are indicatedis 
indicated for moisture related issues (fecal and /or moisture). with pressure 
injuriosulcers and high need of pressure re distribution.redistribution. Avoid linens and 
padding on bed. (Pulsate) use airflo•N wicking paEls for incontinence anEI patient 
lifting Elevice as inElicateEI. 

d. Air fluidized pressure redistribution mattress (Evolution with Immersion) is 
indicated for patients after a surgical flap/graph, paraplegic, quadriplegic, spinal 
cord injury, stage 3 and four (4) pressure injuries 

e. Bariatric bed is indicated for patients greater than 350 pounds, difficulty turning 
and positioning. 

f. Rotoprone therapy system (Intensive Care Unit (ICU) only) is designed to place a 
patient with acute pulmonary complications, acute respiratory distress syndrome 
(ARDS) in the prone position. 

d. Bari Air (rental) are indicated for patients greater than 350 pounds, low air loss. 
e. Pressure Relieving: bow Air boss, Immerse and Air Fluidiwd Mattress (rental) are 

indicated for patients '.vith lschemic injury relateEI to vasoconstriction, Eleep tissue 
injury,stago 3 and 4 pressure injuriesulcers, paraplegic and quadriplegic patients spinal 
cord injury patients, and patients afler a surgical flap pressure injury repair. 

a-4. Education: 
a. Educate family and patient on pressure injury prevention and treatment per hospital 

policy.ies; Educational Handeut "How to Help Prevent and Manage Pressure Ulcers" 
and "It's Time Te Tako The Pressure Off!" 

9.5. Call Pprovider: 
a. With discovery of a pressure injury. 
b. Immediately if the patient exhibit signs or symptoms of super infection related to 

pressure injury~or the following symptoms in the wound present. 
c. Wound appears to be deteriorating. 

97



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin a-RG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 13of15 

I ~F. 

~G. 

d. Increased necrosis of tissue in or around the wound~ 
e. Increased drainage or odor~ 
f. Progressive or noted peri-wound erythemia~ 

+.,6. Evaluate for possible referral to the TCMC Center for Wound Care Healing and Hyperbaric 
Medicine upon discharge. 

RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Mattress Selection Guide (Bed Guide) 
2. Patient Care Services Procedure: PureWick Female Urinary Incontinence Management 
3. Patient Care Services Procedure: Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignacare Stool 

Management System Procedure 
4. Pressure Ulcer Wound Dressing Selection (Includes Staging and Products) 
a. Tri City Hospital Pressure Uleer Wound Dressing Seleetion Guide 
a., Tri City Medleal Devise Guide 
6. Medical Devices and Minimal recommendations 
7. VCU Hemodynamic Instability Guide 

REFERENCES: 
1. European Pressure Ulcer Advisory Panel (EPUAP}, National Pressure Injury Advisory 

Panel (NPIAP}, Pan Pacific Pressure Injury Alliance (PPPIA) (2019) Prevention and 
Treatment of Pressure Ulcers/Injuries: Clinical Practice Guidelines 

2. www.npiap.org 2020 National Pressure Injury Advisory Panel 
3. www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov 2019 National Center for Biotechnology Information 
4. Gray, M. and Giuliano, K. (2018). Incontinence-associated dermatitis, characteristics and 

relationship to pressure injury. Journal of Wound, Ostomy and Continence Nursing, 
45(1): 63-67. 

1. Hiser, B., et. al.,. (2009, February). ~/OCN e,\'Riealpraeliee f}llide/irws: preveRlieR aRd 
maRaf}emeRt ofpressldre lllcers, §2 (2). 

2. Baranoski, S. & /\1•ello, E./\. (2004). Wotmd eare esseRlia/s: praeliee priRGiples. Philadelphia, 
PA: bippineett Williams & VVill<ins. 

3. Magnan, M./\. and Malmlebust, J. (2009). Braden seale risk assessments and pressure uleer 
prevention planning. JeurRal efWeuRd, Ostemy aRd CeRliReRee NursiRfJ, ::le (9), 922 934. 4. 

3M Skin Health Program 
4. Wl'l'N.npuap.org\WA'l.npia!!.OFg 2oog2o:w. 

www.ihi.org 2010. 

98



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin ~are/Wound Care Policy 
Page 14of15 Move to Related Document 

Q) 
c ·--Q) 
-c ·-:J 
(!) 

~ ·--·-.c 
cu ,..... 

"' c -
0 ·-E 
cu 
c 
> -c 
0 
E 
Q) 

:c: 
:::> 
() 

> 

(Clinical Findings Which Prevent Patient Turning J 
1. Development of life threatening arrhythmia with sympto

matic response (VFIBNTACH/SVT) This does NOT in
clude asymptomatic AFIB. 

2. Active Fluid Resuscitation: (i.e . no volume going in= no 
systemic blood pressure). 

3. Active Hemorrhaging: 
• Following Cardiac Surgery/Active Tamponade 
• Massive GI bleeding with use of Blakemore tube . 
• Active hemorrhage fol lowing Trauma. 

4. Change in baseline hemodynamic parameters (BP, HR , 
Oxygen Saturation, RR, etc) that does not recover with
in 10 Minutes of position change and is not an expected 
result based on diagnosis. 

Recommended Interventions for the Unstable Patient 
IF PAT JENT IS DEEMED TOO UNSTABLE TO TURN BY ABOVE PARAMETERS: 

1. 

2. 

J . 

A TRIAL TURN SHOULD BE ATIEMPTED AT LEAST EVERY 8 HOURS TO DETERMINE 
ABILITY TO RESUME FREQUENT TURNING AT LEAST EVERY 2 HOURS 

Provide mini-turns 
Weight sh ift patient at least every 30 minutes 
Elevate heels from surface of bed 
Reposition patient's head, arms and legs at least every hour, consider passive ROM 
Consider use of Continuous Lateral Rotation Therapy to prevent development of 
"gravitational equilibrium". Begin: SLOW AND LOW angles of t urning to gauge patient 
response. 
When turning patient: GO SLOW! Provide serial small turns from supine to latera l po
sition to achieve linen changes, hygiene checks, and reposition with wedges and pil
lows. 

UNSTABLE FRACTURES 
Patient's with unstable peMs Injuries LOG ROLL PATIENT ONLY with approval of Attending 
MD. Consider wedges or pillows placed between the legs to maintain proper alignment. 
DO NOT use continuous loateral rotation tberap)· (CLRT) \\ith un~1able spinal fractures: the\e 
patients should be positioned with multiple wedges to maintain proper alignment 
Cervical Fractures I UNSTABLE: Patient must ha,·c appropriately fitted cervical collar in 
place. Ensure security :ind proper positioning of colla r, then log roll patient, and wedge In prop
er alignment. 

99



Patient Care Services Policy Manual 
Skin aAG-Care/Wound Care Policy 
Page 15 of 15 

Strategies to Prevent Hemodynamic Changes in 
Response to Patient Turning 

Consider use of Continuous Lateral Rotation Therapy to prevent de
velopment of "gravitational equilibrium". Begin: SLOW AND LOW an
gles of turning to gauge patient response. 
When turning patient: GO SLOW! Provide serlal small turns from su
pine to lateral position to achieve linen changes, hygiene checks, and 
reposition with wedges and pillows. 
Consider use of vasopressive mediations to manage hypotenslon as 
approved by the Attending MD. 
Monitor patientfor signs of alterations in lung com pllance based up
on osition, res onse, and known injuries or diagnosis. 

TURNING THE UNSTABLE PATIENT: 
. GO SLOW 
. GET HELP: Multiple staff to allow slow turning and man

agement of equipment 
MONITOR RESPONSE 
INDIVIDUALIZE CARE BASED UPON RESULTS OF TRIAL 
TURNS. 

IT'S NEVER OK TO LET A PATIENT JUST ""LAY THERE'" 

S eture Lines 
Have Adequate Stall' Prc:
scnl lo provide tum 
Tum patia1l l O-l .5 degrees 
nnd pause for 1.5 Sets 
watdung monitor 

4 Continue tuming incre
mentally to achieve full 
lateral position for skin 
1:urc 

Slowly Return lo 30 dc
l!fCC tum position using 
wedges and pillows to po
sillon. 
Monitor response to tum 
over the next 10 minutes of 
recovery 

1. lndividualiz.e tuma1g 
schedule based on changes 
in Braden Score nod pa
timl condition 

M1mngc rnvall"e Un es Such ns ECJlifO: 
Have Starr lo Stcurc and Monitor: 

Nole: The PnUeut Pldured Above Had 3 
E0.10 CannuJnUon sties and was still nble 
to bctumed. 

100



Medical Devices 

Secured central and arterial 
lines 

Sequential Devices 

Ted Hose 

Tracheostomy Plates 

EEG electrodes 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Medical Devices and Minimal recommendations 

Minimal Recommended Frequency for 
Repositioning Medical Devices and/or 

Application of Protective Barrier (Includes 
Protective Barrier Available Documentation for performing 

repositioning in Nursing Notes) 
Use stat lock securement Every 12 hours and PRN, reposition 
device to create a barrier and excessive tubing and secure. Do not 
securement for all PICC lines reposition line at insertion site. 

Ensure correct size. Discuss 
with MD regarding other Every 12 hours remove at 0800/2000 and 
possible alternatives to reapply at 1000/2200 
decrease utilization. 

Choose correct size. Discuss 
with MD regarding other Every 12 hours remove at 0800/2000 and 
possible alternatives to reapply at 1000/2200 
decrease utilization 

Fenestrated foam trach 
dressing and reinforce with Every 12 hours skin underneath should be 
gauze underneath and on the assessed thoroughly and dressing changed 
side of trach to absorb more often as needed 
excessive secretions 

For patients that scored >18 (not at risk), EEG 
tech and nurse assess and document skin 
integrity and appropriate fit of the securement 
cap upon initiation of EEG. EEG tech 
reassesses 1-2 hours after initial placement-
for comfort measures. Thereafter, EEG tech 
and nurse assess once per shift and prn 
(twice a day) for med-surg/tele OR every for 4 
hours for ICU at beginning and end of EEG 
shift. Gently raise cap frontal area 

Keep surrounding skin as 
only/forehead, assess skin integrity under 

clean and dry as possible. 
EEG electrodes and tightness of cap. 

EEG tech to apply electrodes 
For patients scoring ~ 18, nurse will gently and securement cap (should 

be able to fit 1 finger under). raise cap frontal area on/forehead and assess 

Ensure cap is not excessively 
under EEG leads, for excessive tightness of 

tight. Do not apply electrodes 
cap every 4 hours and PRN on med-surg/tele 

over damaged skin. 
OR every 2 hours for ICU. If at any time 
patient complains that cap is excessively tight 
or painful EEG electrodes, nurse can loosen 
cap, remove EEG electrodes and notify EEG 
tech immediately. 
Assessments should be conducted more often 
as needed and in response to complaints of 
pain. 

101



Medical Devices and Minimal recommendations 
Page 2 of 3 

Medical Devices Protective Barrier Available 

Duodenal Tubes/Keofeed Ensure not lying on cheek or 
(Temporary Placement) ear when patient in lateral 

position 

Keep surrounding skin as 
Endotracheal Holders clean and dry as possible. 

Avoid excessive removal of 
the adhesive to prevent skin 

tears and injury 

Provide oral suction to keep 
Endotracheal Tubes/Hi-Low mouth as dry as possible. 

suction Cannulas Patients with a recent history 
of chemotherapy are more apt 

to develop injury. 

External Drains (JP drains, 
hemovacs, urinary catheters, Place gauze underneath lines 

etc.) when appropriate. Allow 
tubing slack when securing. 

RT to apply protecta-gel for 
High Flow Cannulas patients scoring 18 or less on 

Braden 

For ICU, bridle NG if in place 
> 12 hours. For Med-
Surg/Tele: Secure so free 
floating in the nares to the 

NG/Nasogastric Tubes extent possible. Ensure not 
lying on cheek or ear when 
patient in lateral position. 

02 Cannulas Apply cushions and/or gauze 
behind ears and/or under 

jawbone as needed 

Apply cushions and/or gauze 
02 Masks with Straps behind ears and/or under 

Minimal Recommended Frequency for 
Repositioning Medical Devices and/or 

Application of Protective Barrier (Includes 
Documentation for performing 
repositioning in Nursing Notes) 

Upon placement, every 72 hours and PRN. 
Use holder unless MD order for nasal bridle. 

Do not secure with tape or steri-strips. 

Every 48 hours in collaboration with RT. 
Remove holder and assess skin. 

Every 6 hours in collaboration with RT, 
reposition the ET tube (right, left or middle). 

Every 12 hours, reinforce with gauze around 
insertion site and between tube and patient's 
skin. Do not reposition tube at the insertion 
site. Assess and change dressing per MD 

order. 

Every 2-4 hours per house-wide protocol in 
collaboration with RT 

Every 2 hours, assess skin and perform nasal 
care. For MS/Tele, and upon placement, every 

72 hours and PRN. Use holder unless MD 
order for nasal bridle. Do not secure with tape 

or steri- strips. 

Every 2-4 hours per house-wide protocol in 
collaboration with RT and change cushions 

every 72 hours and PRN. 

Every 2-4 hours per house-wide protocol in 
collaboration with RT and change cushions 

every 72 hours and PRN. 

102



Medical Devices and Minimal recommendations 
Page 3 of 3 

Medical Devices Protective Barrier Available 

jawbone as needed 

Do not apply over damaged 
skin. Consider taping sensor 

to digits, wrap with warm 
0 2 Sensor Probes blankets to increase blood 

flow. For forehead probes, do 
not apply over damaged skin 
and ensure headband not too 

tight. 
Apply preventative silicone 

Rotoprone Beds dressings on all bony 
prominences and at risk 

areas. Ensure face shield is 
not overly secured 

Ensure bootstrap is not 
AFO Boots applied too tightly 

RT to apply gel pad upon 
BiPAP and CPAP initiation (or similar product). 

Reinforce with gauze between 
Chest Tubes 1) Tube and patient skin and 

2) bottom edge of dressing 
between tube and skin. 

Contact PT wound care 
Compression Wraps regarding questions related to 

removal. 

Minimal Recommended Frequency for 
Repositioning Medical Devices and/or 

Application of Protective Barrier (Includes 
Documentation for performing 

repositioning in Nursing Notes) 

For finger probes every 12 hours (once per 
shift) and rotate site in collaboration with RT. 
For forehead probes every 4 hours and PRN 

and rotate site in collaboration with Rt. 

Consult WOC upon initiation to ensure all 
protective barriers in use. Change preventative 
mepilex dressings every 72 hours. Customary 

rotation of the bed offloads pressure points. 

Every 2 hours, alternate boot from left to right 
foot. 

Every 2-4 hours per house-wide protocol in 
collaboration with RT (document as skin to 

device area padded) 

Every 12 hours, reinforce with gauze around 
insertion site and between tube and skin. Do 
not manipulate chest tube at insertion site. 
Assess and change dressing per MD order 

and policy 

Every 12 hours and more frequently to relieve 
pressure and smooth out creases from wraps 

rolling down from top or bunching at the 
ankle/foot. 

103



I&,\ 
"ii If Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

PATIENT CARE SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 04/09 

REVISION DATE: 06/12 

Department Approval: 
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
Nursinge Leadershipexesutive Counsil Approval: 
Department of Pathology Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Specimen Labeling 

POblCY NUMBeR: IV.RR 

4-04609/21 
~04/22 
0-1#705/22 
081-t708/22 

n/a 
~09/22 
-1-0/.1+ n/a 
10/17 

1. To ensure all specimens collected from patients are properly identified and labeled in the 
presence of the patient. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Specimen: Any sample taken from a patient from which diagnostic tests can be performed. 
2. Gerner log-on ID: issued to employee by Information TechnologyThe six letter cede or tiser 

name consisting of the first three letters of the last name followed by the first three letters of the 
first name. 

3. Specimen Type: The type of specimen that will be analyzed in the laboratory (i.e. blood, urine, 
stool, sweat, saliva, GSF, synovial, amniotic, serous fluid, swab, products of conception (POG), 
tissue, etc). 

4. Specimen Source: The source of the specimen type collected (i.e. urine source (clean catch, 
catheter, random, first morning, supra-pubic aspiration), swab source (nasopharyngeal, wound 
(i.e. right posterior hand), serous fluid source (i.e. peritoneal, pericardia!, pleural), solid tissue 
(i.e. right ovary). 

G. POLICY: 
1. Refer to specific specimen collection procedure prior to obtaining specimen. 
2. Specimens must be labeled with a Gerner generated specimen label 
3. Downtime: 

a. Chart All-or manual labels should only be used during downtime. The label must be 
legible and contain: 
;b.i. Minimum of 2 patient identifiersthe following: 

fh1) Patient's full name 
2) Medical record number 
3) Financial number (FIN) 
&.4) Date of birth 

&.-ii. Time and date of the collectionf 
Ehiii. Source and type of specimen 
iv. Gerner log-on ID of the collector. Use full log-in ID, do not use initials 

&.-b. Complete the appropriate downtime lab request form and place with the front 
pock ofthe specimen bag with the sample. 

;J. Tho typo of label tisod may be one of tho following: 
a. Gerner >Jenoratod label (preforrod) 

104



Patient Care Services 
Specimen Labeling, Nurse Collectibles 
Page 2 of2 

b. Handwritten label 

D. PROCEDURE: 
1. Verify the physician/Allied Health Professional's order for specimen type . 
.:J..,2. Print specimen label and take to the bedside of the patient. 
3. Match the collection label(s) information to the patient identification using two patient identifiers 

prior to collection (Refer to Patient Care Services [PCS] Policy: Identification, Patient). 
&.a. Log into the patients EHR and open Specimen Collection, scan the patients ID 

bracelet and verify correct patient information. 
a. If m1.1ltiple specimens are collectml confirm each label with the 1.1sing two patient 

identifiers. 
b. De not collect specimen if there are any discrepancies between labels and patient 

identity. 
4. Labeling: 

J,a. After the specimen has been collected, place the Cerner generated label on the 
container and scan the label indicating verification of collection. 
i. Patient collected specimen 

&1) Only specimens collected by a patient may be pre-labeled (i.e. voided 
urine, sputum). 

ii. Specimens collected by a healthcare provider 
&.-1) Mmust be labeled after the specimen is collectediBR and in the presence 

of the patient. 
2) Place label on the side of container", never on the lid of a specimen 

collection container 
c. Never on the lid of a specimen collection container. 
~Jever cover the patient's name on a prem<isting specimen label with a 
Gerner label. 

~iii. If needed, modify the date and time of collection before electronically 
signing for the collection. 

iv. Dming downtime or If the scanner is not working Pperform athe Pfinal 
Coheck: 
&.-1) Manually mark the specimen collected in the patients EHR specimen 

collection as collected. 
h2) Perform a final check Recheck that the specimen collected from the 

patient matches the label ID before leaving the patient's room. 
1) "gay 01.1! bo1.1d" the last three digits of the patient's identification 

n1.1mber (Refer to peg Identification, Patient) from each label and 
compare it to the patient's arm band (VVhite beard in the operating 
room). Confirm they match. 

4"5. Place the collected specimen in the designated lab pick up receptacle for your specific unit. 
&.-6. Notify lab for pick-up of the specimen as needed. 

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. PCS Procedure: Specimen Handling 
2. PCS Policy: Identification, Patient 
3. General Laboratory QA Manual-: Procedure for Assuring Correct Specimen Labeling 

F. REFERENCE(S): 
1. South Carolina Hospital Association. (2011 ). The final check, A toolkit for the prevention of 

mislabeled blood specimens Retrieved from http://www.thefinalcheck.org.toolkit. 
2. College of American Pathologists. (20202G-1-e). All common laboratory accreditation checklist 

requirement COM.06100 - Primary Specimen Container Labeling. 

105



t?JTri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

ISSUE DATE: 08/97 SUBJECT: Cash Elective Procedures 

REVISION DATE: 01/99; 05/03; 01/06; 09/10; 06/14 
07/17 

Department Approval: 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-263 

Administrative Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 
04#704/22 
OOJ.1..704/22 
Q.71.1-705/22 
07/17 

Finance & Operations Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To establish payment guidelines for patients with financial means to pay for their elective 

services. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Cash Patient: A patient who is not currently eligible for a federal, state, other government 

program, who is not currently an eligible subscriber/dependent under an insurance plan, or who 
has insurance but is seeking to obtain services that are not a covered benefit under their 
insurance plan. 

C. POLICY: 
1. The Manager of Patient Access staff or designee has the responsibility for providing estimates 

for hospital surgical services. The Patient Assess Department 'Nill notify the Manager of Patient 
/\ccess or designee on the Cash Payment Discount Polisy form that an estimate and finansial 
arrangements are needed. 

2. At the time the Doctor's office/patient calls to schedule a procedure, Scheduling will be 
responsible for notifying the Doctor's office of the hospital's cash policy. 

3. Pre-Admitting will contact the patient to obtain/verify admission information and explain 
the payment amount and policies prior to the service date. Physician and/or patients' 
EjtleStions regarding prises and payment arrangements will be referred to Um Pre admitters of 
the Patient Assess Department. 

1. Registration will inform the patient and/or physician of the payment reEJuirements 
64. If after Pre Admission <>ervices ssreening the patient cannot pay, the Patient Access Manager 

or designee, in consultation with the hospital's Chief Financial Eimcutive Officer designee will 
determine whether the elective procedure should be performed prior to the anticipated service 
date. 

;h5. The patient is required to sign the Voluntary Waiver and Financial Agreement Form and 
payment in full will be requested prior to the patient preoperative appointment. If the patient is 
unable to pay in full, a deposit of 50% of the estimate will be collected. The balance of the 
account must be settled and paid in full no later than threes* months after the final bill is 
received. Exceptions to usual deposit requirements and payment plans require approval from 
the Manager of Patient Access or designee. 

4-1. Registration will inform the patient and/or physician of the payment requirements. If after Pre
Admission Services screening the patient cannot pay, the Patient Access Manager or designee, 
in consultation with the hospital's Chief Executive Officer designee will determine whether the 
elective procedure should be performed prior to the anticipated service date. 

&c6. If a case is canceled, it will be the responsibility of the Manager of Patient Access or designee in 
consultation with the Chief Financial Eimsutive Officer or Vice President Designee to inform the 
physician and Patient Access. 

106



Administrative Policy 
Cash Elective Procedures 8610M263 
Page 2 of 2 

fr.7. Procedures may be scheduled when: 
a. Patient has signed the Voluntary Waiver and Financial Agreement Form. 
b. Deposit requirement has been paid and payment of balance arranged. 
c. Patient has become eligible for a federal, state or other government-funded program, or 

is now currently enrolled as covered person under an insurance plan. 
d. With the approval of the Chief Financial Executive Officer or Vice President designee. 

7,8. Patient Access will be responsible for notifying scheduling that a procedure is canceled so it can 
be removed from the schedule. 

D. FORM!Sl: 
1. Voluntary Waiver and Financial Agreement Form 

107



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
DISTRICT OPERATIONS 

ISSUE DATE: 07/91 

REVISION DATE: 12/91, 11/94, 02/95, 03/96, 04/97, 
07/99, 06/02, 05/03, 07/09, 06/11, 
03/15, 09/17 

Department Approval: 

SUBJECT: Mandatory Reporting Requirements 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-236 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
941'1-705/21 
941'1-708/21 
Q8/17Q6/2210/22 
11/22 

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: Q9F1-7 n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 09/17 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To objectively and systematically monitor and evaluate quality and appropriateness of patient 

care, pursue opportunities to improve patient care, assure patient safety and resolve identified 
quality/risk issues on an ongoing basis. 

'h-2. To identify and prevent injury, actual or potential, harm to a patient or visitor of Tri-City Health 
Care District (TCHD). Incident reporting enhances the quality of patient care and reduces 
healthcare and medical liability. 

;;l.,3. This policy/procedure consists of the following areas for reporting including but not limited to 
(see the Reporting Grid and the National Quality Forum List of Serious Reportable Events -
2011 for additional reporting areas): 
a. Adverse Events 
b. Sentinel Events 
c. Serious Reportable Events 
d. Unusual Occurrences (Title 22) 

&.4. For Violence Against Hospital Personnel - see Administrative Policy: Assault and Battery 
Reporting Process 241. 

B. DEFINITION!Sl: 
1. Adverse Events: A patient safety event that results in harm to a patient including surgical 

events, product or device events, patient protection events, care management events, 
environmental events, and criminal events. 

2. Root Cause Analysis - is a process for identifying basic or causal factor(s) underlying variation 
in performance, including the occurrence or possible occurrence of a sentinel event. 

3. Sentinel Events: Sentinel events are events that signal the need for immediate 
investigation and response. A sentinel event isA- a patient safety event (not primarily related 
to the natural course of the patient's illness or underlying condition) that reaches a patient and 
results in death, permanent harm, or severe temporary harm. Sentinel events are a subcategory 
of adverse events. 

4. Serious Reportable Events (SREs): a set oref compilation of serious, largely preventable, 
and harmful clinical events, designed to help the healthcare field assess, measure, and 
report performance in providing safe care. SREs are developed by the National Quality 
Forum.;:-as- developed ey the National Quality Forum see ~lational Quality Forum List of 
Serious Reportaele Events 2011. 

5. Unusual Occurrences (Title 22): Any occurrence such as epidemic outbreak, poisoning, fire, 
major accident, disaster, other catastrophe or unusual occurrence with threatens the welfare, 

108



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Mandatory Reporting Requirements - 8610-236 
Page2of11 

safety or health of patients, personnel or visitors. 
6. Violence Against Hospital Personnel: acts of assault or battery against on-duty hospital 

personnel. 

C. POLICY: 
1. It is the District's policy to investigate any sentinel event, unusual occurrence, adverse event, or 

serious reportable even from an interdisciplinary perspective and take action to reduce the risk 
of recurrence. 
a. Each sentinel event, adverse event, and serious reportable events will be reviewed to 

determine if a more intensively assessment review is requiredetl-through the use of 
the Root Cause Analysis (RCA) process. 

b. Every effort will be made to include the physicians and staff involved in the incident in 
the RCA process. 

c. A report of each RCA shall be communicated to the Quality Assurance/Performance 
Improvement (QA/Pl) and !Patient Safety Committee (QAl.P.l/PS) of the Medical Staff, for 
periodic reporting to the Board of Directors through Professional Affairs Committee 
(PAC) anEf Boars of Directors meeting. 

d. RCAs shall not be reported to the doint Commission, nor to any external agency or 
organization, except upon specific, written advice of legal counsel. The investigation and 
reporting process, including development of the RCA, is intended to remain within the 
bounds of Attorney-Client and Attorney Work Product privileges. 

D. REPORTING TIMEFRAMES: 
1. The first person to identify an incident will notify his/her supervisor as soon as it is safe to do so. 

a. The supervisor must assure that the incident is reported to the Director of Risk 
Management Department, Chief Nurse Executive (CNE)/ Chief of Patient Care 
Services (CPCS), and the Director of Regulatory Compliance. The CNE/CPCS will 
assure that the event is then reported to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), ans Chief 
Operating Officer (COO) prior to reporting to regulatory agencies. 

2. The patient's primary and/or involved physician(s) is notified. 
3. Based on the incident, a decision will be made to report to the appropriate regulatory agency 

within the required timeframe. 

E. COMMUNICATION: 
1. Reported incidents are communicated to the appropriate medical staff Quality Review 

committees and the Board of Directors. 
2. Incidents may be reported in an expedited manner by Administration via verbal or electronic 

methods. 

F. ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Reporting Grid 
2. ~Jational Quality Forum List of gerious Reportable Events 2011 

G. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Administrative Policy: Assault and Battery Reporting Process 241 

H. REFERENCES: 
1. National Quality Forum. (2020). Serious reportable events. Retrieved 

from http://www.gualityforum.org/topics/sres/serious reportable events.aspx 
2. California Health and Safety Codes https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/ 

unu 
3. California Title 22; §72541 Unusual Occurrences, 
M. CA Health & Safety Code §§ 1279.1, 1279.2, 1279.3, and 1280.4 
2'-5. California Code of Evidence Section 1157 

109



Administrative Policy- District Operations 
Mandatory Reporting Requirements -8610-236 
Page3of11 

3,,6. California Hospital Association Consent Manual~ 
4-7. California Title 17 Code of Regulation $2500 • Reporting to the Local Health 

AuthorityTitle 17 
&.-8. Title 22, Section 70736 

110



A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
ol

ic
y 

-
D

is
tr

ic
t 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

M
an

da
to

ry
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 -

86
10

-2
36

 
P

ag
e 

4
o

f1
1

 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 G

ri
d

 

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
 

S
T

A
T

U
T

E
 

A
dv

er
se

 D
ru

g 
R

ea
ct

io
n 

(A
D

R
) 

IC
H

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
C

lin
ic

al
 

S
af

et
y 

D
at

a 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
D

ef
in

iti
on

s 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 f
o

r 
E

xp
ed

ite
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 

A
dv

er
se

 E
ve

nt
 (

A
E

) 
IC

H
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r 

C
lin

ic
al

 
S

af
et

y 
D

at
a 

M
an

ag
em

en
t:

 
D

ef
in

iti
on

s 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 f
or

 
E

xp
ed

ite
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 

A
ni

m
al

 B
ite

s 

A
ss

au
lt 

&
 B

at
te

ry
 to

 O
n-

D
ut

y 
A

.B
. 

#5
08

 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
P

er
so

nn
el

 
C

A
 P

en
al

 C
od

e 
# 

24
0,

24
2 

A
ss

au
lt 

V
ic

tim
s 

C
A

 P
en

al
 C

od
e 

11
16

0/
11

16
1 

D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e 
C

C
R

 T
itl

e 
11

, 
S

ec
tio

n 
92

0 

C
an

ce
r/

R
ep

or
ta

bl
e 

N
eo

pl
as

m
s 

T
itl

e 
17

, 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 C
od

e 
o

f 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, 

S
ec

tio
n 

25
93

 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
o

f 
B

irt
h 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
C

od
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
10

1 

(S
us

pe
ct

ed
) 

C
hi

ld
 A

bu
se

 
P

en
al

 C
od

e:
 1

11
64

-1
11

7 
4.

3 

B
Y

 W
H

O
M

 

A
tt

en
di

ng
 

P
hy

si
ci

an
/ln

ve
st

ig
at

lo
na

l 
D

ru
g 

P
ha

rm
ac

is
ts

/P
ri

nc
ip

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 o
f C

lin
ic

al
 T

ri
al

/ 
S

ub
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 o
f C

lin
ic

al
 

T
ria

l/C
lin

ic
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

A
tt

en
di

ng
 P

hy
si

ci
an

/P
rin

ci
pa

l 
In

ve
st

ig
at

or
 o

f C
lin

ic
al

 T
ri

al
/ S

ub
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 o
f C

lin
ic

al
 

T
ria

l/C
lin

ic
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

B
us

in
es

s 
O

ff
ic

e 

S
ec

ur
ity

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

B
us

in
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

 R
eg

is
tr

ar
s,

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t,

 
N

ur
si

ng
 S

ta
ff,

 S
ec

ur
ity

, 
R

is
k 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
nc

ol
og

y 
D

at
a 

R
eg

is
tr

ar
 

B
irt

h 
C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
C

le
rk

 
M

ed
ic

al
 R

ec
or

ds
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
H

ea
lth

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

, 
C

hi
ld

 C
ar

e 
C

us
to

di
an

 

T
C

M
C

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

O
IN

T
 O

R
 

T
O

 W
H

O
M

 
W

H
E

N
/H

O
W

 
P

R
O

T
O

C
O

L
 

C
lin

ic
al

 T
ria

l 
S

ite
/P

rin
ci

pa
l 

A
ll 

A
D

R
s 

m
us

t 
be

 
P

ol
ic

y:
 C

lin
ic

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 o
f C

lin
ic

al
 T

ria
l, 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

in
 t

he
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
S

ub
 I

nv
es

tig
at

or
 o

f 
C

lin
ic

al
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 m
ed

ic
al

 a
nd

 
S

ub
je

ct
 S

af
et

y 
&

 
T

ria
l/C

lin
ic

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

re
se

ar
ch

 r
ec

or
d.

 
A

E
/S

A
E

/ln
ci

de
nt

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
P

ol
ic

y;
 

P
ol

ic
y 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

#0
10

 

C
lin

ic
al

 T
ria

l 
S

ite
/P

rin
ci

pa
l 

A
es

 a
re

 t
o

 b
e 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
 t

he
 

P
ol

ic
y:

 C
lin

ic
al

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

or
 o

f C
lin

ic
al

 T
ria

l, 
ca

se
 r

ep
or

t 
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
S

u
b

 I
nv

es
tig

at
or

 o
f C

lin
ic

al
 

o
f t

he
 m

ed
ic

al
 r

ec
or

ds
. 

S
ub

je
ct

 S
af

et
y 

&
 

T
ria

l/C
lin

ic
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

sp
ec

ia
l 

A
E

/S
A

E
/ln

ci
de

nt
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 
re

po
rt

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 f
or

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

P
ol

ic
y;

 
A

E
s 

at
 T

C
M

C
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

nu
m

be
r 

#0
10

 

H
um

an
e 

S
oc

ie
ty

 
P

ho
ne

 C
al

l 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
D

ep
t. 

Lo
ca

l L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
P

ho
ne

 C
al

l w
ith

in
 7

2 
ho

ur
s 

o
f 

A
dm

in
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
&

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
. 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 I

nj
ur

y 
#2

41
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(P

&
R

S
),

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

R
ep

or
t 

H
ea

lth
, 

D
ep

t. 
o

f 
H

ea
lth

 

Lo
ca

l L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
P

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
A

dm
in

. 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
w

rit
te

n 
re

po
rt

 -
2 

w
or

ki
ng

 
#3

10
 

da
ys

 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

W
ith

in
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s 
o

f 
O

nc
ol

og
y 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 (
C

D
P

H
) 

di
ag

no
si

s 
R

eg
is

tr
y/

C
N

E
 

C
an

ce
r 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

S
ec

tio
n 

S
an

 D
ie

go
 C

ou
nt

y 
R

eg
is

tr
ar

 
W

ith
in

 1
0

 d
ay

s 
o

f 
bi

rt
h 

M
ed

ic
al

 R
ec

or
ds

 
D

ep
t. 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

o
r 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
y 

P
ho

ne
-A

nd
 

A
dm

in
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

Lo
ca

l L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
W

ith
in

 3
6 

H
ou

rs
 in

 W
ri

tin
g 

#3
08

 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

 
D

ep
t. 

#3
08

 

11
1



A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Po

lic
y 

-
D

is
tri

ct
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
M

an
da

to
ry

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 -
86

10
-2

36
 

P
ag

e5
o

f1
1 

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
 

S
T

A
T

U
T

E
 

C
hr

om
os

om
al

 D
ef

ec
ts

 in
 F

et
us

 
T

itl
e

 1
7 

or
 I

nf
an

t 
C

C
R

 6
5

3
2

 

(I
lle

g
a

l)
 D

ru
g 

U
se

 -
n

o
n

 
C

A
 P

e
n

a
l 

C
o

d
e

, 
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
1

-
em

pl
oy

ee
 

1
6

0
 

(S
u

sp
e

ct
e

d
) 

E
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 

P
en

al
 C

od
e:

 S
e

ct
io

n
 3

6
8

 
D

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t A

d
u

lt
 A

b
u

se
 

W
e

lfa
re

 &
 I

ns
tit

ut
io

n 
C

o
d

e
 

#
1

5
6

0
0

--
1

5
6

3
7

 

In
fe

ct
io

us
 D

is
ea

se
s 

T
itl

e
 1

7,
 C

h
a

p
te

r 
4,

 C
C

R
 2

5
0

0
 

(R
e

p
o

rt
a

b
le

•)
 

H
e

a
lth

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
d

e
 3

1
2

5
 

(S
e

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

T
a

b
le

) 

La
ps

es
 in

 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
d

e
 3

1
2

5
 

C
on

sc
io

us
ne

ss
/S

ei
zu

re
s 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

10
 T

itl
e

 1
7,

 C
C

R
 

2
5

0
0

 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

ea
lth

 h
o

ld
s 

b
e

yo
n

d
 2

4
 

T
itl

e 
2

2
 S

e
ct

io
n

 7
0

7
3

7
, 

7
1

5
3

5
 

h
o

u
rs

 (
E

D
) 

(U
n

u
su

a
l 

O
cc

ur
re

nc
e)

 

M
is

si
ng

 P
at

ie
nt

 

M
u

lti
p

le
 b

e
e

 s
tin

g
s 

(U
n

u
su

a
l 

T
itl

e 
2

2
 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
) 

C
C

R
 7

0
7

3
7

 

N
e

e
d

le
 s

tic
k 

In
ju

ry
/B

S
 E

xp
o

su
re

 
F

e
d

 a
n

d
 C

al
 O

S
H

A
 R

ec
. 

B
lo

o
d

 b
o

rn
e

 P
at

h.
 

N
eu

ra
l 

Tu
be

 D
ef

ec
ts

 in
 a

 F
et

us
 

T
itl

e 
17

, 
C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
R

e
g

u
la

tio
n

s,
 S

e
ct

io
n

 6
53

1 

B
Y

 W
H

O
M

 

La
b 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
r 

ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
m

ak
in

g 
di

ag
no

si
s 

S
e

cu
ri

ty
 D

ep
t.

 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
H

ea
lth

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

, 
C

ar
e 

C
us

to
di

an
 

N
ur

si
ng

 S
ta

ff
 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
, 

L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 -

M
ic

ro
b

io
lo

g
y 

&
 

C
h

e
m

is
tr

y 

P
hy

si
ci

an
 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

S
ec

ur
ity

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

N
ur

si
ng

 
S

ta
ff

 

S
up

er
vi

so
r 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

R
e

co
rd

s 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

T
C

M
C

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

O
IN

T
 O

R
 

T
O

 W
H

O
M

 
W

H
E

N
/H

O
W

 
P

R
O

T
O

C
O

L
 

C
D

P
H

 
W

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f 

di
ag

no
si

s 
W

o
m

en
's

&
 

us
in

g 
fo

rm
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
C

D
P

H
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

O
ce

an
si

de
 P

ol
ic

e 
Te

le
ph

on
e 

an
d 

w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt
 

A
d

m
in

. 
P

o
lic

y 
#

2
3

6
 

O
cc

ur
rin

g 
in

 a
 L

 TC
 F

ac
ili

ty
 

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
-

A
dm

in
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

re
po

rt
 t

o 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 C
ar

e 
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 W
ri

tt
e

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

-
#

3
0

9
 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

 o
r 

Lo
ca

l 
La

w
 

W
ith

in
 2

 W
o

rk
in

g
 D

a
ys

 
S

oc
ia

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t; 
A

ll 
ot

he
rs

 t
o 

D
e

p
t.

 #
3

0
9

 
C

o
u

n
ty

 A
d

u
lt

 P
ro

te
ct

iv
e

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 

P
ho

ne
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 to

 P
ub

lic
 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lth

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lth
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n 
#

1
1

0
 

di
se

as
e.

 F
ax

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lth

 u
si

n
g

 P
M

 1
1

0
. 

Lo
ca

l 
H

e
a

lth
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h

o
 

F
ax

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 P

ub
lic

 
P

hy
si

ci
an

 
re

p
o

rt
s 

to
 D

M
V

 
H

e
a

lth
 u

si
n

g
 P

M
 1

10
. 

P
ro

to
co

l 

C
D

P
H

 
P

ho
ne

 a
ft

er
 2

4 
ho

ur
 m

ar
k 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 b

y 
le

tt
e

r 
to

 C
D

P
H

 
D

ep
t.

, 
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lth

 U
ni

t 

Lo
ca

l 
La

w
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 w

ith
in

 
A

d
m

in
. 

P
o

lic
y 

A
ge

nc
ie

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 t
im

e 
fr

am
e 

(g
iv

en
 

#
3

0
5

 
si

tu
at

io
n)

 

C
o

u
n

ty
 o

f S
a

n
 D

ie
g

o
, 

C
D

P
H

 
P

ho
ne

 c
al

l 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 to

 
A

dm
in

. 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

D
P

H
 w

ri
tt

en
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
#

2
2

8
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 H
ea

lth
 o

r 
E

D
 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 S

up
er

vi
so

r 
E

m
p

lo
ye

e
 H

ea
lth

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

R
ep

or
t. 

S
er

vi
ce

s/
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 H
ea

lth
 u

se
s 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
 

se
p

ar
at

e 
in

ju
ry

 lo
g 

fo
r 

ne
ed

le
 

st
ic

ks
. 

C
D

P
H

 
W

ith
in

 3
0

 d
a

ys
 o

f i
ni

tia
l 

W
o

m
en

's
&

 
A

lp
h

a
-F

e
to

 P
ro

te
in

 
di

ag
no

si
s 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

11
2



A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
ol

ic
y 

-
D

is
tr

ic
t 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

M
an

da
to

ry
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 -

86
10

w
23

6 
P

a
g

e
6

o
f1

1
 

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
 

S
T

A
T

U
T

E
 

N
ew

bo
rn

 A
b

an
d

o
n

m
en

t 
S

B
 1

3
6

8
 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ur
re

nd
er

 
(a

ba
nd

on
m

en
t 

of
 n

ew
bo

rn
s 

up
 

to
 7

2 
h

o
u

rs
 o

ld
) 

N
ew

bo
rn

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 T

es
t 

re
fu

sa
l 

(P
K

U
) 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
In

ju
ri

es
/Il

ln
es

se
s 

L
a

b
o

r 
C

o
d

e
 3

2
0

9
.3

 C
C

R
 T

itl
e

 
8

S
-1

4
0

0
3

 

O
ut

br
ea

ks
 o

r 
un

du
e 

pr
ev

al
en

ce
 

T
itl

e
 1

7
, 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

4 
of

 in
fe

ct
io

us
 o

r 
pa

ra
si

tic
 d

is
or

de
r 

C
C

R
 2

5
0

2
 

P
a

tie
n

t 
D

e
a

th
 

T
itl

e
 2

2
 

7
2

5
4

9
 

H
S

C
 1

0
2

5
0

 

P
at

ie
nt

 d
ea

th
 d

ue
 to

 u
nu

su
al

 
T

itl
e

 2
2

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 i
.e

. 
su

ic
id

e 
S

e
ct

io
n

 7
0

7
3

7
, 

7
1

5
3

5
 

P
at

ie
nt

 d
ea

th
 w

hi
le

 p
at

ie
nt

 in
 

4
2

 C
F

R
 

se
cl

us
io

n 
or

 r
es

tr
ai

nt
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

82
.1

3(
1)

(1
) 

fo
r 

be
ha

vi
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
w

he
th

er
 

or
 n

ot
 R

/S
 w

as
 t

he
 c

au
se

 o
f 

d
e

a
th

 
T

itl
e

 2
2

, 
C

C
R

 
S

e
ct

io
n

 7
0

7
3

7
(a

) 
S

e
ct

io
n

 7
1

5
3

5
 

B
Y

 W
H

O
M

 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 

W
om

en
's

 &
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

P
hy

si
ci

an
 

A
ny

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

(p
h

ys
ic

ia
n

s,
 P

A
, 

R
N

, 
n

u
rs

e
 

m
id

w
ife

, 
or

 In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
 

P
ra

ct
iti

o
n

e
r)

 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

; 
P

hy
si

ci
an

 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
C

M
C

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

O
IN

T
 O

R
 

T
O

 W
H

O
M

 
W

H
E

N
/H

O
W

 
P

R
O

T
O

C
O

L
 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

; 
no

 l
at

er
 

A
dm

in
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

th
a

n
 4

8
 h

o
u

rs
 

#
3

8
0

 

C
D

P
H

 
P

rio
r 

to
 'i

nf
an

t 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

W
o

m
en

's
&

 
G

en
et

ic
 D

is
ea

se
 B

ra
nc

h 
F

ill
 o

u
t 

fo
rm

 #
N

B
S

-P
R

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

E
m

p
lo

ye
r 

&
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

W
ri

tt
e

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 w
ith

in
 5

 
P

hy
si

ci
an

 
In

su
re

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

P
ro

to
co

l 
E

m
p

lo
ye

e
 H

e
a

lth
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

L
o

ca
l 

H
e

a
lth

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

ho
ne

, 
fa

x 
or

 m
ai

l 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
on

tr
ol

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
#

IC
.1

2
 

u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 C

M
R

 fo
rm

 f
o

u
n

d
 i

n
 

th
e

 I
C

 M
a

n
u

a
l. 

M
ed

ic
al

 E
xa

m
in

er
 

P
ho

ne
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

P
C

S
 P

o
lic

y 
IV

.Z
, 

C
D

P
H

 a
t 

a 
tim

e 
an

d 
m

an
ne

r 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 fo

rm
 8

7
2

0
-3

7
 

P
C

S
 P

ro
ce

d
u

re
 

as
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

, 
P

t. 
R

ep
s 

-
T

C
M

C
 

Lo
ca

l 
la

w
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

Lo
ca

l 
la

w
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

A
d

m
in

 P
o

lic
y 

of
fic

er
, 

m
ed

ic
al

 e
xa

m
in

er
 a

nd
 

co
nt

ac
te

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 m

ed
ic

al
 

#
2

2
8

 
C

D
P

H
. 

ex
am

in
er

. 
C

D
P

H
 a

s 
so

on
 a

s 
P

C
S

 P
o

lic
y 

IV
.Z

, 
C

M
S

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

C
D

P
H

 
pr

ac
tic

al
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 i
n 

w
rit

in
g.

 
P

C
S

 P
ro

ce
d

u
re

 
In

ci
d

e
n

t 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 f

ile
 b

y 
fa

ci
lit

y 
fo

r 
1 

ye
ar

. 

C
en

te
rs

 f
or

 M
ed

ic
ar

e 
an

d 
A

s 
so

on
 a

s 
aw

ar
e.

 
A

d
m

in
 P

o
lic

y 
M

e
d

ic
a

id
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(C

M
S

) 
B

y 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

: 
#

2
2

8
 

C
D

P
H

 
(4

1
5

) 
7

4
4

-3
7

2
6

 
P

C
S

 P
o

lic
y 

IV
.Z

, 
or

 fa
x 

P
C

S
 P

ro
ce

d
u

re
 

(4
1

5
) 

7
4

4
-2

6
9

2
 

11
3



A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
P

ol
ic

y 
-

D
is

tr
ic

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

M
an

da
to

ry
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 -

86
10

-2
36

 
P

ag
e 

7 
of

 1
1 

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
 

S
T

A
T

U
T

E
 

P
a

tie
n

t 
de

a
th

 w
hi

le
 in

 m
ed

ic
al

 
T

itl
e

 2
2

, C
C

R
, 

su
rg

ic
al

 r
e

st
ra

in
t 

S
ec

tio
n 

7
0

7
3

7
(a

) 
S

ec
tio

n 
7

1
5

3
5

 

P
a

tie
n

t 
In

ju
ry

/D
ea

th
 d

u
e

 to
 

S
a

fe
 M

e
d

ic
a

l D
e

vi
ce

 A
ct

 
D

e
vi

ce
 M

al
fu

nc
tio

n 
2

1
C

F
R

8
0

3 

P
at

ie
n

t T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

V
io

la
tio

n 
(C

O
B

R
A

) 
H

ea
lth

 a
n

d 
S

a
fe

ty
 

C
o

d
e

 1
31

7 
th

ro
u

gh
 1

3
1

7
.9

9 
T

itl
e 

4
2

 U
.S

.C
. 

S
ec

tio
n 

1
3

9
 d

d 

P
e

st
ic

id
e

 P
oi

so
ni

n
g 

T
itl

e 
8 

C
C

R
 1

4
0

0
3

 

P
K

U
 S

p
e

ci
m

e
n

 n
o

t o
b

ta
in

e
d

 

R
h

e
su

s 
H

e
m

o
ly

tic
 (

R
H

) 
D

is
e

a
se

 
T

itl
e

 1
7

 
-

N
e

w
b

or
n 

C
C

R
 S

e
ct

io
n

 6
5

1
0

 
T

itl
e 

22
 

C
C

R
 7

0
7

3
7

 

R
ey

e 
S

yn
d

ro
m

e
 

H
S

C
 S

e
ct

io
n

 3
0

4.
5 

B
Y

 W
H

O
M

 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

R
eg

u
la

to
ry

 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 

H
e

a
lth

 P
ra

ct
iti

o
n

e
r 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

R
is

k 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r o

f 
R

eg
ul

a
to

ry
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

e
r 

U
ni

t 
R

e
p

re
se

n
ta

tiv
e

 w
h

e
re

 in
fa

n
t 

w
as

 a
 p

a
tie

n
t 

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re
 P

ra
ct

iti
o

n
e

r 

A
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
 

T
C

M
C

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

O
IN

T
 O

R
 

T
O

 W
H

O
M

 
W

H
E

N
/H

O
W

 
P

R
O

T
O

C
O

L
 

C
D

P
H

 
A

s 
so

o
n

 a
s 

re
a

so
n

a
bl

y 
P

C
S

 P
ol

ic
y 

IV
.Q

 
p

ra
ct

ic
al

, 
b

y 
p

h
o

n
e

: 
(8

00
) 

8
2

4
-0

6
1

3
 

F
ol

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
le

tt
e

r:
 

7
5

7
5

 M
et

ro
p

ol
ita

n 
D

ri
ve

 S
ui

te
 

1
0

4
 

S
a

n
 D

ie
go

, C
A

 9
2

1
0

8
 

-
M

F
R

-S
e

ri
o

u
s 

In
ju

ry
 

W
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

vi
a 

fo
rm

 
A

d
m

in
. 

P
ol

ic
y 

F
D

A
&

M
F

R
-D

e
a

th
 o

r 
F

D
A

 if
 

FD
A

3
50

0A
 a

nd
 p

ho
ne

 3
01

-7
96

-
#

2
01

 
M

F
R

 is
 u

n
kn

o
w

n
 

66
70

. E
-

m
ai

l: 
M

D
R

P
O

LI
C

Y
@

FD
A

.H
H

S
.G

 
o

v 
A

nn
ua

l S
um

m
ar

y 
o

f M
ed

ic
al

 
D

ev
ic

e 
R

el
a

te
d 

D
ea

th
 a

nd
 

S
er

io
us

 In
ju

ry
 R

ep
or

t t
o 

FD
A

 o
n 

Fo
rm

 F
D

A
 3

41
9 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 1

" 
o

f 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 8
03

.3
3 

C
D

P
H

 
7 

d
a

ys
 

A
d

m
in

. 
P

o
lic

ie
s 

H
C

F
A

 
72

 h
ou

rs
 

2
2

8
, 

50
6;

 
P

C
S

 P
o

lic
y 

V
l.D

 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

M
gr

. 
P

h
o

n
e 

ca
ll 

w
ith

in
 2

4
 h

ou
rs

 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 
Lo

ca
l 

H
e

a
lth

 O
ff

ic
er

 C
o.

 
D

ep
t.

 
D

e
pt

. 
o

f A
g

ric
. 

D
e

pu
ty

 
A

g
ri

cu
lt

ur
al

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
r 

C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t o
f 

W
h

e
n

 p
a

tie
n

t 
tr

an
sf

e
rr

ed
, 

W
o

m
e

n
's

&
 

P
ub

lic
 H

e
a

lth
 

e
xp

ir
es

 F
ill

 o
u

t f
o

rm
 #

 (
B

S
 -

C
hi

ld
re

n
's

 
G

e
n

e
tic

 D
is

e
a

se
 B

ra
nc

h 
N

o 
-

90
) 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

C
D

P
H

 -
W

o
m

e
n

's
 &

 
U

se
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

fo
rm

 "
A

 c
a

se
 

W
o

m
e

n
's

 &
 

C
hi

ld
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

O
ff

ic
e

 
re

p
o

rt
 o

f 
R

H
 D

is
e

a
se

 o
f 

C
hi

ld
re

n
's

 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n

 w
h

o
 m

a
d

e
 

N
e

w
b

o
rn

" 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
d

ia
g

n
o

si
s 

C
D

P
H

 
W

ith
in

 7
 d

a
ys

 o
f 

d
ia

g
no

si
s 

P
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 
u

si
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 f
or

m
 "

C
B

C
 

P
ro

to
co

l 
R

e
ye

 S
yn

d
ro

m
e 

...
 " 

11
4



A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
o

li
c
y
-

D
is

tr
ic

t O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

M
an

da
to

ry
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 -

86
10

-2
36

 
P

a
g

e
8

o
f1

1
 

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
 

S
T

A
T

U
T

E
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s 

A
d

ve
rs

e
 E

ve
n

t 
(S

A
E

) 
a

s 
IC

H
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 f

o
r 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 C

lin
ic

a
l 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 
S

a
fe

ty
 D

a
ta

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t:

 
D

e
fin

iti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

fo
r 

E
xp

e
d

it
e

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

T
h

re
a

t 
to

 k
ill

 
T

a
ra

so
ff

 

U
n

u
su

a
l o

cc
u

rr
e

n
ce

s 
th

a
t 

T
itl

e
 2

2
 

th
re

a
te

n
 t

h
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f t
h

e
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 7

0
7

3
7

, 
7

1
5

3
5

 
pa

tie
nt

, 
st

a
ff

 o
r 

vi
si

to
rs

 (
i.e

.,
 

a
lle

g
a

tio
n

 o
f s

ta
ff

 s
e

xu
a

l 
m

is
co

n
d

u
ct

) 

A
d

ve
rs

e
 e

ff
e

ct
 o

f 
a 

va
cc

in
e

 
N

a
tio

n
a

l 
C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 V
a

cc
in

e
 

In
ju

ry
 A

ct
 

B
Y

 W
H

O
M

 

A
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
/P

ri
n

ci
p

a
l 

In
ve

st
ig

a
to

r 
o

f 
C

lin
ic

a
l T

ri
a

l/ 
S

u
b

 
In

ve
st

ig
a

to
r 

o
f 

C
lin

ic
al

 T
ri

a
l 

P
sy

ch
o

th
e

ra
p

is
U

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re
 

P
ra

ct
iti

o
n

e
r 

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re
 P

ra
ct

iti
o

n
e

r 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

 
D

ir
e

ct
o

r o
f 

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 

H
e

a
lth

 C
ar

e 
P

ro
vi

d
e

r 

T
C

M
C

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

O
IN

T
 O

R
 

T
O

 W
H

O
M

 
W

H
E

N
/H

O
W

 
P

R
O

T
O

C
O

L
 

C
lin

ic
a

l T
ri

a
l 

S
ite

/P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 I
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 t
o

 
P

o
lic

y:
 C

lin
ic

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

a
to

r/
S

u
b

 
A

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 P
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 a
n

d
 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 
In

ve
st

ig
a

to
r/

C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

lin
ic

a
l T

ri
a

l 
S

it
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l. 

S
u

b
je

ct
 S

a
fe

ty
 &

 
R

e
se

a
rc

h
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
A

ll 
S

A
E

s 
m

u
st

 b
e 

A
E

/S
A

E
/l

n
ci

d
e

n
t 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

te
d

 in
 t

h
e

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
ol

ic
y;

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 
P

o
lic

y 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
re

se
a

rc
h

 r
e

co
rd

. 
#

0
1

0
 

In
te

n
d

e
d

 v
ic

tim
 a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 

la
w

 
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 b
y 

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
 

B
e

h
a

vi
o

ra
l 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lth
 U

ni
t,

 
S

o
ci

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

p
t.

 

C
D

P
H

 
A

s 
so

o
n

 a
s 

re
a

so
n

a
b

ly
 

A
d

m
in

. 
P

o
lic

y 
L

o
ca

l 
la

w
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t a

s 
p

ra
ct

ic
a

l -
co

n
fir

m
e

d
 in

 
#

2
2

8
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
w

ri
tin

g
 

O
cc

u
rr

e
n

ce
 o

n
 f

ile
 b

y 
fa

ci
lit

y 
fo

r 
1 

ye
a

r 

V
A

E
R

S
 H

o
tli

n
e

 8
0

0
-8

2
2

-
A

ft
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

 b
y 

In
fe

ct
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
7

9
6

7
 

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
 

11
5



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Mandatory Reporting Requirements - 8610~236 
Page9of11 

National Quality Forum 
List of Serious Reportable Events - 2011 

1. SURGICAL OR INVASIVE PROCEDURE EVENTS 

1 A. Surgery or other invasive procedure performed on the wrong site (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

18. Surgery or other invasive procedure performed on the wrong patient (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

1 C. Wrong surgical or other invasive procedure performed on a patient (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

1 D. Unintended retention of a foreign object in a patient after surgery or other invasive procedure 
(updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

1 E. lntraoperative or immediately postoperative/post procedure death in an ASA Class 1 patient 
(updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices 

2. PRODUCT OR DEVICE EVENTS 

2A. Patient death or injury associated with the use of contaminated drugs, devices, or biologics 
provided by the healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

28. Patient death or injury associated with the use or function of a device in patient care, in which 
the device is used or functions other than as intended (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

2C. Patient death or injury associated with intravascular air embolism that occurs while being cared 
for in a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

3. PATIENT PROTECTION EVENTS 

3A. Discharge or release of a patient/resident of any age, who is unable to make decisions, to other 
than an authorized person (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

38. Patient death or injury associated with patient elopement (disappearance) (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

3C. Patient suicide, attempted suicide, or self-harm that results in injury, while being cared for in a 
healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

116



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Mandatory Reporting Requirements - 8610-236 
Page 10of11 

4. CARE MANAGEMENT EVENTS 

4A. Patient death or injury associated with a medication error (e.g., errors involving the wrong drug, 
wrong dose, wrong patient, wrong time, wrong rate, wrong preparation, or wrong route of 
administration) (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

48. Patient death or injury associated with unsafe administration of blood products (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

4C. Maternal death or injury associated with labor or delivery in a low-risk pregnancy while being 
cared for in a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers 

40. Death or injury of a neonate associated with labor or delivery in a low-risk pregnancy (new) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers 

4E. Patient death or injury associated with a fall while being cared for in a healthcare setting 
(updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

4F. Any Stage 3, Stage 4, and unstageable pressure ulcers acquired after admission/presentation to 
a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

4G. Artificial insemination with the wrong donor sperm or wrong egg (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices 

4H. Patient death or injury resulting from the irretrievable loss of an irreplaceable biological 
specimen (new) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

41. Patient death or injury resulting from failure to follow up or communicate laboratory, pathology, 
or radiology test results (new) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

5. ENVIRONMENTAL EVENTS 

5A. Patient or staff death or injury associated with an electric shock in the course of a patient care 
process in a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

58. Any incident in which systems designated for oxygen or other gas to be delivered to a patient 
contains no gas, the wrong gas, or are contaminated by toxic substances (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

5C. Patient or staff death or injury associated with a burn incurred from any source in the course of a 
patient care process in a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

50. Patient death or injury associated with the use of physical restraints or bedrails while being 

117



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Mandatory Reporting Requirements - 8610~236 
Page 11 of11 

cared for in a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, Jong-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

6. RADIOLOGIC EVENTS 

GA. Death or injury of a patient or staff associated with the introduction of a metallic object into the 
MRI area (new) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices 

7. POTENTIAL CRIMINAL EVENTS 

7 A. Any instance of care ordered by or provided by someone impersonating a physician, nurse, 
pharmacist, or other licensed healthcare provider (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, Jong-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

78. Abduction of a patient/resident of any age (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

7C. Sexual abuse/assault on a patient or staff member within or on the grounds of a healthcare 
setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

7D. Death or injury of a patient or staff member resulting from a physical assault (i.e., battery) that 
occurs within or on the grounds of a healthcare setting (updated) 
Applicable in: hospitals, outpatient/office-based surgery centers, ambulatory practice settings/office-based 
practices, long-term care/skilled nursing facilities 

118



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 
DISTRICT OPERATIONS 

ISSUE DATE: 1996 

REVISION DATE: 06/00, 05/03, 06/06, 08/06, 05/09, 
05/12 

Administrative Content ExpertDepartment Appro'.'al: 

SUBJECT: Purchase of Budgeted Capital 
Assets 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-252 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
02tt707/22 
02tt708/22 

n/a Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Finanse & Operations Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

nla 
11/22 

n/a 
Q5/17 
05/17 

1. To establish the capital thresholds and authorization process to purchase capital assets at Tri
City Healthcare District (TCHD). 

B. SCOPE OF THE POLICY: 
1. All TCHD departments. 

C. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Capital Asset -A tangible item, project or software, that is purchased, designed or constructed, 

for a total cost of $5,000 or greater, or a group of like items with a total cost of $10,000 or 
greater, and with a useful life of three years or greater. 

2. Budgeted Capital Asset - Capital asset that has been approved by the TCHD Board of Directors 
during the District's annual budgetary cycle or during special presentation to the Board of 
Directors. 

D. POLICY: 
1. The purchase of a capital asset will be initiated by the requesting department's Director. That 

Director is responsible for identifying the requirements and specifications needed to purchase a 
capital asset. Such requirements may include but are not limited to obtaining a quote for the 
specific asset and completing a capital request form. 

2. The requesting Director will communicate with Supply Chain Management to confirm current 
capital request procedures. All capital requests must be submitted to the Director of Supply 
Chain who will present the request to the Capital Committee for initial approval. The final 
approval level will be determined as outlined per TCMC Policy 8610-232, Signature Authority. 

E. FORM(S): 
1. Capital Purchase Requisition Form - Sample 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Policy: Signature Authority 232 
2. Board of Directors Policy: Budget for Medical Equipment or Medical Services for Tri-City 

Healthcare District 14-001 

119



Administrative Policy Manual 
Purchase of Budgeted Capital Assets 8610-252 
Page 2 of 2 

Capital Purchase Requisition Sample 

\&i) Tri-City Medical Center 
4002 VISTA WAY I OCEANSIDE, CA I 92056 CAPffAl PURCHASE REQUISITION 

FUNDING SOURCE: OCAPITAL BUDGET O FOUNDATION 0 AUXILIARY DOTH ER 

ITEM IS: DA REPLACEM ENT OF AN EXISTING ASSET• DA NEW ASSET 
'R>llM a.ioz~a- EQUIPMENT DISl"OSITIOH REqUtSmOH MUST ACCOM,AHY THIS ll~SITTDM II' T>GrrEPlltSIUJ'UCING Nt fXISTlNG ASSET 

DEPARliMDfTHAME DE,ARTMEUT HO. REQll(STED BY I EXT. 

DATE OF RE(lUUT DATE REQUIRED VEND<llt 

All1 CAPITAL PURCHASE REQUISmONS !MUST INCi.UDE A COMPLETED CM!lilfAll. EQUIPMENT REQUEST ATTACHMENT A 

QUAHTllY 
CATALOG 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT COST 
EXTENDED 

NUMBER COST 

ADOffiOHA1. COMMENTS: 
SUB· TOTAL 

SALES TAX 

FREIGHT 

TOTAL 

SOURCE OF ADDITIONAL FUNDS: I a L£ASE P\JROiASf SUPPLY CHAIN USE ONLY 
TRANSFER FROM BUDGET NUMBERS (S): I 0 CASH PURCHASE 

DlllECTDll. REqUUTlNG DE'ARTMDfT CHIEF NURSING OfflCDI DIRECTOR, S\IPl'\.Y OWN MAHAGEMEUT 

DlllECTDll. IHFOllMATIOH TECHNOLOGY CHIEF ANANClAlOFACDI 111/DGETI> 

OIR ECTOll. FACJUTIES CHIEF OPERATING OFFICDI l'UllOIAS£ OADCR HUMBER 

CHIEF MARu:TING DFFICTll CHIEF EXEC\ITIVE OFAQJlt au>EROATE 

~IDDCUY. CD(UJ 

120



ISSUE DATE: NEW 

REVISION DATE: 

{&J\ 
l 11 Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
DISTRICT OPERATIONS 

SUBJECT: Self-Pay & Collections Policy 

POLICY NUMBER: 

Administrative Content Expert Approval: 11/22 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 11/22 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To provide an overview of the process in which Tri City Medical Center follows for assigning self

pay and balance after insurance accounts to a third-party collection agency. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Charity Care - The portion of the hospital stay in which a third-party payer is not responsible and 

the patient does not have means to pay and for which the hospital does not have payment 
expectation. 

2. Self-Pay Patient - A patient who meets the following criteria: 
a. No Medi-Cal eligibility 
b. No third-party insurance 
c. No compensable injury (i.e.: Workers Compensation, auto insurance) 
d. A patient who chooses to pay for their treatment directly rather than using private 

health insurance 
3. Uninsured Patient - Patient who is not currently eligible for a federal, state, other government 

program or who is not currently an eligible subscriber/dependent under an insurance plan 

C. SELF PAY PROCESS: 
1. Patient balance after insurance: 

a. The encounter is sent to a first party self-pay outsourcing vendor which is an extension of 
the hospitals business office to pursue the balance due by the patient. 

b. The first party self-pay outsourcing vendor contacts the patient through a series of letters 
and phone calls spanning 120 days. 
i. Day 2 - Notice 1 mailed to the patient 
ii. Day 35 - Notice 2 mailed to the patient 
iii. Day 92 - Notice 3 Final "Goodbye" Letter and Financial Assistance Application 

mailed to the patient 
c. After 120 days the balance is then assigned to a collection agency for additional collection 

measures. Exceptions include: 
i. Patient has a payment arrangement in good standing 
ii. Patient has provided documentation the balance was included in a bankruptcy 
iii. Patient has a charity application under review 
iv. Patient has applied for financial assistance and a determination not yet made 
v. The account balance is below a threshold set by the hospital that balances must 

reach/exceed to be assigned to collections 

121



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Self~Pay & Collections Policy 
Page 2 of 3 

vi. Med-Cal Managed Care, Medicare or Medi-Cal is responsible for any portion of the 
balance outstanding 

vii. Statute of Limitations exceeded (based on the guarantor's state of residence) 
d. Interest free extended payment plans will be made available to patients that qualify. 

Payment terms are agreed upon between the hospital and the patient based on the 
patient's ability to pay the agreed upon amount monthly. 

2. Self-Pay (Uninsured) Patients: 
a. Financial counseling services are provided to uninsured and underinsured patients which 

include but are not limited to: 
i. Applying for state and Federal Health Care Programs 
ii. Identify if coverage is available under the ACA (Affordable Care Act) 
iii. Inform the patient of Financial Assistance Programs available at the facility and 

assist in completing the application 
b. If the patient remains uninsured/under-insured after this process the encounter is sent to 

first party self-pay outsourcing vendor which is an extension of the hospitals business 
office to pursue the balance due by the patient. 

c. The first party self-pay outsourcing vendor contacts the patient through a series of letters 
and phone calls spanning 120 days. 
i. Day 2 - Notice 1 mailed to the patient 
ii. Day 35 - Notice 2 mailed to the patient 
iii. Day 92 - Notice 3 Final "Goodbye" Letter and Financial Assistance Application 

mailed to the patient 
d. After 120 days the balance is then assigned to a collection agency for additional collection 

measures. Exceptions include: 
i. Patient has a payment arrangement in good standing 
ii. Patient has provided documentation the balance was included in a bankruptcy 
iii. Patient has a charity application under review 
iv. Patient has applied for financial assistance and a determination not yet made 
v. The account balance is below a threshold set by the client that balances must 

reach/exceed to be assigned to collections 
vi. Medi-Cal Managed Care, Medicare or Medicaid is responsible for any portion of 

the balance outstanding 
vii. Statute of Limitations exceeded (based on the guarantor's state of residence) 

e. Interest free extended payment plans will be made available to patients that qualify. 
Payment terms are agreed upon between the facility and the patient based on the 
patient's ability to pay the agreed upon amount monthly. 

D. PROGRAMS AVAILABLE TO UNINSURED. UNDER-INSURED OR THOSE CHOOSING NOT TO USE 
THEIR INSURANCE: 
1. Tri City Medical Center offers a variety of programs to patients for meeting their financial 

obligations, included are: 
a. Self-Pay Discount Program (uninsured or those not using their insurance ONLY) 
b. Financial Assistance 
c. Charity to those eligible based on income 

E. COLLECTIONS PROCESS: 
1. Eligibility: 

a. Account has completed the patient billing cycle without resolution 
b. Final "Goodbye" letter was sent to the patient informing them that a payment remains due 
c. Account exceeds the amount set-forth in the facilities policy outlining collection threshold 

eligibility(=/> $25) 
2. Balance after Insurance I Self-pay (Uninsured) Patients: 

a. Accounts are assigned weekly to collections through a systematic process performed by 
first party self-pay outsourcing vendor 

122



Administrative Policy- District Operations 
Self~Pay & Collections Policy 
Page 3 of 3 

i. This information is transmitted electronically in accordance with both client and 
regulatory requirements 

b. Accounts are split between 2 collection agencies based upon a predefined alpha-split 
i. California Business Bureau, Inc. (CBB) 
ii. CMRE Financial Inc. 

c. The collection agency will have access to the supporting documentation to validate the 
debt owed by the guarantor or the estate thereof should the guarantor be deceased 

d. Collections are pursued in a consistent manner based upon hospital procedure and 
applicable law including Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, Rosenthal Fair Debt 
Collection Practices Act, and other state and federal financial assistance laws 

e. Accounts assigned to collections may be recalled and returned to Tri City Medical Center 
at the discretion of the hospital and/or state or federal laws and regulations. 

f. Accounts that have "Returned Mail" on file are eligible for collections assignment only after 
reasonable efforts have been made and are exhausted. Reasonable efforts include: 
i. Skip tracing 
ii. Contacting the Guarantor via telephone 

F. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Affordable Care Act (ACA) 
2. Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 
3. Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

123



ISSUE DATE: 02/99 

I&,\ 
~ l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
COMPLIANCEOISTRICT OPl!RATIONS 

SUBJECT: Advanced Beneficiary Notice 

REVISION DATE: 11/02; 12/02, 12/03, 10/05, 11/08 
02/11; 10/13, 09/17 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-503 

Administrative Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
Organization Compliance Committee Approval: 
Medical executive Cemffiittee Appreval: 
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

IWt-7011/21 
04#712/21 
08/1706,12210/22 

nla 
09/17 
09/17 

1. To insure an Advance Beneficiary Notice (ABN) is obtained from Medicare beneficiaries when 
Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) wishes to bill for outpatient tests and services that may not 
be covered by CMS. 

2. TCHD will conduct patient care and all other business operations in a legal and ethical manner. 
Employees are expected to observe federal, state and local laws. TCHD will not tolerate fraud, 
waste and/or abuse in any manner, and employees are expected to adhere to all guidelines and 
regulations governing Medicare and other Federal and State funded healthcare programs. 

B. OVERVIEW: 
1. Effective departments include: Admitting Services (Scheduling and Registration), Compliance, 

Case Management, Medical Staff, Physician Office Staff, Laboratory, Patient Accounts, 
Ancillary Departments. 

2. Advance Beneficiary Notice (ABN): An ABN is a written notice given to a Medicare Beneficiary 
before Part B services are furnished when TCHD believes that Medicare will not pay for some or 
all of the services on the basis that they are not reasonable and necessary (i.e., under 
§1862(a)(1) of the Act) and TCHD wishes to bill the patient for the provided services. The ABN 
gives the beneficiary an idea of why TCHD is predicting the Medicare denial. The information in 
the ABN will assist the beneficiary in making an informed decision whether or not to receive the 
service and be financially responsible for the payment. 

3. If TCHD expects payment for the services to be denied by Medicare, TCHD employees will 
advise the beneficiary before services are furnished that, in our opinion, the beneficiary will be 
personally and fully responsible for the payment. 

4. "Personally and fully responsible for payment": This means that the beneficiary will be liable to 
make payment "out-of-pocket," through other insurance coverage (e.g., employer group health 
plan coverage), or through Medicaid or other federal or non-federal payment source. TCHD 
must issue notices each time, and as soon as, we believe Medicare payment will be denied due 
to a medical necessity reason. TCHD is not required to give ABN's to beneficiaries for items or 
tests that are statutorily excluded from Medicare payment, such as oral medications or routine 
screening tests, which fall under the routine physical exclusion (i.e., under §1862(a)(7) of the 
act.) If TCHD does not provide a proper ABN in situations where one is required, TCHD will be 
held liable for the loss of payment if Medicare denies the claim. 
a. Notation: An ABN must be obtained for initial standing orders (for extended course of 

treatment) that contain tests that may be covered. However, it is not necessary to obtain 
a new ABN each time the test is performed in accordance with the standing order. 

124



Administrative - District Operations 
Advanced Beneficiary Notice 
Page 2 of5 

b. Routine use of the ABN is prohibited. There must be a specific reason to believe 
Medicare will determine that the test ordered may not be considered reasonable and 
necessary. 

5. An ABN must be obtained when one or more of the following circumstances exist when TCHD 
wishes to bill the patient for the provided services: 
a. The test for a routine exam or screening not covered by Medicare. 
b. The test in for investigative or research use only. 
c. The diagnosis provided may not or does not meet medical necessity requirements. 
d. No diagnosis provided. 
e. The test may only be paid for a limited number of times within a specified time period 

and this visit may exceed that limit. 
f. The test has not been approved by the Food and Drug Administration. 
g. For those services which Medicare excludes from coverage under Part A or Part B (e.g., 

tests associated with routine checkups, glasses, hearing aids, routine foot care, personal 
comfort items, etc.) an ABN may be obtained noting the appropriate reason of non
coverage. 

h. Patients must be notified well enough in advance of receiving a medical service so the 
patient can make a rational, informed decision. 

6. The ABN will clearly identify the following: 
a. Description of service(s) that may be denied, including procedure name, price, and 

CPT/HCPC code if available 
b. Reason why the service may be denied 
c. Patient's name 
d. Patient's Medicare number 
e. Patient's or guarantor's signature and date 
f. Witness signature and date 

C. DEMAND BILL: 
1. A claim must always be sent for an initial determination on the basis of the likelihood of denial of 

payment for a service as "not reasonable and necessary" under Medicare standards. Enter an 
occurrence code 32 on the UB-04 in one of the fields numbered 32 through 35. It is the 
occurrence code that indicates that an ABN has been issued. A condition code of 20 must be 
entered in one of the fields numbered 24 through 30 to indicate TCHD felt the services would 
probably be non-covered or denied by Medicare. 

D. PROCEDURE: 
1. Employees entering the computerized order for outpatient tests and performing registration 

must review the physician's diagnosis, when processing every outpatient Medicare order. 
2. If the patient presents with a completed ABN from the physician's office, proceed with 

performing the ordered tests. A copy of the ABN must be made and kept with the patient's order 
3. If the patient presents with no ABN and the diagnosis provided does not meet Medical 

Necessity Guidelines for the test(s) being ordered, registration staff must complete an ABN. 
4. Instruct the patient on the purpose of the form and ask patient or guardian to sign one of two 

options: 1) agree to pay for service(s), which may be denied, and therefore obtain the 
service(s), or (2) deny responsibility and do not obtain the service(s). If the patient or guardian 
wishes to discuss the situation with their physician or a nurse, the registration employee will 
either contact the physician or a nurse in a timely manner to discuss the situation so the 
beneficiary may make an informed decision. 

5. In the case in which the Beneficiary demands the service(s) and refuses to pay or sign the ABN 
form, then a second employee witness should sign the ABN form and a note should be made 
that the beneficiary refused to sign. In this case the services may be provided and if Medicare 
payment is denied, the beneficiary will be responsible for payment. 

6. If the patient denies payment responsibilities and declines the test(s), then perform only those 
tests that meet the Medical Necessity Guidelines. It is the patient's responsibility to inform the 

125



Administrative - District Operations 
Advanced Beneficiary Notice 
Page 3 of 5 

ordering physician that services were not performed. If the patient agrees to pay for the 
service(s) then perform all tests ordered. 

7. The signed ABN form should be distributed as follows: give the back copy to the patient, retain 
the middle copy at physician's office or registration office, and file the original copy with the 
physician's order. 

E. REFERENCES: 
1. Medicare Carrier's Manual 7300.5, Part Ill (HCFA Publication 14-3) 3730 
2. CMS 10123-NOMNC (Approved 12/31/2011) OMS approval 0938-0953 

F. ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Advanced Beneficiary Notice English- Sample 
2. Advanced Beneficiary Notice Spanish- Sample 

126



Administrative - District Operations 
Advanced Beneficiary Notice 
Page 4 of 5 

TCHD Advanced Beneficiary Notice English- Sample 

(A) Notifier: 
(B) Patient Name: (C) Identification Number: 

Advance Beneficiary Notice of Noncoverage (ABN) 
NOTE: If Medicare doesn't pay for 0 . be!ow, you may have to pay. 
Medicare does not pay for everything, even some care that you or your health care provider have good 
reason to think you need. We expect Medicare may not pay for the D. below. 
0. E. Reason Medicare May Not Pay: F. Estimated 

Cost 

Read this notice, so you can make an informed decision about your care. 
• Ask us any questions that you may have after you finish readrng_ 

Choose an option below about whether to receive the D. listed above. 
Note: If you choose Option 1 or 2, we may help you lo use any other insurance that you might 

have, but Medicare cannot require us to do this. 

G. OPTIONS: Check only one box. We cannot choose a box for you. 

0 OPTION 1. I want the D. listed above. You may ask to be paid now, but I also 
want Medicare billed for an official decision on payment, which is sent to me on a Medicare Summary 
Notice (MSN). I understand that if Medicare doesn't pay, I am responsible for payment, but I can appeal 
to Medicare by following the directions on the MSN. If Medicare does pay, you will refund any payments I 
Jllede to you, less co-pays or deductibles. 
U OPTION 2. I want the 0. listed above, but do not bill Medicare. You may ask to 
,llitpaid now as I am responsible for payment I cannot appeal if Medicare is not billed. 
U OPTION 3. I don't want the 0. tisted above. I understand with this choice I am not 
responsible for payment, and I cannot appeal to see if Medicare would pay. 

H. Additional Information: 

This notice gives our opinion, not an official Medicare decision. If you have other questions on this 
notice or Medicare billing, call 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-42271TTY: 1-877-486-2048). 
Signing below means that you have received and understand this notice. You also receive a copy. 

I '· Signature: I J. Date: 

A.cc:crdiag ID Ibo Plpuu'Clk la.ioc:tion Act of 199,. llO ponOIU.,. '"'!"--..! ID roi:paad"' • collactllm. of mfDmuilim 11111 ... i1 m.pi.y. • ,-.Jid OMB -• -i..r. Tbo '-.lid 
OM8 CGatJ'OI =bcr li>c tlW m!IHm.aliml colltcll<>G i• 09JHl66. Tho tim• <Dq:iJ.od. ID """"""' ~ in5cn:micm colloc1im is • •limo:IDd IO •""'!!" 7 ~. p;r rtlpOll'O. 
iDdoc!iDg Ibo limo .. ,..,iovJ in.ilnl<1imu. w..i. ..;..mg da ..........,.._ pu tho """' ~ mi cc:qilollt m:! JV\M tho in!atm.aa.. coDoctim. IC>- Al\' C<>mlllOlll1 

~ tho K<llZX}' of Ibo tmio osbm&t. or -~· li>c ~ this fimn. pbasa ..,.;. la: CMS, noo Stcurily Boalmrd, Atlll: PllA bparh ci--. OBicec, 
Bal!imon. M:zlmd 212-1+1!)0. 

FormCMS-R-131 (03111) 

w 1KOty Madlml Olnt8r 
4002 \ll5tl Vt.Jy • C>ceiln&lde •CA• 921156 

1111111111 
ll560.1021 
,,._ 1:1111) 

ADVANCE BENEFICIARY NOTICE 
OF NON COVERAGE 

Form Approved OMB No. 0938-0566 

127



Administrative - District Operations 
Advanced Beneficiary Notice 
Page 5 of 5 

TCHD Advanced Beneficiary· Notice Spanish - Sample 

A. No11ftcante: 
B. Nombre del paciente: C. Numero de ldentfflcacl6n: 

Notificaci6n previa de NO-cobertura al beneficiario (ABN) 
NOTA: Si Medicare no paga D. a contmuaci6n, usted debera pagar. 

Medicare no paga todo, incluso ciertos servicios que, seg(m usted o su medico, estan justificados. 
Prevemos que Medicare no pagara O. a continuaci6n . 

D. E. Razon por la que no esta cublerto F. Costo 
POI' Medicare: estlmado: 

o que ustea neces1ta nacer anora: 
• Lea la presente notificaci6n, de manera que pueda tomar una decisi6n fundamentada sabre la 

atenci6n que recibe. 
Haganos toda pregunta que pueda tener despu~ de que tennine de leer. 

• Escoja una opci6n a continuaci6n sabre si desea recibir D. mencionado 
anteriormente. 

Nota: Si escoge la opci6n 1 6 2, podemos ayudarlo a usar cualquier otro seguro que tal vez 
ten a, ero Medicare no uede exi imos ue lo ha amos. 

PCIONES: rvase marcar un recua ro so amente. o po emos esooger un 
recuadro por usted. 

O OPCION 1. Ouiero D. mencionado antefiormente. Puede cobram1e ahora, pero 
tambien deseo que se cobre a Medi care a flfl de que se expida una decision oficial sabre el pago, la cual 
se me enviara en el Resumen de Medi care (MSN). Entiendo que si Medicare no paga, soy responsable 
por el pago, pero puedo apelar a Medicare segun las instrucciones en el MSN. Si Medicare paga, se me 
reembolspran las pagos que he realizado, menos los copagos o deducibles. 
O OPCION 2. Quiero D. mencionado anteriormente, pero que no se cobre a Medicare. 
Puede solicitar que se le pague ahora dado que soy responsable por el pago. 
No tengo derecho a apelar si no se le cobra a Medicare. 
O OPCION 3. No quiero D. mencionado anteriormente. Entiendo que con esta opci6n 
no so res onsable or el a o no edo a elar ra determlnar sl a aria Medicare. 

En esta notificacion se da a conocer nuestra opinion, no la de Medicare. Si tiene otras preguntas 
sobre la presente notificaci6n o el cobra a Medicare, Dame al 1-800-MEDICARE (1-80CHn3-4227fTTY: 
1-877-486-2048). 
Al firmar abajo usted indica que ha recibido y comprende la presente notificaci6n. Tambien se le entrega 
una copia. 

I '· Firma: I J . Fech a: 

onm ano 

w 1liOty Medical Center 
4002 vt;1a W2'{ • <la!anskle • CA • 920511 

111111111 
85GO-t0:!!! 
floW 121111 

ADVANCE BENEFICIARY NOTICE 
OF NON COVERAGE 

(SPANISH) 

128



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Compliance Program Overview 

REVISION DATE{S}: 12/12, 12/15, 02/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-532 

Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 

~11/21 
~12/21 
~10/22 Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

n/a 
02/19 
02/19 

1. To provide an overview of Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD) Healthcare Compliance 
Program (Compliance Program) and the scope and objectives of the Compliance Program. 
As set forth below, the The Compliance Program is comprised of TCHD's Code of Conduct, 
General Compliance Policies (~General Policies~). and Specific Compliance Policies (Specific 
Policies) and applies to all Workforce Members. The General and Specific Policies are 
referred to collectively as the "Compliance Policies"). 

2. TCHD's Compliance Program supplements laws, regulations and other governmental 
rules. As a general matter, laws, regulations, and other governmental rules control 
the standards set forth in the Compliance Program unless the Compliance Program 
imposes stricter requirements than these authorities. 

-'k3. TCHD's Code of Conduct provides ethical and compliance guidance on a broad range 
of conduct. TCHD's Compliance Policies provide more detailed guidance regarding 
ethical and appropriate conduct, and are intended to be consistent with the general 
principles established in the Code of Conduct. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff, aAG-Allied Health Professionals, volunteers, 

trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose conduct, in 
the performance of work for TCHD, is under the direct control of TCHD whether or not they 
are paid by TCHD. 

C. INTRO!)UCT!ON: 
1. /\s set forth in the Code of Conduot, TCl.fD's mission is to advanoe the health and wellness of 

those TCl.fD serves. /\n integral sempenent ef this mission is TCl.fD's unequivesal 
oommitment to operating in oomplianoe with applisable federal aml state laws and regulations 
and to demonstrate good sorporate eitizenship. Both to rofloet and aehievo this eommitmont, 
TCl.fD has developed and implemented a formal Complianse Program, as deseribed in this 
Pelisy., 

2. TCl.fD's Cemplianse Program supplements laws, regulations and other governmental rules. 
As a general matter, laws, regulations, and other governmental rules oontrol the standards 
set forth in the Complianoe Program unless the Complianse Program imposes strieter 
requirements than these authorities. 

~. TCl.fD's Code of Conduot provides ethioal and somplianse guidanoe on a broad range of 
sonduot. TCl.fD's Complianse Polioies provide more aetailed guidanoe regardin§J ethioal and 
appropriate sonduot, and are intended to be sonsistent with the general prinsiples 

129



Administrative Compliance 
Compliance Program Overview Policy 8750-532 
Page 2 of 3 

established in the Cocie of Conciuot. 

D. SCOPE: 
1. Unless otherwise limited, the Compliance ProgFam applies to all woFkfoFoe membeFs. 

€-cC. OBJECTIVES: 
1. The primary objective of TCHD's Compliance Program is to promote ethical and lawful 

conduct and to ensure compliance with both the letter and the spirit of applicable healthcare 
laws and regulations. TCHD's Compliance Program is modeled after the voluntary 
"Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals," initially published by the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services (HHS), Office of Inspector General (OIG) in February 1998, and 
supplemented in the "OIG Supplemental Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals" 
published in January 2005. 

2. TCHD's Compliance Program includes the following seven elements identified by the OIG as 
fundamental to an effective compliance program: 
a. Implement written policies and standards of conduct; 
b. Designate a Compliance Officer and establish an Internal Compliance Committee; 
c. Conduct effective training and education regarding policies, procedures and practices; 
d. Develop effective lines of communication regarding compliance concerns; 
e. Enforce policies and standards through well-publicized disciplinary guidelines; 
f. Conduct internal monitoring and audits; and 
g. Respond promptly to detected compliance irregularities and implementing 

appropriate corrective action. 
3. A second, but equally important, objective is to ensure maintenance and enforcement of high 

standards of individual and organizational ethical and legal business practices throughout 
TCHD. The Compliance Program facilitates TCHD's ability to carry out its health care 
mission in a manner consistent with its values, principles and mission. 

i;:.,o. COMPLIANCE PROGRAM COMPONENTS: 
1. Code of Conduct: TCHD has adopted a written Code of Conduct to govern all of TCHD's 

interactions including interactions with patients, their families, and providers of care, vendors, 
federal, state and local regulators, payors and the public in general. The Code of Conduct is 
a critical part of and is incorporated by reference into the Compliance Program. 

2. Policies: 
a. TCHD has General and Specific Compliance Program policies. General policies 

address the fundamental requirements of an effective Compliance Program. Specific 
policies provide more detailed guidance on compliance with applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations. 

b. General policies include the following: 
i. Administrative Compliance Policy: Compliance Program Overview 8750-532; 
ii. Administrative Compliance Policy: Compliance Officer 8750-535; 
iii. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Hiring and Employment -8750-544; 
iv. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Compliance Training Program 8750-

547; 
v. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Education and Training; Specific 

Training Programs 8750-548 
vi. Administrative Compliance Policy: Monitoring Compliance/Auditing and 

Reporting; Introduction; General Policies 8750-551; 
vii. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Reports of Suspected 
v-fhviii. Non-Compliance and Misconduct; Investigation; Confidentiality 

Communicating anci Reporting Compliance Concems 8750 557;8750-561 and 
¥iii,ix. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Compliance Issues; 

lntrnciuction; Suspected Misconduct; Confidentiality 8780 559; anci 
i. Administrative Compliance Policy: Development and Revision of Code of 

130



Administrative Compliance 
Compliance Program Overview Policy 8750M532 
Page 3 of 3 

Conduct and Policies 8750-564. 
c. Specific policies include, but are not limited to the following: 

i. Administrative Compliance Policy: Physician Recruiting Arrangements 8750-
579; 

ii. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Confiicts of Interest and Acceptance of 
gifts 8610-483; and 

iii. Administrative District Operations Policy: Hospital Records -Retention -8610-
237;-aAt!. 

3. Resolution of Conflicts: 
a. Some of the policies that make up TCHD's Compliance Program summarize various 

government laws, regulations and guidelines. Such policies should not be read or 
used as substitutes for the actual laws or regulations to which they relate. In other 
words, TCHD's policies may supplement, and clarify, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

b. In the event of an inconsistency between any policy in the Compliance Program and 
applicable Jaws or regulations: 
i. Follow the applicable law or regulation unless TCHD's policy imposes stricter 

requirements and 
ii. Report the inconsistency to the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer or 

designee. Officer. 
c. If Wworkforce Mmembers are unsure as to the appropriate standard, they should not 

guess. Ask a supervisor or the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer or designee~ 

G,E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Code of Conduct 
2. Administrative Compliance Policy: Compliance Program Overview 8750-532 
3. Administrative Compliance Policy: Compliance Officer 8750-535 
4. Administrative Compliance Policy: Hiring and Employment, Duty to Report Suspected 

Misconduct/Potential Compliance Irregularity 8750-544 
5. Administrative Compliance Policy: Education and Training; General Annual Compliance 

Training Program 8750-547 
6. Administrative Compliance Policy: Education and Training; Specific Training Programs 8750-

548 
7. Administrative Compliance Policy: Monitoring Compliance/Auditing and Reporting; 

Introduction; General Policies 8750-551 
8. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Reports of Suspected Non

compliance and Misconduct; Investigation; Confidentiality 8750-561 Communicating and 
Reporting Compliance Concerns (Values Line) gy9Q 887 

9. /\dministrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Compliance lsm;es; lntroduotion; 
SuspecteEI Misconduct; Confidentiality gy90 889 

10. Administrative Compliance Policy: Physician Recruiting Agreements 8750-579 
11. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Conflicts of Interest and Acceptance of Gifts 8610-

483 
12. Administrative District Operations Policy: Hospital Records Retention 8610-237 
13. Administrative Compliance Policy: Development and Revision of Code of Conduct and 

Policies 8750-564 

l=h-F. REFERENCES: 
1. Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals, published by U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services, Office of Inspector General, February 1998. 
2. Office of Inspector General Supplemental Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals, 

January 2005. 

131



ISSUE DATE: 12/02 

(&)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information (PHI) 

REVISION DATE{S}: 02/03, 09/05, 12/10, 02/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-513 

Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: '1--0m11/21 
~12/21 
121180912210/22 
01/19 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee: 02/19 
Board of Directors Approval: 02/19 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To establish guidelines at Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) for the release of protected health 

information ("PHI") for uses and disclosures that require a patient have an opportunity to agree 
or to object. This policy addresses the following categories of uses and disclosures of PHI: 
a. Facility Directory 
b. Emergency Circumstances 
c. Disclosure to Family/Others Involved in Care 

i. With patient present 
ii. When patient is not present 

B. POLICY: 
1. Disclosures of PHI should be limited to the minimum necessary as indicated by the patient 

authorizing release to achieve the purpose of the disclosure. TCHD personnel may exercise 
professional judgment in determining minimum necessary information to achieve purpose of 
disclosure when a disclosure may avert a serious threat to health or safety. 

2. Categories for the release of PHI are as follows: 
a. Use and disclosure for Facility Directory. Permitted uses and disclosure. Except for 

patients with behavioral health Issues whose information is never listed in the directory 
and when an objection is expressed, TCHD may use the following PHI to maintain a 
directory of patients in its facility: 
i. Patient's name 
ii. Patient's location in TCHD 
iii. Patient's condition (described in general terms that does not communicate 

specific medical information about the patient) 
1) Undetermined. Patient is awaiting physician assessment. 
2) Good. Vital signs stable, within normal limits. Patient is conscious, 

comfortable. Indicators are excellent. 
3) Fair. Vital signs stable, within limits. Patient is conscious, may be 

uncomfortable. Indicators are favorable. 
4) Serious. Vital signs may be unstable, not within normal limits. Patient 

acutely ill. Indicators questionable. 
5) Critical. Vital signs unstable, not within normal limits. Patient may be 

unconscious. Indicators are unfavorable. 
6) Deceased. No other information may be released by TCHD. 

iv. Patient's religious affiliation 
b. Directory information can be disclosed to: 

i. Members of the clergy 
ii. Other persons who ask for the patient by name (the patient's religious affiliation 

132



Administrative Policy - Compliance 
Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHJ) Policy 8610-513 
Page 2 of3 

shall not be disclosed to such persons). 
c. Patient's opportunity to object: TCHD must inform a patient of the PHI that it may include 

in a directory and the persons to whom it may disclose such information (including 
disclosures to clergy of information regarding religious affiliation) and provide the patient 
with the opportunity to restrict or prohibit some or all of the uses or disclosures. 

d. Circumstances not requiring patient consent: If the patient's opportunity to object to uses 
or disclosures cannot practicably be provided because of the patient's incapacity or an 
emergency treatment circumstance, TCHD may use or disclose some or all of the PHI 
permitted under this section for TCHD's directory, if such disclosure is: 
i. Consistent with a prior expressed preference of the patient, if any is known to the 

covered health care provider 
ii. In the patient's best interest as determined by the treating healthcare 

professional, in the exercise of their professional judgment. 
iii. TCHD must inform the patient and provide an opportunity for the patient to object 

to uses or disclosures for directory purposes when it becomes practicable to do 
so. 

e. Use and Disclosure to Family/Others involved in Patient's care: TCHD may disclose to a 
family member, other relative, or a close personal friend of the patient, or any other 
person identified by the patient, the PHI directly relevant to such person's involvement 
with the patient's care. 
i. TCHD may use or disclose PHI to notify, or assist in the notification of (including 

identifying or locating) a family member, a personal representative of the patient, 
or another person responsible for the care of the patient. Information may 
include: 
1) Patient's location at TCHD 
2) General condition 
3) Death 

ii. See Patient Care Services Policy: Privacy Code for additional information. 
f. Use and Disclosure with the Patient present: If the patient is present for, or otherwise 

available prior to, use or disclosure and has the capacity to make health care decisions, 
TCHD may use or disclose the PHI if it: 
i. Obtains the Patient's agreement; (per Patient Care Services Policy: Privacy 

GeBejconsent 
ii. Provides the patient with the opportunity to object to the disclosure, and the 

patient does not express an objection; or 
iii. Is in the patient's best interest as determined by the treating healthcare 

professional, in the exercise of their professional judgment. 
g. Use and Disclosure when the Patient is not present: If the patient is not present for, or 

the opportunity to agree or object to the use and disclosure cannot practicably be 
provided because of the patient's incapacity or an emergency circumstance, the treating 
healthcare professional may, in the exercise of their professional judgment, determine 
whether the disclosure is in the best interests of the patient and, if so, disclose only the 
PHI that is directly relevant to the person's involvement with the patient's health care. 
TCHD may use professional judgment and its experience with common practice to make 
reasonable inferences of the Patient's best interest in allowing a person to act on behalf 
of the patient to pick up filled prescriptions, medical supplies, x-rays, or other similar 
forms of PHI. 

h. Use and Disclosure for Disaster Relief Purposes: See TCl=llJ Disaster Manual for 
information regarding disclosure of Pl=// for disaster relief purposes.Follow state and 
federal guidelines. 

C. RESPONSIBILITIES: 
1. All personnel providing services on behalf of TCHD to include but not limited to, employees, 

volunteers, physicians, Allied Health Professionals, students and affiliated business associates 
are responsible for awareness of this policy and for protecting patient health information from 

133



Administrative Policy - Compliance 
Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) Policy 8610-513 
Page 3 of3 

unauthorized release. The protection of health information and appropriate release of 
information is a shared responsibility of all personnel to safeguard the information against loss, 
tampering, access, or use by unauthorized persons. 

D. INFORMATION/DISCLOSURE: 
1. TCHD may orally inform the patient of and obtain the patient's oral agreement or objection to a 

use or disclosure. 
2. TCHD must obtain permission from the parent or guardian for patients who are minors (under 

18 years of age) except in the following circumstances: 
a. Emancipated minors (in addition to other specified categories of minors), as specified by 

law, may inspect or request copies of part or all of their health record. 
b. Pregnancy 
c. Drug abuse 
d. Mental health 
e. Reportable disease 
f. Rape 
g. Sexual assault 

3. Patient's agreement or objection will be noted in the registration system. In the event patient 
objects to the use and disclosure of PHI the information will not be used or disclosed. 

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Confidentiality 8610-455 
2. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Coaching and Counseling for Work Performance 

Improvement 8610-424 
3. Administrative Human Resources Policy: Social Media 8610-479 
4. Administrative Compliance Policy: Minimum Necessary Requirements for Use and Disclosure 

of PHI 8610-594 
5. Patient Care Services Policy: Privacy Code 

F. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Guidance and complete information beyond the scope of this policy for release of information 

will be obtained from the California Hospital Association Consent Manual, Federal Register (79 
FR 784) and Code of Federal Regulations (45 CFR 164) 

134



ISSUE DATE: 7/00 

REVISION DATE: 12/05; 02/09 

Department Review: 

~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

Administrative Policy Manual 
Compliance 

SUBJECT: Disposal of Confidential Records 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-510 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
06/21 
Ml-1-508/21 
06/22 
06/15 
06/15 

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 
Audit and Compliance Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. The purpose of this Policy is to establish guidelines for the destruction and disposal of 

Confidential Records (including those containing Protected Health Information) in accordance 
with state laws and HIPAA when, and to the extent that, such Confidential Records are otherwise 
permitted to be destroyed and disposed of under Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)'s Records 
Retention and Destruction Policy. 

B. DEFINITION: 
1. Confidential Records: for purposes of this Policy, patient medical records and other documents 

and records, regardless of form, containing PHI, and other personal information that could identify 
a patient (including records, documents, and tangible items that contain names, social security 
numbers, contact information, insurance policy information, etc.) and employment records. 

2. Disclosure: the release, transfer, provision of, access to or divulging of PHI outside TCHD. 
3. Electronic Media: the electronic storage media on which date is or may be recorded electronically 

including devices in computers (hard drives) and any removable or transportable digital memory 
medium, such as magnetic tape or disk, optical disk, flash drive, portable device, digital memory 
card and transmission media used to exchange information already in electronic storage media 
(such as internet, extranet, dial-up Jines, etc.) 

4. Electronic Protected Health Information or "EPHI": PHI that is transmitted by Electronic Media or 
Maintained in Electronic Media. 

5. Protected Health Information (PHI): individually identifiable health transmitted or maintained in 
paper or electronic format that is created or received by TCHD AND 
a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 

individual; OR 
b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; OR 
c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment, AND 
d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the 

information can be used to identify the individual. 
6. Use: the sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD. 
7. Workforce member: employees, Medical Staff, Allied Health Professionals (AHP), volunteers, 

trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose conduct in the 
performance of work for TCHD is under the direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid 
byTCHD. 

C. POLICY 
1. TCHD Confidential Records must be destroyed and disposed of in a manner that preserves the 

confidentiality of the information contained in them. TCHD Workforce members, Medical Staff, 
and applicable business associates shall ensure that reasonable safeguards are in place to limit 
incidental, and avoid prohibited, Uses and Disclosures of PHI and other personal information 

135



Administrative Policy Manual 
Disposal of Confidential Records - 8610-510 
Page 2 of 3 

including in connection with the disposal and destruction of Confidential Records. TCHD 
Workforce members, Medical Staff, and applicable business associates shall carry out 
destruction and disposal of Confidential Records in compliance with state laws, HIPAA and this 
Policy. Confidential Records may only be destroyed and disposed of when, and as, permitted 
under TCHD's Board of Directors Policy: Records Retention and Destruction Policy 144-008. 

D. PROCEDURE: 
1. Confidential records may include the following: 

a. Medical records including, individual components such as laboratory results, provider 
notes, and orders, test results, schedules, referral slips, research records, etc. 

b. Patient menus 
c. Patient admission and demographic information documents 
d. Billing information, records, and reports 
e. Receipts 
f. Communications with caregivers 
g. Patient identification bracelets 
h. Department and committee reports such as those related to quality, risk management, 

peer review etc. 
i. Department patient logs 
j. Reports to regulators 
k. Incident reports 
I. Employment record 

2. Duty to Safeguard Confidential Records 
a. TCHD shall take reasonable steps to destroy or arrange for the destruction of Confidential 

Records as provided by this Policy. Responsibility for proper disposal of Confidential 
Records resides with Medical Records/Health Information and Information Technology 
departments. 

b. Confidential Records (including PHI or other personal information) in any form may not be 
abandoned or disposed of in TCHD dumpsters, garbage cans, or other containers that are 
accessible to the public or other unauthorized persons. 

c. TCHD may contract with a business associate to perform services related to the proper 
destruction and disposal of Confidential Records in accordance with the TCHD's Business 
Associate Policy. Such vendors shall provide TCHD with certifications demonstrating 
appropriate proof of destruction and/or disposal as applicable to their respective 
contracted services. 

d. Destruction and disposal of Confidential Records is subject to TCHD's Records Retention 
and Destruction Policy No. 14-008 which addresses, in part the schedule for retention and 
destruction of medical records and other TCHD business records. 

e. Confidential Records that are subject to an investigation, audit and/or litigation hold shall 
not be destroyed or disposed of as provided in Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
No. 14-008. 

f. TCHD Workforce Members who are responsible for disposing of Confidential Records or 
for supervising others who dispose of Confidential Records must receive training on 
disposal obligations. 

g. TCHD shall document the destruction and disposal of Confidential Records pursuant to 
TCHD's policies. 

3. Confidential Records - Paper/Hard Copy and Other (Non-Electronic Media) 
a. Confidential Records in paper/hard copy shall be destroyed in a manner that renders PHI 

and other personal information unreadable, indecipherable and otherwise not capable of 
being reconstructed. PHI and other personal information that is contained in paper/hard 
copy Confidential Records including, but not limited to, the categories identified below, 
must be shredded prior to disposal. The form of such Confidential Records includes 
printed e-mails, facsimiles, correspondence, labels and file covers as well as originals and 
copies. 

136



Administrative Policy Manual 
Disposal of Confidential Records- 8610-510 
Page 3 of 3 

b. For purposes of the shredding requirements in Section (a) above, TCHD requires that 
TCHD Workforce members, Medical Staff, and applicable business associates use one of 
the following processes to destroy PHI in paper/hard copy form: 
i. On-site shredding [in designated Department shredders] to destroy PHI prior to 

removal and disposal from TCHD premises which shall be done by a certified 
disposal vendor. 

ii. PHI shall be placed in accessible, secured bins identified as "Shred: bins which 
are picked up by a certified disposal vendor for on-site recycling/destruction. 
Shred bins should not be used for non-identifiable/non-confidential information, 
hazardous waste, sharps, linen, medications, tissue, food products, garbage, 
glass, aluminum or corrugated cardboard. 

4. Confidential Records - Labeled Prescription Bottles 
a. PHI on labeled prescription bottles shall be collected and maintained in Pharmaceutical 

waste containers which are located in various clinical areas of the hospital for collection 
and disposal by TCHD's certified disposal vendor. 

b. Pharmaceutical waste containers may also be used for the disposal of prescription bottles 
reflecting a patient's name/PHI. 

5. Confidential Records - Electronic Media 
a. TCHD shall ensure that EPHI stored on computers and facsimile machines is destroyed in 

accordance with this Policy before disposal, reuse or return to a third party leasing 
company. 

b. Confidential Records in the form of Electronic Media shall be destroyed before disposal by 
clearing (using software or hardware products to overwrite media with non-sensitive data), 
purging (degaussing exposing the media to a strong magnetic field) pulverization or 
shredding. 

6. Confidential Records Used Offsite 
a. Confidential Records used off TCHD's campus or other facilities (if and as permitted by 

TCHD policies) must be returned to TCHD for destruction and disposal in accordance with 
the procedures set forth in this Policy. 

E. ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 
1. Non-compliance with this Policy could result in potential penalties to TCHD under state and 

federal laws. TCHD Workforce member, Medical Staff, and applicable business associates who 
violate this policy are subject to discipline up to and including terminations in accordance with 
TCHD sanction policies. 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Board of Directors Policy: Records Retention and Destruction Policy 008 

G. REFERENCES: 
1. 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 160.103 
2. 45 CFR Section 164.31{d){2)(i) 
3. 45 CFR Section 164.530 (c) 
4. California Civil Code Sections 56.36 and 56.101 
5. California. Civil Code Sections 1798.8-1798.84 
6. California Health & Safety Code Section 1280.15 
7. TCHD Records Retention Policy No. 14-008 
8. TCHD Business Associate Policy No. 8610-511 

137



ISSUE DATE: 05/12 

~~ Tri·City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Duty to Report Suspected 
Misconduct/Potential Compliance 
Irregularity 

REVISION DATE~: 12/12, 12/15 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-544 

Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

-'14f:l.811 /21 
-'f..2m12/21 
06/22 

n/a 
02/19 
02/19 

1. To provide a statement of the Tri-City Healthcare District's {TCHD) policy regarding the duty 
to report suspected misconduct or potential compliance irregularities. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Workforce Members: Employees, Medical Staff, aRG-Allied Health Professionals, volunteers, 

trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose conduct, in the 
performance of work for TCHD, is under the direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid 
byTCHD. 

C. POLICY: 
1. Workforce members are required to report suspected misconduct, including, but not limited 

to, any practice that the workforce member believes violates or may violate the TCHD 
Compliance Program or applicable laws, regulations, or other governmental rules. For 
workforce members who are employees, reporting of suspected misconduct is a condition of 
employment. 

D. PROCEDURES: 
1. The procedures for reporting suspected misconduct or potential compliance irregularities are 

set forth in the following policies: 
a. Administrative Compliance Policy: Communicating and Reporting Compliance 

Concerns; Reporting of Suspected Misconduct/Potential Irregularities 8750-556 
b. Administrative Compliance Policy: Communicating and Reporting Compliance 

Concerns (Values Line) gy90 887 
2. The procedures for responding to such reports are set forth in the following policies: 

a. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding lo Compliance Issues Introduction; 
Suspected Misconduct; Confidentiality gy90 889 

&ca. Administrative Compliance Policy: Non-Retaliation for Reporting Compliance Issues or 
Suspected Misconduct 8750-560 

ir.b. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Reports of Suspected Non
compliance and Misconduct 8750-561 

3. The procedures for determining the appropriate corrective action and/or discipline for employees 
who violate applicable laws, regulations, other governmental rules, or the TCHD Compliance 
Program or supervisors who fail to detect or report such violations, are set forth in the following 
policy: 

138



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Duty to Report Suspected MisconducUPotential Compliance Irregularity Policy 8750-544 
Page 2 of2 

a. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Compliance Issues; Remedial Action 
8750-562 

4. The documentation requirements for misconduct reports are set forth in the following policy: 
a. Administrative Compliance Policy: Communicating and Reporting Compliance 

Concerns; Reporting of Suspected Misconduct/Potential Irregularities 8750-556. 
5. Note that suspected misconduct may be reported any day, any time, through the TCHD 

Confidential Reporting Line (Values Line) at 1-844-521-7862, or online at 
https://TCHD.ethicspoint.com Note further that TCHD is committed to ensuring that there will 
be no retaliation or retribution against any employee for performing his or her duty to report in 
good faith. 

B. RELATED DOCUMENT!Sl: 
1. Administrative Compliance Policy: Communicating and Reporting Compliance Concerns; 

Reporting of Suspected Misconduct/Potential Irregularities 8750-556 
2. Administrative Compliance Policy: Communicating anEl Reporting Compliance Concerns 

(Values Lino) !l78Q 887 
ii. Administrative Compliance Policy: ResponEling to Compliance Issues; lntroEluction; guspocted 

MisconEluct; Confidentiality !l78Q 889 
4'2. Administrative Compliance Policy: n Non-Retaliation for Reporting Compliance Issues or 

Suspected Misconduct 8750-560 
&.-3. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Reports of Suspected Non-Compliance and 

Misconduct 8750-561 
M. Administrative Compliance Policy: Responding to Compliance Issues; Remedial Action 8750-

562 

139



~lTri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

Administrative Policy 
District Operations 

ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Compliance Education and Training 

REVISION DATE(S): 10/17 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-549 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Content Experteepartment J\ppreval: lJ-74.711/20 
Administrative Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: lJ-74.712/21 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 08it706/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/17 
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 10/17 
Board of Directors Approval: 10/17 

A. 

B. 

c. 

I G,D. 

PURPOSE: 
1. Policy 875Q 549 provides a A statement of the Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD) policies 

regarding the provision of compliance education and training programs. 

PROVISION OF COMPbll\NCE ECUCJ\TION & TRAININGPOLICY: 
1. Tri City l=lealthoare District (TCHD1 shall provide compliance education and training to TCHD 

employeesWorkforce Members, Covered Contractors, and the Board of Directors (BOD) on an 
annual basis. 

2. If a new employee Workforce Member begins working at TCHD at a time when the next 
scheduled New Hire Orientation Program and/or applicable Specific Training Program will not 
occur within 30 days of his or her their date of hire, an as-needed general compliance training 
session and any applicable specific training programs may be provided. 

DEFINITIONS: 
1. Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals (AHP), 

volunteers, trainees Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose 
conduct, in the performance of work for Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD), is under the 
direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid by TCHD. 

2. Covered Contractor: A Covered Contractor is an individual or entity that has a 
contractual relationship with TCHD (other than employment), including but not limited to: 
a. Any individual or entity directly involved in providing patient care, including, but 

not limited to, physicians and Allied Health Professionals such as physician 
assistants and nurse practitioners; 

6b. Any individual or entity directly involved in coding and/or billing functions, 
including the preparation and presentment of reimbursement claims to a federal 
or state health care program. 

DETERMINING NEED FOR AS-NEEDED COMPLIANCE EDUCATION & TRAINING: 
1. The Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer (CCPO) may determine if there is a need for "as

needed" Compliance Training and Education by any means which may include but are not 
limited to: 
a. Values Line reports, 
b. RL Solutions, 
c. Direct communication with: 

i. TCl=ID employoesWorkforce Members, Covered Contractors 
ii. District BOD 

140



Administrative Policy - District Operations 
Education and Training; Compliance Education and Training 
Page2of2 

iii. Members of the Medical Staff, or 
iv. Community Members 
4 Regulatery Ageney reperts 

l*E. DELIVERY: 
1. Compliance training may be presented in any manner the Chief Cemplianee Offieer CCPO 

determines to be effective. This may include, in-person training, videoconference training, 
eemputerized computer-based training or telephone conference training. 

E,F. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. TCHD shall maintain, consistent with its record retention policies: 

a. Any documents reflecting requests for compliance education and training; and 
b. Documents concerning the response to requests for compliance education and training, 

including the guidance offered. 

141



le?;\ 
"i l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

ISSUE DATE: 08/15 SUBJECT: HIPAA Mitigation 

REVISION DATE{S}: 08/15, 02/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-591 

Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 

4#1-311/21 
~12/21 
06/22 Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

n/a 
02/19 
02/19 

1. The purpose of this Policy is to To establish guidelines for mitigating -any harmful effects to Tri
City Healthcare District (TCHD) arising from the Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information in violation of TCHD's policies and procedures or applicable state and federal 
privacy laws. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Business Associate: A person or organization who, on behalf of the District, ,receives, 

maintains or transmits PHI on behalf of the District or where the District Discloses PHI to 
Business Associates . . TCHD. 

2. Disclosure: The release, transfer or access to PHI outside TCHD. 
3. Electronic Protected Health Information (EPHI): PHI that is transmitted by eelectronic mMedia 

or mMaintained in eelectronic mMedia. 
4. Protected Health Information ("PHI"): Health data created, received, stored, or transmitted by 

HI PAA-covered entities and their business associates in relation to the provision of healthcare, 
healthcare operations,-aM payment for healthcare services" and individually identifiable health 
information transmitted or maintained in paper or electronic form that is created or received by 
TCHD ANG-and 
a. Relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an 

individual; orGR 
b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; orGR 
c. Relates to the past, present or future payment, Al'IDand 
d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe 

the information can be used to identify the individual. 
5. Use: Tthe sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD. 
6. Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals, volunteers, 

trainees, and other persons whose conduct, in the performance of work for TCHD is under the 
direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid by TCHD. 

C. POblCY: 
1. TCHD shall mitigate, to the maent practicable, any harmful effects that are known to TCHD 

arising from a Use or Disclosure of a patient's PHI, , in violation of TCHD's policies and 
procedures or applicable state and federal Jaws. 

I l±C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Investigation and Evaluation 

142



Administrative Policy Manual 
HIPAA Mitigation Policy 8610-591 
Page 2 of 3 

a. The Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer or designee will investigate reports of a 
potential or suspected violation of privacy rights, whether by a Workforce Member, 
Medical Staff, or a Business Associate. If the report is substantiated, the Chief 
Compliance and Privacy Officer will consult with the appropriate TCDH TCHD leaders 
and/or le§al-General Ceounsel to determine the extent of any harmful effects resulting 
from the incident. 

b. An evaluation will be conducted to determine the nature and extent of any harmful 
effects. The evaluation will consider the following factors: 
i. Whether any damage occurred; 
ii. The type of damage; 
iii. The nature and extent of PHI (including types of identifiers) that was uYsed or 

dDisclosed; 
iv. The reason for the Use and Disclosure; 
v. The extent of distribution of the improperly dDisclosed PHI, including the identity 

of recipients; 
vi. The cause of the violation including any TCHD policies and procedures and/or 

privacy laws that were violated by the Use or Disclosure; and 
vii. Any other information that is relevant to the evaluation.investigation. 

2. Mitigation Steps 
a. Based on the evaluation, the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer and/or the Security 

Officer shall determine appropriate actions to mitigate harm caused by the violation and 
will consult with appropriate TCHD leadership as needed. 

b. Mitigation steps may include any of the following actions or a combination of them: 
i. Amend applicable policies and procedures to assure that the violation does not 

recur; 
ii. Provide focused training and education to person(s) responsible for the violation 

and/or to a category of Wworkforce Mmembers depending on the scope of the 
violation and policy changes; 

iii. Impose sanctions and/or disciplinary actions up to and including termination 
against person(s) responsible for the violation in accordance with TCHD's 
policies; 

iv. Attempt to recover the improperly uYsed or dDisclosed PHI (or obtain 
confirmation of its destruction) (e.g. misdirected fax, delivery of PHI to wrong 
patient); 

v. Deactivate/disable access to eePHI (e.g. remotely wipe/lock mobile devices 
where lost or stolen); 

vi. Identify and correct Information Technology (~IT~) system or physical space 
vulnerabilities, if any that contributed to the violation; 

vii. Notify affected Individuals of the violation in accordance with TCHD's security 
incident/breach response policies and of self-protective actions that may be 
taken to ameliorate or avoid potential harm (e.g. identity theft); and/or 

viii. Other actions as determined by the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer and/or 
Security Officer in consultation with Executive Management and/or le§al-General 
Ceounsel, if applicable. 

3. Business Associate Violations 
a. In the event that TCHD learns of a potential or actual violation of a Use or Disclosure of 

PHI by one of its Business Associates, TCHD must, if practicable, mitigate the harmful 
effects of such violation. The Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer and/or Security 
Officer, in consultation with le§al-Genera/ Ceounsel, if applicable, will contact the 
Business Associate to develop a mitigation plan. 

b. TCHD will also review whether further action is required under the terms of the Business 
Associate Agreement and TCHD's policies and procedures based on the nature and 
extent of the violation (e.g. termination). 

143



Administrative Policy Manual 
HIPAA Mitigation Policy 8610w591 
Page 3 of 3 

E.D. RELATED DOCUMENT!Sl: 
1. Administrative Compliance Policy: HIPAA Administrative Requirements 8610-585 
2. Administrative Compliance Policy: Protected Health Information (PHI) Breach Response 8610-

586 
3. Administrative Compliance Policy: Sanctions for Non-Compliance -with Privacy and Security 

Policies & Procedures 8610-531 
4. Administrative Compliance Policy: Business Associate Agreement 8610-511 
5. HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 

I ~E. REFERENCE(S): 
1. 45 Code of Federal Register (CFR) Section 160.103 
2. 45 CFR Section 164.530(f) 
3. California HIPAA Codes and Regulations 

144



ISSUE DATE: 03/12 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Monitoring Compliance/ Auditing 
and Reporting; Annual Compliance 
Work Plan 

REVISION DATE{St:03/12, 04/18 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-552 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Content ExpertOepartment Appreval: .:J..1#+11/20 
Administrative Policies &afld Procedures Committee Approval: .:J..1#+12/21 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval ~06/22 
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 04/18 
Board of Directors Approval: 04/18 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To provide (1) a statement of Tri-City Healthcare District's {TCHD) policy with respect to the 

development of an annual compliance work plan ("Work Plan"), and (2) a statement of TCHD's 
policy of conducting periodic and ad hoc compliance reviews and audits of the compliance 
program and TCHD's performance under the compliance program. 

S. INTROOIJCTJON: 
1. Ongoing monitoring and evaluation is essential to the development and maintenance of an 

effective compliance program. By developing annual work plans and conducting audits and 
reviews in response to reported concerns, the compliance program ensures that TCHD meets 
its commitment to conduct business consistent with fundamental ethical standards and to 
comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 

B. DEFINITIONS(S): 
1. Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff, Allied Health Professionals {AHP), 

volunteers, trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose 
conduct, in the performance of work for Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD), is under the 
direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid by TCHD. 

C. ANNUAL COMPLIANCE WORK PLAN: 
1. TCHD's Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer (CCPO) (with the assistance of the Direotor of 

Complianoe Audit and Monitoring, Compliance Committee, outside consultants and General 
Counsel, as necessary) will recommend and facilitate, as appropriate, the identification of 
compliance-related risk areas of relevance to hospitals, health systems, and the health care 
industry in general. These risk areas will be documented in an annual work plan. 

2. Risk areas may be identified through any number of channels including, by way of example: 
a. The Office of Inspector General's (OIG) annual work plan; 
b. Recent OIG and/or Department of Justice ("DOJ") enforcement actions and settlements; 
c. Audit reports published by the OIG; 
d. Health care news reports on recent or ongoing government investigations in the health 

care space; 
e. Payor denial reports; 
f. Internal District reviews; 
g. Exit surveys/interviews with employees and contractors; and 
h. Confidential Reporting Line (Values Line) reports. 

145



Administrative Policy - Compliance 
Monitoring Compliance/ Auditing and Reporting; Annual Compliance Work Plan 
Page 2 of 3 

3. The work plan shall be developed by the Director of Complianoo Audit and Monitoring Office of 
Compliance and Privacy under the supervision of the CCPO, who shall: 
a. Implement processes with the assistance of various TCHD departments (such as the 

finance Department, by way of example) for assessing TCHD's compliance with respect 
to the risk areas identified in the work plan; 

b. Supervise the reviews and assessments related to each risk area; 
c. Based on the reviews and assessments, determine whether to develop or enhance 

training and/or policies related to the risk areas; and 
d. Where appropriate, identify and implement corrective actions. 

4. Approval 
a. The annual work plan will be presented to and be approved by senior management and 

TCHD Board of Directors (Board). 
b. The CCPO will be afforded a budget that will enable him or herthem to implement the 

work plan. 

D. COMPLIANCE PROGRAM EFFECTIVENESS REVIEWS: 
1. The CCPO and Director of Compliance Auditing and Monitoring (with the assistance, as 

appropriate, of outside independent review consultants and/or general counsel, as described 
below) shall develop a protocol for performing periodic reviews of TCHD's policies and practices 
to determine the effectiveness of the compliance program. The protocol shall assist in the 
assessment of the following elements of the compliance program: 
a. Compliance program policies (including any requirements relating to documentation) 
b. Effectiveness of compliance training and education provided to all TCHD 

omployeesWorkforce Members. 
c. Appropriateness of the monitoring and auditing conducted by the compliance program 
d. Awareness of the compliance program reporting mechanisms, including use of TCHD's 

Vvalues ILine 
e. Promptness of investigations of reported compliance concerns 
f. Process for the development of corrective actions, if appropriate, in response to 

reported concerns 

E. FOCUSED REVIEWS AND AUDITS: 
1. When suspected noncompliance with laws and/or policies is reported, the CCO andlor the 

Director of Compliance Auditing and MenitoringOffice of Compliance and Privacy shall initiate 
a formal review and/or audit of the conduct in question. 
a. Technique: 

i. The protocol developed by the CCPO may provide for sampling, full claim review, 
contract review, pre-billing reviews, email and other correspondence review or 
other appropriate measures. 

b. Review Assistance: 
i. The compliance program reviews and audits shall be conducted under the 

supervision of the CCPO, Director of Complianoe Audit and Monitoring andlor 
le§algeneral counsel, as appropriate. In addition to, or in lieu of, internal 
reviewers, outside independent review consultants and/or outside legal counsel 
may be used to assist, as appropriate. 

c. Reviewer Qualifications and Independence: 
i. The entity or individual(s) conducting the compliance program reviews and audits 

(whether internal or external to TCHD) shall be independent insofar as they must 
be able to review TCHD's practices and make objective, independent 
determinations as to the accuracy or effectiveness of those practices. 

ii. The reviewers/auditors shall have the qualifications and experience necessary to 
adequately identify potential issues related to the subject they are reviewing. 

iii. The reviewers/auditors shall have access to the resources and information 
necessary to conduct the compliance program reviews and audits, including full 

146



Administrative Policy~ Compliance 
Monitoring Compliance/ Auditing and Reporting; Annual Compliance Work Plan 
Page 3 of 3 

access to documents and empleyeesWorkforce Members. 

F. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. The final version of work papers, notes and other documentation generated in connection with 

every review shall be maintained in the compliance program files. 
2. After completing each annual work plan, the CCPO shall furnish senior management and the 

Board with a written report of principal findings, conclusions and recommendations. 
3. The review findings, conclusions and recommendations (including the written report) shall be 

documented in the compliance program files. 

G. RELATED DOCUMENT!Sl: 
1. Administrative Policy: Compliance Program Overview 8750-532 
2. Administrative Policy: Monitoring Compliance Auditing & Reporting - Exit Interviews 8750-554 
3. Tri-City Healthcare District Code of Conduct 

H. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals, published by U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services, Office of Inspector General, February 1998. 
2. Office of Inspector General Supplemental Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals, January 

2005. 

147



ISSUE DATE: 05/12 

~?JTri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Pending Debarment, Criminal 
Charges or Adverse Action Against 
Current Covered Contractors 

REVISION DATE: 02/17 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-540 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Content ExpertDepartrnent Approval: ~11/20 
Administrative Policies and Procedures Committee Approval-9atefs): ~12/21 
Organizational Compliance Committee: 4-U-1-606/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17 
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 02/17 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 02/17 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To provide guidance regarding action(s) ef-Tri-City Healthcare Districts (TCHD) -will take when a 

Covered Contractor has a pending suspension, debarment, exclusion action, criminal conviction 
or Adverse Action. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Covered Contractor - A Cevered Centraoter is ann individual or entity that has a contractual 

relationship with TCHD (other than employment), including but not limited to: 
a. Any individual or entity directly involved in providing patient care, including, but not limited 

to, physicians and Allied Health Professionals such as physician assistants and nurse 
practitioners; 

b. Any individual or entity directly involved in coding and/or billing functions, including the 
preparation and presentment of reimbursement claims to a federal or state health care 
program. 

2. Adverse Action - Adverse aotien rneans with respeot te a prefessienal lioense, registratien, er 
oertifioatien, any negative finding, unfavorable decision or action, or any decision or action that 
could have a negative or unfavorable implication,~ #-includinges, but is not limited to: revocation, 
denial, fine, monitoring, probation, suspension, letter of concern, guidance, censure, reprimand, 
disciplinary action, restriction, required counseling, loss, voluntary or involuntary surrender, and 
initiation of inquiry, investigation or other proceeding that could lead to any of the actions listed. 

3. Federal Health Care Program -The phrase "Federal health oare pregrarn" shallShall have the 
same meaning as set forth at 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(f) and includes, by way of example, Medicare 
and Medicaido/MediCal. 

C. ACTION PENDING RESOLUTION OF CHARGES: 
1. If TCHD learns that: 

a. A current Covered Contractor has been charged with a criminal offense bearing on 
trustworthiness, or the ability of the Covered Contractor to perform relevant contractual 
responsibilities; and/or 

b. A current Covered Contractor has been charged with a criminal offense related to health 
care fraud, 

c. A federal agency has issued a notice proposing to debar, exclude, or otherwise deem the 
current Covered Contractor ineligible to participate in any Federal health care program, or; 

d. A state agency or authority has proposed to take an Adverse Action against a professional 
license, certification or registration of a current Covered Contractor 

148



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Pending Debarment. Criminal Charges or Adverse Action Against Current Covered Contractors 
Page 2 of2 

2. Then, pending resolution of the charges: 
a. The Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer (CCPO) in consultation with be§aj-General 

Counsel, -as necessary and appropriate, shall review whether the Covered Contractor's 
contract should be terminated based on the circumstances (and/or Covered Contractor's 
employee should be removed from his or her position related to services furnished at 
TCHD). 

b. If the Covered Contractor is a credentialed Medical Staff member, the matter shall be 
resolved through the coordination of the Medical Staff Office, Chief Medical Officer,-and 
the Chief CemplianGe OffiGerCCPO. 

3. TCHD shall maim reports to the CCO and CentraG!s department regarding GemplianGe with the 
reporting requirements of this poliGy. 

4. At the discretion of TCHD, reports will be made to the appropriate licensing authority. 

D. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. For Covered Contractors, such documentation shall be maintained in the Covered Contractor's 

file consistent with-the TCHD's document retention policies. 

E. REFERENCES: 
1. 42 U.S. Code§ 1320a-7b 

149



ISSUE DATE: 03/03 

~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Rights to Request Privacy Protection 
for Protected Health Information 

REVISION DATE: 03/06; 02/09; 304/15 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-526 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Content ExpertCeJJartment Aflflreval Ca!e(s): ~11/20 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: ~12/21 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 06/22 
Audit and Compliance Committee Approval Date(s): 4/15 
Board of Directors Approval: 4/15 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To establish a policy and procedure to comply with a patient's right to request restrictions on the 

use and disclosure of their protected health information (PHI) in compliance with applicable laws. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Disclosure: Tlhe release, transfer, provision of, access to or divulging of PHI outside Tri-City 

Healthcare District (TCHD). 
2. Protected Health Information (PHI}: !individually identifiable health transmitted or maintained in 

electronic/other format that is created or received by TCHD; and-ANG 
a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 

individual; orGR 
b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; orGR 
c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment;, andAl>ID 
d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the 

information can be used to identify the individual. 
3. Treatment, Payment, and Healthcare Operations (TPO): 

a. Treatment: P13roviding, coordinating or managing a patient's care by one or more 
providers, including: coordinating or management of health care by a provider and a third 
party; consultations between providers about a patient; or the referral of a patient from 
one provider to another. 

b. Payment: Aactivities related to paying or being paid for services rendered including, 
without limitation: 
i. Eligibility and coverage determinations 
ii. Billing 
iii. Claims management 
iv. Collection activities 
v. Medical necessity and utilization review. 

c. Health Ceare Oeperations: Beroad range of activities related to covered functions 
including, without limitation: 
i. Quality assessment and improvement 
ii. Provider credentialing 
iii. Patient education and training 
iv. Health practitioner training 
v. Contracting for health care services 
vi. Medical review 
vii. Legal services 
viii. Auditing functions 
ix. Business planning and development 

150



Administration Policy Manual 
Right to Request Privacy Protection of Protected Health Information 8610-526 
Page 2 of 3 

x. Business management and general administrative activities. 
4. Use: Tlhe sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD. 

C. POLICY: 
1. TCHD must permit an individual to request a restriction of PHI to carry out treatment, payment or 

health care operations and disclosures to family members, other relatives or close personal 
friends otherwise permitted under 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501(b) and TCHD Policy No. 8610-
5161>. 

2. TCHD is not required to agree to a requested restriction except as provided in Section C.6. 
3. All decisions made on requested restriction shall be documented in writing and returned to the 

patient. 
4. If TCHD agrees to a restriction TCHD may not use or disclose PHI in violation of such restriction. 

a. If the individual patient who requested the restriction is in need of emergency treatment 
and the restricted PHI is needed to provide the emergency treatment, TCHD may use the 
restricted PHI, or disclose such information to a health care provider, in order to provide 
treatment to the individualpatient. 

b. If restricted PHI is disclosed to a health care provider for emergency treatment, TCHD 
must request that the health care provider not further use or disclose the information 
outside the treatment episode. 

c. A restriction agreed to by TCHD, is not effective to prevent uses or disclosures of PHI that 
are permitted or required by law without individual patient authorization. 

5. TCHD must agree to the request of an individual patient to restrict the disclosure of PHI about the 
individual patient to a health plan if 
a. The disclosure is for the purpose of carrying out payment or health care operations and is 

not otherwise required by law; and 
b. The PHI pertains solely to a health care item or service for which the individualpatient, or 

person other than the health plan on behalf of the individualpatient, has paid TCHD in 
"full." 

D. PROCESS: 
1. Request for restriction- An individual patient may request a restriction as follows: 

a. A patient/patient's representative must submit a written request for restriction of PHI to 
TCHD's Privacy OfficerDirector of Healthcare Information Management Systems 
(HIMS). 

b. The written request must include: 
1) What the individual patient wants to limit 

ii. Whether use is limited to treatment, payment or health care operations 
1) To whom the individual patient wants the use and disclosure limit to apply 

2. Termination of restriction - TCHD may terminate its agreement to a restriction under the following 
conditions: 
a. The individual patient may submit a written request for termination of a restriction of PHI 

to TCHD's Privacy OfficerDirector of HIMS in writing. 
b. The individual patient orally agrees to termination of the restriction and the oral 

agreement is documented. 
c. TCHD informs the individual patient in writing that it is terminating its agreement to a 

restriction. 
i. Such termination is only effective with respect to PHI created or received after the 

patient/patient's representative has been informed. 
ii. Such termination is not effective for PHI restricted under Section C.6 above. 

3. Documentation of restriction or termination of restriction: 
a. Patients who request a restriction of their protected health information PH I will be provided 

with the Request for Special Restriction form to be completed, signed and submitted to 
TCHD's Privacy OfficerDirector of HIMS. 

b. When wishing to terminate the agreement, the Termination of Special Restriction form 
must be completed, signed and submitted to TCHD's Privacy OfficerDirector of HIMS. 

4. TCHD shall maintain documentation of such restrictions/termination of restrictions in accordance 

151



Administration Policy Manual 
Right to Request Privacy Protection of Protected Health Information 8610-526 
Page 3 of 3 

with Policy No. 8610-237 -Record Retention. 

E. RELATED DOCUMENTSFERENCES: 
1. 45 C.F.R Section 164.501 (b) 
2. 45 C.F.R. Section 164.522 
3. Board Policy #14-008 Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
4. Hospital Records Retention Policy #8610-237 
5. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information Records Policy #8610-516~ 

F. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Request for Special Restriction form 
-'k2. Termination of Special Restriction form 

152



I ISSUE DATE: 05/12 

~?) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Required Screening of Covered 
Contractors 

REVISION DATE(S): 02/17 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-539 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 09Fl-612/21 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval Date{s): 09Fl-603/22 
Organizational Compliance Committee: 09Fl-606/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date{s): ~ n/a 
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date{s): 02/17 
Board of Directors Approval Date{s): 02/17 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To provide guidance of the Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD'S) policy regarding required 

screening of Covered Contractors. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Covered Contractor- Aan individual or entity that has a contractual relationship with TCHD (other 

than employment), including, but not limited to: 
a. Any individual or entity directly involved in providing patient care, including, but not limited 

to, physicians and Allied Health Professionals such as physician assistants and nurse 
practitioners; 

b. Any individual or entity directly involved in coding and/or billing functions, including the 
preparation and presentment of reimbursement claims to any federal or state health care 
program. 

2. Adverse Action - AElverse aotion means with respect to a professional lioonse registration, or 
oortifioation, any negative finding, unfavorable decision or action, or any decision or action that 
could have a negative or unfavorable implication. It includes, but is not limited to: revocation, 
denial, fine, monitoring, probation, suspension, letter of concern, guidance, censure, reprimand, 
disciplinary action, restriction, required counseling, loss, voluntary or involuntary surrender, and 
initiation of inquiry, investigation or other proceeding that could lead to any of the actions listed. 

3. OIG List of Excluded Individuals/Entities is located at https:ll.exlusions.OIG.hhs.gov. 
4. System for Award Management (SAM) is located 

at https:l/www.sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf https://wwN.sam. 
5. Medi-Cal Suspended and Ineligible Provider List at http://files.medi

cal.ca.gov/pubsdoco/Sandllanding.asp. 

C. SCREENING COVERED CONTRACTORS: 
1. Periodically, but at least on an annual basis and prior to contracts being considered for approval 

by the Board of Directors (BOD), TCHD shall screen Covered Contractors against the: 
a. Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (OIG LEIE), and 
b. System for Award Management (SAM), and 
c. Medi-Cal Suspended and Ineligible Provider List. 

2. Periodically, but at least on an annual basis, tho District TCHD shall require each Contractor to 
certify in writing that the Covered Contractor: 
a. Has not been charged with or convicted of committing any criminal offense; 
b. Does not have any charges pending for violating any criminal law; 

153



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Required Screening of Covered Contractors 
Page 2 of 2 

c. Has not been debarred, excluded or otherwise deemed ineligible for participation in 
Federal health care programs; 

d. Is not the subject of or otherwise part of any ongoing federal or state investigation; and 
e. Possesses a current professional license, registration, or certification, as applicable, and 

is in good standing with, and has had no Adverse Action taken by, any and all authorities 
granting such license, registration or certification, as applicable. 

3. All Contracts are to be evaluated and assessed on an annual basis per CMS (Center for 
Medicare and Medicaid Service) regulations and provide a certificate in writing. 

4. In the event that the Covered Contractor cannot provide the certification set forth in Section C.1 
above, the Covered Contractor shall provide complete and accurate information with respect to 
the matters at issue. 

5. In addition, as specified in Administrative Policy:&7aG- Pending Debarment, Criminal 
Charges or Adverse Action against Covered Contractors 540, Covered Contractors are 
required to report any criminal convictions under state or federal law, in writing to the Office of 
Compliance and Privacy Department within five (5) working days of such convictions. 

D. RETENTION: 
1. TCHD shall not knowingly retain any Covered Contractor if the !Covered Contractor: 

a. Has been convicted of a criminal offense that has a bearing on the (a) trustworthiness of 
the Covered Contractor, or (b) ability of the Covered Contractor to perform relevant job 
responsibilities; or 

b. Has been convicted of committing a health care fraud-related criminal offense; or 
c. Is currently debarred, excluded or otherwise ineligible for participation in Federal health 

care programs; or 
d. Does not have a current professional license, registration or certification as applicable, 

and/or is not in good standing with, and/or has had an Adverse Action taken by, the 
relevant state authorities that grant such license, registration or certification, as applicable. 

e. When the Covered Contractor is a member of the TCHD Medical Staff, there shall be 
coordination between the Medical Staff Office and the Chief Compliance Officer in order to 
ensure appropriate action and follow-up is conducted. 

f. When a Covered Contractor is identified as being impacted by this policy, or as soon as 
possible thereafter, TCHD employees, Medical Staff, Chief Medical Officer-and Board of 
Directors shall consult with the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer and/or~ 
General Counsel to determine the appropriate action to be taken. 

E. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. For Covered Contractors such documentation shall be maintained in the Covered Contractors's 

file consistent with tAe-TCHD's document retention policies. 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Policy 87§0 §40: Pending Debarment, Criminal Charges or Adverse Action 

Against Current Covered Contractors 540 
2. TCHC Board Policy #14-008- Board Document Retention Policy 

G. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Medi Cal law, Welfare and Institutions Code (W&I Code} sections 14043.6 and 14123 

154



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

ISSUE DATE: 03/03 

REVISION DATE{S}: 02/06, 01/09, 01/16, 02/19 

Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 

SUBJECT: Use and Disclosure of Protected 
Health Information (PHI) for 
Fundraising 

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-525 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 
~11/21 
~12/21 
06/22 Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

n/a 
02/19 
02/19 

1. To establish policies and procedures for the Use and Disclosure of specified Tri-City Healthcare 
District (TCHD) patient information for fundraising activities in accordance with the Health 
Information Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Authorization: The written form that complies with HIPAA and state law that is obtained from the 

Individual or his er hertheir personal representative in order for TCHD to u1Jse and dQisclose 
PHI. 

2. Business Associate: A person or organization who, on behalf of the DistriotTCHD, performs 
certain functions or activities involving the Use or Disclosure of PHI or services that require the 
Business Associate to create, receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of the DistriotTCHD or 
where the DistriotTCHD needs to disclose PHI to Business Associates for the services. 

3. Direct Solicitation Fundraising Literature: Any written communications which primary purpose is 
the direct solicitation of the financial resources necessary to support the mission and purposes 
ofTCHD. 

4. Disclosure: The release, transfer, provision of, access to or divulging of PHI outside TCHD. 
5. Fundraising: The process of securing the financial resources necessary to support the mission 

and purposes of the TCHD. 
6. Minimum Necessary Standard: The amount of information reasonably necessary to accomplish 

the purpose of the Use, Disclosure or request. 
7. Payment: Reimbursement for health care services provided. Includes activities undertaken by 

a health care provider to obtain or provide reimbursement for the provision of care including, but 
not limited to, determinations of eligibility, billing, claims management, collection activities, 
obtain payment under a contract of reinsurance or stop loss, related health care data 
processing, review of coverage under health plans, medical necessity reviews, and utilization 
management. 

8. Permissible Patient Information: The limited categories of PHI that TCHD may u1Jse or 
dQisclose to a Business Associate or to the Tri-City Hospital Foundation without a patient 
Authorization, for the purpose of raising funds for TCHD's own benefit and expressly limited to 
the following: 
a. Demographic information relating to the Individual including name, address, other 

contact information, age, gender, and date of birth 
b. Dates of health care provided to an Individual 
c. Department of service (general department ) information 

155



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fundraising 8610-525 
Page 2 of 8 

d. Treating physician 
e. Outcome information (to screen out only) 
f. Health insurance financial class 

9. Protected Health Information (PHI): Individually identifiable health information transmitted, 
maintained, created or received by TCHD and 
a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 

individual; orGR 
b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; orGR 
c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment, andANG 
d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe 

the information can be used to identify the individual. 
10. Treatment: The provision of coordination, management, consultation or referral of a patient's 

health care by a provider(s). 
11. Use: Tthe sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD. 
12. Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals, volunteers, 

trainees, and other persons whose conduct, in the performance of work for TCHD is under the 
direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid for by TCHD. 

C. POLICY: 
1. In order to protect the privacy of a patient's information, Tri-City Hospital Foundation shall act in 

accordance and compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy Practices of TCHD when conducting 
fundraising activities for TCHD. 

2. TCHD may uYse or dQisclose permissible patient information to its Business Associates or to 
the Tri-City Hospital Foundation for the benefit of TCHD fundraising. 

3. Uses and Disclosures are subject to the minimum necessary requirements. 
4. TCHD may not condition treatment or payment on a patient's choice with respect to fundraising 

communications. 

D. PROCESS: 
1. Notice of Privacy Practices 

a. TCHD's Notice of Privacy Practices shall indicate that TCHD may uYse or dQisclose a 
patient's PHI to its Foundation or Business Associates for fund raising purposes and that 
the patient has the right to opt out of receiving such communications. 

b. TCHD may not uYse or dQisclose PHI for fundraising purposes unless the statement 
required by Section 1.a is included in the Notice of Privacy Practices. 

2. Use of Permissible Patient Information 
a. After a patient has been made aware of the TCHD's Notice of Privacy Practices, TCHD 

may uYse or dQisclose permissible patient information for fundraising purposes. 
b. Except as provided in this Policy, TCHD may disclose permissible patient information to 

the Tri-City Hospital Foundation or Business Associates for fund raising purposes without 
first obtaining a patient's authorization. 

c. TCHD and/or the Foundation may use permissible patient information to identify patients 
for patient testimonials that will be uYsed and/or dQisclosed for fundraising purposes. 

d. Before contacting a patient for fund raising purposes, TCHD and the Foundation shall 
verify that the individuals they wish to contact have not opted out of fundraising 
communications. 

e. TCHD and the Foundation shall implement the minimum necessary standard on 
fundraising Uses and Disclosures. TCHD and the Foundation must adhere to more 
restrictive federal and state privacy laws for certain highly sensitive health information 
(including but not limited to mental health, substance abuse, HIV/AIDS, psychotherapy 
notes and abuse). Due to the sensitive nature of these treatments, additional 
authorization is needed prior to using for fund raising communication. The Chief 
Compliance and Privacy Officer should be consulted prior to obtaining the patient's 
authorization. 

156



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fund raising 8610-525 
Page 3 of 8 

f. TCHD and the Foundation may not uYse or dQisclose permissible patient information 
(or any patient PHI) with a non-affiliated entity for purposes of that entity's fund raising 
(for example where a Medical Staff member specializes in the treatment of a specific 
disease and a non-profit association fundraises for research related to that specialty). 

3. Patient Testimonials Used for Fundraising Purposes. 
a. When uYsing and/or dQisclosing -a patient's testimonial, including the patient's PHI for 

fund raising purposes, TCHD and/or the Foundation acting as TCHD's Business 
Associate must obtain from the patient prior to such Use and/or Disclosure: 
i. An authorization; and 
ii. Consents to videotape, photograph and/or publish the patient's testimonial, as 

appropriate. 
b. The authorization and consent form shall be obtained regardless of the manner in which 

TCHD/Foundation learned about the patient's testimonial or whether the patient has 
consented either verbally or in writing (e.g. e-mail) to such Use/Disclosure. 

c. The authorization must be completed in a manner that adequately describes the 
categories of PHI being uYsed/dQisclosed and the purpose of the Use/Disclosure. 

d. TCHD and the Foundation shall only uYse or dQisclose the patient's testimonial (and 
PHI) with a va lid patient authorization. 

4. Fundraising Notifications 
a. Each fundraising notification shall provide the patient with a clear and conspicuous 

opportunity to elect not to rece ive any further fundraising communications. 
b. The method provided to opt out of receiving further fundraising communications shall not 

result in a patient incurring an undue burden or more than a nominal cost. Tri-City 
Hospital Foundation permits patients to opt out of future fundraising communications by 
telephone at (760) 940-3370 or by e-mail at TCHFoundation@tcmc.com. 

c. Any TCHD workforce member or business associate who is advised by a patient of 
his/hertheir request to opt out of receiving future fundraising communications, must 
contact the Foundation to document the request. 

5. Patients Who Opt Out 
a. Fundraising communications will not be made to patients who have opted out of such 

communications. 
b. Tri-City Hospital Foundation will track opt out notifications to ensure that further 

fundraising communications are not made to patients who have elected to opt out. 
6. Opting Back In 

a. Patients who desire to opt back in to receive fundraising communications can do so by 
sending an e-mail with such request to TCHFoundation@tcmc.com or by opting in at an 
event or through the Foundation's website. 

7. Direct Solicitation F undraising Literature 
a. Direct solicitations do not include marketing to donors or prospective donors. (e.g. 

newsletters) where patient PHI is not used. 
8. Business Associates 

a. Before the Tri-City Hospital Foundation shares any permissible patient information with a 
Business Associate, the Tri-City Hospital Foundation shall have the Business Associate 
sign the TCHD Business Associate Addendum. 

b. If the Tri-City Hospital Foundation becomes aware of a breach of the Privacy Practices 
of TCHD by a Business Associate, the Tri-City Hospital Foundation shall immediately 
notify the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer. 

E. FORMS): 
1. Authorization for Use or Disclosure 8700-1002 - Sample 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Compliance Policy: Notice of Privacy Practices 8610-518 
2. Administrative Compliance Policy: Business Associate Agreement 8610-511 

157



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fundraising 8610~525 
Page 4 of 8 

3. HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 

G. REFERENCE(S\: 
1. 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 164.502 
2. 45 CFR Section 164.514{f) 
3. 45 CFR Section 164.508 
4. Health Information Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) 

158



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fundraising 8610-525 
Page 5 of 8 

0 0 0 0 0 

completion of tnis document authOrizes tne use or disclosure of individually identifiable healtn information, as 
set fortn below, consistent with California and Federal law oonceming the privacy of such information_ 
Failure to rovide all information re uested ma invalidate this Authorization. 

Patient Name:--------- --------- Date of Birth: ___ _____ _ 
(Please print) 

I hereby authorize the use or disclosure of my health information as follows: 
Person/Organization authorized to release (use or disclose) the information: Tri-City Medical Center 

(TCMC or other Entity) 
Person/Organization authorized to receive the information (name ancl address of entity): 
Name: Phone: __________ _ 
Address : City: State: Zip: ____ _ 

Fax: Email: ------------------ -

1 would like the Healtn lnfonnation: 
D Mailed as: D CD D Paper D Faxed D E-Mail D Secured D Unsecured 

This Authorization applies to t he following specific information to be disclosed (select from the 
following).1: 
D All health infonnation pertaining to any medical history, mental or physical condition and treatment 

received. Oates include:------- -,.---
[Optional] Except for these specific limitations:! 

D Only include U1e following records or specific types of health 1nfonnation. Dates include:=---------
0 Discharge Summary D Laboratory Tests O EKG 
D Consultation Reports D History/Physical Report O X-Ray Report 
D Emergency Dept Report D Operative/Procedure Report 
D Other (please specify): - ------------ -------- - --

1 understand that this Will include infom1alion relating to (check if applicable): 
D AIDS (Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome) or HIV (Human Immunodeficiency Virus) Infection 
D Psychiatric Care (patient to initial here ) 
D Treatment for alcohol and/or drug abuse. 

EXPIRATION 
This Authorization expires (on the following specific date):_.._30..._..d.,.'l!f~S..__ ____ _____ __ _ 
RESTRICTIONS 
I understand that Californ ia law prohibits the recipient of my health information pursuant to this 
authorization from making further disclosure of my health information unless the Recipient obtains 
another authorization from me or unless such disclosure is specifically required or permitted by law_ 

un ers an a may re se o sign 1s u onza on. 
I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time. My revocation must be in writing, signed by 
me or on my behalf, and delivered to the following address: 4002 Vista Way Oceanside CA 92056. Attn: 
Medical Records/Health Information. 
I understand that my revocation will be effective upon receipt, but will not affect any use or disclosures 
completed prior to receipt of the revocation_ 

~) Tri-Oty Medical Center 
4002 VcSta Way· Oceanside · CA· 112056 

1111111111111111 
8700-1002 

Rt-I' lr-1 ) 

AUTHORIZATION FOR USE 
AND DISCLOSURE 

White - Med Records Ye'. low - Patl@l\f 

Affix Pat·fllt label 

159



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health lnfonnation (PHI) for Fund raising 8610-525 
Page 6 of 8 

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENTS IF REQUESTOR SEEKS THIS AUTHORIZATION3 

I understand that if Requestor seeks this authortzation: 
1. My health infonnation will be used for the following purpose(s): D Continuing Medical Care 

D Insurance D Legal D Other (Please specify) ---- -----------
2. I may inspect or obtain a copy of the health infonnation that I am being asked to use or disclose. 
3. I must receive a copy of this Authorization (pursuant to HIPAA laws and regulations). 
4. Neither treatment. payment, enrollment nor eligibility for benefits will be conditioned on my providing 

or refusing to provide this ;:iuthorization_ However, this does not apply if the Requestor is seeking to 
use the information as follows: (i) to conduct researcl1-related treatment; (ii) to obtain information in 
connection with my eligibility or enrollment in a health plan of which I am not already a member; {iii) to 
enable the Requestor to determine its obligation to pay a claim; or (iv) to create health information to 
provide to a third party_ Under no circumstances, however am I required to authorize the disclosure of 
psychotherapy notes. 

5. Please be aware that once your information leaves Tri-City Medical Center, Tri-City Medical Center will 
no longer be able to protect that information. and the recipients of your information may not be legally 
required to protect your information. 

6. Information disclosed pursuant to this Authorization could be re-disclosed by the recipient and might no 
longer be protected by the federal confidentiality law (HIPAA). 

7. 111ereby release Tri-City Medical Center and its employees and my attending physicians and their 
associates from any and nll legal liability that may arise from the release of this informntion to the party 
named on Page ·1 of this Aut11orization Form. 

SIGNATURE 

Signature-------------------Date/Time ________ .AM/PM 
[PatienUrepresentative/spouselfin;mcially responsible party] 

If signed by someone other than the patient. state your legal relationship to the patient2: 

Witness: _________________________________ ~ 

Authorization for Use or Disclosure of Health Information - Footnote references 

1 This form may not be used to release both psychotherapy notes and other types of health information 
((see 45 CFS§ 164.508(b)(3)(ii)] If this form is being used to authorize the release of psychotherapy 
notes, a separate form must be used to authorize release of any other health infommtion. 

2 A spouse or financially responsible party may only authorize release of medical infonnation for use in the 
following: 

a. to process an application for the patient 
b. as a spouse or dependent for the following: 

a. a health insurance plan or policy 
b. a nonprofit hospital plan 
c. a health care service plan or 
d an employee benefit plan 

For TCMC Medical Records/Health lnform.ition use Only 

MRUN: ______________ _ 
Date Received: ------------

D.ite of Birth: Visits to be Included: _ _ _ ____ __ _ 

SS#:--

Telephone#: _ ___________ _ 
Completed by: ___________ _ 

Distribution: D Mail O Pick-up D CD D Other Signature Date 

160



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fundraising 8610-525 
Page 7 of 8 

SAMPLE 

Completion of this document authorizes the use or disclosure of individually identifiable health information, as set 
forth below, consistent with Califomia and Federal law concerning the privacy of such information. 
Failure to provide all information requested may invalidate this Authorization. 
l#Qltltft>l-ill't.1g:11111;1z11111hi1it>M@l1'''hi 

Patient Name: Date of Birth 
----~---..,~---,--,---------(PI ease print) 

I hereby authorize the use or disclosure of my health infonnation as follows: 
Person/Organization authorized to release (use or disclose) the 
information:' Tri::..CilY MediJ:;al Center __________________ _ 

Person/Organization authorized t 

This Authorization applies to t 
following).': 
D All health information pertain 

Dates include: 
[Optional] Exceptfor these;;· 

D Only the following records or 
0 Discharge Summary 
0 Consultation Reports 
0 Emergency Dept Rep 
0 Laboratory Tests 

D Other 
(please specify)~~-----·~ 

I understand that this will includ 
D AIDS (Acquired Imm 

Infection 
0 Psychiatric Care (pati 
D Treatment for alcohol 

e 

DELETE - replace with 
current version 

lity ): 

aco<le) 
(select from the 

dition and treatment received. 

c: 

rt 

1deficiency Virus) 

1 understand that California law prohibits the recipient of my health infonnation pursuant to this authorization from 
making further disclosure of my health information unless the Recipient obtains another authorization from me or 
unless such disclosure is s ecifically required or permitted by law . 

• 
I understand that I may refuse to sign this Authorization. 
I understand that I may revoke this authorization al any time. My revocation must be in writing, sjgned by me or on 
my behalf. and delivered to the following address: 4002 Vista Way Oceanside. CA 92056. Attn: Medical Records/ 
Health Information. 
I understand that my revocation will be effective upon receipt, but will not affect any use or disclosures completed 
prior to receipt of the revocation. 

AUTHORIZATION FOR USE OR DISCLOSURE 

l!l lillllll llllll lllll i I II 
8700-1002 
(fbv 5115) 

(&>)Tri.City Medical Center 
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside. California 92056 

White-Med Records Yellow-Patient 

161



Administrative Policy Manual 
Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) for Fundraising 8610-525 
Page 8 of 8 

l c SAMPLE ( ( ( 

ADDITIONAL IHGHTS Al\D 1rnoum.Ei\IE~TS IF l~EQllESTOI~ SEEKS THIS AllTllO~IZATIO'\!J 
I understand that if Requestor seeks this authorization: 
1. My health information will be used for the following purpose(s): 0 Continuing Medical Care 

0 Insurance 0 Legal 0 Other (Please specify) _____ _ 
2. I may inspect or obtain a copy of the health information that 1 am being asked to use or disclose. 
3. I fil\.!.Si receive a copy of this Authorization4. 
4. Neither treatment, payment, enrollment nor eligibi lity for benefits will be conditioned on my providing or refusing 

to provide this authorization. However, this does not apply if the Requester is seeking to use the information as 
follows : (i) to conduct research-related treatment; (ii) to obtain information in connection with my eligibility or 
enrollment in a health plan of which I am not already a member; (iii) to enable the Requeslor to determine its 
obligation to pay a claim; or (iv) to create health information lo provide lo a third party. Under no circumstances, 
however am I required to authorize · t . 

5. If this box 0 is checked, I understa er remuneration directly or 
indirectly for the use or disclosure o 

' IGNAHIRE 

Signature 
[Patient/representative/spa 

If signed by someone other than the p 

Witness: 
(Jf you have authorized the 
to keep it confidential, it ma 
recipients of your health infi 
authorization or as specifica 

A 11thorization for Use or Disclosure 

' If the Authorization is being requeste 
referred to as the Rcquestor througho 

2 This form may !lQ1 be used to release 
§ J64.508(b)(3)(ii)]. If this form is b 
be used to authorize release of any ot 

3 The Requestor is to complete this se 
4 Under HIP AA, the individual must 

covered entity for its own uses and di 
5 A spouse or financially responsible p 

DELETE - replace with 
cur rent version 

AM/PM 

ho is not legally required 
alifornia law prohibits 

I with your written 

n such entity shall be 

h information [(see 45 CFS 
notes, a separate fonn must 

t has been requested by a 

ion for use in the following: 
a. to process an application for th 
b. as a spouse or dependent for the~o,...,...,,o=w""1=ng=.=-· _____________ _, 

a. a health insurance plan or policy 
b. a nonprofit hospital plan 
c. a health care service plan or 
d. an employee benefit plan 

MRUN: 
For TCMC Medical Records/Health Information use Only 

Date Received: 

Date of Birth: 
SS#: 

Visits to be Included: 

Telephone#: ------ ---- --

Distribution: U Mail 0 Pick~up 0 CD 0 Other __ _ Completed by: _ 
Signature Date 

162



ISSUE DATE: 08/15 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLIANCE 

SUBJECT: Verification of Identity and 
Authority of Persons Requesting 
Protected Health Information 
(PHI), including Personal 
Representatives 

REVISION DATE{S}:08/15, 02/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-593 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Compliance Content Expert Approval: Olm311/21 
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 4214812/21 
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 06/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 02/19 
Board of Directors Approval: 02/19 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. The purpose of this Policy is to define the steps for verifying the identity and legal 

authority of a person requesting a patient's PHI, including Personal Representatives, prior 
to Disclosure. 

B. DEEINITIONIS): 
1. Authorization: Tlhe written form that complies with Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 and state law that is obtained from the Individual or A-is-
Elf-fleftheir Personal Representative in order for TCHD to ulJse and dQisclose PHI. 

2. Disclosure: Tlhe release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging of PHI outside of 
Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD). 

3. Individual: Tlhe person who is the subject of protected health information. 
4. Personal Representative: Tlhe person who has the authority to act for the Individual in 

making decisions related to health care under state law (except where an unemancipated 
minor has the authority to act as an Individual for certain services or circumstances) or, 
with respect to deceased persons, the person who has the authority to act on behalf of the 
deceased Individual or the Individual's estate as relevant to such personal representation. 

5. Protected Health Information (PHI): !individually identifiable health information 
transmitted or maintained in paper or electronic form that is created or received by 
TCHD and-AJIID 
a. 

b. 
c. 
d. 

6. Use: 

C. POLICY: 

Relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition 
of an individual; orG-R 
Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; orG-R 
Relates to the past, present, or future payment, andANf) 
Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to 
believe the information can be used to identify the individual. 

Tlhe sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD. 

1. TCHD shall take reasonable steps to verify the identity of a person requesting Disclosure 
of a patient's PHI and the authority of such person to have access to the PHI where the 
authority is not known to TCHD. 

163



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 2 of 9 

2. TCHD shall take reasonable steps to verify the legal authority of a patient's Personal 
Representative where TCHD is required to treat such person as the patient. 

3. If, under applicable laws, a Disclosure is conditioned on particular documentation, 
statements or representations from the person requesting the PHI, TCHD may rely, if such 
reliance is reasonable under the circumstances, on documentation, statements or 
representations that, on their face, meet the applicable requirements. 

4. TCHD shall obtain any documentation, statements or representations, whether oral or 
written, from the person requesting PHI when they are a condition of a Disclosure. 

D. PROCEQURE: 
1. Verification of Identity of a Patient 

a. Telephone: A person representing himself or herselfthemselves as a patient can be 
verified using the following information: 
i. Demographic information that can be confirmed in TCHD's (system], 

electronic health record or Patient Accounting system. 
ii. The patient is known to TCHD from prior contact. 

b. In Person: A person representing himself or herselfthemselves as a patient can be 
verified by using the following information: 
i. Presentation of identification such as a driver's license or other official 

photo identification record that would permit TCHD to confirm the identity is 
that of the patient. 

ii. Verbal statements of demographic information that can be confirmed in 
TCHD's [system] electronic health record. 

iii. The patient is known to TCHD from prior contact. 
c. Emancipated minor patients: Aan emancipated minor is deemed equivalent to an 

adult for purposes of determining who may be given access to his or hertheir PHI. 
TCHD shall obtain a copy of the minor's Department of Motor Vehicles identification 
card showing emancipation or a signed Declaration of Emancipation. 

d. Deceased patients: The PHI of a deceased patient is subject to HIPAA privacy 
protections for as long as TCHD maintains the PHI. 
i. TCHD should obtain a copy of the death certificate if the patient's death 

is not otherwise directly known to TCHD. 
ii. TCHD shall follow the procedures for verifying the identity of the patient's 

Personal Representative when responding to requests for Disclosures of PHI 
of deceased patients. 

2. Verification of Identity and Authority of Third Parties 
a. Personal Representative: an individual who may represent the patient and 

authorize TCHD's Use and Disolosure of PHI to the maent of the Personal 
Representative's le13al authority. 
i. TCHD shall verify the identity of the patient's Personal Representative in the 

same manner it would a patient as set forth in this po/icySeetions 1.a and 1.b 
abeve. 

ii. The Personal Representative's authority to act for the patient arises from his or 
her authority under state law to make health care decisions for the patient (or 
in the case of deceased Individuals it may also be to carry out responsibilities 
related to the estate). TCHD shall verify the legal authority of the patient's 
Personal Representative by obtaining and reviewing written documents that 
support the nature and scope of the Personal Representative's legal authority 
under state law. 

iii. The Personal Representative shall provide information and/or 
documents to support his or her authority as follows: 
1) Unless an exception applies, a parent or guardian appointed by the 

Court or other person acting in loco parentis with legal authority to 

164



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 3 of 9 

make health care decisions on behalf of the unemancipated minor: 
Court issued Letters of Guardianship or other legal documents 
evidencing parental rights to make health care decisions. 

2) Surrogate who is 18 years or older and appointed by the patient to 
make health care decisions for the patient: The patient must personally 
inform the supervising provider, orally or in writing, of the appointment 
and it must be promptly recorded in the record. The surrogate 
appointment is effective only during the course of treatment or illness or 
stay or for 60 days whichever is shorter. 

3) Agent named under a Power of Attorney for Health Care or Advance 
Health Care Directive: Vvalid, executed Power of Attorney for Health 
Care Directive form naming the person requesting PHI as the agent 
for health care decisions and may:7 
a) The Power of Attorney for Health Care doo1o1mentMay may 

speoify Specify limitations on an agent's ability to make health 
care decisions on behalf of the patient. For example, it may 
only apply for a specific treatment. In such cases, TCHD 
should not treat the person as the Individual for all purposes 
such as signing an Authorization for the Disclosure. 

b) Tho Power of Attorney for Health Care dooument may May 
oontain Contain conditions precedent to the agent's powers 
such as only applying when the patient is incapacitated. In 
such cases, TCHD should not treat the agent as the patient's 
Personal Representative when the patient is not incapacitated. 

c) Tho PO'.'ier of Attorney dooumont mayMay only Only be a 
General Power of Attorney to manage finances and other 
business. In such cases, TCHD should not rely on the Power 
of Attorney as it does not permit the person to make health 
care decisions for the patient unless it specifically mentions 
the right to make health care decisions. 

4) Guardian or Conservator: Obtain court-issued Letters of 
Guardianship or conservatorship. 

5) Executor or Administrator: Obtain court-issued Letters 
Testamentary of Letters of Administration. 

6) Beneficiary of a deceased patient as defined in Probate Code 
Section 24: Obtain excerpts of the will identifying the beneficiary. 

7) To release PHI to site and sponsor representatives on study 
subject, TCMC must have fully executed study-related patient 
consent on file. 

b. Family, relatives, domestic partners, close friends and other persons designated by 
the patient who are involved in patient's care or payment of the patient's care and 
for notification purposes: TCHD may disclose limited PHI upon verifying the 
following circumstances: 
i. If the patient is available for, or otherwise available prior to a Use or Disclosure 

and has the capacity to make health care decisions, TCHD may uYse or 
dQisclose PHI if it has the patient's agreement; or it provides the patient with 
the opportunity to object and the patient does not express an objection; or it 
can reasonable infer from the circumstance, based on professional judgment, 
that the patient does not object to the Disclosure. For example, an emergency 
room nurse may discuss a patient's treatment in front of the patient's friend 
when the patient asks the friend to come into the treatment room or a patient 
account representative may discuss the patient's bill with their son who is at 
TCHD with the patient. 

165



Administrative Policy Manual ~Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health lnfonnation (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610~593 
Page 4 of 9 

ii. If the patient is not available, or the opportunity to agree or object is not 
practicable because of incapacity or emergency circumstances, TCHD may 
use its professional judgment to determine if the Disclosure is in the best 
interest of the patient and, if so, only disclose the PHI that is directly relevant to 
the person's involvement with the patient's care or payment related to the 
patient's health care or needed for notification purposes. For example, TCHD 
may use professional judgment and experience with common practice to make 
reasonable inferences of the patient's best interest in allowing a person to pick 
up filled prescriptions, x-rays or similar forms of PHI or may provide 
information on a patient's condition to their spouse when the patient is 
unconscious. 

iii. TCHD will not discuss a patient's PHI with family, relatives, domestic partners, 
and close friends if the patient expressly indicates it may not do so. 

iv. When TCHD is permitted to share limited PHI with family, relatives, 
domestic partner, and close friends as provided above, it should not discuss 
past medical information that is unrelated to the patient's current condition., 

c. Public Officials seeking PHI: 
i. Verification of Identity: TCHD may rely, if such reliance is reasonable under 

the circumstances on the following to verify the identity of a person when 
the Disclosure of PHI is to a public official or a person acting on behalf of a 
public official: 
1) For in person requests, presentation of an agency identification 

badge, other official credentials, or other proof of government 
status; 

2) For requests made in writing, the request is on the appropriate 
government letterhead; and 

3) If the Disclosure is to a person acting on behalf of a public official, a 
written statement on appropriate government letterhead that the 
person is acting under the government's authority or other evidence or 
documentation of agency such as a contract for services, 
memorandum of understanding, or purchase order, that establishes 
that the person is acting on behalf of the public official. 

ii. Verification of Authority: TCHD may rely, if such reliance is reasonable under 
the circumstances on the following to verify authority when the Disclosure of 
PHI is to a public official or a person acting on behalf of a public official. 
1) A written statement of the legal authority under which the 

information is requested, or, if a written statement would be 
impracticable, an oral statement of such legal authority; and 

2) If a request is made pursuant to legal process, warrant, subpoena, 
order, or other legal process issued by a grand jury or a judicial or 
administrative tribunal is presumed to constitute legal authority for 
purposes of verification of identity and authority. 

d. Exceptions to Recognizing Persons as Personal Representatives 
i. TCHD may elect not to treat a person as the Personal Representative of a 

patient (adult or minor) if the following requirements are satisfied and the 
election is documented in the patient's record: 
1) TCHD has a reasonable belief that: 

a) The patient has been or may be subject to domestic violence, 
abuse or neglect by such person; 

b) Treating such person as the Personal Representative 
could endanger the patient; and 

2) TCHD, in the exercise of the professional judgment of the health 
care provider, decides it is not in the best interest of the patient to 

166



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHJ), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 5 of 9 

treat the person as the patient's Personal Representative. 
3) TCHD shall consult with be§a!-General Counsel as necessary 

and appropriate regarding the election decision. 
ii. TCHD shall not treat a parent as the Personal Representative of a minor 

in the following circumstances: 
1) If the minor has the authority to consent to medical treatment under 

state law, he or she isthey are generally the person authorized to have 
access to medical records regarding the treatment and to decide 
whether records get released to other persons. If a minor has the right 
to inspection, then TCHD shall not grant a Personal Representative 
access to the minor patient's PHI. 

2) A court determines or other law authorizes someone other than the 
parent to make treatment decisions for a minor. 

3) A provider makes a good faith determination that a parent or other 
legal representative who has authority to consent to treatment would 
have a detrimental effect on the provider's professional relationship 
with the minor. 

4) If the minor has been removed from the physical custody of a parent or 
guardian in a dependency proceeding, the parent or guardian may not 
access the minor's mental health information without a court order. 

e. Legal Review 
i. TCHD Office of Compliance Department and Privacy shall consult with be§al

General Counsel as necessary and appropriate regarding the authority of a 
Personal Representative, issues involving unemancipated minor rights to 
access medical records or any other information relevant to this policy. 

f. Documentation 

E. FORM(S): 

i. TCHD shall retain copies of all documentation obtained for purposes of 
these verification procedures. 

1. Authorization for Use or Disclosure 8700-1002 - Sample 

F. REFERENCE!Sl: 
1. 45 Code of Federal Regulations ( CFR Section 160 .103) 
2. 45 CFR Section 164.502(g) 
3. 45 CFR Section 164.510 
4. 45 CFR Section 164.514(h) 
5. Cal. Health & Safety Code Section 12311 O(g) 
6. Probate Code Section 24 

167



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 6 of 9 

0 0 0 0 0 

Completion of this document authorizes the use or disdosure of individually identifiable health information, as 
set forth below, consistent with California and Federal law concerning the privacy of such information. 
Failure to rovide all information re uested ma invalidate this Authorization. 

Patient Name:------------------ Date of Birth:---- -----
(Please print) 

I hereby authorize the use or disclosure of my health information as follows: 
Person/Organization autl1orized to release (use or discrose) the information: Tri-City Medical Center 

(TCMC or other Entity) 
Person!Organization authorized to rece;ve the information (name and address of entity): 
Name: Pl1one: __________ _ 
Address: City: State: Zip: ____ _ 
Fax: Email.-------------------

1 would like the Health Information. 
O Mailed as: D CD D Paper D Faxed O E-Mail D Secured D Unsecured 
This Authorizat ion applies t o the following specific information to be disclosed (se lect from the 
following).' : 
O All health infonnation pertaining to any medical history. mental or physicnl condition and treatment 

received . Dntes inc lude:-------~--
[Optionnl] Except for these specific limitations:! 

O Only include the following records or specific types of health information. Dntes include: _______ _ 
D Discharge Sumrnnry D Laboratory Tests D EKG 
D Consultation Reports D History/Physical Report D X-Ray Report 
D Emergency Dept Report D Operative/Procedure Report 
D other (plense specify)"-------------------------

! understand that this will include infom1ation relating to (check if applicable): 
D AIDS (Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome) or HIV (Human Immunodeficiency Virus) Infection 
D Psychiatric Care (patient to initial here ) 
D Treatment for alcohol nnd/or drug abuse. 

EXPIRATION 
This Authorization expires [on the following specific date):_30_d_ay,_,,s~------------

RESTRICTIONS 
I understand that California law prohibits the recipient of my health information pursuant to this 
authorization from making further disclosure of my health information unless the Recipient obtains 
another authorization from me or unless such disclosure is specifically required or permitted by law. 

un ers an a may re se o sign 1s onza on. 
I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time. My revocation must be in writing signed by 
me or on my behalf, and delivered to the following address: 4002 Vista Way Oceanside CA 92056. Attn: 
Medical Records/Health Information. 
I understand that my revocation will be effective upon receipt, but will not affect any use or disclosures 
completed prior to receipt of the revocation. 

~&>) Tri-Oty Medical Center 
4002 V"isla Way • Oce•n•ide • CA • 92056 

1111111111111111 
8700-1002 

Re-1 li21' 

AUTH ORIZATION FOR USE 
AND DISCLOSURE 

Whrte • Med Re<:<>rds YE< 10\• - PatJl!flt 

A.'filc PaLe!lt Label 

168



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 7 of 9 

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENTS IF REQUESTOR SEEKS THIS AUTHORIZATION3 

I understand that if Requestor seeks this authorization: 
1. My health infonnation will be used for the following purpose(s): O Continuing Medical Care 

O Insurance O Legal O Other (Please specify) ---------------
2. I may inspect or obtain a copy of ttle health infonnation that I am being asked to use or disclose. 
3. I must receive a copy of this Authorization (pursuant to HIPAA laws and regulations). 
4. Neither treatment, paymen~ enrollment nor eligibility for benefits will be conditioned on my providing 

or refusing to provide this authorization_ However, this does not apply if the Requestor is seeking to 
use the infonnation as follows: (i) to conduct research-related treatment; (ii) to obtain information m 
connection with my eligibi lity or enrollment in a health plan of which I am not already a member; (iH) to 
enable the Requestor to determine its obligation to pay a claim; or (iv) to create health information to 
provide to a third party_ Under no circumstances, however am I required to authorize t11e disdosure of 
psychotherapy notes_ 

5. Please be aware that once your information leaves Tri-City Medical Center, Tri-City Medical Center wlll 
no longer be able to protect that information, and the recipients of your information may not be legally 
required to protect your information. 

6. Information disclosed pursuant to ttlis Authorization could be re-disclosed by tile recipient and might no 
longer be protected by the federal confidentiality law (HIPAA). 

7. I 11ereby release Tri-City Medical Center and its employees and my attending physicians and their 
associates from any and all legal liability that may arise from U1e release of this infom1ation to the party 
named on Page 1 of this Authorization Form. 

SIGNATURE 

Signature-------------------- DatefTime ------~AMJPM 
[PalienVrepresentative/spouse/financ1ally responsible party) 

If signed by someone other than the pattent, state your legal relationship to the patient2: 

Witness: - -------------- --------- - ---------

Authorization for Use or Disclosure of Health Information - Footnote references 

t This form may not be used to release both psychotherapy notes and other types of health information 
((see 45 CFS § 164.508(b)(3)(ii)J- If this form is being used to authorize the release of psychotherapy 
notes, a separate form must be used to authorize release of any other healtll information. 

2 A spouse or financially responsible party may only authorize release of medical infonnation for use in the 
following: 

a. to process an application for the patient 
b. as a spouse or dependent for the following: 

a. a health insurance plan or policy 
b a nonprofit t1ospitat plan 
c. a health care service plan or 
d. an employee benefit plan 

For TCMC Medical Records/Health lnformiltion use Only 

Date Received: ------------MRUN: _______________ _ 

Visits to be Included: Date of Birth: - ------ ------ --------- -
SS#: - -

Telephone#: _ ___________ _ 

Distribut ion: O Mail D Pick-up O co O Other 
Completed by: ___________ _ 

Signt1ture Date 

169



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 8610-593 
Page 8 of 9 

SAMPLE 

Completion of this document authorizes the use or disclosure of individually identifiable health information, as set 
forth below, consistent with California and Federal law concerning the privacy of such information. 
Failure to provide all information requested may invalidate this Authorization. 
llJ!.111131flf..ill1J>.1Htflplllltl1!1illlt:ICIJti1QMCl)t: 

Patient Name: --------------------- Date of Birth 
(Please print) 

l hereby authorize the use or disclosure of my health information as follows: 
Person/Organization authorized to release (use or disclose) the 
information:' Tri-City Mec!jpgl_ Center. 

(TCMC or other Entity) 
Person/Organization authorized to,..~-~~·~--·~---~~~-~-..:.-.,~: 

This Authorization applies to the 
following).': 
0 All health information pertaining 

Dates include: 
[Optional] Except for tTlese speci 

0 Only the following records or sp 
0 Discharge Summary 
0 Consultation Reports 
D Emergency Dept Report 
D Laboratory Tests 

0 Other 
(please specify)~~··----······· 

I understand that this will include ii 
0 AIDS (Acquired lmmuno 

Infection 
0 Psychiatric Care (patient 
0 Treatment for alcohol and 

This Autl1orization expires [on the f 

DELETE - replace with 

current version 

de) 
•lect from the 

n and treatn1ent received. 

cicncy Virus) 

I understand that California law pro 
rnaking further disclosure of my hca"'t"'"'1"'n"lo'°'11=11a"'t1°'o"n-,.u"'n"'e"'s"'s't"'e"'"· =e"'c1"'p"'ie"'n"t~o=rn~11~1s~. a~n~o,,,,ie·r authorization from me or 
unless such disclosure is specificall required or permitted by law. 

I understand that I may refuse to sign this Authorization. 
I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time. Mv revocation must be in writing. signed by me or on 
my behalf, and delivered to the following address: 4002 Vista Way Oceanside, CA 92056. Attn: Medical Records! 
Hcallh Information. 
I understand that my revocation will be effective upon receipt, but will not affect any use or disclosures completed 
prior to receipt of the revocation. 

AUTHORIZATION FOR USE OR DISCLOSURE 

llllml~lllllllllllll ~' Tri-City Medical center 
8700..1002 4002 Vista \Vay, Oceanside, California 92056 
(Rti~ SnS) White-Med Records Yellow·Patient 

170



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance 
Verification of Identity and Authority of Persons Requesting Protected Health Information (PHI), including Personal Representatives 861 O-sg3 
Page 9 of 9 

( SAMPLE l ( ( 

AODITIO'.'iAL IUGH"I S A~U REQl11REi\1ENTS IF l~EQll E~TOR SEEKS THIS AllTHORIZATIOi\'3 

I understand that if Requestor seeks this authorization: 
1. My health infonnation will be used for the following purpose(s): 0 Continuing Medical Care 

0 Insurance 0 Legal 0 Other (Please specify) 
2. I may inspect or obtain a copy of the health infonnation that I am being asked to use or disclose. 
3. I must receive a copy of this Authorization4. 
4. Neither treatment, payment, enrollment nor eligibility for benefits will be conditioned on my providing or refusing 

to provide this authorization. However, this does not apply if the Requestor is seeking to use the information as 
follows: (i) to conduct research-related treatment; (ii) to obtain information in connection with my eligibility or 
enrollment in a health plan of which I am not already a member; (i ii) to enable the Requestor to determine its 
obligation to pay a claim; or (iv) to create health information to provide to a third party. Under no circumstances, 
however am I required to authorize the disclosure of psychotherapy notes. 

5. If this box 0 is checked, I understand the Re uestor ma receive com ensation or other remuneration directly or 
indirectly for the use or disclosure of m 

Signature 
(Patient/representative/spouse 

If signed by someone other than the patic 

Witness: 
(If you have authorized the disc 
to keep it confidential, it may b 
recipients of your health inform 
authorization or as specifically 

A11tlrorh;atio11 for Use or Disclosure of 

1 If the Authoriz.ation is being requested b 
referred to as the Requestor throughout t 

2 This form may not be used to release bo 
§ J 64.508(b)(3){ii)]. If this form is being 
be used to authorize release of any other 

3 The Rcquestor is to complete this sectio1 
4 Under HIP AA, the individual must be pr 

covered entity for its own uses and disc! 
s A spouse or financially responsible party 

a. to process an application for the pa 
b. as a spouse or dependent for the fo 

DELETE - replace with 

current version 

a. a health insurance plan or p~._ ____________ ____ ___, 

MR.UN: 

b. a nonprofit hospital plan 
c. a health care service plan or 
d. an employee benefit plan 

For TCMC Medical Records/Health Information use Only 
Date Received: 

AM/PM 

·~ not legally required 
ornia law prohibits 
th your written 

h entity shall be 

formation [(see 45 CFS 
es, a separate form must 

been requested by a 

for use in the following: 

Date of Birth: 
SS#: Visits to be Included: ----------

Telephone#: --------

Distribution: 0 Mail 0 Pick-up 0 CD 0 Other ___ _ Completed by: _ 
Signature Date 

171



ISSUE DATE: 11/14 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT POLICY MANUAL 

SUBJECT: Culture Follow Up Emergency 
Department 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Department of Emergency Medicine Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

WM06/20 
WM04/22 

n/a 
03tM09/22 
11/22 
'1-0l-14 n/a 
11/14 

1. To define the procedure by which Emergency Department (ED) Nurses track, review, and follow 
up positive cultures in the Emergency Department on discharged patients. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
6-1. Culture: Any urine, wound, cerebral spinal fluid (CSF), respiratory or other bodily fluid culture 

that is obtained in the Emergency Department. on a discharged patient. 
2. Positive Culture is defined as bacteria in the lungs, urine, gastrointestinal tract, blood, or 

CSF. 
3. Positive cultures are identified by the laboratory, based on specific criteria and filtered to 

the Emergency Department via the electronic medical record to "Positive Culture 
Results."is defined as: 
a. Urine: Any fu:@! positive report that indicates greater than100,000 efu/ml in patients 

greater thand6 months, or greater than10,000 efu/ml in patients loss thand6 months old. 
b. Wound/Stool: Any final positive report 
o. Respiratory (ineluding flu, RSV, pharyngeal): any sroliminarv or final positive report. 
d. Other Cultures: Any final positive report 

4. Negative Culture: Any oulturo that does not moot tho above eritoria. 
a. Traeking Board: Emergency Department elootronio traol<ing system. 
6. "Positive Culture Results" Tab: Tho subset of tho Tracking Board that filters for positive culture 

results. 
+A. Ad Hoo Charting: Tho section in Corner utilized by Providers to document in "Forms." 

a. "ED Nurse Culture Results Review Form" in AdHoc: The particular form that should be 
utilized by nurses to document culture follow up actions. 

&5. Antibiotic Sensitivities: Those are listed on the form and 2'"4 page of a positive eulturo report 
an4-help to guide treatment. 
a. "S"=Suscoptiblo. The bacteria will be killed by the listed antibiotic 
b. "R"=Resistant. Tho bacteria will NOT be killed by tho listed antibiotic. 
c. "!"=Intermediate. Tho bacteria might or might not be killed by tho listed antibiotic 

9-,6. Common "equivalent" names for antibiotics 
a. Septra or Bactrim = Trimothoprim/Sulfamothoxazolo 
b. Koflox = Cophelexin=Cofazolin (per Dr. Smith 2-27-14 for UTls) 
c. Cipro = Ciprofloxacin 
d. Lovaquin = Lovofloxacin 
o. Macrobid or Macrodantin = Nitrofurantoin 

172



Emergency Department Policy Manual 
Culture Follow Up 
Page 2 of 3 

B-,C. POLICY 
1. The designated ED Nurse will review the Positive Culture Results Tab once per day 
2. The designated ED Nurse will follow the procedure outlined below to eliminate all positive 

cultures that do NOT require MD/PA follow up action. 
3. The designated ED nurse will document in the EHR any and all actions taken on each patient. 

I G,D. FUNCTION OF THE "POSITIVE CULTURE RESULTS" TAB: 
1. Displays all Preliminary and Final culture results from the Microbiology lab at TCMC. 
2. Completely negative cultures will not show up. 
3. Positive cultures will automatically drop off list after 14 days. 

a. All follow up must be completed within 14 days 
4. The "Follow Up" column has a drop-down menu attached to it 

a. If this "Follow Up" column is EMPTY, no work has been done on this patient 
b. If this "Follow Up" column shows START, that indicates that an RN or MD/PA has begun 

to work on this patient. 
c. If one clicks COMPLETE in the- "Follow Up" column, the patient will be permanently 

deleted from the tracking screen 

I G.cE. PROCEDURE 

i. COMPLETE should only be clicked when the patient requires no further action or 
follow up by ANY provider. 

ii. Do not click COMPLETE until all necessary follow up has been completed. 

1. Print Screen of "Positive Culture Results" tab on Tracking Screen 
a. A printout MUST be made of the Culture Results Tracking screen BEFORE any action is 

taken for the day 
b. This printout must be done on a daily basis and placed in the Culture Results binder 

located in the Emergency Department. 
c. To print list click on the "print" button on right side of screen. 

2. Positive Blood or CSF Culture 
a. All positive Blood and CSF cultures (preliminary or final) will be addressed by the 

designated MD/PA. on duty in Fast Track or Station D. 
3. Positive Ascitic, Penile, Pharyngeal, Pleural, Stool, Urine, Vaginal, or Wound Culture:Yfifle 

Culture 
a. Open patient's chart and review the positive culture report 

i. If it is a PRELIMINARY report, take no action 
ii. If the FINAL REPORT is negative, as per laboratory guidelines, document in 

the "ED Nursing Culture Results Review Form", "Culture reviewed. Not 
clinically significant. No further action warranted." shows less than100,000 
sfu/ml (or less than10,000 cfu/ml for patients less than36 months), Click click, 
"COMPLETE" in the Follow Up Column on the Tracking Screen to permanently 
remove the patient. 
1) Document all actions taken in Ad l=loc Charting under "ED Nursing 

Culture Results Review" Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. 
Not clinically significant. No further action warranted." 

iii. If the FINAL REPORT is positive, as per laboratory guidelines follow the 
following steps: shows greater than100,000 cfll/ml (or greater than10,000 
cfu/ml for patients less than36 months), 
1) Review Clinical Notes and/or Medication List 

b. If an antibiotic was not prescribed -7Click START in the Follow Up Column on the 
Tracking Screen. 
i. Document all actions taken in Ad l=loc Charting under "ED Nursing Culture 

Results Review" Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. No antibiotic was 
prescribed. Referred for follow up by MD/PA." 

173



Emergency Department Policy Manual 
Culture Follow Up 
Page 3 of 3 

c. If an antibiotic Y!@§ prescribed 
i. Compare the prescribed antibiotic to the list of "susceptible" antibiotics on the 

positive culture report 
ii. If the prescribed antibiotic matches one of those listed as "susceptible," Click 

COMPLETE in the Follow Up Column on the Tracking Screen to remove the 
patient 

iii. Document all actions taken in Ad l=loc Charting under "ED Nursing Culture 
Results Review" Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. Correct antibiotic 
already prescribed. No further action warranted." 

d. If the prescribed antibiotic does NOT match one of those listed as "susceptible," click 
START in the Follow Up Column on the Tracking Screen to refer it to the MD/PA. 
i. Document all actions taken in Ad Hoc Charting under "ED Nursing Culture 

Results Review" Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. Not sensitive to 
prescribed antibiotic. Referred for follow up by MD/PA." 

,..,_ __ Positive Pharyngeal, Stool, Vaginal, Penile, Pleural Fluid, Ascitic Fluid, or lJVound Culture 
a. Reviel'.' patient's ohart (Clin ~Joles andlor Medication list) 
b. If an antibiotic was not prescribed, 
i. Cliok START in the Follow Up Column on the Traoking Screen. 
1) Document all actions taken in Ad Hoo Charting under "ED Nursing Culture Results Reviel'/' 

Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. No antibiotic prescribed. Referred for follow up by 
MD/PA." 

o. If an antibiotio :lfil§ prescribed 
i. Compare the presoribed antibiotic to the list of "susceptible" antibiotics on the positive culture 

fel36f! 
ii. If the prescribed antibiotio matches one of those listed as "susceptible," Click COMPLETE in the 

Follow Up Column on the Tracking Screen to remove the patient 
1) Document all actions tal10n in /\d l=loc Charting under "ED ~Jursing Culture Results Review" 

Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. Correct antibiotic already prescribed. No further 
aotion warranted." 

d. If the prescribed antibiotic does NOT match one of those listed as "susoeptible," cliok START in 
the Follow Up Column on the Traoking Screen to refer it to the MDIP/\. 

i.4. Document all actions talion in Ad Hoo Charting under "ED Nursing Culture Results Review" 
Form. In this ease, chart "Culture Reviewed. Not sensitive to prescribed antibiotic. Referred for 
follow up by MDIP/\. 

5. Positive Influenza or RSV 
a. Click COMPLETE in the Follow Up Column on the Tracking Screen to remove the 

patient 
i. Document all actions taken in Ad Hoc Charting under "ED Nursing Culture 

Results Review" Form. In this case, chart "Culture Reviewed. Not clinically 
significant. No further action warranted." 

174



SeGtien: Emergensy Preparedness 
Management 

+RI GI+¥ M15DIGAb Gl5N+15R 
Sul>jeGt: lnflu* af lnfestieus Patient: 

Emergensy Preparedness Management liipfrJemiG IRflueR;z;a af' athef' 
Re5J3if'atary Tf'aRsmitted Disease 

PeliGy NurnaeF: 4006 IG ~li.OPa§e q ef 4 
DepaFtrnent: lfaspital Wide 

E-F 
DELETE - follow Infection Control 
Policy: Influx of Infectious Patient: 
Epidemic Influenza or other 
Respiratory Transmitted Disease 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administrative Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

1) Purpose: 
Provise a plan to manage patients requiring Droplet or Airborne Precautions when the availability of re oms, staff, 
supplies or other recourses are limites 
a) Supportive Data: 

Influenza episemic or pansemic are sifferent from many threats for which public health ans the health care 
system are currently planning i,i: 

1) A paneemic will last much longer than most other emergency events ans may incluee "waves" of influenza 
activity separates by months (in 20th century pansemics, a secons wave of influenza activity occurres 3 to 12 
months after the first wave). 

2) The numbers of health care workers ans first responsers available to worl< can be e><pectes to be resucee; 
they will be at high risk of illness through eJ<posure in the community and in health care settings, ans some 
may have to miss work to care for ill family members. 

~ecause of how widespread an influenaa pandemic, resouroes in many locations could be limited. 

2) Policy: 
a) Most lil<e scenarios that would result in an inflw< of infectious patients 

( i) Episemic influenaa 
(ii) Eflidemio gas\roenteritis 
(iii) Epidemic eJ<posure to suspected biological agent 
(iv) Epidemic biological agent (such as smallpox) 

3) Procedure: 
a) bevel 1 1 § or more patients waiting for bed placement 

( i) Notify Administration ED Charge Pl~J 
(ii) Assess all current inpatients for discharge or transfer potential Administrative Coordinator 
(iii) Contact local skilled nursing facilities for sod availasility Case manager 
(iv) Contact Puslic l=lealth Department for cooreination of patient placement Infection Coffirol 
(v) Notify all Directors Aeministrative Coordinator 
(vi) Exceee t14e stale mmidaled nurse flalienl ratio, if neeeee Cl4ief Nurse El<eculive 
(vii) Post security at ED entrances Senior Director Support Services 

s) bevel 2 2§ or more patients wailing for see placement 
(i) Activate Code Orange Chief Executive Office 

c) Need for Airsorne Precautions 
(i) Use negative pressure rooms: 143, 243, 443, 2g7, 3g7, 4g7 ans 200 

175



SeGti(lA: EmeFgeAGY PFepaFet:IAess 
MaAagemeAt 

TRI CITY MeDICAb CeNTeR 
SubjeGt: IAflUll af IAfeGtiaus PatieAt: 

EmeFgeAGY PFepaFet:IAess MaAagemeAt lipidemiG IRflueRZoa a!' e#!e~ 
Respiratery TraRsmitted Disease 

PeliGy NumbeF: 4006 IC ~ 5.0Pa§e ~ ef 4 
· I \Al't:le DepaFtmeAt: Mesp1ta. • •1--

eFFeCTl\le: ~;l.105 IAfeGtleA -9A·F9· ----· . c t 1 Cemmittee 

A'loRaF · SeFvises) 
(ii) Use private rooA1 with portable l=IE~A.~:~~~i~~~it~laRd us~ this buildiRg fer pat1eRts v,he require ... CoRsider A'lOViRg pat1eRtS out of ~e av "-

(111) AiFllome PresautioRs . . OA1A1issieR: The SouFse, August 2004 IRflueR2'a 
'-PrepariRg Im aR IRflux of IRle?tious ~at1e:~~;::R~f~ealth iileFYises, iilepteA'lber 2001 Page 1 ef4 
PaRdeA1ic RespoRse Plan. Callfe'.nia ep . 

d) ~leed fer Droplet Presaut1ons . .. ·1 bl See 3.3.1 and 2.2.2 (lnfluen2'a 1=18~11 only) (i) Use negative pressure roeA1, if ava1 a e. 
(ii) Private reem_s . 
(""") Cehort "'ith like illness f 

;::.'.) SeA1i pF;,'ate rooA'l, A'lainta_in 2 fe~!~::~I~ 1~:eA1s 1 2 (Child Care.to Annex 0) 
(") Create patient sare areas IA then I. let ('ctivate Surge Capacity Tents) (:,i) Create patient sare meas in the par<ing n 

e) Meed fer Contast Presautions 
(.) Pri"ate FOOA1S 

~ : Cohort with like oonditioR . 

l:: /) iileA1i private rooA1, with low nsk ~os~~=:I~ RooA'ls 1 :i (Child Care to Annex 0) 
( i .. ) Create patient car: areas in then '-0ti"ale Surge Capac:ty Ten\s) 

f) Cr;ate pat'ent care areas :n tf\e ~ab~ng9;o~~~iar;s a Public l=lealth EA1ergency 
(i) San Qi ego _County _l=le~ g§g 

1
: 88 828§ (24/7 availability) 

(ii) '.?ot.'.a~t ~o~:~ ~~~~~: (if not already activated!. p deA1iC lnfluen2'a and Other l=lighly Infectious (111) nG i .a e . l=lealth and l=luA'lan iilerv1ses, an 0§ 

. ' t A1S fellowing SUSpSG e clAO» (ii) CoA1pat1ble SyA'lp o ) 

MM' I '"n el<posure (suspeot ease si"e 
"""""7 1· . I 'A1PtDA1S fello"'ing suspeoted or ~no~ I ratures > 101' F (2g'C) on two susses ' (iii) 'typisal s 1rnoa S) ·· b febrile "'ith era teA1pe 

(iv) Contasts under suFYeillanco that esoA'le ' . 

readings. . d 'A1 toA'ls sush as soughing OF snee_2'1Ag d ending on their A1edisal 
(v) Individuals with.~ther ass_o~_ia!~ h?alt: sare A'lay be isolated in a hosj~al, bu~B~ity OF sE;A1A1Unity based 
("i) Ill persons re~u1nng spes1: 12'_ I ted at hoA'le or in a designated heat sare 
' d sons A'lay also -~e iso a I 

nee s, per . 1 d and '"ill be utilized first un ess a ~ · I lion 1s pre.errs~ ~ · h h A'le ("ii) For no.n hospital isolation, hoA'lelperslonal ress~d::~eo1:::iranae with isolation or at risk persons IA t ea , sontraindioation exists sush as hoA'le essne ' , 

with inability to A'laintain s~pa~at1°i7. "'ill be ooordinated with the EMS QOC. rt f to an 1solat1on ~GI I f" (viii)Tr~nspo a ion j ~ d available, ooRtaot iiltation M. 
h) If there 1s RD hospita e . . , t be available. 

i) PrepR]\la!ffs .'BEfliti'om~~l~sility if vassiRe is available. ~IOTE: Prop:yla~1:u~:~o~~ases A1USt use Standard aRd 
(i) Required fer e~tFY o" .1 hi . di"iduals workiRg with soRflrA'le aR (") If no "rophylax1s is a.a1 a~ e, IA ' ll I"" • 

Qreplet Presaut1ons. 

176



SeGtion: ~mergensy PreJlaredness 
· anagement 

TRI CITY MEOICAb CENTER 

Emergensy Preflaredness M 
SubjeGt: ~~:;~~~fe;tieus Patient: 

· anagement · • •R ~eRta o· #! 
Re5J3iFateF}' .,:, -:,_ O.....eF P (" 4aR5fR•ttedD" 

-O·IGY Number· 
400 

· ···---1sease 
. 6 IC 15.0Page 1 of 4 

Oepartme t· . n · Hospital Wide 
ErrECTll.lE: 12105 I . • F1fest10F1 Centro! C . emm1ttee 

(iii) S!Fist FespiFaleFy hygieAe te . I ins ude frequeAt haAd h , )§Jene aAd FAasl1s FAUS! alse se I eA erned. 

j) &taffinf!: 
(i) MaiAtain pre 8 id . (ii) If the AUFAser :Ad et~1s staffiA§ levels, if pessisle 

additieAal staff FA a ~pes ef staff are insuffisient te 
... el Cede 0Fan§e !:eel~ requested thrnu§h the ce:.:~~t the Reeds of the nuFAser of 

(111) DesigAate the Plan . s1dent CeFAFAaAdeF will· ) EFAeF§eAsy OpeFatiens C t petple seiAg sentained 

M n.;, '"°''·' "' ,..::,::::.':"" "" '''? , '"' '""""'' ... " " @Cl') Mnwoi<oo 
(v) The list will inslude the SFA '~ sellabeF.at1en with the Pusli al~ who san. enteF the fasility 

and fas11ity FAaintenaAse a ,est. pess18le nuFAser ef ee s ealth Off1seF and/eF the a. . 

l'"l """""- '°"'""' ':')''"'· """" ,,.,:' :• "'""' "' """ ~· :••"~"'''"'' 
(
:.:. '"" "" ~" .. '""'"' ;,"· ' ' ,_, .. -"""· ,,,.... '?"". '"~"''"''"· 
,11) The Safeti• and S . e Personnel Peel \Jn't b eepm§, dietary, and 
FJ es<1r1ty Qff ' eader eF d . es.~ntly prnphylaJ(ed with;, 1ser OF designee will ensemgnee. laBilliy ,ass1ne er anti"iral 'f . uFe !Rat all peFSOAA I h 

(viii) The H<1man Rese<1r . v s ' a••a1la8le aAd aFe en the lis~ :i·;:d~~~eF ihe fasility have seen 

(1) EAsure that eFAp~ee~ D1rnster eF designee will· v ua s whe FAay enteF the 

uffiil.. yees FAeAJtOF aAd re : (a) 14 , pert the1F teFAperatuFe and a A , S" 
(8) daysalteFtheyaF8" . y ,FApteFAsever"12h 

14 da)'S aft th 'asrnnated eF ' euFs 
( ) SF ·HSY seFApl t d · 

(4) Untila;: ~y~pteFAs. Feperted. peFseA s vassinatieA, antiviral~eFsetAs whe enter and leave 
a:,s after IFAFAUAiz . rea FAent status teFA ' 

peFSGAnel will shesk theiF t at1Gfl,f}flse vass1Ae is availasl , perature 

~:~~t~~~r ~:eFAr~:::=~e~ e:::::~!~:s ~~~Ze 1:e:::;s~ /\t ~~=rs~~~r!li~~e:f e:a~%ti~~i~ t~eFapy, all 
the waiting peried is e" e e IA telepheAe seAtast eas ss1gAed le FAeniter eFAple ·ees', ey are te 
are sti!I requiFee le re veF, perseAAel are Aet requir d th FAemmg le re pert !RelF t:FA Realth. On eff 

(a) fitaff witR fesrile e pert aAy illness. e e rnut1nely shesk ttieir t peratures. 0Ase 

(e) Patients with er I ;al leFAperatures >JB'C en t'"' . eFAperatuFes. They 
Droplet "'·eoa ~- 8FAperatures >JB'C eA P"'O we SUGG8GGIV8 readiA§S "'ill A t 13 

(il() 

:::: ..;;;,;;;,',:":.!:!:':~·· ,,;;;,;;; ::~o;:: ';: !:.':''"" ~" ;;;,.:;,;,:,::;::, ';'~ . ... ::.' " "" ........... ;;;::;,:::~:.'[;' "" '"'"'"'· " ,~:,::::~ -:: ,,.,., ~ ... : 
EJ(leAded EpideFA· p OFAJ!e) mutes, theA Centaot :._ susp~st pathegen 
( 1) :;; . 

16 
RIGRITIES ' 'eoau~·ens will se 

(
2

) "ustained staffng 
.ass1ne asquisiti . . 

(<!) AAtiviral FAedisati:n aAEI d1stn8utien n asqu1s11ieA aAd distrisutien 

177



Sestien: EmeFgensy PrnpaFeelness 
Management 

+RI Gl=I=¥ Me!;JIGAb GE:N=l=E:R 
Subjest: lnflu* ef lnfestieus Patient: 

EmeFgensy PFeparnelness Management iipidemis mflueni!a e.e e#leF 
ReSf3iratery Transmitted Disease 

Pelisy NumaeF: 4006 IG ~ 5.0l=la§!e ~ el' 4 
l;lepaFtment: 14espital JA!iele 

E:F'.F'.E:G=l=IVE:: ~<!,105 lnfestien Gentrnl Gemmittee 

( 4 ) Mask supply anEI reuse 
(5) BeEI availability 
( e) Security 

StaffiAg aAEI Cons'1Eler housing Re'luest staff fronn Train aEIElitional staff 
J*>SSible 'lllaraAtiAe staff at hospital outsiEle affecteEI to perlornn non 

areas critical lunct1ons 

MeeliGatieA sllpply Re'luest aEIElitional Re prioritize 
vaooine anEI antiviral vaccination anEI 

nneElioations antiviral Elistribution 
strategies 

Use available private CoAsiEler transler to Bed availability 
. another lacility cohort with reams; 

lil1e illness 

d' A 

AppeA ix• • . PaAdemio Stage DefiAitieA World Health OrgaAizatieA ('JI/HO) Stages ef Alert Phases ef a PaAdem1G 

~Jovel (new) Virus Alert . ore hunnans 
novel virus EleteoteEI IA one or nn: 
little or no innnnunity in the general population . 
potential, but not inevitable preoursor to a panElenn10 . 

PanElennio Alert t . El erson to person transnnission anEI oauses nnultiple oases in the sanne • novel virus Elennonstrates sus rnne p 
geographio area 

PanElennio lnnnninent h' h t 1 rnorbiElity anEI nnortality in wiElespreaEI geographio novel virus causing unusually ig ra es o 
areas PanElennio . 

• lurther spreaEI with involvernent al nnultiple continents 

SeoonEI Wave I II nEI the panElennic appears to be enEling, typioally a seoonEI wave al oases , alter the nurnber of oases ;a s a 
ooours within se'leral, nnonths 

PanElennio Over . El . .., .. "es" aooornpanieEI by the return (in the U.S.) al tloe rnore • cessation ef suocess1ve pan emic v<3v , 

typioal wintertinne "epiElennic" cycle 

178



iNFECTION CONTROL MANAGEMENT OF BT AGENTS Appendix A 4006 IC EDpage 1 of 6 
1 

8AG+eRIA -StaAdaFd PFeGalltiaAs feF all patieAts aAEl all aspests ef patieAI saFe. DELETE - follow Infection 

• PFeveAt EliFest 69Atast witA all seEly fl1:1iEls (iAsl1:1EliA§ sleeEl), 
Control Policy: Influx of 

·~ Infectious Patient: sesFeti9AS, exsFeli9AS, A9A iAlast skiA (iAsl1:1EliA§ rnsl:les) .... i 
·~ 

aAG ffil:l691:1S memsFaAeS. . Epidemic Influenza or other 
.{ 

HaAElwasi:liA§, §leves wi:leA seAtast witl:l ase't'e . 
l Respiratory Transmitted Disease • "'! ., 

• Maskfeye pFetestieA#ase sl:lielEl wl:lile per:feFmiA§ pFeseEl1:1Fes ~ 11 Ti [g I!~ I• tl:lat sa1:1se splasl:l/sprny. I 

I i t 
b ::..> 

I ~ 

i ] 
1 '5 I') :12 11[5 

I II I) 
!rj GewAs te pFetest skiA aAEl sleti:liA§ El1:1FiA§ pFeseEl1:1Fes. c, 

,2 ,2 i 
t 

11B ~ rruir 11~ I> 11 
> ~ ii ~ 

,... 

~ 
II 

~ : • I ~ 
' I~ 118 ~ 

\, 'l:!:!l • fi •~~II~ 
.._ 

I~ i: I> i <~ ~ ~ • . . ' .. . " Jo rn 11n - 111) 111> 10 
-

+FaAsmissiaA based PFeGalltiaAs 
GeAtast PFesa1:1tieAs x x 
AiFsaFAe PFesa1:1tiaAs x x 
blse af N95 mask sy all iAEli1,iiEl1:1als eAleFiA§ !Fie F99m x 
blFeplet i;;!Fesa1:1tieAs x x 
IP,lasl:l AaAGS wi!A aAlimisFasial saap x x x x 
PatieAt PlaGemeAt 
Na FeslFistiaAs x x xx x x 
Gal:leFt 'like' patiaAls wi:laA pFi't•ate Feem 1:1Aa»1ailasle x x x x x 
PFi't'ale Raam x x x x x xx x 
~Je§atii.•e PFess1:1Fe x 
blaaF slase9 al all limes x x 
r"ll '"-~--• T--- --- -- -
~Ja FeSIFistiaAS x x x x x x x x 
bimit me11emeAt ta esseAtial me9isal p1:1Fpeses aAly x x x x x xx x 
i;;!lase mask eA patieAt ta miAimi20e ElispeFsal af 9Faplets x x xx 
l"'I~--·~~ n:-· ~ - . - LC-.• 

·~ · - - - - ·~ -
AfteF blG Fe1:1tiAe teFmiAal sleaAiA§ witl:l Fiaspital appFeve9 El isiAfestaAt x x x x xx x x x x x 
blisiAfest s1:1Ffases witl:l sleasl:l/wateF sel. ~ :9 HQ% sel.) xx x x x 
ble9isate9 eEj1:1ipmeAt ElisiAfesteEl pFieF ta leaviA§ Fearn x x x 
biAeA maAa§emeAt as "'"itl:l all eti:leF palieAts x x x x x x x x xx x x x x x x 
Ra1:1tiAe me9isal waste i:laA91e9 peF iAteFAal palisy x x x x x x x x xx x x x x x x 
n:- • ·- "-•---- .6 

~ 

~Je spesial 9issi:laF§9 iAStF1:16li9A A969SSaFy x x x x x x x x x x x 
Harne saFe pFevi9eFS SA91:11G se tal:l§At StaA9aF9 PFesa1:1tieAS x x x x x 
PatieAI 9issi:laF§e9 fFem l:lespital wi:leA As leA§eF iAfestie1:1s x x x 
i;;!atieAt 9issi:laF§e9 n Fie1:1Fs afteF aAtisietiss semplete9 x 
Past maFtem CaFe 
blFeplet PFesa1:1tieAs x 
AiFseFAe PFesa1:1tieAs x 
blse ef N95 mask sy all iA9ivi91:1als eAteFiA§ !Fie Fearn x 
~Je§ali1,ie PFess1:1Fe x 
GeAlast i;;!Fesa1:1tieAs x x 
Re1:1liAe teFmiAal sleaAiA§ will:l l:laspital appFe1,ie9 ElisiAfestaAI x x x x x xx x x x x x 
blisiAfest s1:1Ffases witl:l sleasi:l.UNaleF sel. ~ :9 (rn% sel.) x x x x 

Continued on next page 

179



ma- ·- - .. 
Bieterrerism l::liffereAtial IAitial laberatery & ether Immediate publis health & SyAElreme +hreat l::lisease l::liagAesis - EliagAestis test results iAfestieA GeAtrel astieAs 

Disseoting IAhalatieAal AAthrax: GF!est l< Fay with wiEleneEI ~letily DepaFtment ManageF te 
aGFti£ A9F11pt enset el leveF; meEliastin11m; gFam initiate 13+ l'llan. AleFt laseFateFY 
ane11Fysm, oh est pain; FespiFateFy pesitive 13aoilli in 91eeEI; te pessisility el antFIFal<. 

AG..ie inhalatiena ElistFess witF!o11t Eleliniti;•e testing a;•ailaele StanEiaFEI !2FOoa11tions. 
Res pirate~· I antFIFal<, FaEiiegFapF!io linElings el thFe11gh p1191io health 

l::listress FJl:llmonai:y pne11menia; ne l'listeFY el laseFateFy netweFk. 
with Fever emeelism tFa11ma eF GAFenio 

Elisease; in 24 :0@ AFS. 
pFegmss ien te sFieok & 
Elealh. 

Gemm11nity F!AeumeAiG Plague: GFam negati;•e 13aoilli GF blFGplet i2Feoa11tiens (s11Fgioal 
ae~11iFeEI AppaFOnt se>;efe oeeoeeaoilli in sputa, 91eeEI mask leF all). Netily 
pne11menia, G9fllfllllnit)' ao~lliFSEI eF lympl'l neEle; salet1• pin DepaFtment ManageF te initiate 
FlantaviFllS pne11menia 911t with appeaFanoe wi!Fi WFight eF 13+ l'llan. Asl1 lamily 

AG..ie l211lmenafY hemeptysis, Giemsa stain; Elelinitive memseFslolose oontaots el 
Res pi Fate~· SynEIFGme, oyanosis, testing a'lai.laele lhF01,1gF! pati,ent te stay al \he l'lospi\al 

Cist•ess meningococ gastFGin\estinal p11131io health laseFateFy (ii alFeaEly pFesent) leF p1191io 
with Fever G-em1a, symptems, sF!ook netweFk. FiealtFI inteP;iew & pessiele 

pne11menio ofiemepFephylaxis; get EletaileEI 
plague, aEIEIFess & pF!ene n11ml3eF 
Fiokettsiesi inleFmatien. AleFt la13eFateFy te 
s pessieilit)' el plague. 

l'llag11e, Q Gfiest K Fay with p11lmenaFy Netily QepaFtment ManageF RisiA {aereseli~eEI): 
le-vef, Ao11te enset el le>•eF, ohest ~oal te initiate 13+ l'llan. <>tanElmEI 

AG..ie <>tapF!yleooo 
pain anEI oe11gFI, 

FlealtF! DepaFtment l'lrnoa11tiens. 
Res pirate~· G-al FegaFEiing speoimen pF9§F8SSing te FespiFateFy 

l::listress enteFGtexin ElistFess & hypel<emia; net oelleotien anEI Eiiagnestio 
with Fever g, testing prooeEl11FOs. 

13etteF alleF antieietios; phosgene, 
eeatFi in :>€l 72 hFs. t11laFemia 

lnll11en2a, Sta1>h>tlesessal l'lFimaFily olinioal Netily DepaFtment ManageF 

AG..ie 
aEienoviF11s, eAteFetexiA 8: Eiiagnesis. Gens11lt witF! te initiate 13+ l'llan. <>tanElaFEI 

RespirateF)' 
myoeplasm /\,011te onset el leveF, ohills, booal Flealth DepaFtment i2FOoa11tions. 
a heaElaoF!e, non pFeEl11otive FOgaFEiing speoimen 

l::listress 
with Fever oe11gh & myalgia oolleotion anEI Eliagnostio 

(inll11en2a lil1e) witF! a testing prooeEl11FOs. 
NGRMAb oF!est l< Fay. 

VaFioella, Small(!ex: l'lap11laF Fash Glinioal with la13oFateFY Gall lnleotion GentFel anEI 
ElisseminateEI with le>;eF that eegins on senliFmation; vaosinateEI, QepaFtment ManageF te initiate 
~ the laoe anEI extFemities gownee anEI gleveEI peFson 13+ l'llan. Gentaet ane AiFBOFne 
i!<'lSlef;. anEI 11nileFmly pFogFesses estains speoimens (ssass !2Fesa11tions Fe~11iFeEI. Asl1 
i,iaceinia, to vesisles anEI p11st11les; eF swabs el vesio11laF eF lamily memeeFslslese sentaots 

Aoute Rash menkeypox, AeaeaoAe, vomilin§, eaok p'1St11lar llHiEI). Gall p1!13lio el pa\ien\ to slay al the hospital 
pain, anEI EleliFi11m FiealtF! immeEliately 9eleFe (ii alFeaEly pFesent) leF p11131io with Fever oewpox 
common el3taining speoimen; Fi saith intep;iew anEI 

Eielinitive testing availasle >;aooinatien; get EletaileEI 
thre11gh p1191io FiealtF! aEIEIFess anEI phene n11mseF 
laeernteFy netweFk. inlermatien. Gall beoal 

Flealth DepaFtment 
immeEiiatoly. 

End page 

180



INFECTIC»I CONTRDL ,MA?!.'\GEMfillT OF BT AGfillTS AppeREiiJl B page 3 ef 4 

i;>iffeFeRtial 8ioteFFOFism IRitial labeFatoF)' & etheF Immediate p11blis health & SyRdrnme 
1;>ia9Resis ThFeat i;>isease dia9Rostis test Fes11l!s iRfes!ieR seRtrnl as!ieRs -

As11te Rash Meningooooo 'liFal Hemorrhagic l;>elinitive testing Gall lnleotion Gontrol anEI 
with FeveF emia, ~ available thro11gh p11blio QepaFtment Manager to initiate 

malaria, £e.g., Ebelaj: !"ever with health laboratory BT !"Ian. Gontaol l"reoa11tions. 
lyph11s, m110011s membrane networl< oall p11blio Asl< family memberslslose 
leptospirosis, 131eeEling, peteshiae, health immeEliately. sontasts el patient lo stay al 
13orreliosis, lhrobooylopenia anEI the hospital (ii alreaEly present) 
thrombolio hypotension in a lor p11blio health inleFView anEI 
lhrombooylop patient wilho11l lollow 11p; get EletaileEI aEIElress 
enio p11rp11rn 11nElerlying an El phone n11mber information. 
(TTJ2f; malignanoy 
Flemolylio 
1JFemi6 
SynElrome 
~ 
G11illain Barre 8et11lism: Ao11te bilateral GS!" prelein normal; EMG Gall lnleotion Gontrel anEI 
SynElrome; EiesoenEling llaooiEI with repetitive nerve QepaF!ment Manager to 
myasthenia paralysis beginning stim11latien shows initiate BT !"Ian. Re~11est 
geavis; miEI with ornnial nePJe a11gmentation el m11sole bot11lin11m antito><in lfom 
erain strel<e; paJsies aolion potential; lo><in looallstate health ElepaFtment. 
liok paralysis; assays el ser11m, leoes, StanElmEI l"Feoa11tions. 
Mg** intoxio or gastrio aspirate 
atien; organs available thre11gh p11blio 

Ne11rnlo9is phosphate, health laboratory network. 
SyRdrnmes GGo, paralytio 

shelllish, or 
bellaElenna 
lil<e allrnloiEI 
poisoning; 
polio; Eaten 
bambeFt 
myasthenio 
synElrome 

Herpes ERse(lhalitis Serolegio testing availaele Gall lnleolion Gontrel anEI 
simplex, (Vene,,11elan, Eastern, thro11gh p11blio health QepaF!menl Manager to initiate 

Ne11rnlo9is flesl- Western): laboratory networl" BT !"Ian. StanElarEI 
Syndromes inleotio11s Enoephalopathy with l"reoa11tions. 

lever anEI sei,,11res anEllor 
looal ne11relegio Elelioits. 

- " '' +iny, slow growing, faintly ~lotily laeoratory ii l3r11oellosis 
lever, shills, malaise, staining, gram negative s11speoteEI miorebiologioal 
heaElaohe, weight ooooobaoilli in 131eoEI er testing sho11IEI be Elene in a 
loss, prolo11nEI 13one marrow 011lt11re. biolegioal safely oabinel lo 
wealrness anEI fatig11e. be11l<0oyte 0011nt normal or prevent lab ao~11ireEI inleotion. 

lnfl11en~a 
~l11mere11s AF!hralgias, saoroiliitis, lew. Anemia, thrembo Gall lnleotion Gontrol anEI 

lfke 
Eliseases, paraveFtebral oylopenia possible. GXR QepaFtment Manager le initiate 

Illness 
inol11Eling Q a9ssesses. AAere~~ia, nonspeoilio: nml, bronoho BT !"Ian. StanElarEI 
~ na11sea, vemiting, pne11monia, absoesses, l"reoa11tions. 

Eliarrhea, single er miliary neE111les, 
hepatosplenomegal enlargeEI hilar noElos, 
y, May have 0011gh ell11sions. Serologis 
anEI ple11ritio ohest testing anEI 011lt11re 
pfliR,. available lhro11gh p11blio 

' 

End page 

181



I INFECTION COl'!TR-OL P.4f'~IAGBMfil>IT OF BT AGfil>IT8 AJ3J3endiit B ]'lage 4 of 4 

CiffeFential Bietem>Fism +hFeat 
Syn<:fFeme 

Initial lalaeFateF}' & etheF Immediate pulalis health & 
Ciagnesis Cisease CessFiplien Eliagnestis test Fesults infestien sontFel astions 

lnf111emrn like Tularemia (TyphoiElal, Small, faiAtly staiAiAg, Notify laeoratoF)' if 
lllfless 12AoumoAis): Fever, slow grewiAg, grnm tularemia suspesteEl 

si'lills, rigors, AeaElasAe, Ae9ative sossoeasillus iA 
~lumereus 

misreeiologisal t~StiAg 
myalgias, sory2a, sore smears or sultures of sAoulEI be EioAe IA a 

Eliseases, ti'lrnat iAitially; followeEI by sputum, elooEI. GXR may preveAt las asquireEI iAfostioA. 
ifl~ v1eal«Aess, aAeFexia, SAOW iAfiltrate, Ailar Gall IAfes!ioA GoAtrol aAEI 
Q Fe•,er wei9At loss. Suesternal aEieAopatAy, effllsioA. OepartmeAt MaAager to 

Elissomfort, Elry sougi'l if DefiAilive testiAg BT 121aA. StaAEiarEI 12resautioAs. 
pAeumoAis Elisease. available ti'lrougi'l puelis 

i'lealtA laeoratory 
MustarEI +2 M•{GOtO><in: Abrupt GoAsult witA bosal FlealtA klAlil1e oti'ler eiologisal ageAts or 
ageAIS, eAsel el musesulaAeeus DepartmeA! regarEliA9 eiete>liAS, triSRG\ReoeAO 
Stapi'lylosos & airway irritatioA spesimeA sellestieA aAEI mysoto><iAs are Elermally 
al eAtereto"iA 

Blistering g 
iAsluEiiAg sl1iA (paiA Elia~Aostis testiA~ aAEI patieA!s e"poseEI te tAem 
&elisteriAg), eye (paiA preseElures. 

SynElrnmes 
si'loulEI be ElesontamiAaleEI as 

&teariAg), GI (eleeEiiAg, sooA as possiele witA soap 
vomitiAg, aAEI Eliarri'lea), & aAEI sopious am ouAts of water. 
airway (ElyspAea & ~Jotify DepartmeAt MaAager to . iAitiate ElT 121aA. 

182



E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
sp

ec
te

d
 S

m
al

lp
o

x:
 1

 t
o 

4 
P

at
ie

n
ts

 

P
at

it+
nt

 P
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
1

. 
P

la
n 

A
d

m
is

si
o

n
 

(2
0

0
-2

0
1

) 
• 

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

• 
R

e
q

u
e

st
 

w
h

o
 c

a
n

 
2

. 
A

le
rt

 B
H

U
 0

 

E
D

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

u
rs

e
 o

r 
P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
: 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

 B
T 

P
la

n 
in

 S
a

fe
ty

 M
a

n
u

a
l 

a
n

d
1

C
a

ll
 

D
E

L
E

T
E

 -
fo

ll
o

w
 I

n
fe

ct
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

o
lic

y:
 I

n
fl

u
x 

o
f 

In
fe

ct
io

u
s 

P
at

ie
n

t:
 E

p
id

em
ic

 I
n

fl
u

en
za

 o
r 

o
th

er
 R

es
p

ir
at

o
ry

 T
ra

n
sm

it
te

d
 D

is
ea

se
 

a
s 

n
o

t i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 

la
ce

d 
in

 A
ir

b
o

rn
e

 

on
ta

ct
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
to

 

a
ti

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 C
/0

 f
e

ve
r 

ve
re

 "
fl

u
" 

sy
m

p
to

m
s 

e
r 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 c

as
es

 
la

ce
m

e
n

t a
n

d
 

o
n

 C
al

l 

llp
o

x 
P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 

it
 t

o
 2

0
0

/2
0

1
 

u
rg

ic
a

l 
m

a
s
k
 

B
H

U
 O

P
S

 M
a

n
a

g
e

 
g

o
w

n
, 

g
lo

ve
s 

1
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
e

sp
ir

a
to

rs
 

2
. 

P
la

ns
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

B
H

U
 s

ta
ff

 to
 m

o
ve

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 c

an
 n

o
t 

3
. 

S
e

cu
ri

ty
 c

le
ar

s 
h

a
llw

a
ys

 
b

e
 d

is
ch

a
rg

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
 D

in
in

g
 R

o
o

m
 (

a
cr

o
ss

 
/ 

eJ
:ie

tr 
to

 p
f'

\r
an

sp
tr

t~
 

\ 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 c

a
fe

te
ri

a
) 

V
 

\ 
/ 

'\
 
~
 

18
3



E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

P
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

. 
d

is
e

h
a

rg
e

/d
is

m
is

s
a

l e
f 
a

ll
 p

e
rs

e
n

s
 in

 
. 

I 
P

u
b

li
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

p
p

..
..

.,
..

s 
th

e
 

I J
 

S
u

s
p

e
c

te
d

 S
m

a
ll

p
o

x
: 

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 4

 P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 _
 

E
D

 C
h

a
rg

e
 N

u
rs

e
 o

r 
P

h
ys

ic
ia

n
: 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

 B
T

 P
la

n 
in

 S
a

fe
ty

 M
a

n
u

a
l 

a
n

d
 C

a
ll

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
to

r 
o

n
 C

al
l 

o
r 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

ve
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
o

n
tr

o
l P

ra
ct

iti
o

n
e

r 
o

r 
C

h
a

ir,
 

If
 th

e
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
e

re
 n

o
t i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 

m
a

sk
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
la

ce
d

 i
n 

A
ir

b
o

rn
e

 

P
re

ca
u

tio
n

s 
co

n
ta

ct
 E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 t
o

 

..
 

3
. 

4.
 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 t

o
 

T
e

a
m

 i
n 

h 
n

e
e

d
e

d
. 

Pa
ti
~n
t 

P
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
C

 
1

. 
A

le
rt

 B
H

U
 O

p
 

2.
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
2

N
/S

 
3.

 
R

e
q

u
e

st
 C

h
a

rg
 

ca
n 

b
e

 d
is

ch
a

rg
e

d
. 

B
H

U
 O

P
S

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o 

3
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s
 p

a
ti

 
4

. 
P

la
ns

 w
ith

 o
th

 
b

e
 d

is
ch

a
rg

e
d

 

D
E

L
E

T
E

 -
fo

ll
o

w
 In

fe
ct

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

P
o

lic
y:

 I
n

fl
u

x 
o

f 
In

fe
ct

io
u

s 
P

at
ie

n
t:

 E
p

id
em

ic
 I

n
fl

u
en

za
 o

r 
o

th
er

 
R

es
p

ir
at

o
ry

 T
ra

n
sm

it
te

d
 D

is
ea

se
 

w
it

h
 C

/O
 f

e
ve

 
"f

lu
" 

s
y
m

p
to

m
 

o
ss

ib
le

 c
a

se
s 

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
a

ll 

1a
l m

a
sk

s 
n,

 g
lo

ve
s 

ra
te

rs
 

h
a

llw
a

ys
 -
-

-
......::::

... 
n

sp
o

rt
. 

~
 

18
4



EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/88 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 

Oseanside, Galifamia 

Emergensy Preiaaredness Management 

DELETE: Follow Security 
Policy: Traffic Control in 
Event of a Disaster 

SUBJECT: Traffic Control In The Event 
Of A Disaster: Security 
Department Specific 

REVISION DATE:07/90, 04/94, 04/91, 03/97, 05/00, 6/03, 12105, POLICY NUMBER: 4009 Page 1 ef2 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nla 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

GROSS REFERENCE 
APPROVAL: 

1.Q PURPOSE: 
To provide orderly flow of traffic to and from the medical center in the event of a disaster. 

2.Q PERSONNEL: 
21 Security Supervisor 

2.2 Security Officers. 

2.d Other assigned personnel from tho labor pool. 

3.Q POLICY: 
Tho Security Supervisor or his designee is responsible for establishing and maintaining traffic flow 
during a disaster. l=le may supplement their staff from the labor pool as needed. 

4.Q PROCEDURE: 
4 .1 In the event of activation of the disaster plan. tho following procedure will be instituted: 

4.1.1 In the event of a major disaster, traffic to and from the hospital will be strictly controlled. 

4.1.1.1 Security personnel will be posted at both the Vista Way and Thunder 
Drive entrances to the Modica I Center grounds. 

4 .1.1.2 The Vista 'Nay entrance will admit emergency vehicles, private vehicles 
(only if casualties are lleing transported), physicians and local agencies 
(police, fire departments), etc. 

4.1.1.d The entrance shall be secured with barricades and appropriate signs, 
tape, and traffic cones. 

4.1.1.4 l=lespital personnel must have proper identification to gain entrance and 
shall be directed to the east, er Thunder Drive entrance. 

'Saf€1)\disafler 2QQQ1 [JfleFgene~ PFeJ3are ~ 4g1'flt' 1QQ9 1traf+ie '-fl 11 4)3 

185



EFFECTl\lE DATE: 11.'88 

4.1.1.a SemJrity will assure adequate persennel by requesting additiena+ 
persennel fl:ern the Laber Peel. The additienal designated persennel 
shall be preFJerly identified with vests and flashlights. 

4.1.1.9 Visiters and GOncemod family members of casualty victims will be directed 
te the Child Care/Family Information (CC/FIG) at the Educatien Annex. 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oaeanside, California 

Emergency Preparedness Management 

SUBJECT: Traffis Control In The Event 
Of A Disaster: Security 
Department Specifis 

REVISION DATE: 4/91, 3/97, 5/QQ, 6/Q3, 12/Qa POLICY NUMBER: 4gg9 Page 2 ef 2 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIE!J'l DATE: 7/9Q, 4/94 APPROVAL: 

4.1.1.7 Security F>ersonnel will also be posted at the hospital triage area to assist 
in orderly flow of traffic. Traffic cones and tape will be used to oorden off 
this area. 

4.1.1.g Physicians will be directed to the physicians parking lot upon arrival. 

4.2 In the event of a disaster situation, sufficient security persennel shall be posted at parking lot 
entrances, triage area and emergency entrances to maintain the ortlerly ~ow of traflio and 
emergency vehicles. 

5.Q AUTOMATIC REVIEW: 
This policy/procedure will be reviewed annually and updated as needed. It is the responsibility of the 
Security Supervisor to: 

51 Orient and educate the security staff to the disaster plan. 

§2 Maintain an updated version ef the Soouril]• Disaster plan and Call back roster. 

-safet)\disai-'t.er 2GQQ'J2mergeAS) Pre13are]) 1g1Ht'4009 1trallie'tJ 1l <QJ 

186



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER 
Section: Emergency Preparedness 

Management 

Emergency Preparedness Management 
Subject: Disaster Procedure for Earthquake 

Policy Number: 4010 Page 1 of 2 
DeraaFtment: Maspital Wide EFFECTIVE: 11/88 

--· 
--· .. . -

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administrative Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

1.0 INTRODUCTION: 

~-·- - ·-- -·-- ~·-- ... -·-.... 
DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure Manual 
Policy: Emergency Operation Plan 

Due te the varying ty!'eS and rnagnitudes of ernergenoy events, Tri City Medioal Center has 
adepled \he oernrnand s\ruolure ef the Hospital Emergenoy lnoidont Cornmand Systern (HEICS). 
Onoe the deoision has been rnade to aotivate the disaster plan, the HEICS beoornes the standard 
operating prooedures. 

2.0 PURPOSE:: 
To provide guidelines for staff to follow during an El after an Earthquake. 

3.0 PROCfOURf: 
Everyone's safety depends on oaoh ornployee rornaining oalrn. 

3.1 Rornain oalrn. Do not panio or run through or outside tho building. The greatest point of 
danger is just outside doorways and Giese outer walls booause of falling debris. 

3.2 If you are in the building, rernain where you are. If possible, take oovor under a desk, table, 
benoh, or in doerways, hallways, or against inside walls. These areas are the rnost sound 
structurally during an earthquake. 

3.3 Keep visiters, patients, and other ernployees out of stairwells and elevators. (The elevator 
systern is equipped to shut down during an earthquake and open at the nearest floor.) 

<l.4 If you are outside, stay away frern the building. Stay olear of walls, utility poles, and downed 
'Nires and trees. 

3.a The rnost irnpertant thing to rernernber is to rernain oalrn. Reassure and assist patients and 
visitors. DO NOT ABANDON YOUR PATIENTS. 

3.6 If possible, turn off utilities. Use good judgrnent. 

3.7 In the event of a rnajor earthqualrn, be aware that the phone systern will prebably be out at 
least initially. Use runners to oornrnunioate between departrnents. 

3.8 The person designated in oharge will need to assign sorneone to assess darnages, supplies, 
and casualties. The inforrnation will then need to be delivered via a runner to the lnoident 
Cornrnand Center looated in Frenoh Roorns 1 and 2. 

Eincrgcncy Prepare Mgint\40 I 0-\carthqua !2105 

-

-

187



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER 
Section: Emergency Preparedness 

Management 

Emergency Preparedness Management 
Subject: Disaster Procedure for Earthquake 

Policy Number: 4010 Page 1 of 2 
Department: Hospital Wide eFFeCTl'le: 11/!1!1 

Rf),,{ISeD: 53191, 3191, 5JQQ, G/Q3, 1<!/Q5 
Re'lle'NeD: 11.193 

d.9 If a fire ooours, fellow tho F'IRE PROCEDURE. 

3.10 If evacuation is necessary, follow EVACUATION PROCEDURE. 

4.Q IN CASE OF DAMAGE TO GAS: 
4.1 Inspect fer leaky pipes (ey smell only). 
4 .2 If you smell gas: 

4 .2-.1 Contact Incident Command Genter fer immediate 
assistance. 4 .2.2 Open all windows and doors so gas aan 
escape. 
4 ,2,3 E,ngineering will shut off the main valve and notify the gas 
company. 4.2.4 Notify PBX, who •.viii in turn notify the gas company. 

4.3 W/\TER 
4.3.1 If pipes are eroken, Engineering will shut off the main valves which erings "'ater int 

the hospital. .v o 

4.4 ELECTRICITY 
4.4.1 If you suqieol a short circuit, call Command Center fer immediate assistance. 

NOTE: Eash department shou.ld .evaluate its area and set up specific procedures to fellow in the e"ent of 
damage to ut11it1es. This is particularly important fer areas where gas of any liind is used. ' 

5.Q REMEMBER IF AM EARTHQUAKE OCCURS: 
5.1 Remain oalm. 
5.2 Assure patient's safety. DO NOT /\B/\~JDON PATIE~ffS. 
5.3 Do not try to leave or enter the euilding. 
5. 4 Stay awa.y from outer walls, windovvs, trees, utility poles, and downed wires. 
5.5 Cheak utilities. 
5.e Use telephones only for an emergency. 
5.7 Aeove all, USE GOOD JUDGEMENT. 

E1ncrgency Prepare Mgtnt\40 I O-\ea11hqual 2105 

188



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS MANAGEMENT 

ISSUEEFFECTl\IE DATE: 04/88 SUBJECT: Employee Disaster Call 
Back Procedure: Hospital Wide 

REVISION DATE: 10/91, 02/97, 06/00, 06/03, 12/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4012 Page 1 ef 1 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval:09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

CROSS REFERENCE: REVIEV\1 DATE: 

A. PURPOSE: 

APPROVAL 

1. To outline the call back procedure to summon appropriate personnel to the facility if a disaster 
occurs. 

B. POLICY: 
1. When the department call-back procedure is implemented, each individual will call a portion of the 

department staff as indicated by the attached Call Back Tree. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. When the Incident Commander has determined that the disaster call back procedure for 

department is to be initiated, the Director or his/her designee will be notified by the Incident 
Commander and advised of the circumstances. The Director/designee will initiate the 
department call-back tree. 

2. Each individual will call the personnel from the department telephone list shown directly below 
their name. Advise the staff of the disaster. 

3. If any staff member is unable to reach the individual below or beside their name, they will 
continue down the list and contact the next staff member, etc. 

4. The caller will pass the message as it was delivered to them. 
5. Each staff member will report to duty at the facility or remain on standby to return if the need 

arises. 
6. Proper identification will be necessary to gain entry onto the campus and into the hospital. Every 

staff member must keep their TCMC ID badge with them at all times. 

189



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ENVIRONMENT OF CARE MANUAL 

TRI CITY MEDICAL CENTER 
SestioR: 

Subjest: 

l!mergensy Preparedness 
Management 
lileml:l +llreat 

l!mergensy Preparedness Management F!olisy Number: 4013 Pa§le 1 ef d 
DepaFtmeRt: Sesurity l;Jepartment Spesifis EFFECTIVE: 11/!l!l 

REVISED: 9i93, 3i97, 6i00, 6103, 12105 
REVIEl.PJED: n/91 

ISSUE DATE: 11/88 SUBJECT: Bomb Threat 

REVIEW DATE: 11/99 POLICY NUMBER: 4013 

REVISION DATE: 09/93, 03/97, 11/99, 06/00, 06/03, 12/05 

Environment of Care Content Expert Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. INTRODUCTION: 
1. It is the policy of Tri-City Medical Center to protect patients, visitors, employees, and others 

persons and property in the event a bomb threat. 

B. PURPOSE 
1. The intent of this policy is to prevent death or injury to patients, visitors and staff or the 

destruction of Medical Center property due to a bomb explosion. It is the purpose of these 
procedures to establish guidelines to be followed in the event of a bomb threat, explosion, or 
discovery of an explosive or incendiary device. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Each department and its employees must be informed of these procedures and report 

immediately any unusual person, activity, or object. A chain of command must be established 
within each department of the Medical Center to ensure prompt and intelligent action in the 
event of such an emergency. 

2. The Oceanside Police and Fire Departments will respond upon request, conduct a preliminary 
investigation, and take action as dictated by the circumstances. These outside departments will 
not assume authority for the order of evacuation. This responsibility shall rest with 
Administration or his designee. 

D. EXPLOSIVE DEVICES 
1. The homemade bomb is usually one of two basic types. 

a. Open bomb and the concealed or disguised bomb: 
i. No effort is made to conceal the nature of the open type bomb. It is usually 

composed of one or more sticks of dynamite tied together and fitted with a safety 
fuse and blasting cap. 

190



Environment of Care Manual 
Bomb Threat 
Page 2 of 4 

ii. It may consist of a short length of pipe, filled with an explosive, and capped at 
both ends with a piece of safety fuse protruding from a hole drilled in one of the 
caps. 

b. Fuses appearing to be burned can still be active and capable of exploding and 
causing severe injury. Sometimes a plastic substance having the appearance and 
consistency of putty is used. This material may be used in an open type bomb and is 
detonated by an explosive cap attached to electrical or safety fuse. 

E. ACTION RESPONSE - EMPLOYEE 
1. Employee receives a bomb threat call: 

a. Remain Calm 
b. Try to gain maximum information possible from the caller. 
c. Do not assume call is a hoax. 
d. Have a co-worker notify Security Department via PBX Emergency Line# 66. 

F. ACTION RESPONSE - PBX 
1. PBX Operator receives telephone bomb threat. 

a. Log all information regarding the threat Bomb Threat Checklist (Attachment A:) 
i. Exact time call is received 
ii. Time of notification of key personnel 
iii. Any information obtained from the caller (refer to the PBX "Bomb Threat 

Checklist") 
iv. Time situation is cleared and all departments are back to normal. 

b. The following questions should be asked: 
i. What building or office is the bomb in? 
ii. Where in the building or office (inside, outside, roof, basement, etc.). 
iii. What does it look like? {box, suitcase, pipe, shoe box, etc.). 
iv. What type o explosive is used? 
v. When is it set to go off? (exact time and date) 

c. Other suggestions which might be of help: 
i. Pay particular attention to any strange or peculiar background noises. 
ii. Listen closely to the voice - male or female; age; voice quality - accent or speech 

impediment. Record every word and impression immediately and notify the 
Administrator/ designee and the Security Supervisor. 

2. If the threat is received on a weekday between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.: 
a. Contact the Security Department and advise them of the situation. 
b. Contact the Administrator/designee and advise them of the situation and stand by 

for instructions. 
c. At the direction of the Administrator/designee, PBX will notify the Oceanside Police 

and Fire Departments via 911. 
d. Notify the Sr. Director of Support 

Services. 
e. Notify the EOG/Safety Officer 
f. Notify the Public Information Officer 

3. If the threat is received on weekends and/or after 5:00 p.m.: 
a. Contact the Security Department and advise them of the situation. 
b. Contact the Administrator or the Administrator on-call at his residence, advise him of the 

situation and stand by for instructions. 
c. Notify the Oceanside Police and Fire Departments via 911. 
d. Notify the Sr. Director Support Services 
e. Notify the Hospital Safety Officer 
f. Notify the Public Information Officer 

G. ACTION RESPONSE OF: 
1. The Sr. Director of Support Services/or designee will direct the assessment of the threat to 

-f!mei:gene~ PFeflare ~4gn1t'1Ql3 Ba~ 

191



Environment of Care Manual 
Bomb Threat 
Page 3 of4 

determine if the hospital is going to initiate the hospital wide Code Orange response 
procedures. 
a. Upon notification that a bomb threat has been received, the Incident Commander will 

open the Command Center and will initiate the following: 
i. All decisions regarding searches, key personnel notification, evacuations. 

1) The Command Center will be located in French Rooms 1 & 2. 
2) All communications will be via the Medical Center telephone system. 
3) In case of a bomb threat PBX will overhead page 7575. 
4) If the threat is directed at a specific department required to contact PBX, 

PBX will page "PBX 7575", for example: "7575 - Pulmonary''. 
5) The use of any type of portable radio is prohibited. All searches will be 

according to the attached Checklist. 
b. Should a general recall of Medical Center personnel be ordered by the 

Incident Commander, the Disaster Call-back Procedure will be used. 
c. If a bomb is found, the following shall apply: 

i. Order evacuation of all personnel from the area shall be determined by the 
Incident Commander. Ensure all personnel remain at a safe distance. It should 
be noted that a distance of 300 feet away from the concerned area is considered 
a safe minimum distance. 

ii. Inspect the area to assure that the area has been completely evacuated. 
iii. Make sure that no person touches a suspect object/device or anything attached to 

it. DO NOT ATTEMPT TO MOVE, COVER, OR JAR IT. LEAVE IT ALONE! 
iv. Have personnel standing by in the nearest lobby or entrance to guide and assist 

the Sheriffs Department Bomb Disposal Detail. 
v. Have pre-selected personnel at strategic locations to prevent unauthorized 

persons from entering the area. 
2. In the case a bomb explosion: 

a. A "Code Orange" will be activated. Each department will perform its duties as outlined in 
these procedures. 

b. Triage teams along with available physicians and nurses shall be directed to an area 
not affected by the bomb blast. 

c. Guard the explosion scene from unauthorized persons pending an investigation by 
the law enforcement and safety personnel. 

d. Have pre-selected personnel assigned to strategic locations to prevent 
unauthorized persons from entering the affected area. 

e. Conduct a secondary bomb search for the possibility of multiple bombs. 
f. Give the ALL CLEAR and notify concerned departments to return to normal 

operation. 

H. ACTION RESPONSE OF NURSING DEPARTMENT: 
1. In the event a bomb is located on a patient floor: 

a. The Department Director or designee will be responsible to conduct a unit 
search according to the attached Departmental Search Checklist. 

b. The Department Director or designee must get patients away from all windows and 
attempt to cover those windows with blankets in order to prevent flying glass. 

c. Open all doors within the suspected area to allow the force of an explosion to dissipate. 
d. DO NOT pull a fire alarm or otherwise alarm the patients. Act as casual as possible and 

attempt to have a reasonable explanation for the functions being performed. 
e. If evacuation is advised by the police or fire department, the Incident Commander will 

advise all concerned departments regarding the evacuation. 

I. ACTION RESPONSE OF SECURITY: 
1. Security Supervisor 
2. Security Officers 
3. Director of Engineering 

-~Aey-llfepare P 1gint-' 4Ql 3 9e1Ft912/G§ 

192



Environment of Care Manual 
Bomb Threat 
Page 4 of 4 

4. Services EOG/Safety 
~5. Officer 
4.-6. As soon as the Security Department has been advised of a bomb threat, the following 

procedures are to be implemented: 
a. All doors providing ingress and egress to the Medical Center will be secured. 
b. A systematic search of the Medical Center will begin immediately, according to the 

Departmental Search Checklist (see attached) and will be coordinated by the 
Security Supervisor and Director of Engineering, and EOG/Safety Officer. 

c. The Command Center will be established in French Rooms 1 & 2 and it will be the 
responsibility of the Department Director or designee to call that extension when their 
department search is completed. 

d. If a suspect area is known, the search pattern will begin in that area. If it is 
determined that no area is specified, then the pattern will follow these priorities: 
i. Patient areas (ground floor, up). 
ii. General areas (public places). 
iii. Unsecured general areas (no public access). 
iv. Secured general areas. 

e. Each area will be searched with the use of a departmental volunteer. Upon completion 
of the search, the Department Director or designee will contact the Command Center. 

f. If a bomb or suspect device is located within the Medical Center or on its surrounding 
property, notification will immediately be sent to the Command Center. 

g. When a bomb or suspect device is located by the searchers, the area will be 
evacuated at the direction of the Incident Commander. The finding of a bomb or 
suspect device will not terminate a search. All areas will be thoroughly searched in 
the event that multiple devices have been planted. 

-emergemo) Prepare ~4gmt'4Ql3 13sm812/G3 

193



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
-e-;iru:ll'fle _~·r ·P.ref.,lal'leEl!les;s--f4~fttb)ns Procedure Manual 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-L.:_P~o=l=ic~y~:~E=m.:.:.::.e~rg~e=n~c~y'.....:O~p~e~ra=t=io::_:_:_n~P~l=a=n....J--

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/88 SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness 
Management Disaster Plan: 
Administration 

REVISION DA TE: 7/91; 3/97; 6/00; 5/03, 2/06·----1P ... o...,b ... 1 ... c""y_,~ ... 1u ... n ... A6a-e-eR,..,_; '+14 Q;.;1-aa-->P"iOaf!tg&o +1-Bo ...... f 2 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: - n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

CROSS ReFeReNCe: 
ReVle'N DATe: APPRO\IAb: 

A. POLICY 
1. Tho lneidont Commander has the ultimate authority to determine the status of the Medioal 

Center during any type of disaster or after disoussion with the Emorgenoy Department and/or 
other relative department managers. 

2. It is the Incident Commander's responsibility to ooordinato and govern the disaster from 
the Incident Command Comer (ICC) located in French Rooms 1 and 2. 

6. NOTIFICATION 
1. The ohain of command for disaster is as follows: 

a. Chief Executive Officer 
b. Vice President, Chief Operating Officer/Chief ~Jurse Executive 
c. Chief Financial Officer 
d . Other area Vice Presidents 
e. :Oenior Directors 
f. Administrative Coordinator 

2. Code Orange: 
a. On duty Chief Executive Officer alerts all administrative staff and 

assumes responsibility of Incident Commander or appoints designee. 
b. Off duty Chief EJ(Qoutive Officer determines whether or not administrative staff 

reports to ICC and informs PBX to call administrative staff with instruotions to return 
to the Medioal Center or remain at home. 

e. If administrative seoretarial support is required, the Chief EJceculive Offioer will 
inform PBX lo alert the EJcecutive Assistant who will oonlaot other administrative 
seoretarial staff. 

d. /\II administrators lo report to ICC. Eiceoutive Assistant, Administrative Assistant to Chief 
Operating Offioer/Chief Nurse Eiceoutive to report to ICC. /\II other administrative 
seoretaries to report to Labor Pool in Frenoh Room 3. 

c. PROCeDURe 
1. Incident Commander or appropriate administrator direots disaster aotivities from ICC following 

FlEIC:O guidelines: 

2-4015 - Admin 

a. Evaluates requests for additional personnel, supplies and equipment and 
provides appropriate approval. 

b. Using FlEIC:O oheol< off list, ensures all departmental prooedures are underway. 
o. Provides for relay of reports to the press and media via Publio Information Offioer. 
Eka. :Ohould disoontinuanoe or Elisruption of hospital servioes ooour, notify the Department 

of Flealth :Oervioes. 

194



l&i\ 
'li l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 

Sestion: Emergensy Preparedness 
Management 

TRI CITY MEDICAL CENTER 
Subjest: Communisations Department 

Safety Polisies & Prosedures Spesifis 
~ .. ••• . • A#!. ...... ,....... 1 , ., . ·~--- . - -

Department: Hospital 'Nide EFFECTl\IE: ~ ~/gg 
REVISED: Q,'4l3, 3/97, sroo, 1/96 
REVI E\&JE D: 

ISSUE DATE: 11/88 SUBJECT: Communications Department 
Specific 

REVISION DATE: 09/93, 03/97, 06/00, 01/06 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

POLICY NUMBER: 4023 

1. To establish efficient Emergency Communications, and provide clear guidelines for the 
PBX staff to Following during a disaster. 

B. &.G--PROCEDURE: 
1.b'l-The staff in the Communications Department will immediately assessmal10 an assessment of 

resources available and will report to the immediate Ssupervisor/Shift Lead Operator/designee 
or, in his/her absonGo, tho Information ToGhnology ToGhniGal Manager upon notification of a any 
disaster. 

2.~ The Supervisor/Lead Operator will review the nature of the alert and make necessary 
arrangements to cover tho situation. Upon review of personnel and resources, the 
Supervisor/Lead Operator will report his/her findings and recommendations to the Information 
Technology Technical Manager. 

3.6J-The Supervisor will then report to the Incident Command Center, located in French Rooms 1 & 
2, regarding the state of the department. At the direction of the Incident Commander, a universal 
page will be sent to the Emergency Call list. 

4.M-The Supervisor/Lead Operator will provide the Supervisor with an hourly update regarding the 
status of the area. (Such as manpower, supplies, equipment, etc.) If additional manpower is 
needed, the ca/I-back procedure will be activated. 

5. 2.a In the event the disaster is located within the Communication Department, 
the implement the following: IN Tl=IE EVENT Tl=IAT Tl=IE DISASTER IS LOCATED 
VVITl=ll~l Tl=IE COMMUNICATIO~l DEPARTMENT, Tl=IE PROCEDURE IS AS 
fObbOWS: 
a. ~The Supervisor/Lead Operator will notify the Information Technology 

195



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Communications Department Specific 
Page 2 of3 

Technical Manager. 
a.b. 2.€i.2 All personnel will report to the Information Technology department and be 

accounted for. 
1*c. The appropriate departments will be contacted, such as Facilities, Emergency Room, 

Employee Health Office, and Administration 
d. At the direction of the Information Technology Technical Manager, the Supervisor/Lead 

Operator will begin the call backlist in the order of the employees listed. Refer to 
Communication call-back list. 

C. ~EVACUATION PLAN: 
1. In the event that personnel must be evacuated from any communication space due to fire, 

earthquake, or any other disaster, the following procedure should be observed: 
2.~Remain calm and do not panic. 
3.~Assist the injured, if possible. 
4. :l.:l Personnel will evacuate according to the evacuation routes. The staff will meet by the 

annex building to account for all. 
5. :l.4 Returning to the scene of the disaster is prohibited unless instructed and deemed safe 

by proper authorities. 
&.6. :l.6 The Information Technology Technical Manager will be in charge and interface with 

proper authorities in dealing with all aspects of the disaster that occurred or related to the 
Communication Department. 

D. 4-,G-COMMUNICATION DEPARTMENT RESPONSE TO CODES: 
1. 4 .1 CODE YELLOW 

2. 

3. 

a. 
b. 

4.2 

Announce Code Yellow three times on announcement speaker. 
Call the following: 
i. Radiation Officer: beeper (0588) 
ii. Administration~. when closed contact the Beep-Administrative 

Supervisor- (AS)CoordiRateF. 0375, 13otween 4:00 p.rn and 7:00 p.rn., page 
/\drninistrator on call, Monday threugh Friday. 

iii. Chief of Staff: (Physician) 
iv. Office Emergency Service: County 285 6429 
v. Base Station Coordinator: boopor 0388 
vi. Admitting~ 

vii. Security: use security phone 
v111. Environmental Services: 
CODE ORANGE 

a. Announce Code Orange and Area three times on announcement 
speaker. 

b. Call the following: 
i. Base Station Coordinator: boopor 0388 
ii. Administration~. when closed contact thebCCfJ-ASdrninistrativo 

Coordinator: O:l7€i. lilotwoen 4:00 p.rn. and 7:00 p.rn., page l\drninislrator on 
call, Monday through Friday. Security: use security phone 

iii. Facilities Management: (Engineering) 
iv. Send out code orange page to all Executive and Director personnel. 

....,.~1DOCTORSTRONG 4.3 
a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 
e. 

Information to get from caller: 
Location - room, station, etc. 
Callers nameo 
Note time call came ino 
Overhead page three times and announce over security radio "Doctor Strong" and 
the location. 

196



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Communications Department Specific 
Page 3 of 3 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

--BOMB THREAT 4.4 
a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 

Speed Dial: 9911 - Oceanside Police & Fire Department 
FBI: 923-1122 
Have security call operator, do not give information out over the air. 
Call Base Station Coordinator: beeper o;ogg 
i. Administration: 334B, when closed contact the Beep-AS l\dministrativo 

Coordinator: 0375. Between 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., page Administrator on 
oall, Monday through Friday. 

ii. Facilities Services: (Engineering) 
iii. Keep person on phone as long as 

possible. Note sounds, accents, 
etc. 

iv. Ask where bomb will explode. 
v. Note if they have knowledge of hospital. 

<r.a--CODE GREEN 4.5 
a. 

b. 

c. 
d. 

Announce Code Green and Area three times on the announcement speaker. 
Beep pulmonary supervisor and lead therapist - follow notification of 
emergency. 
Notification must come from Facilities Services, Pulmonary, Nursing, or other 
authorized personnel. 
Code Green will always be beeped to 2222** 
When notified get name of person calling. 

4.6 ...,.,>---'CODE Ml 
a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 
&e. 

9-,f. 
g. 

4.7 

Page 3100 to 8888 
This will activate the following beepers: 
1454- Imaging 
3152 - Laboratory 
0354 - Cardiopulmonary 
6524 - Cardiopulmonary 
The "8888" will represent a Code Ml and signifies that a cardiac patient needs a 
stat procedure in the Emergency Department. These patients have TOP 
PRIORITY. 
CODE BLUE 

e,a. Announce Code Blue and Area three times on the announcement 
speaker. 

Ehb. Beeper 0066 to Room Number plus *1 
c. Speed dial 965-0066 - Beeper Code Blue (Be sure to enter room number) 
d. Announce Code Blue and Area three more times on the announcement speaker. Call 

Unit or floor to make sure everyone responded. 
8. 4.8 CODE PINK 

a. Announce Code Pink and Area three times on announcement 
speaker. Wait one minute then repeat above. 

9. 4.9 CODE RED 
a. When alarm rings, immediately check alarm number. 
b. Announce Code Red and Area three times on announcement speaker. 
c. Page security and give location of fire 
d. Beep stationary engineer: 0720 
e. Repeat again in one minute. 
f. Call Administration: 3348, when close contact Beop-ASdministrative Coordinator: 

0375. Between 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., page Administrator on-call, Monday through 
Friday. 

g. WWait for instructions from Facilities Services or Administration. 

197



I&,\ 
~ 1 Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDUR 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure 
Manual Policy: Emergency 
Operation Plan 

I EFFECTIVEISSU E DATE: 11 /88 SUBJECT: Code Orange Disaster Plan: 
Emergency Department Specific 

REVIEW DATE: 03/93; 03/97; 03/99; 04/03; 06/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4026 

REVISION DATE: 11/91, 11/94 CROSS REFERENCE: 

Emergency Operations Procedure Expert Approval: 03/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval:09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval : n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To ensure efficiency in Emergency Department responsiveness in the event of a disaster. To 

maintain adequate m1ailability of physicians, staff, equipment, supplies and shelter; to 
establish a rapid triage site and decontamination services as needed. 

8. INTRODUCTION: 
1. Due to the varying types and magnitudes of emergency events, Tri City Medical Center has 

adopted the command structure of the Hospital Emergency Incident Command System 
(HEICS). Once the decision has been made to activate the disaster plan, the HEICS becomes 
the standard operating procedure. The complete plan is located in the TCMC fire Safety and 
Disaster Plan Manual located in the Staff Lounge. 

C. NOTIFICATION: 
1. In the event of a disaster or critical situation, Emergency Medical system (EMS) will radio the 

TCMC Mobile lntensi\'e Care ~Jurse (MIC~J) and communicate the supposed or actual event. 
The MICN will alert the ED Charge RN ; ED Charge RN to notify EDMD Station B, 
Administrative Coordinator (/\C), & ED Nursing Leadership; ED Nursing Leadership to 
contact ED Medical Director (if not working). AC to notify Safety Officer and Administrative 
Delegate. 

2. 3.1When a Code Orange is initiated the Charge Nurse will : 
a. Ensure disaster supplies are in place 
b. 3.1 .1 Triage table(s) 
c. 3.1 .2 Portable communication radios (from Security) 
d. 3.1.3 Disaster cart 
o. 3.1 .4 Radiation care (soparato cart) 
f. 3.1 .5 Assign a field Triage Emorgoncy Department RN and MD if requested 

by scene. 
g. 3.1 .6 Assign a Triage Unit Leader 

3. 3.2 Emergency Department Medical Director Rosponsibilitios: 
a. 3.2.1 Coordinates with ED Charge ~Jurse 
b. 3.2.2 Emergency Department Physician Responsibilities: 
c. 3.2.3 Assumes medical command in the Emergency Department 
d. 3.2.4 Delegates the Emergency Department physician call back list 
e. 3.2.5 Advises Treatment Area Supervisor when additional physicians are needed 

3-4026 Emergency Preparedness Policy 6-05 

198



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Code Orange Disaster Plan: Emergency Department Specific 
Page 7 of 4 

f. a.2.6 Ensures that the field triage team is ready fer dispatch to the disaster scene, if 
needed a.2.7 Assists Triage Unit Leader in setting up triage area 

g. a.2.8 Assigns incoming Emergency Department physicians to triage area and assigns 
available physicians to treatment areas of specific patients. 

4. a.a Emergency Department Administrative Assistant Responsibilities: 
a. a.a.1 Assist with the fellowing functions as assigned by the Emergency 

Department Director/Service Line Leader, notifying: 
i. Medical Director of Emergency Department 
ii. Additional clerical staff 
iii. Emergency Department physicians 

b. a.a.2 Screen calls which interfere with disaster communications 
c. a.a.a Communicates needs and reports to the Emergency Department Director 

a. a.4SLL/Operation Manager's Responsibilities: 
a. a.4.1 Orientation of department personnel to the overall disaster plan and training and 

specific departmental responsibilities. 
b. a.4.2 Orientation of staff to evacuation routes. 
c. 3.4 .3 Regular review of the disaster plan with all personnel. 
d. a.4 .4 Determine a plan fer calling in staff from home, depending on the disaster 

situation and the needs of the individual department as necessary. 
o. a.4.§ Maintain telephone lists of all lmy employees both in tho department and at home. 

Lists to eo reviewed quarterly and revised, if necessary. 
6. a.aFollowing tho activation of the plan fer a disaster or a drill the Sil/Operation Manager will: 

a. a.a.1 Evaluate staffing levels and send one person to tho labor pool if possil:Jle. 
b. a.a.2 ~l!ay in the department and maintain routine patient services throughout the 

disaster situation unless otherwise direoted. 
o. a.a.a Develop specifio plans and instructions fer department operations within the 

guidelines of the overall Disaster Plan. 
d. a.a.4 Reevaluate staffing schedules as needed. 
e. 3.§.§ Participate in a oritique immediately fellowing a drill if appropriate. 
f. 3.§.6 Plan fer long range staffing, ohanging the time sohedule as neoessary. 

7. a.6 Employee's Responsibilities: 
a. 3.6.1 Ele familiar with the Disaster Plan and review it regularly. 
9. 3.6.2 Know and be prepared to perform speoifio responsieilities. Participate in regular 

training sessions and mmrcises. 
8. 3.7 Clinioal Manager Responsibilities: 

a. a.7.1 Deoontamination Situation a or less Viotims: Assign Clinicians to 1.0 
deoontamination area shower in aml:Julanoe eay: 

b. a.7.2 Initiate ED Call Elaok (if additional staff are needed). 
c. a.7.a Evaluate which patients are to stay in the ED, l:Je admitted or disoharged. Fill out 

census log and forward to IC. 
d. a.7.4 Contact IC fer staff needed, Lab, Radiology, R~l's Unit Secretaries, Lift Team. 
e. a.7.§ Assign EMT to screen aml:Julanoes fer lmown exposure patient transport vs. 

regular run (if unable to divert). 
f. a.7.6 Assign Staff to Decontamination Area. Assign an Emergency Department Unit 

Secretary assigned to: 
i. a.7.6.1 Triage 

g. a.7.7 Emergency Department Station's /\, El, and C 
h. a.7.8 Communicate with IC or Area Supervisor fer needed supplies and 

equipment. 
i. a.7.9 Reassure patients and family moml:Jors. 

9. a.8 Decontamination Situation 6 or more Victims: 
a. a.8.1 Consider tho initiation of Godo Orange 
b. a.8.2 Initiate ED Call Elack 

199



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Code Orange Disaster Plan: Emergency Department Specific 
Page 8 of 4 

o. d.g.d Evaluate whioh patients are to stay, be aElmitted or Elisoharged. Fill out oonsus 
log and forv.rard to IC. 

d. d.g.4 Assign EMT to soreen ambulances for elcposure vs. regular run (if unable to 
divert). 

c. d.g.§ Assign Clinicians and Support staff from the ED to the Deoontamination 
Tefll.c 

f. ;i.g,9 Assign an Emergency Department Unit Secretary to: 
1) Triage 
2) Emcrgenoy Department Station's/\, lil, and C 

g. ;i,g.7 Assign Staff ans Physician te ED Canopied Emergency Entrance for Medioal 
Triage. 

h. ;i,g_g Centaot IC for staff needed, Lab, Radiology, R~J's Unit Seoretaries, Lift 
Team, 

i. ;i,g,9 Assign ~lurses from ~lursing Units to ED to implement the plan of oare, perform 
timely and aoourate assessments, provide appropriate intervention, identify outoomes 
and oonduot timely evaluatiOf!S, 

j. ;i,g,1Q Ensure that the patient is identified by at least a wristl:land and a patient 
number and that the disaster tag and oategor; of urgenoy is assigned. 

I<. d.g.11 ReoorEls vital signs and treatments in the appropriate area in the disaster 
paokot. 

I. a.B.12 See that the disaster medioal reoorEl is recorded into inpatient oharts for 
those whe are admitted. 

ITT. d.B.1 :l Communioato with IC or Area Superviser for needed supplies and equipment 
and staff relief. 

n. a.8.14 Reassure patients and family members. 
10. a.9 Disaster Event w/o Deoontaminatiow:aO Viotims 

a. :l.9.1 Censider the initiation of a Code Orange 
b. a.9.2 Initiate ED Call lilaol< 
o. d.9.:l Evaluate whioh patients are to stay, be admitted or discharged. Fill out oensus 

log and forv.rard to IC. 
d. :l.9.4 Assign EMT to soreen ambulances for exposure vs. regular run (if unable to 

divert). a.9.a Assign an Emergenoy Department Unit Seoretary to: 
i. Triage 
ii. Emergenoy Department Station's A, lil, and C 

e. a.9.9 Contaot IC for staff needed, Lab, Radiology, R~l's , Unit Seoretaries, Lift Team. 
f. :l.9.7 Assign ~Jurses from ~Jursing Units to ED to implement the plan ef oare, perform 

timely and aoourate assessments, provide appropriate intervention, identify outoomes 
and oonduot timely evaluations. 

g. a.9.g Ensure that the patient is identified by at least a wristband and a patient number 
and that the disaster tag and oategory of urgenoy is assigned. 

h. a.9.9 Reoord vital signs and treatments in the appropriate area in the disaster paol<et. 
i. a.9.10 See that the disaster medical is recorded inte inpatient charts for those who are 

admitted. :l.9.11 Communicate with IC or Area Supervisor for needed sup131ies and 
equipment and staff relief. 

j. :l.9.12 Reassure patients and family members. 
11. a.10 Decontamination> aO Victims 

a. :l.10.1 Consider the initiation of a Code Orange 
b. :l.10.2 Initiate ED Call lilac!< 
c. a.1 O.:l Evaluate which patients are to stay, be admitted or discharged. Fill out 

oensus leg and forward to IC. 
d. :l.10.4 Assign EMT to soreen ambulances for exposure vs. regular run (if unable 

to divert). 
e. d.10.a /\ssign staff and Physician to ED Canopied Emergency Entrance for 

Medical Triage. 
f. d.10.9 Assign an Emergency Department Unit Secretary to: 

200



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Code Orange Disaster Plan: Emergency Department Specific 
Page 9 of 4 

i. Triage 
ii. Emorgonsy Department Station's A, 8, and C 

g. 3.1Q.7 Cen!aG! IC fer staff needed, Las, Radiology, R~J's, Unit Sosrotarios, Lift Team. 
3.1Q.1l Assign Nurses from ~Jursing Units te ED te implement tho plan ef Garo, 
perform timely and assurato assessments, provide appropriate intervention, 
identify eutsemos and sendust timely evaluations. 

h. 3.1Q.9 Ensure that tho patient is identified 9y at least a wristeand and a patient 
numeor and that tho disaster tag and satogery ef urgonsy is assigned. 

i. 3.1Q.1Q Roserd vital signs and treatments in the appropriate area in tho disaster pasl<ot. 
j. 3.1Q.11 Seo that tho disaster modisal is rosorded into inpatient aharts for those who are 

admitted. 3.1Q.12 Cemmuniaato with IC er Area Supervisor fer needed supplies and 
equipment and staff relief. 

K,a. 3.1Q.13 Reassure patients and family momeers. 

201



~~ Tri-City Medical Cente,rr--------------. 
Oseanside, California . DELETE - FOLLOW FOOD AND 

NUTRITION PLAN 

ISSUE DATE; Qli/88 SUBJECT: Emergensy Preparedness 

REVISION DATE: 07/91, 03/97, 07102, 04103, 
08105, 11/05 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIEW DATE: 05/94 

Management Disaster Plan: Food and 
Nutrition 

POLICY NUMBER: 4Q36 Page 1 of 9 

APPROl/Ab: 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

PURPOSE: 
To ensure efficient Food & ~Jutrition services and to maintain adequate availability of personnel in the event of 
disaster; to establish, supervise, and maintain proper management of food, wpplies, and personnel in the 
event of an omorgoncy/disaster. 
J.N.+RODUCTION: 
Due to tho varying types and magnitudes of emergency events, Tri City Medical Center has adopted the 
command structme of Hospital Emergency Incident Command Systems (HEICS). Once the decision has boon 
made to activate tho disaster plan, tho HEICS becomes this standard operating procedure. Tho complete plan 
is located in tho TCMC Disaster Plan Manual located in tho Patient Food Services Supervisors' office and the 
main FooEl & Nutrition Services office. 
MOTIFICATIO~I: 
Food & ~Jutrition Services will be notifieEl of the disaster plan activation from tho PBX operator announcing 
"CODE ORANGE" or "CODE YELLO'JV" using the overhead page. 

1. Charge Responsibilities (food service supervisor) 
a. Read the Unit beader Responsibilities found in the Department Disaster packet (usually kept in 

the Disaster Manual). Charge duty will transfer to the manager/Elirector after one arrives. 
b. Complete and send one employee with the personnel inventory form or emergency incident 

message form to the Incident CommanEI Center. These are found in the Disaster manual 
located in the patient food service supervisors' office and in the main FooEI & Nutrition Services 
offiB&. 

The Incident Command Center is located in the French rooms. If the Incident Command Center 
is not set up, contact the Emergency Department. 
Reoall staff from breaks for stanElby to report to disaster priority areas. 
(Staff should return immediately if they hear the overhead page activating the disaster plan. 

o. Contaot manager/director and begin sail in procedure. Relay as much information as 
you can to the lnoident Command Center. 

Food & Nutrition Resaonsibilities: 
2.1 The Direotor of Pharmaoy, E\lS, Engineering, Food & Nutrition and Seourity will be oontaoted by the 

Command Center and will alert the operations manager of Food & Nutrition as appropriate. 

202



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, Califurnia 

Emergency Praparedness Management 

EFFECTIVE DATE: §/88 

REVISION DATE: 7,191, 3/97, 7/02, 4/03, 
8/0§, 1110§ 

REVIEW DATE: §/94 

SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness 
Management Disaster 
Plan: Food and Nutrition 
Department 

POLICY NUMBER: 4036 Page 2 of 9 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
/\PPROV/\b: 

2.2 The manager will initiate the departmental oall tree, if neoessary (/\ppendiJ( A). In the event of 
a major disaster, all off duty personnel are to report to the labor pool for further direotion. 

2.:il /\II on duty employees are to report immediately to the department for instruotions. 
2.4 Information regarding staffing levels and available staff resouroes is oomple!ed on the inoiden! 

emergenoy message form and taken to the inoident oommand oenter in !he Frenoh rooms. 
2.a. Food and disposable supplies will be inventoried. 
2.e Meals will be served in the oafeteria when possible. If neoessary, other serving areas will be 

designated by the manager or designee. 
2.7 In the event the disaster affeots the normal operation of patient food servioe, the Direotor or 

designee will be responsible for any ohanges neoessary lo serve food to the patients and will 
notify !he units. 

2.@ In the event the disaster interrupts !he normal operations of food servioe suoh as flower 
failure; disposable ""are may be used. 

2.9 /\ list of ourren! vendors who oan provide emergenoy refrigeration, water, and food SUflfllies is 
keflt on file (Apflendix El). Emergenoy flhone numbers for oon!aoting vendors at night or on 
weekends for all of !ho vendors is on file. 

2.1 Q A disaster menu is kefl! on file and will be initiated, if nosossary. Food and SUflfllies for !he 
menu will las! for al least 72 hours./\ "Confidential Disaster Information Form" is on file with 
the primary vendor, details of whioh would be initialed in !he even! of a natural disaster. 
MRE's are available for use by staff and visitors, and as baok up supfllios for flatients. 

2.11 As shanges ooour, an hourly update roflort will be sent lo !he Command Center, via 
deflartmen! status form. 

2.12 A beverage station will be set Ufl, Uflon request, for !he Command Genier. 
2.1 ;i The deflartmental flrosedures on disaster oon!rol will be Ufldated and reviewed annually. 
2.14 '."later may be assessed from the City of Ooeanside. In !he event !ha! !his watBF-fs 

inaooessible, water from !he City of Vista would be aooessed. Water may also be assessed 
from !we 1 Q,QQQ gallon drums looated on !he roof of the medioal oenter. Details sf how !his 
waler would be aooessed are found in the Disaster Manual Engineering speoifio flOlioy 
(Failure sf H2Q Distribution). Additional provisions of bo!tleEI water (2QQQ twelve ounoe 
bottles) and @Q five gallon jugs of water are stared with disaster SUflplies in the basement 
under the operating room suites. Alternative souroes for waler inolude semmeroial waler 
supflliers, i.e. Rayne anEI Arrowhead. 

2.1 a Disaster supplies and food designated for disaster use may be stored sefJara!ely from Food 
anEI Nutrition Servises, in a room in the basement under the Oflorating Room Suites. 

2.1 €l In !he even! that !he l<i!ohen oanno! be utilized for meal flreflara!ion, al!erna!ive sites are 
available, i.e. !he Oosuflational Therafly ki!ohen, the Pavilion kitohen. A lent may be set up 
and utilized as needed in the flarl<ing lot. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: §/88 SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness 
Management Disaster 
Plan: Food and Nutrition 
Department 

203



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
0Geanside, Califernia 

Emergem;y Preparedness Management 
REVISION DJl.TE: 7191, 3197, 7102, 4/03, POLICY NUMBER: 4036 Page 3 of 9 

8/05, 11/05 
CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIEW DATE: 5194 APPROVAL: 
APPENDIX JI, 

Food & llut: ilio:: 9c:: ices ~isastc: ~all T: cc 
ST.'\NOING ORDER 9.1 CAbb blST (DISASTER AND MASS CASUALTIES)* 
AREA POSITION W\ME PHONE 
OFFICE 013erations Manager** Marty Acevedo 941 5841 

Clinical Dietitian Linda GasteluITT 758 4904 
Clinical Diotitian(Alt)* Erin Goulette 231 1132 

FOOD PRODUGTIO~J 
Gook Maurilia Parra 945 2250 
Eluyer Gloria Elroault 480 9380 
Roooiving Clerk /\ndrss Carachuro 726 3798 
Su13orvisor (Alt)* Vernon HaITT13ton 231 6425 

DISHROOM Food Service Supervisor Ward Cave 721 5157 
Food Service VVorker Jesus Tello 21€l 0130 
Food Service VVorker Rolando Guiterrez 643 91 42 
Food Service 'Norker (Alt)* Michael /\daITTs 277 7002 

DIET OFFICE 
Diet Clerk Paul Riecke 224 1008 
Diet Clerk Mary Lou Grose 757 4330 
Diet Teohnioian Terry Odfina 758 2825 

P/l.TIENT FOOD SERVICE 
Food Service Su13ervisor Erie CleITTons 433 2805 
Food Service \l'/orker Alejandra Hernandez 598 8393 
Food Service Worker Marily Caraohure 724 0846 
Food Service VVorker (Alt)* Josefina Ellanoas 724 1901 

CAFETERIA 
Cafeteria Su13ervisor Jeff Pigza 721 1078 
Food Service Worker Maria Elena MoKeag 758 8104 
Food Service VVorker (Alt)* Michael McGee e9e 7343 

* Indicates the person to be called only when ITTore than 25 casualties are ex13eoted. 
** These eITT13loyees are to be called first and they \Nill then call others, as needed 

204



<®) Tri·c;ity Medical Center 
OseaAside, California 
EmergeAGY PreparedAess MaAagemeAt 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/88 SYBJECT: EmergeAGY PreparedAess 
MaAagemeAt IJisaster 
PlaA: Food aAd NutritioA 
IJepartmeAt 

REVISION IJ/\TE: 7191, 3.~7, 7/Q2, 4/Q3, POLICY NYMBER: 4Q36 Page 4 of 9 
8/Q5, 11/Q5 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
REVIEW IJ/l.TE: 5/94 .'\PPROVAl.: 
l\PPENblX B 
IJisaster Call List for VeAdors 
A. Emergency Refloigeration and Freezers 

Hollandia Dairy maintains standby refrigerator and floeezer 
trucks. Contact Ken May 

B. Procedure for obtaining food and related supplies rofer to the following vendors' list: 
ITEM VENIJOR 
'Jllater *Arrowhead Bottling Company 

(Contact Facilities Department first at Ext. 7148) 
Hollandia Dairy maintains standby stainless steel 'Nater 
bins which are available fer emergency situatiens. 

Dairy Products Hollandia Dairy contact: 
Ken May 744 3222 (effice) er 728 2108 

Food & :ilupplies u:;; Foodservice/Joseph 1/Vebb Foods (closest supplier) contact 
Kim denes 745 4200 (office), Ext. 351 
Uiil Foodservice/Alliant 
Toni Wiseman 800.888.:l1 47 OJ<! 8579 

714 .915.9550 (cell) 
949.955.1905 (home) 

Primary US Foodservise EmergeAGY CoAtast List CoroAa IJivisioA 
Paul Andrzejczyk 800 888 3147 ~ 408 2:l0 8999 
Terry Kostka 800 888 :l147 ~ 949 872 5722 
Emily Hess 800 3gg 3147 ·~ 714 747 7452 
Toni VViseman 800 888 3147 ~ 714 915 9550 

714 40:l 3410 (h) 
951 734 3399 (h) 
949 955 190§ (h) 

SesoAdary YS Foodservice EmergeAcy CoAtast List CoroAa IJivisioA 
Les Wong 800 888 3147 *8900 714 94:l 04 45 
dim Lewis goo 888 3147 ~ 714 943 9513 951 249 7997 (h) 
Jim Humphrey 800 g3g 3147 ~ 714 904 2353 

205



I&>\ 
'ii ii Tri-City Medical Center 

Oseanside, Calirornia 

Emergensy Preparedness Management 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/88 

REVISION Dl\TE: 7/91, 3/97, 7/92, 4/93, 
8/95, 11/95 

REVIEW DATE: 5/94 

SUBJECT: Emergensy Preparedness 
Management Disaster 
Plan: Food and Nutrition 
Department 

POLICY NUMBER: 4936 Page 6 of 9 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
APPRO\l/\L: 

Brian Pyo goo ggg 3147 )(g990 714 904 9952 (c) 
Russ Sislofsky goo ggg 3147 xg959 714 904 237d (c) 
Derrick Britton goo ggg 3147 xg992 714 904 5634 (c) 
Produce JC Produce 

1 goo g26 1547 
Meat Tip Top Meats contact 

John/Diane Haedrich 4 3g 2920 (office) 729 5753 (home) 
Prosedure for Disaster Control 
A. Procedure for Hand washing Dishes 

1 . Use two (2) lanterns 
2. Strip and stack dirty trays, etc. 
3. Hand wash dirty trays, etc., in portable sinks as follows: 

a. Sink #1 (WASH) add 4 pumps disinfectant to hot water (at least 110 degrees F) 
b. Sink #2 (Rl~JSE) plain hot water (at least 110 degrees F) 
c. Sink #3 (SANITIZE) add 3 pumps sanitizer to hot water (at least 11 O degrees F) 
d. Dry on rack 

B. VVaste Disposal 
Garbage will be placed in closed containers and removed since garbage disposals could not be 
used. If garbage and trash could not be removed, they would need to be buried in a pit on the 
property. 

C. Emergency Power 
On emergency power, most equipment is still functioning. If pilot gas is available, gas grills, gas 
ovens, convection ovens (without blowers), gas stoves, deep fat fryers and boilers can be used. 
Food items that can be prepared include any type of frozen entree, grill items, frozen items that 
are fried, soups, frozen vegetables and gravies that could be cooked on the stove. 
If boiler gas only is available, steamers and steam kettles could be used. Food items that can be 
prepared include frozen entree, frozen vegetables, fish potatoes, dehydrated potatoes, soups and 
gravies, and freeze dried coffee. Flashlights are !'opt in the supervisors' office. Battery operated 
lanterns are kept in the storeroom. 

C. Reserve 'Nater 

EFFECTIVE Di\TE: 5/88 

REVISION DATE: 7/91, 3/97, 7/92, 4/93, 
8/05, 11/05 

SUBJECT: Emergensy Preparedness 
Management Disaster 
Plan: Food and Nutrition 
Department 

POLICY NUMBER: 4036 Page 7 of 9 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
REVIEW DATE: 5/94 APPROVAL: 

Using the reserve water supply, all china, glassware and utensils would be replaced by 
disposable paper goods, and we would hand wash only the essential items such as serving 
utensils and pots and pans. 

206



~) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseanside, California 

emergensy Preparedness Management 
E. Food Serviss would rely on telephones in house to keep updated on the dissharge and 

admissions of patients to the nursing floors and would modify the diets assording to the foods 
available under the sirsumstanses. 

F. Sesurity 
Only Supervisors have the keys to the refrigerators and freezers. All would be losked m<eept for 
those in use. The doors to the kitshen would be loGl<ed to firevent outsiders from soming into the 
l1itchen. The walk in freezer and the walk in refrigerator would be locked until a freezer truck and 
a-refrigeration Imel< could be obtained from l=lollandia, if nesessary. l=lowever, most freezers and 
refrigerators are on emergency po'Ner. Supervisors would only allow authorized personnel into 
the walk ins and the storeroom. 

G. Employees 
The manager will initiate the departmental call tree if nesossal)' (Appendix/\). 
Method of sall in: If telephone service is available, they would be called. If phone servise is out, 
an employee vvould be sent to the homes of those living nearest tho hospital. 
If not assess in or out: Shifts 'Nould be arranged for people to worl< and rest out in tho Gafotoria, 
take naps and sloops when needed. Moderate amounts of water and towels would be µrovidod 
for washing. 

l=I. Conserns 
The most immediate consern is proper sanitation and handling and storage of perishable food 
items, disposal of refuse and the somfort and well being of the patients and employees. 

I. Disaster Menu tho following food supplies will last 72 hours and are located in the OR basement 
or in the Disaster Storage Container. The menu is planned for a sensus of 200 for eaoh meal. 

If food within the department is not available, will provide Boost Plus 1 san/meal and one 
snack with bottled water to provide 1420 ksal, 56 gm protein. 
"Heater meals" (MRe's) are available as a supplement to foods within the department; 3000 
meals are kept on site in the OR basement or in the Disaster Storage Container. These meals 
may be utilized as needed for patients, staff, and the sommunity. 
d. Prooedure for Food Preparation and Servioe for Disaster Where ~Jo Power Available: 

207



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
OseaAsii:le, California 
EmergeAGY Preparei::IAess MaAagemeAt 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/88 SUBJECT: EmergeAGY Preparei::IAess 
MaAagemeAt Cisaster 
PlaA: Feei:l aRi:l NwtritioR 
DepartmeAt 

REVISION DATE: 7/91, 3/97, 7iQ2, 4/Q3, POblCY NUMBER: 4Q36 Page 8 of 9 
8/Q5, 11/Q5 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
REl/IE1A' DATE: 5194 l\PPRO'!Ab: 

1. Dietitians' Office Use one (1) lantern 
2. Diet Glerlrn' Office Use one (1) lantern 
3. Patient FooEl Service 

a. Pour HOT 'Nater into 5 2 1/2 gallon Containers, using individual tea bags and 
freem Elried coffee for beverages. 

b. Trayline push trays manually. 
s. Use disposable ware for patient tray service with regular tray. 
d. Supervisors: Check temperature of hot waler. 

4. Gooks 
a. Boil water for coffee and tea for patient food service and safuteria. 
b. Keep foods warm in ovens. 
s. Dish up small amounts of fooEl to be serveEl on tray line anEI in cafeteria. 
d. Replenish foods frequently. 

5. Dishroom Using 2 lanterns, hand wash dirty trays, ots., in portable sinks: 
SINK #1 (W/\SH) Add 4 flUmps Solitaire to hot 

'Nater (at least 110 degrees F) 
Sl~IK #2 (RINSE) Plain hot water (at least 110 degrees F) 
Sl~IK #3 (SANITIZE) Add 4 pumps Ster bas to hot water 

(at least 110 degrees F) 
K. Procedure for SfleGifis Disaster, Mass Casualties and for Disruption of Servioe 
b. Procedures for Internal Disaster, Mass Casualties and for Disruption of Services 

a. There shall be controlled traffic through flooded area. 
1. Outside of the department, Environmental Services personnel will reroute 

traffic away from flooded areas. 
2. Within the department, all employees will be required to leave and 

relocate to an uncontaminated area as designated by the supervisor. 
3. If it is impossible to relocate !raffia, area will be sanitized with a sanitizing 

agent to prevent contamination. 
b. Thero shall be communication to all departments regarding contaminated area. 

1. Tho switchboard shall notify all departments to Elissourage employees 
from going to the cafeteria, and/or to notify them of alternate routes. 

2. The department will sail the nursing units if patient tray service will be 
interrupted. Patients who require food before trays san be sent from the 
kitchen will be served food from the supply available on the nursing units. 

o. All food processing preparation and delivery shall be halted in contaminated areas. 
1. All food saris and related equipment should be relooated to an 

uncontaminated area, if possible. 
2. Coffee service may be provided to employees. 

208



lc:Z,\ 
'Ii 1 Tri-City Medical Center 

Oseanside, California 

Emergensy Preparedness Management 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/88 SIJ8JECT: Emergensy Preparedness 
Management Disaster 
Plan: Food and Nutrition 
Department 

REVISION DATE: 7/91, 3/97, 7/02, 4/03, POLICY NIJM8ER: 4036 Page 9 of 9 

RE\llE1.'\I DATE: 
d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

8/05, 11/05 
CROSS REFERENCE: 

5/94 APPROVAL: 
Thero shall be an orderly and organized 13lan of clean u13 and enough 13orsonnel so 
that tho most vital areas are cleaned first. 
1. Environmental Sorvioos and Facilities Management 13orsonnol will hol13 

designated Food & ~lutrition Services 13ersonnol to clean tho l1itohon 
areas, hallways to elevators, hallways to stairwells, cafeteria area, 
restrooms and offices, ros13eotivoly. 

2. 'Nithin the kitchen and cafeteria, tho areas shall be cleaned in the 
following order: Patient food service area, food 13roduotion, receiving area, 
diet office, dishroom, cafeteria serving area, cafeteria, storerooms and 
dietary offices. 

All contaminated equi13ment and floors shall be cleaned and sanitized using 
a1313ro13riate disinfectant. /\II personnel should be extra oonsoious of hand washing 
techniques. 
When clean u13 in the kitchen is com13lete, food 13re13aration and 13rooessing may 
resume. Food carts may be delivered to the floors when hallways are free of 
contamination. Staff will call nursing floors to notify them of delivery of 13atient 
trays, 
The switchboard will notify all de13artments when contaminated hallways have 
9eeR 
cleaned anEI sanitized. 

209



~~ Tri-City Medical Cen DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure Manual 
Policy: Emergency Operation Plan 

EFFECTIVE DA TE: 10/05, __________ _...,,.S""UH8~JHE;;.4C~Tl-':'-IE~mFHt3!e-Rrg~e'N'n*ci-loOyHPl'<lrF4ieHEipldaffire~d~n'lte~s~s 
Management Disaster Plan: 
Staffing Resource 
Department Specific 

REVISION DATE: 2/06----------____,p,....ol=ff=<blHoC..-1¥Y~~rn~MHE!8oeE~R,..,_: -44-HJ06e+1 
CROSS REf'ERENCE: 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval : 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval : 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval : 

REVIEW DATE: APPROVAL: 

A. PURPOSE: To insure efficient Staffing Resource Center services, including patient 
placement, resource neti.~.iork and registry staffing, and to maintain adequate availability of 
personnel in the event of disaster, to establish, supervise, and maintain staffing resources 
and ensure smooth patient placement. 

B. INTRODUCTION: Due to the varying types and magnitudes of emergency events, Tri City 
Medical Center has adopted the command structure of Hospital Emergency Incident 
Command Systems (HEICS). Once the decision has been made to activate the disaster 
plan, the HEICS becomes the standard operating procedure. The complete plan is located in 
the TCMC Safety and Disaster Plan Manual located in the Staffing Resource Center. 

C. NOTIFICATION: 
1. The Staffing Resource Center will be notified of the Disaster Plan Activation from the 

PBX Operator announcing "CODE ORANGE" OR "CODE YELLO\'V" using the 
overhead page. 

2. Clinical and Operations Manager and/or Staffing Coordinator Responsibilities 
include: 
a. Review the Departmental Disaster Plan, Policy #4061, found in the Safety 

and Disaster Manual. 
b. Report to the Incident Command Center, located in the French Rooms, with a 

copy of the current staffing sheets. If the Incident Command Center is not set 
up, contact the Emergency Department. 

c. Inventory equipment 
d. Obtain the Disaster Call Back Book, located in the Staffing Resource 

Center, which contains the nursing phone lists. 
e. Delegate calling in staff as required by the Incident Commander. 

3. Administrative Coordinator Responsibilities: 

210



a. Review the Departmental Disaster Plan, Policy #4061, fmmd in the £afoty 
and Disaster Manual. 

b. Notify the Administrator on Call. Assume the role of Incident Command until 
the Administrator on Call arrives. 

c. Report to the Incident Command Center, located in the French Rooms, with 
a copy of the 
i. current staffing sheets. If the Incident Command Center is not set up, 

contact the 

211



li::R!ler§eRsy Pre13areElRess 
~4aR1::1al StafHHg ReseHree 
~ 

ii. Ernergency Departrnent. 
Ef. Inventory equiprnent 
e. Obtain the Disaster Call Back Book, located in the Staffing Resource Center, 

which contains the nursing phene lists. Delegate calling in staff as required by 
the Incident Cornrnander. 

f. Cornrnunicale updated nursing unit census lo Incident CornrnanEf Center, 
including 
i. Changing status on adrnils, 
ii. Ernergency Departrnenl volurne. 

§!. Continue to rnonitor by rnal<ing rounds throughout the Hospital to identify any 
issues and report bacl< at regular intervals to the Incident Cornrnand Center once 
Cornrnand has been handed over lo an Adrninistralor 

4. Staffing Clerk Res13onsibilities: 
a. Review the Departrnental Disaster Plan, Policy #4 061, found in the Safety 

anEf Disaster Manual. 
b. Copy Daily Staffing Sheet lo provide lo Director/Staffing 

Coordinator//\drninistrative Coordinator for the Incident Cornrnand Center. 
c. Inventory equiprnent 
d. Obtain list and phone nurnbers of all available staff not currently 

'Norking. Previde to Director/Staffing CoordinatorU\drninistrative 
Coordinator. 

e. Call in staff as needed and have thern report to the designated labor pool 
located in rrench Roorn 3. 

f. Notification of Staffing Clerks as needed. 
g. lrnplernent Call Back List for nursing personnel. 
h. Relay child care arrangernents/inforrnation to nursing units. 
i. Continue to rnonilor staffing and assignrnenls. Reassign as necessary, in 

coordination with the Incident Cornrnand Center. 
j. Operate labor pool area if assigned by Incident Cornrnand Center. 

D. AUTOMATIC REVIEW: This policy/procedure will be reviewed annually and updated as 
needed. It is the responsibility of the Staffing Coordinator to: 

1. Orient and educate the staff to the Disaster Plan. 
&.1. Maintain an updated version of the Disaster Plan and Call Bacl< Roster. 

212



Radiation Accidents 
The Emergency Care of the Contaminated Patient 

1. Triage 

2. Clean-Up 

3. Medical Treatment 

4. Radiological Assessment 

5. Decontamination 
Wound 

Intact Skin 

6. Final Survey 

7.Patient Transfer 

8.StaffExit 

• Treat Life Threat 
• Report {Medical 

{Radio lo 

Move to Related Document to 
Emergency Operation 

Procedure Manual Policy: Code 
Yellow- Radiation Disaster 

Treatment of the Contaminated 
• Remove Patient's Patient 

• Staff - Remove Outer garments, oves 

• Survey - Document 

• Sample Nose Skin 
Mouth U1ine Label 

Ears Blood 

• Remove Dressing - Save 

• Sample And Survey 

Drape 
Inigate Repeat as Necessary 
D1y 
ResLUVey 

• Dress Wound - Waterproof Dressing 

Wash 
D1y 
Resmvey 

• Document 

Repeat as Necessary 

• Clean Path, Clean Gurney Clean Attendants 
• Survey At Control Line 

• Remove Boots, Gloves Last 
• Survey At Control Line 

213



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, Califr---'--------------___, 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
Emergency Preparednes!'1 Operations Procedure Manual 

---------------=---"----'------1 Policy: Emergency Operation Plan 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 04/03..-----------------..cS'MU'*lBe.J~EsCb+T.;.-: wMHlit~ig~aifft0ttiOoHn+.,-l'P'"fr~e-upaakra"'t"'ion-nr., -rR"'e~sttipKiOH-lnl!;s~e 
and Recovery Plan: Emergency 
Department Specific 

REVIEW DATE: 12/05 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: 4068 Page 1 of 2 

1.0 PURPOSE 
The Tri City Medical Center (TCMC) must be prepared for a variety of disasters or emergency 
situations both natural and man made. In order to react to these disasters or emergencies the Tri City 
Medical Center shall prepare and plan for the responses and reactions required in those situations. 

2.0 POLICY 
2.1 This policy provides a general description of the Tri City Medical Center approach to the 

development and implementation of an Emergency Management Program. This program 
ensures an effective response to either natural or man made or emergencies that disrupt patient 
care and treatment. 

2.2 The Safety Officer is responsible for the administrative oversight of the Emergency Management 
Program. The Safety Officer will develop appropriate specific emergency response plans based 
on priorities established as part of the Hazard Vulnerability Analysis . 

2.3 The Safety Officer shall annually perform a Hazard Vulnerability Analysis (HVA) in order to 
determine and identify the specific procedures required in response to a variety of disasters or 
emergency situations. The HW\ is used to identify probable emergency events, the 
consequences of the events, and the approach that has the highest likelihood of success for 
dealing with the consequences of the event. 

3.0 PROCEDURE 
3.1 The Tri City Medical Center emergency management committee and the emergency response 

personnel of the community will annually perform a HVA to determine the types of disasters or 
emergency situations that have a high probability of occurring within the response areas of the 
medical center. 

3.2 These committees will reconvene for additional hazard analysis anytime throughout the year 
when new hazards of situation have been discovered with the Hospitals response areas or as new 
information or experience identifies new contingencies. 

3.3 This analysis will be documented on the Hazard Vulnerability Analysis \O/orksheet. The 
probability and impact of each of the disasters or emergency situations will be evaluated using 

Safety\Disaster 2002-2003\Emergency Preparedness Mgm l\4068 Mitigation, Prep, Response & Recovery/4/4/03 

214



tho Flazard Vt1lnorability Workshoot. /\ risk scoring will be t1sod to identify tho relative throat 
score ranging from O 100% will be assigned to each factor. /\ny factor scoring a 4a% er 
greater will be ft1rthor evalt1atod to identify specific actions that have boon tal~on to address tho 
4 Phases of emergency Management (mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery.) 

:;J.4 Eash emergency Management Plan will address the fot1r phrases of emor13ency mana13ement 

aotivities: ~) Tri-City Medical Center 

eFFeCTl\te DATE: 4/(13 

Rel/ISION DATE: 

Re'!le1N DATE: 12105 

SUBJECT: Mitigation, Preparation, Response 
and Recovery Plan: emergency 
Department Specilfo 

POLICY NUMBER: 4068 Pa!Je 2 of 2 

CROSS ReFeReNCe: 

.'\PPRO'J/\b: 

a.4.1 MITIGATION: l\ctivitios tho hospital t1ndertakos to prevent the occt1rronco of an 
emergency or minimize the potential adverse effect one may have on its operations. 
(i.e., installation of stand by or redt1ndant eqt1ipment, training, eto.) 

a.4.2 PREPAREDNESS: activities tho hospital t1ndertakes le st1pport and enhance response 
to a disaster/emergency. (i.e., plan writing, employee odt1cation, preparation with 
ot1tside agencies, acqt1iring and maintaining critical st1pplios) 

a.4.a RESPONSE: aotivities tho hospital t1ndortakes to respond to disrt1ptivo events. The 
actions are designed to help redt1oe oast1altios, tho impaot on operations, damage, and 
to speed recovery. (i.e.: control, warnings, evact1ations, oto.) 

<l.4 .4 ReCCOVERY: activities hospital Center t1ndortakos to rett1rn the faoility to oomplote 
bt1siness operations. Short term actions assess damage and rott1rn vital life st1pport 
operations to minimt1m operating standards. bong term foct1ses on rett1rning all hospital 
operations back to normal or an improved state of affairs. 

215



~) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseanside, California 

--ll ..... 
..... ____ .. .----~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----, DELETE: follow Emergency 

Operations Procedure Manual 
Policy: Emergency Operation Plan 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 SUBJECT: Disaster Plan Astivation 
Hospital Wide 

REVISION DATE: 12/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4071 Page 1 of 7 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

REVIEW DATE: 3/06 APPROVAL: 

1.0 POLICY 
To provide guidelines f.or line of authority and process to be initiated by the Tri City Medical Center 
during an internal or external disaster. 

2.0 AUTHORITY AND CONTROL 
2 .1 Tho Chief Executive Officor/dosignoo, Emergency Room Physician on duty, or tho Emergency 

Department Director has tho authority to activate tho Disaster Plan. Tho Chief Executive Officer, 
or tho Administrative Coordinator (between tho hours of 7p 7a Mondays thru Fridays, and 24 
hours on weekends and holidays) will be notified immediately and apprised of the nature and 
extent of tho disaster. Tho Chief Executive Officer or dosignoo, assumes tho role of Incident 
Commander and activation of "Godo Orange". Once tho "Godo Orange" code has boon called, 
tho Hospita l Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS) becomes tho Standard Operating 
procedures, until the Code Orange has been cleared. 

2.2 Radio Communication from tho 800 MHz console will be received in tho Emergency Department 
and inf.ormation transferred by two way radio to the Incident Command Center (ICC). The ICC 
will be managed by the Incident Commander and located in the French Classrooms. 

2 .3 The emergency Department Physician on duty wi ll assume responsibility for directing all 
medical activities until the arrival of the Medical Staff Chief or his/her designated relief. 
The Medical Staff Chief will be notified as soon as possible f.or consult, and to assume 
medical authority. 

2. 4 At the direction of the Incident Commander, the PBX operator shall page the termination of the 
disaster code as follows: "CODE ORANGE SECURED. ALL PERSONNEL RETURN TO 
DUTY", three (3) times in succession. 

3.0 NOTIFICATION OF CODE ORANGE ACTIVATION TEAM (KEY OFF DUTY 
PERSONNEL, PHYSICIANS, AND SUPPORTIVE AGENCIES) 
3 .1 The PBX operator, at the direction of the Incident Commander, will notify the following Code 

Orange Activation Team members of the disaster and its extent. 
3.1 .1 Chief Executive Officer/Administrative Coordinator after hours and weekends 
3.1.2 Emergency Department Director/Emergency Charge ~l urse 

3.1.3 All Area Vice Presidents 
3. 1.4 Sr. Directors 
3. 1. 5 ~lursing Directors 
3.1.6 Director, Media Relations 
3.1 . 7 Dir. Engineering/Duty Engineer 

216



3 .1. g gafety Officer 
3.1.9 gecurity guperviser!Lead gecurity Officer 

3.1.10 Base Hospital Nurse Coordinator~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Ooeanside, California 
Emerger1oy Preparedr1ess Mar1agemer1t 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 

REVISION IJ/\TE: 12/05 

SUBJECT: Disaster Plar1 Jl.otivatior1 
HOSJ'lital 'Nide 

POLICY MUMBER: 4071 Page 2 of 7 
CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIEIJ'l DATE: 3106 Jl.PPROVJl.b: 
3.2 The Incident Commander at hislhor discretion, will reEJuost assistance from the fellowing 

supportive agoncies to obtain supplies, eEjuipment or personnel: 
3.2.1 Police Qopartmont (911) 
3.2.2 Fire Qopartment (911) 
3.2.3 Rod Cress (291 2920) 
3.2.4 County Office of Qofenso & Oisastor Preparedness (595 3490) 
3.2.5 Marine Corps Recruit Qopot (524 1011) 
3.2.9 gan Oiego County Medical gociety (595 gggg) 
3.2.7 gan Oiogo City Office of Emergency Management (Answering gervice 239 9878) 
3.2.8 gan Qiego Blood Bani< (299 9393) 
3.2.9 l(ggo or KFMB Radio may 9e notified to inform hospital staff to report to the hospital or 

te deliver other information. 
4.0 NOTIFICATIOM OF OFF IJUTY PERSOM~IEL 

4.1 Each Qepartment Manager or their designated relief shall be responsible for notifying needed 
off duty personnel to report immediately to tho hospital, as needed. 

4 .2 Updated homo phone numbers of department personnel shall be maintained in each 
department. 

4.3 In ease of a major disaster, i.e., earthEjual<e, with many casualties, all off duty employees should 
report to the Labor Pool located in Assembly Room 3. Physicians arriving for duty should report 

to the Medical Labor Pool (Physician Qining Room) Unit Leader for assignments. 
5.0 DETERMINATION OF Jl.\IJl.lbJl.BLE BEIJS JI.ND EXPANSION POTENTIJl.b 

5.1 The gtaffing Office shall immediately determine the number of available beds and transmit this 
information to the Command Post. 

5.2 Qisoharge Planning, or the Administrative Coordinator after hours or on weel(ends, shall 
evaluate the patients presently in the hospital to determine if any may be discharged home 
and report bed m1pansion potential to the Incident Command Center. 

5.3 /\t tho disorotion of Administration, and dependant upon the assigned level of the disaster and 
its impact on tho hospital, all elooti•1e admissions, treatments, and procedures will be 
postponed or canceled until tho Code Orange is secured. 

e.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
9.1 The 800 MHz console is located in the Emergency Qepartment and will be utilized to communicate 

with area hospitals. 
9.2 The 800 MHz console has a twenty four hour capability covering most county, public service, and 

emergency radio freEJuenoies and "hot line". It is the primary county wide radio control station for 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Ooear1side, California 
Emerger1oy Preparedr1ess Management 
EFFECTIVE IJATE: 6/03 

REVISION [)JI.TE: 12105 

SUBJECT: Disaster Plan Jl.otivation 
HOSJ'lital 'A'ide 

POLICY NUMBER: 4071 Page 3 of 7 
CROSS REFEREMCE: 

REVIEW IJATE: 3/06 Jl.PPROV/\b: 
coordinating emergency medical system utilization of tho emergency administrative 
(seGbAElary) anil ~aramemb networks. 

9.3 Communications from the scene will rely on the networl(S found in the county EMg plan. 

217



6.4 Hospital Communisations will bo sarriod out utilizing mossongors drawn from tho Command 
Post and two way radios. Radios will bo dispersed to: 

6.4.1 Command Post (ICC) 
6.4.2 Triage /\roa 
6.4.3 Remote oare sites on tho oampus (io tents) 
6.4.4 Logistiss Command Cantor 
6.4.a Planning Command Cantor 
6.4.6 Finanoo Command Center 
6.4.7 Operations Command Cantor 
6.4.8 PBX (l<oops one in offioo always) 

6.a Thero are 29 RED Disaster Emorgonoy Phones looatod on solootod nursing units and other 
areas of tho hospital to assist with Hospital oommunioations during a phone system failure. 

6.a.1 Administration 
6.a.2 Behavioral Health Unit 
6.a.3 Emorgonoy Department 
6.a.4 lnoidont Command Cantor 
6.a.a Lab 
6.a.6 Lift Team 
6.a.7 Materials Mgmt. 
6.5.8 Nursing Units 
6.5.9 PBX 
6.5.10 Plant 
Operations 6.5.11 
Radiology 
6.5.12 Staffing Offioo 
6.5.13 Surgery 

6.6 Noto: Off site areas are oommunioated with via two way radios andlor oellular phones. 
7.0 PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENTS 

7.1 /\II personnel will remain in, er report to, their assigned departments until further instruotions are 
given. ~Jursing should prepare for the arrival of direst admits from tho Triage Area. 

7.2 Managers, after evaluating their department's staffing needs, will send at least one staff 
member to tho Labor Pool (looated in tho Fronoh Room 3). 

7.3 /\s FJOrsonnol are requested from spooifio areas, tho Laeor Pool will assign employees 

as apFJroi:iriate. ~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 
Ernergensy Preparedness Management 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 SUBJECT: Disaster Plan Jl.Gtivation 

Hospital 'Jllide 
REVISION DATE: 12/05 POLICY NUMBER: 4071 Page 4 of 7 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
REVIE'.'\I DATE: 3/06 APPROVAL: 

8.0 RECORDS AND IDENTIFICATION OF CASUALTIES 
8.1 ldontifioation: 

8.1.1 Pro numeorod disaster paol<ets are stored in tho Emorgensy Department. 
8.1.2 Ono person from tho /\dmitting Department will report to tho Triage Area to register 

patients. Additional /\dmitting Department personnel \•till report to the Finanse Command 
Center. 

8.1.3 /\ny available personnel from Modisal Resords will respond to the Labor Pool. 
8.1.4 Pro assigned disaster patient numeors oorrolate with tho ldont A Sand numeor and 
wilt 

be used as tho patient's idontifisation. Patients pronounoed dead will also reooive an 
identifioation numeer. 

8.1.5 Iden! A Sands will eo seourely attashed to tho patient, either on the wrist or tho 
anl<lo, while tho patient is in tho Triage /\roa. 

218



8.1.6 The remevaele pertien (triage seGtien) ef the nurse's flow sheet will eo forwarded to 
tho Patient Status Assistant le document patient informatien. IJpen completion, this 
informatien will eo sent le the Command Post personnel, whe will be responsiele for 
castialty reports. 

9.0 HANDLING OF CASUAbTleS 
9.1 Receiving and sorting of castialties will ee accomplished at the triage site. For treatment 

of centamina!od patients, refor le tho Radiation or Ha;wrd Materials Policies. 
9.2 In the event tho Emergency Department is nonfunctional, an alternative triage site •..viii eo ti!ilized. 
9.a All casualties will eo triaged according lo: immediate, delayed, minoG4nalking wounded, 

deceased. The triage ntirse will supervise this function. 
9.4 Skin marking pencils shall ee used to write the treatment area designation en tho 

patient. Castial!ios will eo marked on tho forehead or on the eack of tho right hand. 
9 .a Consider tising holicepter teams for treatment and 

transport: 
9.8.1 Mercy Air (1 8QQ 222 a4a6) 
9.8.2 As!rea (619 448 2Q68) 

9.6 A "Patient's Personal Preperty Envelope" is contained in the Disaster Boie Patient's valtiaeles, 
stich as jewelry, money, etc., shall ee plaoed in this envelope and locl(ed in the hospital safe in 
the Admitting Department. 

9.7 /\ "Persenal Belongings Bag" marked with the patient's name and disaster ntimeer will ee 
kepi with the patient. 

10.0 MORGUe 
1Q.1 Refrigerated !rucl(s shotild ee censidered for mass casualty. 
1 Q.2 /\ security officer shall ee assigned to this area le ins tire that the remains are released enly 

to atithorize persons. 
1 Q.3 Records ef remains released will ee kept. 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 
emergency Preparedness Management 
eFFeCTIVe DJ\Te: 6/03 

Re\llSION DATe: 12/Q§ 

SUBJeCT: Disaster Plan Activation 
Hospital Wiele 

POLICY NUMBeR: 4071 Page § of 7 
CROSS ReFeReNCe: 

Rel/leW DJ\Te: 3/06 Jl.PPROVJl.b: 
11.0 SUPPbleS, eQUIPMeNT, DRUGS, LINeN, eTC. 

I I. I ~aslc sappllos, di ogs a11d oqu1p111011t 11oodod 111 a dlsasto1 s1taat1011 a1 e 111ali 1ca11 tod g5 f'Jlator lals 
Distrietitien, Pharmacy, and Envirenmental Services. 

11.2 IJpon notifioatien ef the disaster, this eqtiipment will ee availaele tipon reqtiest to 
the Materiallstipplies IJnit beader. 

11.3 Stipplies and drtigs will ee isstied only lo atithorized and recognized persennel or atitherities. 
Written records of items dispensed will be maintained by the Ma!eriallStipplies IJnit beader 
for stipplies and Pharmacy IJnit beader for drngs. 

11.4 Materials Dis!ribtitien, Envirenmental Services and Pharmacy will maintain lists of oti!side 
sotirces where stipplios, eqtiipmen! and drtigs can be obtained on a 24 hotir basis. 

11.8 Stipplies and equipment obtained from otitside sotirces will be brought lo MateriallStipplies IJnit 
bead er. 

11.e Flashlights are leoated on each tinit. 
12.0 BbOOD, PbJl.SMA, Pb/I.SM/I. eXPANDeRS 

12.1 Immediately tipen netification of the disaster sittia!ion, the person in charge of the baboratery 
will determine the blood supply by type and transmit this information to the EOG. 

12.2 Additional blood and plasma determined to be necessary for the disaster may be sectired from 
the San Diego Bloed Bani<. 

219



12.3 Immediately upon notification of tho disaster situation, tho person in charge of tho Pharmacy 
will do\ormino tho supply of plasma volume OJ(pandors l:Jy typo and transmit this information to 
the i;;;oc. 

13.Q FOOD/WJl.TER 
13.1 Guest Services is rosponsii:Jlo for the procurement, preparation, serving and control of tho 

food products. 
13.2 Tho cafeteria is designated as tho Disaster Feeding /\rea. 
13.3 Alternate methods of preparing and serving food in case of power failure 'Nill i:Jo predetermined 

i:Jy tho Director of Guest Services. 
13.4 Tho Guest Services Department shall maintain a list of outside smJFcos of food suppliers which 

are available on a 24 hour basis. 
13.5 V'lator supply/distribution (Seo 'Nater Supply Shortage Plan). 

14 .Q UTILITIES/ENGINEERING 
14 .1 The maintenance and continuation of needed utilities (electrical power, gas, water, and 

sewage) will be the responsibility of tho Director of Facilities or designoe. 
14.2 Predetermined alternate methods of supplying tho hospital with essential utilities have 

been established in tho Disaster Ulilitios Plan. 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oeeanside, California 
EmergenG\' Preaaredness Management 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 

REVISION OJI.TE: 12/05 

SUBJECT: Disaster Plan Aetivation 
~ital \1\lide 

POLICY NUMBER: 4071 Page 6 of 7 
CROSS REFERE~JCE: 

REVIE'N OJI.TE: 3/06 APPROVAL: 
14.3 Tho local Police Department maintains direct communication lines with the city's major utility 

0011 rps; :ics fc1 assieta1100 ii: : ccstalsliol :i: 19 ti :c I :ospital's Mtilits 1C@ldit01110: tls it 1 ti :a c act :t of 
a failure. 

15.Q ELEVATORS 
15.1 If so instructed by tho Incident Commander, the Facilities Department shall assure that all 

elevators are brought te ti1e first fleer and that the controls are plaoed in the "Independent 
Service" O~J position. This 'Nill held the elevators for use. 

19.Q MELICOPTERS 
16.1 Facilities for landing helicopters are available at Tri City Medical Center. 

17.Q SECURITY 
17.1 Tho Security Leader will assign personnel to act as guards in the following 

areas: 17.1.1 All hospital entrances 
17.1.2 Store rooms 
17.1.3 Pharmacy 
17.1.4 Morgue 

17.2 Security will maintain traffic control. 
18.Q NEWS MEDIA 

18.1 Tho Public Information Officer will be responsible for any statements made to the press. 
18.2 /\II members of tho press must identify themselves to the Public Information Officer before 

any information concerning tho disaster is released. 
18.3 Casualty lists will be transmitted to tho Public Information Officer Representative from 

the Command Post when available. 
18.4 At the discretion of the Public Information Officer, tho Pross Photo13raphors may talw 

general situation photos only; direct facial photographs are not allowed. 
19.Q SOCIAL SERVICES 

19.1 Social Services will assist relatives and friends of casualties and direct them to tho 
determined location for all information concerning casualties, 

19.2 Social Services will obtain information from the Patient Status Assistant and keep family 
and friends advised. 

19.3 Social Services will provide crisis intervention counseling when appropriate to patients, 
families, and friends. 

220



19.4 Outside telephene inquires cencerning the disaster will be directed te the Public 
lnfermatien Officer. 

20.0 CbeRGY 
20.1 Members ef the clergy, after presenting identificatien, will be allewed in the hes pita I te render 
assistance te patients and relatives as needed. 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 
emergency Pre13aredness Management 
eFFeCTIVe Dl\Te: 6/03 

ReVISION OJI.Te: 12/05 

SYBJeCT: Disaster Plan l\ctivatien 
Hespital Wide 

POblCY MYMBeR: 4071 Page 7 ef 7 
CROSS ReFeReNCe: 

ReVle'A' OJI.Te: 3/06 l\PPRO\lJ\b: 
21.0 l\YXlbll\RY 

21.1 The president ef the Auxiliary will be respensiele fer netifying /\wdliary members te roper! te 
the hespital. 

21.2 Members ef the Auxiliary will roper! te the Laber Peel fer assignment. 
22.0 Hl\NOblNG OF CONTl\MINATeO P/'.TleNTS 

22.1 See "emergency Precedure fer Radiatien and Hazard Material Accident". 
22.2 Gede Yellew Radiatien Disaster, Treatment ef the Gentaminated Patient, Pelicy 4098 

23.0 el/J\CY/1.TION 
23.1 The Incident Gemmander er designee shall be autherizeEI te erder evacuatien ef patients and 

persennel frem the hespital. If pessible, this decisien sheuld be in censult 'Nith Medical Staff 
Chief and /\dministratien. Refer te the i;;:vacuatien Plan. 

221



~~ Tri-City Medical Center . . 
DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure Manual 
Policy: Emergency Operation Plan 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6!03 SUBJECT: HEICS Command Structure: 
Hospital Wide 

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: 4072 Page 1 of 6 

CROSS REFERENCE: 
Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval : n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

REVIE'l'l DATE: 12!05 APPROVAL: 

1.0 PURPOSE 
Outlines job titles and structure of the Hospital Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS) 
that may be implemented by Tri City Medical Center during an internal or external disaster. 

2.0 Hospital Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS) 
Definitions of Command Structure and Titles 
2.1 These job titles and descriptions are intended to be used with a healthcare based incident 

command systom, and are based on tho HEICS and NFPA® (Emorgoncy Services) ICS 
model. 

2.2 Job titles marked with a [.] are critical job titles, which match those used by the federal 
goi.1ernment, most state and governments, and defined in ~JFPA QQ, Chapter 4, and \•+'ill 
probably be consistent with the EOG Organization Chart of your local emergency authority. 
The lower le1+'el titles match Job Action Sheets and the Organization Chart for the HEICS 
system. These should be adjusted to meet the departments and services provided by the 
organization. 

2.3 Job titles not filled during an implementation of the plan are the responsibility of the 
position(s) above them, in actual practice. For example, the functions of the Planning and 

Finance Chief's might be fulfilled by the Incident Commander in shorter term 
implementations, that would not require action in those areas. 

3.0 DEFINITIONS 
3. l Incident Command System (ICS) 

3.1.1 The Incident Command System is an "all hazards" management system well proven for 
management of various types of disaster and emergency incidents. It is designed to be 
scalable, (useable for small and large incidents) and consistent across all kinds of 
emergencies and all l~inds of emergency operations and organizations responding to 
emergencies. 

3.1.2 It features consistent job titles for key positions so communications from agency to 
agency and agency to hospital can be made because everyone knows the job titles and 

222



~l Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseanside, California 

limergensy Preparedness Management 
runs!ions. It also features dos /\s!ion S\'1oets (d,<\S) IAal provide guidance and training 
for persons who have a responsisili!y. It is intended to se implemented with \he staff at 
hand, and joss handed off when more senior or 
appropriate staff become available, and to provide a structure for documentation of soth 
the current status during the emergency, and documentation of activity after the event. 

3.2 lnsident Command Center (ICC): 
3.2.1 The ICC is the disaster command center, where information is collected and used 

by the Incident Commander and staff, and the center of communications of 

EFFECTIVli DATE: 6/Q3 SUBJECT: MEIGS Command Stn1Gture: 
Hospital Wide 

RliVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBliR: 4Q72 Page 2 of 6 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

RliVI li\11.' DATli: 12/Q 5 l\PPRO'h'\b: 

requests and directions for emergency response staff. (The ICC is located in tho 
Franch Rooms 1 &2), tho ICC is generally not in, or near tho emergency areas, such 
as Emergency Departments, but located where all information is available and 
adequate space is available for all related activities. 

3.3 MlilCS (Hospital limergensy Incident Command System): 
3.3.1 The HEICS is a group of ICS tools developed in California, and freely available onlino for 

m(amplos. It is tho most common model used in healthcare. The HEICS document, as 
downloaded, is not a complete system, but is a model !alien from a number of Southern 
California hospitals in and around Orange County CA. HlilCS is the basic model, with 
~IFP/\ 99, for the plans described herein. 

3.4 Organization Chart: 
3.4.1 The HEICS Organization Chart, which is attached to this list, is a typical organization for 

the Incident Command System. I! should be modified to reflect the actual departments 
and services in your organization. It is used to 9efine reportiRg relationships during an 
emergency event, and to assist the Incident Commander and staff in asstiring that the 
best person available staffs critical jobs, and to assist the personnel pool in managing 
staff available during the emergency. 

4.Q INCIDliNT COMMAND STAFF 
f.] lnsident Commander: 
Organize and direct tho Hospital Emergency Operations Center. Gives overall direction for 
hospital and medical center operations, an9 if needed, authorizes evacuation. 

lnsident Commander's Staff: 
4.-1--[.J Puelic Information Officer 

Provides information to nows media. 
4.-2-f.] Liaison Officer 

Functions as contact person for representatives of other community emergency authorities 
and agencies. Keeps organization apprised of information from local ICC's. 4.3 [.] Safety and 

223



Securify' Officer(s) 

~1?/ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseansille, California 

limergensy Preparedness Management 

Monitors and has authority over the safety of rescue 013orations, and hazardous 
conditions. Organizes and onfercos scone and facility protection, crowd and access 
control, and traffic security. 

~loto: Some jobs may be given ether titles in s13ecific plans and hospitals. Only 
those with [.j are fixed by tho ICS standards. 

liFFliCTIVli DATli: 6/Q3 SUBJliCT: HlilCS Command Structure: 
Hospital Wille 

Rli\llSION DATli: POLICY NUMBliR: 4Q72 Page 3 of 6 

CROSS RliFliRliNCli: 

RliVIJ;;)A' Dl\Tli: 12/Q§ APPROVAL: 

5.Q LOGISTICS SliCTION 

f.j Logistics Chief: Organizes ans directs these operations associated with maintainin§J and 
repairing the physical care environment, assurin§J adequate levels of feed, shelter, and supplies to 
support the medical objectives of the organization during emergency operations. 

5.1 Fasility Unit Leader: Maintains the inte§Jrity of the physical facility to the best level 
flOSsible, provides adequate environmental control to perform the medical mission. 

5.2 Damage ,l\ssessment Officer: Provides sufficient information regarding tho operational 
status of tho facility, and information to decide whether full or partial evacuation is needed. 
Identifies safe areas where patients and staff may bo moved, if needed. 

5.<l Sanitation Systems Officer: Manages sanitary systems, and replacement systems if tho 
sower andlor water systems are damaged. Manages tho patency of existing sewage and 
sanitation systems. Activates pro established alternate methods of waste disposal, as 
necessary. 

5.4 Communications Unit Leader: Organizes and coordinates all internal and mftornal 
GOmmunicatien systems. Manages the communications systems within the facility, and 
assists with baol<up systems as necessary. 

5.5 Transportatiori Unit Leader: Provides for OFQanizes and coordinates the transport of all 
patients, ambulatory and non ambulatory. Arranges for tho transportation of materials and 
supplies to and from the facility. 

5.6 Materials Supply Unit Leader: OFQanizes and supplies medical and non medical 
supplies and materials, and equipment. Manages supplies and mal<es arran0ements for 
additional supplies as needed. 

5.7 Nutritiorial Supply Unit Leader: Organizes food and beverage stores, prepares and 
distributes food, and manages rationing durin§J periods of anticipated or aotual shortages. 
Manages food and beverage supplies, and makes arrangements for additional supplies as 
needed. 

6.Q PLANING SliCTION 
f.j Plannirig Chief: OFQanizos and direots all aspects of plannin9 operations. Relays 
information to, and carries out the dirootiens of the Incident Commander. Anticipates future 
conditions and needs based en current information and/or conditions. 

224



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseanside, Califomia 

emeFgensy Praparadness Management 
6.1 Situatic:m Status Unit leadeF: Obtains and maintains current status infermatien fer all 

chiefs and efficers. Maintains a written record ef the organizations emergency planning and 
response to the incident. Develops tho organizations internal infermation system. Monitors 
and maintains the computer systems used to manage the emergency. 

6.2 PeFSonnel Pool Unit leadeF: Collects, manages, and inventories available staff and 
volunteers at a central point. Receives requests to assign available staff as needed. 
Maintains an adequate reserve ef both patient care and support personnel. Arranges to call 
additional staff as needed, based on currant needs, and tho anticipated future conditions. 
Assesses and assists in tho maintenance of staff morale. 

i!FFl!CTll/e D/\Te: 6/03 SUBJl!CT: Hi!ICS Command Strnoturn: 
Hospital Wide 

Re\llSION D/\Te: POLICY NUMBl!R: 4072 Page 4 of 6 

CROSS ReFl!ReNCe: 

Re\lli!IJ'.' DATE!: 12/05 /\PPROV/\l: 

6.a Medical Staff Pool Unit leader: Collects, rnanages and rnaintains a log of physicians, 
nurses and other medical staff at a central point. Credentials volunteer health care 
professional as needed. Assists in assignment of available health care professional staff as 
needed. 

6.4 NuFSing Unit leadeF: Coordinates and manages the nursing and direct patient care staff. 
6.a Patient TFaoking OffioeF: Maintains records ef all patients at all times. 
6.9 Patient Information Offioer: Maintains infermation about patients, fer use of outside 

agencies and internal planning processes. 

7.0 FINANCE! Si!CTION 
f.] Finanoe Chief: Monitors the utilization offinancial assets. Oversees the acquisition ef the 
supplies and services necessary to carry out the organizations medical mission. Super1ises the 
documentation of expenditures relevant te the emergency. 

7.1 Time Unit leader: Responsible fur documentation of daily personnel time records. 
Includes the rnonitoring and reporting of regular and evertirne hours worked. 

7.2 Procl!rement Unit leader: Responsible for administering accounts receivable and 
payaele to contract and non contract vendors. 

7.a Claims Unit leader: Responsible fer receiving, investigating, and documenting all claims 
reported to the organization during the emergency, and alleged to be the result ef an 
incident or action on organization property. 

7.4 Cost Unit leadeF: Responsible fur providing cost analysis data for declared emergency 
incidents. Maintains accurate recorEls of incident costs. 

II.Cl OPl!RATIONS 
f.] Operations Chief: Organizes anEI Elirects aspects relating te the prevision of medical care and 
services. Caries out tho directives of tho Incident Cemrnander, and supervises the Medical 
Services, Ancillary Services, and Human Services activity. Reports nooEls and status te the 
Incident Commander and Planning Chief as directed. 

225



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
OseaAsiae, California 

EmergeAsy PFepareEIAess MaAagemeAt 

8.1 Meaisal CaFe i:>iFestoF: Organizes and directs the overall provision and delivery of 
medical caro in all areas of the organization. 

8 .2 IA PatieAt AFeas SupervisoF: Organizes and supervises treatment of inpatients, and 
manages inpatient care areas. Provides fer a controlled patient discharge, as 
appropriate. 

EFFECTIVE !:>/\TE: 6/03 SUBJECT: HEICS CommaAEI StrnstuFe: 
Hospital 'A'iae 

REVISION !:>ATE: POLICY NUMBER: 4072 Page a of 6 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIEW !:>ATE: 12105 APPRO'h'\L: 

8.3 SuFgisal SeFvices UAit beaEleF: Organizes and maintains surgical capabilities to the 
best prastical level, in respest lo current conditions, in order le meet the need of 
inpatients, and newly admitted patients. 

g.4 Maternal Chila UAit beaaeF Organizes and maintains the obstetrical, labor and delivery, 
nursery and pediatric services to the best practical level in respect to current conditions, in 
order to meet the need ef inpatients, and newly admitted patients. 

g.§ CFitisal CaFe Unit beaaeF: Organizes and maintains the intensive and critical care 
services to the best practical level in respect to current conditions, in order to meet the need 
of inpatients, and newly admitted patients. 

8.@ GeneFal NuFsiAg CaFe Unit beaaeF: Organizes and maintains the general patient care 
services to the best practical level in respect to current conditions, in order to meet the need 
of inpatients, and newly admitted patients. 

g.7 Outpatient SeFvises Unit beaEleF: Organizes and maintains \he outpatient care services 
to the best practical level in respect to current cenditions, in order to meet the need of 
inpatients, and newly admitted patients. 

g.g TFeatment l\Feas SupeFvisoF: Organizes and supervises the categorization and 
immediate treatment of incoming patients, and manages the emergenoy patient care 
QfOa&.-

8.9 TFiage UAit LeaEleF: Organizes and maintains the treatment of casualties according to 
triage categories, and manages the initial treatment area(s). 

g. HJ Immediate Treatment Unit beaaeF: Organizes and maintains the coordination of care given 
to patients received from the Triage Area. Assures adequate staffing and supplies in the 
Immediate Treatment Area. Facilitates \he treatment and disposition ef patients in the 
Immediate Treatment Area. 

8.11 l:>elayea TFeatment Unit beaaeF: Organizes and maintains the coordination of care given to 
patients received from the Triage Area. Assures adequate staffing and supplies in the Delayed 
Treatment Area. Facilitates the treatment and disposition of patients in the 

g.12 MinoF TFeatment Unit LeaaeF: Organizes and maintains the care given le patients 
received from the Triage Area. Assuros adequate staffing and supplies in the Minor 
Treatment Area. Facilitates the treatment and dispositien of patients in the Miner 
Treatment Area. 

226



~?I Tri-City Medical Center 
Oseanside, California 

Emergensy Preparedness Management 

8.1 d Dissharge Unit leader: Organizes anEI maintains the oeorElination ef the oontrolloEI Elisoharge 
(or obsorvatien anEI Elisoharge) of patient FOGeiveEI from all areas ef the organization. 
Faoilitates the firooess of final patient Elisoharge by assuring aElequate staff anEI supplies in the 
Disoharge Area. 

8.14 Morgue Unit leader: Organizes anEI maintains the ooorElination of the oolleotion proteotion, anEI 
identifioatien ef deoeased patients. !\ssis'ts the Disoharge Planning Unit in appropriate patient 
Elisoharge. 

8.1€i Ansillary Servises Direotor: Organizes and mana13es the anoillary meElioal servioes, te 
assist in provision for the optimal funotionin§ of these servioes. Moniter the use anEI 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 SUBJECT: HEICS Command Strusture: 
Hospital 'A'ide 

REVISION DATE: POblCY NUMBER: 4072 Page 6 of 6 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

REl/IE'N DATE: 12/0a APP ROI/Al: 

oenservation of these resouroes. 
g.10 laboratory Unit leader: Organizes and maintains lal:loratory services, blooEI and blood 

proEluots at appropriate levels. Prioritize anEI manage the aotivity of the Laboratory staff. 
8.17 Radiology Unit leader: Organizes and maintains ima13ing anEI Eliagnostio servioes 

appropriate levels. Prioritize anEI manage the aotivity of the Imaging staff. 
g,18 Pharmasy Unit leader: Organizes anEI maintains provision of pharmaoy servioes at 

appropriate levels. Prioritize anEI manage the availability of emergenoy, inoiElent speoifio, 
pharmaoeutioal anEI pharmaoy supfilies. 

8.19 Cardiopulmonary Unit leader: Or@anizes anEI maintains oarEliopulmonary servioes at levels 
suffioient to meet the emergenoy inoident neeEls. 
8.2Q Human Servises Direstor: Organizes and manages the provision of servioes assooiateEI 
with the sooial anEI psyohologioal neeEls of the patients, staff, anEI their resfieotive families. 8.21 

Staff Support Unit leader: Organizes and maintain the provision of sooial servioes as 
needed. 

8.22 Psyshologisal Support Unit leader: Organizes and assures the provision of 
psyohologioal, spiritual, and emotional support to the patients, staff, volunteers, 

depenElents, and guests. Initiates and organizes the stress del:lriefing prooesses. 
8.2d Dependent Care Unit leader: Initiates and Eli roots the sheltering and feeEling of staff anEI 

volunteer Elependents. 

227



~@) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Emergency Preparedness Managemen 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
Oper<itions Procedure M<inu;1I 
Policy : Emergency Oper<ition 
Pl;1n 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/03 SUBJECT: Introduction to Disaster/HEICS -
An Overview: Hospital Wide 

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: 4073 Page 1 of 2 

Department Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

REVIEW DATE: 10/05 APPROVAL: 

INTRODUCTION 

Disasters can occur with or without warning. Disasters cannot be predicted with any exactness as to time, 
size, nature or character. The Hospital's role in caring for disaster victims is to utilize existing services and 
supplies in such a manner as to handle a large influx of casualties efficiently and quickly while providing 
continuous centralized patient care. 

The time of day, nature and extent of the disaster, and the estimated number of causalities that will be 
directed to or removed from tho facility will determine tho course of action taken and whether or not 
assistance will be needed from outside services. 

Some disaster situations that may trigger an organizational response are: 

• Internal Disaster: Disasters within the hospital {i.e. , fire , explosion) 

• External Disasters Minor: Involves a small number of casualties in tho immediate or nearby 
community {i.e., storm, flood, fire, transportation accident) which could be handled by Emergency 
Department personnel with minimal assistance and department staffing, but does not necessitate full 
disaster procedures. This decision will be made by tho Godo Triage Activation Team. 

• External Disasters Major: /\ disaster invol•1ing a large number of casualties or major influx of 
patients into the Emergency Department stressing the system and requiring additional response and 
resources. 

• Disaster Threats: Threatens the hospital or the ·.vhole community such as impending storms, 
floods, and bomb threats. 

• Disasters in Neighboring Communities 

INTRODUCTION TO HEICS 

Duo to the varying typos and magnitudes of emergency events, Tri City Medical Center has adopted tho 
command structure of tho Hospital Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS). This structure 

228



t~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Emergency Preparedness Management 
provides a comprehensive, standardized approach to the management of emergency events. Once the 
deeision has been made to aetivate the Disaster Plan the Hospital Emergency Incident Command System 
(HF'GS) h909m35 +hp s*andard oporanog pmccd' ·re Ihp waspi1a' 5 rnergoncy 'nciden+ Qpmm3pd Sys10 00 

iFFiCTIVi DATi: 6/03 SUBJiCT: lntrodt1stion to Disaster/MilCS 
An Overview: Hospital 'A'ide 

RiVISION DATi: POLICY NUMBiR: 4073 Page 2 of 2 

CROSS RiFiRiNCi: 

R@l1El11! DATE: 1005 APPROVAb: 

is a proven crisis management system used by various hospitals nationwide. HEICS was developed by law 
enfereement agencies to coordinate management involvement from multiple disoiplines of community safely 
organizations (Police, fire, National Guard, Military, eta.). 

The attributes of the Hospital Emergency Incident Command System (l=IEICS) include: 

• Predictable chain of command. 

• Provides a common language Iha! acts as a universal link to outside resources. 
• Prioritizes duties, using the Job Action Sheets 1Nhich explains the emergency response tasl1s. 

• l=las flOJ(ibility in mobilization of positions/sections, can i:Je adjusted to meet each situation. 

MOSPITAb iMiRGENCY INCIDiNT COMMl\ND SYSTiM 
JOB ACTION SMiiTS 

The doi:J J\Glion Sheets, er joi:J descriptions, found in this section are the essence of the HEICS program. 
This is the component that tells responding personnel "what they are going to de; when they are going le do it; 
and, v1he they will re pert it to after they have done it." 

ORGJ\MIZ/\TIOMAl. CMJ\RT 

Typical Incident Command Structure Attached 

229



ISSUE DATE: 07/05 

ReVleW DATe: 
REVISION DATE: 

~'.f) Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 

SUBJECT: Coae Orange Chemical 
Disaster: Emergency Department Specific 

POLICY NUMBER: 4078 

Emergency Operations Procedure Expert Approval: 09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To outline a plan to ensure facility response in the event of a disaster or an emergency 

involving chemical exposure. 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the intent of this document to provide safe and proper delivery of medical care to patients 

who have been exposed to chemical materials and to limit the spread of contaminated 
material. It is also the intent of this document to protect Tri-City Medical Center personnel and 
others from chemically contaminated material. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Initial notification: 

a. Upon pre-hospital notification the MICN will notify the Charge Nurse and she will dial 
"66" and inform the operator that we have a "code orange" in the Emergency 
Department with a chemical exposure. The physician on duty will also be notified 
immediately. The operator will page the following personnel 
i. -Administrative Coordinator at pager 0375 
ii. -Environmental Safety Officer at pager 0225 
iii. -Facilities at pager 0720 
iv. -Security at pager 0312 
v. -Lift Team at pager 4444 
vi. -Emergency Department Clinical Manager at pager 0640 
vii. -Public Relations at pager 0668 
viii. -Environmental Services at pager 0835 and 0841 
ix. -Pulmonary at pager 0344 

2. Decontamination: 
a. When 5 patients or less require decontamination the decontamination shower in the 

Ambulance bay will be utilized. 
b. When 6 or more patients require decontamination the "Decontamination Tent" will be 

utilized. 
c. Patients will be decontaminated according to the Decontamination policy for chemical 

exposure. 
3. Supplies: 

a. Personnel Protection Gear of Decontamination Staff 

230



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Code Orange - Chemical Disaster: Emergency Department Specific 
Page 2 of 3 

i. 3M Breathe Easy 10 Butyl Rubber Hood system with belt-mounted 
unit (rechargeable battery and filter). 

ii. Yellow Tyvex Suit 
iii. Yellow Tyvex Boots 
iv. Two sets of gloves 

b. Personnel Protection Gear of Post-Decontamination Staff 
i. White Tyvex Hood 
ii. White Tyvex suit 
iii. Two sets of gloves 

c. Decontamination Tent and supplies will be located in the storage container next to the 
Security building and will be opened by facilities or security personnel. 

4. Personnel: 
a. All staff involved in the decontamination process will be medical monitored according to 

Appendix B. 
b. Staff members will be identified in 1 of 3 categories 

i. Non-medical---will don green vests 
ii. Medical-will don Blue vests 
iii. EMT's-will don Red vests 

c. Departmental Responsibilities: 
i. Emergency Department Physicians will: 

1) Determine if notification of governing authorities is indicated and inform 
the Charge Nurse. 

2) Physician instructs the Triage nurses along with the Charge 
Nurse on recommendations along with signs and symptoms 
of suspected chemical exposure. (Also see NBC manual). -
Activate Physician call tree for assistance. 

3) Agencies to contact are 
a) San Diego County of Epidemiology: Monday-Friday 619-515-

6620 and Weekends and after hours call 858-565-255 
b) FBI field office 619-565-1255 
c) HIRT Team call 91 1 (Hazardous Incident Response Team) 

ii. Emergency Department Charge Nurse will: 
1) Coordinate staff and communicate with ED Physician(s) for the 

decision tree of staging areas. 
2) Obtain "Code Orange Chemical Exposure" policy along with 

disaster and NBC manual for immediate reference. 
3) Assign staff to areas as indicated in the "Action Plan" 
4) Communicate with the AC and MICN. 
5) Assure Logs are maintained 
6) Assign Tent Commander, Ambulance Screener, Contamination 

Screener, and Field Triage RN 
iii. Emergency Department Nursing Staff will: 

1) Follow the direction of the Charge Nurse in assignment of duties. 
2) Don the protective equipment which is indicated for a chemical 

exposure -Follow the "Chemical Decontamination Procedure". 
3) Provide assistance in the care, treatment and flow as indicated in the 

Action Plan 
iv. Environmental Services will: 

1) Provide all available personnel to the staging area for deployment 
2) Retrieve the Disaster carts form Materials and deliver to the patient 

treatment area in the Emergency Department. 
3) Assist in the setup of the Decontamination areas according to the 

"Chemical decontamination Procedure" 

231



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
Code Orange - Chemical Disaster: Emergency Department Specific 
Page 3 of 3 

4) Assist staff in the provision of patient flow and disposition of patients 
and their belongings. 

v. Facilities will: 
1) Provide all available personnel to the staging area for 

deployment. Open the storage container next to security and 
deliver decontamination supplies to the staging area. 

2) Assist in the setup of the Decontamination area and tent if indicated. 
3) Assist staff in the provision of patient flow and the disposition of 

patients and their belongings. 
vi. Security will: 

1) Provide all available personnel to the staging area for 
deployment. -Secure the patient treatment area and restrict 
access to the area to all but required personnel. 

2) Secure the entrance and assist in directing emergency 
vehicles to the proper destination. 

3) Assist in the setup of the Decontamination area and tent if indicated. 
4) Assist staff in the provision of patient flow and the disposition of 

patients and their belongings. 
vii. Lift Team will: 

1) Provide all available personnel to the staging area for 
deployment. 

2) Assist in the setup of the Decontamination area and tent if 
indicated. 

3) Assist staff in the provision of patient flow and the disposition of 
patient and their belongings. 

viii. Registration will: 
1) Provide all available personnel to the staging area. 
2) Assist staff with labeling personal belongings and registration. 

ix. Nuclear Medicine will: 
1) Provide a technician at the Ambulance Entrance and Main 

ED who will screen for possible radiological exposure. 
5. Patient Treatment Area: 

a. Triage- Patients will be seen by the RN and categorized as non-urgent or green, 
delayed/urgent-yellow, and immediate/acute-red. 

b. Disaster response plan will be implemented. Also refer to "Code Orange Action Plan" 
6.. Recovery Actions: 

a. Personnel in the Contaminated area will egress from the area in accordance with the 
Decontamination policy. 

b. All involved personnel, including ambulance personnel, will be monitored for 
contamination prior to leaving the controlled areas. 

c. Ambulances and equipment will be surveyed for contamination. 
d. Ensure all paperwork is completed and all records are collected and retained. 

232



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
RESPONSE AND ASSIGNMENT OF PERSONNEL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Authorization for Volunteer 
Caregivers During Disasters 

Rli"lliw D "Tli(S)· . . . ., . 
REVISION DATEfS): 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

~09/22 
OOl-1-509/22 

n/a 
11/22 
OOl-1-5 n/a 
06/15 

1. To establish guidelines for authorization of volunteer caregivers during disasters. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Upon activation of the Disaster Plan, the Incident Commander is empowered to authorize the 

use of volunteer caregivers to assist hospital staff in the event that the organization is unable to 
fully meet immediate patient needs without such volunteers. Such authorization may be given 
on a case-by-case basis. 

2. Occupations considered volunteer caregivers are listed below. Occupations that fall under 
Practitioner and Allied Health Professional (AHP) are covered under the Medical Staff Bylaws 
covering disaster privileges. 
a. Volunteer Caregivers 

i. Registered Nurse 
ii. Licensed Vocational Nurse 
iii. Certified Nursing Assistant 
iv. Clinical staff in these specialties: 

1) Lab Sciences 
2) Pharmacy 
3) Imaging and diagnostics 
4) Rehabilitation Services 
5) Behavioral Health Services 

b. Practitioners 
i. Physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of Osteopathy) 
ii. Dentist 
iii. Psychologist 
iv. Podiatrist 

c. AHPs 
i. Nurse Practitioner/Physician Asst. 
ii. Certified RN Anesthetist 
iii. Certified Nurse Midwife 
iv. Perfusionist I RNFA 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Once the volunteer caregiver has been authorized to assist, he/she will be under the direct 

supervision of the department manager or his/her designee to whom the volunteer caregiver 
has been assigned. The department manager or his/her designee must oversee the "just in time 

233



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - Response and Assignment of Personnel_ 
Authorization for Volunteer Caregivers During Disasters 
Page 2 of2 

orientation" and professional performance of the volunteer care-giver who has been assigned 
disaster responsibilities through direct observation, mentoring, and/or clinical record review. 
Based on situation and need, consider assigning volunteer physicians in a "buddy" situation until 
competency is clearly evaluated. When possible utilize volunteers in a secondary triage, 
managing worried well, and handling family of injured patients, phone advice and other useful 
but low risk assignments. 

2. At a minimum, volunteer caregivers must present a valid government-issued photo identification 
issued by the state or federal agency (example, a driver's license or passport) and at least one 
of the following: 
a. A current hospital picture identification card that clearly identifies professional 

designation. 
b. A current license, certification, or registration. 
c. Primary source verification of licensure, certification, or registration (if required by law 

and regulation to practice a profession). 
d. Identification indicating that the individual is a member of a Disaster Medical Assistance 

Team (DMAT), or Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), The Emergency System for Advance 
Registration of Volunteer Health Professionals (ESAR-VHP) or other recognized state or 
federal emergency response organizations or groups. 

e. Identification indicating that the individual has been granted authority to render patient 
care, treatment, and services in disaster circumstances (such authority having been 
granted by a federal, state, or municipal entity). 

f. Identification by current organization member(s) who possesses personal knowledge 
regarding the volunteer practitioner's qualifications. 

3. The Human Resources department will begin the verification process within 72 hours from the 
time the volunteer caregiver presents him/herself to the organization and has been authorized to 
provide care by the incident commander or designee. In the extraordinary circumstances that 
primary source verification of licensure, certification, or registration (if required by law and 
regulation to practice a profession) cannot be completed within 72 hours (e.g. no means of 
communication or lack of resources), it is expected to be completed as soon as possible. 

4. The following must be documented: 
a. Why primary source verification could not be performed in the required time frame. 
b. Evidence of a demonstrated ability to continue to provide adequate care, treatment, and 

services. 
c. An attempt to rectify the situation as soon as possible. 

5. The hospital makes a decision (based on information obtained regarding the professional 
practice of the volunteer) within 72 hours from the start of the assignment of the volunteer 
caregiver if the services of the volunteer caregiver are still needed. 

6. Authorized volunteer caregivers will be provided with an identification badge indicating their 
name, professional degree, and specialty. The volunteer caregiver's assignment and 
authorization to provide patient care will be automatically terminated when the incident 
commander determines the hospital's emergency plan is no longer in effect or when the 
immediate needs of the patients can be met by the hospital without the volunteer caregiver's 
assistance. 

D. FORM(S): 
1. Temporary Disaster Privileges Application 

I E. REFERENCE(S): 
1. The Joint Commission EM.02.02.13 

234



CHEMICAL EXPOSURE 
CHEMICAL EXPOSURE: 

LEVEL OF PROTECTIVE GEAR: (circle appropriate respi 

Move to Related Document 
Emergency Operations Procedure 

Manual: Chemical Disaster 
Emergency Department Specific 

HOT ZONE 
3M breathe easy butyl hood system 
N-95 mask 
Surgical mask 

WILL wear yellow tyvex suit 
Yellow tyvex boots 
One pair of ninile gloves 
Butyl gloves on top 

CLINICAL MANIFESTATIONS: 

CNS: 

Respiratory: 

Cardiovascular: 

GI: 

Skeletal Muscles: 

Ocular: 

Skin: 

Other: 

--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--

CLEAN ZONE 
N-95 mask 
surgical mask 

WILL wear white tyvex suit 
Yellow tyvex boots 
Two pairs of nitrile gloves 

235



PATIENTS THAT REOillRE DECONTAMINATION: (circle all that apply) Skin manifestations - burning, 
redness, blister formation 

Eyes - burning 

Other: 

ALWAYS DECON 
I. Victims whose skin or clothing is contaminated with the liquid chemical agent 
2. Any patient with a p[ositve result on the HAZMAT STRIP - Test for cyanide, arsenic, 

chlorine, nerve, fluoride, sulfide, oxidizers and pH 
3. Any patient with a positve result with the M9 Chemical Tape -Test for ne1ve and 

mustard agents 
-Positive results changes from green to pink, red or brown 

TRAIGE: (special considerations for type of exposure) Immediate : Red 

(requires lifesaving care within minutes- ie. Air\vay. life saving saving surgery, needs antidote) 

Delayed : Yellow 

(severe injuries, but delay of care will not adversely affect the outcome of the injury) 

Wallting Wounded: Green 

(minor injuries) 

Expectant: Black 

(severe life-threatening injuries \vho are not expected to survive, or causalities with severe injuries that their chance 
of survival does not justify expenditure of limited resources) 

DECONTAMINATION: WATER ADD SOAP (circle if needed) 

Time required for decontamination showering: (usually 5 minutes, 8 minutes for oily material) 

236



CLEAN ZONE 
LEVEL OF DECONTAMINATION GEAR-

STATION POSITION PERSONNEL 

1 Apply ES/LIFT/FACILITIES 
wristband 
Hazinat ship, 
and M9 tape 

Monitor for NUCMEDTECH 

Decon for 
radiological 

2 Assess NURSE 
patients and 
assist for 
transport 

3 Transpmt to 
ED 

4 Power washer Facili ties 
and Lighting 

DECONTAMINATION SHOWER BY ED HOT ZONE OR 
CLEAN ZONE 

LEVEL OF DECONTAMINATION GEAR-

Move to Related Document 
Emergency Operations Procedure 

Manual: Chemical Disaster 
Emergency Department Specific 

NAME COLOR 
VEST and 

TIME 
START 

~~~~~~~~-

STATION POSITION PERSONNEL NAME COLOR 
VEST and 

TIME 
START 

s Shower Nurse 
EMT 

Monitor for Nuc Med Tech 
contamination 
if radiological 

exposure 
T Ambulance Secmity/Lift/Facilities/ES 

Entrance 

237



ISSUE DATE: 06/15 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND PREPARATION 

SUBJECT: Damage Assessment 

Re"lf;;IM D "Te(S)• If • • } ~ • 

REVISION DATEfS): 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. POLICY: 

~09/22 
oomi09/22 

n/a 
11/22 
oomi n/a 
06/15 

1. In the event of an internal disaster or emergency situation such as fire, earthquake, flooding, 
etc., damage to the facility must be assessed as soon as possible to protect the lives of patients 
and staff. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Upon recognition of an internal disaster situation, the Engineering staff will conduct an 

assessment of: 
a. Immediate threat to patients and staff 
b. Potential threat to patients and staff from structural damage 
c. Implement Search and Rescue of injured persons in the event of major structural impact. 
d. Evaluation of disruption of essential services; 

i. Air Conditioning 
ii. Electricity 
iii. Elevators 
iv. Essential Medical equipment 
v. Food Preparation 
vi. Natural Gas 
vii. Other Medical Gases 
viii. Oxygen 
ix. Steam Boilers 
x. Telephones 
xi. Vacuum 
xii. Water 

e. Institute salvage of essential supplies 
f. Document damage assessment and situation status on "HICS Facility System Status 

Report" and forward to Administration or Command Center if activated as soon as 
possible 

g. Institute Evacuation procedures as indicated. 
i. Immediate evacuation of affected areas in the event of fire 
ii. Planned evacuation of patients and staff from areas with major structural damage 
iii. Planned evacuation of areas unable to continue to function due to actual or 

potential damage 

238



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - Resource Management and Preparation 
Damage Assessment 
Page 2 of 2 

h. Implement plans to mitigate disruption of essential services. 
i. Refer to procedures for Disaster Policy Code Red and Disaster Policy - Disaster 

Procedure for Earthquake". 

I c. RELATED DOCUMENT($): 
1. Disaster Policy Code Red 
2. Disaster Policy - Disaster Procedure for Earthquake 

I D. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Title 22: Section 707 41, 707 43, 707 45, 707 46 
2. The Joint Commission EM.02.02.01, EM.03.01.03, EP5 

239



ISSUE DATE: 06/15 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND PREPARATION 

SUBJECT: Disruption of Services 

RE"IE1"' D 11TE(S)· ~.V•l'. 

REVISION DATEfS}: 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. POLICY: 

~09/22 
~09/22 

n/a 
11/22 
~n/a 
06/15 

1. In the event disruption of services should occur, as a result of an internal or external situation, 
Tri City Medical Center shall exercise a plan to provide for the safety and welfare of patients, 
visitors, and staff. 

2. Alternative sources for provision of essential utilities shall be identified and planned for in order 
to maintain the hospital's ability to provide for patient care when essential utilities are disrupted. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Authority: 

a. The Chief Executive Officer or Administrator On-call will be notified immediately of any 
actual or anticipated disruption of services that impairs the facility's ability to deliver safe 
care. They will report to the hospital immediately to assume responsibility for evaluating 
the situation and determining an appropriate course of action including possible 
evacuation, transfer, or relocation of patients. 

b. Department Leaders may be recalled the hospital to participate in the response to the 
incident. 

2. Reporting: 
a. The Chief Executive Officer or designee shall be responsible for informing the California 

Department of Public Health (CDPH), by telephone, immediately upon being notified of 
the disruption of services or the need to discontinue services due to earthquake, fire, 
power outage, or other calamity that causes damage to the facility or threatens the 
safety or welfare of patients. 

3. Bed Limitation: 
a. Transfers of patients from this facility to another because of lack of beds or staff will not 

occur until all measures to accommodate the patient have been exhausted and 
documented. 

b. Decisions to limit admissions will be made by the CEO, in consultation with the Chief of 
Staff, after evaluation of all efforts to accommodate the patients. 

4. Physician Notification: 
a. Physicians shall be notified if a decision is made to restrict admissions and when the 

closure of the facility or portions of the service are imminent. Staff will determine from 
the physician whether in-patients currently in the facility may be discharged or may 
require transfer to another facility. 

5. Essential Services and Utilities: 
a. Contingency plans are in place to address management of loss of essential utilities and 

240



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - Resource Management and Preparation 
Disruption of Services 
Page 2 of2 

services including power, water, medical gases, and sewer. 
i. If the interrupted service has been due to loss of electricity, the on-duty 

Engineering Department personnel shall, proceed immediately to the emergency 
generator to ensure that on hand associated systems are operating satisfactorily. 
When proper operation has been verified, he/she shall then inform the Director of 
Engineering or designee and notify the CEO or designee. 

ii. Appropriate utility companies shall be notified without delay when their services 
are required to repair or assist with returning services to proper functioning 
levels. 

I c. RELATED DOCUMENTIS): 
1. Engineering Policy - Code Green 
2. Engineering Policy - Disruption of Services Natural Gas 
3. Engineering Policy - Elevator Failure and Passenger Evacuation 
4. Engineering Policy - Failure of Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning (HVAC) System 
5. Engineering Policy - Failure of Internal Plumbing Lines 
6. Engineering Policy - Failure of Medical Air System 
7. Engineering Policy - Failure of Nurse Call System 
8. Engineering Policy - Failure of Vacuum System 
9. Engineering Policy - Failure of Water Distribution 
10. Engineering Policy - Medical Gas System Failure Oxygen 

I D. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Title 22: Section 707 41, 707 43, 707 45, 707 46 
2. The Joint Commission EM.02.02.09 

241



HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE 
FLOWCHART 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure 

Manual Policy: Emergency 
Operation Plan 

Are criteria met for hospital to Rely on 
OSHA First Receiver Guidelines? 

YES 

Continue with Hazmat Response Plan 
Monitored by 
Hazmat Branch 
Director/Safety Officer who has Authority 
to cease operations if: 

• Situation causes unforeseen risk 
to staff 

• Staff develop symptoms/signs of 
exposure 

• Hazardous material requires 
higher level of PPE than 

originally anticipated 
Or modify operations as needed: 

• Adapt response for Biological 
Containment 

• Downgrade level of response if 
hazard is less than initially 
perceived 

1. Release not in close proximity 
2. Elapsed time from victim exposure 

to arrival> 10 minutes 
3. Decontamination plan initiated 

promptly on victim arrival, etc. 
4. Minimize risks of Secondary 

Exposure: Outdoors/proper 
ventilation, Control of Medical 
Waste/Wastewater 

Hospital IC/Hazmat Branch 
Director/Safety Officer to: 

• S top res ponse 
• Have victims self-decontaminate 
• Iso late them from staff until 

personnel with appropriate PPE 
are available (e.g. specially 
trained and equipped hospital 
personnel , fire/haz"at 

specialists) 
• Re-eva lua te si tuation 

242



~'2) Tri.City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS MANAGEMENT 
INITIATION OF EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

ISSUE DATE: 11/88 

REVIEW DATE(S}: 11/91 
REVISION DATE(S}: 01/94, 3/97, 05/00, 04/03, 11/05 

Department Approval Date(s): 

SUBJECT: Location of Disaster Work 
Stations 

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
~09/22 
~09/22 

Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Committee Approval Date(s): 

A. DISASTER STATION LOCATIONS: 

n/a 
11/22 
~n/a 
06/15 

1. Administrative Coordinator - Nursing Administration - Staffing Office. 
2. Business Office - Pavilion first floor and Emergency Department. 
3. Cardiology - Center Tower first floor. 
4. Child Care Center - Cardiac Wellness Center. 
5. Decontamination Area - Immediately external to the Emergency Department/adjacent to 

Security Trailer. 
6. Incident Command Center (ICC) - French Room 1 & 2. Alternate area designated as Security 

Trailer. In the event that neither is available due to the nature of the disaster, the Incident 
Commander will designate an alternate location. 

7. Emergency Department Base Station - Emergency Department. 
8. Emergency Department - First floor, west side of hospital. 
9. Minor Care - North wing first floor PT Gym located in Acute Rehab area. 
10. Morgue-West of the Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) building. 
11. Private Branch Exchange (PBX) - Center tower, lower level. 
12. Physician Labor Pool - Physician dining area. 
13. Alternate Operating Room - Women and Newborn Services - Labor & Delivery Operating Room 

Suite. 
14. Mass Casualty Tent - Parking lot. 
15. Triage Area 

a. Ambulance entrance area. 
i. In the event any of the above areas are involved as a disaster site, the Incident 

Commander will designate alternative site. 
ii. Security will be notified and be responsible for signage and detouring traffic 

243



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - General lnfonnation 
Location of Disaster Work Stations 
Page 2 of 2 

EMERGENCY(RED)PHONE: 
(all phones need outside line access via dialing 80 
first) 

LOCATIONS 
E/R Radio Room 
Nursinq Administration/Admin Coordinators 
Administration 
PBX#1 
PBX#1 
1 Tower 1 East Nurse Station 
2 Tower 2East Nurse Station 
3 Tower 3East Nurse Station 
4 Tower 4East Nurse Station 
2 PAV Nurse Station 
3 PAV Nurse Station 
4 PAV Nurse Station 
Women Center 
1 North Nurse Station 
2 South Nurse Station 
BHU Nurse Station 
Surgery Nurse Station 
Lab 
Radioloav 
SPD 
Material Distribution 
French Room 1 15536) 
French Room 1 (5537) 
French Room 1 (5538) 
French Room 1 (5539) 
Facilities 
Lift Team Room 
BAMS Building 

NUMBER 
1-760-724-0896 
1-760-724-1067 
1-760-724-1518 
1-760-724-1690 
1-760-724-1832 
1-760-724-8412 
1-760-724-8413 
1-760-724-8414 
1-760-724-8415 
1-760-724-8416 
1-760-724-8417 
1-760-724-8418 
1-760-724-8419 
1-760-724-8420 
1-760-724-8421 
1-760-724-8422 
1-760-724-8423 
1-760-724-8880 
1-760-724-8881 
1-760-724-8882 
1-760-724-8883 
1-760-724-8884 
1-760-724-8885 
1-760-724-8886 
1-760-724-8887 
1-760-724-8972 
1-760-724-8973 
1-760-724-897 4 

244



Patients that Require Decontamination: (Circle all that apply) 

Skin manifestations - burning, redness, blister formation 

Eyes - Burning 

ALWAYS DECON 

Move to Related Document 
Emergency Operations Procedure 

Manual: Chemical Disaster 
Emergency Department Specific 

1. Victims whose skin or clothing is contaminated with the liquid chemical agent 
2. Any patient with a positive result on the HAZMAT STRIP 

a. -Test for cyanide, arsenic, chlorine , nerve, fluoride, sulfide, oxidizers, and pH. 
3. Any patient with a positive result with the M9 Chemical Tape 

a. - Test for nerve and mustard agents 
b. -Positive results changes from green to pink, red or brown 

TRIAGE: (special considerations for type of exposure) 

MMEDIATE: RED -----------------

(requires live saving care within minutes- ie. Airway, life saving surgery, needs antidote) DELAYED: YELLOW 

(requires live saving care within minutes- ie. Airway, life saving surgery, needs antidote) WALKING WOUNDED: 

GREEN ------------------------

(minor injuries) EXPECTANT: BLACK ------------

(sever life-threatening injuries who are not expected to survive, or casualties with severe injuries that their chance 
of survival does not justify expenditure of limited resources) 

DECONTAMINATION: WATER ADD SOAP (circle if needed) 

Time required for decontamination showering: -----------
(usually 5 minutes, 8 minutes for oily material) 

245



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Personnel Expectations 

Re"lelAI D"Te(S)• . . . ., . 
REVISION DATE~: 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. POLICY: 

~09/22 
~09/22 

n/a 
11/22 
~n/a 
06/15 

1. Tri-City Healthcare District staff shall be trained to respond to the incident in accordance with 
guidance provided in the plan. Medical Center staff, regardless of position, is expected to report 
to the hospital for duty as soon as it is feasible to travel. 

B. RULES OF CONDUCT: 
1. All personnel shall wear a hospital badge for identification, which shall be displayed to officials 

and will ensure passage to the hospital through mass casualty lines. 
2. Keep to the right in corridor traffic. 
3. Do not become an observer. 
4. Do not crowd around treatment areas. 
5. Maintain a quiet and orderly atmosphere. Remain calm and cooperate in performance of duties 

assigned to you. 
6. Be willing to perform all tasks asked, regardless of usual roles. 
7. When called in, proceed through to the appropriate area for briefing and assignment. 
8. Remain in working areas unless otherwise instructed. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Personnel may be assigned to perform duties outside their usual roles. They may be asked to 

perform jobs, which are vital to an effective disaster response utilizing their individual abilities. 

D. REFERENCE LIST: 
1. Title 22: Section 707 41, 707 43, 707 45, 707 46 
2. The Joint Commission EM.02.02.07 

246



1 . 

2 . 
3 . 

PROCEDURE FOR DECONTAMINATION TENT 

Lighting 
Set up tent 2-4 people 
Install Showers 

Move to Related Document 
Emergency Operations Procedure 

Manual: Chemical Disaster 
Emergency Department Specific 

4 . Attach power washer 
5 . Place soap in power washer and attached water supply 
6 . Place 2 tables on each side of tent's entrance, with a chair behind each table at Station?? 

7 . Place 4 chairs in each corner of tent 
8 . Place 1 or 2 ????Gurneys with no mattress pad in center shower 
9 . Place 4 chairs on each side of tent's entrance and exit (total 16) 
1 O . Place signs in appropriate locations 

-Ambulance Entrance 
-Ambulance Exit 
-Above shower stalls - Women Men Handicapped 
-Information signs behind each table and along ambulatory patient entrance -Information 
signs about procedure after showering at patient exit Station?? 

1 1 . Place bags for patient belongings and cards (?? Cards and wrist bands?) at tables at 
Station??? 

1 2 . Place patient gowns, towels and shoes at exit at Station??? 
1 3 . Place Decontamination bands at exit at Station?? 
1 4 . Place transportation carts at tent' s exit at Station??? 
1 5 . Place bags for Morgue patients and biohazard tape at Station??? 
1 6 . Place containers to hold patient belongings at Station??? 
1 7 . Put on appropriate decontamination gear as directed by????? 
1 8 . Assign People to Stations 

-Station A# people 
-Station B # 
-Station Cand etc. I do not have the stations I had placed on the map and I 
would also put on the direction sheet which are the security stations such as the entrance 
to the hospital and the person in charge of patient belongings and morgue patients. 

247



ISSUE DATE: 06/15 

~~ Tri-City Medical Cen 
Oceanside, California 

DELETE - incorporated into the 
Emergency Operations 
Procedures Manual: Emergency 
Operations Plan 

Emergency Operations Procedu,.,._-~------------~ 
General Information 

SUBJECT: Purpose and Authority 

REVISION DATE($}: 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

l'.. PURPOSE: 

~03/22 

00/150312209/22 
n/a 

11/22 
~n/a 
06/15 

1. Disasters san and do ossur anytime and anywhere. They may vary in severity, mimber of 
vistims involveEl and impast on the physisal plant of the hospital fasility. The sommunity Ol<pests 
its hospital will always be ready and able to respond effisiently and offestively to any and all 
situations. 

2. Tho objestive of the Emergensy Operations Plan is to provide a strustured method for hospital 
personnel to follow in mobilizing for response to a eisaster situation. The plan is designed to 
proviee for maintaining a high staneare of Gare when normal eemands for servise are Ol<Geedee 
ane to proviee for a safe WGrking environment for staff. The plan establishes prosedures for the 
mm<imum utilization of our faGilities and personnel, as well as integration with losal sommunity, 
sounty, ane regional resouroes. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Tri City Healthoare Distriot (TCHD) shall establish and maintain an emergensy aotion plan, 

referree to as the Emergensy Operations Plan, to permit appropriate response to internal and 
Olf!ernal disasters. The staff shall be trainee to respone to the inGieent in aosordanse with 
guidanoe providee in the plan. /\ Disaster Elmrnise will be ooneuotee at least twioe a year to test 
ane evaluate the plan 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Organization: 

a. In times of orisis, the fasility will operate under the Hospital lnsieent Command System 
(HICS) as developee by the State of California Emergenoy Meeisal Servises Authority. 

b. The HICS Plan sonsists of a ohain of sommand, whish inoorporates four sootions uneor 
the overall leadership of an Emorgonsy lnsidont Commaneor. Eash of tho four sostions: 
Logistiss, Planning, Finanse, ane Operations, has a shiof appointee by tho lnGieont 
Commander and responsible for their sostions. Tho Chiefs' in turn designate direstors 
and unit loaeors to subfunstions. This strusturo limits the span of sontrol of cash 
manager in tho attempt to eistribute the work. 

o. Eash position on tho organizational shart has a prioritizee Job /\stion shoot written to 
dessribe the important duties of eash partisular role. Tho euties on the Job Astion sheets 
are put into Gategories of "lmmeeiate", "lntermeeiato", anEI "ElflenEleEI''. 

2. Authority: 
a. Tho overall authority ane eirestion of the Emergensy Preparoeness Plan rests with tho 

Chief ElmGutivo Offisor or Aeministrator On Call. In tho absonse of the CEO, the 

248



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - General Jnfonnation 
Purpose and Authority 
Page 2 of 2 

Administrator On Call or the Administrffii'«o Superliser on duty will tie in charge. This 
person is responsible fur deolaring the phase of tho disaster and will direst and 
ooorElinato all hospital aotivities until roliovoEl by AElministrativo Authority. 

0. RE.Fl!Rli~ICl!S: 

1. Title 22: gootion 70741, 7074;>, 70748, 70746 
6 Tho Joint Commission EM.02.01.01 

249



lc0\ 
'1ii -, Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Response to Wild Fires 

Re"le"' I) "Te(SJ· • v• ... • 
REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval llate(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval l)ates(s): 

oamo9122 
oomo9122 
.. n/a Medical Executive Committee Approval llates(s): 

Administrative Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval l)ate(s): 
Board of Directors Approval l)ate(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

11/22 
oom n/a 
06/15 

1. To be aware of the hazards associated with a variety of large scale exterior fire situations. Wild 
fires and large residential fire storms have the ability to affect and alter how the organization 
functions and provides treatment to affected patients. This policy follows Tri-City Healthcare 
District (TCHD) all hazards approach to a variety of emergency situations contained within the 
Emergency Management Program and Emergency Operations Plan manual. 

2. Wild fires have the potential to impact the facility with an influx of patients. Residential fire 
storms can occur when extreme low humidity levels coupled with strong wind conditions and 
careless acts occur. 

B. POLICY: 
1. For unusual influx of patients due to wild fires, refer to the Emergency Operations Plan and High 

Census Action Plan policies for direction on managing the event. 
2. When extreme low humidity conditions coupled with high winds (Santa Ana affect) occur, 

processes that create an open flame condition will also be reviewed for suspension. Examples 
may include welding, cutting and other construction practices. 

3. TCHD will rely on the City of Oceanside Fire Department for direction for sheltering in place, 
suspension of specific practices and possible evacuation orders during residential fire events 
near the hospital complex. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. For situations involving wild fires or residential fire storms, refer to the Emergency Management 

Program policy and procedure manual for specific direction and actions to be implemented in an 
emergency situation. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Emergency Operations Procedure Manual General Information - Emergency Operations Plan 
2. Emergency Operations Procedure Manual Patient Management - High Census Action Plan 

250



General lnforrnation 

DELETE - incorporated into the 
Emergency Operations 
Procedures Manual: Emergency 
Operations Plan 

ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Scope of Response 

RE111EIM D "TE(S)· •<•lS... 

REVISION DATE~: 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

P.. POLICY: 

oami03/22 
OOM09/22 
.. NI-An/a 
11/22 
OOM n/a 
06/15 

1. The soope of response initiated will be dependent on the type and si;oe of the disaster incident 
and upon its impao! lo !he physical plant. 

B. DEFINITIONS: 
1. External Disaster: 

a. Multiple Patient lnoidont: (Minor) Any incident that involves 10 or loss viotirns with at 
least one or rnore "Immediato" category patient. 

b. Multiple Casualty Incident: (Moderate) Any inoiden! that involves over 10 viotims and up 
lo 100 viotims. 

c. Mass Casualty Incident: (Largo) Any inoidon! !ha! involves over 100 victims and involves 
signifioant infrastructure damage. 

2. Mutual Aid Response: 
a. Any inoident involving Multiple Casualty or Mass Casualty numbers of victims resulting in 

the expansion of treatment areas lo rooeive oasualtios transferred from the stricken 
community or the sending of personnel and supplies, upon request lo provide medioal 
support in tho affected oommuni!y. 

3. Internal Disaster: 
a. Any incident !ha! impaots the physioal plant or internal funolioning of !he faoili!y: fire, 

earthqualm, flood, seourity t>reaoh, ale. 

C. FLEXIBILITY OF RESPONSE: 
1. Ono of tho attrit>u!os of tho HICS plan is its flexibility in tho implemon!alion of individual seolions 

or branches which can tie cus!omiwd lo meal the noods of a particular crisis. Tho activation of 
positions for a mass casually accident may differ from those activated for an internal disaster 
affecting !he physical plant. Thero may 90 minimal activation of positions in !ho initial stages of 
an incident to 9ogin management and other positions added as moro personnel arrive. A person 
might 90 required to perform more than one jo9 and as moro staff 9ocomos availa91e they Gan 
tie relieved of multiple assignments. 

D. REFERENCES: 
1. Title 22: Section 70741, 70743, 70745, 70746 
&. The doint Commission EM.02.01.01 EP 2 

251



TRIAGE DISASTER BOX 

Supplies: 

1 . 
2 . 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 

Procedure: 

Gloves small, medium, large 
10 white ty11ex suits 
Hazmat smart strips (50) 
M9 Chemisal tape 

DELETE: follow Emergency 
Operations Procedure Manual 

Policy: Chemical Disaster 
Emergency Department 

Flip shart of information on Chemisal and Radiologisal agent exposure 
Patient log 

.:1.1-. -~I n+.:tU:h~eHe~»l-f.'eH=nlt.t-eo.f-f aaA-n-ee~x:apkl o1SsrK:i O}fnhaain~d~pe.os&.s:;i.ieib ifH-1 ittjyYit-t A=m~a~y"-+i A'n1v-<.1o:»l lJ'.vee-aa~s;i:h..:e~mFHi&saailM:a~gtte*ni+t ~or 
radio logisal exposure wi ll have one triage nurse at the Emergensy Department 
Lobby entranse and one at the ambulanse entranse. 

2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 

8. 
9. 

10. 

11. 
12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

2*h 1 . 

A Nuslear Medisine Tesh 'Nill be at eash entranse. 
Will dress in white tyvex suit and double gloves. 
Apply Hazmat strip and M9 Chemica l tape to tyvex suit. 
Review signs and symptoms for agent exposure. 
Review triage criteria for agents. . . , 
For Chemical Agent exposure apply Hazmat strip and M9 shem1cal tape to patients 
clothes and observe for 2 minutes to see if any color change. Remove the M9 
chemisal tape from the patient after finish monitoring . 
Also interview patient for signs and symptoms for exposure. 
The Nuclear Medicine Tesh 'Nill use the Geiger counter to evaluate for 
radiologisal exposure. . . 
Monitor 1 O patients for exposure, then consult the Charge Nurse 1f need to continue 
to evaluate patients. 
Place patient's name, age and chief complaint into l o~. . . . 
Charge nurse will decide when to stop monitoring patients with considering reports 
from the scene and evaluation from the triage nurse. 
If any patient is positive for chemical agent exposure notify.the sharge nurse 
immediately. Place all patients from the scene in a quarantined area m¥ay from 
the hospital doors with assistance from security. 
All patients involved in a shemisal agent exposure from the ssene may 
need decontamination. 
Any patient involved with a chemisal agent that requires desontamination is not 
a llowed into the hospital unti l decontaminated. 
Any patient that is positive for a radiological exposure, notify the charge 
nurse immediately and call a Code Yellow. 
Any patient involved in a radiological exposure incident that requires emergen.cy 
medical treatment is to enter room 26 from the outside entrance door. They will 
be stabilized then decontaminated. 
Any patient that is stable from a radiologisa l exposure should be desontaminated 
prior to entering the hospital. . . 
For Desontamination prosedure refer to disaster manual for Desontam1nat1on 
prosedure and for radiological exposure also refer to Code Ye llow. 
For Desontamination may use sho'Ner outside room 26, and if greater than 5 
patients in11olved call for decontamination tent to be set up. 

252



UNIDENTIFIED PATIENTS 

DA 
MORGUE LOG NAME SEX AGE IDENTIFYING 

NUMBER TE OF BIRTH MARKS, TATTOS, 
ETC. 

JD 1001 DELETE: follow Hospital 
Incident Command System 

(HICS) 

JD 1002 

JD 1003 

JD 1004 

JD 1005 

JD 1006 

JD 1007 

JD 1008 

JD 1009 

JD 101 0 

253



TRI-C ITY MEDICAL CENTER 
Utilities Emer i:encl'. R es(!onse Refer ence 

THE F OLLOWING I SSUES ARE C RITICAL. DIAL 66 Move to Related Document --
Failure of W hat to Expect W ho to Con tact Responsibil Engineering Policy: Utility 
Electrical Power M any lig hts are out; only Dia l 66 Ensure that Management Plan 

-

Failure: RED plus o utlets work (RED outle 
Emergency Compl ete surgical cases in progress ASAP. Use 
Generators Work flashlights 

Elevator Stopped Elevator alarm be ll Dia l 66 Keep voice contact with personnel still in elevator and let 
Between Floors sounding them know help is on the way. 

Medical Gases Gas a la rms; no 0 2, medical D ia l 66 Hand venti late patients; transfer patients if necessary; use 
a ir, or nitrous oxide (NO,) portab le 0, and other gases; call fo r additiona l portable 

cylinde rs. 

Med ical Vacuum No vacuum; vacuum D ial 66 Call SPD for portable vacuum; obta in portable vacuum 
systems fa il and in a larm from crash cart; fini sh surgical cases in 
progress. 

N atura l Gas; Odor, no flames on D ial 66 Open windows to ventilate; turn off gas equi pment; don' t 
Fa ilure or Leak burners, e tc. use any spark-produc ing devices, e lectric motors, 
switches, 
E lectrical Power Fa ilure of a ll e lectrica l Dia l 66 Use flashlights; hand venti late patients; manua lly regulate 
Failure - Tota l systems I V 's; don' t start new surgica l cases unless ST AT 

THE FOLLOWING ISSUE S ARE NON CRITCAL. DIAL EXTENSIONS LISTED 

Air Conditioning System Down Engineering. Ext. 7 148 Use po rtable fans 

Computer System Down Information Systems Use backup manual/paper systems 
Systems Ext 7247 

Elevator Out of All ve rtical movement will Engineering Ext. 7 148 Review fire and evacuation plans; establish services on 
Service have to be by s tairwells. fi rs t or second floor, use carry teams to move critica l 

patients and equipment to othe r floors. 

N urse Ca ll No patient contact Engineering. Ext. 72 19 Use beds ide patient te lephone if ava ilable; move patients; 
System PBX (Stores Bells) use be lls; deta il a rover to check patients. 

Patient Care Equipment/system does not B iomedical Replace, tag and isolate de fective equipment. F ill out 
Equipment/ function properly Engineering Ext 7792 Quality Review F orm. 
Systems 
Sewer Stoppage Drains backing up Eng ineeri ng Do not fl ush to ilets; do not use water. 

Ext 7148 

Steam Fa ilure No building heat or hot Eng ineering Conserve s teri le mate ria ls and a ll linens; prov ide extra 
water; s te rilizes Ser 7 148 blankets; prepare cold meals. 
inoperative, limi ted 
cooking 

Te lephones No phone serv ice Information Systems Use overhead pag ing, pay phones, and ru nners as needed. 
Ext 7247 

Water Sinks and toi lets Engineeri ng Institute Fire Watch; conserve water, use bott led water for 
inoperative Ext7 148 drinking ; be s ure to turn off water in sinks, use RED bags 

in to ilet. 

Water Non- Tap wate r unsafe to drink Engineeri ng. 7 148 Place "Non-Potable Water - Do Not Drink" s igns at a ll 
Potable Foods Services drinking fo untains and wash basins. 

Ext. 72 10 
Direc tors 

V entilation No ventilation; no heati ng Engineeri ng Services Open windows (institute Fire Watch) or obtain blankets if 
or coo ling Ext7 148 needed; restrict use of odorous/hazardous materia ls. 

Phone Numbers Pa!!:er # 

Eng ineeri ng: Ex t 7 148 Resp. The rapy: Ext 3066 0344 
Biomed: Ext 7792 EOC/Safety Offi cer: Ext 7357 0225 
Food & N utrition: Ex t 72 10 Security Ext3366 03 12 
In formation Systems: Ext 7247 SPD Ext 7288 

Safety\Util ity.mgm 

254



ISSUE DATE: 06/15 

Re"le'"' o "Te(S)· r • • i<.. • 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
PATIENT MANAGEMENT 

SUBJECT: Victim Tracking 

Department Approval Date(s): ~09/22 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): Wf.1.509/22 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): .. n/a 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): OOf.1-5 n/a 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 06/15 

A. POLICY: 
1. The disaster plan will provide a mechanism for identifying and tracking disaster patients during 

the treatment process. This process is used for regular Hospital facilities and alternate care 
sites alike. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. All patients arriving during a disaster will be identified at the Triage Area using a Medical 

Emergency Triage Tag (METTAG) Disaster Tag. 
2. The METTAG number will serve as the patient identifier throughout the Triage and Treatment 

process. 
3. At Triage, an assistant will be assigned to log all patients onto the "Victim List". Information 

logged will include triage category, name (if known), and treatment destination. 
4. At each treatment location clerical personnel shall be assigned to maintain a Victim List and a 

Disaster Control Board for their own treatment area. It is important to maintain a log for 
identification of all persons treated as part of the disaster response. 

5. The Victim Lists should be updated as patient conditions change and dispositions are made. 
6. Periodically, copies of the updated Victim Lists should be routed to the Planning Section of the 

Emergency Operations Center. Origin of the list and time of the update should be clearly noted. 
At the termination of the response the list in its final form should be forwarded to the Planning 
Section of the Emergency Operations Center. 

7. The Patient Tracking Officer in the Planning Section will maintain the "HICS Patient Tracking 
Sheet". Information will be shared with the Public Information Officer. 

8. At the completion of the disaster, all victims treated must be logged into the Emergency 
Department Log, and all transfers must be logged into appropriate transfer logs. 

C. AITACHMENT(S): 
1. Sample of METTAG 

D. REFERENCE($): 
1. Title 22: Section 707 41, 707 43, 707 45, 707 46 
2. The Joint Commission EM.02.02.11, EP 8 

255



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual - Patient Management 
Victim tracking 
Page 2 of 2 

Sample METT AG 

hnanal Pni.:'°rty r.• lp1'' I 
IE.vid1111ce f ;:ig ~37!iiJ!'",52" 

J>MtlnDll<lrl ___ --- 0 I U I( 
'"3789&!12" 

VITAL SIGNS 

Pilll11nt's N11 

LJ A~•tir.O'.'tl • :lott .!U ... 

I! 
l P..rlu J~ ll • C'llJ I l ~ A.ln .... 

c~~- <5':!-• ..:d' 

1MIHOR 

MORGUE 

. IMMEDIATi_ 

IMMEDlATE_ 

1 rAn·1., '."l.r..r. .J·,1~n tc .. iJilll'.i J.)fjij 

PE.-~OMAL lkfCJft)i).TIO..i 

'{•Y 

n: ~ · 

c· m.a1 I 
!11 .. , 

"'~•L 

1:a:ioul h. ~ rlJ1;uJsvio.r 

256



~?) Tri·City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PROCEDURE MANUAL 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

ISSUE DATE: NEW 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: 1135 Waiver, Requesting 

06/22 
09/22 

n/a 
11/22 
.. n/a 

1. The purpose of 1135 waivers are to ensure that federal regulations do not needlessly infringe on 
an immediate need to provide health and medical services to individuals effected by a large
scale disaster. 

2. The purpose of this policy is to: 
a. Identify the process for requesting a waiver Section 1135 of the Social Security Act. 
b. Ensure the provision of care and treatment of patients are maintained when an 1135 

waiver is implemented. 
c. Ensure sufficient health care items and services are available to meet the needs of 

Medicare, Medicaid and Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) beneficiaries. 

B. SCOPE: 
1. The President of the United States has declared a federal disaster that includes the service area 

of our facility and the Health and Human Services (HHS) Secretary has declared a public health 
emergency within our service area; and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), or designee, has 
determined that certain regulatory flexibilities are necessary to help Tri-City Hospital District 
(TCHD) fulfill our mission and to service the healthcare needs of area residents, visitors and 
disaster victims. 

2. This policy applies to all TCHD onsite and offsite locations. 
3. The policy shall be reviewed annually by the Environmental Health and Safety Committee 

(EHSC). 

C. DEFINTIONS: 
1. 1135 waivers - Emergency, temporary waivers granted by the US HHS Secretary to healthcare 

facilities or blanket waivers for specific disaster area, during the time of disaster. These waivers 
are authorized under section 1135 of the Social Security Act. Waivers can only be issued 
following a Presidential disaster declaration under the Stafford Act or National Emergencies Act 
and the HHS Secretary has declared a public health emergency 

2. Emergency Situation - A sudden, unexpected or impending situation that may cause injury, loss 
of life, damage to the property, and/or interference with normal business operations, therefore 
requiring immediate attention and/or remedial action. 

D. POLICY: 
1. During disasters, TCHD may need to request a 1135 waiver to address care and treatment of 

patients as identified by emergency management officials or to receive temporary administrative 

257



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
1135 Waiver, Requesting 
Page 2 of 3 

flexibility from various federal regulations including Medicare, Medicaid, Children's Health 
Insurance Program, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 

2. Waivers can only be issued following a Presidential disaster declaration under the Stafford Act 
or National Emergencies Act and the HHS Secretary has declared a public health emergency. 

3. Waivers or modifications may be issued to ensure that in an emergency area, during an 
emergency period, sufficient care items and services are available to the maximum possible 
extent to meet the needs of individuals enrolled in Social Security Act (SSA) programs and that 
services in good faith who are unable to comply with certain statutory requirement are 
reimbursed and exempted from sanctions for noncompliance other than fraud or abuse. 

4. Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Law (EMT ALA) 
a. Waivers for EMTALA (for public health emergencies that do not involve a pandemic 

disease) and Health Insurance Portability and Accountable Act {HIPAA) requirements 
are limited to a 72-hour period beginning upon implementation of a hospital disaster 
protocol. 

b. Waiver of EMTALA requirements for emergencies that involve a pandemic disease last 
until the termination of the pandemic-related public health emergency. 

5. Examples of possible 1135 waivers or modifications include the following: 
a. Conditions of participation or other certification requirements 
b. Program participation and similar requirements 
c. Preapproval requirements 
d. Requirements that physicians and other health care professionals be licensed in the 

State in which they are providing services, so long as they have equivalent licensing in 
another State (this waiver is for purposes of Medicare, Medicaid, and CHIP 
reimbursement only - state law governs whether a non-Federal provider is authorized to 
provide services in the state without state licensure) 

e. EMTALA sanctions for direction or relocation or of an individual to receive a medical 
screening examination in an alternative location pursuant to an appropriate state 
emergency preparedness plan (or in the case of a public health emergency involving 
pandemic infectious disease, a state pandemic preparedness plan) or transfer of an 
individual who has not been stabilized if the transfer is necessitated by the 
circumstances of the declared emergency. 
i. A waiver of EMTALA requirements is effective only if actions under the waiver do 

not discriminate on the basis of a patient's source of payment or ability to pay. 
f. Stark self-referral sanctions 
g. Performance deadlines and timetables may be adjusted (but not waived). 
h. Limitations on payment for health care items and services furnished to Medicare 

Advantage enrollees by non-network providers 
6. The 1135 waiver authority applies only to Federal requirements and does not apply to State 

requirements for licensure or conditions of participation. 
7. 1135 waivers are not a grant or financial assistance program 

a. Do not allow reimbursement for services otherwise not covered 
b. Do not allow individuals to be eligible for Medicare who otherwise would not be eligible 
c. Should NOT impact any response decisions, such as evacuations 
d. Do not last forever and appropriateness may fade as time goes 

8. Waiver Duration 
a. Typically end no later than the termination of the emergency period, or - 60 days from 

the date the waiver, or modification is first published unless the Secretary of HHS 
extends the waiver by notice for additional periods of up to 60 days, up to the end of the 
emergency period. 
i. TCHD will resume compliance with normal rules and regulations as soon as they 

are able to do so. 

E. PROCEDURE: 
1. The CEO or designee will determine the need to request a 1135 waiver 

258



Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
1135 Waiver, Requesting 
Page 3 of 3 

2. 

3. 

4. 

The CEO or designee will submit a request for a 1135 waiver using the electronic CMS 1135 
Waiver I Flexibility Request and Inquiry form. The form can be accessed using the 
following: https://cmsqualitysuooort.servicenowservices.com/cms 1135. Prior to completing the 
electronic form: 
a. Review the CMS, Quick Reference Guide. For questions, submit an 1135 Waiver I 

b. 
Flexibility Request for assistance to complete the electronic 
For questions related to the form use the above CMS web site may be use or contact the 
Region Office 
i. Regional Office State Agency for Health Care Administration 

1) Located in San Francisco ROSFOORA@cms.hhs.gov 
The following information must be provided: 
a. Provider Name/Type 
b. Full Address (including county/city/town/state) 
c. CMS Certification Number (CCN) e.g., Medicare provider number 
d. Contact person and contact information for follow-up questions should Region need 

additional clarification. 
e. Brief summary of why waiver needed 
Consideration (type of relief/regulatory requirement seeking to be waived) 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Emergency Operations Procedure Manual 
2. Evacuation Plan 

G. EXTERNAL LINK(S): 
1. CMS 11 35 Waiver I Flexibility Request and Inquiry 

form https://cmsqualitysupport.servicenowservices.com/cms 1135 

H. REFERENCES: 
1. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). (2021 ). 11 35 waivers. Retrieved from 1135 

Waivers I CMS 
2. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). 11 35 waivers and The Emergency 

Preparedness Rule Presentation. Retrieved from 1135 Waivers I CMS 
3. The Joint Commission (T JC). (2020). 1135 waivers. Retrieved from PowerPoint Presentation 

(jointcommission.org) 
4. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Quick reference guide. Submit an 1135 

waiver/flexibility request. Retrieved from https://www.cms.gov/files/document/covid-1135-
waiver-application-quick-start-guide.pdf 

5. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). (n.d.) 1135 waiver-at a glance. 
https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrol lment-and
Certification/SurveyCertEmerg Prep/Downloads/1135-Waivers-At-A-Glance. pdf 

259



~1 i n·C1ty llllechcal Center IRfeetieR GeR!Fel Mamial 

PRGGl!9URI!: l!Nl,llRQNMl!NTAb & lPJASTI! MANAGl!Ml!NT i;:QR l!BQbA VIRUS 91Sl!.O,SI! 
Purpese: To Elefine iRfoctieR coRtrel precesses froffi aA eAvireAR'!eRtal cleaRiAg & waste 

. .. ·-

Supportive Data: ~nr- ~f\l 1 /1. (°"'""'.-.. r"\t ,.,_. ·-
' ... ' 

.. ····-·· ". .. - ·' ' H 

DELETE - Follow Infection 'leAl . - . .. -: :-· .. -' .. .. ~- . 
Control Policy: Ebola Plan . .. , -· - - .. -.. A < 

- . ~- ',I• 

A. 8ACKGROlJNIJ .'\NC TRft.NSMISSION: 
1. l!bela virus is transffiitted threugh Elirect ceAtact with bleed or boEly fluiEls/substaRces of aR 

iAfoctoEI person with syffiptoffis er through exposure to ebjects that have booR centaffiiRatoEI 
with infocteEI bleoEI or boEly fluiEls. TraAsR'!ission ef Ebola through the eAviroRR'!ont has Rel boeR 
establishoEI. However, Elue to tho severity of tho disease, higher levels of procautioA are 
Recessary to reduce aRy poteRtial risk poseEI by coRtaffiiRateEI surfaces. 

B. PRl!GAUTIQNS: 
1. All persoRRel, iRcluEliRg eRviroRmeRtal services staff, are to wear recomffieREloEI persoRal 

proteetive equipR'leRt (PPE) ElesigRateEI for use for a suspeet or coRfirffieEI EVD patieRt. All 
persoRRel will be carefully iRstructed iR the proper use of PPE, iRcluEliRg proper sequeRciRg of 
EloRRiRg aRd EleffiRg. See Reoffi Dia§lfaffi, PPE GuiElaRce Matril< for EVD, PuttiRg OR PPE 
Properly for Ebola (~J95), a REI Removal of PPE Properly for Ebola (N95). 
a. Refer to IC Bloodbome PathogeR Exposure PlaR 

C. GUl9ANGE AN9 MANAGl!Ml!NT: 
1. All guiElaRce for eRviroRR'!eRlal aREI 'Naste maRagemeRI regarEliRg patieRts who are suspect or 

coRfirffieEI with Ebola Virus Disease will be ElirecteEI by CDPH aRd the CDC. 
a. CoRtracted coR'!paRy to haRElle contamiRateEI waste: 

i. IRfoctioR CoRtrol will work with the Director of Safoty/ERviroAffieRt of Garo Officer 
to iAitiato coRtact with the desigRateEI hazarElous waste represeRtative (Steri 
Cycle) who will iRitiato process with DOT & obtaiR Special Permit for haRElliRg & 
pacl1agiAg Ebola coRtamiRatoEI waste, uRloss ElirecteEI otherwise by the CDPH, 
CDC or DOT. 

2. A US ERviroRR'!eRtal Protective AgeRcy (EPA) registereEI ElisiRfoctaRt with a label claim for a 
AGR-
e nve Io p e El virus will be utilized for cleaRiRg. Refer to approveEI EPA list for ElisiRfectaRts agaiRsl 
~ 
a. Go to https:UwwN.epa.gov/sites/proEluctioR/files/2015 09/ElocuffieRts/ebola list I 

aug2015.pElf for the list. 
b. bis! b: EPA's RogistereEI ARliffiicrobial ProElucts that Meet the CDC Griteria for Use 

AgaiRst tho Ebola Virus (Elated Se13toffiber 1, 2015) Use R'!ost curreRt versioR of 
iRforR'!alioA 13ublisheEI. htt13s:Uwviw.013a.go•;/pesticiE10 registratioR/list I ElisinfoctaRts use 
agaiRst ebola virus 

3. Refer to Ebola Virus Disease MeElical Waste MaRagorneRt IR!eriffi GuiEleliRes (ElateEI March 4, 
201 e) (or R'!ost curreRt versioR published) for s13ocilic guiElaRce OR the ffiaRagoffieRI of Ebola 
coRlaffiiAatoEI rneElical ·.vaste basoEI DA federal guiEleliRes aRd staRElarEls iRcluEliRg guiElaRce on 
pacl<iRg, labeling aREI treatffieRt. 
a. Go to: 

http:,W.1ww.cE113h.ca.gov/certlic/medicalwaste/DocuffieRts/MeElicalVl/aste/2013/Ebola%20 

Department Review 
Infection Control Pharmacy and Medical Executive Administration Professional Affairs 

Committee Therapeutics Committee Committee 

41l/2009/22 41l/2009/22 n/a n/a 11/22 n/a 

B• 

260



Infection Control Manual 
Procedure Title 
Page 2 of 32 

medical%20•Naste%20management CDPH%20interim%20guidance 
28%200ct%202014.pdf 

4. Ebola virus is a classified as a Category A infectious substance regulated by the U.S. 
Department of Transportation's (DOT) Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR, 49 C.F.R., Parts 
171 180). /\ny item transported offsite for disposal that is contaminated or suspected of being 
contaminated 'Nith a Category A infectious substance must be packaged anEI transporteEI in 
aecorElanco with the HMR. This incluElos moElical OEJUipmont, sharps, linens, usoEI hoaltheare 
proElucts such as soileEI absorbent paEls or Elrossings, kiElnoy shapoEI omosis pans, portable 
toilets; anEI usoEI PPE (gowns, masks, gloves, goggles, face shiolEls, respirators, booties, etc.) 
or byproducts of cleaning conlaminaleEI or suspecleEI of being contaminaloEI with a Category A 
infectious subslanee.e, 7 (see EJUeslion 8). 

D. CLEA~llNG ANO OISINFECTING: 
1. Cleaning anEI Elisinfectien of hard, non porous surfaces will be done by using an EPA registered 

antimicrobial that meets CDC criteria for use against \he Ebola Virus. Use the cleaning and 
Elisinfection preElucts accorEling to usual label instruetiens and any specific instructions relateEI lo 
inactivation of a non envelopeEI virus (norevirus, rotavirus, aElenovirus, poliovirus) follow label 
instructions fer use of the proEluct that are specific fer inactivation of that virus. Refer lo List L: 
EPA's RegistereEI Antimierobial ProElucts that Mmeels the CDC Criteria fer Use Against the 
Ebola Virus (ElateEI Sefllember 1, 2015) 
a. Use most current version of information publisheEI 

2. All cleaning eleths, mop cloths, PPE, wipes, microfiber cloths, linens, food service, privacy 
curtains will be ElisposeEI of anEI placeEI in leak proof red biohazarEI bags anEI placeEI in a rigiEI 
'Neste receptacle designeEI to support the bag to help minimize contamination of the bag's 
m({erior. /\11 •.vaste "'All be hanElleEI as Category /\waste anEI centaineEI in primary anEI seconElary 
reEI biohazarEI bags, whose respective outsiEle surfaces have been ElisinfeeteEI with bleach wipes 
anEI placeEI into a specifieEI rigiEI container with a tight fitting liEI. 

E. SPILLS OF BLOOO OR OTHER BOOY SUBSTANCE: 
1. The basic principles for blooEI or boEly substance spill management are eutlineEI iR the UniteEI 

States Occupational Safety anEI Health AElminislration (OSHA) BleoEiborne Pathogen StanElarEls 
(29 CFR 1910.1030). 

2. CDC guiElelines recommenEI removal of bulk spill matter, cleaning the site, anEI then Elisinfecting 
the site. For large spills, a chemical Elisinfectant with sufficient potency is neeEleEI to overcome 
the tenElency of proteins in blooEI anEI other boEly substances lo neutralize the Elisinfeclant's 
active ingreElienl. An EPA regislereEI hospital Elisinfectant with label claims for non envelopeEI 
viruses (norovirus, rotavirus, aElenovirus, poliovirus) anEI instruetions for Gleaning and 
Elecontaminating surfaces or objects soileEI with blooEI or boEly fluiEls shoulEI be useEI accorEling 
to those instructions. 
a. Refer to IC BlooElborne Pathogen Exposure Plan 

F. \•\'ASTE PACKAGING AND TRANSPORTING: 
1. All waste is packaged anEI transporteEI in accorElanee with the U.S. DOT HazarElous Materials 

Regulations (HMR, 49 C.F.R., Parts 71 180). lnEiiviElual plastie roEI biohazarEI bags film will 
weigh no more than 1 O l(g (22 pounEls). ReEI biohazarEI bags must moot tho FeEloral Department 
of Transportation (DOT) ReEJuirements for impact and tear resistance. Do not overfill the 
biohazarEI bags. It is suggesleEI that the bags only be filled with Ebola contaminateEI waste no 
more than half of its total volume. 

2. Sharps anEI Pharmaceutical Waste: 
a. Sharps anEI pharmaeeutical waste is rilaceEI in authorized single use sharps containers, 

which are closeEI anEI sealeEI. Do not reuse sharps container system. 'Nhon the sharps 
container is reaEly for Elisposal, close anEI securely lock the eentainer. Disinfect the 
exterior of the sharps waste container with bleach wipes, anEI place in a reEI biohazarEI 

261



Infection Control Manual 
Procedure Title 
Page 3 of 32 

bag. Sesurely tie off the biohazare bag, eisinfeot the OJ<terior suriaoe of the bag with 
bleaoh wipes ane plaoe into a rigie oontainer with a tight fitting lie for transportation. 

d. :;>uotion Canister VVaste: 
a. Do net reuse suotion oanister systern, onoe usee on suspest or sonfirrnee EVD patient. 

Do not aee solieifier to liquie sontents of a suction oanister ane agitate to rnix beoause of 
the potential to oreate aerosols. Seal/olose the canister ane eisinfeot the outsiee suriaoe 
of tho canister with bleaoh wipes. Thon plase sealee sanister in ree biohazare bag. 
:;>eourely tie bag. Disinfeot exterior suriaoe of bag ane place in rigie container with tight 
fitting lie. 

4. Other Waste: Linens etc: 
a. Place all other waste in ree biohazare bags, no rnore than half full. Securely close the 

bag with a knot. Disinfect the exterior surface of the bag with bleach wipes ane place 
into a secone bag. Tie off the secone bag, eisinfect the exterior of the secone bag 'Nith 
bleach •nipes ane place into a rigie container with a tight fitting lie. 

5. Incineration (or autoslaving) as a waste treatrnent process is effective in elirninating viral 
infectivity ane proviees waste rninirnization. If eisposal requires transport offsite then this shoule 
be eone in accoreance with the IJ.:;>. Departrnent of Transportation's (DOT) Hazareous 
Materials Regulations (HMR, 49 CFR, Parts 171 180).e, 7 Guieance frorn DOT has been 
releasee for Ebola. 
a. Stericycle, the contractee cornpany will be responsible for rnanaging, centaining ane 

transporting all centarninatee waste as eirestee by DOT. 

G. FORM(S): 
1. Potential EJ<posure Contract List :;>arnple 
2. Obser1er Tracking Forrn Sarnple 

H. RELATED OOCUMENT(S): 
1. Ernployee Health Managernent EVD Protocol 
2. Direct Health Care Provieer :;>yrnptorn Questionnaire (EVD) 
d. PPE ane Cleaning Supply List 
4. PPE Guieance Matrix by Job Positions 
5. Job Checklists 
6. Roorn Diagrarn 
7. PPE Guieance MatriJ< for EVD 
8. Putting on PPE Properly for Ebola (N95) 
9. Rernoval of PPE Properly for Ebola (N95) 
10. Roorn :;>ignage 
11. CDC: Checklist for Patients Being Evaluatee for EVIJ in the Unitee States 

I. REFERENCES: 
1. http:h61NPN.cec.gov/vhf/ebola/hoalthcare us/cloaning/hospitals.htrnl 
2. https://lw.n1;.ceph.ca.gov/certlic/rneeicalwasto/Docurnents/Meeical1Naste/201 d/Ebola%20rneeisa 

1%20waste%20rnanagernent CDPH%20interirn%20guidance 28%200ct%202014 .pef 

262



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

ENVIRONMENT OF CARE 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MANAGEMENT 

ISSUE DATE: 10/94 

REVISION DATEfS): 08/97, 07/00, 04/03, 05/15 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Dates(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE 

SUBJECT: Hazardous Material 
Waste Training Procedures 

POLICY NUMBER: 6002 

04/4509/22 
04/4509/22 
11/22 
0545 n/a 
05/15 

1. To outline the prooessguidelines for training of personnel who are required to handle 
hazardous ohemioalssubstances. 

B. POLICY 
1. All employees who handle hazardous ma!erialssubstances will be and waste are trained prior 

to handling the substance, to include each time a new chemical is introduced into job 
tasks, receiving a new iR SOS, if the new information indicates significant increase risks 
to employees, or measures necessary to protect employee health. 'Nhioh oontain the 
following: 
a. Employee shall be informed of any operations in their work area where hazardous 

substances are present 
b. Employee shall be informed of the location and availability of the written hazard 

communication program, including lists of the hazardous substances and SDSs 
required by this section. 

c. Employees shall be trained in the methods and observations that may be used to 
detect the presence or release of hazardous substances in the work area (such as 
monitoring conducted by the employer, continuous monitoring devices, visual 
appearance or odor of hazardous substances when being released) 

d. Employees shall be trained in the physical and health hazards of the substances 
in the work area, and the measure they can take to protect themselves from these 
hazards, including specific procedures the employer has implemented to protect 
employees from exposure to hazardous substances, such as appropriate work 
practices, emergency procedures, and PPE to be used 

&.e. Employees shall be trained in the details of the hazard communication program 
developed by the employer, including an explanation of the labeling system and 
SOS, and how employees can obtain and use the appropriate hazard information. 

a. The l=lazard Communioa!ion/Global l=larmonization/Righ! lo Know Law. 
b. Symptoms assooia!ed with overm<posure to haiardous materials. 
o. Firs! AiEI treatment. 
d. l=low to read Safety [)ata Sheets. 
e. Use of personal pro!eotive equipment. booation, availability, type, use anEI limitations. 
f. S!anElarEI operating procedures. 
g. l=lazarEls of ohemioals to workers involved in non routine tasl<s suoh as in the cleaning. 

263



Environment of Care~ Hazardous Materials Management 
Hazardous Material and Waste Training Procedures 
Page 2 of2 

h. Emergency 13rooedures. 
i. Storage waotioes. 
j. Identify what and where hmmrdous ohemioals are found in the work area. 

C. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Obey established safety rules. 
2. Use personal protective equipment as required. 
3. Inform your supervisor of: 

a. Any symptoms of overexposure that may possibly be related to hazardous chemicals. 
b. Missing labels on containers. 
c. Malfunctioning safety equipment. 
d. Any damaged containers or spills must be reported immediately. 

D. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. All documentation is tracked and maintained in Netlearning. 

264



ISSUE DATE: 04/3/06 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Clinical Nutrition Dietitian Staffing 

REVISION DATE: 10/11, 03/18 

Department Approval: 4-0/2-'.l-07 /22 
n/a Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
--Aia09/22 
oa/2211/22 

n/a 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 05/22 

A. DEFINITIONS: 
A-1. Clinical Dietitian/Clinical Staffing refers to a Registered Dietician (RD) who has 

completed department specific competencies. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Clinical dietitians are scheduled to assure continuity and consistency of nutrition care provided 

to patients. 
2. Clinical dietitians are scheduled daily to assure consistency of care to patients. 
3. A dietitian is scheduled for weekend coverage. 
4. A dietitian is scheduled for holiday coverage. 
5. Staffing of clinical dietitians is adjusted to patient census and workload 

C. EMERGENCY OPERATION CLINICAL NUTRITION STAFFING 
1. Phase 1 (Conventional Capacity) 

a. In-patient - Clinical staffing at least 80% with dietitians working regularly scheduled 
hours. 
i. Follow etirrently approved facility nutrition assessment policy~ and identify 

opportunities for potential adjustments. 
i. Review clinical care precesses and associated doctimentation to identify 

opporttinitios for potential adjtistments. 
b. Outpatients 

i. If facility remains open to outpatients, continue business as usual 
ii. Implement tele-health nutrition MNT options 

2. Phase 2 (DecreasedCR&is Capacity) Clinical staffing at 51-79% or loss and/ or volume of 
patients with nutrition concerns is elevated. 
a. Inpatients 

i. Follow facility nutrition assessment policy and Aadjust assessment and 
reassessment time frames to prioritize severe nutrition risk patients including and 
limited to: 
1) Ventilated patients 
2) Patients on new nutrition support 
3) Malnutrition/Pressure Injuries Stage Ill & IV/ BMI < 18 
4) In the event that all severe nutritionally at risk patients are addressed, 

Dietitian will prioritize additional patients per clinical judgement. 
ii. Outpatients 

1) Closed 

265



Food and Nutrition Manual 
Clinical Nutrition Dietitian Staffing 
Page2of2 

3. Phase 3 (Crisis Capacity) Clinical staffing at 50% or less and/ or volume of patients with 
nutrition concerns is elevated. 
a. Inpatients 

Hhi. Follow facility nutrition assessment policy and adjust assessment and 
reassessment time frames to prioritize severe nutrition risk patients 
including and limited to: 
1) New ventilated patients 
9,2) Patients on new enteral feeding 
4-j3) New TPN, if consulted by consulted Pharmacy 
~) Consultation ordered that meet criteria for severe malnutrition 
dj5) Pressure Injuries Stage Ill & IV 

ii. Documentation will be completed in an abbreviated form 
iii. Reassessments will be completed per clinical judgement or if consulted through 

the EMR. 
iv. In the event that all severe nutritionally at risk patients are addressed, Dietitian 

will prioritize additional patients per clinical judgement. 
b. Outpatients 

v.,i. Closed 

266



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 05/88 

REVISION DATE: 2/09, 01/10, 10/11, 02/12 

Food and Nutrition Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness: Food & 
Nutrition Plan 

~09/22 
.. R/3 

-'1414309/22 
.. n/a 
.. n/a 
04#911/22 
.. n/a 
01/19 

1. Tri-City Medical Center will have the means to: 
a. AsEflsure efficient Food & Nutrition services and to maintain adequate availability of 

personnel in the event of disaster. 
b. Provide nutritional assistance to staff and patients. 
c. Maintain proper management of food and supplies. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. Emergency: An unexpected or sudden event that significantly disrupts the organization's ability 

to provide care, or the environment of care itself, or that results in sudden, significantly changed 
or increased demand for the organization's services. This may include, but not limited to, 
loss of water supply, electricity, or natural gas as well as increased patient census. 

C. POLICY: 
+.---The facility maintains an inventory of at least (7) days shelf stable ~and (2) days 

perishable foods, water, and disposables. in inventory. Within our supply, we rnaintain a 
rninirnurn of (4) days (96 heur) diaster rneals, bottled water and disposable supplies in the 
facilities secured warehouse area. 

6-1. A Nutrition Service Disaster and eEmergency P13lan is available and reviewed annually with 
all department employees. is prorninently posed in tho food service dopartrnent and reviewed 
by all departrnent ernployees at least annually. This plan 'Nill be referred lo when the facility 
mcporionces a less of waler supply, electricity, natural gas, or experiences and 
emergency/disaster. It is possible that any or all of these services may be interrupted. 

&.-2. The Food and Nutrition Service Director, Dietitian, or Food Service designee staff member in 
charge will consult with the House Supervisor or Administrator to determine the nature of the 
emergency and the anticipated duration. If needed, all or part of the emergency meal plan will 
be implemented to asensure provisions of nutritious meals to patients, staff, and guests 
despite the limitations of the disaster. The Meals for All Emergency Solution menu may be used 
during and emergency/disaster at the discretion of the Food and Nutrition Service Director, 
Dietitian, or designee, Department, House Supervisor, or Administration. In the event the 
emergency/disaster is anticipated to last beyond one meal, the Clinical Registered Dietitian 
Team will be notified. 

D. NOTIFICATION: 

267



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page 2 of 7 

1. Food & Nutrition Services will be notified of the disaster plan activation when the PBX operator 
announces "Code Orange" or "Code Yellow" utilizing the overhead page. 

2. Food Service Director/Supervisor/DesigneeCharge Responsibilities: 
a. Locate the Unit Leader Responsibilities found in the Department Disaster binder 

(Section #3). The charge duty responsibilities will transfer to the Manager/Director of 
Food and Nutrition Services upon their arrival to the facility and briefing with the 
Command Center. 

b. A completed staff inventory form and emergency incident message form will be delivered 
to the Incident Command Center via staff. These forms can be located in the Food and 
Nutrition Department Disaster Binder located in the Food and Nutrition Director's 
Office. patient foee service Sllpervisers' office ane in the main Feee & Nlltritien 
Services office. 

c. The lncieent Cemmane Center is lecatee in the French reems. If the Incident Command 
Center is not set up, then staff is to notify the Emergency Department for further 
instructions. 

d. All Food Service staff will be recalled staff from breaks for standby to report to disaster 
priority areas when assigned. 

E. PROCEDURE 
1. The Director of Food and Nutrition Services will initiate the departmental disaster call-in roster, if 

the situation warrants it and requested by the Incident Command Center. 
a. In the event of a major disaster situation, all off duty personnel are required to report to the 

designated lbabor pool for further direction. 
2. All on-duty employees are to report immediately to the department for instructions. 

a. Information regarding staffing levels and available staff resources is completed on the 
Incident Emergency Message form (Section# 3) and deliveredtakeR to the Incident 
Command Center. in the French reems. 

3. Staff will begin to inventory and document all food products and disposable supplies. They will 
report their findings to the Director of Food and Nutrition or their-designee 

4. Meals will be served in the cafeteria when possible unless circumstances prevent the use of that 
area. If this occurs, then other serving areas and times will be designated by the Food and 
Nutrition Director or designee. 

5. In the event the emergency/disaster situations affects the normal operation of patient food service, 
the Director of Food and Nutrition or designee will be responsible for any changes necessary to 
serve food to the patients and will notify all the affected departments. The Command Center shall 
also be notified of the changes as well. 
a. See Appendix A: Procedure for Disaster Control (Section# 8) 
b. See Appendix B: Disaster Menu - See Meals for All Binder 

6. Disposable ware will be utilized in the event the emergency/disaster situation when normal food 
service operations are disrupted. , 

7. The list of current vendors and phone numbers who can provide emergency refrigeration, water, 
and food supplies is kept on file in the Department Disaster Binder (Section #5). Emergency 
phene nllmbers for contacting veneers at night er on weei<enes for all of the veneers is in the 
Department Disaster Bineer as well. 

8. In the event that the kitchen can not be accessed or utilized, one option may be the Meals for All 
(Nutricopia) which has an inventory of to feed patients, staff, and guests for 7 days. +goo 
meals as well as 198Q snacks for patients, staff ane •;isiters. Refer to Meals for All Implementation 
procedures. 

9. The Director of Food and Nutrition or designee will update the Command Center on an hourly 
basis, unless extreme circumstances warrant and immediate notification. 

1 Q. A beverage station will be set llp, llpon FOEJllest, for the Cemmane Center. 
-1-1-o 10. The Food and Nutrition Departmental Disaster Plan will be updated and reviewed on an annual 

basis. 

268



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page 3 of 7 

~11. The Food and Nutrition Department maintains an emergency water supply which is kept in the 
basement storage and disaster cage. This includes: 
a. 80 five gallon jugs or approximately 400 gallons 
b. 9500 gallons of canned water 

1 :0. Water may be accessed from \ho Cily of Oceanside. In \he event that this water is inaccessible, 
waler from \he City of Vista would l:Je accessed. Water may also l:Je accessed from two 10,000 
gallon drums located on the roof of the medical center. Details of how this water »vould l:Jo 
accessed are found in the Disaster Manual Engineering sraecific raolicy (failure of H20 
Distril:Jution). Alternative sotirces for water include commercial water suraraliers, i.e. Rayne and 
Arrowhead. 

-14.12. Disaster supplies and food designated for disaster use are stored separately from the-Food and 
Nutrition Services Department, in a room in the basement under the Operating Room Suites. 

~13. In the event that the kitchen cannot be utilized for meal preparation, alternative sites are available: 
a. Occupational Therapy kitchen 
b. Pavilion kiffihen 
&.-b. Disaster tents may be set up and utilized as needed 

F. ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Appendix A: Procedure for Disaster Control 
2. Appendix B: Disaster Menu 

G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Food & Nutrition Services Disaster Call Tree 
2. Disaster Call List for Vendors 

269



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page4of7 

Appendix A 
Procedure for Disaster Control 

A. Procedure for Handwashing Dishes: If unable to use flight dish machine 
1. Use l'.•1e (2) lanterns 
61. Strip and stack dirty trays, etc. 
~2. Handwash dirty trays;-et&.-,in portable sinks as follows: 

a. Sink #1 (WASH) - add Pantastic Detergent according to manufacturer's instructions to hot 
water (at least .:t-W110 degrees F) 

b. Sink #2 (RINSE) - plain hot water (at least 11 O degrees F) 
c. Sink #3 (SANITIZE) - add Qua! Sanitizer solution according to manufacturer's instructions 

to hot water (at least 11 O degrees F) 
d. Dry on rack 

B. Waste Disposal 
1. Garbage will be placed in closed containers and placed in trash dumpster. If trash dumpster 

unable to be removed by City of Oceanside, Food and Nutrition Director will consult with 
Command Center to execute additional action plans. and removed sinoe garbage disposals 
oould not be used. If garbage and trash oould not be removed, they 'N-Ould need to be buried in 
a pit on the property. 

C. Emergency Power 
1. If on emergency power, refrigeration, freezers, and steam tables should function. mast 

equipment is still funotioning. If pilet-gas is available, gas grills, gas ovens, convection ovens 
(without blowers), gas stoves, deep fat fryers and steamers will boilers ean be utilized. 

2. Food items that oan be prepared inolude any type of frozen entree, grill items, frozen items that 
are fried, soups, frozen vegetables and gravies that oould be oooi«ed on the stove. 

:.. If boiler gas only steam-{)f\jy is available, steamers and steam kettles will ooul4 be used. Food 
items that oan be prepared inolude fro<'en entree, frozen vegetables, fish potatoes, dehydrated 
potatoes, soups and gravies, and freeze dried ooffee. 

4.-3. Flashlights are kept in the supervisors' office. Battery-operated lanterns are kept in the 
storeroom. 

D. Reserve Water 
1. If no water is available and we need to use the disaster supply water, disposable trays 

will be used. Using the reserve 'Nater supply, all ohina, glassware and utensils would be 
replaoed by disposable paper goods, and we would. Essential items will be washed in the 
three compartment sink. handwash only the essential items suoh as serving utensils and 
pots and pans. 

E. Communications if Electronic Medical Record on downtime procedures 
1. Nursing responsible for communicating discharges, admissions and diet orders via 

phone or paper requisition. Foed aervioe would rely en telephones in house to keep updated 
on the disoharge and admissions of patients to the nursing fioors and would modify the diets 
aooording to the foods available under the oiroumstanoes. 

F. Security 
1. Kitchen Supervisors are responsible for assessing the need to lock refrigerators or 

freezers. 
'k2. Vendors will be contacted for additional refrigeration and or freezers or trucks if 

necessary .. Only aupervisors have the keys to the refrigerators and freezers. All would be 
looked exoept for those in use. 

2. The doors to the kitohen w-0uld be looked to prevent outsiders from ooming into the kitohen. 
:.. The walk in freezer and the walk in refrigerator would be loolwd until a free<"er truol< and a 

refrigeration truok oould be obtained from Hollandia, if neoessar/. However, most freezers and 
refrigerators are on emergenoy power. 

4.-3. Supervisors would only allow authorized personnel into the walk-ins and the storeroom. 
G. Employees 

1. The manager will initiate the departmental call tree if necessary. 

270



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page 5 of? 

2. If telephone service is available, they would be called. 
3. If phone service is out, an employee would be sent to the homes of those living nearest the 

hospital. 
4. Shifts would be arranged for people to work and rest out in the cafeteria, take naps and sleeps 

when needed. 
5. Moderate amounts of water and towels would be provided for washing. 

H. Concerns 
1. The most immediate concern is proper sanitation and handling and storage of perishable food 

items, proper disposal of waste, f0fuse and the comfort and well being of the patients and 
employees. 

271



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page 6 of? 

Appendix B 
Disaster Menu 

The following food supplies will last a minimum of (7) days 96 hours and are located in the OR basement or in the 
Disaster Storage Container. The menu is planned for a census of 180 patients, 400 staff and 85 visitors for each 
meal. 

If food within the department is not available, Meals for all are available as a supplement to foods within the 
department; 7goo meals are kept on site in the OR easement or in the Disaster Storage Container. These meals 
may be utilized as needed for patients on all regular and therapeutic diets, staff, and the visitorscommunity. 
Patients on liquid diets are to be provided Boost Plus, 1 can/meal and one snack with bottled water to provide 
1420 l~cal, 56 gm protein. Boost Glucose Control is provided for insulin dependent diabetics on full liquids fW 
cases/2§ raack); Resource Fruit Beverage is provided for clear liquids (3 cases/24 raack); Nepro is available as an 
appropriate supplement for renal patients. Patients on a puree diet will also receive supplemental Boost Plus with 
each meal. Thickened juices (1 oaso) and thickener (1 case) are available for those patients wtth dysphagia who 
require thickened liquids. 

Type of Diet Type of "Disaster Food" Provided/meal 
Reriular, soft, mechanical soft Meals for All 
Cardiac Meals for All 
Low sodium, NAS Meals for All 
Renal Meals for All with Nepro 
Pureed 1 Thick & Easy Puree meal with 4 oz pureed fruit 1 

can Boost Plus 
Full liquid Boost Plus (diabetic FL receive 1 can Boost 

Glucose Contrail 
Clear liauid Resource fruit beveraae 
Enteral feedinos Fibersource, Replete, and Nepro are available 

A. Procedure for Food Preparation and Service for Disaster Where No Power Available: 
1. Dietitians' Office - Use one ( 1) lantern 
2. Diet Clerks' Office - Use one ( 1) lantern 
3. Patient Food Service 

a. Pour HOT water into 5 - 2 1/2 gallon Containers, using individual tea bags and freeze-dried 
coffee for beverages. 

b. Trayline - push trays manually. 
c. Use disposable ware for patient tray service with regular tray. 
d. Supervisors: Check temperature of hot water. 

4. Cooks 
a. Boil water for coffee and tea for patient food service and cafeteria. 
b. Keep foods warm in ovens. 
c. Dish up small amounts of food to be served on trayline and in cafeteria. 
d. Replenish foods frequently. 

5. Dishroom - Using 2 lanterns, handwash dirty trays, etc., in portable sinks: 
a. SINK #1 (WASH): Add Pantastic Detergent according to manufacturer's instructions to hot 

water (at least 110-1-14 degrees F) 
b. SINK #2 (RINSE): Plain hot water (at least 110 degrees F) 
c. SINK #3 (SANITIZE): Add Quat Sanitizer solution according to manufacturer's instructions 

to hot water (at least 110 degrees F) 
B. Procedure for Specific Disaster, Mass Casualties and for Disruption of Service 

1. There shall be controlled traffic through fiooded area. 
a. Outside of the department, Environmental Services personnel will reroute traffic away from 

fiooded areas. 

272



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy 
Page 7of7 

b. Within the department, all employees will be required to leave and relocate to an 
uncontaminated area as designated by the supervisor. 

c. If it is impossible to relocate traffic, area will be sanitized with a sanitizing agent to prevent 
contamination. 

2. There shall be communication to all departments regarding contaminated area. 
a. The switchboard shall notify all departments to discourage employees from going to the 

cafeteria, and/or to notify them of alternate routes. 
b. The department will call the nursing units if patient tray service will be interrupted. Patients 

who require food before trays can be sent from the kitchen will be served food from the 
supply available on the nursing units. 

3. All food processing preparation and delivery shall be halted in contaminated areas. 
a. All food carts and related equipment should be relocated to an uncontaminated area, if 

possible. 
b. Coffee service may be provided to employees if department staffing available . . 

4. There shall be an orderly and organized plan of clean up and enough personnel so that the most 
vital areas are cleaned first. 
a. Environmental Services and Facilities Management personnel will assist designated Food 

& Nutrition Services personnel to clean areas following this priority: Patient food 
service area, food production, receiving area, diet office, dishroom, cafeteria serving 
area, cafeteria, storerooms and dietary offices. 

a. the kitohen areas, hallways to elevaters, hallways to stairv1ells, oafeteria area, restrooms 
and o#ioes, respeotively. 

b. Within the kitohen and oafeteria, the areas shall be oleaned in the following order: Patient 
food servioe area, food produotion, reoeiving area, diet o#ioe, Elishroom, oafeteria serving 
area, oafeteria, storerooms anEI dietary offices. 

5. All contaminated equipment and floors shall be cleaned and sanitized using appropriate 
disinfectant. All personnel should be extra conscious of hand washing techniques. 

6. Once clean up in the kitchen is complete, food preparation and processing may resume. Food 
carts may be delivered to the floors when hallways are free of contamination. Staff will call nursing 
floors to notify them of delivery of patient trays. 

7. The switchboard will notify all departments when contaminated hallways have been cleaned and 
sanitized. 

273



I&,\ 
'1i 'I Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

ISSUE DATE: 02/19 SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness - Meals 
For All/Nutricopia 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Food and Nutrition Services Department Approval: Q41.1.309/22 
~09/22 

n/a 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy &Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a 

Q.:1..1.1.910/22 Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: Q.:1..1.1.911 /22 

n/a Professional Affairs Committee: 
Board of Directors: 02/19 

A. 

I B. 

c. 

D. 

E. 

PURPOSE: 
1. Tri-City Medical Center will have the means to provide nutritional assistance to staff, patients, 

and limited visitorsand patients for a minimum of 96 hours in the event of a disaster or 
emergency situation. 

DEFINITIONS: 
1. An emergency is an as 'unexpected or sudden event that significantly disrupts the 

organization's ability to provide care, or the environment of care itself, or that results in sudden, 
significantly changed or increased demand for the organization's services.' 

POLICY: 
1. The facility maintains at a minimum 96 hours of least a seven days perishable and 

nonperishable staple and two days perishable foods, disposable supplies, and water -in 
inventory. Within that supply, we maintain four days (99 hour) emergenoy meals, bottled water 
and disposable supplies in the F-ooa and ~lutrition seoured oage looated in the faoility basement. 

2. A Nutrition Service disaster and emergency plan is available prominently posted in the food 
service department and reviewed by all department employees at least annually. This plan will 
be referred to when the facility experiences a loss of water supply, electricity, natural gas, or 
experiences an emergency/disaster. It is possible that any one or all of these servioes may be 
interrupted-, 

~2. The Nutrition Service Director, -Bf-Dietitian, or designee or food Sorvioe staff member in 
charge will consult with the House Supervisor or Administrator to determine the nature of the 
emergency and the anticipated duration. 

4.-3. If needed, all or part of this emergency meal plan will be implemented to ensure provision of 
nutritious meals to patients, staff, and visitors despite the limitations of the disaster. The Meals 
for All Emergency Solution menu may be used during an emergency/disaster at the discretion of 
the Food & Nutrition Service department, House Supervisor or Administration. In the event the 
emergency/disaster is anticipated to last beyond one meal, a #le-Registered Dietitian will be 
notified. 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: 
1. Governing Board; Medical Staff; all hospital employees; volunteers 

EQUIPMENT: 

274



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page2of11 

1. Food preparation tool box. 

F. PROCEDURE: 
1. At least once a year, the Food & Nutrition department provides educationcomlldGts an in 

service session on disaster plans and emergency procedures in regards to the nutritional 
assistance that will be provided to patients, staff, and visitors. The Quick Guide to Emergency 
Feeding guidelines iswill IJe available posted in the food service Director of Food and 
Nutrition office, Kitchen Supervisor Office, and Clinical Dietitian Office. and the holdso 
sldpervisor office. A copy of the Meals For All disaster and emergency procedures will be 
stored with the Meals for All emergency food and supplies. ready reforenoe. (ii>ee attachment I 
Quiok Gldide to EOmergonoy Feeding Gldidelines) 

G. HEATING SOURCE FOR WATER: 
1. If no heating source is available, Meals for All may be reconstituted using unheated potable 

water. All food items are fully cooked and safe to serve at room temperature. 
&. Do not attempt to cook or boil water over an open flame whenever gas lealrn are possible. 

H. FOOD TEMPERATURES I FOOD SAFETY: 
1. For best palatability, hot foods are best served at 135'F or more, cold foods are best served at 

41' or colder. 
2. However, all foods on this menu may be safely served at room temperature between 41' - 135' 

if opened, prepared and served within four hours. 

I. HANDWASHING FOR FOOD PREPARERS: 
1. Proper hand washing, when water is scarce requires the use of two basins, one with approved 

sanitizing agent, and one with clear rinsing water. Approved hand sanitizer may also be utilized. 

J. FOOD PREPARATION: 
1. Follow instructions on the Meals for All containers for proper preparation. See attachment II 

K. EMERGENCY FOOD ITEMS STORAGE: 
1. The Meals for All emergency meals and other emergency supplies will be secured in the facility 

storage warehouse and easily accessible during an emergency or disaster situation. All food 
items are dated by the manufacturer and have a ten year shelf life. During the final year of the 
expected shelf-life, the Food and Nutrition Services Director will determine if the facility will 
donate the Meals for All to a charitable organization or may utilize for a facility disaster exercise 
or any other purpose deemed appropriate .. 

L. EQUIPMENT FOR FOOD PREPARATION: 
1. The equipment needed for food preparation is secured and stored in the Food and Nutrition 

cage located in tho facility basement area. Tho equipment is in its own marked container and 
located next to the Meals for All pallets. The equipment toolbox includes but not limited to: 

2. 4 gray Serving scoops,-(4oz), and 4 green scoops (3oz), 4-spoodles (4oz), &serving spoons, 2 
slotted serving spoons, 4-ladles (3oz), &rubber spatulas, 4-tongs, &sets measuring spoons, 2 
measuring cups, 4-mixing bowls, &containers (12 quart), disposable aluminum pans, 2-spot 
lights, 9-headlamps; &.lanterns, 4-Q-f/ashlights, +2-(D) batteries, disposable gloves, &can 
openers, 4-thermometers, &boxes storage bags,-;?, boxes hairnets, 2-box cutters & extra blades, 
black markers, 2 scissors, 2 lighters, masking tape 72 (D) batteries, 2 boxes storage bags, 2 
cases disinfectant wipes, 2 bmms alcohol wipes, 4-bettles hand sanitizer, black markers, 2 
scissors, 2 lighters, masking tape , garbage bags. 

M. INVENTORY AND VERIFICATION: 
1. The Meals for All Emergency Menu Inventory and Supply list will be maintained in the Food and 

Nutrition Services Director's Office and a copy will be placed in the Food and Nutrition Services 
Disaster Manual. The inventory and supply list will be inspected on a semi-annual basis to 

275



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page3of11 

determine all items are present in the quantities specified. The Emergency Supply Inventory 
Verification form (attached) will be utilized for documenting the inventory which will include; 
a. Date of inventory check. 
b. Results of the inventory. 
c. Corrective action if needed. 
d. Signature of person performing the supply inventory. 

2. The Emergency Supply Inventory Verification form will be kept in the Director of Food and 
Nutrition Services office and available upon request. (see attachment IV Inventory Verification 
form) 

N. DECENTRALIZED FOOD PREPARATION: 
1. The Food and Nutrition Services Director or designee in charge may designate some or all of 

the emergency food preparation to be conducted at decentralized or on each nursing unit or at a 
remote location from the facility. The Meals for All are packaged to be easily transportable in the 
event of an evacuation and can be set up in any decentralized location. 

0. MEAL SERVING HOURS: 
1. The meal serving hours for the Meals for All, will be modified or staggered depending on the 

emergent situation and will be determined by the Incident Commander, Food and Nutrition 
Services Director or designee. It will be taken into consideration the necessary amount of batch 
cooking to prepare in order to serve in large quantities to the patients and staff members. The 
meals may be served tableside to facilitate having a limited staff to efficiently prepare and serve 
during an emergency situation. If emergency circumstances warrant, the meals may be served 
directly from the cooking container directly to the patient, -I-staff, or visitor. 

P. USE OF EMERGENCY MENUS: 
1. Depending on the time of day and expected duration of the emergency, the Food and Nutrition 

Services Director or designee may implement the Meals for All emergency menus and may be 
used for a single meal or for several days. (see attachment Ill 4 Day Emergenoy Menu) 

Q. MENUS AND THERAPEUTIC DIETS: 
1. The Meals for All menus has been planned to provide basic nutrients and meet the needs of 

most therapeutic healthcare diets. The Meals for All menu and products have been specially 
prepared to allow their use for most healthcare therapeutic diets. The therapeutic menu is 
appropriate for Regular, Mechanical Soft, Cardiac, Sodium Restricted, Diabetic and Renal diets. 
Specific Therapeutic Diets modifications are as follows:by following the Emergency Menu 
Serving instructions. 
a. Consistent Carbohydrate, Diabetio Gestational Diabetes and bow/No concentrated 

Sweets Diets may be served all menu items m<eept the puddings are omitted. Offer 
sugar substitute and diet jelly if available. 

b. bow Cholesterol/ bow fat Diets may be served on all menu items. 
c. ~Jo Added Salt/bow Salt Diets may be served on all menu items but the salt paol10ts are 

omitted. 
d. 2 Gram Sodium Diets may be served on all menu items but the salt paokets are omitted. 
e. Calorie Controlled diets 15QQ Calorie or less and Consistent Carbohydrate or Diabetic 

Diets may be served on all menu items Ol<cept portions of milk, cracl10r biscuits and 
snacl<s are reduced and the puddings are omitted. Offer sugar substitute and diet jelly if 
available. 

f. Renal and Hepatic Diets may be served on all menu items mmept the milk, pudding and 
salt paol<ets are omitted. Umit beverages if fluid restriction is prescribed. 

g. Resident's allergies will be accommodated by lmowledgoable staff by offering suitable 
foods from tho Moals for All Emergoncy menu. Diots may be doficient in ono or moro 
nutrients. 

fl.ca. Powdored milk is included in tho Meals for All to moot nutritional noods. 

276



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page 4of11 

iob. Puree and Full Liquid diets will receive 1 can boost (boost glucose control for 
diabetics) 

j. full liquid diets will receive one can boost (boost glucose control for diabetios 
lhl:. Enteral feedings fiborsouroeReplete and , Novasource Renall>Jej3fo available as 

needed. 
kl. Clear Liquid Diets shall receive broth, gelatin, and clear soda stocked on tho nursing 

units. Nutritional supplements may be ordered to increase calories and nutrient values if 
needed. 

R. BEVERAGES I CONDIMENTS: 
1. Water and/or Bboveragos will be provided as requested or available during an emergency 

situation. Patients needing thickened liquids will be served pre-thickened beverages if 
available or nursing will thicken beverages on the unit, following manufacturers 
guidelines. thiokenod to the appropriate level. gubstitute dehydrated milk mi>md with v«ater for 
fluid mill< if needed. Condiments such as salt, pepper and sugar are made available when 
possible and not contraindicated by tho prescribed diet order. Consistent Carbohydrate or 
Diabetics shall receive sugar substitute. godium restriotod, Hepatic and Renal diets will not 
receive salt packets.provided per therapeutic diet restrictions. 

S. WATER STORAGE GUIDELINES: 
1. The facility will maintain designated emergency water for the Meals for All in a secured storage 

location. The water will be stored in a cool, dry area away from heat sources and staff will be 
instructed not to utilize for any other purpose except an emergency situation. One gallon of 
water per person per day for proper hydration will be stored. This allows two quarts for drinking 
water and two quarts for food preparation. However, Meals for all dehydrated emergency foods 
require approximately one quart of water per person per day for reconstitution. Refer to Water 
Requirements appondi>c in 4 Day Meal Plan Guido for water requirements table fer exact 
amounts of water per can. gtoring one gallon of water per person per day is adequate to meet 
ernergency ·.vater needs. 

T. MEAL/WATER ALLOCATION· 

MEAL/WATER 
ALLOCATION DAY MEAL/WATER MEAL/WATER 

1 ALLOCATION DAY 2 ALLOCATION DAY 3 

Patients 180 Patients 180 Patients 
Staff I Staff I Staff I 
Physicians 400 Physicians 400 Physicians 

EMS I Visitors 85 EMS I Visitors 85 EMS I Visitors 

Total gallons 665 Total gallons 665 Total gallons 

A MINIMUM OF 1 GALLON PER PERSON PER DAY. 
(2660 gallons emergency water total) 

U. ATTACHMENT(S\: 
1. Appendix I: Quick Guide to Emergency Feeding 
2. Appendix II: Meal Preparation 
3. Appendix Ill: Four Day Emergency Meal Menu 
4. Appendix IV: Inventory Verification Form 

V. REFERENCE(S\: 
1. Nutricopia - Meals for All Emergency Solutions 

180 

400 

85 

665 

MEAL/WATER 
ALLOCATION DAY 4 

Patients 180 
Staff I 
Physicians 400 

EMS I Visitors 85 

Total gallons 665 

277



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page5of11 

APPENDIX I 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Food and Nutrition Services Disaster Manual 

QUICK GUIDE TO EMERGENCY FEEDING 

1. Notify Food & Nutrition Service Director or Clinical Nutritional Manager using the emergency call back list 
or appoint alternate to be in charge. 

2. Determine nature of emergency or interruption: 

• ELECTRICITY - continue usual meal plan, modify as needed. May substitute Meals for All as needed. 

• NATURAL GAS - Use alternate heating source if safe. Continue usual meal plan, modify as needed. 
May substitute Meals for All as needed. 

• WATER SUPPLY· affects ware washing and cooking, so conserve water and liquids. Continue usual 
meal plan, modify as needed. May substitute Meals for All as needed. 

• NO POWER OR WATER - Use alternate heating source if safe. Affects ware washing and cooking, so 
conserve water and liquids. Substitute Meals for All as needed. 

3. SELECT MENU PLAN TO FOLLOW: 

• Usual Menu with needed adaptations (uses perishable supplies first) 

• Meals for All emergency solution. 

4. DIET MODIFICATIONS refer to usual menu, if using 

• Follow "Emergency Menu Serving Instructions" when using Meals for All. 

• Be aware of those with food allergies 

• Modify texture for chewing/swallow needs (e.g. mince or mash foods, serve thickened liquids.) 

5. LOCATE NEEDED ITEMS: 

• Emergency procedures and menus are posted in Nutrition/Food/Dietary Department, Emergency food 
storage area, and House Supervisor's office. 

• Emergency food supplies are located at SVMC warehotiseTCMC storage area. 

• Emergency disposable supplies are located at SVMC 'Narehm1se TCMC storage area. 

• Preparation supplies are located in emergency toolbox at TCMC storage areaSVMC warehotise. 

• Water supply is located at TCMC storage areaSVMC warehotise. 

278



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page 6of11 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Food and Nutrition Services Disaster Manual 

APPENDIX II 

MEAL PREPARATION 

Refer to label on each product for specific instructions. 

General Instructions for Hot Foods: 

1. Open can and discard oxygen absorber* packet. 
2. Boil water amount as directed OR mix with room temperature water if no heating source. 
3. Stir dry contents of can or cans into boiling water. 
4. Cover and remove from heat. 
5. Allow to stand for 15 minutes for boiling water, 1 hour if room temperature water utilized. 
6. Stir and serve 1 1/3 cup (2 x No. 6 Scoop) or as directed 

Instructions for Ready to Eat Items (Fruit, Vegetables, Crackers): 

1. Remove oxygen absorber* packet. 
2. Ready to eat from packaging. 
3. If desired, rehydrate as above using cold water for fruit 

Instructions for Pudding Preparation: 

1. Open can and discard oxygen absorber* packet. 
2. Stir dry contents of one can into cold water, amount as directed. 
3. Whisk thoroughly to mix. Allow to stand for 15 minutes. 
4. Stir and serve #8 scoop for Y, cup or as directed. 

Non-Fat Milk, to prepare: 

1. Add water as directed on label, allow to stand 15 minutes, stir and serve 8 ounces or as directed. 

Notes: 
1. Food Safety Note: food should be consumed within 2 hours of preparation unless maintained at 135' or 

higher or below 41' for cold foods. 
2. No heating methods: Allow 1 hour to rehydrate when using cold or room temperature water. 
3. Product shelf life is ten years when properly stored in a cool, dry environment. 
4. *Contains a non-toxic oxygen 

279



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page7of11 

APPENDIX Ill 

DA¥0NE 
BREAKF.O.S+ 
Apple Cereal, 
fiortifiod 
Crasker Bissuits 

Milk {NFDM} 

MID-

Beef & Mushrooms 
with Noodles 

GreeR Peas 

Apples Dised 

Crasl1er Bissuits 

Milli {NFDM) 

DINNER 
ChiskeR Curry •.o.<ith 
RiGe 
Carrels 

Crasker Bissuits 

Chosolate PuddiRg 

Be•1erage 

SNACK 

PeaRut Butter aRd 
Craskers 

, in-City Med1eal Center 
OseaRside, California 

Food aRd NutritioR Servises Disaster MaRual 

MEAbS for Abb EMERGENC¥ MENIJ FOIJR DA¥ 
DA¥+WO DA¥+WREE DA¥ FOIJR 

Apple Cereal, Apple Cereal, Apple Cereal, 
Fortified Fortified fiortified 
Crasker Crasker Crasker 
Bissuits Bissuits Bissuits 
Milk {~IFDM) Milk {NIODM) Milk {NFDM) 

+urkey& South»vestem ChiskeR 
Potatoes with ChislrnR & Rise Curry with ,.. 

RiGe • J 

Com Niblets GreeR BeaRs GardeR Mixed . . 
" 

Peas hes Applesause Peashes 
DiGeG DiGeG 
Crasl1er Crasker Crasker 
Bissuits Bissuits Bissuits 

MHk-fN-FDMt Milk {NFDM) Milk {NFDM) 

Spaghetti with Beef Stew with MasaroRi & 
Mushrooms Potatoes Cheese 
GardeR Mixed Brossoli GreeR Peas 
'. . . 
Crasker Craslrnr Crasker 
Bissuits Bissuits Bissuits 
BaRaRa VaRilla BaRaRa 
PuddiRg 

.., _,_, . ·- PIK!ril<m 
Be»•erage Be•1erage Beverage 

PeaRut Butter PeaRut Butter PeaRut Butter 
aRd Craskers aRd Craskers aRd Craskers 

l,IEGE+ARl,O.N 

Apple Cereal, 
fiortified 
Crasker 
Bissuits 
Milk {NIODM) 

Spaghetti with 
Mushrooms 

GreeR Peas 

Applesause 

Crasker 
Bissuits 
Milk {NFDM) 

MasaroRi & 
Cheese 
GreeR BeaRs 

Crasker 
Bissuits 
VaRilla 
PuddiRg 
Be•1erage 

PeaRut Butter 
aRd Craskers 

280



I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness- Meals For All/ Nutricopia Polley 
Page8of11 

APPENDIX IV 

case 
Day Meal 

Number 

1 Breakfast 

1 Breakfast 

lA 
1 Mid Meal 

1 MidMeal 

1 Mid Meal 

1 MidMeal 

1 MidMeal 

1 

lB 
1 

1 

1 

1 

2 Breakfast 

2 Breakfast 

2A 
2 Mid Meal 

2 MidMeal 

2 Mid Meal 

2 MidMeal 

2 Mid Meal 

2 

2B 
2 

2 

2 

2 

3 Breakfast 

3 Breakfast 

3A 
3 Mid Meal 

3 MidMeal 

3 Mid Meal 

3 Mid Meal 

3 MidMeal 

3 
3B 3 

3 

3 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

Food and Nutrition Services Disaster Manual 

Master Inventory List for Emergency Menu* 
25 Person Serving Units 

Servings 7-Day Emergency Menu Items 
per can 

1 Multigrain Cereal, Fortified 25 

1 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

1 Creamy Chicken w/ Ratelle & Vegetables 12.S 

1 Creamy Chicken w/ Ratelle & Vegetables 12.5 

1 Garden Mixed Vegetables 25 

1 Peaches, Diced 25 

1 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

1 Macaroni & Cheese 12.5 

1 Macaroni & Cheese 12.5 

1 Green Peas 25 

1 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

1 Vanilla Mousse 25 

2 Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

2 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 12.5 

2 Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 12.5 

2 Corn 25 

2 Peaches, Diced 25 

2 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Spaghetti with Mushrooms 12.5 

2 Spaghetti with Mushrooms 12.5 

2 Garden Mixed Vegetables 25 

2 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Banana Pudding 25 

3 Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

3 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

3 Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 12.5 

3 Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 12.5 

3 Green Beans 25 

3 Applesauce 25 

3 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

3 Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 12.5 

3 Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 12.5 

3 Broccoli 25 

3 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

Number 
of cases 
on hand 

281



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For Alf I Nutricopia Policy 
Page9of11 

3 3 Vanilla Pudding 

4 Breakfast 4 Apple Cereal, Fortified 

4 Breakfast 4 Cracker-Biscuits 

4A 
4 Mid Meal 4 Chicken Curry with Rice 

4 MidMeal 4 Chicken Curry with Rice 

4 MidMeal 4 Garden Mixed Vegetables 

4 Mid Meal 4 Peaches, Diced 

Master Inventory List for Emergency Menu* 
25 Person Serving Units 

Case 
Day Meal 7-Day Emergency Menu Items 

Number 

4MidMeal 4 Cracker-Biscuits 

4Evening 4 Macaroni and Cheese 

4B 
4Evening 4 Macaroni and Cheese 

4Evening ill Green Peas 

4Evening 4 Cracker-Biscuits 

4Evening 4 Banana Pudding 

4Breakfast s Apple Cereal, Fortified 

4 Breakfast S Cracker-Biscuits 

SA 
4MidMeal s Beef & Mushrooms with Noodles 

4MidMeal s Beef & Mushrooms with Noodles 

4MidMeal s Carrots 

4MidMeal S Apples, Diced 

SMidMeal S Cracker-Biscuits 

S Evening S Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 

SB 
SEvening S Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 

SEvening s Broccoli 

SEvening s Cracker-Biscuits 

SEvening S Chocolate Pudding 

S Breakfast G Apple Cereal, Fortified 

S Breakfast G Cracker-Biscuits 

GA 
SMidMeal G Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 

SMidMeal G Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 

SMidMeal G Green Peas 

5MidMeal G Applesauce 

GMidMeal G Cracker-Biscuits 

GEvening G Spaghetti with Mushrooms 

GB 
GEvening G Spaghetti with Mushrooms 

GEvening G Green Beans 

GEvening G Cracker-Biscuits 

GEvening G Vanilla Pudding 

2S 

2S 

2S 

12.S 

12.S 

2S 

2S 

Servings 
Number 
of cases 

per can 
on hand 

2S 

2S 

12.S 

12.5 

2S 

2S 

2S 

12.S 

12.S 

2S 

2S 

2S 

2S 

2S 

12.S 

12.S 

2S 

2S 

2S 

12.S 

12.S 

2S 

25 

25 

25 

25 

12.S 

12.5 

25 

25 

282



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page 10of11 

6 Breakfast 7 Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

6Breakfast 7 Cracker-Biscuits 12.5 

GMidMeal 7 Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 12.5 
7A 

GMidMeal 7 Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 25 

GMidMeal 7 Corn Niblets 25 

GMidMeal 7 Peaches, Diced 25 

7MidMeal 7 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

7Evening 7 Macaroni and Cheese 25 

7Evening 7 Macaroni and Cheese 12.5 
7B 

7Evening 7 Garden Mixed Vegetables 12.5 

?Evening 7 Cracker-Biscuits 25 

?Evening 7 Banana Pudding 25 

25 Person Serving Unit 

nven eFy IS 9llF ay meFgensy ·- enll t b" t {F g e M 

Gase 
Nllml:ieF Qa-v Meal A - . .. .. 

.:i. Breallfast . " . - .. 
' 

.:i. Sreal1fast Grasl1er Bissi;its 

'I-A 
.:i. Mid meal Beef & Mi;shrooms with ~Joodles 

.:i. Mid meal Beef & Mi;shrooms with ~Joodles 

.:i. Mid meal Green i;loas 

.:i. Mid meal A1313les Qised 

.:i. MiEI meal Grasl1er Bisei;its 

.:i. - "· ,., .... D' ... .. -· 

.:i. - - "'-' . -· 
'1-8 

. 
.:i. - Garrols 

.:i. - Graelrnr Bisei;i!s ... 

.:i. - GRe 
. . -

6 Brnallfasl A . - - .. 
' 

6 Breallfasl Grael1er Bisei;its 

6 MiEI meal T. ' . - " 
. 

&A 
6 MiEI meal T . .. 

" - _, \ . . 

6 MiEI meal Gem 

6 MiEI meal i;leaehes, QiseEI 

6 MiEI meal Grael1er Bisei;its 

6 - ~ . 0 •• ---
~ 6 - - . • n 11..t 

6 - , __ 
~ "' ' \ '' 

6 - Grael1er Bisei;its 

Nllml:ieF ef 
SeFVings Gases in 
PeF Gan J 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

283



Food and Nutrition Services 
Emergency Preparedness - Meals For All/ Nutricopia Policy 
Page11 of11 

2 - "- ~ ..... 
J Breakfast ·- " . - .. 

• 
J Brea14ast Graeker Bisei;its 

d-A 
J MiEI ffleal Sei;tFiwestem GFiisl,eA & ~ise 

J MiEI ffleal Sei;tFiwestem GhiekeA & ~iee 

J MiEI ffleal GreeA BeafIB 

J MiEI ffleal . 
J MiEI ffleal Grael,er Bisei;its 

J -· . - Beef Ste"'" 

J - Beef Stew 
J-8 '" 

J - Bresee Ii 

J -· Grael,er Bisei;its 

J c. ' ' . .. ~ . ,. 
'" 

4 Breakfast A . - - .. 
-· • 

4 Breal4ast Graeker Bisei;its 

4 MiEI ffleal "· ,-.~· . . -· 
4-A 

4 MiEI ffleal - "'. '-· . 
4 MiEI ffleal - ' .. '\I --L .L.I 

4 MiEI ffleal PeaeFies, l:::lieee 

4 MiEI ffleal Grael,er Bisei;its 

4 - MaeareAi & GFieese 

4 - Maeareni & Gheese 
4-B 

_,,, 

4 r GreeA Peas 

4 - Grael,er Bisei;its 

4 - "- ~ ... 
"-·" 

B'fast & MiEI 
.:J. Meal .. - - II"'" 

B'fast & MiEI 

~ 
2 Meal . ' r:. 'n~ .. l\A'" 

B'fast & MiEI 
J Meal .. I"'" _ ........ ', I'\ ..... 

B'fast & MiEI 
4 Meal . ' ,.... ' F""I .. II A'" 

.:J. ~ PeaA1Jt Bi;tter 

.:J. ~ Grael,er Bisei;its 

l 2 ~ F'eaAIJ! Bi;tter 

2 ~ Grael,er Bisei;its 

J ~ F'eani;t Bi;tter 

J ~ Graeker Bisei;its 

l 4 ~ Peani;t Bi;tter 

4 ~ Grael,er Bisei;its 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -

w 

w 

w 

w -
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ -
~ 

~ -

284



I&,\ 
~ l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 09/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 11/07, 07/08, 11/08, 10/10, 10/11 
02/12, 08/19 

Food and Nutrition Services Department Approval: 
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. DEFINITIONS: 
1. Malnourished or Nutritionally at Risk: 

SUBJECT: Nutritional Care & Assessment for 
Infants Admitted to NICU 

03/4305/22 
<W1-908/22 

n/a 
OOl'l-909/22 
Q.714.911/22 

n/a 
08/19 

a. Acute weight loss of greater than 10% of body weight 
b. Weight below 3rd percentile on growth chart 
c. Decreased percentile scores of height and/or weight 
d. Low birth weight or prematurity 
e. Inadequate provision or tolerance of nutrients 
f. Chronic lung disease/bronchopulmonary dysplasia 
g. Congenital heart disease 
h. NecrotizinigNecrotizing enterocolitis (NEC) 
i. Short bowel syndrome 
j. Small for gestational age (SGA) 
k. Intrauterine growth retardation (IUGR) 
I. Rickets of prematurity 
m. Cholestasis 
n. Failure to thrive 
o. Inadequate weight gain(</= 20 gm) after day of life 14 
p. Inappropriate or inadequate weight gain x 4 days after day of life 14 

B. POLICY: 
1. Function: A systematic method for the CCS-paneled Clinical Registered Dietitian to collaborate 

with the physician in the assessment of nutrition status of patients, the education of patients 
regarding nutritional therapies, and the provision of appropriate medical nutrition therapy given the 
patient's medical diagnosis and assessed nutritional requirements. 

2. Circumstances: 
3. Setting: All patients admitted to or being treated at Tri City Medical Center's Neonatal Intensive 

Care Unit 
4. Supervision: None required 
5. Consults for Neonatal Dietitian are automatically generated from the EMR upon admission. 

Referrals for a nutrition assessment are generated if certain criteria are met via the neonatal 
admission assessment in Compass Power Chart. 

6. The CCS-paneled Clinical Registered Dietitian (RD) will complete a Neonatal Nutrition 
Assessment screen for nutritional risk within 48-72 hours of hospital admission., and will complete 

285



Food and Nutrition Services 
Nutritional Care & Assessment for Infants Admitted to NICU Policy 
Page 2 of 4 

a comprehensive nutritional assessment of triggered patients within 4g 72 hours of referral. and 
within 72 hours of admission, per CCS guidelines. This assessment to include age of patient, 
disease states, nutrition history, medical history, medical therapies/treatments, laboratory values, 
and recommendations for enteral and parenteral nutrition support, addition of supplements, and 

education of patients/families regarding appropriate nutrition intervention for a particular disease 
state 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The CCS-paneled Clinical Registered Dietitian (RD) will complete a Neonatal Nutrition 

Assessment within 48-72 hours of hospital admission. 
2. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will document on the Neonatal nutrition assessment form. 
3. Assessments will be based on information provided by admission assessment, review of 

history and physical, physician notes, other disciplines' notes, and interview with parents, 
nursing, or other members of health care team: 

+--- within the electronic medical record Referrals for nutrition assessment are generated if the 
following criteria are met upon oompletion of the NICU asmission sata base and patient history, as 
requested by physioian, andlor as identified during multidisoiplinary rounds, or at any point during 
the ~HCU stay: 

a. E>aremely Low Birth VVeight (ELBW) less than 1 OOOgm 
b. Very Low Birth Weight (VLB'N) less than 1500gm 
c. Chronis lung siseaselbronohopulmonary dysplasia 
8. Congenital heart disease 
i. Neorotizing enterooolitis (NEC) 
ii. Short bowel syndrome 
iii. Small for gestational age 
iv. Intrauterine grovllh retardation 
v. Riclmts of prematurity 
vi. Cholestasis 
vii. Patients on TP~I for more than five says 
viii. lntoleranoe to enteral feeds 
i>c Failure to thrive 
x. Inadequate weight gain (less than or equal to 20 grams) after day of life 14 
xi.4. Inappropriate or inadequate weight gain for 4 days after day of life 14 
2-c5. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will complete the assessment upon admission and monitor the 

following: •.vith oonsidoration of: 
a. Nutrition order {TPN versus gavage feedings versus nipple feedings versus breastfeeding) 
b. Diagnosis 
c. Chronological age and/or gestational age 
d. Weight and weight for height percentile or weight for age/weight for height percentile 
e. length, 
Ehf. Head circumference, and head circumference percentile 
o. Length 
f. Head oiroumforence as appropriate 
g. Macronutrient and micronutrient requirements 
l}.-h. Food allergies 
ihi. Birth weight - if available 
hj. History of weight changes 
j-,k. Potential drug nutrient interactions 
k,J. Laboratory and biochemical values pertinent to nutrition assessment 
hm. Psychosocial, physiological, social and or environmental issues 
n. Clinical assessment changes 
o. Feeding concerns 
p. Weight change percentile (postnatal growth for the premature infant should mimic in 

utero fetal growth rates - -1.5% (15g/kg) increase per day. 

286



Food and Nutrition Services 
Nutritional Care & Assessment for Infants Admitted to NICU Policy 
Page 3 of4 

q. Estimation of calories are based on the neonate's age, weight, disease state, and 
nutrition status 

r. Grams of protein per day 
s. Fluid requirements 
m,,t. Z- Score 
n. /\ny other general m1trition oonoerns 

J.c6. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will document in the ~leenatal nutrition assessment ferm -ef..the 
medical reoerd. Assessments will be based en infermation provided by admission assessment, 
review of history and physical, physician notes, other disciplines' notes, and intor1i8'N with parents, 
nursing, or other members of health oars team: 
a. ~Jutrition order 
b. Diagnosis 
o. /\go (gestational age and adjusted age) 
d. VVeight, length, head oiroumferenoe 
e. Maoronutrient and miorenutrient requirements 
f. Food allergies 
g. Laboratory and bioohemioal values: pertinent to assessment 
h. History of weight changes 
i. Feeding problems 
}.-a. Psychosocial, physiological, social, and or environmental issuesenvironmental issues 

4. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will further document in the ~Jeonatal Nutrition Assessment ferm 
in the medical reoord. The Dietitian will also oaloula!e the fellowing: 
a. Weight for height peroentile or V.'Cight fer age/weight fer heigh! peroenlile. 
b. Head oiroumferenoe peroentile 
o. Weight ohange peroenlile (postnatal gro·Nth fer the premature infant should mimio in utero 

fetal growth rates ~1.§% (1 §g/kg) increase per day. 
d. Estimation of calories is based on the neonate's age, weight, disease slate, and nutrition 

status 
e. Grams of protein per day 
f. Fluid requirements 

fr.7. A nutrition care plan will be developed and individualized based on assessment and will meet 
specific needs of patient. Goals will be individually determined with delineation of methods of 
achievem ctronic medical record. ent of >Joals and time frames. Goals will be documented in the ele 

Energy, Protein, Fluid Requirements of the Pre-term Infant 

Protein Kcal/Kg/d Water ml/kg/d 
g/kg/d 

Enteral 2.5-4 105-130 120-200* 
Preterm fed 
r. , 

Preterm fed 3-4 90-120 140-160* 
parenterally 

*Dependent upon clinical condition (i.e. less with PDA or BPD) 

6-,8. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will confer with Neonatologist physician, RN, and/or Pharmacist 
regarding pertinent factors affecting nutrition status (i.e. medication, l&O, intake, etc.). 

9. The Clinical Dietitian will provide follow-up for patients every (7) days dependent on nutritional 
risk status and document on the Neonatal Nutrition Assessment form. 

7-c10. . assessed at risk daily and will: 
a. Document at least ever/ seven (7) days depending on medical status and nutritional status 

and revise therapy as indicated. 

287



Food and Nutrition Services 
Nutritional Care & Assessment for Infants Admitted to NICU Policy 
Page 4 of 4 

b. fellow lip assessment is doce1mented in the Neonatal Ne1trition Assessment ferm of the 
medical record, to incle1de ne1trient intake, tolerance to feedings, weigh! changes, 
laboratory 
parameters, and l&O. 

&.---Follow-up assessments may be scheduled for Jess than (7) days if triggered sooner as 
warranted by 

a. changea change in nutritional status and/or medical condition. 
g., 11. The Clinical Registered Dietitian will provide nutrition counseling and education explaining rationale 

to parent(s) as ordered by Pf'hysician, as requested by nursing, or family, or as deemed 
appropriate by RD. 
a. Documentation of education is completed in the physician progress notes. 
b. Education may include, but is not limited to, formula preparation, appropriate 

recommendations related to infant feedings and formulas. Referrals for outpatient medical 
nutrition therapy will be generated as appropriate, i.e. specialty formulas, feeding issues, 
growth concerns. 

D. REFERENCE(S): 
1. "The Science and Practice of Nutrition Support: A Case based Core Curriculum," ed. 

Gottschlich, MM, 2001. 
2. Tsang, RC. "Nutrition of the Preterm Infant: Scientific Basis and Practical Guidelines" 

Cinicinnati, OH: 2005. 
3. Koletzko, B., R. Vavay. "Nutritional Care of Preterm Infant". Frieburg Im Breisagua: Kerger. S, 

2014. 

288



t'?lTri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

HOME HEAL TH CARE 
TRI CITY Healtheare District 

Oceanside, Califernia 
UNIT SPECIFIC POLICY MANUAL 

HOME HEALTH 

ISSUE DATE: 01/29107 

REVISION DATE: 01/29107, 10/28108, 05/09, 03/11, 
02/13 

Home Health Care Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

ISSUE DATE: i/29/Q7 

REVISION DATE: 8/Q8 , 3/Q9 

SUBJECT: Anticoagulation Therapy 

POLICY NUMBER: 326 

05/22 
07/22 
09/22 
11/22 

n/a 
02/13 

SUBJBCT: Anticoagulation Therapy 

POLICY J>JUMBER: 328 

REVIE'N DATE: 8/Q8, 3/G9, I2/IQ, I/I I, i/I2 APPROVAL: Ii29/Q7, IQ/28/G8, 5/Q9, 311I,2/13 
A. PURPOSE: 

1. To define the parameters of care when admitting a patient on long term anticoagulants and the 
use of PT/lNR monitors. 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the policy of the Agency to delineate the PT-INR blood monitoring for all patients who are 

admitted to service, or during the course of home care, are placed on anticoagulant therapy. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. At start of care the physician will be asked who will be monitoring the therapy, requesting draws 

and dosing. This will be done verbally or via fax. 
2. All PT-INR's results will be called or faxed to the ordering physician. (see Critical Test/Critical 

Value Policy). 
<l. Monitoring of tfie orders and reporting tirne will be done ';ia audit and the results reported to the 

QI Cornrnittee. 
43. Education will be given-provided to all patients on anticoagulation therapy. verbally and written. 

D. SPECIAL PRECAUTIONS/ CONSIDERATIONS: 
1. Medications such as Amiodarone Hydrochloride and all antibiotics potentiate the effects of 

anticoagulant therapy and should be monitored. 
2. Lovenox dosing is 1 milligram per kilogram rounded to 1 O milligrams every 12 hours. 
3. A PT-INR can be elevated 1-1 Y, days before full protection. 
4. Patients should not be told to stop eating green leafy vegetables. Dosing is determined on a 

patient's normal diet. 

&.E. PT/INR MONITOR - COAGUCHEK XS PLUS: 
&.-1. INR results below 3.1 shall be called immediately irnrnediately and faxed to the physician by 

end of business day. 

289



Home Health Care 
Anticoagulation Therapy 
Page 2 of 2 

7-,2. If the reading of the PT/INR monitor is 3.1 or greater: 
a. The monitor INR value is not reported to the physician unless the test is done after 

hours, on weekends, or the lab report would not be timely and the clinician deems it 
necessary the physician be informed. 

b. A Protime/INR shall be drawn via venipuncture and taken to the lab 
c. The physician will be notified if unable to obtain specimen via venipuncture or patient 

refuses venipuncture. 
d. The lab value shall be documented in patient medical record and reported to the 

physician. 

290



~~ Tri-City Medical Center j ~i~~~~e:~lt~a~:~~ GaFe Se.vises 

PROCEDURE: CENTRAL VENOUS ACCESS DEVICES 
Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibility in: 

1. Dressing Changes 
2. Flushes 
3. Blood Draws 
4. Accessing or De-accessing Implantable Venous Access Ports 
5. Removing PICC Lines 
6. . - ' - .. ' .. . - ~ ~ -· . 

Supportive Data: Proper monitoring and routine dressing changes allows detection of potential 
infections, complications in the functioning of the catheter, and in the patients' skin 
integrity. ~Transparent dressings are changed every 7 days. Gauze dressings 
(including if gauze is used under transparent dressing) are changed every Monday, 
Wednesday, Friday. Anytime dressings are loose, soiled or moisture noted 
underneath, ehange ciressingthe dressing will be changed. Newly For newly 
inserted PICC!s, the original dressing is changed 24 hours post placement with 
transparent dressing, unless a Biopatch dressing has been placed. The 
Biopatch dressing should not be changed until 7 days post insertion, unless 
necessary. Injection caps and extension tulalng,iftubing, if indicated, are also 
changed with weekly dressing changes. At SQG, eaelol end eaufl will lae 
Fefllaeea to FegulaF injeetion Gafl suflfllied lay IV fllolaFmaey. GbG2QQQ Gafl Y«ill 
lae elolangea at SQG to a FegulaF injection Gafl Sllflfllied lay tlole IV fllolaFmaey 

. " .. 
Eauipment: Refer to individual sections below for details. 
Issue Date 12/94 

I A. EQUIPMENT: 

I 
I 

1. Non sterile gloves 
2. Sterile gloves 
3. Sterile 14 steri strips (optional) 
4. ~Personal Protective Equipment attire as situation dictates 
5. Central venous catheter kit package containing gauze dressing 
6. 2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, (CHG/Alcohol)., CHG/Alcohol is 

the preferred antiseptic, (Use provodone iodine if patient is allergic to CHG/Alcohol). Do not 
use CHG,41\leololol on infants <2 months olci QR in NIGU 

7. Transparent dressing. Transparent dressings are the dressing of choice except gauze 
may be used as the initial dressing post placement of a eenteFalcentral line and for 
patients who are neutropenic (absolute count less than 200mm3

) 

8. 8-3-6 Alcohol wipes 
9. Injection cap 
10. Extension Tubing, if indicated. 
11. Biopatch if indicated 
9-,12. Alcohol injection cap/s if indicated. 

B. PRQGEOURE: 
8. PICC LINE: 

1. Transparent Dressings: 
a. Explain procedure to patient. 
a.b. Open and assemble equipment. 
c. Don mask. ana goggles oF faee slolield, mas!< and steFile gloves. 

ll 
Home Health Care Pharmacy& Medical Executive Professional Affairs 

Review Therapeutics Committee 
Administration 

Committee Board of Directors 
Committee 

05/95, 008/95, 7/97, 

05/22 07/22 09/22 11/22 n/a 
02/99, 05/03, 03/05, 
03/07, 07/07, 08/12, 

01/13 

291



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 2of13 

i. Avoid talking over open site. Have patient turn head away-from area to 
prevent contamination via droplets. 

d. Place limb on sterile drape. 
e. Wear clean gloves to remove transparent dressing. Lift from the edge and stretch film 

laterally to inspect the site for infection, redness or purulent drainage. Remove 
securement device if applicable. 

-'h-f. Inspect for intact sutures, kinking, leaking, or compromised integrity of catheter. 
Remove non-sterile gloves and perform hand hygiene. 

&.-g. Don Sterile gloveshle. 
2.lnspeot fer intaot sutures, kinking, leal1ing, or oompromised integrity of oatheter. Remove non 
sterile gloves and perform hand hygiene. 
;J.Open and assemble equipment. 
4.Don sterile gloves. 
5.Don mask and goggles or faoe shield, and mask and sterile gloves. 
Avoid talking over open site. Have patient turn head away fro area to prevent oontamination via 
droplets. 
9.h. Cleanse exit site using antiseptic solution. oOf 2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% 

isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, (CHG/Alcohol), is-(the preferred antiseptic). Cleanse area 
and under flange thoroughly for 30 seconds with a sorubbing back and forth motion 
concentric circle away from site .• Allow to dry for 30 seconds before placing 
transparent dressing. 

o.i. Cleanse catheter tubing of ports with alcohol from proximal to distal end of pertexit site 
to distal end. 

j. Apply securement device (if applicable) per manufacturer's guidelines. Position 
Biopatch over exit site of tubing. Apply seourement devise (if applioable) per 
manufaoturer's guidelines. 

k. Position tubing in a loop. 
I. Center transparent dressing over exit site and apply by removing backing one 

portion at a time. 
m. Write date of dressing change and your initials directly on to the transparent 

dressing. Reoord on IV sheet. 
n. Change initial gauze dressing 24 hours post insertion with transparent dressing 

on Day 2. Change transparent dressing at least every 7 days. 
Change transparent dressing Q 7 days or PRN. 

o. Biopatch dressings which are placed at insertion are not to be changed until 7 
days post insertion,unless necessary, and every 7 days thereafter, using same 
procedure with transparent dressing change, except a new Biopatch drsg is 
placed around the insertion site, and under the transparent dressing. This affects 
only patients from the TCMC District that have Biopatch placement, and patients 
with IV pharmacies that provide the Biopatch dressings. 

t,p. Discard Personal Protective Equipment. 
g_Gauze dressings: 

a.Apply split 2iQ gauce to site around oatheter and apply another 2ic2 er 4x4 gauze over slightly 
leaped prm<imal portien of oatheter. 
b.Cover dressing with tape to make ooolusive 

a.Position tubing in a loop and seoure. 
d.Gauze dressings (or if gauze is found under tegaderm) are ohanged Monday, 'Nednesday, and 
Friday and adhere laterally to edges. 
e.Remove handles and use to reinferoe dressing and!or seoure tubing in a leef'o 
f.'Nrite data dressing is plaood a tho dressing. 
g.Change transparent dressing Q 7 days. 

2. Gauze dressing: When patient does not tolerate tegaderm (need MD order) 
a. Open and assemble equipment. 

131Page 

292



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 3of13 

b. Don mask and goggles or face shield and mask. 
i. Avoid talking over open site. Have patient apply mask or turn head away 

from area to prevent contamination via droplets. 
c. Wear clean gloves to remove gauze dressing. Inspect the site for infection, 

redness or purulent drainage. Remove securement device if applicable. 
d. Inspect for intact sutures, kinking, leaking, or comprised integrity or catheter. 

Remove non-sterile gloves. 
e. Perform hand hygiene. 
f. Don sterile gloves. 

Don mask and goggles or fase shield and mask and sterile gloves. 
A•1oid talking over open site. Mave patient tum head away from area to prevent 
sontamination via droplets. 
lnspest for intast sutures, kinking, leaking, or somprised integrity or satheter. 
Remove non sterile gloves. 
14. IJ!Jear slean gloves to remove gauze dressing. lnspest the site for infestion, 
redness or purulent drainage. Remove sesurement de'lise if applisable. 

lnspest for intast sutures, kinking, leaking, or somprised integrity or 
satheter. Remo'le non sterile glo'les. 

Open and assemble equipment. 
Don sterile gloves. 

Don mask and googlesgoggles or face shield and mask and sterile gloves .. 
Avoid talking O'ler open site. Mave patient tum head away from area to 

prevent sontamination 'lia droplets. 
g. Cleanse exit site using antiseptic solution of 2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% 

isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, (CHG/Alcohol), (the preferred antiseptic). Cleanse 
area and under flange thoroughly with a ssrnbbing back and forth motion for 30 
seconds circling away from entry site.~ Allow to dry for 30 seconds before placing 
gauze dressing. 

h. Apply Biopatch. 
i. Cleanse catheter tubing with alcohol from exit site to distal end. 
j. Apply securement device (if applicable) per manufacturer's guidelines. 
k. Apply split 2x2 gauze to site around catheter and apply another 2x2 or 4x4 gauze 

over slightly looped proximal portion of catheter. 
I. Cover dressing with tape to make occlusive (Do not use transparent dressing as 

tape). 
m. Write date of dressing change and yeur-initials directly on to the 

transparentocclusive dressing. Resord on IV sheet. 
n. Gauze dressing (or if gauze is found under tegaderm) is shanged Monday, 

Wednesday, and Friday.every 2 days 
~- Discard Personal Protective Equipment. 
p. Perform Hand Hygiene. 

3. Implanted Venous Access Devices I Vita Ports I Medi-Ports: 
Implanted Venous Assess Devises/Vita Ports/Medi Ports: 
a. Place folded 2x2 gauze under wings only if wings are not flush with skin. 
b. Secure wings with sterile steri strips. 
c. Use transparent dressing to cover. 

i. Do not cover insertion site with gauze. Gauze should be placed under 
wings to allow visibility of insertion point. 

PICC lines: 
Change initial gauze dressing 24 hours post insertion with transparent dressing on Day 2. 
Change transparent dressing e\<ery 7 Elays. 
Biopatsh dressings whish are plased at insertion are not to be shanged until 7 days post 
insertion, and e'lery 7 days thereafter using same prosedure with transparent dressing 
shange,exsept a ne•N Biopatsh drsg is placed around the insertion site, and under the 

131Page 

293



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 4of13 

transparent dressing. This affests only patients frem TCMC Cistriot that have Biopatsh 
plasement, and patients 'A'ith IV pharmasies that previde the Biopatsh dressings. 

4. Statlock Picc Dressings: 
a. Using non-sterliesterile gloves, remove transparent dressing. 
b. Apply sterile gloves, remove anchor pad using alcohol pad to dissolve pad away 

from skin. 
c. Stabilize catheter with finger; open; open retainer doors and carefully remove 

catheter from retainer. 
d. Cleanse insertion site with 2%chlorhexidine gluconate/70% lsopropyl Alcohol 

(Chloroprep). 
e. Apply skin protectant to securement site, allowing to dry. 
f. Place suture holes into posts on new Statlock dressing,slosedressing, close 

retainer doors, then peel backing, and apply in place. 
g. Apply transparent dressing over insertion site and Statlock dressing. Label with 

initials/date. 
h. Dressing changes are done-at least every 7 days. 

9.Discard PPE:, wash hands. 
10. Implanted Venous Access Device/Vila Ports: 

a.Place folded 2x2 gauze under wings only if wings are not flush with sl<in. 
b.Secure wings with sterile slori strips. 
c.Uso transparent dressing to cover. 

1 )Do no! cover insertion silo with gauw. Gatizo should be placed under wings lo 
allow visibility of insertion point. 

11.PICC lines: 
a.Chango initial gauze dressing 24 hours post insertion with transparent dressing on Day 2. 
Change transparent dressing every 7 days. 

I C. FLUSHES: 
1. Supportive Data: 

a. Proper flushing of catheters promotes integrity of catheter, prevents clotting and 
maximizes functioning of system. Appropriate technique decreases potential 
subsequent complications and expenses. 

2. Equipment: 
a. Non-sterile gloves 
b. Alcohol wipes 
c. Sterile field (may use 4X4 sterile ~gauze) 
d. Sterile flush solution dependent on type of catheter 
e. 1 Oml Sterile Normal Saline filled syringe (always use at least 1 Oml size syringe due to 

the greater amount of PS-1-f pressure per square inchJ-, PSI, exerted with smaller 
syringes.) 

f. Injection cap for each lumen for LTVCAnti reflux valve for each lumen. 
&cg. Alcohol injection cap for each lumen not in continuous use. 

3. Procedure: 
a. Obtain a physician's order prior to accessing any central venous catheter if patient is 

admitted with diagnosis of sepsis or suspicion of line sepsis. 
2.Verify !hat J< rays indicate firoper F>lacomenl on newly filaced central venous catheters. 
;hb. Flush usingAlways use only 1 Oml syringes or larger for all central catheter lines on 

adults and use only 3ml or smaller syringe for newborns due to the greater amount of 
pressure per square inch exerted with smaller syringes.~ 

4-cc. Briskly flush catheter , mmeF>I for newborns, with 
i. Minimum of .:t.GGG-10ml Normal saline after blood draws, backflow of blood in 

catheter, before aspirating blood from a lumen, which has had TPN infusing, and 
after TPN infusing, after medication administration and discontinued IV 

l31Page 

294



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 5of13 

fluids.o Normal saline is not necessary if the medication is compatible with 
Heparin. (see attashecl list) 

d. Flush unused ports as indicated by guidelines for specific catheterss and 7 apply 
alcohol injection cap. 
The CbC 2QQQ is dissoRtiR1o1ecl for home therapy l!Rless the patieRt or MQ req1o1ests 
otherwise. 

4e. Change sassettesinfusion per MD order/Pharmacy preparation for 
infusion.solutions every 99 hours4 clays for sommersially prepared sol1o1ti0Rs aRd 
every 24 h1o1rshoms fer sol1o1ti0Rs iR the hospital (per StaRclarcls of Care). 
Plaee a eomplete9 time strip on all eontinuous infusions 
b.IVPB are to be labeled by pharmaey and initialed and date9 by RN upon hanging 
e.Label tubing with the eorrespondiRg eolor eoded label and write date in whieh to be 

shanged. 
0of. Place a completed time strip on all continuous infusions 
f.g. Label tubing with the sorresponding soler soded label and write date in whish to 

be shanged with every sassetteinfusion change. 
h. Change tubing and any attached devices (extension tubings, anti reflux valves, etc.) 

every 99 hours47 days. 
i. If central line is not being used, record date that anti reflux valve is changed in 

clinical recordon MAR in conjunction with routine flushes and change every 7 
days. 

j. Blood tubing may 1o1sed to inf1o1se 2 separate 1o1nits on blood/blood precl1o1sts. The 
maxim1o1m hanging time for blood t1o1bing is 24 ho1o1rs.1Q10. ~New Replase ttubing 
mayis used to administer lipid emulsions within 24 ho1o1rs of hanging the 
sol1o1tionwith each bag.11. Tubing used for TPN without lipids is to be changed 
every 4 clays.24 hours 
Replaee tubiRg used to administer blood, bloo9 produets, or lipid emulsions within 24 
hours of hanging the solution. 
b.Tubing used for TP~J without lipids is to be ehanged every 99 hours. 

"7k. Use an infusion pump for: 
i. TPN 
4ii. Administration of KCL replaeementAny !V's with KCL aclditivesadditives 
ih-iii. Continuous infusionsContinuous infusions 
4iv. All titrated medications 
e.1\11 pediatrie and newborn patients 

9ol. If air gets into infusion tubing, clamp tubing distally, aspirate fluid and air with a syringe 
from Y port. Never purge infusion line into patient. 

.:J-0,.m. Turn -off infusions during any blood draws from central venous line . 

.:1+.n. Maintain constant flow rate to insure hydration. Change containers at least 50ml. DO 
NOT ALLOW CONTAINERS TO RUN DRYo 

4. Steps: 

1217. Maintain all keep open rates at 10ml Wml hour.: 
a.For ehildren under 1 year run at aml/hour 
b.For nevlborns run at rate ordered 

Cleanse exit site using antiseptic solution. Of 2% chlorhmddine gluconate/70% isopropyl alcohol 
antiseptic, (CHG), is the preferred antiseptic. Cleanse area and under flange thoroughly with a 
scrubbing motion. 
6a. Don non-sterile gloves. 
~b. Identify type of catheter and gather appropriate flushing solution. Assess for allergy to 

Heparin. 
4c. Explain procedure to patient. 
&..d. Prepare appropriate syringe. 

13[Page 

295



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 6of13 

lhe. Cleanse injection sap thoroughly ey using <! a/oohol wires and cleaning 
aggressive/yanrtianti-ref/ux valve thoroughly using 3 alcohol wipes( if alcohol 
injection cap not in use). 

+,.f. Briskly flush catheter, mrnept for neweorns, with 5--1 Om/ Normal saline. Then follow with 
catheter specific flush. 

&.-g. Flush with minimum of 9Be-5ml Normal Saline after medications, IV fluids or for 
maintenance. Then follow with catheter specific flush. 

fhh. Repeat flush procedure for each catheter lumen if flushing lieing done for multiple 
lumen catheters. 

i. Flushing is to be done after accessing or per catheter specific flush times 
whenever line is not being used. (at least every 24 hours). Apply alcohol injection 
cap. 

D. CATHETER SPECIFIC FLUSHES: 
1. Special Considerations for Multiple Lumen Short Term Catheters (Triple Lumen) 

a. Flush each unused lumen every 824 hours. 
b. Flush each lumen with 23ml heparin (100 units/ml) total 2-0-300units heparin 

i. Recommendation for use of exit ports for the following:Greshongs: (Flush 
Groshongs onoe a '.veekt 

1 Om/ Syringe 
5ml ~lormal Saline 

PICCs: (Flush eaoh unused lumen every twelve (12) hours 24 hours aooeptaele for 
homo oaro flushing) 

1 Om/ Syringe 
2ml Heparin (10 units/ml) per oaoh lumen every 8 hours 

Hiolunan Tunneled Catheters: (Flush every 24 hours) 
2.7ml ~Jormal Saline with O.<!ml of 1000:1 Heparin (total <!00 unitsl<!ml 

Triple Lumen Short term Catheters: (Flush eaoh lumen every g hours) 
2ml Heparin (10 unitsloo) 

Implanted VAD's: (Flush VADs onoe a month) 
1)Groshong 

1 Oml syringe 
§ ml Normal Saline 

2) Vita Ports 
1 Oml Syringe 
2.7ml Normal Saline with O.<!ml of 1000:1 Heparin (<!00 units) 

3) Hiol<man 
1000 Syringe 
4.5ml ~Jormal Saline Vlith 0.§ml of 1000:1 Heparin (500 units) 

4)Vas Caths: (must aspirate Heparin prior to use) Flush onoe a week requires physician order to 
~ 

1 oo Normal Saline with 0.5ml of 10,000:1 Heparin (total 6,000 units in 1.5ml) 
a)Speoial Considerations for Multiple Lumen Catheters 

e. Use exit ports for the following: 
c. Proximal Port 

Eki. First choice for drawing blood, routine JV administration, and medication. 
2-)d. Medial Port 

i. TPN, or reserved for future TPN, medications only if TPN is not being given or 
not anticipated. 

~e. Distal Port: 
i. Alternative site for blood drawings; administration of viscous fluids, i.e. Blood 

products, colloids, albumin; CVP monitoring; continuous fluid administration. 
2. PICCs: (Flush PICCS every 12 hours; 24 hours acceptable for home care) 

a. Flush each lumen with 23ml heparin (100 units/ml) total 20300 uffi.tsunits' heparin 

!JIPage 

296



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 7of13 

3. Groshongs: (Flush Groshongs once a week) 
a. 10ml Normal Saline 

4. Hickman Tunneled Catheters: (Flush every 24 hours) 
a. ~3ml of 100 units/ml = 300 units/3 ml or Heparin 300 units pre-filled syringe. 

5. Implanted VADs (Ports) (Flush Ports once a month) 
a. Groshong: 

i. 1 Oml Normal Saline 
b. Vita-Ports 

i. 3ml of Heparin 100 units/1ml or Heparin 300 units pre-filled syringe. 
c. Medi-Ports 

i. 5ml of Heparin 100 units/4ml or Heparin 500 units pre-filled syringe. 
d. Vas Caths: (must apirateaspirate Heparin prior to use) 

i. Flush once a week - requires physician order to use. 1 ml Normal Saline of 
0.5ml of 10,000units,~1 ml -Heparin (total 5,000 units in 1.5ml) or as 
directed by physician. 

E. BLOOD DRAWS FROM VENOUS ACCESS DEVICES: 
1. Supportive Data: 

a. A qualified RN may perform Blood draws. Following procedure allows for increase in 
accuracy and reduced complications for the patient. Obtain physician's order for 
coagulation studies in patients receiving Intravenous Heparin therapy. Maintaining a 
closed system by drawing blood directly from the anti reflux valve is 
resemmenedrecommended. If the anti reflux valve is removed for blood draws, 
aseptic technique, including sterile gloves, must be used. 

&ob. Note: Blood volume waste is to be 5ml-10ml waste. Exception: Waste 10ml when 
drawing blood specimens for blood cultures, a line which has TPN infusing or 
when obtaining specimen for coagulation studies. Blood draws for coagulation 
studies which have heparin infusing or have used heparin as a routine flush, 
require a physician's order. Peripheral bloods are preferable for coagulation 
studies. 

2. Equipment: 
a. Sterile field (may use 4x4 sterile gauze) 
b. Non sterile gloves 
c. Alcohol wipes (7-8) 
d. Sterile 1 Oml Normal Saline filled syringe 
~. Syringe for particular or special draws provided by phlebotomist 
~f. 10ml syringe (prepared for specific flush s determined by catheter type) 

Syringe for particular or special draws provided by phlebetomist 
?.Sterile 1 Oml Normal Saline filled syringe 

lhg. we-Personal Protective Equipment attife-.as needed 
~h. Blood tubes per laboratory 
~i. Multiple sample Luer leek-adaptor -(use cannula for direct method onlyBlood Collection 

Assembly) for direct method. 
3. Steps: 

a. Explain procedure to patient. 
b. Preferred position is in supine positionR~J washes hands. 
;J.Place patient in supine position. 

Position of choice, may be upright or side lying. 
~c. Determine if patient has veins that may have potential to collapse to determine if 

direct/indirect method should be used. 
i. Indirect method is recommended for any pediatric patients or persons with veins 

potentially compromised by previous treatment or condition. 
&ed. Apply sterile drape to site. Assembly equipment. 
&..e. Don non-sterile gloves/ Personal Protective Equipment attire as needed 

13[Page 

297



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 8of13 

+cf. Cleanse injection port and area where port connects to end of catheter with alcohol. 
Cleanse vigorously with friction for one minute, changing alcohol pad 3 times.(unless 
alcohol injection cap in use) 

g. Use at least one alcohol wipe each time any device (Multiple sample Luer adaptor, 
syringe, etc.) is removed from anti reflux valve to remove blood which may appear 
at tip of anti reflux valve 

§.-h. Allow to dry. 
R.,i. Turn off any continuous infusions. 
h-j. Unclamp any lines that contain clamps. 

11.Use 1 Oml syringe or larger for blood waste. A blood waste is 500 m<eept: 
a.For blood oultures 
b.TPN infusing 
a.Coagulation studies (requires no MD order). Then 1 Ooo blood waste is neoessar;. 

4. Direct Method: (Vacutainer) 
a. With multiple samples Luer adaptor seoured to blood tube holder, attaoh oannula with 

clookwise twisting methodFor single or multiple samples, remove blunt plastic 
cannula from the blood collection assembly unit (detach cannula with clockwise 
twisting method). 

b. VVith oannula attaohed to blood tube, insert into injootion sitoKeeping tip attached to 
blood collection assembly, insert into the anti reflux valve using a slight clockwise 
turning motion. 

c. Insert blood specimen tube. Activate vacuum by fully engaging blood tube into 
multiple sample Luer adaptor. 

d. Withdraw 5ml-1 Om/ of blood and discard. 
e. Insert new blood tube for required specimens, and then remove cannula. 
f. Proceed with flushing. 

5. Indirect Method: (Syringe) 
a. Attach 1 Oml syringe to cannulathe anti reflux valve. 
b. Withdraw 5ml to 10ml blood from injection site using syringe with cannulaanti reflux 

valve using syringe. ""'ithout blunt plastie eannula. Discard. 
c. Withdraw 5ml of blood and discard (ilcc for pediatric patients). (Pediatric patient: 

maintain sterility of blood for re infusion.)Wipe any blood residual off anti reflux valve 
with alcohol swab. 

d. Repeat 12 a & b to obtain required specimonAttach 1 Om/ syringe to anti reflux valve 
and aspirate desired specimen volume. 

e. Transfer blood sample to blood tube by inserting cannula into multiple sample Luer 
adaptor on blood tube holderRemove syringe and transfer blood sample to blood 
sample to blood tube. 
i. Attach blunt plastie eannula to end of syringe syringe and eonneet to to 

multiple sample Luer adapter on blood tube holder. 
ii. Place blood tube specimen inside blood collection assembly. 

f. Activate vacuum by fully engaging blood tube onto multiple sample Luer adapter.--QG 
NOT DEPRESS SYRINGE PLUNGER. 

g. Proceed with flushing . 
.:t4.-h. Thoroughly cleanse end of catheter with alcohol. 
~i. 
-14-j. 

For return to continuous infusion proceed by connecting catheter to IV line. 
For heplock/saline locked lines: Flush injection site with 1 Oml Normal Saline. 
i. Flush with Heparin as specified by catheter using positive pressure method 
ii. Re-clamp appropriate catheters. 

4+.k. Inspect hub and use an alcohol wipe to remove any residual blood. Apply alcohol 
injection cap to end of anti reflux valve. 

1 @.Discard g/evos/PPE attire in appropriate receptacles. Only items dripping 'Nith blood require 
rod bag disposal. Wash hands. 

i31Page 

298



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 9of13 

F. ACCESSING or DE-ACCESSING IMPLANTED VENOUS PORTS: 
1. Supportive Data: 

a. Proper technique in accessing and flushing an implanted venous device aids in patient 
comfort, decreases risk of complications and promotes proper functioning of catheter. 

hc2. Equipment: 
Iha. Sterile field 
&cb. Non-coring safety (Huber, Gripper Plus, etc.) needle with extension tubing (gauge and 

length determined by patient needs) 
c. Anti reflux valve attached to extension tubing 
&..d. 1 Oml syringe filled with Sterile Normal Saline 
4-e. 3 Alcohol wipes 
&.-f. 3 Povidone iodine wipes2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% isopropyl alcohol 

antiseptic (CHG/Alcohol). CHG/Alcohol is the preferred antiseptic. (Use 
provodone iodine if patient is allergic to CHG/alcohol) 

&.-g. Transparent dressing 
h. 2x2 sterile gauze (optional) 

Steri strips (optional) 
7.i. Tape 
<hj. Catheter flush (either Sterile Normal Saline or Heparin per specific catheter) 

9.2 Sterile tongue blades (de aeeessing) (optional) 
'1-(hk. Personal Protective EquipmentBody Substance Isolation attire as needed 

&.3. Procedure: 
a. Obtain physician's order to use implanted device only if admitting diagnosis of SEPSIS 

or suspicion of LINE SEPSIS. New lines are to be checked for correct placement via X
ray prior to use. 

b. Check patient's sensitivities to CHG/Alcohol, Povidone-iodine or Heparin. 
c. Explain procedure to patient. 

4.RN washes hands. 
&.-d. Assemble equipment on sterile field. Prime non-coring needle and extension tubing 

(anti reflux valve attached) with sterile Normal Saline and keep syringe attached (keep 
sterile)~ 

&.-e. Don sterile gloves 
7.f. Cleanse port site using a circular motion from the port site and moving outward to a 2" 

diameter. Use 2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, 
fCHG1Using CHG/Alcohol, cleanse area over implanted port thoroughly with a 
scrubbing motion. 

&g. Locate port septum by palpation. 
9-,h. Triangulate port between the thumb and first two fingers of non-dominant hand. Aim for 

the center of the port. 
'1-(hi. Insert needle perpendicular to port septum . 
.t:kj. Advance needle through skin and septum until reaching the bottom of reservoir . 
.'.f.&.k. Verify correct needle placement by blood aspiration (Do not begin injection until proper 

needle placement has been confirmed) 
-'hhl. Before ee accessing and prior to flush: Flush with 1 Occ ~Jormal Saline after blood 

return, then follow with catheter specific flush or connect to mainline as orderedFlush 
with 1 Oml Normal Saline. Follow with catheter specific flush, clamp and apply 
alcohol injection cap or connect to IV infusionsate as ordered. 

m. Apply dressing per "Dressing Change" Section A of this procedure. 
!fl-en. Date and initial dressing. Accessl=llffief needle and dressing are to be changed everyQ 

7 days. 
M. De-Access: 

a. To de aeeess port, remove non Goring needle slo·Nly. Stabilize the port with 
sterile tongue blade during needle withdrawalALWAYS flush port with specific 
flush prior to de-accessing. 

l31Page 

299



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 10of13 

b. Apply transparent dressin9 to accessed ports and a band aid for de accessed port 
siteWear clean gloves to remove transparent dressing. Lift from the edge and 
stretch film laterally to inspect the site for infection, redness or purulent drainage. 
Remove securement device if applicable. 

c. Discard 9loves and PPE attire in appropriate receptacles. Only items dripping in 13\eed 
are disposed in red bag waste. Wash handsCleanse exit site using CHG/Alcohol, 
(the preferred antiseptic). 

d. For Huber needles ,(non-stabilizecoring) stabilize the port by placing one tongue 
blade along eaoh side of the needle and holding ends of tongue blades 'h'ith non 
dorninate hand.the built in mechanism of the needle type. 

e. Simultaneously, while pushing down on tongue blades, pull needle straight 
upward. (Not applicable for Gripper Plus or some other safety needles) 
i. For safety needle device, place fingers on the base to stabilize. With other 

hand, place finger on the tip of the safety arm. Lift the safety arm straight 
back as needle is safely removed. 

ii. A click will be heard indicating the tip of the needle is fully encased in the 
protective safety apparatus. 

f. Discard needle in appropriate sharps container. 
g. Apply small band-aid. 
h. Discard Personal Protective Equipment in appropriate receptacles. 

G. REMOVE PICC blNEREMOVAL OF NON-TUNNELED CENTRAL LINES: 
(PICCs ,& Multi-Lumen), Vas Gath) 
4.-1. Supportive Data: 

a. Proper discontinuance of peripheral inserted central catheters aids in patient comfort 
and decreases risk of complications. 

&.-2. Equipment: 
a. 2x2 Gauze, two 4x4 gauze 
b. Large Tegaderm dressing 
c. Non-sterile gloves 
d. Personal Protective Equipment Body Sul:lstance Isolation attire as needed 
e. Barrier-proof absorbent pad 
f. 2% chlorhexidine gluconate/70% isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, CHG 
g. Suture removal kit 
h. Coban+aj3e 

€h3. Procedure: 
a. Verify physician order to discontinue line. 
b. R~J washes handAssess need to culture tip of catheter and obtain physician's 

order if warranted. (Observed, signs and symptoms of infection) 
c. Explain procedure to patient. 
d. Assemble supplies. Place absorbent pad under catheter site. 
e. Don non-sterile gloves. 
f. Have patient lay flat or sit in position of comforthave head of bed no more than 30° if 

possible. 
g. Remove dressing and discard. Check site for signs of infection. Report as neededby 

lifting from the edge and stretching film laterally. Discard. 
h. Check site for signs of infection. Report as needed. 
i. Remove securement device if applicable. 
&.j. Cleanse area with Povidone iodine S\Nal:l by using a circular motion worl1ing from exit 

point to 2" outward circleexit site using CHG/Alcohol. 
k. Carefully remove sutures. 

i. Grasp suture with forceps with non-dominant hand, use the dominant hand 
to clip suture being careful not to cut catheter or patient's skin. 

'i--0,-1. Instruct patient to perform Valsalva maneuver during removal. 
13jPage 

300



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 11 of13 

i. If patient unable to perform Valsalva, have bed as flat as possible during 
removal of line . 

.:i-:hm. Carefully and slowly remove catheter ey keepin§ arm strai§ht. For PICCs, have patient 
keep arm straight. With 4x4 pad in non-dominant hand, grasp catheter with dominant 
hand and gently pull to remove. As catheter is coming out, place 4x4 over insertion site. 

4-&.n. Once removed, place pressure for 5-1 O minutes or until bleeding has ceased . 
.:hho. /\pply sterile pressure ciressin§Cover with 2x2, secure with lar§e-transparent dressing 

and instruct patient to leave in plaeedressing on for 24 hours. Apply coban over 
site instructing patient to watch for circulatory complications (tingling sensation, 
loss of feeling). (?this for homecare patients). Advise patient no lifting or 
straining with affected arm for next 24 hours. 

-'14-cp. Discard catheter, gloves and Personal Protective EquipmentPPE attire in appropriate 
receptacle. Wash hancis. 

4-&.-q. Instruct patient on signs and symptoms to report. 
+4. Documentation: 

a. Record any abnormalities in Interdisciplinary Progress notes.(Record patient's 
toleration for homecare patients) 

b. Record removal of J21.GG-central lines and condition of site, tolerance to procedure, 
length of pi cc from tip to hub. in lnterdiseiplinary Prowess notes. 

c. Document flushes, fer Vital Perts, Hiekmans, anci PICC lines onand changing of anti 
reflux valve for all Central Lines. under Continuing Modioations on the Meciieation 
Aciministration Reeorci. 

d. Record date of dressing change. on dressing and on IV Flow Sheet. 
e. Record date tubing to be changed on the tubing and change of tubing on the IV 

Flow Sheet. 
f. Record teaching on the Patient/Family Edueation Plan/Record. 

G-cH. REFERENCE: 
1. Federal Register, Department of Health and Human Services: Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention, 2001. 
2. Access Device Guidelines, Recommendations for Nursing Practice & Education Oncology 

Nursing Society, October, 2001. 
<I.Davel Nursin§ Proeedure Manual: S13eeialty /\ecess Ports, 1993 
4 .Davel ~Jursing Proeeciure Manual: Bard Aeeess Systems, Fee. 1992 
6.Davol lm13lanteci Ports, Use and Maintenanee. Barci /\eeess Systems 1992 

3. Interlink IV Access System, Baxter, 1998. 

SUPPORTIVE DATA: 

I""""""" =· "'" .,,.., 1110, 

I REVISEO 

""· ·~·. 7/ffl, "''· 5/Q3, 3/Q5, 3/Q7, 7/Q7, 
8/12, 1/13 

I APPROVED 

1/95, 3/13 

ACCESSING TME COUElbE bUME~I SUEICbAVIANllNTERNAb 
JUGUbAR VASCATM/PERMCATM FOR CIAbYSIS 

One method of vaseular access is a dual lumen eatheter. Sterile teehniques will l:le ol:lser«ed and an 
authorizeci R~I will perform the 13roeedure. 
EQUIPMENT: 
1.Chux 
2.Povidone ieciine ·..vi13es 

131Page 

301



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 12of13 

3.2% shlorhexidine ghrnonate/70% isopropyl alsohol antiseptis (CHG/Alsohol). CHG/Alsohol is the 
preferred antiseptiG. (Use provodone iodine if patient is allergis to CHG/Alsohol). 10FAl/12FAI syringes 
containing NorFAal Saline 
4.Syringe containing approwiate Heparin 13olus 
5.2 Syringes, 1GFAI or 12FAI 
@.Roll of 1 inoh tape 
7.1 Sterile drape 
8.Mask 
9.Sterile gloves 
1 O.Personal Protestive EEJuipFAentProteotive eye glasses and gown 
PROCEDURE: 
1.Eixpose liFAl3s of vasoath/perFAoath. /\void patient oontaFAinating ports with clothes and/or 13ed oovers. 
2.~ patient with Chux to proteot clothing. Holding earners, plaoe sterile drape over Chux and plaoe 
catheter liFAl:Js on drape. 
3.Thoroughly cleanse arterial and venous oaploatheter oonneotions ·.vith 2% ohlorhexidine gluoonate/70% 
isopropyl alcohol antiseptic, (CHG), is the preferred antiseptic. Use provodono iodine if patient is allergic to 
CHG. Do not use CHG on infants <2 FAonths old. 
4 .Don Personal Protestive EiEJuipFAent (FAasl<, gown, glasses and sterile gloves as appropriate.) 
Clamp line. Remove slave devise from arterial limb. Attach 10ml syringe, aspirate 5ml Heparin from 
arterial limb of catheter, slamp line and dissard syringe. Attach 10ml syringe sontaining saline. 
Aspirate slightly, flllsh limb and slamp. 
5.ReFAove cap froFA arterial liFAl:J. Attach 1 OFAI syringe, aspirate Heparin froFA arterial liFAl:J of catheter, claFAp 
lino and discard syringe. Attach 12FAI syringe containing saline. Aspirate slightly, flush liFAl:J and claFAp. 
e.:!J§:it:lg second 1 OFAI syringe, aspirate Heparin froFA venous liFAl:J of catheter, claFAp line and discard syringe. 
7.Attaoh 12FAI 10ml syringe containing saline. Aspirate slightly, flush catheter and olaFAp. 
8.Af!Q.Qh syringe containing Heparin l:Jolus, aspirate slightly, inject Heparin, claFAp line, roFAove syringe and 
discard. Sys!eFAio Heparinization of patient roduoes ohange of olotting the dialyzer and lines. 
9.Connect arterial line to arterial liFAl:J of oathoter. Initiate dialysis and drain priFAe. See proced<1re fer initiating 
heFAodialysis 
1 O.Connect venous line to venous liFAl:J of catheter. s)(treFAe oare FAUS! l:Je used to avoid introduction of air. 
Catheter liFAl:Js FAUS! l:Je claFAped whenever systeFA is opened to re FA eve caps, syringes or to connect l:Jlood 
lines to catheter. 
11.~ treatFAent. See procedure for initiating heFAodialysis. 
12.Secure l:Jlood lines with 1" tape or direot hub to hub connection to prevent pulling on oatheter during 
trea!FAent. 
DOCUMENTATION: 

1.Reoord on Patient Care Reoord: 
a.TiFAe and initial initiation of dialysis 
13.lnitial Heparin l:Jolus 
o.OoouFAent any prol:JleFAs or diFAinished fie'"" 

I 
ReMOW\L oF suecuw1AN/INTERNAL JUGULAR W\SC.'\TH/PERMCATH FOR I 

: DIALYSIS IS NOT APPROPRIATE FOR HOMECARE. . 

REFERENCe: 

1.HeFAodialysis Polioy and Procedure Manual, Medical Consultants ~Jetwork, lno., Lakewood, CO, 199@ 
2.Standards and Guidelines of Clinical Praotioe for ~Jephrology Nursing, AFAerioan ~lephrology ~Jurses' 
/\ssooiation, 3"' Edition, 1999 
3.Review of HeFAodialysis for Nurse and Dialysis Personnel, @"'Edition, Mosey, pp 112 128, 14 4 15@, 272 
281, 1999. 
4.Federal Register, OHS, COG, 20012002 

Rovievved: Revised: 

l31Page 

302



Home Health Care 
Central Venous Access Devices 
Page 13of13 

I ~L~~~~-1-2194~~~~~.L;!!!!:!;:!;~±!t~;!!:!;!~..L~5·~'9~5;~a~l9~a~;B~/~9a~;~h~'9~7;~2~/9~9~;..L~~~~~~~~_J I 11oa. 1 0112109. 01110 531o•;a105. a101,1 01.a 12 

I S:\Meme CaFe\pelises & pFeseeh:1FesPFSGeeh:1Fes Meme CaFe CuFFeRV.CeRtFal VeReus 11,ssess Devise.Bes 
7 31 07 mvG8t20.'12;gam 

131Page 

303



(&)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

HOME HEAL TH CARE 

ISSUE DATE: 06/91 SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness 
Management Disaster Plan 

REVISION DATE: 10/94, 03/96, 07/98, 05/99, 06/00, POLICY NUMBER: 701 
02/06, 02/08, 09/11, 06/12, 07/13, 

Home Health Care Approval: 05/22 
09/22 

n/a 
n/a 

11/22 

Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a 

07/13 Board of Directors Approval: 

+Fi <;U:•; Mame Meali:l:i I l;JistFillwti,rn; Glinieal Sta# 

Pelieies· llNIHP~GI~" P0b"¥ MQmJ~b MOM~ M~Qb'i'M 

Swlljeet; l!Ml!R(;l!N(;¥ PRl!P,11,Rl!CNl!SS M,ll,N,11,(;l!Ml!Nl CIS,ll,Sll!R Pb,11,N 
Pelie•t NwmlleF; 7g;i; 

A. PURPOSE 
1. To safeguard patients already receiving Home Health Care service, as feasible, depending on 

patient acuity and severity of the disaster. 

B. INTRODUCTION 
1. Tri-City Home Health is incorporated into Tri-City Healthcare District's Disaster Plan and 

participates in the Healthcare District's drills. Home Care's disaster activities for homebound 
patients are supported by the Healthcare District. 

2. Tri City Home Health designates an acuity level to every Home Health patient upon admission. 
This acuity level addresses medical stability, mobility issues, intravenous therapy, and all 
patients requiring additional assistance in the event of a disaster. 

3. Instructions for specific disasters are outlined in the Home Health Emergency Management 
Activities form. 

4. Acuities are changed whenever a patient's status changes. The change is made in the 
computer. This change of acuity may occur several times during the course of the plan of care, 
depending on the patient's condition, response to treatment, etc. (IV patients will require a 
change in status when IV treatment ends and our plan of care is continuing or when IV's are 
ordered after the SOC). 

5. The Emergency Preparedness Summary Report (this includes the acuity level for each patient) 
is printed daily. 

C. NOTIFICATION: 
1. Chain of Command: 1) Director, 2) Supervisors, 3) Staff. 
2. When notified of a Disaster, the Director or designee will immediately initiate the Departmental 

Emergency Plan, the call-back list, and will inventory supplies in anticipation of potential need. 
3. Leadership team immediately prioritizes cases on service utilizing the acuity list. 

l En1ergeney Vrepared.ness ~'lanagement I>isasteF--J!la.n 
Peliey #701 Tri City Heme Health 

304



Home Health Care 
Emergency Preparedness Management Disaster Plan 
Page 2 of3 

a. Calls to acuity "Acute Home Health Patient" and "IV Home Health Patient" will be 
initiated and visits generate as needed in order to prevent imminent and certain life 
threatening complications. 

b. Patients with other codes may remain stabilized via phone contact. 
4. Staff will be informed during the call to either report to the office, report to the Labor Pool in 

French Room 3 or "stand-by for further instructions". 
5. Director or Designee then obtains needed information to fax/report to Hospital Incident 

Command Center. 
6. Information needed to complete the Hospital Incident Command System and be faxed to the 

Command Center: 
a. Census of Home Health 
b. High risk patient. .. all patients identified as acute02 i;se and that is ealling and 

verifying needs 
c. Number of staff on duty 
d. Number of staff available for labor pool 
&..e. Dialysis patients 

7. Employees must wear his/her Tri-City Healthcare District ID Badge. Security will be in effect at 
the Medical Center, and only individual with appropriate identification will be permitted on the 
grounds. 

8. RN, LVN, or CHHA employees should also bring a stethoscope. 
9. c d Acuity o es 

ACUITY STATUS EXAMPLES 
Acute Will reauire assistance to auicklY and easily remove from home. 
Acute Dialysis Will require assistance to quickly and easily remove from home. 

May reauire assistance in arranaina for TCMC dialysis 
Acute Will require assistance to quickly and easily remove from home. 
Equipment May need assistance due to specialized equipment. 
Acute IV Will require assistance to quickly and easily remove from home. 

May require assistance with IV administration. 
Acute 02 Will require assistance to quickly and easily remove from home. 

May require assistance with 02 removal from home and/or may 
require assistance with obtaining additional 02. 

Stable Homebound but, in the event of a disaster, will be able to leave or be 
fairly easily assisted out of the home. 

Stable 02 Homebound but, in the event of a disaster, will be able to leave or be 
fairly easily assisted out of the home. Patient able to remove and 
obtain own supply of 02 but may need assistance in obtaining 
additional 02. 

Stable Dialysis Homebound but, in the event of a disaster, will be able to leave or be 
fairly easily assisted out of the home. May need assistance in 
obtaining dialysis/dialysis suoolies 

Stable Homebound but, in the event of a disaster, will be able to leave or be 
Equipment fairly easily assisted out of the home. May need assistance to remove 

equipment from the home or to obtain additional equipment outside of 
home. 

Stable IV Homebound but, in the event of a disaster, will be able to leave or be 
fairly easily assisted out of the home. May require assistance with IV 
administration and/or obtainin(:I succlies. 

D. EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 
1. TCMC maintains emergency supplies in the Medical Distribution Center 

i En1ergeney Preparedness l\fanagement Bisaster Plan 
Peliey #7G 1 Tri City Heffie Health 

305



Home Health Care 
Emergency Preparedness Management Disaster Plan 
Page 3 of3 

2. In the event of a disaster or other crisis, Home Healthcare SollltioRs Medline Industries, 
LP will activate elellloy HHS's Medline's Emergency Action Plan (EAP) ReslJORse 
Slllllllies (!!R's) when requested by TCHC. (See attached HHS's l!mergeRsy ReslJORse 
SlllllllY SollltloRs iRformatioR Medline's disaster preparedness and response plan for the 
continued availability of essential medical and surgical supplies). 

.II.GUI+¥ l!XAMPbl!S 
Staele Heme Pt. is hemeeetiAEl etit, iA the eveA! ef a ElisasteF, will ee aele le leave eF ee 
Health PalieAt faiFly easily assisteEl etil ef !he heme, Ao! eA G~ oF etheF "s13esial" eEjt1i13meAI. 

Astile Heme Pt. oA Ga, s13eeiali"8El eEjt1i13meAl, els. that •NetilEl mal4e Ejtiie14 aAElleF easy 
Health PatieAI Femeval fFOm heme ai#istill. Will lilrnly FSEjtiiFO assislaAse ef DisasteF Team to 

Femeve fmm heme. 

IV Heme AA]' 13alieAl rnseiviAg IV SSFViGSS etil Rel likely le F8EjtliF8 aaailioAal assislaAse 
Health PatieAts iA the eveAt ef a aisasteF. 

IV Heme AA]' IV f'lalieAl that is lil1ely le FeEjtiiFe assislaAse le lea'le the heme. 
'' "~ ' 

I REVIEWED I REVISED I APPROVED 
10/94, $/9€i, 7/98, §/99, €i/00, I 2/0€i, 2/08, 9/11 
2/0€i, 2/08, €i/12, §/13 

2- Emergeney Preparedness ~ianngement I>isaster Plan 
Peliey #?GI Tri City Heme Ilealtk 

2/08, 10/11, §/13, 7/13 

306



(®\ 
'Iii "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

HOME HEAL TH CARE 

ISSUE DATE: 10/05 SUBJECT: Medication Management 

REVISION DATE{St: 10/05, 01/06, 04/07, 02/08, 02/09, POLICY NUMBER: 319 
03/11, 02/1311/13, 3114, 11115, 11116, 7117, 7/18, 11/19, 11/21, 5/22 

Department Approval Date{s}: 10/Q5, 4/Q7, 4/Q8, 5/Q9, 3111, 2/13, 11/13, 3114, 
11/15, 11/16, 7/17, 7118, 11118, 11/19, 11121, 05/22 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 07/22 

07/22 
11/22 

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): n/a 

11/13 Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSe: 
Te delineate the management of medioation fer the Home Health patient. 

A. POLICY: 
1. It is the policy of the Agency to clearly explain the medication management process involving 

multiple services and disciplines with patient safety being the desired outcome. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Patient Specific Information 

a. The following information is obtained during the admission process and is available to all 
disciplines involved in the medication management of the patient. The information is 
found either on the referral sheet or on the initial plan of care. 
i. Age 
ii. Sex 
iii. Current medications including herbal and OTC products 
iv. Diagnosis and co-morbidities 
v. Lab values effecting medication adjustment or side effects 
vi. Allergies and past sensitivities 
vii. Height and weight 

2. Transcribing/Ordering 
a. The following items are required, when applicable, for every medication order received 

by a physician. 
i. Name of medication 
ii. Dose 
iii. Frequency 
iv. Route 
v. Dosing for each interval of tapering orders must be exact 
vi. Duration if indicated 
vii. Name of Physician ordering medication 
viii. Name and title of the Clinician receiving order 
ix. Orders in which the dose or dosing interval varies dependent on the status of the 

patient must be clear, defined and consistent. 
x. Indication for use is inoluded when the order is PR~J 
xi. Documentation of verbal read-back when taken from a physician or designee 
xii. Incomplete, illegible or unclear faxed orders will be clarified by the case 

manager. 

307



Home Care 
Medication Management 
Page2of3 

xiii. New medication profiles are required for all Start of Care, Resumptions of Care 
and Recertification's. 

b. It is not acceptable to document "resume prior medications" on the Physician order 
c. Current medication profiles must be sent to the physician of record when the patient is 

discharged. 
3. When a new medication is ordered by a physician other than the attending physician, a client 

status update note is sent to the attending physician informing them of the change in 
medications. 

4. Preparing and Dispensing 
a. The principles of safety and accuracy will be practiced when skilled nursing is preparing 

or administrating a medication. This would include, but is not limited to: 
i. Hand Hygiene 
ii. Clean Or Sterile Technique As Appropriate 
iii. Clean Area of preparation or assembly to minimize contamination 

5. Administering 
a. The use of two patient identifiers (name and date of birth) when administrating all oral, 

injectable medication and/or IV's. 
b. Visual inspection of medication integrity, clarity of fluids and verifies medication has not 

expired. 
c. Verification of correct medication and dose of all IV fluids and parenteral nutrition 

solutions. 
d. Verification of all medications given to be the correct drug, dose, route and administered 

at the appropriate time. 
e. Discussion with patient and/or caregiver regarding potential side effects and adverse 

reactions when administering a new medication. 
f. Provision of adequate instruction, written and/or oral, to patient or caregiver regarding 

self-administration of oral, intravenous medication or subcutaneous medication. 
g. Observation of adequate return demonstration by patient or caregiver of medication 

administration and documentation of same. 
6. Monitoring 

a. Efficacy of medication is assessed every nursing visit including patients perception of 
desired or undesired effects. 

b. All untoward effects are reported to the physician and documented. 
c. Symptoms presenting that may indicate multiple drug interactions shall be reported to 

the physician after the Medication profile has been reviewed with the patient and 
caregiver to again establish what medications are currently being taken by the patient. 

d. The Home Health Medical Director will be informed when a patient's pain issues have 
not been responded to by the primary physician. 

7. High risk 
a. The Agency receives information from ISMP regarding high-risk drugs. Staff is alerted of 

high risk drugs used in home health. The agency deems coumadin and derivatives, 
insulin, digoxin and narcotics as high alert medications. 

8. Medication reconciliation 
a. All nursing and therapy staff will reconcile the patient's list of medications including 

prescription and over the counter medications, with the discharge medication list from 
the receiving entity to verify the medications the patient needs to take. 

b. If the patient does not have a written medication profile from the inpatient stay, 
skilled nursing facility, or physician, then a written medication profile will be left 
with the patient upon first contact/admission. 

9.c. Medication reconciliation will occur at every visit and prescription and over the counter 
medications are reviewed to determine any new, discontinued or changed medication 
and documented accordingly. 

&ed. The attending physician will be contacted if there are any discrepancies noted. 
Ehe. The attending physician will receive a complete medication list upon admission of the 

patient via the 485. 

308



Home Care 
Medication Management 
Page 3 of 3 

e,f. Provide the patient (family or caregiver as needed) with written information on the 
medications the patient should be taking when he or she leaves the organization's care. 
Educate patient to take the med list with them to all medical appointments. 

fog. All changes shall be recorded on the medication profile in the home and clinical record. 
9. Acceptable orders 

a. This Agency deems acceptable the following type of orders: 
i. As needed - PRN orders 
ii. Stop order - orders include a date or time discontinuing a medication 
iii. Titrating - orders indicating progressively increasing or decreasing a medication 

in response to a patient's condition. 
iv. Range - for example mild, moderate or severe pain. 
v. Taper orders - for example, a Prednisone decreasing dose 
vi. Medication related device - for example, a nebulizer 
vii. Over the counter/herbal products 

10. The Agency does not accept investigational or chemotherapy orders. 

C. REFERENCES: 
1. Institute for Safe Medication Practices. (2018). ISMP List of High-Alert Medications in 

Acute Care Settings. Retrieved from https:llpsnet.ahrq.gov/resources/resourcel4829 
2. The Joint Commission. (2017). Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Home Care. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

309



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. This Guideline has been developed to: 

SUBJECT: Age Specific Guidelines 

oott602/20 
~03/20 

n/a 
004-709/22 
11/22 
o+l4+ n/a 
07/17 

a. Address the age-specific needs of various groups of patients that may be treated at the 
Outpatient Infusion Center (Center). 

b. Provide optimal age-specific care for the patient population served in the Center. 

B. POLICY: 
1. The program has been designed to meet the specific medical needs of the adult/ geriatric 

population. 
2. In the event that a patient from another age group is treated at the Center, age-specific 

guidelines will be utilized to optimize care. 
3. Age-related needs will be considered in the plan of care for each patient. 
4. Equipment and supplies used in the care of patients will be age-specific. 
5. Other resource persons/departments will be consulted as needed to validate and enhance the 

care provided. 
6. Employee performance appraisals will reflect age-specific evaluation. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. An age-specific plan of care will be developed for each patient treated at the Center. 
2. Age-specific factors/elements of care associated with each age group will be addressed during 

every encounter by the clinic staff using the tables below. 
3. Appropriate intervention specific to each age group will be identified during the initial visit and 

reviewed periodically for appropriateness and documented in the medical record. 
4. Physical limitations/impairments, as well as learning or other deficits, will be considered when 

implementing educational/training measures and documented in the medical record. 
5. The education provided will be given at the level of understanding for each patient. 
6. Resource materials, persons and departments will be consulted to ensure appropriateness of 

the treatment plan. 

I D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Age Specific Guidelines are listed below: 

310



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

A
ge

 S
pe

ci
fic

 G
ui

de
lin

es
 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 3

 

A
g

e 
S

p
ec

if
ic

 G
u

id
el

in
es

 

P
h

ys
ic

al
 

P
ro

ne
 t

o 
he

al
th

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 a

n 
in

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
co

pe
 w

ith
 

ne
w

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

S
ui

ci
da

l t
en

de
nc

ie
s,

 
al

co
ho

lis
m

, 
dr

ug
 a

bu
se

, 
ea

tin
g 

di
so

rd
er

s,
 

to
ba

cc
o 

ab
us

e 
m

a
y 

su
rf

ac
e 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 
re

la
te

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
m

ed
ic

in
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e
 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

f c
hr

on
ic

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 o

r 
em

ot
io

na
l 

pr
ob

le
m

s 

A
dj

us
tm

en
t t

o 
m

en
op

au
se

 (
fe

m
al

es
) 

an
d 

se
xu

al
 d

ys
fu

nc
tio

n 
(m

al
es

) 
as

 t
he

y 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 m

id
dl

e 
ad

ul
th

oo
d 

M
o

to
r/

S
en

so
ry

 

A
D

U
L

T
 (

18
-6

5)
 

C
o

g
n

it
iv

e 
F

oc
us

ed
 o

n 
tim

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
an

d 
on

ly
 

w
an

t 
to

 le
ar

n 
w

h
a

t 
is

 
pr

ac
tic

al
 f

o
r 

th
em

 

M
ay

 b
e 

du
al

 
ca

re
ta

ke
rs

 (
i.e

. 
pa

re
nt

 
an

d 
ch

ild
re

n)
 

P
sy

ch
o

so
ci

al
 

E
m

ot
io

na
l 

st
re

ss
 d

ue
 

to
 m

at
e 

se
le

ct
io

n,
 

vo
ca

tio
na

l 
se

le
ct

io
n,

 
as

su
m

in
g 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l 

ro
le

s,
 

m
ar

ria
ge

, 
ch

ild
be

ar
in

g,
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
pr

es
su

re
s,

 a
nd

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

U
n

it
 S

p
ec

if
ic

 In
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
s 

• 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n:
 

In
vo

lv
e 

fa
m

ily
 in

 p
at

ie
nt

's
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n.
 

W
he

n 
ed

uc
at

in
g 

ad
ul

t 
pa

tie
nt

s,
 e

xp
la

in
 t

he
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
ad

he
ri

ng
 t

o 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

; 
ot

he
rw

is
e,

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

m
a

y 
no

t 
be

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e.
 

• 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t:
 

R
ef

er
 to

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r's
 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

. 

31
1



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 In

fu
si

on
 C

en
te

r 
A

ge
 S

pe
ci

fic
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 3
 

P
h

ys
ic

al
 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 t

ol
er

an
ce

 t
o 

he
at

/c
ol

d 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
w

rin
kl

es
 

D
ec

lin
in

g 
ca

rd
ia

c/
re

na
l 

fu
nc

tio
n 

B
on

es
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

pr
om

in
en

t/
st

iff
 jo

in
ts

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
 

to
 in

fe
ct

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
 

to
 h

ig
h 

bl
oo

d 
pr

es
su

re
 

S
hr

in
ka

ge
 in

 
in

te
rv

er
te

br
al

 d
is

c 

S
ke

le
ta

l c
ha

ng
es

 

S
ki

n 
ch

an
ge

s 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 o

rg
an

 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

; 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

dr
ug

 c
le

ar
an

ce
 a

nd
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

M
o

to
r/

S
en

so
ry

 
D

ec
re

as
ed

 m
ob

ili
ty

 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 s
tim

ul
i 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 v

is
ua

l 
ac

ui
ty

 

H
ea

rin
g 

lo
ss

 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 t

ol
er

an
ce

 
to

 p
ai

n 

H
es

ita
nt

 to
 r

es
po

nd
; 

sk
ill

s 
de

cl
in

in
g 

G
E

R
IA

T
R

IC
 (

66
 a

n
d

 b
ey

o
n

d
) 

C
o

g
n

it
iv

e 
D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 m

em
or

y,
 

sl
ow

in
g 

o
f m

en
ta

l 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

S
lo

w
er

 in
 l

ea
rn

in
g 

D
ro

p 
in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

P
sy

ch
o

so
ci

al
 

C
on

ce
rn

 f
o

r 
he

al
th

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

o
f d

ea
th

 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

au
to

no
m

y 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
le

av
e 

ho
m

e;
 

be
co

m
e 

gr
an

dp
ar

en
ts

; 
re

es
ta

bl
is

h 
as

 a
 

co
up

le
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t/m

ay
 

pu
rs

ue
 s

ec
on

d 
ca

re
er

, 
ho

bb
ie

s 

D
ep

re
ss

io
n 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
, 

m
ot

or
 a

nd
 c

og
ni

tiv
e 

ab
ili

tie
s 

C
on

ce
rn

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

lim
ite

d 
in

co
m

e 

U
n

it
 S

p
ec

if
ic

 In
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
s 

• 
P

at
ie

nt
 a

nd
 F

am
ily

 E
du

ca
tio

n:
 

E
xp

la
in

 
an

y 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 w

el
l t

o 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 &
 

fa
m

ily
. 

D
on

't 
as

su
m

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

s 
an

yt
hi

ng
. 

A
sk

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 

qu
es

tio
ns

 to
 v

er
ify

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
. 

R
ev

ie
w

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

po
in

ts
 r

ep
ea

te
dl

y.
 

• 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n:
 

E
xp

la
in

 a
ll 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 
w

el
l. 

In
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 in

 t
h

e
 

ex
am

in
at

io
n.

 
U

se
 t

he
ra

pe
ut

ic
 to

uc
h 

as
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

• 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t/S
af

et
y:

 
K

ee
p 

ro
om

 c
lu

tte
r

fr
ee

; 
or

ie
nt

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
el

l t
o 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
gs

. 
F

re
qu

en
tly

 a
ss

es
s 

ro
om

 t
em

pe
ra

tu
re

 t
o 

pa
tie

nt
 c

om
fo

rt
. 

• 
U

se
 o

f m
ed

ic
al

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t: 

R
ef

er
 to

 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r's

 in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

. 

31
2



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Data Management 

04#1-02/20 
Od/4703/20 

n/a 
06m09/22 
11/22 
CJ+/-'!+. n/a 
07/17 

1. Effective use and management of patient data is crucial to the service appraisal process and 
enhancement efforts. Properly managed data can provide vital information about: 
a. The population served 
b. Patient progress/outcomes 
c. Resources utilized 
d. Resources needed 
e. Compliance with plan of care 
f. Efficacy of the treatment plan 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the intent of the clinic to collect and properly manage data to benefit the patients being 

treated at the Outpatient Infusion Center. 
2. Patient information will be handled following all applicable confidentiality regulations and 

hospital policies. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The patient information to be included in the patient's chart/Gerner is,, but is not limited to,is: 

a. Demographics 
b. Referral source 
c. Clinic physician 
d. Primary care physician 
e. Diagnoses 
f. Wound assessment information 
g. Procedures performed 
h. Insurance information 
i. Patient goals 

313



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Diagnostic Tests 

~02/20 
~03/20 

n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
fJ7.l4+ n/a 
07/17 

1. Timely reporting of diagnostic test results is an important aspect of planning or changing the 
course of treatment. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Diagnostic test relevant to the diagnosing and planning of the patient's care will be included in 

the electronic medical record in a timely manner. 
2. Ancillary/diagnostic testing may include: 

a. Laboratory 
b. Radiology 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The clinician will notify the Outpatient Infusion Center's (Center's) physician/Allied Health 

Professional (AHP) of significant findings as directed by the physician/AHP (telephone or fax) 
and document the communication in the medical record. 

2. All results will be placed in the physician/AHP folder for review prior to placing in the patient 
chart. All results will be available on Gerner for review. 

3. Once reviewed and initialed by the Center's physician/AHP, the results will be filed in the 
appropriate section of the patient record by the clinic staff. 

4. If the Center's physician/AHP is unavailable for critical or significant values, the patient's primary 
physician or designated on-call physician will be notified. 

5. Critical/significant values will be given to the Center's medical director or designee for follow-up 
when physician/AHPs involved in the care of the patient are unavailable. 

6. Physician/AHPs will review results via Gerner. 

314



ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 

I&,\ 
'II ~ Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

SUBJECT: Disseminating Medical Information 

00/-1-602/20 
~03/20 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
OOf'.1-7-09/22 
11/22 
IJ+l-'I+ n/ a 
07/17 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. Patient privacy and confidentiality regulations prohibit the arbitrary sharing of medical information 

to protect the patient from indiscriminate use. This policy outlines the procedure the Outpatient 
Infusion Center (Center) follows when disseminating patient information. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All applicable State and Federal regulations and hospital policies will be adhered to when 

disseminating or requesting patient confidential medical data. 
2. To the extent possible, medical information will be guarded against loss, destruction, tampering, 

and unauthorized access. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Patient information will be transmitted electronically and via secure carrier from the Center to 

the Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) Medical Records Department. Any information sent via 
fax will contain a cover sheet requesting that if the information reaches a recipient in error it 
should not be shared with anyone except with those for whom the information was intended. 

2. If it is received in error, it is requested that the Center be notified immediately by telephone and 
return the original message to us at the address on the form. 

3. Request for any and all Center records will be handled, per TCHD policy. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENTIS): 
1. Administrative: 513 Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) 

315



~~ Tri·City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 03/13 

Department Approval Cate(s): 
Division of Oncology Approval Cate(s): 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Cate(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Cate(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Cate(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Cate(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Emergency Evacuation 

~02/20 
GUI+ n/a 
09/22 

n/a 
n/a 

11/22 
00/!l-7 n/a 
06/17 

1. To establish evacuation procedures in the event of a fire, earthquake, active shooter, bomb 
threat or any situation that places employees, patients and others in imminent danger in the 
Center. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All staff will be trained in emergency evacuation procedure. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. In the event of a fire, earthquake, bomb threat, active shooter, or any situation that places 

employees, patients and others in imminent danger, the Center personnel will: 
a. Calm patients and assure their safety. 
b. Remove the patients who are in immediate danger first. 
c. Using the designated emergency exits, evacuate all patients to the designated area as 

instructed by the appropriate authority. 
d. In the event of an Active Shooter situation the staff should follow the "Run, Hide, Fight 

model. 
e. The Center's manager/charge person will account for all employees and patients and 

report to the hospital safety officer or representative and/or fire department staff, if 
present. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT($): 
1. Emergency Operations Procedure: Code Silver Person with Weapon or Active Shooter 

316



I@\ 
'II 1 Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Environment of Care 

ll2W>09/22 
n/a 

09/22 
n/a 
n/a 

11/22 
m4+ n/a 
07/17 

1. In order to provide a safe environment for patients, visitors and workforce members staff, this 
policy identifies each aspect of the Tri-City Hospital District's (TCHD) hospital's 
safety/Environment of Care (EOC) program as it relates to the Outpatient Infusion Center 
(Center) environment. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Patients, -aR€1-visitors, and associates of-ts-the Center will have can ei1pect a safe and 

healthysanitary environment. 
2. Associates of the Center will be ensured of a safe and sanitary work environment 
<l. Workforce Mmembers of the staff willshall be competent in the TCHD safety/EOG standards 

set ferth by Tri City l=lealthcare District (TCl=ID). 
4-2. The Center manager is responsible for the implementation of the safety/ EOC program per 

Center EOC standards. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
.:h-3. All workforce staff members willshall -be knowledgeable of and comply with all applicable EOC 

policies and procedures safety standards. 
2-4. The safety/EOG plans, policies and procedures will be readily available to the workforceall 

associates and is located within the TCHD electronic othefpolicy and procedure manual 
located on the district's policies and procedures manuals on tho TCl=ID lintranet. 

<l. Tho hospital will provide safety/EOG training during the general orientation program each 
associato roceivos within tho <JO day peried from the original date of hire. 

4-5. A-Departmentunit spocific safety orientation will be presented to the-new workforce members 
associate during orientation.within tho eriontation poried. 

&,6. All workforce membersasseciates will complete the annual EOC competency requirements of 
tho safety/EOG program as required by TCHD. 

fh7. Safety-related incidents will be reported immediately in -f**-TCHD incident reporting electronic 
reporting program i.e., RL~ 

7. Tepics/issues/13lans to be addressed in unit safety/EOG presentations include but are not limited 
to; 
a. ~afety management 
b. Disaster 
c. Emergency pre13aredness 
d. Life safety 

317



Outpatient Infusion Center 
Environment of Care 
Page 2 of 2 

e. Utility management 
I. Bioterrorism preparedness 
g. Bomb threats/Code Silver Active Shooter 
h. OSHA's exposl!ro control plan for bloodborne pathogens 
i. TB control plan 
j. Electrical power safety 
k. Loss of comml!nication 
I. Hazardel!s materials (incll!des biohazardol!s) 
m. fire safety 
n. Disaster plan 
o. Global Harmonization SOS program 
p. Infection control plan 
q. Emergency codes 
r. Secl!rity plan 
a. Medical eql!ipment 

C. REFERENCE(S):RELATED DOCUMENT (S): 
1. Emergency Operations Manual: Emergency Operations Plan 
2. Emergency Operations Manual: Evacuation Plan 
3. Environment of Care Manual: Safety Management Plan 
4. Environment of Care Manual: Life Safety Management Plan 
&5. Environment of Care Manual: Security Management Plan 

318



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 03/13 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Division of Oncology Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Fire Alarm/Evacuation Plan 

~02/20-
n/a 

09/22 
n/a 
n/a 

11/22 
00/.1+ n/a 
06/17 

1. To safely remove patients and others from Center in the event of a fire or fire alarm. 

B. POLICY: 
1. When a fire occurs in the center the procedure outlined in the policy will be followed. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Should evacuation of the patients be necessary, Center personnel will: 

a. Reassure patients/others to maintain a calm atmosphere 
b. Prepare patient(s) for transport to the designated safe location per policy 
c. Follow department evacuation procedures and routes according to TCHD Code Red 

procedure - Rescue, Alarm, Contain, and Extinguish (R.A.C.E.) 
i. Refer to Evacuation Map posted in department. 

d. Perform system emergency shut-down as indicated 
e. Upon completion of evacuation of all patients to the designated safe area, the Center 

Clinical Manager or RN Supervisor will contact the hospital Safety Officer or command 
center for appropriate head count of patients. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Evacuation Map - Sample 

319



fl t: f 

' 
I 
i ' h:: 

,O-;:;.-;::_ r ,_ -- - ---- - - - - - --

~I' -
11 

~! I I 

t 
l 
' 

j I 

I 

;~ ------- ~-n----~ ----=,--------:ri-- --- --------

'• 

'I« ~ ~i --------------------------------· 
t;o; 
;;~ 

:~-

11 

f ' 

I 

~1~1 ~·" 
I I ~ 

I I ' 
' " 

.: 
5~ . 

i 

'· ~1 ~' 
I 1 . , ' ' 

:;_;;;;::;:,'."_~- -- ---- --- -.:;..,::.,;::.--:.;;,;;;._-- -,-- -- -1 

- -- -'"-~' 

(0- ;)'."' \ 
'i,;;i) ~.J : 

.. ~1 . ~ : 
I' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' : 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' ,.:,, I 

' ' ' tf{:J : 
(t v : 

' ' 

~-

··"--,---------------- ------- --------~J ' 

• 

·1· " 

~~ 
--~--

l 

320



tc~\ 
~ "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: History and Physical 

00#603/20 
<Wt703/20 

n/a 
00/4709/22 
11/22 
o+l4+ nla 
07/17 

1. Familiarity with the patient's medical history and current health status is essential to the plan of 
care developed for each patient seen at the Outpatient Infusion Center (Center). The initial 
process in the program consists of a thorough documentation of the patients' medical history and 
a physical (H&P) examination. Factors to the chief complaint are the main emphasis of this 
process. 

B. POLICY: 
1. As part of the initial evaluation, the physician will complete a history and physical documenting on 

the physician's notes and dictate a report incorporating the elements of the history and physical 
dictation outline as designated below: 
a. Chief Complaint 
b. History of Present Illness 
c. Review of Systems 
d. Physical Examination 
e. Assessment and Plan 

2. As part of the preparation for infusion, a pre-operative history and physical will be done that meets 
the following conditions: 
a. The H&P must be done prior to the procedure/admission, per hospital policy 
b. Patients receiving chemotherapy infusions must have a pre-chemo visit within 30 days of 

date of service, or prior to day 1 of each cycle. This visit includes review of symptoms, 
diagnosis and treatment plan. 

c. Patients receiving "maintenance" non-chemotherapy infusions must have a pre-treatment 
visit every 6 months. This visit includes review of symptoms, diagnosis and treatment plan. 

d. The patient must have medical clearance prior to any procedure. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The physician will perform the initial exam and medical history review. 
2. Any staff physician, primary physician, or designee may do the pre-operative H&P and clear the 

patient medically for surgery. 
3. The findings will be documented on the appropriate forms and dictated according to hospital 

policy/procedure. 

321



ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

SUBJECT: Medical Emergencies 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval Date(s): oom>03/20 
Division of Oncology Approval Date(s): 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 
Administration Appoval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

~05/20 

n/a 
ooti-709/22 
11/22 
~n/a 
09/17 

1. Sudden and unexpected medical events may occur at any time. To minimize an 
adverse/detrimental effect to the patient, prompt/immediate response form a competent and 
qualified staff member is required. This policy outlines the process by which the clinic remains 
current to respond effectively to medical emergencies. 

B. POLICY: 
1. The provision for emergent care in the Outpatient Infusion Center (Center) will remain current 

through the appropriate certification and practice of its staff members. 
2. All clinical staff will maintain current Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) certification and be 

competent in: 
a. Identifying emergency situations 
b. The proper notification/communication process 
c. Palpating pulses 
d. Maintaining an adequate airway 
e. The use of oxygen therapy 
f. Performing adequate chest compression and resuscitation I 

3. Response to an emergency by the clinical staff will be limited to CPR. 
4. Basic emergency response equipment will be readily available in the clinic at all times and in 

good working order. 
5. Emergency equipment will be checked, per hospital policy, and replaced as necessary. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Once a valid emergency situation has been identified: 

a. The support staff (or any available staff member) will dial 911. 
b. Basic CPR will be administered until the advanced emergency team has arrived. 
c. The support staff, with the assistance and direction from the clinical staff, will be 

responsible for coordinating the patient/visitor traffic flow, as well as the advanced 
emergency responder traffic. 

d. The support staff will also maintain order in the clinic and be available for questions from 
patient's/families, etc. while adhering to all applicable privacy and confidentiality policies 
and regulations. 

e. The Registered Nurse (RN) will coordinate the clinic's emergency response activity and 
remain with the patient at all times. 

322



Outpatient Infusion Center 
Medical Emergencies 
Page 2 of2 

f. The RN or designee will notify family/friends/caregiver of the emergency and provide a 
private waiting area. If family member or patient representative is not present, every 
effort to contact the appropriate party will be made. 

2. The ni;rse manger, 13regram ElireGter, er meElieal Eliree\er will eenEli;G\ meel< emergeney 
soenaries 13erieElieally te assess staff readiness. 

323



~?J Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 03/13 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Patient Discharge 

~03/20 
~05/20 

n/a 
08#-7-09/22 
11/22 
'1-0J!l.7 n I a 
10/17 

1. To establish the requirements for patient discharge from the Outpatient Infusion Center 
(Center). 

B. POLICY: 
1. All Center patients will be assessed prior to discharge and results documented in the patient's 

medical record. 

C. GENERAL GUIDELINES: 
1. Patients will be discharged from the Center when the following criteria are met: 

a. Stable vital signs. 
b. Free from signs and symptoms of adverse reactions including severe nausea/vomiting. 

2. Patients should have adequate muscular strength, endurance, functional capacity and body 
composition for activities of daily living and occupational needs, or have assistance for these 
activities at home. 

3. Patients should have satisfactory understanding of the following: 
a. Basic pathophysiology of their disease and treatment. 
b. Medication information including possible adverse effects. 
c. Contact information for the Center and for treating physician/Allied Health Professional 

(AHP). 
4. Patients will be given printed discharge instructions. 
5. A discharge summary will be sent to the referring physician/AHP upon completion of treatment. 

324



ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 

lc:Z,\ 
'1i l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

SUBJECT: Patient Instructions 

~02/20 
03/20 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
004109/22 
11/22 
Cl+l4+ n/a 
07/17 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. Patient Instructions provide the patient and family/caregivers with a clear guide to understanding 

the physician's/Allied Health Professional's (AHP) instructions for care after the Outpatient 
Infusion Center (Center) visit. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All patients receiving treatment at the Center will receive clear verbal and written instructions for 

aftercare/homecare. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The licensed staff will transcribe orders for patient use on the approved instruction form. 
2. The Center for staff will also provide verbal instructions for clarity and to assess patient 

understanding. 
3. The next appointment date and time will be included on the instruction sheet. 
4. A copy of the instructions will be given to the patient. 
5. The patient will sign the form indicating receipt and understanding of instructions. 
6. The patient's compliance with instructions and understanding of instructions will be assessed 

with each visit. 

325



ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

(&,\ 
'ti l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

SUBJECT: Patient Record Content 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

0#1-702/20 
~03/20 

n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
fJ1.l4+ n/a 
07/17 

1. A systematic approach to patient record keeping is necessary: 
a. To provide consistency and orderliness 
b. For ease of use for all staff members 

B. POLICY: 
1. A medical record will be maintained in Cerner on all patients treated at the Outpatient Infusion 

Center (Center). 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The order and the contents of the patient record will include, but will not be limited to: 

a. Patient Demographics and Information: 
i. Admission face sheet located in Cerner patient record. 

b. Consents: 
i. Conditions of Admission located in Cerner 

c. History and Physical: 
i. Documented on the physicians notes and dictated in a medical report located in 

Cerner. 
d. Labs or Radiology: 

i. Accessed in Cerner under "Labs" or "Radiology" 
e. Physicians Orders: 
f. Documented on the physician's/Allied Health Professional's (AHP's) notes and dictated 

in a medical report located in Cerner 
g. Fax: 

i. Confirmation of faxes sent and received pertaining to patient are retained by 
Medical Records 

326



~~ Tri-City Medical Center...--------------. 
Oceanside, California DELETE - follow Patient Care 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTE 
Services Physician/Allied Health 
Professionals (AHP) Inpatient 
Orders 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 03/13 

Outpatient Infusion CenterDepartment Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Physician/AHP Orders And Request 
For Services Orders 

()61.t.60 3/20 
~05/20 

n/a 
Oi/4+09/22 
11/22 
09/4-1 n/a 
09/17 

1. This policy defines the circumstances in which a physician/Allied Health Professional orders or 
requests for services to the Outpatient Infusion Center (Center). 

B. POLICY: 
1. Only physicians/AHPs granted hospital medical staff privileges may pro11ide written , telephone or 

•1erbal orders for patients being seen at the Center. 
2. The clinical staff will take orders only from the Center physician/AHP. 
3. Any treatment/procedure may not be performed without the physician's/AH P's written, 'w<erbal or 

telephone instruction unless defined by policy and/or falls within the scope of nursing practice, as 
mandated by the State of California. 

4. Orders for patients not being seen by the physicians/AHPs at the Center may not be accepted or 
implemented by the clinical staff. 

5. Hospital policy will be followed •1.1hen implementing physician's/AHP's orders. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. l/Vhen the physician/AHP is on site, orders will be written and signed by the physician/AHP after 

each clinic visit. 
2. Verbal orders may be taken by the licensed clinical staff at the direction of the Center 

physician/AHP caring for the patient in an emergent situation only. 
J-:- All physician/./\HP orders will be reviewed by a registered nurse according to Tri City Healthcare 
District (TCHD) policy. 

327



(&,\ 
" "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Scope of Services 

~02/20 
03/4+03/20 

n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
o:1-Pt+ n/a 
07/17 

1. The Outpatient Infusion Center (Center) provides outpatient therapeutic infusions and injections. 
The primary goal of the Center is to provide vital services to the population in need, which 
includes patients of multiple and differing socioeconomic and cultural backgrounds. These are 
patients seeking treatment for a variety of oncologic and hematologic illnesses. 

2. The main objective of the program is to provide caring, progressive, state of the art patient care 
utilizing advanced treatment and modalities. 

B. AGE POPULATIONS: 
1. The program has been designed to meet specific medical needs of the adult population. Under 

special circumstances and on a case-by-case basis, needs of other patient populations may be 
considered. 

C. TYPES OF PATIENTS: 
1. The patients seen in the Center are the outpatient population with orders for treatment from their 

medical oncology practitioner or other physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP). 
2. Injections. 

D. CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED: 
1. The services provided by the Center include, but are not limited to treatment including: 

a. Intravenous infusion of chemotherapeutic and other therapeutic agents. 
b. Intramuscular and subcutaneous injections of chemotherapeutic and other therapeutic 

agents. 
c. Intravenous hydration. 
d. Accessing and de-clotting of implanted ports. 

E. HOURS OF SERVICE: 
1. The Center is open 5 days per week, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

F. STAFFING PLAN: 
1. The Center is staffed with: 

a. Medical Director. 
b. Center staff members include a-full-time qualified clinical managefment, an office 

manager, nursing/clinical personnel and clerical support staff. The type and number are 
selected based on qualifications, experience and Center needs. Center needs are 
determined by the number of active patients in the program, the type of service required 

328



Outpatient Infusion Center 
Scope of Services 
Page 2 of 2 

by the patients and the overall requirements of the Center. The members of the staff 
may include registered nurses, medical assistants, and clerical staff. 

G. PLAN FOR IMPROVING QUALITY OF CARE: 
1. The Center results are compared to national and/or system-wide benchmarks, when available, 

or the Center's own historical data. Unmet goals are perceived as opportunities for 
improvement. Corrective actions are relevant to improving the services rendered. 

2. The quality management program is designed to measure outcomes and related processes of 
care and to seek ways to improve the quality of services provided at the Center. The key 
elements of the program are: 
a. Collection of meaningful data. 
b. Selection of measureablemeasurable indicators. 
c. A valid method of data collection, management and storage. 
d. Analysis of the data by qualified persons. 
e. Reporting to pertinent hospital personnel and committees/teams. 

H. STANDARD AND PRACTICE GUIDELINES: 
1. The policies, procedures, and standards of care are developed using the most recent 

scientifically valid practice guidelines. Sources include professional practice guidelines and 
standards such as the Oncology Nursing Society and Nursing Intervention Research Center, 
and American Nurses Association. 

I. COMPETENCY/EDUCATION: 
1. Qualifications for the clinical staff of the program include: 

a. Clinical competency as determined by the level of care provided. 
b. Current State license, where applicable. 
c. Current BCLS, where applicable. 
d. Credentialing by the medical staff, where appropriate. 
e. Successful completion of ONS chemotherapy and biotherapy provider course. 

2. Competence of the staff is based on: 
a. Education and training (licensing, certification and credentialing as appropriate). 
b. Ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to perform assigned duties. 
c. Years of experience. 
d. Ability to communicate effectively with the medical staff, patients, and their families. 

329



ISSUE DATE: 03/13 

~~ Tri·City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

SUBJECT: Staffing Plan 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

~02/20 
Odtt703/20 

n/a 
OOM-7-09/22 
11/22 
Q+/4+ n/a 
07/17 

1. Appropriate and adequate staffing is vital to the success of the multi-service Outpatient Infusion 
Center (Center). A well-planned approach must be taken to accomplish this goal, and several 
factors for a good staffing plan must be considered. They are: 
a. Acuity of the patients treated 
b. Level of expertise/competency of the staff 
c. Time allotted for each visit 
d. Continuous planning and assessment (daily, weekly, monthly and yearly) 
e. Frequent review and evaluation to seek opportunities to enhance the system to benefit 

patient care and for good stewardship of financial resources that impact Center 
operations. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Acuity Classification: An Acuity Classification has been developed to provide for and validate 

adequate/appropriate resources for the plan of care for each patient who presents to the Center 
for treatment and to support the requirements for the continuum of care activities. 

2. Staffing: In general, the type and number of staff members are selected based on qualifications, 
experience and Center needs. Center needs are determined daily and weekly by the number of 
scheduled patients, the type and acuity of patients, and the type of service required by the 
patients. Members of the staff may include: 
a. Register Nurse (RN) is empowered to run the day-to-day operations of the Center. They 

also participate in the decision-making processes related to the selection of the Center 
model and the services provided. He/she is accountable for ensuring that the Center is 
adequately staffed and makes certain that patient visits are appropriate and timely. 

b. Medical Assistant (MA), under the supervision of the RN and the direction of the 
RN/Case Manager performs tasks as assigned. The MA assists other members of the 
healthcare team while providing direct patient care. As a patient advocate, the MA 
reports observations and patient responses to care to the RN/MD and assists with 
maintaining patient privacy/ confidentiality and reports patient complaints of pain to the 
RN/MD. 

c. Receptionist requires the coordination of the clinical, clerical and general 
secretarial/office duties, as well as realistic patient scheduling. The receptionist must 
demonstrate excellent interpersonal skills. 

d. Other staff members may include a nurse practitioner/physician assistant/medical 
assistants, and additional clerical support staff. Competency of Center staff is based 
upon: 
i. Education and training 
ii. Years of experience 

330



Outpatient Infusion Center 
Staffing Plan 
Page 2 of2 

iii. Ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to perform the defined duties 
iv. Ability to communicate effectively with the medical staff and patients and their 

families. 
3. Patient Scheduling: Allowing adequate time for each patient visit is necessary for patient 

satisfaction, convenience, and care needs and is an essential component of an efficient and 
smooth-running clinic. To determine the time required for/between each visit, the following 
general rules apply: 
a. Increased time is allowed for a new patient visit or for complex cases 
b. Less time is required for follow-up and/or less-complex cases 

4. Assignments: Assignments are planned by the olinioal manager/ease manager Office Manager 
in collaboration with the RN's on a weekly basis and are based upon the number of patients 
scheduled, assessment of clinical needs of the patient, the complexity of the patient's condition, 
and the clinical care requirements. Staffing levels may be adjusted to correspond with the 
anticipated care requirements. In addition, the Center manager/coordinator reviews the changes 
in the daily Center schedule and makes necessary adjustments to staffing levels. 

5. Evaluation of Staffing Plan: The staffing plan is periodically reviewed and evaluated by the 
Center Manager. Opportunities for improvement/enhancement are identified, and changes are 
made consistent with the needs of the patients and the staff members. 

331



lc0\ 
'1111 Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER 

ISSUE DATE: 03/13 SUBJECT: Standards of Care 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Division of Oncology Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE 

oomi02/20 
03m03/20 

n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
Q1./4:+ nla 
07/17 

1. Standards of care and practice must be delineated with the following objectives in mind: 
a. Provide patients and their families with an understanding of the services provided by the 

Outpatient Patient Infusion Center (Center). 
b. Meet patient/family expectation, which is to have competent care providers when being 

treated at the Center. 
c. Define the standards of care and practice as required by governing and oversight bodies 

such as the Department of Health Services (OHS), Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
(CMS) and The Joint Commission (JC). 

B. POLICY 
1. All clinical staff will follow the Nurse Practice Act and Standards of Care and Practice, Consensus 

Standards from the Oncology Nursing Society (ONS) and American Society of Clinical Oncology 
(ASCO) in the delivery of patient care. 

2. The Center will operate according to the established standards, which addresses all aspects of 
care. 

3. The standards of care and practice will be consistent with care and practice standards and 
mission of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) but will be specifically designed for the services 
provided at the Center. 

4. Standards will be developed collaboratively with other relevant disciplines to maintain constancy 
in the level of care provided throughout the institution. 

5. All activities including treatment plans, policies and procedures, documentation and performance 
improvement measures will correlate with the approved standards of care and practice. 

C. PROCEDURE 
1. The clinical manager/medical director and the clinical staff of the Center are responsible for 

developing the standards of care and practice. 
2. The hospital format is utilized and defines the: 

a. Standard of care as the expected outcome 
b. Standard of practice as the scope of service, the person responsible, and the timeframe 

for completion 
3. The standards will be reviewed and approved by Patient Care Services prior to implementation. 
4. All policies and procedures will be developed/revised utilizing the established standards. 
5. The performance improvement (Pl) efforts will incorporate the standards in the Pl activities. 
6. The designated infusion center team will review the standards biannually. 
7. The Standards of Care and Practice are delineated on the following pages. 

332



Outpatient Infusion Center 
Standards of Care 
Page 2 of 9 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT!S): 
1. Outpatient Infusion Center: Standards of Care 

333



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f C
ar

e 
P

ag
e 

3 
o

f9
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

.-
1~

1~
1·

•·
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

1
. 

T
he

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

w
ill

 h
a

ve
 

a 
co

m
p

e
te

n
t 

an
d 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 

n
u

rs
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
d

ir
ec

ti
n

g
 a

nd
 

e
va

lu
a

tin
g

 h
is

/h
e

r 
ca

re
. 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 
RN

 

T
IM

E


FR
A

M
E

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

.. ,.
,
~
,
·
·
·
 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

1
. 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
 s

ys
te

m
a

ti
ca

lly
 e

va
lu

a
te

s 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y 

an
d 

e
ff

ic
a

cy
 o

f 
n

u
rs

in
g

 
p

ra
ct

ic
e

. 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

s 
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
(P

I)
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
as

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
to

 
th

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l's
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
, 

e
d

u
ca

tio
n

 a
nd

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

an
d 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t.

 
• 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
ke

y 
fu

n
ct

io
n

s 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fo
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
• 

Id
en

ti
fi

es
 m

ea
su

re
s 

us
ed

 t
o 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
an

d 
ef

fi
ca

cy
 o

f 
p

at
ie

n
t 

ca
re

 
• 

C
ol

le
ct

s 
d

a
ta

 t
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

q
u

a
lit

y 
an

d 
e

ff
ic

a
cy

 o
f 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

ca
re

 
• 

A
n

al
yz

es
 d

at
a 

to
 i

d
en

ti
fy

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 c
ar

e 
• 

M
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 n

ur
si

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

• 
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
es

 w
it

h
 t

ea
m

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
cl

in
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

o
r 

h
ea

lt
h

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

• 
A

ss
is

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

b.
 

U
se

 P
I 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o 

in
it

ia
te

 c
h

an
g

e 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
c.

 
U

se
 P

I 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o 
in

it
ia

te
 c

h
an

g
e 

in
 h

ea
lt

h
ca

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

2.
 

T
h

e 
cl

in
ic

ia
n 

ev
al

u
at

es
 h

is
/h

er
 o

w
n 

nu
rs

in
g 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 
p

ra
ct

ic
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
an

d 
re

le
va

n
t 

st
a

tu
te

s 
an

d 
re

g
u

la
tio

n
s.

 
a.

 
E

n
g

ag
es

 i
n 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
el

f-
ap

p
ra

is
al

 o
n 

a 
re

g
u

la
r 

ba
si

s,
 i

d
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
re

as
 

o
f 

st
re

n
g

th
, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 a

re
as

 f
o

r 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
p

ra
ct

ic
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
b.

 
S

ee
ks

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

iv
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 h
is

/h
e

r 
o

w
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 
c.

 
T

ak
es

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ac
ti

o
n

 t
o 

ac
h

ie
ve

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 g
o

al
s 

d.
 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n 
p

ee
r 

re
vi

ew
, 

as
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
3.

 
T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
m

ai
n

ta
in

s 
p

ro
fi

ci
en

cy
 i

n 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.

 
a.

 
M

ai
n

ta
in

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
st

at
e 

lic
en

su
re

 
b.

 
M

ee
ts

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 e
d

u
ca

tio
n

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 h

o
sp

ita
l 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
nd

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

re
o

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

c.
 

H
as

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

an
d 

us
es

 e
st

a
b

lis
h

e
d

 h
o

sp
ita

l 
an

d 
C

e
n

te
r 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
in

 a
cc

o
m

p
lis

h
in

g
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
ca

re
 

d.
 

M
ee

ts
 o

r 
ex

ce
ed

s 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

as
 i

n
d

ic
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
an

n
u

al
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
p

p
ra

is
al

 
e.

 
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
es

 i
n 

on
go

in
g 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
re

le
va

n
t 

to
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
f. 

S
ee

ks
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 t

o 
m

ai
n

ta
in

 s
ki

lls
 

g.
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
s 

in
 a

nd
 s

e
e

ks
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

co
n

ti
n

u
u

m
 o

f 
ca

re
 

4.
 

T
h

e
 c

lin
ic

ia
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

e
e

rs
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ca

re
g

iv
e

rs
 

33
4



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 In

fu
si

on
 C

en
te

r 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f C

ar
e 

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 9

 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

) 

2.
 

T
he

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

w
ill

 h
a

ve
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 i
n

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

s 
d

ir
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

 t
h

e
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

nd
 

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 o

f 
n

o
rm

al
 

an
d 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 

p
h

ys
io

lo
g

ic
a

l 
st

a
tu

s 
an

d 
n

o
t 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 

co
m

o
lic

at
io

n
s 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

RN
 

RN
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

•7
~1

=~
·•

·1
14

 .,.
, ..

. , 
S

C
O

P
E

 O
F

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

a.
 

S
ha

re
s 

kn
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 w
it

h
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e

s 
an

d 
o

th
e

rs
 

b.
 

P
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e
 C

e
n

te
r'

s 
st

a
ff

 w
it

h
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 
c.

 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s 
to

 a
n 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fa

vo
ra

b
le

 t
o

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 c
lin

ic
al

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

5.
 

T
h

e
 c

lin
ic

ia
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

te
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t/

fa
m

ily
/c

a
re

g
iv

e
r 

a
n

d
 

h
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 i

n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
ca

re
. 

a.
 T

h
e

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t/
fa

m
ily

/c
a

re
g

iv
e

r 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 

p
at

ie
n

t 
ca

re
 a

nd
 n

u
rs

e'
s 

ro
le

 i
n 

th
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

ca
re

 
b.

 T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
 c

o
n

su
lts

 w
it

h
 h

e
a

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
h

a
rm

a
ci

st
 f

o
r 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

ca
re

 a
s 

ne
ed

ed
 

c.
 T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
m

ak
es

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
to

 a
g

en
ts

/a
g

en
ci

es
 f

o
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
it

y 
o

f 
ca

re
 

d.
 T

h
e

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
te

s 
w

it
h

 i
n

te
rd

is
ci

p
lin

a
ry

 s
ta

ff
 a

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

o
 

co
o

rd
in

a
te

 a
ll 

a
sp

e
ct

s 
o

f 
ca

re
 

6.
 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 o
f 

ca
re

 a
nd

 t
h

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

ca
re

 i
s 

co
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 i

n
 a

 m
a

n
n

e
r 

th
a

t 
p

ro
te

ct
s 

a
n

d
 a

d
vo

ca
te

s 
on

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t.
 

a.
 T

he
 S

ta
te

's
 N

ur
se

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
A

ct
 g

u
id

e
s 

th
e

 n
u

rs
e

's
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 
b.

 T
h

e
 c

lin
ic

ia
n

 e
n

su
re

s 
th

e
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a

lit
y 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t/

fa
m

ily
 

c.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n

 a
ct

s 
as

 t
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t/
fa

m
ily

 a
d

vo
ca

te
 

d.
 T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
d

el
iv

er
s 

ca
re

 i
n 

a 
n

o
n

-j
u

d
g

m
en

ta
l 

an
d 

n
o

n
d

is
cr

im
in

at
o

ry
 

m
a

n
n

e
r 

th
a

t 
is

 s
e

n
si

tiv
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it

y 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

ne
ed

s 
e.

 T
h

e 
cl

in
ic

ia
n 

d
el

iv
er

s 
ca

re
 i

n 
a 

m
an

n
er

 t
h

a
t 

p
re

se
rv

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
s 

p
at

ie
n

t 
a

u
to

n
o

m
y,

 d
ig

n
it

y 
an

d 
ri

g
h

ts
 

f. 
T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
se

ek
s 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
re

so
u

rc
es

 t
o 

he
lp

 f
o

rm
u

la
te

 e
th

ic
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 

7
. 

T
h

e 
cl

in
ic

ia
n 

us
es

 r
es

ea
rc

h
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

a.
 T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
us

es
 i

n
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
s 

su
b

st
an

ti
at

ed
 b

y 
re

se
ar

ch
, 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 a

s 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

to
 t

h
e 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

's
 s

co
pe

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 p

o
si

tio
n

, 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
b.

 T
h

e 
cl

in
ic

ia
n 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
as

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

to
 t

h
e 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

's
 s

co
pe

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 p

os
iti

on
,_

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
T

h
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
w

ill
: 

1.
 

A
ss

es
s 

th
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t's

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

h
e

a
lt

h
 s

ta
tu

s 
an

d 
p

e
rt

in
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
se

n
t 

an
d 

p
a

st
 h

is
to

ry
. 

2.
 

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

te
 w

it
h

 p
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 a
nd

 o
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lth

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

ar
e.

 
3.

 
O

bs
er

ve
 a

nd
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
ig

n
s 

an
d 

sy
m

p
to

m
s 

o
f 

co
m

p
lic

a
tio

n
s.

 
4.

 
P

ro
vi

de
 n

ur
si

ng
 i

n
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
s 

as
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e.
 

5.
 

D
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
al

l 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
o

f 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
an

d 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n 

o
f 

ca
re

. 

33
5



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 In

fu
si

on
 C

en
te

r 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f C

ar
e 

P
ag

e 
5 

o
f9

 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

IJ
!l

:.
f1

I1
 

... 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

3.
 

T
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

ill
 h

a
ve

 
ca

re
 a

nd
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
d

ir
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
o

f 
em

o
ti

o
n

al
, 

p
sy

ch
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
an

d 
sp

ir
it

u
al

 n
ee

d
s.

 

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

) 

4.
 B

ef
o

re
 i

n
it

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a 
ch

e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

re
g

im
e

n
, 

ea
ch

 p
at

ie
n

t 
is

 g
iv

en
 

w
ri

tt
en

 d
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

, 
a

t 
m

in
im

u
m

: 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 
RN

 

RN
 

RN
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

IJ
!l

 :.
f 1
I
1
l
~
·
J
•
1
 . 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
 w

ill
: 

1.
 

A
ss

es
s 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

ne
ed

s,
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 d

e
si

re
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s,
 a

nd
 d

e
si

g
n

 s
p

e
ci

fic
 n

u
rs

in
g

 
in

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 g
o

al
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g
: 

a.
 

E
m

o
ti

o
n

al
 n

ee
d

s 
• 

O
b

se
rv

es
 b

eh
av

io
r 

th
at

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
p

at
ie

n
t's

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

al
 n

ee
d

s 
• 

A
ss

es
se

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 f
ac

to
rs

 f
o

r 
b

eh
av

io
rs

 
• 

D
et

er
m

in
es

 n
ee

d
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o 

b
eh

av
io

rs
 

• 
Id

en
ti

fi
es

 r
es

o
u

rc
es

 f
o

r 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
em

o
ti

o
n

al
 n

ee
ds

 
b.

 
P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 n
ee

ds
 

• 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

e
st

s/
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
es

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
an

d 
ex

p
re

ss
io

n
 o

f 
fe

el
in

g
s 

• 
M

ak
es

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 f
o

r 
co

u
n

se
lin

g
, 

as
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

s 
fo

r 
p

at
ie

n
t 

p
ri

va
cy

 
c.

 
S

p
ir

it
u

a
l 

• 
A

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s 
an

d 
su

p
p

o
rt

s 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t's
 r

e
lig

io
u

s 
p

ro
h

ib
it

io
n

s/
 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

s,
 e

tc
. 

2.
 

E
va

lu
at

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

in
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
 a

nd
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
p

at
ie

n
t's

 r
ec

or
d 

a.
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 h
is

/h
e

r 
d

ia
g

n
o

si
s 

b.
 

G
oa

ls
 o

f 
th

e
ra

p
y 

c.
 

P
la

nn
ed

 d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ch
e

m
o

th
e

ra
p

y,
 d

ru
g

s,
 a

nd
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 

d.
 

C
o

n
fir

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
h

is
/h

e
r 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 e
ac

h 
cy

cl
e

; 
e.

 
f. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 s
h

o
rt

-
an

d 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 a

d
ve

rs
e

 e
ff

e
ct

s 
g.

 
R

eg
im

en
-

o
r 

d
ru

g
-s

p
ec

if
ic

 r
is

ks
 o

r 
sy

m
p

to
m

s 
th

a
t 

re
q

u
ir

e 
n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

nd
 

em
er

g
en

cy
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

: 

• 
H

ow
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 t
h

e 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

o
r 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
; 

• 
S

ym
p

to
m

s 
th

a
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 t
ri

g
g

e
r 

a 
ca

ll;
 

• 
W

ho
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ca
lle

d 
in

 s
p

e
ci

fic
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

(o
n

co
lo

g
is

t 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
p

ro
vi

d
e

r)
 

h.
 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

nd
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 

i. 
P

a
tie

n
t 

e
d

u
ca

tio
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t's

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 
le

ve
l/

lit
e

ra
cy

 a
nd

 p
a

ti
e

n
t/

ca
re

g
iv

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

. 

33
6



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f C
ar

e 
P

ag
e 

6 
o

f9
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

E
n

vi
ro

n


m
e

n
t 

•
T
~
l
~
l
•
I
•
 

... 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

5.
 O

n 
ea

ch
 c

lin
ic

a
l 

vi
si

t 
o

r 
d

a
y 

o
f 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 c
h

e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

, 
st

af
f:

 

T
he

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

ca
n 

e
xp

e
ct

 
to

 b
e 

tr
ea

te
d

 i
n 

a 
sa

fe
, 

sa
n

it
ar

y,
 c

o
m

fo
rt

ab
le

 
an

d 
th

e
ra

p
e

u
ti

c 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t.

 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 
RN

 

A
ll 

st
a

ff
 

T
IM

E


FR
A

M
E

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

1
J
·
l
~
I
1
I
e
l
:
:
m
!
l
·
1
·
 

SC
O

P
E

 O
F

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

A
. 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

d
o

cu
m

en
t 

cl
in

ic
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

a
n

d
/o

r 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 s

ta
tu

s 
B

. 
D

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

vi
ta

l 
si

gn
s 

an
d 

w
e

ig
h

t 
C

. 
V

er
if

y 
al

le
rg

ie
s,

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
ac

ti
o

n
s,

 a
nd

 t
re

at
m

en
t-

re
la

te
d

 t
o

xi
ci

ti
es

 
D

. 
A

ss
es

s 
an

d 
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

p
sy

ch
o

so
ci

a
l 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
ne

ed
 f

o
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
; 

ta
ki

n
g

 
ac

tio
n

 w
h

en
 i

n
d

ic
at

ed
. 

E.
 

A
t 

ea
ch

 c
lin

ic
al

 v
is

it
 o

r 
d

a
y 

o
f 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 c
h

e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

, 
st

af
f 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
h

e 
p

at
ie

n
t's

 c
u

rr
en

t 
m

ed
ic

at
io

n
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
u

n
te

r 
m

ed
ic

at
io

n
s 

an
d 

co
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nd

 a
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
th

er
ap

ie
s.

 
A

n
y 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t's

 m
e

d
ic

a
tio

n
s 

ar
e 

re
vi

e
w

e
d

 a
nd

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y 

a 
p

ra
ct

it
io

n
er

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
vi

si
t.

 

1
. 

T
he

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
: 

a.
 

A
ss

ur
e 

th
a

t 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
an

d 
su

p
p

lie
s 

w
ill

: 
• 

B
e 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n 

g
o

o
d

/s
af

e 
w

o
rk

in
g

 o
rd

er
 

• 
B

e 
re

a
d

ily
 a

va
ila

b
le

 
• 

B
e 

ke
p

t 
cl

ea
n 

b.
 

D
is

po
se

 o
f 

w
a

st
e

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y 

b
y 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 h

o
sp

ita
l 

w
a

st
e

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

• 
ch

e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

• 
b

io
h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

w
as

te
 p

o
lic

y 
&

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 
• 

S
h

a
rp

s 
us

e 
&

 d
is

p
o

sa
l 

p
o

lic
y 

&
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 

c.
 

T
ak

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
a

t 
p

re
ve

n
t 

cr
o

ss
-i

n
fe

ct
io

n
 a

nd
 t

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 
in

fe
ct

io
u

s/
co

m
m

u
n

ic
ab

le
 m

ic
ro

o
rg

an
is

m
s 

by
: 

• 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

h
o

sp
ita

l 
tr

an
sm

is
si

o
n

-b
as

ed
 p

re
ca

u
ti

o
n

s 
as

 i
t 

re
la

te
s 

to
 t

h
e 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
lin

ic
 

• 
H

a
n

d
w

a
sh

in
g

/h
a

n
d

 a
n

tis
e

p
si

s 
(1

) 
B

e
fo

re
 a

nd
 a

ft
e

r 
p

a
ti

e
n

t 
co

n
ta

ct
 

(2
) 

B
ef

or
e 

an
d 

a
ft

e
r 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
it

h
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

o
u

n
d

s 
(3

) 
B

ef
or

e 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 o
r 

as
si

st
in

g 
w

it
h

 c
lin

ic
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

(4
) 

A
ft

e
r 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
it

h
 c

o
n

ta
m

in
a

te
d

 s
u

rf
a

ce
s/

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

(5
) 

A
ft

e
r 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
it

h
 b

o
d

y 
su

b
st

a
n

ce
s 

o
r 

m
u

co
u

s 
m

e
m

b
ra

n
e

s 
• 

M
ai

n
ta

in
 a

se
p

ti
c 

an
d 

cl
ea

n 
te

ch
n

iq
u

e,
 a

s 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

• 
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 c

le
an

 a
nd

 s
an

it
ar

y 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

d.
 

P
ro

vi
de

 f
o

r 
p

a
ti

e
n

t's
 s

a
fe

ty
 b

y:
 

• 
Lo

ck
in

g 
w

h
ee

ls
 o

f 
ch

ai
rs

, 
w

h
ee

lc
h

ai
rs

 w
h

en
 t

ra
n

sf
er

ri
n

g
 o

r 
as

si
st

in
g 

at
ie

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

ne
 a

re
a 

to
 a

n
o

th
er

 

33
7



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
e

n
te

r 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f C

ar
e 

P
ag

e 
7 

o
f 9

 

tJ
!.

1:
~·

··
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 
I 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

I T
he

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 f
o

r 
h

is
/h

e
r 

b
io

p
h

ys
ic

a
l, 

p
sy

ch
o

lo
g

ic
a

l, 
so

ci
a

l, 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
a

l,
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
a

l,
 

co
m

fo
rt

 a
n

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s 
to

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 

co
u

rs
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

la
n

 o
f 

ca
re

. 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

R
N

/P
T

 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

In
it

ia
l 

vi
si

t 

t
J
!
l
:
~
t
i
t
l
:
:
:
a
!
J
~
I
•
 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

• 
N

e
ve

r 
le

a
vi

n
g

 d
is

o
ri

e
n

te
d

/c
o

n
fu

se
d

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 u
n

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 

• 
A

ss
is

tin
g

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 v

is
u

a
l 

d
e

fi
ci

t 
w

h
e

n
 a

m
b

u
la

ti
n

g
 

• 
A

ss
is

tin
g

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 u

n
st

e
a

d
y 

g
a

it
 w

h
e

n
 n

a
vi

g
a

ti
n

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

lin
ic

 
• 

P
la

ci
ng

 c
al

l 
b

e
lls

 a
t 

e
ve

ry
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
ch

a
ir

 
• 

P
la

ci
ng

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
b

e
lo

n
g

in
g

s 
as

 c
lo

se
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

• 
U

si
ng

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ge

 a
n

d
 s

iz
e 

e.
 

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 i
n

 l
if

e
-t

h
re

a
te

n
in

g
 e

ve
n

ts
 b

y:
 

• 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 h

o
sp

it
a

l's
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s,
 e

.g
.,

 f
ir

e
, 

d
is

a
st

e
r,

 s
e

cu
ri

ty
, 

e
tc

. 
• 

F
o

llo
w

in
q

 e
m

e
rq

e
n

cv
 c

a
rd

ia
c 

e
ve

n
t 

o
ro

to
co

l 
1.

 
D

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
it

ia
l 

vi
si

t 
th

e
 c

lin
ic

ia
n

 w
ill

: 
a.

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 o

r 
a

ss
is

t 
p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

as
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

fr
o

m
 f

a
m

ily
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
fr

ie
n

d
s,

 c
a

re
g

iv
e

rs
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

. 
b.

 
R

e
vi

e
w

 a
va

ila
b

le
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
h

is
to

ry
 r

e
co

rd
s 

c.
 

R
ec

or
d 

re
le

va
n

t 
m

e
d

ic
a

l 
d

a
ta

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
: 

• 
L

a
b

o
ra

to
ry

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

• 
A

lle
rg

ie
s 

• 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

e
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

• 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
o

f 
d

a
ily

 l
iv

in
g

 
• 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

a
l 

st
a

tu
s 

• 
M

o
b

ili
ty

 
• 

S
oc

ia
l 

h
a

b
it

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
to

b
a

cc
o

, 
ca

ff
e

in
e

, 
a

lc
o

h
o

l, 
an

d 
re

cr
e

a
tio

n
a

l 
d

ru
g

s 
• 

P
as

t 
an

d 
p

re
se

n
t 

m
e

d
ic

a
l 

h
is

to
ry

 
• 

P
as

t 
h

o
sp

it
a

liz
a

ti
o

n
s,

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s,
 i

n
va

si
ve

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

sy
st

e
m

s 
• 

V
ita

l 
si

g
n

s 
-

TP
R

 &
 B

P
 

• 
P

ai
n 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

• 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

o
f,

 o
r 

su
sp

ic
io

n
 o

f,
 a

b
u

se
 

d.
 

A
ss

es
s 

p
a

in
 

e.
 

A
ss

es
s 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
a

l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
f. 

E
va

lu
a

te
 h

o
m

e
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t 

g.
 

A
ss

es
s 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 n
e

e
d

s 
j.

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

g
e

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 a
d

o
le

sc
e

n
t,

 
a

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 g
e

ri
a

tr
ic

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r:
 

• 
G

ro
w

th
 &

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
• 

E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s 
• 

C
o

o
n

it
iv

e
 s

ta
tu

s 

33
8



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f C
ar

e 
P

ag
e 

8 
of

 9
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

R
ea

ss
es

s
m

en
t 

P
a

ti
e

n
t/

 
F

a
m

ily
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 

P
a

ti
e

n
t/

 
F

a
m

ily
 

E
d

u
ca

tio
n

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

) 
R

N
 

T
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
I 

R
N

 
re

as
se

ss
ed

 f
o

r 
co

m
p

lia
n

ce
 a

nd
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

to
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

a
t 

ea
ch

 
vi

si
t.

 

T
he

 p
a

ti
e

n
t/

fa
m

ily
/ 

I 
R

N
 

ca
re

g
iv

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
kn

o
w

le
d

g
e

a
b

le
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t's
 

ill
n

e
ss

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
n 

o
f 

ca
re

 a
nd

 t
h

e 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o 

re
st

o
re

 t
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
b

a
ck

 
to

 o
p

ti
m

a
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
. 

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

) 
R

N
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

In
it

ia
l 

vi
si

t 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

tJ
.!

.1
:.

-•
I•

 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

• 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 n

ee
d

s 
• 

S
oc

ia
l 

ne
ed

s 
• 

D
ai

ly
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

n
ee

d
s 

T
h

e 
p

at
ie

n
t 

is
 r

ea
ss

es
se

d 
at

 e
ac

h
 v

is
it

 f
or

: 
1

. 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
la

n 
o

f 
ca

re
 

a.
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
b.

 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
h

o
m

e
 i

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
c.

 
C

h
an

g
es

 i
n 

ca
re

, 
m

ed
ic

at
io

n
, 

n
ew

 i
lln

es
s,

 h
o

sp
ita

l 
vi

si
ts

 
d.

 
W

ou
nd

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

e.
 

S
u

p
p

ly
/e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
ne

ed
s 

f. 
S

ig
ns

 a
nd

 s
ym

p
to

m
s 

o
f 

co
m

p
lic

a
ti

o
n

s 
g.

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 c

ar
e 

ne
ed

s 
h.

 
P

ai
n 

le
ve

l 
i. 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 s

ta
tu

s 
j.

 
M

en
ta

l 
st

a
tu

s 
k.

 
E

du
ca

tio
na

l 
ne

ed
s 

I. 
A

cu
it 

N
u

rs
in

g
 w

ill
: 

1
. 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 l

e
ve

l 
o

f 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t/
fa

m
ily

 
ca

re
g

iv
e

r 
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t's
 i

lln
e

ss
 a

n
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

ca
re

 n
ee

ds
. 

2.
 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

d
o

cu
m

en
t 

th
e 

p
at

ie
n

t's
 a

b
ili

ty
 a

nd
 r

ea
d

in
es

s 
to

 l
ea

rn
. 

3.
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

liz
e

d
 t

e
a

ch
in

g
/l

e
a

rn
in

g
 p

la
ns

. 
4

. 
C

o
lla

b
o

ra
te

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
lin

ic
 p

h
ys

ic
ia

n
 a

nd
 o

th
e

r 
te

a
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

co
n

ti
n

u
it

y 
o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a

ch
in

g
 p

la
n

. 
5.

 
P

ro
vi

de
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

nd
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

a
ti

e
n

t/
fa

m
ily

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

: 
a.

 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
e

n
te

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
b.

 
E

xp
la

n
a

tio
n

 o
f 

te
st

s 
an

d 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

c.
 

S
af

e 
an

d 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 u

se
 o

f 
m

e
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

an
d 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 r
es

po
ns

es
 a

nd
 s

id
e 

e
ff

e
ct

s 
d.

 
S

af
e 

an
d 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 u
se

 o
f 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

an
d 

su
p

p
lie

s 
e.

 
P

at
ie

n
t 

ca
re

 t
ec

h
n

iq
u

es
 

f. 
W

he
n 

to
 c

al
l 

an
d 

h
o

w
 t

o
 r

ea
ch

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

te
r 

33
9



O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 I

nf
us

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f C
ar

e 
P

ag
e 

9
o

f9
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 

R
ig

h
ts

 

t
J
_
·
1
~
.
1
t
I
•
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

T
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

ill
 h

a
ve

 a
 

se
ns

e 
o

f 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 a
s 

a 
pe

rs
on

 a
nd

 o
f 

va
lu

e 
as

 a
 

h
u

m
a

n
 b

e
in

g
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

m
ai

n
ta

in
 a

 s
en

se
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

id
e

n
ti

ty
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

A
ll 

cl
in

ic
 s

ta
ff

 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

g.
 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 a

va
ila

b
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 
h.

 
O

b
ta

in
in

g
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 d

is
ci

p
lin

e
s 

6.
 

U
til

iz
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
e

a
ch

in
g

 m
e

th
o

d
s 

an
d 

to
o

ls
 

7.
 

E
va

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a

ch
in

g
 

8.
 

D
o

cu
m

en
t 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 i
n

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

s 
an

d 
p

at
ie

n
t/

fa
m

il
y 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 e
d

u
ca

tio
n

a
l 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
T

h
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
: 

1.
 

P
ro

te
ct

, 
to

 t
h

e
 e

xt
e

n
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, 

al
l 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 a

ll 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 r
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 a

nd
 h

o
sp

ita
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

2.
 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
h

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
sp

e
ct

fu
l 

an
d 

co
m

p
a

ss
io

n
a

te
 a

tt
it

u
d

e
 b

y:
 

a.
 

C
on

ve
yi

ng
 a

 s
en

se
 o

f 
co

nc
er

n 
an

d 
w

ar
m

th
 

b.
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 t

h
e

m
se

lv
e

s 
a

t 
ea

ch
 e

n
co

u
n

te
r 

c.
 

R
es

po
nd

in
g 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 t

o
 p

a
ti

e
n

t 
ne

ed
s 

3.
 

A
ss

is
t 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
id

e
n

ti
ty

 b
y:

 
a.

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
in

g
 w

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

at
ie

n
t 

ca
n 

ro
u

ti
n

el
y 

ex
p

ec
t,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
h

e 
te

st
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
b.

 
R

es
pe

ct
in

g 
th

e
 p

a
ti

e
n

t's
 r

ig
h

t 
to

 i
n

q
u

ir
y 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 
ill

ne
ss

, 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f 
ca

re
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s/

tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 

c.
 

M
ak

in
g 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

/f
a

m
ily

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

ig
h

ts
 a

nd
 t

h
e

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 

d.
 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 p
a

ti
e

n
t/

fa
m

ily
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
ar

e 
e.

 
A

ct
in

g
 a

s 
p

a
ti

e
n

t 
a

d
vo

ca
te

 
f. 

U
se

 p
at

ie
n

t's
 p

ro
p

er
 n

am
e 

or
 t

h
e 

st
at

ed
 o

re
fe

re
n

ce
 

34
0



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PATIENT CARE MANAGEMENT 

ISSUE DATE: 

REVISION DATE{S}: 03/12, 02/16, 11/18, 09/19, 09/22 

Patient Care Management Department Approval: 
Utilization Review Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. INTRODUCTION: 

SUBJECT: Utilization ReviewManagernent Plan 

05/20 
06/20 
~10/22 
~11/22 

n/a 
08/20 

1. In accordance with the requirements of the Health and Human Services Conditions of 
Participation, g\a\e Operations Manual, Appendi)( A gurvey Protoeol, Regulations and 
Interpretive Guidelines for Hospitals, Centers for Medieare and Medieaid gerviee (CMg) 
guidelines and gtandards of the do int Commission, Tri-City Medical Center Governing Board 
delineate this Utilization Management Review Plan (URP). This Plan reflects the actual process 
of reviewing patient care. The Utilization Review Management Plan has been developed to be 
approved by the Quality Assurance Performance Improvement (QAPI), the Medical Executive 
Committee, and the Board of Directors. 

2. The Utilization Management Review Program applies to all patients regardless of payment 
source. The program does not include utilization review conducted by members of the medical 
staff under control with, or via others means of delegation by a third party payer. The Medical 
Center maintains the authority of decisions regarding review, including appropriate services, at 
the local level. 

3. This policy provides a uniform structure for appropriate provision of hospital resources; 
to 

State 
to achieve the highest quality of care possible in a cost-effective manner; compliant with 

and Federal regulatory requirements; facilitating appropriate reimbursement for services 
rendered to our patients. 

B. AUTHORITY: 
1. The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility for review of the quality, appropriateness, 

and medical necessity of admissions, continued stays, and supportive services. It delegates 
specific functions to the Medical Staff to develop and implement a comprehensive Utilization 
Review Management Plan. The authority and responsibility for providing personnel, resources, 
and equipment has been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer or Designee of Tri-City 
Medical Center. 

2. The Utilization ReviewManagement Plan is under the direction of the Utilization Review 
Committee, and following approval of this Utilization Review Management Plan, the Utilization 
Review Committee shall review and approve the URPP!afl annually for scope and objectives. 

C. GOALS/OBJECTIVES: 
1. All patients, regardless of type of insurance or source of payment, are monitored for over

utilization, under-utilization, and inefficient scheduling of resources. The primary objectives of 
utilization review are the following: 

341



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 2 of? 

a. Assure cGare at a lbevel aAppropriate to pP.atient nNeeds. 
b. Utilization review monitors the level of care on an ongoing basis to ensure that patients 

receive care in a facility appropriate for their needs. 
c. A patient in an acute care facility requires the continuous availability of physicians, 

skilled nursing services, surgical services and/or ancillary services found only in the 
acute hospital setting. 

2. Provide Professional Accountability 
a. Utilization review provides professional accountability for the utilization of health care 

resources to the patient and the person or organization paying for his/her care. It 
addresses issues of quality and cost controls to ensure the highest quality patient care at 
the lowest cost. 

3. Educate the Medical Staff and Other Health Care Professionals 
a. The ongoing utilization review activity and the identification of problem areas provide 

continuous education on quality of care and utilization issues to the Medical Staff and 
other health care professionals. 

I D. UTILIZATION REVIEWM/\N/\GEMENT COMMITTEE 
1. Organization 

a. The Committee shall be a medical staff committee of the hospital to meet the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Conditions of Participation (CoP) 
requirement. 

&.-b. The Committee7 will be composed of five (5) physicians, no less than two (2) physicians 
who must be either medical doctors or doctors of osteopathy and members of the 
Medical Staff, representing the admitting services of the medical staff, and assisted by 
other professional personnel. 

&cc. The other members may be any of the other types of practitioners as specified in CMS 
CoPState Operations Manual §482.12(c)(1). 

&.ed. The Physician Advisor will be a member of the Committee. 
i:he. No person with a direct financial interest in Tri-City Medical Center may -participate in 

reviews conducted by the Committee. No person who is, or has been, professionally 
involved in the care of the patient whose case is being reviewed may participate in the 
review. 

&.-f. All members of the Committee must follow the conflict of interest and confidentiality 
policies of Tri-City Medical Center. 

fog. All medical staff committee members shall be appointed by the Chief of Staff. 
Appointment shall be for one year. 

€r.h. The Director of Case Management will appoint non-medical staff representatives to the 
Committee annually. 

A-oi. Committee Representatives may include, but are not limited to: 
i. Director and/or Supervisor of Case Management 
ii. Chief of Patient Care ServicesNursing /\clrninistrator or representative 
iii. Chief Medical Officer 
iv. Chief Financial Officer 
v. Physician Advisor 
vi. Director/Manager of Medical Records 
iJ.h.vii. Director/Manager of Patient Financial ServicesMocliGal ReGorcls Director or 

ropresontative as neeclecl 
viii. Director of Quality Improvement 
ix. Nursing Directors/Managers (Emergency Department. Surgery) 
x. Compliance Officer 
xi. HospitalistCase Management I Social Services' representative(s) 
iv,xii. Director of Pharmacy as neeclecl ancl rnay include: 

B CDI Specialist, ancl Sooial Serviees representalive(s) as neeclecl 

342



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 3 of 7 

hj. As per Medical Staff Bylaws, for a quorum, no less than two (2) physician committee 
members shall attend the Utilization Committee Meetings. 

}.-k. The Committee must meet as often as necessary to accomplish its function, but no 
fewer than quarterly (4) times per year. 

2. Authority 
a. Physician Advisor and Review Personnel 

i. A designated Physician Advisor will be available per contractual agreement, 
Monday through Friday, to communicate with the Case Managers regarding 
questionable admissions, quality of care issues, length of stay (LOS)Elay or cost 
outliers and continued stay cases. This communication will be in person, via 
telephone, or via email, as necessary. 

ii. The Physician Advisor has authority to initiate a denial of an admission or an 
extension of length of stay (pending QIO review and concurrence when 
required). 

iii. The RN Case Managers will seek specific assistance and advice from the 
Physician Advisor in the following situations: 
1) When the admission or continued stay is not medically necessary 

based on the criteria.'Nhen tho Caso Manager has reason lo believe 
!hat an admission, continued stay, is not medically necessary based on 
criteria. 

2) 'Nhen the Case Manager is unable to mal1e a decision as to whether 
there is a medical necessity for acute care, even when the guidelines are 
mBh 

3) When there is a question of quality of care being rendered. 
4) When the implementation of discharge planning is delayed by either the 

patient, family and/or Aattending P~hysician. 
5) When under/over utilization and quality concerns are identified, as well as 

delays in services with the Attending Physician or consultants and 
intervention is necessary. 

iv. In most instances, the Physician Advisor shall render a decision within twenty
four (24) hours as to the approval or denial of an admission or continued stay. 
The Director of Case Management shall oversee review activities. Case 
Management review shall be conducted by personnel qualified to follow directive 
of the Utilization ReviewManagement Committee and to apply clinical guidelines 
and regulations. Sufficient qualified reviewers will be assigned to meet the 
requirements of reviews. 

b. The Committee has the authority to give notice of non-coverage in accordance with 
federal and state law and other third partythird-party payer requirements. 

c. The Committee has the responsibility to: 
i. Implement procedures for reviewing all stages of hospital admissions, including 

but not limited to: 
1) Medical necessity for admission, over- and under-utilization of ancillary 

services, delays in services, quality of care indicators. 
2) Adequacy of medical record documentation, lengths of stay,-afld 

timeliness of discharges, drugs and biologics, and assure that the 
findings and recommendations are implemented .. 

ii. Report review findings and recommendations to the appropriate Medical Center 
and/or Medical Staff persons or entities. 

iii. Review third-party payer denials, make recommendations and/or take 
appropriate actions. 

iv. Collect and analyze data necessary to carry out its responsibilities. 

343



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 4 of 7 

v. Analyze issues, problems, or individual cases identified through utilization review 
activities, make recommendations for resolution and/or refer to appropriate 
entities for resolution. 

vi. Assure coordination between utilization review, quality management, risk 
management, compliance, and patient financial services. 

3. Upon invitation from the Chairperson, other representatives of the Hospital or medical staff may 
attend meetings. The Chairperson and other designated members of the committee shall serve 
as Physician Advisor if there is not an appointed advisor available. 

4. Chairpersons of all standing committees shall have an open invitation to attend meetings of the 
Committee; other Medical Center personnel may attend upon invitation from the Committee. 

E. UTILIZATION REVIEW ACTIVITIES: 
1. Utilization Review Staff 

a. The Utilization Review staff consists of qualified non-physician Medical Center personnel 
including, but not limited to, nurse case managers, social workers, and assistants who 
function under the direction of Department Director as staff to the Utilization Review 
Committee. 

b. Physician Advisor 
2. Criteria" 

a. The RN Case Managers shall use the prescribed and authorized criteria designated by 
medical staff while reviewing the severity of illness, intensity of service, and discharge 
screens. 

a,b. lnterQual Criteria is utilized at Tri-City Medical Center. 
3. Admission Review 

a. All designated admissions shall have an initial lnterQual® review performed not later 
than 24 business hours following admission to TCMC. 

b. If during the admission review process the patient does not meet criteria for the 
ordered level of care, the Attending Physician is contacted for additional 
information. If there continues to be insufficient evidence to justify the admission 
the RN Case Manager will contact the Physician Advisor for review and action. 

c. The Physician Advisor reviews the available information and discusses the 
admission rationale or treatment approach with the Attending Physician if medical 
necessity for the level of care is not apparent. The Physician Advisor uses his or 
her medical knowledge to determine appropriate patient status and notifies the 
Attending Physician of the determination. 

a,d. If the Attending Physician fails to present their views or disagrees with the 
determination, the final determination must be made by at least two members of 
the UR Committee. 

4. Continued Stay ReviewConcurrent Review 
a. The RN Case Manager performs Continued Stay reviews to determine ongoing 

medical necessity and per payer request. The concurrent review process will follow 
the adR'lission review and will continue throughout the patient's hospital stay. 

b. If during the continued stay review process, the RN Case Manager finds that the 
review does not meet criteria for appropriateness or medical necessity, the 
Attending Physician is contacted for additional information. If there continues to 
be insufficient evidence to justify continued stay, the RN Case Manager will 
contact the physician Advisor for review and action. 

c. The Physician Advisor reviews the available information and discusses the 
rationale or treatment approach with the Attending Physician if medical necessity 
for the level of care is not apparent. The Physician Advisor uses his or her 

344



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 5 of 7 

medical knowledge to determine appropriate patient status and notifies the 
Attending Physician of the determination. 

d. If the Attending Physician fails to present their views or disagrees with the 
determination, the final determination must be made by at least two members of 
UR committee. 

e. The RN Case Manager performs a retrospective review on cases per payer 
request. 

t, Conmmont reviews shall be provided to payers as requested. 
g. Concurrent reviews for Medicare & Medicaid patients should be performed as per 

department standards throughout the patient's hospital stay. 
i. For duration of stays, review only cases that they (hospital) reasonably assume 

to be outlier cases eased on extended length of stay, as specified in State 
Operations Manual §412.gQ (a)(1)(i); and 

ii. For profossional services furnished, including drugs, biologicals, and medical 
devices, the hospital needs to review only cases that they reasonably assume to 
be outlier cases based on extraordinarily high costs, as specified in State 
Operations Manual §412.gQ (a)(1 )(ii) 

h. In keeping with the "Ten (1 Q) Bed Call List" protocol as determined by the San Diego 
County office for Medi Cal, those Medi Cal or Modi Cal Ponding; CMS or CMS Pending 
patients who no longer meet an acute hospital level of care and are "awaiting placement" 
shall be identified as being on the "Ten (1Q) Bed Call List". 
i. The Caso Manager shall discuss case with the treating physician and work to 

obtain a physician order for the patient to be placed on "Ten (1 Q) Bed Call 
status". 

ii. The Ten (1 Q) Bed Call List will ee maintained by the Case Management 
department's appropriate support staff member. 

iii. Case Manager shall document "Ten (1 Q) Bed Call" status in the patient's EMR 
5. Outlier Review 

a. The Director of Caso Management and Social Work Manager conduct frequent outlier 
review to ensure the ongoing medical necessity of any patient with an extended stay or 
high dollar amount of services. Physician Advisor may attend as needed. 

b. Specific outlier cases are Eliscussed in the Hospitalists Stop Light Rounds, and Intensive 
Care Rounds, outlining clinical condition, discharge barriers, and action plan. 

c. The target indicators for outlier review are: 
i. bength of stay of 10 er mere days er 
ii. Total hospital charges of $75,000 or greater 

6. Discharge Planning 
a. Discharge planning is a collaborative effort of a multidisciplinary team of individuals 

performed as an integral semponent of the direst patient care prooess. 
b. The ooncurrent utilii!ation review process is one of several mechanisms designed to 

identify and refer patients needing dissharge Care Coordination. 
7. Relationship to Third Party Payers 

f. The Hospital is responsible through the Case Management funstion for the process of 
reviewing patients' (eeneficiaries') slinical information for the purpose of presenting 
claims to third parties, including the fiscal intermediary, the basis upon which payment is 
allowed by the intermediar;, the condition under which the intermediary denies claims, 
and tho claims appeal data aeout a case shall llo open to review by fiscal intermediaries, 
state agencies, and tho Quality Improvement Organii!ations (QIO). Information and data 
shall be protected to ensure confidentiality. 

I J=.F.~-!C!i!O~bb!:1·"~·B!::!;O!iJ:!RtiAcl:+~IOtj~~I ~V'.~'l+±JM!:!::!+:!:jM!:!;Et;!Q~U~.~l\b!::Jl!:!:lY:!;;;!.1'~.st!S!!;!U;t!R~l'~.~~IC!ije!Sjl~P:!;;Et!:!R;!:;F;!:O!tR~ll.~~/'~.~~IC!ije!l::!J:l~~AP~R~O~V~li~M!:!;li~N!::!:+ COMMIITlili (Q/\Pll ,",NC/OR +Mi MliCICAb S+AFF: 

345



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 6 of 7 

1. Case Management is enc of the components of a hospital Quality Improvement Program, during 
the course of concurrent and retrespeotive review, the Case Managers will soreen patient 
reoerds fer quality cenoerns, including these speoifio events designated by the Quality 
Management and Regulatory Cemplianoe ii>peoialist. If oenoerns are identified through Case 
Management reviews, they will be deoumented within /\llsoripts. Case Management and Quality 
Improvement functions will be integrated as follows: 
a. Quality And Utilization concerns are referred to the appropriate Medical ii>taff Review 

Committee: 
i. If a potential quality issue is identified during the revie'N precess and-is 

considered le be of immediate need for correction, it will be immediately referred 
to the Physician Adviser. If the attending physician er Hospital Department 
Manager is unwilling to correct the problem to the satisfaction of the Physician 
Adviser, the Chairperson of the attending physician's department, Chief of ii>taff, 
er Administration will be immediately notified; the Risk Manager may also be 
notified. 

ii. If a potential quality issue is identified, however, and correction has already 
occurred, the case will be referred to the appropriate Medical ii>taff Committee er 
Department Manager. 

iii. Problem Diagnosis Related Groups (DRGs) will have Quality Improvement 
Teams assigned to evaluate the problem, determine the cause, and recommend 
corrective action. 

G. STAN9AR9 RePORTS TO COMMITTee: 
1. ii>tandard reports presented at Committee meetings may include at least the fellowing 

information: 
a. Monthly UR Committee Dashboard: Case Mile lndmc, Length of ii>tay, Readmission 

Reduction 
b. Condition Cede 44s per month 
c. Discharge Appeals per quarter 
d. PePPER Report Analysis quarterly 
e. Hii>AG Readmission report & Hii>AG High Risk Medication report (HRM) reported 

quarterly 
f. Analysis of Observation rates: Observations verses Inpatients & Conversion rates every 

6 months 
g. Review of Medicare ii>pecific Inpatient ii>tays: Chest pain, TIA, ii>yncepe monthly 
h. Physical Adviser Denial Outcomes monthly 
i. Managed Resources Report/Pest Appeal Outcomes quarterly 

I E-cF. HOSPITAL ADMINISTRATION 
1. The Hospital Administration shall provide the necessary resources to ensure the proper functioning 

of the Case Management Program. This includes acting as a liaison with all departments, 
ensuring information is properly assembled, and by providing necessary forms, secretarial 
assistance, and meeting space. Administration shall be responsible for considering and acting 
upon decisions and recommendations stemming from the Case Management function with 
respect to Hospital policy, procedures, and staffing. 

f..G. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Medicare Conditions of Participation Title 42, volume 2 

2. State Operations Manual, /\ppendiJ< A Survey Preteoel, §4g2.;JO(b) 1'tandard: 
Composition of Utilization Review Committee 
;J. State Operations Manual, Appendix/\ Survey Preteoel, §4g2.;JO(c) ii>tandard: Scope 
and Frequency of Review 

346



Patient Care Management 
Utilization Management Plan Policy 
Page 7of7 

4. Stale Operations Manual, Appendil< /\ Survey Protoool, §482.12(0) Standard: Care of 
Patients 
&.- Stale Operations Manual, Subpart F' Payment for Outlier Cases, §412.80(a)(1) Basis 
Rule: Disohar13es ooourrin§ on or after Oo!ober 1, 1994 and before Oo!ober 1, 1997 

347



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Progressive Care Unit (PCU) 

PROCEDURE: ADMISSION PROCESS FOR PROGRESSIVE CARE UNIT (PCU) 
Purpose: To ensure proper processing of admissions for Justice Involved Individual (JI/) patients 

referred by a County, State or Federal Law Enforcement Agency 

I A. DEFINITION 
1. All Justice Involved Individual (JI/) requests for direct admission or interfacility transfer to the 

Progressive Care Unit (PCU) will be processed by the PCU Manager, ANM or Relief Charge RN 
in close collaboration with the Hospitalist Quarterback or attending physician(s). This will occur 
2417. 

2. Jll are in custody of the San Diego County Sheriff Department (SDSDG), the California 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (CDCR), or a Federal Law Enforcement Agency 
(FED) 

B. DEPARTMENTAL PROCESS: 
1. Referrals may be received from CDCR, SDSDG or FED facilities or as interfacility transfers from 

other hospitals. 
2. Facilities requesting a Jll patient transfer to Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) will contact the 

PCU at (760) 940-7231. 
3. Requestor will provide the Jll CDCR identification number or Booking number. 
4. Requestor (Case Manager, Registered Nurse or Physician) will provide information regarding 

reason for admission including medical diagnosis, level of care (ICU.Telemetry, Acute Rehab, 
etc.) and any other necessary information needed to facilitate transfer and proper bed 
placement. Contact numbers will be obtained for the hospitalist to facilitate a physician to 
physician report. 

5. The PCU Manager, Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM) or Relief Charge Nurse will contact the 
hospitalist to inform them of request for transfer, reason for request, level of care requested, 
TCMC bed availability, and contact number of transferring facility. 

6. Certain criteria will require a consulting physician to be contacted prior to the Hospitalist 
acceptance of a patient. These criteria include but are not limited to: 
a. Acute Rehab - the Director or Supervisor of Acute RehabBrandon Peer ext. 714 4 or 

Priya Joshi m<I. 7868 must review records prior to acceptance and approve that patient 
may be transferred to a medical bed at TCMC for further medical evaluation prior to 
acceptance in the ARU level of care. 

b. Ortho on call Orthopedics 
c. Cardiology - on call Cardiologist 
d. Cardiothoracic - Dr. Daniel Gramins 
e. Ophthalmology - Dr. Arvind Saini 
f. OMFS - Dr. Brian Mudd 
g. Plastics - Dr. Geehan D'Souzoa 
h. General Surgery on call General Surgeon 
Neuro Surgery Dr.Fran/< Yoo, Dr.Howard Tung or Dr. Mark Stern 
+, The PCU Manager, ANM or Relief Charge in collaboration with the CDCR or SDSDG 
will assign a bed for the patient, communicate this to the House Supervisor and place 
information in Aionex. 

&7. The PCU Manager, ANM or Relief Charge will confirm acceptance with the requester providing 
both room number and accepting physicians' name. 

8. Upon patient arrival, PCU Unit Secretary will send a Gerner Communication Notice to Access 
Management to inform them of the patient arrival so patient can be admitted in Gerner 

OepaA:meRtProgressive Medical Staff 
Pharmacy& Medical Professional 

Board of Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs 
Care Unit Review DepartmenUDivision 

Committee Committee Committee 
Directors 

03/20 n/a n/a 09/22 11/22 n/a 

348



Staff Resource Center Manual 
PFssoel1::1Fe TiUsAdmission Process for Progressive Care Unit (PCU) 
Page 2 of2 

ReferenseRELATED DOCUMENT: 
TCMC Pelisy: Patient Care Services; Admission Criteria Policy; Pelisy VI.A 

349



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PROGRESSIVE CARE UNIT (PCU) 

ISSUE DATE: NEW04/18 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

DepartmentProgressive Care Unit Approval: 
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Hunger Strike: Justice Involved 
Patients 

.'.f..21t+03/2 0 
n/a 
n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
~ n/a 
04/18 

1. To delineate the roles of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) and department of oorreetion when 
a justice involved (JI) patient participates in a hunger strike. 

2. To ensure JI patients receive care to maintain their nutritional status as ordered by TCHD 
physician. 

B. DEFINITION(S): 
1. JI Patient - patients held involuntarily through operation of law enforcement authorities. 
2. Hunger Strike - refusal of necessary food and or fluids for political, mental health or other 

grievance-rated reasons. 
3. Baseline - date and time that initial medical assessment and documentation occur for 

monitoring purposes. 
4. Nutrition support - nutritional therapy such as food delivered by a tube to the stomach, central 

venous line, or by an intravenous line when usual diet is insufficient. 
a. Requires a physician order and must be administered in a licensed health facility. 

5. Forced treatment - forced treatment that shall occur only in an emergency or with a court order 
for a mentally incompetent JI patient as provided in California Penal Code Section 3200. 

6. Medical Emergencies as defined in the California Code of Regulation (CCR), Title 15, § 3355 
(A) and California Correctional Health Care Services (CCHCS): 
a. Any medical, mental health, or dental condition for which evaluation and treatment are 

necessary to prevent tleatA,severe severe or permanent disability, or death. 
b. A medical emergency exists when there is a sudden marked change in a JI patient 

condition so that action is immediately necessary for the preservation of life or the 
prevention of serious bodily harm to the JI patient or others. 

il-cc. Custody staff - peace officer assigned to monitor the security of the patient. 

C. POLICY: 
1. California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation {CDCR) JI patients participating in a 

hunger strike shall be provided a medical and mental health assessment, monitoring, and 
necessary treatment, regardless of the reason for the hunger strike. 

2. The identification of patient participating in a hunger strike will be performed by CQCR 
appropriate custody staff. 

3. Registered Nurses (RN) assigned to a patient refusing to consume meals or stating they are 
participating in a hunger strike will notify the Progressive Care Unit (PCU),Clinical Manager 
(CM) or designee immediately and follow the CDCR Division of Correctional Health Care 
Services (DCHCS) guidelines outlined within this policy. 

350



Progressive Care Unit 
Hunger Strike: Justice Involved Patients 
Page 2 of 3 

a. The PCU RN, CM, or designee will notify the CDCR Correctional 01'fiser (CO) Custody 
Officer assigned to the patient. 

4. Prior to administering a course of medical treatment, medical staff must first obtain the patient's 
informed consent. To exercise this right, patient must: 
a. Receive information about his/her medical condition 
b. Be educated about +the proposed course of treatment (including nutrition support) 
c. Prospect for recovery 

5. Forced feeding (enteral or parenteral nutrition support) shall not take place except in a licensed 
health care facility by licensed clinical staff. 

6. TCHD employees shall grant JI patients autonomy in health care decisions related to nutrition 
and shall not force feed the JI patient unless one of the following criteria are met: 
a. JI patient's condition meets the definition of emergency status. 
b. JI patient is deemed unable to give informed consent as defined as outlined in CCR Title 

15, Article 8, § 3353.1 and the institution obtains an appropriate court order per CCR, 
Title 15, Article 8, § 3351 (a) to treat a mentally incompetent inmate-patient. 

D. PROCEDURE: 
1. RN Responsibilitiesi-lnitial 

a. After a JI patient is identified as participating in a hunger strike. 
i. Complete all nursing interventions and assessments as outlined in the TCMC 

Standards of Care. 
ii. Review the patient's ffiedical history for ffiedical diagnosis, conditions, or 

diseases that are an iffiffiediate risk to tho patient. 
1) Exaffiples include l:Jut are not limited to the fellowing; dial:Jetes, end stage 

renal disease, sialysis. 
iihii. Notify the physician of the intended hunger strike and the following: 

1) immediate medical risk 
2) current nutritional intake 
3) output 
4) admission weight 
5) current weight 

M-iii. Notify the PCU Manager, Case Manager (CM) and on duty leadership (Assistant 
Nurse Manager [ANM] or Relief Charge RN). 
1) The CM or on duty leadership will notify the patient's facility Physician or 

RN on duty and provide the following information: 

a) Most resent socuffientes weight 
9fa) Current measured weight 
c) Physician censitien ans appearance 
s) Effietion am! /er psychological sonsition 
e) Vital signs i.e., heart rate (HR), temperature, respirations, 

orthostatic blood pressure 
f)b) Relevant mesical history inslusing allergies to foos ans Current 

medications 
file) What the patient is refusing i.e., food or liquids 
h) Current ffiental health status ans histel)' of ffiental disorders 
i) Suicise risl1 assessffient 

E. INFORMeD CONSeNT AND STAFF INTeRVeNTIONS: RIGHT TO REFUSE TREATMENT: 
1. Prier to asffiinistering a course of ffiesical treatffient, mesisal staff must first ol:Jtain the di 

patient's inforffies consent. To exercise this right, a patient shall receive inforffiation about 
his/her ffiesical conditions, the prepeses course of treatffient (including nutrition support ans 
his/her prospects for recovery). 

2. Patient has the right to refuse all medical treatment and care at TCHD provided patient has the 
capacity and competency to do so. After discussion with the on duty Physician at the custodial 

351



Progressive Care Unit 
Hunger Strike: Justice Involved Patients 
Page 3 of 3 

institution, patient may be discharged against medical advice (AMA) back to the institution once 
accepted by the on duty Physician. 

F. REFERENCE($): 
1. California Correctional Health Care Services (CCHCS). (2013, July). Gchcs CCHCS hunger 

strike, fasting , & refeeding care guide. Retrieved 
from http://www.cphcs.ca.gov/careguides/MassHungerStrikeCareGuide.pdf 

2. CCHCS. (2012, July). Emergency medical response system policy. 12(4), Medical Services. 
Retrieved from http://www.cphcs.ca.gov/docs 

3. San Diego County Sheriff's Department Medical Services Division (2015). Hunger Strikes, 
MSD.H.12, CCR Title 15, Section 1206 

352



ISSUE DATE: 06/08 

REVISION DATE: 12/12, 09/18 

Department Approval: 
Division of Pulmonary Approval: 

\~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PULMONARY REHABILITATION 

SUBJECT: Emergency Response System 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 

09/18 
n/a 
n/a 

09/22 
11/22 

n/a 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 12/12 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To -iflensure patient safety and ensure appropriate response in the event of a medical 

emergency. 

B. POLICY: 
1. In the event of a cardiopulmonary emergency, the participant shall be placed in a safe position. 

The TCMC emergency response system shall be activated by dialing 66 on the hospital phone. 
The remaining participants in the gym shall be instructed to cease exercising and asked to clear 
the immediate area. BLS shall be initiated until the code team arrives. 

C. GUIDELINES: 
1. BLS shall be initiated by BLS certified staff until code team arrive. 
2. Exercising participants shall be instructed by staff to discontinue exercising and clear the 

immediate area 
3. A cellular phone shall be kept at nurses' station at all times to use as backup to contact the 

CODE team in case of power failure to main phone system. 
4. As part of the annual review, employees shall be asked to demonstrate their understanding and 

ability to use the system and an annual "mock code blue" shall be conducted in collaboration 
with the education department a minimum of four timesonce a year. 

353



lc0\ 
'lii "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

PULMONARY REHABILITATION 

ISSUE DATE: 09/08 SUBJECT: Patient Enrollment Protocol 

REVISION DATE: 12/12-, 09/18 

Department Approval: 
Division of Pulmonary Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 

09/20 
n/a 
n/a 

09/22 
11/22 

n/a 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 12/12 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To establish guidelines for enrolling new patients into a Pulmonary Rehabilitation Program. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Patient must meet criteria for patient selection. 
2. Patient's physician will sign referral stating there are no known contraindications to patient 

exercising at the time of admission. 
3. Patient shall sign exercise consent allowing staff to set guidelines for gradually progressive 

graded exercise. 

C. GENERAL GUIDELINES: 
1. All-Pf}atients seen l:Jy the pulmonary rehal:J staff during their inpatient stay shall be contacted 9y 

staff after an appropriate into rial of roeuperation at home, to find out how !he patient is doing 
afl€1--to determine interest in GHF-the Outpatient Pulmonary Rehabilitation program. 

2. Patient's primary physician or patient's Pulmonologist shall be contacted and admission to 
Pulmonary Rehabilitation requested. Physician approval shall be accompanied by signed 
referral. 

3. Insurance authorization shall be obtained by staff members and patient shall agree to be 
responsible for any difference between amount billed and amount paid by insurance company, 
as well as any co-payment necessary under their insurance contracted benefits. 

4. Patient shall come to Pulmonary Rehabilitation for intake and a patient history shall be obtained. 
a. Physical, emotional and psychosocial limitations shall be assessed and documented, to 

ensure maximum benefit and safety of each participant 
b. Relevant medical records shall be obtained and kept as a part of patient's record. These 

shall include but not be limited to, a discharge summary and recent PFT. 

354



ISSUE DATE: 09/08 

REVISION DATE: 12/12 

Department Approval: 
Division of Pulmonary Approval: 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

PULMONARY REHABILITATION 

SUBJECT: Patient Referral 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

09/22 
11/22 

n/a 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 12/12 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To establish guidelines for patient referral for Pulmonary Rehabilitation Program. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All patients must be referred to the Pulmonary Rehabilitation Program by a physician order after 

the patient meets the "Criteria for Patient Selection." 

C. GENERAL GUIDELINES: 
1. The physician shall sign the referral, and, if possible, provide recent laboratory results. 
2. If the patient's primary physician or cardiologist does not feel an exercise stress test is 

necessary or appropriate at this time, target heart rate shall be determined and monitored by the 
Pulmonary Rehabilitation staff using age determined target heart rate ranges and/or rest plus 30 
beats The patient's perceived exertion shall not exceed the Borg Scale of 5. 

355



ISSUE DATE: NEW 

REVISION DATEfS}: 

I&,\ 
~ "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

RADIOLOGY 

SUBJECT: Screening for Pregnancy in 
Patients Scheduled for Diagnostic 
Radiology Procedures 

Department Approval: 02/20 
Department of Radiology Approval: 08/22 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/22 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date: n/a 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. Based on American College of Radiology {ACR) guidelines, a screening of pregnant or 

potentially pregnant patients prior to diagnostic radiologic exams should be performed for 
patients of menstrual age (typically ages 12 through 50 years). 

2. The purpose of screening patients for the possibility of pregnancy is to reasonably minimize the 
number of unexpected exposures of pregnant patients who have entered a potentially 
vulnerable stage of gestation. For pregnancies that are more than 4 weeks and less than 15 
weeks post- conception, the dose to the conceptus becomes an especially important factor. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All patients of menstrual age (typically ages 12 through 50 years) should be questioned about 

pregnancy status. If the patient is not positive about her pregnancy, it is radiologic technologist's 
responsibility to contact patient's nurse {for inpatients), or ordering physician {for outpatients) 
and request a pregnancy test. 

2. If the result of a pregnancy test is positive, it indicates the need to follow up protocols for 
patients known to be pregnant, and the information must be brought to the attention of ordering 
physician. Physician can request limited studies such as one view chest, limited ribs, skull, or 
extremities studies. An informed consent must be obtained to proceed with the radiologic 
examination. 

3. The radiologic technologist will verify the patient has been given informed consent and complete 
the consent (verbal or written). 

4. Special considerations: 
a. For higher radiation dose such as lumbar spine, thoracic spine, abdomen/ pelvic studies, 

ordering physician needs to inform the patient in regard of the risk and potential effects 
of ionizing radiation on fetus. Physician may be requesting limited radiologic studies as 
well as consulting with a radiologist to exposing the patient as low as reasonably 
possible. 

b. Patients who are minors (in most states, a minor is a child under the age of 18), a parent 
or guardian is usually responsible for consenting to a minor's health care including 
radiologic exams. Generally, a minor is considered emancipated if married, on active 
duty in the armed forces, or otherwise living apart from her parents and managing her 
own finances. Per California hospital association law, a parent or guardian is responsible 
for consenting to a minor's health care if minor is unmarried; otherwise minor's consent 
is sufficient without parental consent. 

356



Radiology 
Screening for Pregnancy in Patients Scheduled for Diagnostic Radiology Procedures 
Page 2 of 2 

c. In the event where the ordering physician determines that the procedure must be done 
without the benefit of a pregnancy test, the technologist will document in the medical 
record that he/she has been directed to proceed without this information. 

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Consent to Diagnostic Radiology Procedure on a Pregnant Patient 7633-1011 

357



ISSUE DATE: 11/09 

lc'.,il,\ 
'II "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Behavior Management/Supervision 
Technique 

REVISION DATE{S}: 03/10, 03/12, 05/12 

Rehabilitation Department Approval: 
Department of Medicine Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 

-1-0m08/22 
OOl4+, 08/22 
n/a 
~09/22 
11/22 
O-U'l-3 n/a 
01/18 

1. All potentially violent and/or suspicious behavior will be dealt with immediately to prevent any 
harm to patients and staff. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Responsibility/who may perform: 

a. The indiViduals responsible for performing behavior management/supervision during 
transport to the Rehabilitation Gym are the following: 
i. Physical Therapists and Physical Therapy Assistants who have active licenses to 

practice in the State of California. 
ii. Occupational Therapists and Occupational Therapist Assistants who have active 

licenses to practice in the State of California. 
iii. Speech Language Pathologists who have active licenses to practice in the State 

of California. 
iv. Assistants will be directly supervised by a therapist within the respective 

discipline. 
b. To maintain safety during patient transport to/from Rehabilitation Services Gym area, 

move the patient to another area or remove the other patients from the area and call for 
staff assistance when violent or suspicious behavior is observed. 

c. Should an event occur, the staff member will gather all information regarding behavior 
and assess the patient's mental status. 

d. Implement the most appropriate response, which may be a time-out or verbal de
escalation techniques. 

e. Physical restraint is not used as a clinical intervention. If a patient becomes violent, a 
"Dr. Strong" code must be called immediately by dialing 66 in the hospital. If the patient 
becomes violent at an offsite location, 911 should be called immediately. 

f. The Director or designee will meet with all staff involved to process the incident. The 
team will discuss the effectiveness of actions taken and ways to improve future 
responses to similar occurrences. 

g. Submit required documentation when necessary and forward to the Risk Management 
Department. 

h. Document the incident and staff response in the patient's medical record. 

358



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 04/95 SUBJECT: Community Out-Reach Groups 

REVISION DATE($}: 09/97, 01/00, 01/03, 01/06, 01/09, POLICY NUMBER: 800 
05/12 

Department Approval: 09#-508/22 
oon708/22 Department of Medicine Approval: 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a 
O-m-710/22 
11/22 
Gll/.1-7 n/a 
08/17 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 
1. Community Out-Reach Groups are provided in a social/group setting to emphasize sustaining or 

returning to the highest level of functioning within the individual's home and in the community. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Requests for Service: 

a. Participants will be self-referred or referred by a healthcare professional to attend group 
treatment, per the following guidelines, the patient should display the following: 
i. Appropriate level of motivation to participate and benefit from group treatment. 

b. Appropriate comprehension necessary to understand simple directions and be able to 
attend for one hour. 

c. Have a realistic expectation of group therapy goals. 
2. Hours of Service 

a. One session weekly for one hour, subject to change due to community needs. 
3. Responsibilities 

a. Group therapy will involve utilization of multi-modal communication skills. Groups and 
group goals will be selected pertinent to participants' wants and needs. 

b. Groups may include, but will not be limited to: 
i. Aphasia Group 

1) This group is for individuals who have difficulty with speech and/or 
language skills and whose personal therapy may have been completed or 
discharge from therapy is forthcoming. This is language therapy in a 
group setting, emphasizing social communication skills solving 
communication problems within the community and promoting multimodal 
communication skills. 

ii. Parkinson's Group 
1) This exercise program is designs to improve the quality of life for those 

with Parkinson's disease. The purpose is to help maintain maximum 
function. The Class begins with a warm-up, followed by upper extremity, 
lower extremity and trunk strengthening, then a fun activity to increase 
coordination, balance or mobility. The session ends with a cool-=down 
activity. Participants are also given written exercises to perform at home 
and are encouraged to ask questions relating to their disease process. 

iii. Stroke Exercise Group 

359



Rehabilitation Services 
Community Out-Reach Groups 
Page 2 of 2 

1) This group is geared toward clients who have been discharged from 
therapy services and are looking for a continued exercise program for 
maintenance, learning new techniques, friendships, or just getting out. 
We begin with a stretching warm-up, upper extremity exercises, lower 
extremity exercises, balance activities and then a few fun activities. 

360



fc0\ 
'ii "if Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 07/91 

REVISION DATE{S}: 11/94, 01/06, 01/09 
REVIEW DATE{S}: 05/00, 01/03, 04/12 

Department Approval: 
Department of Medicine Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 

09/15 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

11/22 
~n/a 
02/18 

SUBJECT: Job Site 
Assessment 

POLICY NUMBER: 06/09 

1. Provide Tri-City employees and outside companies with a Job Site Assessment upon request and 
written agreement with Tri-City Medical Center. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. For TCMC employee work-related injuries, employee health will refer the employee to 

Concentra for evaluation and treatment. Once doctor recommends ergonomic evaluation, 
a referral request will be submitted by Concentra to the WC carrier for authorization. Once 
authorized, the referral will be forwarded to the Rehab Director or Manager via email (if 
internal) or electronic/paper referral (if external). Upon request, the Physical or Occupatienal 
Therapist will contact the company and schedule an evaluation of the specific workstation to be 
done during company working hours. 

2. For TCMC employee non work-related injuries, but need for ergo assessment, employee 
will talk to their supervisor and their supervisor will submit a request for an ergonomic 
evaluation through Employee Health. There will be no charges for in-house, non-injury 
related ergonomic assessments. 

&.-3. A physical or occupational therapist will be designated to provide the evaluation, and they 
will work out a time with the employee to schedule the evaluation. The onsite evaluation will 
include a thorough assessment of the workstation. The evaluation will focus on specified 
workstation setup relative to tasks, positions, repetitive motions, lifting, and proper body 
mechanics. A video camera may be used for assessment of findings and interpretation of data. 

dA. A written report of findings will be provided to the company completed upon conclusion of the 
analysis. Included in the report will be recommendations regarding workstation design, tools, 
equipment modification, and education programs to help increase worker safety and efficiency. 

45. A copy of all reports, and videotapes if applicable, will be maintained in the Rehabilitation 
Services area. One copy of each final report will be forwarded to the appointed designee 
Occupational Health Program Manager for placement in the company master file or saved on the 
network-shared drive. 

361



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 02/18 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Rehabilitation Department Approval: 
Department of Medicine Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 

SUBJECT: Occupational Therapy Assistant 
Supervision 

POLICY NUMBeR: 707 

~08/22 
08/22 
n/a 
Q.1.14309/22 
11/22 
02m n/a 
02/18 

1. The Occupational Therapy Staff will be responsible to follow the progress of each patient, 
provide direct care to the patient, and to assure that the occupational therapy assistant does not 
function autonomously. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Appropriate supervision of an occupational therapy assistant includes, at a minimum: 

a. The weekly review of the occupational therapy plan and implementation and periodic 
onsite review by the supervising occupational therapist. The weekly review shall 
encompass all aspects of occupational therapy services and be completed by 
telecommunication or onsite. 

b. Documentation of the supervision, which shall include either documentation of direct 
client care by the supervising occupational therapist, documentation of review of the 
client's medical and/or treatment record and the occupational therapy services provided 
by the occupational therapy assistant, or co-signature of the occupational therapy 
assistant's documentation. 

c. The supervising occupational therapist shall be readily available in person or by 
telecommunication to the occupational therapy assistant at all times while the 
occupational therapy assistant is providing occupational therapy services. 

d. The supervising occupational therapist shall provide periodic on-site supervision and 
observation of client care rendered by the occupational therapy assistant. 

e. The supervising occupational therapist shall at all times be responsible for all 
occupational therapy services provided by an occupational therapy assistant, a limited 
permit holder, a student or an aide. The supervising occupational therapist has 
continuing responsibility to follow the progress of each client, provide direct care to the 
client, and assure that the occupational therapy assistant, limited permit holder, student 
or aide do not function autonomously. 

f. The level of supervision for all personnel is determined by the supervising occupational 
therapist whose responsibility it is to ensure that the amount, degree, and pattern of 
supervision are consistent with the knowledge, skill and ability of the person being 
supervised. 

g. Occupational therapy assistants may supervise: 
i. Level I occupational therapy students; 
ii. Level I and Level II occupational therapy assistant students; and 
iii. Aides providing non-client related tasks. 

362



Rehabilitation Services 
Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant Policy 
Page 2 of2 

h. The supervising occupational therapist shall determine that the occupational therapy 
practitioner possesses a current license or permit to practice occupational therapy prior 
to allowing the person to provide occupational therapy services. 

C. REFERENCE(S): 
1. California Board Of Occupational Therapy Regulations. (2015). Title 16, Division 39 
2. California Code of Regulations 

363



ISSUE DATE: 09/91 

~?J Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Occupational Therapy 

REVISION DATE{$}: 01/94, 09/97, 03/00, 01/03, 01/06, 
01/09, 03/10, 04/12, 03/16 

POLICY NUMBE;J~: 702 

Rehabilitation Department Approval: 
Department of Medicine Chiefs Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 

~08/22 
01/1908/22 
n/a 
oat4909/22 
04#911/22 
n/a 
04/19 

1. Occupational Therapy is accountable through the Leadership Structure of Rehabilitation 
Services and the referring physician for maintaining a competent level of practice. The 
department is also accountable through the appropriate Administrative Executive for carrying 
out the policies and procedures as approved by the Governing Board. 

2. Occupational Therapy Staff reports to the Leadership Structure in fulfilling duties and 
responsibilities. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Requests For Service 

a. All requests for occupational therapy services must be in the form of a written 
prescription from a licensed physician or Allied Health Professional (AHP). 

b. Verbal requests for occupational therapy services will be accepted, but must be followed 
by a written order. 

c. A new order is required for any change in medical status or treatment ordered. 
2. Hours Of Service 

a. Inpatient care: Monday through Sunday, 0800 to 1630 for inpatient care. 
b. Outpatient: Monday through Friday, 0700 to 1630. 
c. Therapy provision may occur outside of these time frames on an as needed basis. 

3. Responsibilities 
a. Provides occupational therapy evaluations and treatment as prescribed by a licensed 

physician or AHP. 
b. Administers an assessment of Occupational Performance. 
c. Develops an Intervention Plan for each individual with designated goals based upon the 

individual's medical condition, assessment and personal goals. 
d. Develops Outcomes and Measures to assess the individual's progress or regression. 
e. Implements the Intervention Plan, utilizing specific activities or methods to develop or 

restore function, compensate for dysfunction or minimize debilitation. 
f. Engages in Intervention Plan Review, modifying treatment based on established 

Outcomes and Measures, as clinically indicated and medically necessary. 
g. Treatment may include but is not limited to: 

i. Use of therapeutic tasks and purposeful activities to promote psychological, 
cognitive, physical, sensory integrative and developmental functioning. 

ii. Facilitate and educate in graded self-care and daily-living tasks, socialization 
skills, pre-vocation skills, vocational roles, and community reintegration with 

364



Rehabilitation Services 
Occupational Therapy Policy+@ 
Page 2 of 2 

regard to patients' privacy and dignity. This may involve instructing in the use of 
compensatory techniques; selecting, constructing and instructing in the use of 
adaptive devices, orthoses, and prostheses; ordering appropriate equipment and 
recommending adaptation of the individual's physical environment to enable 
optimal function. 

iii. Use of exercises and other specific techniques such as those to promote 
relaxation, restore movement, strength and posture in preparation for functional 
training. 

h. Documents patient treatment and treatment outcomes in patient's legal record 
per American Occupational Therapy Association/Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services Guidelines for Documentation of Occupational Therapy. 

i. Maintains ongoing reporting and consultative role with appropriate health care 
professionals regarding patient's current status. 

j. Identifies safety hazards and equipment in disrepair, removes hazard or equipment and 
inputs work order. 

k. Demonstrates fiscally responsible decision making including the prudent use of therapy 
equipment and supplies, and conservation of time and resources in a manner that 
maintains desired income and expense ratios. 

I. Maintains appropriate operational and administrative records, may include but not limited 
to licensure, certifications, timecards, training records, and billing sheets as per 
department guidelines. 

C. REFERENCE(S): 
1. American Occupational Therapy Association (2014).0ccupational therapy practice framework: 

Domain and process (3rd ed.).American Journal of Occupational Therapy, 68(Suppl.1 ), S1-
S48.http://dx.doi.org/10.5014/ajot.2014.682006 

2. Gloria Frolek Clark, M. J. (2013). Guidelines for Documentation of Occupational Therapy. (T. C. 
2012, Ed.) American Journal of Occupational Therapy, 67(November/December), 32-38. 

3. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. (2015, May). Therapy Services. Retrieved from 
www.cms.gov:www.cms.gov/Outpatient_Rehabilitation_Fact_Sheet.ICN905365.pdf 

4. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. (2015, May). Outreach-and-Education/Medicare
Learning-Network-MLN/MLNMattersArticles/Downloads/MM6698.pdf. Retrieved from 
www.cms.gov: 

365



ISSUE DATE: 05/18 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Department of Medicine Approval: 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

REHABILITATION SERVICES 

SUBJECT: Supervision of Patients • Outpatient 

POblGY NUMBeR: 1106 

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 

Q.911-508/22 
---Ala08/22 
n/a 
02/1-809/22 
11/22 
05t1-8 n/a 
05/18 

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 
1. All physical, occupational and speech and language pathology evaluations and treatments will 

be directed and supervised by discipline specific licensed clinical staff. 

B. PROCEDURE: 
1. Licensed clinical staff includes: Physical Therapists (PT), Occupational Therapist, Speech and 

Language Pathologists and Physical/Occupational Therapy Assistants. 
2. Support Staff may include PT Aides and Rehabilitation Aides. 
3. Support staff may carry out tasks under the guidance of the Licensed Physical/Occupational 

Therapists in supporting patient therapy sessions as per the guidelines established by the state 
and discipline specific regulatory body. 

C. REFERENCE(S): 
1. California Physical Therapy State Practice Act. (n.d.). Physical Therapy Board of California. 

Retrieved July 7, 2015, from Physical Therapy Board of California Website: 
http://leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=bpc&group=02001-03000&file=2620-2634 

2. California Board Of Occupational Therapy Regulations. (2015). Title 16, Division 39 California 
Code of Regulations. 

366



ISSUE DATE: 

~~ Tri·City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

February 19, 1902/92 

SECURITY 
SAFETY 

SUBJECT: Code Adam - Security Department 
Response Plan for an Infant 
Abduction 

REVIEW DATE{$}: 04/94, 10/97, 05/03, 11/06, 03/09, POLICY NUMBER: 503 
06/11 

REVISION DATE{S}: 07/03 

Department Approval Oate(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Oate(s): 
Administrative Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Oate(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Oate(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

08/4a05/20 
Q.911-a09/22 
11/22 
44#a n/a 
12/15 

1. To establish the protection of infants from unauthorized or illegal removal from the Medical 
Center by any unauthorized person(s). 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the policy of the Security Department to immediately implement the following procedures 

in the event that an infant is illegally removed from the Medical Center by any unauthorized 
person(s). Reference Administrative Policy #369 Code Adam {Infant Abduction). 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. In the event of a suspected infant abduction all Security Department personnel will respond 

and implement the following: 
a. Obtain a complete description of the missing infant. 
b. Obtain a time frame for the abduction 
c. Obtain a complete description of the Abductor(s) and their direction or egress. 
d. Notify the Oceanside Police Department of the abduction and relay all information 

regarding the abduction. 
e. Offer any requested assistance from the responding Law Enforcement agency. 
f. Follow the Administrative Policy regarding an Infant Abduction. 

2. All On-Duty Security Department personnel will report to the following locations to inspect any 
property or persons that may be the Abductor. 
a. The Security Supervisor, Designee, or Shift Lead Officer will assume the Security 

Incident Commander position and report to the location of the abduction ensuring that 
sections C.1. a-f are completed. 

b. A perimeter will be set up to observe all property exits and record the following 
information: 
i. Vehicle descriptions 
ii. License plate number 
iii. Vehicle occupant descriptions 

c. Security Officers will be available to respond to staff requests of suspicious persons or 
packages. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Administrative Policy #369: Code Adam (Infant Abduction) 

367



lc0\ 
~ If Tri-City Medical Center 

ISSUE DATE: May 27, 199105/91 

Oceanside, California 

SECURITY 
SAFETY 

REVIEW DATE{$}: 10/97, 03/00, 08/01, 05/03, 11/06, 03/09, 
06/11 

REVISION DATE{$}: 10/97, 08/01, 07/03, 12/15, 5/202005/20 

Department Approval Cate(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Cate (s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Cate(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Cate(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Code Red - Security 
Department Fire Response Plan 

POLICY NUMBER: 504 

~10/20 
0-914509/22 
11/22 
44+1-a n/a 
12/15 

1. To set fourth guidelines for Security Department personnel to utilize when responding to a 
Medical Center "Code Red" alert 

B. POLICY: 
1. All Security Department personnel will be responsible for the knowledge and proper 

performance of all Administrative and Security Department mandated duties, activities, and 
assignments associated with athe Medical Center "Code Red" activation. Reference 
Environment of Care Policy #3005 Fire Plan-Code Red. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. When notified of a "Code Red" activation, all On-Duty Security Officers will immediately 

implement the following priority response protocol. 
a. The Lead Security Officer is to communicate with all on-duty security officers 

what their responsibilities and expectations are at the time of notification via 
two-way radio transmission; the Lead Officer will be in charge of radio 
transmissions until the situation is clear. 

b. All on-duty security officers, with the exception of the scanner post officer who 
will receive instructions from the Lead Officer, will respond to the emergency 
call regardless if posted or on a break and will make certain to bring a fire 
extinguisher to the reported location. 

c. Upon arrival at the scene, the Lead Officer will assess if a security officer needs 
to go get a golf cart and await the local Fire Department [responsibility of Plant 
Enginner to inform F.D.] at the Y intersection at Vista Way. The mobile patrol 
officer will then escort the F.D. to the specific location of the "Code Red" on 
property. 

d. The Security Department will assist the "Code Red" response team [Plant I 
Maintenance Dept. as well as the Environmental Services Dept.] until cleared by 
the Plant I Maintenance Dept. employee. 

a-e. All security officers who respond will notate in their daily reports the details of 
the "Code Red" regardless if it was a drill or actual. If there are three er mere On 
Duty Security Officers, the Security Department will respend in the fellewing manner. 

368



Security - Safety 
Code Red - Security Department Fire Response Plan 
Page 2 of 2 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

v,i. 
D. REFERENCE!Sl: 

The 1 Post O#ioer will obtain a fire extinguisher and respond to the location of 
the reported "Code Red" and assist as needed. 
The 2 Post will respond to the Medioal Cantor ontranoe at the "¥" and av1ait the 
arrival of the Fire Department and direst them to the appropriate Medioal 
Center building entrance. 
The a Post will respond to the appropriate Medioal Center building entrance 
and await tho arrival of the Fire Department and diroot them to tho location of 
the "Code Red". 
All additional aeourity Department personnel will respond to the location of the 
"Code Red" with a Fire Extinguisher anEI assist as neeEloEI. 

1. Environment of Care Policy #3005: Fire Plan-Code Red. 

369



lc;fi\ 
'll (I Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

SECURITY 
SAFETY 

ISSUE DATE: 06/95 SUBJECT: High-Risk Patient or Visitor 

REVIEW DATE{S}: 07/97, 05/03, 11/06, 03/09, 06/11, 
07/15 

REVISION DATE{$}: 07/97, 07/03, 09/15 

Department Approval Date(s): 

POLICY NUMBER: 509 

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 
07/15 
Olm509/22 
11/22 
09#5 n/a 
09/15 

Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To identify Patients or Visitors which, due to circumstances, may be a high-risk to the Safety, 

Security, and Welfare of Medical Center Patients, Visitors, and Staff Members. 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the policy of the Tri-City Medical Center Security Department to immediately identify any 

Patient or Visitor, which may place the Safety, Security, and Welfare of Medical Center 
Patients, Visitors, or Staff Members in jeopardy and to take the appropriate level of 
intervention. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. When any Tri-City Medical Center Security Officer observes, detects, or is otherwise notified 

of any Patient or Visitor who has arrived at the Medical Center and who due to certain factors 
would place Patients, Visitors, or Staff Members at a risk for the potential of harm, the Officer 
will immediately evaluate the situation. 
a. Examples of high-risk behaviors include but are not limited to anger, aggression, 

verbal or physical threats or inappropriate response to situation 
2. The Security Officer will be responsible for notifying all other Officers of the situation and 

request the necessary level of assistance to effectively and efficiently control the individual. In 
addition, the Officer will immediately notify the Security Supervisor and/or Shift Lead Officer. 

3. The Security Supervisor or Shift Lead Officer will then notify the appropriate Administrator, 
Manager, or Administrative Coordinator of the situation and any action taken if necessary. 

4. High Risk Patients 
a. To ensure the Safety, Security, and Welfare of all Patients, Visitors, and Staff 

Members, the primary responding Security Officer will ensure that all Clinical Staff 
responsible for the patient's care are informed of all available information pertaining to 
this patient. Any Security Officer who interacts with a high-risk patient will follow the 
guidelines of Security Department policies pertaining to conflict resolution. 
i. The Security Supervisor or Lead Security Officer will assume the responsibility 

of Primary Officer if they feel it necessary to intervene. 
b. The primary Security Officer will be responsible for ensuring that the high-risk patient is 

continually monitored and, if necessary, escorted within the Medical Center. 

370



Security - Safety 
High Risk Patient or Visitor 
Page 2 of2 

c. Unless otherwise directed, patient visitation privileges will be restricted to two 
immediate family members only as per the direction of a Charge Nurse and I or an 
Administrator. 

d. In the event that the high-risk patient is involved in an incident that would adversely 
jeopardize the Safety, Security, and Welfare of the Patients, Visitors, or Staff Members 
at Tri-City Medical Center, the patients will be registered into the patient tracking 
system with a no-information/confidential status. 

e. In the event that a large crowd, ten or more individuals, associated with the high-risk 
patient who is in the Emergency Department, and there is a strong possibility of a 
disruption of normal operating procedures, the Primary Security Officer will 
immediately implement the following. 
i. Notify the Oceanside Police Department of the situation and need for 

assistance if necessary. 
ii. Remove the crowd to the outside triage patio area. 
iii. If necessary, close down the Emergency Department registration area and 

restrict all access into the patient care area. 
1) Use the North/East Ancillary entrance for access into the Emergency 

Department via the Registration Hallway. 
iv. Position the CCTV system to record all crowd and parking locations adjacent to 

the Emergency Department and other areas if necessary. 
v. If Necessary, the primary Officer will utilize the Security Department 

"Emergency Situation Officer Recall" 
5. High Risk Visitor 

a. To ensure the Safety, Security, and Welfare of all Patients, Visitors, and Staff 
Members the primary Security Officer will be responsible for ensuring that any high
risk visitors are continually monitored and evaluated for signs of escalating or 
disruptive behavior. 

b. All Security Officers who interact with high-risk visitors will follow Security Department 
policies pertaining to conflict resolution. In addition, the Officer will utilize all available 
Medical Center resources to assist in the successful resolution of the incident. 

c. If all proactive efforts are unsuccessful, the high-risk visitor will be advised to exit the 
Medical Center and advised that if they refuse to comply the Oceanside Police 
Department will be called for assistance in the removal of the high-risk visitor. 

d. The Primary Security Officer will be responsible for ensuring that all departmental 
documentation is completed and submitted in accordance with Medical Center and 
Security Department policies. 

371



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

SECURITY 
SECURITY OPERATIONS 

ISSUE DATE: 05/00 SUBJECT: Psychiatric Patient Escorts 

REVIEW DATE{S}: 08/01, 07/03, 11/06, 03/09, 6/11, 07/15 

REVISION DATE{S}: 08/01, 06/11, 09/15 

POLICY NUMBER: 216 

Department Approval Date(s): 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 

o+f!l-510/20 
Oif.i509/22 
11/22 
(}9JiS n/a 
09/15 

1. To establish guidelines for Security Department personnel when conducting escorts for 
psychiatric patients. 

B. POLICY: 
1. It is the policy of the Security Department to ensure the safety, security, and welfare of all 

involved parties when conducting an escort of any psychiatric patients upon the Medical Center 
campus. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Prior to any escorts involving a Psychiatric Patient regardless of voluntary/involuntary status, the 

Officer must complete a safety search of the patient's belongings to assure no weapons or 
dangerous items are brought with the patient. 
a. If an item is identified as dangerous, the Officer will take custody of the item and secure 

it for safe keeping in the locked cabinet in the Emergency Department Security Office. 
b. The item will be inventoried and a receipt will be given to the patient. 
c. Upon the patient's discharge, the item will be returned to the patient. 

2. All Security Department escorts involving psychiatric patients shall be conducted with the 
accompaniment of at least one of the following Medical Center personnel. 
a. Registered Nurse (RN) 
b. Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN) 
c. Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) 
d. Psychiatric Liaison 
e. Acute Care Technician (ACT)/Nursing Assistant 

3. Security Department escorts involving psychiatric patients on a Psychiatric/5150 Hold will be 
conducted by a minimum of two (2) Security Officers if the escort meets at least one of the 
following criteria: 
a. Family members or a visitor are present at the time of escort. 
b. The patient has demonstrated or verbalized the desire to elope during his or her contact 

with Medical Center personnel. 
c. The patient is a danger to self or others. 
d. The Security Officer involved has made the determination that the patient may be a flight 

risk, or may pose a physical threat 

372



Security - Security Operations 
Psychiatric Patient Escorts 
Page 2 of 2 

4. Security Department escorts involving psychiatric patients on a Psychiatric /5150 Hold will be 
conducted by a minimum of one (1) Security Officer if the escort meets at least one of the 
following criteria. 
a. No family members or visitors are present at the time of escort. 
b. The patient has not demonstrated of verbalized the desire to elope during his or her 

contact with Medical Center personnel. 
c. The patient is gravely disabled and unable to elope during the escort. 

5. Security Department escorts involving psychiatric patients not on a Psychiatric /5150 Hold will 
require the presence of one (1) Security Officer unless the escort meets one of the following 
criteria. 
a. The patient is not on a Psychiatric /5150 Hold at the time of the escort, but if the patient 

attempts to elope he/she may be placed on a Psychiatric /5150 Hold. 
b. The patient has demonstrated or verbalized the desire to elope and at the time of the 

escort if the patient attempts to elope he/she will be placed on a Psychiatric /5150 Hold. 
c. Medical Center personnel due to the patients' potential of becoming violent or a danger 

to self or others during the escort request security. 
6. Security Department personnel shall be able to react in a quick and professional manner in the 

event that it is necessary to control a situation that may arise during an escort. To ensure that 
Security Officer's may safely and quickly react in the event of a situation the following will be 
followed by all Security Department personnel. 
a. No Security Officer shall be required to push a wheelchair during an escort. 
b. No Security Officer shall be required to carry any large objects that may inhibit him/her 

from a quick reaction. 
c. If the patient has multiple bags of belongings, the Security Officer shall ask for 

assistance from another Officer, or another member of Medical Staff. 

373



~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

SECURITY 
SECURITY ADMINISTRATION 

+RI GI+¥ Mt;;QIGAb Gt;;t>J+:t;;R POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

P:ernrnlatieA: April 17, 1991 S"bjest: Seeurily QeparlA1eAI Reper!s 
Re,<iewee: §194, 1197, 1~199, §IG3, 11/Gs, 3,IQQ, 

,,..., .. ,., 
RevisieA: 11GG, 71G3, 9111 
Apprevals: Qiree!er el :>ee"rity J2a9B-14.;f 

""e"'ittee Ely: Seeurily QeparlA1eAI Preeeeure Man"al: Ses"ri!y QeparlA1eAt 

ISSUE DATE: April 17, 199104/91 

SQPPM # 111 

SUBJECT: Security Department Reports, 
Documentation, and Information 

REVIEW DATE{S}: 05/94, 01/97, 12/99, 05/03, 11/06, 03/09, 05/13 

REVISION DATE{S}: 01/00, 07/03, 06/11, 02/202(} 

Department Approval Date(s): 02/20 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date (s):09/22 
Administration Approval: 11/22 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): n/a 
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 

A. PURPOSE: 
1. To set guidelines and expectations for the proper completion of all Security Department 

reports, documentation, and information~ 

B. POLICY: 
1. A formal departmental reporting system hml been to establisheG-feF-an internal means of 

documenting duties and actions by Security Officers~ 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. D.S.R. [daily security report] 

a. Eash ghift Offiser will initiate a Daily gesurity Report (D"R) at the beginning of their 
assignee shift The officer's DSR will be completed by the end of shift unless 
authorized by the department's leadership [Manager I Director, Supervisor, or 
Lead] to complete on the next scheduled shift. This DSR will itemize in 
chronological order each astivityduty, funetion, or astion location, duration of the 
duty, and remarks which the Officer iswas involved in. The following notations 
must be provided in the D.S.R. with details for documentation standards: room 
numbers or locations, persons involved and their titles I contact numbers, 
patient interaction [verbal and physical], use of force, contraband, belongings, 
valuables, and crime I incident report criteria. If the security officer is assisting 
another officer I not the first on scene, they must still include all details in their 
own DSR as if they were the primary security officer involved. Each DSR entry 
will be clear and legibly written in capital letters and black ink., oonoise, anEI 
oomplete anEI will inoluEle tho Eluty number, looation, time initiateEI, anEI total time 

374



Security - Security Administration 
Security Department Reports 
Page 2 of 3 

involves. It is important to lmep in mine that tho DSR will be V.'ritten in a n;nning log 
format. DSRs are not to be used in lieu of a crime I incident report unless 
authorized by the Manager I Director or Supervisor. 

2. Crime/ Incident Reports 
a. C.I. reports will be completed within 24 hours of the incident occurring and the 

final copy within 48 hours unless directed-otherwise by the department's 
leadership. All fields/ boxes must be completely filled-in with applicable 
information. All known and investigated information will be included in the 
narrative section utilizing the basic questions [who,what, when, where, why, and 
how] with full attention to accuracy, consistency, detail, and format. All 
appropriate attachments are to be included in the report such as photographs, 
witness statements, maps, copies of personal information [D.L. I insurance], and 
report-gathering templates. A report will be generated I completed, if deemed 
necessary, regardless of the level of cooperation from complaintants, involved
persons, and witnesses. Physical descriptions are to be included of all 
combative persons, injured persons, and suspicious subjects identified. 

3. Field Notes 
a. Field notes are utilized to document pass-down information from shift to shift I 

person to person as well as the security officer's daily activity before 
transferring the information to their DSR, C.I. Report, or any other Security 
Department document. Field notes are to be destroyed at the end of the security 
officer's shift and after the applicable information is transferred to a S.D. 
document. 

4. Enforcement Reports 
a. Enforcement reports will be completed with attention to filling out all the boxes 

and details: patient information, room numbers, 5150 initiation I discontinuation, 
patient's status, checklist, applicable personnel, and narrative. The narrative will 
include but is not limited to patient interaction, use of force, belongings' 
whereabouts, and a synopsis for each major intervention or event. 

5. Detail or Equipment Logbooks and Daily Lead Checklist 
'h-6. All such logbooks will be updated and completed by the end of the officer's shift. The 

logbooks include but are not limited to: valuables, lost and found, property custody, 
weapons scanner, and patients' belongings. Other logbooks could include golf cart 
maintenance, fire/ safety I floor check. The daily leads' checklist will be completed by 
the end of the lead's shift and is initiated to have the shift goal-oriented. The checklist 
ensures that the off-going shift has completed basic safety checks and responsibilities 
to assist the on-coming shift with their operations. 
2. All Elepartmental reports, incluEling but not limiteEI to: 
a. Daily Security Report (DSR) 
b. Crime/Incident Report (Cover Pago) 
c. Crime/Incident Report (Investigation Pago) 
El. Enforcement Report 
e. PTO Request 
f. UnscheduleEI Absence/Tardy 
g. Witness Statement 
h. Photo /\ttaohment 
i. Video Attaohment 
j. All Reports will be completed in the proper format containing all related information to 
the incident. 

'h-7. All Security Department reports, documentation, and information will be treated as 
privileged and confidential information, and no information from any report or a copy of any 
fGPGrlcategory -will be given to anyone [employee, patient, involved-person, or law 
enforcement] inquiring. unless the e>cpressed permission of !Tho Security Department's 
Leadership [Manager I Director or Supervisor] or Dosignee has been given is only 

375



Security - Security Administration 
Security Department Reports 
Page 3 of 3 

authorized to release the information to the Risk Management, Legal, and Human 
Resources Departments. See all of the attachments I documents of the Security 
Department notated below, and all non-mentioned reports, documentation, information, 
or templates' will have their contents protected as well. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S)ATTACHMENTS: 
Approved format of Crime/lnciElent report writing process. 
Attaches Report forms. 
1. Accident Report Map 
2. Accident Report Synopsis Page 
ko3. Crime/Incident Report (Cover Page) 

a. Slip/Fall/Injury Information-Gathering TemplateCrime/lnciElent Report (Investigation 
l2agej 

b. Theft Information-Gathering Template 
Traffic /\cciElent (Incident Report) 
Traffic Accident Pago 2 (Map) 

c. Vehicle Collision Information-Gathering Template 
IA. Daily Security Report (00-RDocumentation) 
R'h-5. Daily Security Report (Map) 

CrimollnoiElent Ropert Approved fermat. 
it6. Enforcement Report 
7. Lead Security Officer's! Shift Checklist 
8. Lost and Found Logbook 
9. Passdown Shift Information 
10. Property Custody 
11. Valuables Logbook 
&.c 12. Witness Statements 
p. Report Continuation gheot 

Photo /\ttaohmont 
ViEleo /\ttaohment 
PTO Request 
UnsoheEluleEI Time Off (Absence I TarEliness) 
Continuation Report 
\11.'eapons Scanner 
Patients' Belongings 
Consent to Photograph 

E. NON-COMPLIANCE: 
1. Non-Compliance of any part of this policy will lead to disciplinary action up to and or including 

termination of employment. 

376



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Women and Newborn Services 

PROCEDURE: CORD GAS COLLECTON 
Purpose: To outline the process for umbilical assisliA§ !he 13RysieiaAI Allies l=leal!h PmfessieAal 

'" ·- ·· · -ord qas collection at deliverv. 
Supportive Data: Umbilical cord blood acid-base analysis is a quantitative method of determining 

fetal acid-base balance and oxygenation at the time of cord clamping when 
umbilical circulation has ceased. A finding of normal umbilical blood gas 
measurements precludes the presence of acidemia at or immediately before birth 
and is a more objective measurement, especially in the preterm fetus.GslaiAiA§ a 
eeFEl §as s13eeimeA [3Fe\•iEles <1sef<1I iffieFmalieA Fe§aFEliA§ 131eeEl 131=! le•1els ef !Re AeeAale 
al Elelivef]'. +Re iA!Fa13aF!um aeiEl ease sla!us ef !Re fetus is aA im13eF!aA! eem13eAeA! iA 
es!al31ishiA§ the liRl1 13e!weeR iR!Fa13aF!um eveR!s aREl ReeRa!al eeRElitieR. +Re aRalysis ef 
eeFEl 131eeEl §ases fmm !Re umsilieal aFlefY is 13elieveEl le 13e the 13est FeweseRtatieR ef !Re 
' ' ' .. ·- . ' .. ''" 

Equipment: 1. Personal protective equipment 
2. Disposable umbilical cord clamps, 2 
3. Plastic specimen bags, 2 (One must be a Biohazard labeled bag for transport) 
4. Newborn's Identification label 

A. PROCEDURE: 
1. Don personal protective equipment. 
2. Obtain a section of the umbilical cord from the delivery provider13RysieiaRI Al=lP. 
3. If the provider13hysieiaRfAl=lP has not placed a disposable cord clamp at each end of the 

umbilical cord specimen, then do so at this time. 
a. Remeve the SUF§ieal elam13s fFem eaeh eREl ef !Re uml3ilieal eeFEl s13eeimeR aREl rn13laee 

with !Re Elis13esal3le elam13s, . 
4. Place the umbilical cord specimen in first plastic bag with ice, close the bag, and label the 

outside of the bag with the newborn's identification label. 
a. Write delivery date and time of birth on the label. 

i. Date and time of birth is essential to processing the test within the 
recommended ElefiReEl 30 60 -minute window. 

5. Next, put the specimen bag in the second biohazardous lal3eleEl 13lastie bag, in preparation for 
transport. 

6. Call the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) Respiratory Care Provider and indicate there is 
cord gas specimen sample that needs to be retrieved and processed. 

@. For the iarosess iRformatioR see the PulmoRary iaroseclure blmbilisal Cora Gas SampliRg. 
The provider will place an order in the patient's electronic health record (EHR), in the 
postpartum order set, for the umbilical cord gas (arterial/venous). 

B. RELATED DOCUMENTS: 
1. Pulmonary Procedure: Umbilical Cord Gas Sampling 

B,C. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Lyndon, A., Wisner, K.UsRBF Ali, L. (2021~). Fetal H/wart RFate Mmonitoring Pwinciples 

and Practice (6a1
h Ed.). Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses: 

Dul3uque, IA: Kendall Hunt. 
2. Blickstein, Isaac, MD., Clinics in Perinatology, vol 34, Issue 3, 09/2007, Umbilical Cord Gases, 

W.B. Saunders and Company. 

Review Division of Department 
Department 

Pharmacy& Medical Professional Administr Board of 
Revision Neonatolo of of OB/GYN Therapeutics Executive Affairs a ti on Directors 

Date gy Pediatrics Committee Committee Committee Approval 
03/97, 
05/03, 01/13, 02117, 05/13, 03/17, 
07109, 08116 11116 

08/22 
nla 

10122 
06113, 04117, n/a 11122 06113, 04/17 

01116, 
05122 

377



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 

PROCEDURE: GROUP BETA STREPTOCOCCAL (GBS) PREVENTION AND TREATMENT IN 
LABOR AND NEWBORN FOLLOW-UP 

Purpose: To prevent the intrapartal transmission off early onset GBS disease to newborns, 
women shall receive universal screening for GBS during their prenatal period. For those 
found at risk, ohemoprophylaxis treatment with antibiotic administration when in labor 
should be initiated on admission and received by the patient greater than or equal to 4 
hours prior to delivery. For those 1Nith an llnl1nown GBg statlls (no GBg reslllts 
EloellmenteEI, Glllti;re is ineomplete or reslllts are not availa91e) ohemoprophylaxis shall 
9e initiateEI at Ifie onset of la9or /\,Ng if any of the followin§ intrapaFlllm risk footers are 
present: estimateEI Gestational A§e (eGAJ is less a7 oompleteEI weel1s, rllptllre of 
mem9rane history is §realer than 18 ROllrs or maternal intrapartllm temperatllre is 

c'- 1 ,...,... r- f -1 '"''"' 11 .-~ 

Supportive Data: Administration of lntrapartum antibiotics which includes (Penicillin, Ampicillin or 
Cefazolin) greater than or equal to 4 hours prior to delivery in at risk laboring patients 
has reduced the rate of perinatal transmission of early onset GBS and other infections 
amon>i newborns. 

Equipment: Main Intravenous Line 
Intravenous antibiotic piggy back source and secondary line 
Infusion pump with medication auardrails 

A. POLICY: 
1. lntrapartum antibiotic prophylaxis (IAP) administration to prevent perinatal transmission is 

initiated based on these findings: 
a. Positive GBS culture results collected in at a5 a7 weeks listimated Gestational Age 

(eGA) Elllrin§ currentth-is pregnancy 
b. Positive maternal history of an infant born with early onset GBS disease 
c. GBS bacteriuria finding during currentth-is pregnancy 
d. If culture status is unknown (culture not done, incomplete or results not available) at the 

onset of labor AND if any of the following risk factors are present: 
i. Premature delivery is anticipated at less than 37 0/7 weeks EGA 
ii. Rupture of mem9ranes(membranes (ROM) history is greater than 18 hours 
iii. Isolated Maternal oral intrapartllm temperatllre: is §realer tfian or eEtllal to 38° C 

(100.4° Fl two times or 39° C (102.2°F) on any one oooasion.Known GBS 
positive status in a previous pregnancy at provider digression. 
Sllspeoted lntrallterine Inflammation, lnfeotion or Both (Sllspeoted Triple I): 
A fever withollt a olear souroe plus any of the following: 

Baseline fetal taohyoardia (greater than 160 bpm for 10 minutes or 
longer, exoluding aooolerations, deoelerations and periods of 
marked variability) 
Maternal 'Jllhite Blood Cell ('A'BC) oount greater than 15,000 per MM' 
in absenoe of oortioosteroids 
Definite purnlent fluid from the oervioal os 

Confirmed Intrauterine Inflammation, lnfeotion or Both (Isolated Maternal 
oral temperature, Suspeoted Triple I plus the following) is Confirmed Triple 
~ 

Amniooentesis pro•,<en infeotion through a positi•1e gram stain 
bow gluoose or positive amniotio fluid oulture 

iii. Plaoental pathology revealing diagnostio features of infeotions 
2. lntrapartum ehemoprophylaxis is NOT indicated when: 

Department Department of Department of 
Pharmacy and Medical Professional Ad mini Board of Therapeutics Executive Affairs 

Review 08/GYN Pediatrics 
Committee Committee Committee 

stration Directors 

05/15 12/15, 12/21 04/22 07115, 07122 01/16, 09/22 02/16, n/a 11/22 02/16 

378



Women and Newborn Se1Vices (WNS) 
GBS Prevention and Treatment in Labor and Newborn Follow-Up 
Page 2 of 4 

I B. 

D. 

a. The patient had a positive GBS during a previous pregnancy (unless colonization 
status in current pregnancy is unknown at onset of labor at term) 

b. A negative GBS culture is obtained within the last five weeks during the current 
pregnancy. 

c. Cesarean birth performed before onset of labor on a woman with intact amniotic 
membranes, regardless of GBS colonization status or gestational age. 

fr..d. Unknown GBS status at onset of labor and no intrapartum risk factors present 
(i.e., less than 37 0/7 weeks of gestation, amniotic membrane rupture 18 hours or 
more, or maternal temperature 100.4°F (38°C) or higher) 

a. There is a positive maternal GBS screening culll;re in a provieus pregnancy llut no 
noenatal GBS infection A~JD a NeG/\TIVe GBS culture restilt in tho current pregnancy 

8. /\ planned Cesarean Section is performed in the allsenco ef lallor or ROM 
c. NeGATIVe GBS culture in late gestatien during the current pregnancy, regardless ef 

inlrapartum risk faclers. 

PROCEDURE FOR 37 0/7 WEEKS OR GREATER EGA ADMITTED FOR LABOR/INDUCTION:/ 
ACTll/li LABOR ( POSITll/li GBS HISTORY OR UNKNOWN STATUS): 
1. Upon admission to Labor and Delivery (L&D), nurse shall verify the patient's GBS status and 

assess for risk factors as indicated. 
a. If status is unknown, efforts will be made to retrieve results from patient's prenatal 

record, laboratory service and/or clinic 
2. For patient's meeting IAP criteria, the nurse will administer intrapartum antibiotics per provider 

order. 
a. The goal for prophylaxis is for patient to receive at least one dose of antibiotics greater 

than or equal to 4 hours prior to her delivery. 
b. Obstetric interventions, when necessary, should not be delayed solely to provide 

4 hours of antibiotic administration before birth. 
&.-i. Such interventions include but are not limited to administration of 

oxytocin, artificial rupture of membranes, or planned cesarean birth, with 
or without pre-cesarean rupture of membranes. 

PROCEDURE FOR THREATENED OR IMMINENT PRETERM DELIVERY LESS THAN 37 0/7 
WEEKS EGA WITHOY+ UNKNOWN GBS STATUS: 
1. Upon admission, obtain a GBS culture per provider order. Usually this is obtained if tt appears 

the patient is unlikely to deliver for 48 hours or more 
2. IAP should be initiated until patient delivers or GBS culture results are received. Negative 

results may indicate IAP discontinuation per provider order. 

MONITORING CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE NEWBORN POST DELIVERY: 
1. The nurse caring for the newborn will review the maternal GBS status and whether or not IAP 

was received greatermBFe than or equal to 4 hours prior to the delivery, if indicated. 
2. If IAP was received at or greater than the 4 heur4-hour time period prior to delivery: 

a. Newborn shall receive normal transition care with routine assessment and monitoring. 
b. No lab work is required, unless newborn becomes symptomatic 

3. If IAP was NOT received and the newborn is greater than or equal to 36 0/7 weeks37 weeks 
EGA with a maternal: 
a. Rupture of Membranes (ROM) of less than 18 hours: 

i. Newborn shall have normal transition care and nurse shall initiate Newborn Care 
Standardized Procedure (SP) 

ii. Newborn may remain with mother for couplet care if asymptomatic 
iii. No lab work is required, unless the newborn becomes symptomatic 
iv. Newborn shall remain in the hospital a minimum of 3648 hours for close 

observation offeF sepsis 

379



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
GBS Prevention and Treatment in Labor and Newborn Follow-Up 
Page 3 of4 

b. ROM of greater than 18 hours, or maternal temperature greater than or equal to 
38°C (100.4°F) not meeting criteria for Triple I, or other risk factors for GBS 
disease: 7 

i. Newborn shall have normal transition care and nurse shall initiate Newborn Care 
SP 

ii. Laboratory shall Nurse shall oolleot acollect neonatal complete blood count 
(CBC) with manual differential, C-Reactive Protein (CRP) and isolator blood 
cultures within 6 to 12 hours of age per SP and notify the provider of results 

iii. Newborn may remain with mother for couplet care if asymptomatic and the lab 
results are reviewed by the provider to be normal values 

iv. Newborn shall remain in the hospital for greater than or equal to 48 hours for 
observation offef sepsis, pending negative culture. 

4. If l/\P was not received and newbern is less than er equal to ;n weeks EGA: 
a. Newborn shall have normal transitien oare and nurse shall initiate Care of the ~lowborn 

Care :;;p 
b. LaboratoryNurse shall oelleot a neonatal oomplete blood oount (CBC) Vlith manual 

differential, CRP and isolator blood cultures within 19 to12 hours of age per :;;p and notify 
the provider of results 

o. Newborn may remain with mother for oouplet oare if asymptomatic and the lab results 
are reviewed by the previder to be normal values 

d. Newborn should shall remain in the hospital for greater than or equal to 4g hours for 
observation for sepsis. 

4. If the patient has a Penicillin (PCN) allergy and the IAP received lli>Bd-was not fPenicillin G, 
Ampicillin or Cefazolin treatment should be considered not fully adequate in the neonate. h 
the newborn is oonsidered UNTREATED beoause the sensitivity of alternate antibiotios have not 
been established. Newborn may remain with mother for couplet care if asymptomatic. and the 
lab results are reviewed by the provider to be normal values. Newborn should shall-remain in 
the hospital for a minimum of greater than or equal to 364& hours for observation offef sepsis. 

5. With the diagnosis of Confirmed Triple I the newborn usually requires admission to the 
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) for observation, lab draws, and antibiotic 
administration. 
&ca. The nurse caring for the newborn shall notify the newborn provider and prepare 

the newborn for transport to NICU. 

E. MONITORING CONSlf;lERATIONS FOR NE1NBORN V'llTM MATERNAL CMORIOAMNIONITIS 
DIAGNOSIS REGARDLESS OF MATERNAL GBS STAYS: 
1. If a patient is diagnosed with Chorioamnionitis by the Obstetrics (OB) provider, the nurse oaring 

for the newbern must be notified as soon as possible. 
2. Criteria used to diagnosis Chorioamnionitis oan present in labor and/or during the post partum 

period and includes: 
a. Maternal temperature greater than 3g C (100.4F) /\ND 2 other signs or symptoms: 

i. Fetal taohyoardia 
ii. Maternal taohyoardia 
iii. Maternal white blood ooll ('IVBC) oount greater than 15,000 
iv. Uterine tenderness 
'· Foul smelling amnietio fluid history 

3. The diagnosis &f maternal ohorioamnionitis requires the newborn to be admitted to tho Neonatal 
Intensive Care Unit (~llCU) for observation, lab draws, and antibietio administration. 
a. The nurse oaring for the newborn shall notify the newborn provider and prepare the 

newborn for transpert to the NICU. 

F. FORMS: 
1. lntrapartum GB:> Prevention and Newborn Follow up Algorithm 

380



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
GBS Prevention and Treatment in Labor and Newborn Follow-Up 
Page 4 of 4 

GoE. RELATED DOCUMENT(S) 
1. Patient Care Services Care of the Newborn Standardized Procedure 
2. WNS Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines Procedure 
3. Proposed Neonatal Management for Isolated Maternal Fever, Suspected Triple I or 

Confirmed Triple I 
64. Features of Isolated Maternal Fever and Triple I with Classification 

l=l.F. REFERENCE(S):-b!S+ 
1. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and American College of Obstetricians and 

Gynecologists (AGOG). 20172. Guidelines for Perinatal Care. S'h Ed. Washington D.C. 
"72. ACOG (2020) Committee Opinion: Number 797. Preventions of Group B Streptococcal 

Early-Onset Disease in Newborns. 
2. A/\P Committee Polioy Statement (2011 ). Reoommondations f-Or tho Prevention of Perinatal 

Group B Streptoooooal (GBS) Disease. Podiatries (ISSN ~lumbers: Print 0031 4005) 
3. /\GOG (April 2011) Committee Opinion: ~lumber 485. Prevention of Early Onset Group B 

Streptoooooal Disease in ~lewborns 
3. Baker, C.J. (2018) Up to Date. Neonatal group B streptococcal disease: Prevention 
4. Puopolo KM, Lynfield R, Cummings JJ, AAP COMMITTEE ON FETUS AND NEWBORN, 

AAP COMMITTEE ON INFECTIOUS DISEASES. Management of Infants at Risk for Group 
B Streptococcal Disease. Pediatrics. 2019;144(2): e20191881 

45. Schrage. S. et al: Prevention of Perinatal Group B Streptococcal Disease: Revised Guidelines 
from CDC. MMWR, 2010; 59 (No RR 10): November 19, 2010. 

&.-6. Tita, /\. T. N. & Andrews, W. W. (2010) Management of Glinioal Ghorioamnionitis. Glinioal 
Porinatology, 37: 339 354. 

381



ISSUE DATE: 02/03 

~~ Tri-City Medical Center 
Oceanside, California 

WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES (WNS) 

SUBJECT: Hearing Screening Program: 
Newborn and Infants 

REVISION DATE: 06/03, 02/07, 02/08, 05/09, 07/09, POLICY NUMBER: 6385-100 
04/09, 06/11, 10/13, 6/13, 06/14, 02/18 

Department Approval: 
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval: 
Department of Pediatrics Approval 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

Q2/t306/22 
n/a 
n/a 

05m08/22 
n/a 

11/22 
oomo9122 
Q+J.:1.3 n/a 
07/18 

1. To identify infants with possible hearing loss, Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) will provide 
Newborn Hearing Screening Program services (NHSP) in accordance with: 
a. California Children's Services (CCS) NHSP. 
b. Health & Safety Code 123975. 
c. Article 6.5 (commencing with Section 124115) of Chapter 3, Part 2 of Division 106 of the 

Health & Safety Code. 
2. All newborns and infants who are admitted to Women's and Newborn Services (WNS) at Tri

City Medical Center (TCMC) will have a hearing screen done prior to discharge unless a 
newborn hearing screening waiver is signed by the parent or guardian. Parents of infants 
admitted to the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) may only waive JIJ.l=l&-screening for 
religious reasons. 

3. Newborn Hearing Screening (NHS) will be available, as needed via pager 24 hours a day/ 
seven days a week/365 days a year. 

4. NHS may be provided by a contract agency. 
5. The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and NHSP or its designee will be notified 

a. Of any changes in the use of a contract agency. 
b. Of any other changes to the program, including but not limited to the director. 
c. A hospital designee The hearing screen ceerElinater will inform the Seuth 12astern 

Hearing Coordination Center (HCC) regarding a change in-to the program director. 

B. STAFF AND PROGRAM: 
1. The director for the hearing screen program will be the Elirecter Director of WNS or the-a 

designee, who is a registered nurse employed by Tri-City Medical Center. The director is 
responsible for the following: 
a. Oversight for the operation and management of the program. 
b. Coordination of all services related to the program. 
c. Staff training and supervision of the individuals performing the screening. 

i. Staff will be selected in accordance with state and regulatory standards. 
ii. Records of staff annual competency validation and training will be maintained ifl 

WNS at Tri City Medical Center.& accessible through Human Resources. 
d. Previding weekly, menthly, anEl annualEnsure -reports requested by DHCS regarding 

the number sf infants screened and the number sf infants whe pass er Els net pass the 
examare provided timely" 

382



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 2 of 9 

e. Oversight of gstaff, parent, & physician education. 
f. Ensure Ensuring follow-up for infants requiring referral is completed" 
g. Ensure P11articipatieffe in, or send a designee to, hearing coordination center semi

annual meetings. 
2. The medical director of the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (who is a CCS-paneled Neonatologist) 

provides medical direction and oversight of the program in collaboration with the director. 
3. A CCS-paneled consulting audiologist is available to: 

a. Review and approve, in collaboration with the medical director, the hearing screening 
program for newborns and infants at TCMC. 

b. Provide ongoing assessment and evaluation of the program at least annually. 
c. Inspect and approve newborn hearing screen equipment. 
d. Review and sign (per an addendum) all policies and procedures. 

4. The Hearing :>oreen Coordinator: 
a. Is aooountable to the direotorldesignated RN. 
b. Is responsible for the daily operations of the program. 
o. Is the data manager. 
d. Provides soreener training and maintains dooumentation of training at TCMC. 
e. Ensures sta# is available to perform testing 24 hours a day, 7 days per weel<, 365 days 

per year. 
f. Monitors and orders supplies. 
g. Provides data reports to the direotor and Infant Data Management Services 

(IDMS)/designee, monthly, quarterly, and annually as required by !Re DHCS/NHSP. 
h. Maintains hearing screening logs, chocks, reconciles/updates DMS birth log for both tho 

newborn and NICU units. 
&.4. The hearing screen technicians will: 

a. Maintain screening log with patient informa\;,on, correct and legible. 
~a. Have had documented training and competency validation in the use of the hearing 

screening equipment and rationale for the program. 
&.-b. Provide hearing screening for all screen eligible newborns and infants at Tri City Medical 

Center.TCMC. 
~c. Contact all families of newborns and infants discharged prior to screening and schedule 

an appointment within four weeks following discharge (if not completed by the 
coordinator). 

6"d. Complete all associated paperworlmecessary documentation in the electronic health 
record (EHR); including: and refer to RN to provide educational materials to parents or 
provide educational information to parents. 
f. Note the fellowing in the patient record: 
i. Test type 
ii. Results 
iii. Date 
w-,..--The Primary Care Provider (PCP) shall obtain written hearing screen results in 

the infant's medical record. 
Y7iv. Technician's signature. 

e. Inform RN of screening results & any questions parents/guardians may have. 
g. or physioian of any questions parents may have. 
f. Document all required information on Infant Data Management Services (IDMS) 

website or fax when the website system is down or per DHCS' specifications" 
g. Provide data reports to the director and IDMS/designee, monthly, quarterly, and/or 

annually as required by the DHCS/NHSP. 
h. Reconciles/updates data entered into IDMS with birth logs for both the newborn 

and NICU units. 
R-ci. Monitor and order supplies. 

C. STAFF COMPETENCY VALIDATION: 

383



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 3 of 9 

1. 

2. 

d. 

4. 

a. 

3. 

The hearing screen coordinator and technician will have documented training and competency 
validation in: 
a. The use of the hearing screening equipment. 
b. Rationale for the program. 
Competency shall meet criteria as established by the NHSP and will be conducted annually. 
;<.,a. Employee's annual competency shall be documented in the employee file and 

maintained by Tri-City Medical Center. 
Training will inolude 1-vatohing a video, taking an eJCam, observing a hearing screen and doing a 
return demonstration successfully in the presence of the instructor. 
Additionally, the coordinator will document periodic random shocking of technicians performing 
the test. 
Employee's annual competency shall be documented in the employee file and maintained by 
Tri City Medical Center. 
Education: 
&.-a. Hearing screening technicians may attend semi-annual meeting. 
a. Participation in semi annual meetings with Hearing Coordination Center. 

i. Hearing screening coordinator or designee will attene one semi annual meeting. 
ii. Hearing screening technicians may attene semi anntial meeting. 

D. EQUIPMENT: 
1. Tri City Medical Cenler'sTCMC's newborn hearing screening program is performed using FDA

approved evoked potential testing, fscreening automated auditory brainstem response (AABR) 
that detects a mild (30-40 dB) hearing loss in infants and newborns. 

2. Use of screening equipment shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's operating literature 
and stated norms. 

3. The equipment performs a probe calibration in each ear prior to each AABR test. 
4. The Coordinator/Ttechnician will validate calibration prior to each screening. If self-calibration is 

not complete, testing will not be performed. 
5. TCMC's biomedical department will do an initial and annual calibration on all equipment 

(preventative equipment maintenance) used for the screening. 
6. Records regarding validation of preventative equipment maintenance will be maintained in the 

biomedical department. 
7. The director will be notified of completion of the annual validation. 
8. The manufacturer of the equipment will also do testing once per year. Tri-City Medical Center's 

biomedical department will coordinate this equipment calibration and maintain the equipment 
records. 

9. In the event of primary equipment failure, the hearing screen coordinator technician will 
arrange back up equipment from the manufacturer. If the backup/loaner equipment is not 
available within 24-hours the HCC will be notified of the equipment failure. 

1 Q. The equipment will be stored in the maternal ohild health services unit when not in use. 

E. SUPPLIES: 
1. The IDM&-Department of Health Care services or its designee will approve all brochures and 

equivalent materials. 
2. The Hearing Screen Coordinator technicians areis responsible for maintaining supplies and for 

ensuring that all disposables supplies are not reused. 

F. MEDICAL AND NURSING STAFF EDUCATION: 
1. Physician information will be disseminated by the NICU Medical Director to the medical staff by 

committee meetings and written correspondence. 
2. Women's and Newborn Services (WNS) clinical and medical staff providing care for pregnant 

women and infants shall be in-serviced at a minimum of annually, regarding the newborn 
hearing screen program. 

3. The program director/ designee will maintain minutes of all educational offerings in the WNS 
department to be provided annually as a minimum. 

384



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 4 of 9 

G. PATIENT EDUCATION: 
1. The hearing screen program is reviewed during maternity tours and during the admission 

process. 
2. Informational literature specific to the program is placed in admission packets. The RN will 

review the information with the parent/guardian and document the education in the EHR. 
3. RNs will review "ages and stages" with parents prior to discharge. 
4. The hearing screen technician shall inform each parent of the opportunity to have a hearing 

screen, and the methodology of administration of the exam. 
5. Following the exam the hearing screen technician may provide scripted information to parents if 

their infant successfully passes the hearing screen. 
6. The hearing screen technician will notify the RN of all screening results, aA)'-Waivesf or refers 

and the registered nurseRN will discuss these with infant's parents. Written material will also be 
provided. 

fr.7. The Department of Healthcare Services or it's designee will approve all brochures and 
equivalent materials. 

6. Participation in semi annual meetings with Hearing Coordination Center. 
a. Hearing screening coordinator or designee will attend one semi annual meeting. 
b. Hearing screening technicians may attend semi annual meeting 

H. NEWBORN HEARING SCREENING: 
1. Identification of Infants: 

i±,---Hearing screen staff will review the daily census to identify new infants who have not 
been screened. 

b. For tho infant in NICU, the neonatologist will order the hearing screening when the infant 
i&-medically stable andlor age apprepria.\e. 

c. Infants transferred out of ~llCU to another facility will recoive a hearing screen prior to 
transfer, if medically stable. 
&..a. Any transfers to other facilities must be entered into DMS website within 24 hours or 

faxed when the website system is down. 
2. Consent: 

a. The information pacl<ets given to parents en the postpartum and ~JICU contain 
information about the hearing screening process and is given le the parent/guardian by 
the registered nurse. 

&..a. Parent/guardians cGonsent for the hearing test is achieved throughwhen -!Re-signing 
efthe Conditions of Admission. felle"ved by ,'.dmissien Orders fer Ne>Nborn Nursery. 

&.-b. If the parent/guardian wishes to refuse screening they must sign a waiver 
form.Waiver form fer refusing screening will be obtained from the parent or guardian of 
the infant. 

&..c. The waiver needs ts be signed by the parent or guardian and then witnessed by RN and 
sareeniAg teohniaian. 
i. If the parent/.guardian refuses testing, the The RN registered nursewill provide 

additional education if the parent/guardian wishes to refuse testing and 
provide the appropriate brochure from the NHSP. should further educate the 
family, and if screening is still refused, the waiver shall be signed. 

ii. The RN will notify the pediatrician/neonatologist of the refusal. 
0-,111. The RN will document the refusal in the EHR. 

f. The '.Vaiver form will be dooumented as part sf the infant's medical reoords. 
3. Performing the screen: 

3.a. Well newborn hearing screening(s) will take place at the mother's bedside. 
a. Maternal child health services: 

i. ~lowborn hearing screening(s) will take place at the mothers bedside if conditions allow 
or in the newborn hearing soreening room. 

b. Neonatal intensi•;e oare unit: 

385



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 5 of 9 

,,,__ __ ,NICU Nnewborn screening(s) will be performed in a quiet environment. and as olosc to 
disohar§c as 13ossiblc. 

o. A lo§ of all sorccns 13crferrncd will be maintained for tho newborn mirscry and in NIGU. 
&..b. Infants with unilateral atrcsia and/or rniorotia shall have test done on the dcvolo13od car, 

then shall be referred to Children's /\udiolo§y Glinio for a diat;inostio evaluation. Infants 
with unilateral or bilateral atresia, and/or microtia will be screened on the developed 
ear and then shall be: 
i. Referred to Diagnostic services at a CCS-approved Type C Communication 

Disorder Center (CDC) location or insurance equivalent as soon as possible. 
ii. Assisted in completing the CCS application form. 
iii. Referred to Early start (km# 1 9113 448 4880) utilizing the early start referral 

form- atrcsia infants only. 
&.-c. Infants who do not pass the hearing screen in each car shall be retested in both cars 

prior to discharge. 
i. The discharge RN will ensure the rcscreon is completed prior to discharge. The 

need for the rcscrcon will be handed off in report to ensure it is done prior to 
discharge. 

4. Notification of results Results, Documentation & Follow-up: 
a. The hearing screen technician may provide scripted information to parents if their infant 

successfully passes the hearing screen. 
b. The hearing screen technician will notify the RN of any waivers or refers. 
c. A registered nursoAn RN will notify, document and educate the parents of hearing 

screen results. The ages and stages will be reviewed with parents by RN and education 
documented. The hearing screen technician may provide scripted information to parents 
if their infant successfully passes the hearing screen. Tho registered nurse will be 
notified by \ho hearing sorccn \oohnioian of any 'Naiver or refer. 

d. Appropriate NHSP brochures (pass, refer, waive, or refer to diagnostic) will be 
given to parent/guardian. 

e. If the parent/guardian has additional questions the physician will be notified. 
f. All hearing screen result printouts will be maintained in the medical record. 
g. If the infant refers, an appointment will be made prior to discharge with an 

outpatient provider, (i.e. TCMC) to take place within two weeks of discharge and 
no later than four weeks after discharge. 
i. The parent/guardian will be provided the date, time, location and contact 

number for the follow-up appointment in writing. 
a. If \ho infant refers, an a1313ointmcn\ will lJo made with an outpatient 13rovidor, (i.e. 

TGMG) to \al<o 13laoo within two wocl<s of discharge. 
ii. The registered nurse will notify tho infant's 13aronts of the date, time, location, 

contact number The RN will educate them regarding theand tho importance 
for-of follow-up screening. 

iii. The follow-up appointment information will be documented in the medical 
record. 

lhh. The following will be obtained on all infants with a "refer" result: 
i. Primary contact information - verification of parent/legal guardian address and 

phone number). 
ii. Secondary contact information - obtain name/address/phone number for an 

additional person not living with the family if possible. 
iii. PCP 
iihiv. The parent/legal guardian shall be provided with a contact number for the 

newborn hearing screen program, and shall be instructed to inform the hearing 
screen coordinator/technician for: 
1) Changes in contact phone number and/or address 
.:l-12) The need to reschedule appointment 
2) Tho need to reschedule ap13ointmcnt 

386



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 6 of 9 

c. Appropriate NHSP brochures (pass, refer, waive, or refer to diagnostic) will be given to 
parent. 

d. The registered nurse will ferv.•ard any (luestions they cannot answer to the physiGian. 
e. /\II hearing screen result printouts will be maintained in the medical record. 
i. The newborn's primary care provider (PCP) will have access to the electronic medical 

record to review results. The PCP will Be-also be informed of screening waivers, 
missed testsscreenings, passes or refers by mail. The PCP will be informed of 
necessary follow-up at the time of results notification. 
i. Notification of refers, a missed screening, or waive of screening will be 

included in the newborn record. 
f. ~Jotificatien cf pass, refer, er waiver ef hearing tests is included in the newborn record. 
§. The hearing screen technician will write the date, time, and location of the fellow up 

screen appointments (if needed). ~Jotification will be sent to the primer; care provider 
from the coordinator within one wee I< of any infants that REFER, including any re(luired 
follow up. 

h. Infants who do not pass the hearin@ screen in each ear shall be retested in both ears 
prior to discharge. 
i. The discharge R~J will ensure the rescreen is completed prior to discharge. The 

need for the rescreen will be handed off in report to ensure it is done prior to 
discharge. 

i. Infants with unilateral or bilateral atresia, and/or microtia shall be: 
i. Referred to Diagnostic services as soon as possibl&.-
ii. Assisted in completing the CCS application form. 
iii. Referred to Early start (falftl 1 916 445 4550) utilizing the early start referral 

form atrosia infants enly. 
j. If tho infant refers, an appointment 'Nil'. be made with an outpatient previder, (i.e. TCMC) 

to tal<e place within two weeks of discharge. 
I<. The hearing screen technician will schedule tho referral appointment prior to the infant's 

discharge. Tho appointment will be within two wool<s of discharge if possible and no later 
than four weeks after discharge. Parents will be given written information regarding 
appointment date/time/location/contact number. Document parent's receipt of 
appointment information in tho medical record. 

I. Tho following will be obtained on all infants with a "refer" result: 
i. Primary contact information verification of parent/legal guardian address and 

phone number). 
ii. Secondary contact information obtain name/address/phone number fer an 

additional person not living with the family if possible. 
iii. Tho parent/legal guardian shall be provieod with a contact number for tho 

newborn hearing screen program, and shall be instructed to inform the hoarin@ 
screen coordinator/technician for: 
1) Changes in contact phone number and/or address 
2) Tho need to reschedule appointment 

m. Tho primary care provider will be notified of tho re screening provider and appointment 
time. Information will be documented in the medical record fer missed screens. 

j. If a screen is missed: 
i. It should be documented in the EHR. 
ii. An outpatient appointment should be scheduled to be completed within 

four weeks of discharge. The appointment date and time should be 
documented in the medical record. 

fl.iii. Schedulin@ a hearing screen for infants who are missed is done by theThe 
hearing screen coordinator/ techniciantechnician will make -lly-at least three 
good faith attempts via the following to schedule missed screenings and 
record9G the attempted contacts in the medical records: 
h-1) Telephone call 
ih-2) Registered letter written to the family of missed event 

387



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 7 of 9 

lih3) Letter to the Primary Care Physician about the missed event and follow 
up information. 

o. Otiteiatient Provider (i.e. TCMC) or Tyeie C CDC Provider Y«ill be notified of ineiatient 
restilts and seieoial needs (i.e. rnonolingtial). 

I. Special Considerations - NICU PatientsNeONATAb INTeNSl\'e CARE! UNIT: 
1. All infants admitted or transferred into the NICU shall have an Automated Auditory Brainstem 

Response (AABR) hearing screen when the infant's medical condition warrants and as close to 
discharge as possible. 

2. Infants transferred from mother baby unit to the NICU shall be screened in the NICU prior to 
discharge- whether or not they have been previously screened. 

3. If the infant does not pass the initial screening in each ear, the infant shall be re-screened in 
both ears prior to discharge. 

4. Validity of hearing screening results is limited to 7 days. The infant needs to be re-screened 
prior to discharge if hospitalization continues greater than 7 days after the most recent screen. 

5. Any infants six months corrected age or older at time of discharge shall be scheduled for a C 
Cornrntinioative Disorders Center (C CDC) diagnostic evaluation at a type C CDC. 

6. Infants transferred from the NICU to another facility will receive a hearing screen prior to 
transfer, if medically stable. If the infant/newborn is transferred before being medically stable 
(screenable), newborn hearing screening shall be included in the plan of care on the transfer 
record. 
a. Any infants transferred to another facility must be entered into the OMS website 

within 24 hours (or faxed if the system is down). 
6. Any transfers to other faoilities rnust be enteroEI into DMg website 1Nithin 24 hotirs or 

falmEI when the 'Neboite systern is Elown. 
7. Infants transferred back to TCMC NICU from another the facility will have the-a hearing screen 

as close to discharge as eiosoible.prior to discharge. 
8. If a NICU infant refers, the hearing screen coorElinator or technician will: 
9. gcheEltile an aeieiointrnent with an otiteiatient eiroviEier (i.e. TCMC) within 2 4 weel<s of discharge 

a. /\ccorEling to the Neonatologist orEiers: scheElule Schedule an outpatient re-screen, or 
schedule a diagnostic evaluation with a CCS-approved Type C Communication 
Disorders Center based on neonatologist's orderso 

b. gcheEitile the aeieiointrnent as soon as eiossible after Eiischarge. 
c. The fellow UFJ apeiointrnent date, tirne, and location shall be docurnented in the eiatient's 

rnedical record and IDMg website. 
b. For infants with orders to follow up with A-a CCS-approved Type C CDC or equivalent 

facility approved by the infant's insurance, assist families in completing a CCS 
application, complete request for services, and a copy of screen results shall be 
documented in the medical record, sent to the C CDC audiologist and sent to the 
appropriate CCS office. Family will be provided with written information regarding the 
referral or an appointment date/time/location if obtained. 

fh.c. Communicate any special needs of the family to the Type C CDC provider. 

J. REPORTING AND DATA MANAGEMENT: 
1. The hospital, as a certified inpatient and outpatient infant hearing screening provider shall report 

to the IDMS or its designee, data on all infants receiving neonatal services in a format and 
frequency specified by IDMS. 
a. The hearing screen coordinator shall:The hearing screen technicians shall: 
a. Oversee eirograrn fer accuraoy, incltiding restilts fer infants receiving newborn hearing 

screening services in the Mother/Elaby Unit anEI the ~JICU. 
b. /\II infants screened will be corneiared to all adrnissions to the tinit. Validation of 

hoaringValidate screening will be corneiarod toall TCMC deliveries and outside 
admissions are screened and the data entered is complete and accurate. 

b. fer corn13leteness anEI accuracy of Elata. 

388



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 8 of9 

c. Review, reconcile and update OMS. Verifyioation that infant reporting that are entered 
into OMS for the f-Ollowing inJ'antsthe following infants are entered into the IDMS: 
i. Infants who pass screening 
ii. Infants who did not pass screening. 
iii. Infants who did not receive screening. 
iv. Parents who waived screening 
v. Infants transferred to another facility. 
vi. Expired infants. 
vii. Infants with Atresia and/or microtia, Bilateral or Unilateral 
vm. Screening not medically indicated (NMI) determined by a physician. 

¥iikl Provide the Hearing Coordination Center with the total number of Jive births by the 
1 O'h day of the month. 

d. Transmitting a monthly report to the South Eastern Hearing Coordination Center 
(SECHCC) in the DHCS approved f-Ormat that inoludes the f-Ollowing (f-Or both WMS and 
NICU aouity) no later than the 1 G"' day after the ending month: 

i. The total number of inJ'ants who left the ~JICU during the reporting month. 
ii. The total number of live births during the reporting month. 
iii. The total number of inJ'ants soreened. 
iv. The total number of infants who pass the inpatient sore~ 
v. The total number of infants who refer. 
vi. The total number of inJ'ants who expire. 
vii. Tho total number of waives. 
viii. Tho total number of ~JMI. 
iK. Tho total number of missed. 

o. Data U!J 1.oads and archi•.'al storage 
i. 1Nill be managed by modioal rooords Hearing soreening results and data will be 

entered by toohnioian. 
ii. Hearing soreening baol<up and arohived data will be stored in appropriate 

manner as determined by Tri City Healthcare Distriot polioy and the direotor of 
medical records. 

f. Data purge 
i. Data will be purged annually from the Soreening devioe (in aooordanoe with the 

manuJ'acturor's instruotions). 

K. QUALITY ASSURANCE: 
1. The hearing soreen program directorJdesignee, medioal director, and hearing soreon program 

ooordinator will meet at least semi annually. 
2. Direotor/designee, medioal direotor, or hearing soreen program ooordinator will partioipate in 

semi annual meetings with the Hearing Coordination Center. 
a. Mursing, hearing soroen technicians and medical staff will have ne•Nborn hearing education at 

least once per year. 
4. The ooordinator V.'ill provide quality assurance, with reports submitted to the direotor. 
~1. The ooordinator and director will monitor quarterly screening rates, with target goals being: 

a. A minimum of 98% of newborns born in the hospital are provided hearing screening prior 
to discharge. 

b. 100% of NICU infants receive a hearing screen prior to discharge. 
c. Expeoted refer rate less than or equal to§% and greater than and equal to 1 %. There is 

no greater than a 5% refer rate and no less than a 1 % refer rate. 
d. Corrective measures if targets are not achieved, as evaluated by the director, include the 

following: 
i. Checking equipment/recalibration. 
ii. Observing screener's -competencyby the Coordinator. 
iii. Checking compliance with policies and procedures. 

389



Women and Newborn Services (WNS) 
Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants 
Page 9 of 9 
L. REFERENCE(S): 

1. American Academy of Pediatrics/AGOG. (~2017). Guidelines for Perinatal Care, +"'-B'h 
Edition. 

2. California Children's Services Standards Chapter 335, statutes of 2006 
3. California Health and Safety Code, Section 123975 
4. Joint Committee on Infant Hearing (2007). Year 2007 Position Statement; Principles and 

Guidelines for Early Detection and Intervention Programs. 
5. Department of Health Care Services (2008) AB 2651 amended Section 124116.5. 
6. California Children's Services Manual of Procedures, Chapter 3 - Provider Standards, Infant 

Hearing Screening Services, 3.42.1. Revision September 2016 

390



(&J\ 
~ l Tri-City Medical Center 

Oceanside, California 

WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: 10/94 

REVISION DATE(S}: 01/00, 06/03, 03/06, 09/09, 04/10, 
06/13, 02/17, 06/19 

Women and Newborn Services Department Approval: 
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval: 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. DEFINITIONS: 

SUBJECT: Neonatal Delivery Room 
Attendance 

06m07/22 
Q2/W08/22 
04#908/22 

n/a 
05/4910/22 
~11/22 

n/a 
06/19 

1. The Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) resuscitation team consists of: 
a. The Neonatologist or Allied Health Professional (AHP) 
b. NICU Registered Nurse (RN) 
c. Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP) 
d. Additional personnel, including other RNs may be included depending on the 

maternal/neonatal condition. 

B. PURPOSE: 
1. To provide guidelines for neonatal delivery attendance for both vaginal and cesarean section 

deliveries. 

C. POLICY: 
1. At every delivery there will be at least one RN whose primary responsibility is the newborn and 

who is skilled to initiate resuscitation per the Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) guidelines. 
The RN will initiate the steps of the NRP algorithm, as appropriate until the NICU resuscitation 
team arrives. In cases of multiple births, one RN is present for each newborn. 

2. A multidisciplinary NICU resuscitation team is immediately available at all times to perform a 
complete resuscitation, including endotracheal intubation, use of medications and intravenous 
line placement. 

3. Verbal Situation, Baol~ground, Assessment, Reoommendation (SBAR) oommunioation of 
maternal history and risk factors will be provided by tho delivery R~J to the attending neonatal 
teafll.,L& D personnel will communicate the following information to the team. 
a. Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) 5th Edition "Four pre-birth questions" 

i. Gestational Age 
ii. Amniotic fluid color 
iii. Additional risk factors 
iv. Umbilical cord management plan 

~b. Any other pertinent maternal/neonatal medical history 
4. In unforeseen emergencies, the designated NICU team will be notified to respond immediately. 

This emergency response is triggered by dialing 66 and activating a Godo CalebTeam NICU. 
4.i. Refer to Team NICU Response Plan Please refer to the Code Caleb 

Standardized Procedure. 

D. TRANSITION RN ATTENDANCE AT DELIVERIES 

391



Women and Newborn Services 
Neonatal T earn Attendance at Deliveries Policy 
Page 2 of 3 

1. Spontaneous Vaginal Delivery 
a. The transition registered nurse (RN) will attend all low-risk, spontaneous vaginal 

deliveries. 
b. Vaginal deliveries with identified risk factors (as listed below) will require the NICU 

resuscitation team. 
2. Cesarean Section 

a. The transition RN and the RCP will attend the scheduled low-risk cesarean section 
deliveries. 

b. The transition RN and RCP will attend the unscheduled low risk cesarean section 
deliveries. Neonatologist will be available as needed. 

c. Cesarean sections with risk factors will be attended by the NICU resuscitation team 

E. NICU RESUSCITATION TEAM ATTENDANCE AT DELIVERIES: 
1. The team will be alerted before delivery for the following risk factors: 

a. Anticipated delivery of less than 36 weeks gestation or 2! 42 weeks gestation 
b. Fetal heart rate patterns suggesting hypoxia (Category Ill and some Category II 

patterns) 
c. Placental abnormalities (e.g. placenta previa, vasa previa, abruption) 
d. Fetal anomalies, if it is suspected that resuscitative measures may be needed (e.g. 

pulmonary hypoplasia, diaphragmatic hernia) 
e. Multiple gestations 
f. Emergency cesarean delivery or general anesthesia 
g. Operative vaginal delivery (e.g. vacuum assist, forceps) 
h. Prolapse of the umbilical cord 
i. Suspected hydrops 
j. Macrosomic fetus and/or potential for shoulder dystocia 

2. The maternal primary care provider/Obstetrician/Anesthesiologist GR-or delivery RN may 
request the presence of the NICU resuscitation team at any delivery. 

F. DELIVERY ATTENDANCE RESPONSIBILITIES: 
1. An infant warmer with all supplies for a neonatal resuscitation should be available in the delivery 

room. 
2. The labor and delivery (L&D) RN has the primaryis responsibility responsible for ensuring all 

having the neonatal resuscitation supplies are available in the delivery room (including an 
infant warmer) and checked for function in the delivery room prior to delivery. Transition RN 
additionally verifies supply availability and function if time allows prior to delivery. 

3. 11'.'hen the request for neonatal attendanoe at delivery is made, the following information shall be 
oommunioated to the transition and/or NICU RN, as available: 
a. Whether the infantfs) already delivered 
b. Expeoted gestational age 
o. Color of the amniotic fluid 
d. l=low many babies are expected 
e. Any risk faotors 
f. Looation of the delivery 

4.-3. Prior to delivery, +the appropriate neonatal team is then-assembled based on the-perinatal risk 
factors. 

5. +he L&D RN shall provide stJ#icient time fur the transition RN er NICU RN to arrive and cheek 
equipment as possible. 

&.-4. Upon arrival for the delivery, the transition RN or NICU resuscitation team shall identify 
themselves to the L&D team and patient/family, as the situation allows.o 

+,5. The RN or MD!Af#:! is responsible for assigning and documenting the newborn's APGAR 
scores. 

392



Women and Newborn Services 
Neonatal Team Attendance at Deliveries Policy 
Page 3 of 3 

&6. The transition RN or NICU RN shall receive retrieve the newborn identification bands from the 
b&D RN and place them on the baby per the Newborn Identification Banding & Electronic 
Alarm Device Procedure .• 

9.7. The transition RN or NICU RN will report off to the b&Qtransition RN or designee prior to 
leaving the birthing area . 

.:i-0.8. At no time will a newborn be left without an RN designated to provide care for him/her. 
11. ~JICU Rosuscitation Toam: 

a. The NICU resuscitation team shall be identified at the start of each shift. 
9.9. The L&D charge RN will communicate with the NICU charge RN throughout the shift to ensure 

the team is alerted to patients that may require the presence of the NICU resuscitation team at 
delivery. 
c. Management of the ~JICU resuscitation team shall belong to the neonatologist!Al=IP, and 

includes coordination, prniormance, and delegation of activities. 
d. In the event sf multiple births (i.e. twins, triplets), the neenatolegistJ/\l=IP sheuld verify 

that adequate resources are available le previEfe adequate and complete resuscitation of 
each infant. 

e. The Neenatologist!Al=IP will ensure that there is communication with the parents about 
the infant's cendition . 

.:hh10. Cesarean section considerations: 
a. It is required that the neonatal team (the transition RN or NICU RN and RCP) be present 

for the surgical time out process to ensure immediate availability for the delivery. 
b. The RN/NeonatologistlAl=IP will receive the infant via sterile technique from the 

Obstetrician and . This will require the RNl~leonatologist!Al=IP to don a sterile gown, 
sterile gloves, and the use of a sterile drape to receive the infant from the surgical-fiel4 
Once the infant is received, the RN/Neonatologistl/\l=IP will bring the newborn to the 
infant warmer/high care bed for initial evaluation and stabilization. 

c. Maternal newborn skin-to-skin in the operating room may be initiated, providing the 
neonate and mother are stable. 

G. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Documentation of all assessments and interventions shall be completed in the Electronic Health 

Record by the RN and/or licensed professional performing the interventions/assessments. 
2. The documentation shall include: 

a. The time the transition RN and/or NICU team arrived. 
b. What interventions were performed. 
c. The condition of the infant and response to interventions. 
d. Use of the Neonatal Resuscitation Record, if indicated. 

H. REFERENCE(S)RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. Patient Care Services Procedure: Newborn Identification Banding & Electronic Alarm 

Device 
2. Patient Care Services Policy: Team NICU Response Plan 

M.-1. REFERENCE($): 
1. American Heart Association and American Academy of Pediatrics (2016). Neonatal 

Resuscitation Textbook: 7th Ed. Washington, D.C., Library of Congress. 
2. American Academy of Pediatrics (2010). Special Report- Neonatal resuscitation: 2010 American 

Heart Association guidelines for cardiopulmonary resuscitation and emergency cardiovascular 
care. Pediatrics, 126 (5), 1400-1411. 

&.3. Weiner, G.M. (Ed). (2021 ). Textbook of neonatal resuscitation (B'h ed.). American Academy 
of Pediatrics. 

~ Besuner, P. (2007). Association of \6.'omen's l=lealth, Obstetric and Neonatal ~lurses 
(/\VVl=ION~J): Templates for Protocols and Procedures for Maternity aervices (2nd Edition). 
Washington, DC 

393



~~ 
Women and Newborn Services Neonatal Intensive 

Tri-City Medical Center Care Unit (NICU) 

PROCEDURE: NEWBQRN MEARING SGREENING: INPA+IEN+ AN9 QY+PA+IEN+ MEARING 
SGREENING gs; NEJA!BQRN AN9 INs;AN+S YSING BIQbQGIG EQYIPMEN+ 

Purpose: +e es!aslish a flFOGess lo offeF aRS flFO\<ise ReWSOFR heaFiR§ SGFOeRiR§S lo all R9WSOFRS 
· :~ · " • · • r • • " I ' ,..... I 1~:+ ... ~., , .. . -

Supportive Data: l=leaFiR§ 13Fesleffis aFe !y13ioally Rot se!eo!es uR!il a ohils ReFffially leaFRs s13eeoh, al !we oF 
!hrne yeaFs of a§e. Oe!eoliR§ hemiR§ 13msleffis al sirth ffiay helfl weveR! !he eoouFFeRoe 
.r_I . .I -' ._, I.I l.L : .... _,_,.~IL -•:+n ....... 

- ,_ 
'' .. . - " .. . . . . 

~ 
,... ,.._,...,... ... _ _._,_ 'c;fi ,. - .,, Delete- covered in ., _,,_, . . .. ... . . ... . ... -· 

" .. ... ~ Hearing Screening Equipment Biele§io AsaeF SoFeeRiR§ ldRil 
Oispesasle em li13s Program: Newborn & - .r /\, -' " ,,..!'"- .~ ' 

Infants & 
A r1. PRIS PRQGE9YRl5: 

Manufacturer's A - ' . . . -· ' . 
' -:.: 

, .. , 
- ~· "' -· ·v .. .. guidelines for SGF09R9S . 
... ' ' ·' ' ' '· ... ' .. :: : '? -

' equipment use .. .. , . 
feFwaFses 13 '!ho NICld ehaF o RUFse lo !he heaFiR J § § somoReF le se sohesules fer a 
heaFiR§ soFeeR wheR mesieally s!asle aRs 13FieF le sisohaF§e. 

El. m;s;INl+IQNS: 
1. /\.'\BR - Au!ema!es ausi!ery srniRs!effi respeRse. 

C. PRQCE9YRl5: 
1. Plug eleo!Fioal eerd ef maehiRe iR!e sesioa!es eu!let 
2. Tum system en pFOperly. 
3. LO§ ORIO the system. 
4. ER!eF pa!ieR! inferma!ioR oR !he SCREENING HOME sereen feF !he pa!ien! aseu! lo se 

soreenes, inclusiRg type ef sereeR seiRg performed. 
a. ER!eF all requiFed Rewsem 13alieR! inferffialioR. 
13. ~Joie risk fao!eFS !hat ffiay l:Je important lo have on !he !es! re13ort. 

5. Plaoo sis13osasle em lip en ear pmse ans iRsert iR iRfaR!'s ear. This is requires fer (AABR) 
soreening. EaF muffiRs may se uses leF the /\ABR !es!. 
a. PmpeF iRsertien aRs li!!iR§ of !he em prose is required feF !he aoquisi!ioR ef valid sa!a. 
13. GuiseliRes fer plaoiR§ !he eaF pFOse: 

i. Cheek Iha! !he sispesal:Jle lifl is GOA'lflle!ely ORIO !he pFOse. 
ii. The sispesasle lip sheuls se iRsertes snugly, su! Rot Goffiple!ely iR!o !he ear 

GaRah 
iii. The eRs of !he sisposasle ear lifl shouls Rel se kiRkes eF presses agaiRs! !he ear 

oanal •.vall. 
iv. If !he sisposasle lip is loo small fer the eaF GaRal, seleo! a laFgeF size lo eRsure a 

SAU§ Ii!. 
o. CoRsuo!iRg aR MBR: 

i. l\pfllY eleo!rnses aRs fl\U§ electrnses into eleotrnse yol~e: 

Pharmacy& 
Perinatal Department Medical Professional Board of 

Oepartme Department Collaborati of Therapeutic Executive 
Administra Affairs Directors 

ntReview of 08/GYN Pediatrics s Committee ti on Committee Approval ve Committee 
7/03, 

10/06, 05113, 05/14, 06/13, 06114, 
06113, 

6/07, 5108; nla nla 12113, 05118 nla 
06118, 09/22 

11122 07/18, n/a 06114, 
6/09, 6/11, 07118 

02118 

394



Women' and Newborn Services NICU 
Newborn Hearing Screening: Inpatient and Outpatient Hearing Screening of Newborn and Infants Using Biological Equipment 
Page 2 of 3 

1) ear muffins: 
a) Blue (nape of nook) 
b) White (forehead) 
o) Red (shoulder) 

ii. ear probes: 
1) Blue (13ehind left ear) 
2) VVhite (forehead) 
3) Red (13ehind right ear) 

6. Press "accept" 13utton and identify which oar is to be screened. 
a. The screening will 13egin when all protocols are in plaoo 
13. Click PAUSE; to temporarily pause screening. Click PAUae again to resume screening. 
o. Click STOP to discontinue screening if necessary 

i. The operator will have tho option to print patient reports or letters 
7. Repeat steps 4 through 6 en the other ear. 
8. If the screening needs to be repeated, follow steps 4 through 6. 

D. POST PROCE;DURE;: 
1. Remove ear probe from infant. Discard disposable tip and place probe in designated location . 
2. Print hearing screening results. 

a. Make additional copies of the hearing screening results and give to: 
i. Infant's health care pre'o'ider to 13e mailed out monthly. 
ii. Infant's parents 

3. Chart placement of results. 
a. Inpatients: 

i. Place hearing screening results in infant's hospital chart. 
b. Outpatients: 

i. Plaoo results of screening in the medical record's out box. 
4. Turn system off properly. 

a. Select E;XIT in the top right hand corner of the P.baer program screen. 
b. Select START in the lower left hand corner of the Windows main desl\lop. 
c. Select SHUT DOVl/N from the start menu. 
d. Select SHUT DOWN, clicl1 OK and wait until the 'Nindows message indicates that it is 

safe to turn the system off. 
e. Turn the power off via the power mains (refer to the operator manual). 

5. If the infant receives a PASS: 
a. The R~J shall inform the riarents that the infant riassed the screening. 
b. The hearing screener may inform the riarents that the infant riassed the screening using 

scripted language. 
6. If the infant receives a R!;;f!;;R: 

a. The hearing screener should re screen the infant. 
i. This should be done within several hours of the original screening. 

b. If the infant still received a RefeR, the infant will be scheduled to return to Tri City 
Medical Center or a certified California ~lev1born Hearing Screening Outriatient Provider 
within four weeks of discharge for an outriatient newborn hearing screening. 

e. PJ\RE;NTAL'CARE;GIVER NOTIFICATION OF RESUbTS: 
1. ~lotifioation of results 

a. A registered nurse will notify the riarents of hearing screen results. The hearing screen 
technician may rirovide scririted information to parents if their infant successfully riasses 
the hearing screen. The hearing screen technician will notify the registered nurse of any 
waiver or refer and the registered nurse will notify the infant's riarents of the date, time, 
and looation or follow up screen and the need for follow up. Written material will also be 
provided. All brochures and equivalent materials will be ariproved 13y the department of 
health care servioes or its designee. 

395



Women' and Newborn Services NJCU 
Newborn Hearing Screening: Inpatient and Outpatient Hearing Screening of Newborn and Infants Using Biological Equipment 
Page 3 of 3 

f". DOCUMENTATION, TRI CITY MEDICAL CENTER: Alb 1'1EARING SCREE~llNG RESULTS WILL 
BE MAINTP.INED IN T1'1E MEDICAL RECORD: 
1. Consenllwaiver for declination of hearing screening in the infant's chart. 

a. If the parent(s) decline the screening, they are to be given the waiver of newborn hearing 
screening brechwre, and sign ti'le verification that they have Y1aived the hearing 
screoning. 

2. Printod hoaring sorooning rosults are distributod as follows: 
a. Infant's chart 
e. Infant's paronts 
o. Infant's hoalth oars providor 

3. Infants who PASS 
a. Tho paronts are givon a hoaring sorooning pass brochure 'Nith the following information 

entered by the hearing screener: 
i. Infant's name 
ii. Dato of screening 
iii. Type of screening (ABR) circled 

4. Infants who REPER 
a. 'Noll babies: 

i. The parents are given a hearing screening refer brochure with the following 
information entered by the hearing screener: 
1) Infant's name 
2) Appointment date and time 
3) Appointment location 
4) Appointment contact pl'lone numeer 

b. NICU babies: 
i. The parents are given a hearing screening refer brochure or diagnostic hearing 

evaluation referral brochure (if determined by physician) with the following 
information entered ey the hearing screener: 
1) Infant's name 
2) Appointment date and time 
3) Appointment location 
4) Appointment oontaot number 

5. Scheduling of infants who refer: 
a. The hearing screen ooordinatorlteohnioian will schedule outpatient refer appointments 

prior to the infant's discharge or provide follow up information. 

G. DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA: 
1. Complotion of the OMS Data Entry (or fax when tho websito systom is down) is requirod for tho 

following airowmstanoos: 
a. Passed rosults 
b. Rofer results 
o. Transferred in houso (e.g. NICU) or intra facility transfers (e.g. infant is transferred to 

Children's Hospital) 
d. Discharged missed 
e. 'Jl/aived 
f. Elcpired er net medically indicated (NMI) for screening per physician determination. 

H. REFERENCl5(S): 
1. California Children's Services Manual of Procedures, Chapter 3 Provider Standards, Infant 

Hearing Screening Services, 3.42.1. September 2Q16. 
&.-1. California Children's Services Standards Chapter 335, statues of 2QQ6 

396



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Women and Newborn Services 

PROCEDURE: NliWBORN MliARING SGRliliNING: S+A+li OF GAblFORNIA RliPOR+ING 
Purpose: +e eutliRe U1e presesure reEJuire8 fer traRsFRittiRQ ~Jewbern l=leariRQ SsreeRiRQ l:lFS9FaFR 

' ~ ' ..ll_ _I ,,..' ,..J C'.'- -~ - ·•~ • I • /""". ~I• ' ,-..,... 

Suooortive Data: ~ A"IAAAI"\,-.. . - ., "-
Equipment: ~Jewbern l=leaFiRQ SsreeRiR9 MeRIRly aR8 lJIJeel,ly Repert 

NeeRatal IRleRsive CaFS URit (NICU) ~Jewbern l=leaFiRQ SsreeRiRQ MeRIRly aR8 Weekly 
Re pert 
IRfaRI RepertiRQ FerFR (IRF) 
IRfaRt Reser8 IRfeFFRatieR FeFFR (IRIF) - - - ---· 

A. PROGliLJURli: 
1. Newbern l=leaFiRQ SsrneRiRQ MeRtRly /\Rd Weekly Repert 

- .. . .. . - ~· --'- ; ..... -' ~I _._ " - , " ~ 

' - .. 
' . 

' , '"' " Delete- covered in systeFR is dewR. 
. ' " - . 

Hearing Screening .. ... _ 
" • , ' . , . , 

rnseiviRg Respital: Program: Newborn & 
2) ARy eutpatieRt SSFeeRs: 

' - ' , ~ Infants ~ 
. . .. --· -· . - , 

, - ' a) CCS ReEJuest fer SOFvise FerFR 
b) ccs ApplisatieR fer Eligibility FeFFR 

b. Weekly RepertiRg 
i. CResk !Re live birtRs eRIOFed iRte !Re IRfaRt Data ManageFReRI SeFVises (IDMS) (eF 

faxes wReR the 'Nebsite systeFR was 8evm) fFeFR !Re previeus week, seFRpare with 
!Re labeF aRB 8elivery le9, aR8 eRsure ORlry ef all FOEJUire8 8eFRegrnpRiGS ef live 
birtRs iRte !Re IDMS (eF fa)(ed wReR !Re website systeFR was sewR). 

s. MeRthly RepertiRg 
i. CResk !Re !OMS birth leg (eF !Re fa1ms if tRe website systeFR was dewR) fer !Re 

previeus FReRIR, aRB ORSUFO FRatGRiRg ef live birtR Ge URI ebtaiRed fFSFR +CMG ElirtR 
beg aR8 !RO AUFRber ef iRfaRIS eRIOFOB iRle !RO IDMS (eF fal<OB WROR !RO ·.vebsite 
systeFR was eewR). ReseRsile/update if Resessary. 

ii. TRe seFRpleted Newbern l=leaFiRg SsreeRiRg MeRIRly Repert is te be fmmd te !Re 
desigRate8 l=leaFiR9 CeeFdiRatieR CeRleF Re lateF IRaR lRe 1 Q"' day ef lRe FReRIR 
fellewiRg !Re repertiRg FRSAIR. 

2. ~JICU Newbern l=leming SsFeeniRg MeRthly /\Rs Vl/eekly Repert/fa)( TrnRsFRittal 

Review/Revi 
sion Date 

7103, 10106, 
05108 

6109, 7109, 
6111, 02/14, 

02118 

a. NICU ~Jewbern l=leariR9 SsreeRiR9 data is Feperte8 8aily (eF fa1md WROR the website 
systeFR is 8ewR) le the IDMS website, baby's inferFRatieR is entered after ssreeRiR9 but 
pFier le diSGROFge. 
i. IRslude all suppertive desuFReRtatieR: 

Department 
of OB/GYN 

nla 

1) /\Ry traRsfers FAUS! be eRtere8 wi!Rin 24 heurs ef traRsfer, RetiRg !Re 
reseiviRg hespital: 

2) Any eutpatieRI SGFSORS: 
a) CeFRpleted IRfaRI OutpatieRI RepertiRg FerFR (ORF) 

3) OutpatieRt Dia9nestis Referrals, Atresia er Misrotia: 

Perinatal Department Pharmacy & 
Medical Professional Board of 

Collaborati of 
Therapeutic Executive Administratio 

Affairs Directors 
ve Practice Pediatrics s Committee n Committee Approval Committee 

8107, 6109, 
06118, 06113, 06/14, 

9107, 6109, 
nla 12113, 05118, nla 09/22 

11122 
07118, nla 

6113, 06114, 
08122 07118 

397



Women and Newborn Services 
Newborn Hearing Screening: State Of California Reporting 
Page 2 of 2 

a) CCS Request for aervioe Form 
b) CCS /\pplicatioR fer Eligibility Form 

b. Weekly Reporting 
i. Choo!< the live births entered into the IDMS (er faxed when the website system is 

down) from the previous wool<, oompare with the labor and delivery log, and 
ensure entry of all required eemographics of live births into the IDMS (or faxoe 
when tho wol:Jsito system is down) 

o. Monthly Reporting 
i. Choo!< tho IDMS l:Jirth log (or faxed when tho website system is down) for tho 

previous month, and ensure matohing of live l:Jirth oount obtained from TCMC Birth 
Log and tho number of infants entered into tho IDMS (or faxed when tho website 
system is down). Rooonoilolupdato if nooossary. 

ii. Tho completed NICU ~lowborn l=loaring aorooning Monthly Report is to bo faJmd to 
tho designated l=loaring Coordination Center no later than tho 1 o"' day of the 
month following tho reporting month. 

3. Fai<ing of these doouments will l:Jo done aooording to Tri City l=lospital Distriot Administrative 
Polioy, Fa!dng of ,RrotosieEI Health information. 

El. REFERENGE(S): 
1. Department of l=lealth Sor.'ioes. September 2010. California Children's aer«ioes Manual of 

Prooeduros. Saoramento: Author. 
2. Department of l=lealth aervioes. (04/00) Nl=ISP Reporting Requirements Reminder. Saoramento: 

Luis Rioo, Aeling Chief 
&,1. Tri City l=losp~al Distriot Administrative Polioy, Faxing of PFOteoteEI l=lea.'lh ,'nfoFmat.'on. 

398



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Women!& and Newborn'.& Services 

PROCEDURE: OXYTOCIN ADMINISTRATIONPITOCIN ADMINISTRATION FOR INDUCTION/ 
AUGMl!NTATION OF bA80R 

Purpose: To promote safe and effective use of oxytocin for induction and augmentation of 
labor. Induction refers to the use of methods to begin labor in a woman who is not 
spontaneously laboring. Te ashie>,•e a labeF pattern that prndl!ses prngFessi\<e 
seFvisal dilatien, while ensllFing fetal and maternal safety. Augmentation refers to 
use of methods to restart or strengthen labor after it has spontaneously begun. 
lndllstien FefeFs te the Ilse ef metheds te begin laboF in a woman who is not 
spontaneollsly laboFing. Te pFomele safe and effective llse of oxytooin, and lo Oll!line 
!he nllFsin§ mana§emenl of !Re patient FeqlliFin§ oon!inllolls oiwtooin infllsion feF 
indllo!ion OF all§menlation ef laboF. TR is wooed lire is to be implemented feF all patients . " ' . -

Supportive Data: To outline a standardized approach at Tri-City Medical Center for the 
administration and management of oxytocin for labor induction and augmentation. 
lnElllo!ion is defines as tRe stimlllalion of laboF by aFlifisial means. GiPf!osin is !Re dFll§ 
llsed in !Re medisal indllstion of laboF and is also llsed to all§menl e1dstin§ oontrnstien 
patterns !Rat may net be adeqlla!e foF prn§FOssion of laboF lo inolllde !Fial of laboF afteF 
GesaFeaA oanEliElales. 

Equipment: :t-. Pre mixed, labeled ~loFmal Saline sollllion with Q1(ytooin 2Q llnits, 1QQQ ml 
ba§ (Py1ds) 

1) &-Pre-mixed, Oxytocin 30 units/500mL Normal Salinebastated RingeF's, IV 
solution bag 

2) Intravenous (IV) administration tubing (PeFllessPort less tubingEie¥ise is 
recommended) 

-IV3. Needleless assess devise 
3) §. AlaFis Infusion pump 
4) e. Color-coded Oxvtocin lbabels for •~· " .~ -'IV tubino 

A. -POLICY STATEMENT: 
The desision to allgment OF indl!Ge laboF with oxytosin shollld be made by a woman and 
heF physisian OF Certified Nl!Fse Midwife (CNM) afteF a dissllssien of Fisks, benefits, and 
optiens. 

1. The registered nurse (RN) will verify that the provider has discussed the indications and 
potential risks and benefits of induction or augmentation of labor with the use of 
oxytocin with the patient, and that her verbal consent is documented in the medical 
record. 
A signed sonsent foFm ml!st be in the medisal FeseFd. 
PFeAatal rnsoFds shollld be a•1ailable. 

1. Responsibility fer the desision to llSe mwtosin reqllirns a prnvideF orEleF. 
2. The -providerphysisian OF CNM will document the followings in the Electronic Health 

Record (EHR)e medisal FesoFd: Prnvider OF R~I mllsl evaluate patient immediately pFior to 
aElministrntion of oxytooin: 
&.a. History and Physical (H&P) 
b. Fetal presentation 

i. Cephalic presentation must be determined and documented by vaginal 
exam, Leopold's Maneuvers, and/or ultrasound on the day of induction. 

c. Pelvis is adequate for vaginal delivery 
i. May be documented on prenatal record 
ii. A previous vaginal delivery indicates a proven pelvis 

Review/Revision Department Departemtn Pharmacy and Medical Professional Board of 

Date of OB/GYN of Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs Directors 
Pediatrics Committee Committee Committee Approval 

06/94; 06/96; 04/00; 
06/09, 07/13, 06/03; 07/09; 

03/03; 05109, 06113, 04114, 06122 nla 01/15, 07/22 02115, 10/22 11122 03/15, n/a 
03/15 05/14, 03/22 

399



WemeRsWomen and NewbornChildreA's Services 
Oxytocin PftooiA..Administration For IAEl61ctioA 1 Al:l§A'leAtatioA Of Lal3or 
Page 2of10 

d. Indication for inductionn or a11gmentation 
i. May be documented on prenatal record 

e. Estimated fetal weight is less than 5000 grams (less than 4500 grams in a diabetic 
woman) 
i. May be determined by Leopold's Maneuvers and/or ultrasound 
ii. May be documented on prenatal record 

a. Cervical status, including dilation, effacement, station 
b. fetal presentation 
c. fHR assessment 
d. Uterine activity 
e. lndicatien fer exytocin use 

3. Prenatal records are available or requested from the provider/clinic. 
a. Prenatal records must be available for scheduled inductions prior to the start of 

oxytocin. 
4. An order for oxytocin must be in the- EHR medical record prior to the start of oxytocin. 

The provider or RN m11st perform the fellowing immediately prior to the initiation of an 
oxytocin inf11sion: 

Cervical examination, incl11ding Bishop score 
Fetal assessment: 

A minim11m of 31l min11tes of fetal monitoring is req11ired prior to starting 
oxytocin 

A reass11ring tracing is obtained or a BPP of 8/10 is present within 
the past 4 ho11rs, or moderate variability 
No late decelerations in the last 31l min11tes 
No more than 2 variable decelerations exceeding ell seconds and 
decreasing greater than ell bpm within the previo11s 31l min11tes prior 
to starting Pitocin inf11sion 

5. An oObstetrician (OB) able to perform anwith privileges to perform a emergency cesarean 
section must be readily available. 

6. The RN will verify and document in the EHR that all items mentioned above have been 
completed for a scheduled induction prior to starting oxytocin. 

::?r.7. The oxytocin infusion is titrated by the RN based on provider orders and the maternal 
fetal response to the medication as indicated in the procedure below. 

B. INDICATIONS AND CONTRAINDICATIONS: 
1. A scheduled induction prior tobefore 39 0/7 completed weeks of gestation must have a 

medical indication, such as: IRdications fer induction may include the fellowing: 
a. Abruptio placentae 
a,b. Chorioamnionitis 
lhc. Fetal demise 
d. Pregnancy inducedGestational hypertension 
c.e. Preeclampsia, eclampsia 
d.f. Premature rupture of membranes 
g. Maternal medical conditions (e.g. diabetes mellitus, renal disease, chronic 

pulmonary disease, chronic hypertension, antiphospholipid syndrome) 
h. Fetal compromise (e.g. severe fetal growth restriction, isoimmunization, 

oligohydramnios) 
e. Postterm pregnancy 
f. fetal compromise: 

i. Oligofiydramnies 
ii. Severe fetal wowth restriction 
iii. lsoimmuniwtion 
iv. APrevieus stillbirth 

g. Preeclampsia or eclampsia 

400



Weffi&R&Women and NewbornGRilElreA's Services 
Oxytocin PiteGiR--Administration Fer IAEl1::1stiaA 1 A1::1gmeAtatieA Of Lal:lsr 
Page 3of10 

h. Maternal medisal sondition: 
i. Diabetes mellitus 
ii. Renal disease 
iii. Chronis pulmonary disease 
iv. Chronis hypertension 

i. NOTE: Distance from hospital and history of short labor are not considered 
medical indications. Logistiss: 

i. Histor; of rapid labor. 
ii. IJistanse from tho hospital. 
Uhl. Psyshosocial indisation 

2. lndustion may be sonsiderod, but nosessitato sposial prosautions, on a case by saso basis for 
tho following sonditions: 
a. Ono or two wovious low transverse sesaroan delivery 
b. Maternal heart disease 
s. Multifotal pregnansy 
d. Polyhydramnios 
e. Presenting part al:Jove the pelvis inlet 
f. ~evere hypertension 
g. Abnormal fetal heart rate patterns not nesessitating emergent delivery 

&.-2. Contraindications to augmentation or induction include, but are not limited to: 
a. Vasa previa 
b. Complete placenta previa 
c. Non-vertex presentation (viable fetus) 
d. Umbilical cord prolapsedpresentation 
e. Prior classical uterine incision 
f. Active genital herpes infection 
Eh-g. Previous myomectomy entering the endometrial cavity 
e. Previous invasive transfundal (upper segment) uterine surgery 
f. Known lateral m<tension of the uterine incision following cesarean delivery 
g. Other maternal or fetal sondition for which spontaneous labor and vaginal delivery is 

sontraindicated 
3. Conditions that are not contraindications to augmentation or induction, but may require 

special attention include, but are not limited to: 
a. Previous cesarean birth, or history of a prior uterine scar 

i. Continuous fetal monitoring required 
ii. Use the lowest dose of oxytocin required to achieve adequate labor 

progress 
111. Oxytocin titration cannot exceed 20mU/min 

b. Category II fetal heart rate patterns 
c. Maternal heart disease 
d. Multifetal pregnancy 
e. Polyhydramnios 
f. Presenting part above the pelvic inlet 
g. Severe hypertension 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Follow the routine admission procedure to Labor and Delivery (LO) unit.Patient is 

admitted ta Jaber and delivery. 
Cemplete Pre lnduotion Oxytooin Safety Checklist 

2. Explain procedure to patient and support person. 
3. The provider or RN must perform and document the following within 30 minutes prior to 

the initiation of an oxytocin infusion: 
a. Cervical examination, including Bishop score 
b. Fetal assessment: 

401



Weffie.AsWomen and NewbornCRi!ElreR's Services 
Oxytocin ~Administration For IREll:IGtioR/ Al:l§IFRORtatloR Of Lal3or 
Page 4of10 

i. A minimum of 30 minutes of fetal monitoring meeting the following 
requirements: 
1) A reassuring tracing is obtained or a BPP of 8/10 is present within 

the past 4 hours, or moderate variability in the absence of 
accelerations 

2) No late decelerations in the last 30 minutes 
3) No more than 2 variable decelerations exceeding 60 seconds and 

decreasing greater than 60 bpm within the previous 30 minutes prior 
to starting Pitocin infusion 

Apply fetal monitor and ol:lserve the fetal tracing. Patient must have a reactive non stress 
test prior to o*Ytocin administration. 
Perform vaginal el!:am as indicated. 
Cephalic presentation must be determined and documented by vaginal el!:am, beopold's 
Maneu·1ers, and/or ultrasound. 

The 8ishops score is documented by the RN 
Start mainline IV as ordered. 
Set up IV infusion pump '""ith 

4. Piggyback oxytocin infusion into mainline IV using the port closest to the injection site. 
a. An infusion pump is used for titration. 
b. Label the oxytocin IV bag, IV tubing as it enters the infusion pump, and the IV 

tubing site closest to the injection site. Do not place a label on the pump/channel. 
5. Begin the oxytocin infusion at 2mU/min. at 1 mU/min 
6. Titratelncrease oxytocin infusion at a rate of 1-2mU/min every 15 or 30 minutes, per 

provider orderby 1 2 mU/min no sooner than every 30 minutes until labor is adequate, a 
max dose of 20mU/min is reached or an indication to decrease or discontinue oxytocin is 
indicated. 
a. Adequate labor process is defined as: 

i. Uterine contractions every 2-3 minutes and lasting 45-60 seconds 
ii. Montevideo units (MVU) 250-300 mm Hg in a 10-minute window. 
111. When labor process is adequate, maintain oxytocin infusion at current rate 

b. The RN may administer to a max dose of 30mU/min if the provider has assessed 
the patient, placed an IUPC, reviewed the FHT/UC pattern and an order has been 
placed in the EMR., 

c. Indications to decrease or discontinue oxytocin include but are not limited to 
tachysystole, fetal status is indeterminate or fetal status is abnormal. 
i. Provide interventions as described in the Fetal Heart Rate 

Surveillance/Monitoring procedure whenever warranted. 
ii. Use the tachysystole algorithm (Attachment 1) to guide interventions when 

oxytocin induced tachysystole occurs. 
d. Resume oxytocin titration per the following: 

i. If oxytocin has been discontinued for less than 30 minutes, the FHR is 
normal and contraction frequency, intensity and duration are normal 
resume oxytocin titration at no more than half the rate when discontinued. 

ii. If oxytocin has been discontinued for more than 30 minutes, resume 
oxytocin at the initial dose ordered when the FHR is normal and 
contraction frequency, intensity and duration are normal. 

'l'!hen labor process is adequate, Mmaintain ol!:ytocin infusion at current rate or decrease rate 
when Adequate labor process is adequatedefined as.: 

Uterine contractions every 2 3 minutes and lasting 45 60 seconds 
Montevideo llnits (MVU) 2§0 300 mm Hg in a 10 minute window. 
Notify physician er CNM when the maximum dosage of 20 mU.'min is reached. 

7. Continuous fetal monitoring is maintained during oxytocin administration. 
a. Assess and document the fetal monitoring tracing when oxytocin dosage is 

increased or decreased, every 3G15 minutes during the latent and active stage-# 

402



~Women and NewbornGRilElreR's Services 
Oxytocin J2i.tGGi.R-Administration ~81:::1stisR 1 Al:::l!JFflSAtatieR Of Lal3er 
Page 5of10 

the dese is llnchanged, and every 545 minutes during the active pushing phase 
of the second stage of labor. 

b. Document the fetal monitoring tracing when oxytocin dosage is increased or 
decreased, every 30 minutes during the latent and active stage, and every 5-15 
minutes during the active pushing phase of the second stage of labor. 

Previde interventiens as described in the Fetal Heart Rate (FHR) S!lrveillance/Menitering 
pelicy whenever warranted. 

8. If an intra uterine pressure catheter (IUPC) is in place, MVU must be less than 300 mmHg, 
and the resting tone must be less than 25 mmHg. 
Use the Tachysystele algerithm (attached) te gllide interventiens when Tachysystele 
9CCllrS. 

9. The RN may discontinue the oxytocin infusion at any time withellt a physician erder, 
based on fetal heart tracing or uterine contraction patterns. 
a. TheNOTlii: Patient's provider will be notified after interventions to resolve the 

clinical situation. is netified when exytecin is discentin1Jed. 
1. The b&D RN shall: 

a. Verify proviser erser fer as ministration of m<ytocin for insuction/augmentatien of labor. 
b. Assist the patient to a position of comfert, preferably the left or right lateral position.to 

increase uterine perfusion 
c. Perform Maternal Fetal assessment: 

i. Maternal Assessment: 
1) Assess baseline maternal temperature, pulse, respirations, ans bloos 

pressure. 
2) In the absence of ruptured membranes assess cervical status to incluse: 

silatation, e#acement, station, consistency and position of cervix prior to 
beginning infusion. 

:ii) Assess uterine activity, including palpation of contraction(s). 
s. Perform Fetal Assessment per Fetal Heart Rate Surveillance Policy: 

i. Review :i!O minute reassuring fetal heart rate tracing, Category I. 
ii. Confirmation of verteJ< presentation and fetal position. 
iii. ~lotify proviser if the fetal heart rate tracing interpretation is a category II or Ill. 

e. Assemble equipment: 
i. This procedure requires a patent intravenous line. 
ii. Premi1<0s ol<ytocin solution contains 20 Units in 1000 ml of Normal Saline 

solution. 
f. Clearly label the following with color coded labels: 

i. IV Oxytocin/Pitocin bag 
ii. IV tubingat the point as it enters the infusion pump 
iii. IV tubing at the point it enters the IV port. 

2. !nduction/Augmentatien sf labor: 
a. Begin infusion at 0.5 milliunitslmin to 2 milliunitslminute per provider orser. 
b. Titrate tlosage by 1 milliunitlminevery :i!O minutes or per proviser orser until adequate 

contraction pattern to achieve progress of labor. (Pitocin may not be titrated in less than 
15 minute intervals.see titrating mesication belo'N in 2d) 

c. l\sministration of oxytocin m<eeesing 20 milliunits/min requires pro•lider assessment and 
a proviser orser. 

d. Titrating Medication: /\sequate progress of labor and/or uterine activity is defines as: 
i. Three to five (:ii 5) contractiens in a 10 minute peries with a maximum, not ts 

e1rneed 5 centractions in a 1 O minute peried (tachysystele) . 
ii. Contraction duration of 40 90 seconss. 
iii. Moserate ts strong centraction intensity by palpation with asequate resting tone 

by palpatien. 

403



Wem&RsWomen and NewbornCRifElreA's Services 
Oxytocin ~Administration For IAEh::lctioA/ AugmeAtatioA Of La9or 
Page 6of10 

iv. If using an Intrauterine Pressure Catheter (!UPC) an amplitude of at least 50 
mm/Flg allove the resting tone is desired. The resting tone shall Ile loss than 20 
mm/Flg. 

3. ~Jursing assessment: 
a. Continuous oleotrenio fetal monitoring shall l:Je maintained when m<y.tooin is used. 
l:J. Tho fetal heart rate and uterine oontraotion pattern should l:Je evaluated and documented 

at tho start of tho oxytooin infusion, after any rate increase or dooroaso and over; 30 
minutes during maintenance. (goo fetal Floart Rate z;urveillanoe Policy) 

o. Monitor the patient i:ior intrai:iartum standards of oare and fer the following oomi:ilioations: 
i. Uterine Taohysystolo 

1) Defined as > 5 oontractions in a 10 minute window averaged over 30 
minutes 

ii. Uterine Rupture 
iii. Non Reassuring fetal z;tatus. Category II, i:iregressing to a Category Ill or a 

Category Ill Tracing. 
iv. \'\later lntoxioation 
v. Cord Prelai:ise 
vi. Preoii:iitous Lal:Jor 

d. Assess for signs of uterine rui:iture: 
i. fetal Fleart Rnte with Category II i:irogressing to Ill or category Ill tracing and/or a 

prolonged deceleration. 
ii. Uterine taohysystole OR oomi:ilete loss of uterine activity 

1) 
iii. Al:Jdominal i:iain and rigidity 
iv. Flyi:iotension, taohyoardia 
,, Vaginal l:Jleeding 
vi. Loss of fetal station 
vii. Mis shaped al:Jdominal wall/ increased fundal height 

e. /\ssess for signs and symi:itoms of water intmcioation: 
i. Headache. 
ii. ~Jausea and vomiting. 
iii. "feeling siok". 
iv. Mental confusion. 
•. Decreased urinary outi:iut ( < 30 oo i:ier hour and/or less than 120 i:ier 4 hour 

interval) 
vi. Hypotension. 
vii. Taohyoardia. 
viii. Fleart rate irregularities. 
ix. Al:Jnormal lung sounds: 
x. Ralos 

4. Doorease Oxytooin i:ior provider order for: 
a. Uterine Taohysystel 
l:J. Contractions lasting 2 minutes or more 
o. Contraetions of normal duration ooourring within 1 minute of oaoh other 
d. Insufficient return of uterine resting tone l:Jew1oen oontraotions via pali:iation OR if IUPC 

resting tone pressure is greater than 25 mmHg 

5. Discontinue mcytooin per i:irovider order and notify provider for any of tho following: 
a. Category II i:irogressing to Category Ill and/or Category Ill fetal heart rate findings. 
l:J. Prolonged fHR deceleration 
o. Uterine taohysystolo with fHR changes 
d. z;uspeotod uterine rupture. 
e. Suspeotod water intm<ioatien. 

404



WGm&AsWomen and NewbornCAilElren's Services 
Oxytocin ~Administration Fer !nE11:1stien/ A1:113mentatien Qf ba9er 
Page 7of10 

f. R~I is not available to evaluate tho effeots of mcytooin at least every :90 minutes. 
6. Intervention oonsiderations for mcytooin induoed taohysystole per provider orders: 

a. For uterine taohysystole episodes with Fl=IR Category I traoing: 
i. Maternal repositioning 
ii. Give IV fluid bolus of 500 mL of Lactated Ringers :>elution 
iii. If uterine aotivity is not within normal limits after 10 minutes, may decrease 

oxyteoin rate by half 
iv. If uterine activity continues to evidence taohysystole after tho rate vvas halved, 

discontinue oxytocin until uterine activity is less than 5 oontractions in 10 
minutes. 

b. For uterine taohysystolo episodes with Fl=IR Category II: 
i. !Jocroaso mcytooin rate by half 
ii. Maternal Repositioning 
iii. Give IV fluid bolus of 800 mL of Lactated Ringers :>elution 
iv. Consider mcygen at 1 Ob/min via non rebreather maslc if the first interventions 

trialed did not resolve the indeterminate tracing 
v. If uterine activity remains in a tachysystole pattern, disoontinuo tho mcytocin anti 

notify the provider of tho aotions taken and patient/ Fl=IR response. 
o. For uterine taohysystolo with Fl=IR Category 111: 

i. IJiscontinue oxytooin infusion 
ii. Maternal repositioning 
iii. Give IV fluid bolus of 500 mL of Laotated Ringers :>elution 
iv. Give mcygon at 1 O L/min via non robroather facemask 
.. If no uterine contraction response, ready 0.25 mg torbutaline for subcutaneous 

administration per provider order 
d. The mcytocin infusion may be restarted per provider order: 

i. If Pitocin is off less than :90 minutes, restart Pitocin at one half (1/2) the 
discontinued rate 

ii. If Pitocin is off greater than :90 minutes, restart Pitocin at the original start rate 
order rate. 

D. DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Document initial and subsequent maternal vital signs, and fetal heart rate status in the 

Electronic Medical Health Record (-€MR.EHR). 
2. Document abnormal maternal and fetal assessments, including all interventions in the eMREHR 
3. Document adverse events associated with this infusianoxytocin inoo the patient eMREHR 
4. Document infusion rate and times of dosage changes inoo the patient eMREHR. 

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S): 
1. WNS Procedure: Fetal Heart Rate (FHR) Surveillance/Monitoring 
2. WNS Procedure: Elective Delivery 
4.-3. Standards of Care: lntrapartum 

€-cF. REFERENCE(S): 
1. AAP & ACOG. (20172'). Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 87thEdition. 
-1.-2. ACOG Practice Bulletin: 107: Induction of Labor. August 2009 (Reaffirmed 2019). 
2. American Congress of Obstetrics and Gynecology (AGOG) (2010)). Vaginal Birth after previous 

Cesarean !Jelivery, AGOG Practice Bulletin. Number 554. Washington, !JC 
a. Bosuner, P. AWl=ION~I Templates for Protocols and Procedures for Maternity :>ervices, 

;?,'"-Edition (2007) 
4. Gilbert, E.:>. and l=larmon, J.i>. (200!l), Manual of l=ligh Risk Pregnancy and IJelivery (4th Ed.), 

Mosby. 
5. Kennedy, B.B, Ruth, IJ.J., Martin, E.J. (2009) lntrapartllm Management Modules (a"'-&:4 

Lippincott 'Nilliams and Wilkins. 

405



Wem&RsWomen and NewbornCRileFen's Services 
Oxytocin PitGGi&Administration FeF lneuctieni AugFRentatien Of ba9ef 
Page 8 of 10 

&.-3. 

4. 

5. 

~6. 

8. 

Q. 

Macones, G.A. , Hankins, G.D.V., Spong, C.Y., Hauth, J., Moore, T. (2008) . The 2008 National 
Institute of Child Health and Human Development Workshop Report on Electronic Fetal 
Monitoring: Update on Definitions, Interpretation, and Research Guidelines. JOGNN, Principles 
& Practice, 37, 510-515. Retrieved from http://jognn.awhonn.org. 
Simpson, K. R. (202000). Cervical Ripening & Induction & Augmentation of Labor, 5th Jffi 
Edition. 
Simpson, K. R., & Creehan, P. A. (202100). AWHONN's perinatal nursing, .,.5th Ed. Philadelphia, 
PA: Wolters Kluwer I Lippincott Williams & l/\lilkins. 
Troiano, N.H, Witcher, P.M, McMurtry Baird, S. (2019). AWHONN's High-Risk & Critical 
Care Obstetrics, 4th Ed. 
VVing , D.A. (2008) Induction of labor in women with prior cesarean delivery. Retrieved 
from \WN1.uptodate.com 4/06/0Q. 
Wing, D.A (2008) Induction of labor. Retrieved from www.uptodate.com 4/06/0Q. 

Attachment 1: Related Document 

406



~Women and NewbornChiJEIFeR's Services 
Oxytocin ~Administration Fer IAEl{:c!GtieA 1 Ot:i:gmeAtatieA Gf bal3or 
Page 9of10 

Oxytocin Induced Tachysystol" Algorithm 

Uterine tachysy.stole: 

• More than 5 contractlons in 10 minutes, averaged over a 30 min 1Nindov1 

Other abnormal uterine contraction patterns of concern: 

• 2 or more contractions lasting 120 seconds or more in a 10-minute ~vindovt 

• !nsuffictent return of uterine resting tone bet:.veen contractions via palpation 

or IUPC pressure above 25mmHg. 

l l 
Category I FHR Category !I or Ill 

tracing fHR tracing 

1 1 
Consider intrauterine resuscitatiVe measures: • Decrease oi<ytocin by Y: or discontinue oxytccin 

• Change maternal position • Change maternal position 

• IV iluid bolus, SOOmL • IV f!L(1d bolus, SOOmL 

I \ • Administer oxygen (lOL via nonrebreather mask) 

/ • Notify provider for evaluation 

If no response to interventions: consider Terbut.aline 0.25mg SQ 
Contractions decrease Contractions do not CAT 11 or Iii 
10 min after decrease 10 111in FHR develops 
interventions & fHR after interventions & 

ren1ains CAT I; FHR re1nains CAT I; 

continue oxytocin decrease oxytocin Tachysystofe resolves after DC of oxytocin: 

administration to dose by~ and If after a 10-30-minute period of observation, FHR is CAT I 

1naintain an effective observe for another then resume oxytocin infusion as follow!i 

contraction pattern. 20 min. Jf 

tachysysto!e does 
Previous rate: New rate: 

DC'd >30min ago Initial order 
not resolve, 

DC'd <30min ago Half of DC' d rate 
discontinue oxytocin 

and notify provider. 

407



WemeflsWomen and NewbornChilElren's Services 
Oxytocin ~Administration Fer ln81,1stien/ ,l\1,1§R'lentatien Of Laber 
Page 10of1 0 

Tachysystole Algor ithm 

I Administer oxytocln as ordered by provider to achieve cervical dilation and adequate contraction pattern I 
J, 

Contraction patterns requiring nursing action 
Tachysystolt> IS dt>fint>d by NICHD as 

• More than 5 contract10ns io 111 mmutes, averaqed over a 30 min window 
Other ab1101mal utenne contuctJon patttf'ms thdt are of concem: 

• A series of sinqle contractions 1.~st1nq 2 min ( 1211 seconds) or more 
• Con tr actions of normal duration (60 secs) ocrnrnnq w1th1n 1 mrnute of each 

othe1 
• Insufficient 1 etum of uterine rest11q tone between contractions via palpation 

or !UPC piessu1e above 25 mm Hq 

~ "i I 
With FHR Category I With FHR Category II or III 

I (Normal) ( Indeterminate or Abnormal) 

+ 
Jnc1ease EFM swve1llance & consider 111tetvent1ons: 

• Chanqe maternal pos1t1on (late1 al) • Discontinue oxytocln 

• IV hydration (bolus) • Notify provider 
• Change matemal position (lateral) 

I i ~ category ll or m FHR I~ • IV hydration (bolus) 

develops: • Administer oxygen ( 10 LJmask) 

Contractions decrease Contractions do Follow the Interventions for • If no response, consider Terbutanne <l.25 mg SQ 

111 nm afte1 NOT decrease 10 min 
indetermmate or abnormal 

1nterwntioos & FHR after interventions & 
FHR 

111 
remains normal; FHR remains normal; 
continue oxytocin decrease oxytoc1n dose Tachysystole Resolves 
administration to by 'h and obse1ve for If afte1 a 10-30 min pe11od of obse1vat10n the FHR 
m.~1nta111 an effecnve another 21l mm. If pattern 1s no1 mal & cont1 actions are inadequate 

contraction pattern. Tachysystole does not (inadequate= MVU •: 2rn1) then resume oxytocin: 
1 esolve, cont.:ict 
provider. Previous rate w as: New rate now: 

D/C'd >31l min acio BeqinninQ order 
D/C'd <30 min aqo Half orevious 

408



~~ Tri-City Medical Center Women and Newborn Services 

PROCEDURE: HYPERTENSION IN PREGNANCYPReeGbAMPSIA GARe GUIDELINES 
Purpose: To outline the nursing management of inpatients who have a hypertensive 

disorder of pregnancy, including special considerations of patients on 
antihypertensive medications and those diagnosed with severe preeclampsia or 
preeclampsia without severe features. t+e ei;!liAe !Re AllFSiA§ FAaAa§eFAeAI ef 
iAfla!ieAls wRe Rave flFeeelaFAflsia iAsli;EliA§ Sflesial eeAsiEleFatieAs feF !Re FAaAa§eFAeA! 
ef fla!ieA!s Ra•1iA§ a Rype!1eAsive emeFgeAsy FeEJlliFiA§ UF§eAt aA!iRyfleFteAsive 
FAeElisa!ieAs, MagAesii;m Si;lfate feF seizuFe prnpRylailis, aAEl FAaAa§eFAeA! ef 
eelaFAflSia, utiliziA§ !Re Galifemia Maternal Qi;ality GaFe GellalleFative (GMQGG) 
EmleF set FesemFAeAElatiaAs. 

Supportive Data: Hypertensive disorders of pregnancy constitute one of the leading causes of 
maternal and perinatal mortality worldwide. Preeclampsia is a disorder of 
pregnancy associated with new-onset hypertension, which occurs most often 
after 20 weeks of gestation and frequently near term. Postpartum hypertension 
and preeclampsia are either persistent or exacerbated hypertension in women 
with previous hypertensive disorders of pregnancy or a new-onset 
condition.PFeeslaFAflsia is a RJ'fleFteAsive EliseFEleF ef flFe§AaAey sRaFasleFi2eEl lly 
vasesflaSFA aAEl eAEletRelial ElaFAa§e wRieR FAay iFAflaG! !Re saFElievassi;laF, FeAal, 
ReFAa!ele§isal, Ae1o1Fele§isal, aAEl Refla!is sys!eFAs as well as !Re i;!eFefllaseA!al 1o1Ai!. I! is 
ef 1o1AlrnewA e!iele§y, lli;t FAllltiple tReeFies exist . PFeeslaFAflSia is eRaFasteFi2eEl sy 
Rew eAse! ef RyfleFtensien aAEl flFeteiAllfia atlef 2Q weel1s §esta!ieA iA a flFeviei;sly 
AeFFAeteAsive weFAaA, aAEl saA pFeseAt as late as 4 fl weeks pastpa!1i;m anEl in . " .. . . . ,. . . " .. 

lssi;e gale: QM-4 

A. DEFINITION: 
1. Pweeclampsia without severe features (mild): 

Department 
Review 

01/224,Y.14 

a. Blood Pressure (BP): 
i. Systolic blood pressure (SBP) of 140mmHg or more or diastolic 

blood pressure (DBP) of 90mmHg or more on two occasions at least 
4 hours apart after 20 weeks of gestation in a woman with a 
previously normal blood pressure. Or 

ii. SBP of 160mmHg or more or DBP of 110mmHg or more. 
b. AND Proteinuria: 

i. 300mg or more per 24-hour urine collection or 
ii. Protein/creatinine ratio of 0.3 or more or 
iii. Dipstick reading of 2+ (used only if other quantitative methods not 

available). 
c. In the absence of proteinuria, new-onset hypertension with the new-onset 

of any of the following: 
i. Thrombocytopenia: Platelet count less than 100x10' /L 
ii. Renal insufficiency: Serum creatinine concentrations greater than 

1.1 mg/dl or a doubling of the serum creatinine concentration in the 
absence of other renal disease 

iii. Impaired liver function: Elevated blood concentrations of liver 
transaminases to twice normal concentration 

iv. Pulmonary edema 

Department of ~epartment of Pharmacy and Medical Professional Board of Executive Administration Affairs 08/GYN Pediatrics Therapeutics Committee Committee Directors 

12/14, 04/22, 
n/a 12/15, 07/22 02/16, 10122 11122 03/461, n/a 03/16 06122 

409



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeeefamf3sia Gare G1:1iGeURes 
Page 2of16 

-'h-v. New-onset headache unresponsive to medication and not accounted 
for by alternative diagnoses or visual symptoms. 

Hypertension (HTN): Blood pressure (BP) greater than or equal to 140 ffiffi Hg 
systolic or greater than or equal to 90 ITTm Hg diastolic on two occasions at least 
4 hours apart in a woman with a previously normal BP. 
May be asymptomatiG. 

a. In most Gases the blood pressure will return to baseline by 12 weeks 
postpartum. 

b. Completed a minimum of 20 weeks gestation £illQ 
o. Proteinuria: 

i. Greater than 300 mg protein per 24 hr. urine oolleotion 
ii. Protein/Creatinine ratio greater than or equal to a.a mg/di 
iii. Dipsticl< rReading of (1 '")protein (used only if other quantitative methods 

unavailable) 
d. In the absenoe of proteinuria if the patient has new onset HT~I illlQ_new onset of 

any of the follo1Ning: 
i. Platelet oount less than 100,000/mioroliter 
ii. Serum oreatinine ooncentration greater than 1.1 mg/di or a doubling of the 

serum creatinine in the absence of other renal disease. 
iii. Elevated blood conoentrations of liver transaminases to ~ice normal 

ooncentration 
iv. Pulmonary edema 
,, Cerebral or visual symptoms 

2. Preeclampsia with severe features:SEVERE PREECLAMPSI/\: 
a. SBP of 160mmHg or more, or DBP of 110mmHg or more on two occasions 

at least 4 hours apart (unless antihypertensive therapy is initiated before 
this time) 

b. Thrombocytopenia (platelet count less than 100x10' ,l) 
c. Impaired liver function that is not accounted for by alternative diagnoses 

and as indicated by abnormally elevated blood concentrations of liver 
enzymes (to more than twice the upper limit normal concentrations). Or by 
severe persistent right upper quadrant or epigastric pain unresponsive to 
medications 

d. Renal insufficiency (serum creatinine concentration more than 1.1 mg/dL or 
a doubling of the serum creatinine concentration in the absence of other 
renal disease) 

e. Pulmonary edema 
f. New-onset headache unresponsive to medication and not accounted for by 

alternative diagnoses 
2-cg. Visual disturbances 

BP of 160 mm Hg systolic or higher or 11 O mm Hg diastolic or higher on two 
oocasions at least 4 hours apart while patient is on bed rest. (Hypertension oan 
be confirmed within a short interval (10 30 minutes) to facilitate timely 
antihypertensive therapy. 

Administer the medication as soon as possible with the goal of 30 60 
minutes from the time of confirmed hypertension. 
This is considered a hypertensive emergency that needs resolved to 
prevent central nervous system injury such as oerebral injury or 
infarction (maternal stroke) 

410



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesProoclarnpsia CaFe GwiElolinos 
Page 3of16 

a. The goal is not to normalize BP; but to achie·1e a range of 140 150/90 
100 mm Hg to pre¥ent less ef cerebral \•asculature autoregulation 

b. Completed a minimum of 20 weel<s gestation 
o. Proteinuria or OR ilf one or more of the follov;ing are present: 

i. New onset oerebral or visual disturbances 
ii. Pulmonary edema or cyanosis 
iii. Epigastric or right upper quadrant pain 
iv. Impaired liver funotion as indicated by abnormally elevated blood 

oonoentrations of liver enzymes (to twice normal oonoentration), severe 
persistent RUQ or epigastric pain unresponsive to medioation and not 
aooounted for by alternative diagnoses or both 

.. Thrombooytopenia (platelet oount less than 100,000/microliter) 
vi. Progressive renal insuffioiency (serum creatinine conoentration greater 

than 1.1 mg/di or a doubling of serum creatinine conoentration in the 
absence of other renal disease) 

3. Eclampsia:ECL/\MP81A: new-onset tonic-clonic, focal, or multifocal seizures in 
the absence of other causative conditions such as epilepsy, cerebral arterial 
ischemia and infarction, intracranial hemorrhage, or drug use. 
a. Presence of new onset grand mal seizures in a pregnant women with 

preeolampsia (rule out idiopathic seizure disorder or other central nervous 
system pathology such as intracranial hemorrhage, bleeding arteriovenous 
malformation, ruptured aneurysm) 
New onset seizures 4 8 72 hours postpartum (other central nervous system 
pathology is the likely reason for the seizure after 7 days) 
Eclampsia oan occur 4 6 weeks postpartum. 

b. In some cases hypertension and/or proteinuria was absent. 
4. Chronic HypertensionCl=IRONIC l=IYPERTE~JSION: 

a. SBP greater than or equal to 140mmHg, DBP greater than or equal to 
90mmHg, known to predate conception. 

b. When preconception BP are not known, elevated blood pressure detected 
before 20 weeks of gestation. 

4'c. Hypertension that is diagnosed for the first-time during pregnancy and that 
does not resolve in the typical postpartum period. 

a. /\BP of 140mml=lg systolio or greater and 90 mml=lg diastolio or greater predating 
oonoeption and/or patient taking hypertensive medications before pregnancy. 
Elevated BP detested BEi;:QRE 20 weel<s gestation. 

b. Persists greater than 12 weel(s post partum 
5. Gestational HypertensionE:i>T/\TION/\L l=IYPERTEN810N: 

a. SBP 140mmHg or more or a DBP of90mmHg or more, or both, on two 
occasions at least 4 hours apart, without proteinuria, after 20 weeks of 
gestation, in women with a previously normal BP. 
i. Considered severe when the SBP reaches 160mmHg or DBP reaches 

11 OmmHg, or both. 
6-cb. BP level return to normal in the postpartum period. 
a. /\ BP of 140 mml=lg or greater systolic or 90 mml=lg or greater diastolic WITl=IOUT 

proteinuria ooourring Ai;:TER 20 weeks gestation. 
b. May evolve te preeolampsia 

May be a reourrenoe of ohronic hypertension abated in mid pregnanoy 
o. Normalizatien of blood pressure by 12 'Neel(s post partum 

6. Superimposed PreeclampsiaUPERIMPOSED PREECLAMP81/\/ECLAMPSI/\: 

411



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeeGlam13sia Gai:e Gblidelines 
Page 4 of 16 

a. Preeclampsia is considered superimposed when it complicates preexisting 
chronic hypertension. 

@. 
New onset of hypertension in a woman with hypertension prior to 2Q weeks 

a. Patients with underlying renal or vascular disease and those with chronic 
hypertension are at risk. 

b. Sudden increase in proteinuria if already present in early gestation 
c. Sudden increase in BP 

Development of headache, scotornata (a partial loss ef 'lision or blind spot in 
an otherwise normal visual field,) or epigastric pain 

d. Development of HELLP Syndrome: see below 
7. HELLP SyndromeYNOROME (Hemolysis, Elevated Liver enzymes, Low Platelets): 

a. Patients with preeclampsia with severe featuressevere preeclarnpsia that 
develop hepatic and hematologic manifestations as the predominant clinical 
picture, and is associated with increased risk of adverse outcomes. 

b. Can occur without hypertension or proteinuria. 
8. Severe Hypertension: Two consecutive BPs with SBP of 160mmHg or greater or 

DBP of 11 OmmHg or greater within a short interval (15 minutes). 
9. Hypertensive Emergency: 

a. When severe hypertension is persistent 
b. Can occur during pregnancy or postpartum 
c. Can present as new acute-onset, or in patients with chronic hypertension 

who are developing superimposed preeclampsia with acutely worsening, 
difficult to control, severe hypertension. 

a-cd. Either SBP 160mmHg or greater or DBP 110 or greater taken twice 15 
minutes apart. 

B. ADMISSION CONSIDERATIONS: 
1. Assess maternal vital signs including: BP, respiratory rate (RR),-aM heart rate (HR}, 

temperature and oxygen saturation (02Sat) 
a. Refer to section D Nursing Assessment Frequency Guidelines for 

frequency. 
b. One severe-range BP requires the initiation of frequent BP measurements 

every 15 minutes for at least one hour. 
i. If the patient meets the requirement for treatment with 

antihypertensive medications, frequency of BP will change to 
treatment recommendations. 
1) See Attachment 1: Antihypertensive Treatment Algorithm for 

Hypertensive Emergencies. 
ii. If at one hour the patient does not meet the requirement for 

treatment with antihypertensive medications, frequency of BP will 
return to recommendations in section D Nursing Assessment 
Frequency Guidelines. 

2. Assess BP using an appropriately sized BP cuff with patient sitting or in the 
upright position with the patient's arm at the level of the heart7 and legs/feet 
uncrossed. 
a. The patient needs to sit quietly for 5 minutes prior to measurement. 
b. Do not reposition the patient to either side to obtain a lower BP 

412



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPreeGlaFR13sia CaFe G1:1itk:iliRes 
Page 5of16 

7. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Obtain BP on the patient arm using an appropriate sized ou# with the patient sitting or 
in the upright/semi fo•Nlers position with the patient's arm at the level of the heart. 

Do not reposition the patient to her left side and retake the BP, as this oan give a 
false lower reading. 

a. Have patient uncross their legs/feet 
Apply external fetal monitor (EFM), or obtain fetal heart tones with a hand held 
doppler per the Fetal Heart Rate Surveillance/Monitoring Procedure/\pply m(ternal 
fetal monitor (if viable gestational age) and perform monitoring and assessment per fetal 
heart rate (Fl=IR) sur.'eillance policy for antepartum and intrapartum periods. 
Assess for the absence or presence of: 
a. Headache 
b. Visual changes 
c. Right upper quadrant pain ight Upper Quadrant (RUQ) or epigastric pain-(not 

heart burn) 
d. Nausea/-vomiting 
e. General malaise 
&.-f. Generalized edema and/or significant rapid weight gain 

5. Assess upper/-Bl'-lower deep tendon reflexes and clonus. 
6. Auscultate lung sounds, noting any presence of rales, rhonchi, wheezing, etc. 
12;,7. Assess intake and output per section D Nursing Assessment Frequency. 
Assess for generalized edema and significant, rapid weight gain. 
8. Obtain intravenous (IV) access as ordered by the provider. 
9. Prepare to administer medications to lower BP and prevent seizure activity.~ 

Administration of Magnesium Sulfate Prooedure, Patient Care Services. 
'1-Q.,9. Monitor patient's intake and output (l&O) per provider order at a minimum every two 

hours. 
10. Maintain activity as ordered by the provider. 

.:t+.a. If on bed rest, maintain side-lying position as much as possible to inorease 
uteroplaoontal perfusion if patient antepartum or intrapartum, and change patient 
position every two hours or more often as needed. 

*.11. Obtain lab work as ordered by provider and review results. 
-'hh12. Ensure oxygen and suction equipment are available and functioning . 
.:J.4.13. Implement seizure precaution measures to decrease stress levels, such as 

maintaining a quiet environment with low lighting7. per Elsevier Skills 
Consider implementing seizure preoautions, per Mosby prooedure for severe 15. 
preeolampsia diagnosis. 

:f.&..14. Provide emotional support and opportunity for patient family to verbalize questions and 
concerns . 

.:i.+.-15. Reportable oonditions; notify the provider for:Notify the provider for any of the 
following: 
;+---1Repeated SBP of 160mmRepeated BP greater and 1 €30 systolio OR greater 

than 105 110 diastolio (tal~en at least 15 minutes apart). 
a. Hg or greater or DBP of 110mmHg or greater, taken at a short interval (15 

minutes). 
b. New or worsening complaint of any of the following: 

i. Headache 
ii. Visual changes 
ihiii. Change in level of consciousness 
111-c1v. Right upper quadrant (RUQ) or epigastric pain 

c. Abnormal lab values 

413



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeoclaffli;>sia Car=e G1o1iEle-HAes 
Page 6of16 

d. Urine output less than 30 ml in an hour or less than 120 ml in 4 hours. 

c. MeCICATION CONSICeRATIONS FOR HYPeRTeNSION: 
1. /\ sustained systolio blood pressure (S8P) greater than or equal to 160 mg Hg or 

diastolio pressure greater (CSP) than or equal to 110 mm Hg on l'No oonseoulive 
oooasions at least 15 minutes apart is oonsidered "severe hypertension" and needs to 
be treated 'Nith IV antihypertensive medioation to proteot the patient from oerebral 
vasoular aooident. 

Oral antihypertensive medioation should only be oonsidered if IV aooess has not 
been established. and 

a. Immediate release oral ~Jifedipine is the medioation of ohoioe due to the rapid 
onset. Oral babetolol should only be utilize if the immediate release 
Nifedipine is una\•ailable. 

b. Patients shall reoeive medioalion to reduoe the blood pressure within 60 minutes 
of the finding. 

o. A single, elevated "severe range" blood pressure finding requires further 
monitoring and evaluation. 

2. The goal oftreatmentis to obtain a SBP of 140 150 andlor diastolio blood 
pressureC8P of 90 100 mm Hg to maintain fetal perfusion. 

c. ANTIHYPERTENSIVE MEDICATIONS ACMINISTATION PROCeCURe: 
1. Treatment is indicated for SBP of 160mmHg or greater or DBP of 11 OmmHg or 

greater to protect the patient from cerebral vascular accident. 
a. Initiation of medication should be within 30-60 minutes after confirmation 

(second BP) of severe range blood pressures. 
b. The goal of treatment is a target BP range of 130-150/80-1 OOmmHg 

2. See attachment, Antihypertensive Treatment Algorithm for Hypertensive 
Emergencies, for medication guidelines. 

3. labetalol is a combined alpha and beta-blocker, resulting in decreased peripheral 
vascular resistance without altering heart rate or cardiac output. Its use is 
contraindicated in patients with bronchial asthma, heart block and severe 
bradycardia. 
a. A patient with tachycardia should receive labetalol as the initial 

intravenous (IV) therapy. 
4. Hydralazine is a vasodilator and results in vasodilation of vascular smooth 

muscle. 
5. Nifedipine is a calcium channel blocker that acts to relax the smooth muscle of 

the heart and blood vessels. 
a. If acute treatment is needed in a patient without IV access, immediate 

release nifedipine is recommended. 
6. When antihypertensive treatment and magnesium sulfate are ordered 

simultaneously, and concurrent administration is not possible, antihypertensive 
treatment should be first priority. 
a. See Magnesium Sulfate, Administration in Obstetric Patients Procedure for 

administering Magnesium Sulfate. 
7. Maintain bedrest during and for 3 hours following medication administration. 

Assess for postural hypotension prior to ambulation. 
8. If BP unstable after completing the medication algorithm, contact provider 

regarding consideration of other medications and/or transfer to a higher level of 
care. 

414



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeeslaFR13sia CaFe C1:1ielelinos 
Page 7 of 16 

a. The provider may consider a consult with maternal-fetal medicine, internal 
medicine, anesthesia, or critical care subspecialists. 

9. Reportable conditions to notify provider: 
a. SBP greater than or equal to 160mmHg. DBP less than 80mmHg or greater 

than or equal to 110mmHg following medication administration. 
b. Category II or Ill fetal heart tracing following antihypertensive 

administration. 
c. Sustained maternal HR less than 50 beats per minute or greater than 120 

beats per minute during or within 30 minutes following medication 
administration. 

d. The patient becomes eclamptic. 
i. For eclamptic management see the standardized procedure: 

Eclampsia Management in the Antepartum, lntrapartum or 
Postpartum Period. 

D. NURSING ASSESSMENT FREQUENCY GUIDELINES: 
1. Preeclampsia without severe features: 

Assessment Type Antepartum * lntrapartum* Postpartum* 
BP, Pulse, Respirations, Sp02 Everv 4 hours Hou riv Everv 4 hours 
Lung Sounds Every 4 hours Every 4 hours Every 4 hours 
Level of Consciousness, 
edema, DTRs, clonus, headache, 
visual disturbances, epigastric pain Every 4 hours Every 4 hours Every 4 hours 
IRUQ) 

Minimum of every Continuous N/A 

Fetal Status and uterine activity shift, along with 
presence of fetal 
movement 

Temperature Per Department Standards of Care 
l&O Every 4 hours, with total everv 24 hours. 

*This is the minimum frequency recommended for the patient not on ma!'.mesium sulfate 

2. Preeclampsia with severe features on magnesium sulfate 
a. Refer to the procedure: Magnesium Sulfate, Administration in Obstetric 

Patients 
3. Post eclamptic seizure and magnesium sulfate toxicity 

a. Refer to the standardized procedure: Eclampsia Management in the 
Antepartum, lntrapartum, or Postpartum Period 

4. Acute BP treatment with IV medication: 
Assessment Type Assessment Frequency 

Once BP is considered stable, then BP 

BP, pulse and respirations every 10 minutes x1hour, every 15 
minutes x1hour, every 30minutes 
x1hour and every one-hour x4hours. 

Sp02 Continuous 

LOC 
Every 5-15 minutes for a minimum of 1 
hour 

Fetal status and uterine activity Continuous until delivery 

415



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPreeslafflf'JSia Care G1:1i9el1Aes 
Page 8of16 

5. Vital signs and assessments may be more frequent based on patient condition 
and provider order. 

D. 
1. E:nsure the patient has a patent IV site, or start patient on a first line oral rnedisation 

sush as irnrnediate release oral Nifedipine. 
2. Monitor fl=IR continuously, per fl=IR surveillance polisy if antepartum or intrapartum. 
3. Monitor BP, Pulse and Respiratory Rate every 5 15 minutes, per provider order,10 

minutes for a minimum of one hour, every 15 minutes for one hour, every 30 
minutes for one hour and then every four hours following IV medication 
administration to assess for BP reduction. 

a. Maintain bod rest during and for throe hours following medication administration. 
i. Assess for postural hypotension prior to ambulation 
4. If medication does not reduce the blood pressure to the target le•1el of SBP of 140 

150 and/or DBP of 90 100 mm Hg a diastolic reading between 90 100 mm l=lg, sontact 
tho provider to discuss other medication options. 

5. l=IYDRAL/\ZINE: (/\presolino) /\administration Csonsidorations based on provider 
orders: 
a. l=lydralazino is a vasodilator and results in vasodilation of vascular smooth 

muscle. 
Administer initial dose IV push (IVP) over 1 2 minutes. 

l:J. Usual dose range is 5 1 O mg. Refer to providers orders. 
o. May repeat dose at 20 minutes based upon provider orders intervals until 

desired blood pressure is achieved. Consider giving 10 mg hydralazino !VP if 
elevated BP continues after initial dose. 
Cumulative dose should not exceed 40mg. 

d. Parental hydralazine may insrease the risk of maternal hypotension sueh 
as a SBP less than 90 rnrn Hg or less. 
After 420 minutes if BP continues to be elevated, consider 20 mg of Labotalol 
IVP be given. 

e. See OB Magnesium/Hypertension Management Order set for guidelines on 
when to order OB and Hospitalist eonsults 

6. L/\BE:TALOL Administration Considerations based on provider orders: 
a. Labetalol is a combined alpha and beta blocker, resulting in tho decreased 

peripheral vascular resistance without altering heart rate or cardiac output. Its 
use is contraindicated in patients "vith bronchial asthma, heart block and severe 
bradycardia. 
IV PU1'1=1: 

Administer initial dose IVP over 2 minutes. (Usual dose is 20 mg) 
Subsequent doses may be given at dedieated intervals based upon 
provider orders 
See OB Magnesium/Hypertension Management Order set for 
guidelines on when to order OB and Hospitalist sonsults 
Cumulative dose should not exseed 220mg 
Parental labetalol may eause neonatal bradyeardia. 

l:J. Should be a•1oided in ""'omen with bronshial asthma, heart disease or 
congestive heart failure 

i. A repeat dose may ee given at 10 minute interval. 
ii. After first 10 minutes if BP continues to be elevated consider 40 mg of 

Labotalol IVP. 

416



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesProoslam13sia Gare Gt:1iGe#Res 
Page 9of16 

iii. If 40 Mg did not reduce the BP after 10 minutes, consider administering 80 
mg labetalol. 

iv. If no reduction in BP after 80 mg of labetalol IVP, consider Hydralazine. 
CO~JTINUOUS IV:_ If required, consult 

Consult with the lntensivistMospitalist in the Intensive Care Unit to 
initiate transfer to the Intensive Care Unit to begin IV Drip shall be 
EIBRe 

c. and/or PerinatologyConsult Perinatology 
i. Continuous Cardiac monitoring is required 
ii. Infuse labetalol on an infusion pump at ordered rate by provider until S8P 

of 14Q 14Q and/or D8P diastolic pressure is 90 100 mm Hg. 
iii. Maximum dose is 300 mg in 24 hours. 
An ORAL dose of Labetalol labetalol:200 mg 

cCan be given if no IV access, and oral immediate released oral 
nifedipine is not available. 

d. is used primarily to control elevated BP's 'Nith systolic value less than 160 
mm Hg or diastolic value less than 110 mm Hg. 
BP shall be checl<ed in 30 minutes 

i. It may be utilized as an oral maintainance dose to maintain blood 
pressure 

7. Oral NIFEDIPINE /\administration Cconsiderations based on provider orders: 
a. Nifedipine is a calcium ohannel blooker and produces vascular and smooth 

muscle relaxation. 
b. In the event that acute treatment is needed for patients with severe hypertension 

(systolic BP greater than 160 or diastolio BP §Feater than 110) in a patient 
'Nithout IV access, ORAL Nifedipine shall be used. 

c. Suggested dose is 10 mg by mouth whioh can be repeated in 30 minutes if 
indicated. 

Reportable conditions to notify the provider include: 
d. Diastolio BP less than 80 mm Hg or greater than 105 110 mm Hg following medication 

administration. 
Category II tracing progressing to a Category or Ill er a Category Ill FHR 
tracing observed following antihypertensive medioation administration 

e. er if tThe patient dees become ecolamptic. 
f. Sustained maternal heart rate less than 50 or greater than 120 during or within 

30 minutes following medioation administration. 

E. SEIZURE PREVENTION MEDICATION ADMINISRATION CONSIDERATIONS: 
1. Magnesium Sulfate is administered as a first line drug to prevent maternal eolamptio 
seizures and exerts its effect by depressing the central nervous system. 
2. Use is supported for those patients with severe preeolampsia and eclampsia. (See 
Magnesium Sulfate Administration prooedure in Patient Care Services Manual) 

For patients diagnosed 'Nith "preeolampsia without severe features (mild)" the American 
Congress College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (AGOG) suggests that magnesium sulfate 
not be administered universally for the prevention of preeclampsia. Administration shall be 
based on provider assessment, gestational age and patient symptoms. 

417



Women and Newborn Se1Vices 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFees!aFR13sia Car=e GldiElefinos 
Page 10of16 

F. NURSING ASSESSMENT FREQUENCY FOR PATIENTS WITH PRE ECb!\MPSI!\ 

~ • !LI.,,. • C> - . ~ . -· ... - '" -- -· ·-
~ 

• • • 
R" • . . 

' . A' . 
be•"el el GeRssie11sRess, 
edema, D+Rs, sleR11s, headashe, \<is11al 
~- . . - '"''- - A ' - A' - A ' 

' Fetal Status aR<I 11teFiRe asti'lity MiRimum el e\•eFY GeRtiR11e11s NIA 
shift, aleRg with 
pFeseRse el fetal 
me .. •emeRt -

l&-0 E"'eFy 2 heuFs 
E:very 2 heurs 
- ~· 

(*)This is the minimum frequensy resommended for the patient NOT on Magnesium 
Sulfate. 

C> ~ ' ~· .. A - ,_ 
~ . -• . ·~-- . ·- , .. -·- . , .. -· .. ···-· " . -'" 

' ap, Pulse, RespiratieRs, Sp02 E:very 30 mimlles duriRg mai11te11a11se Mag11esium Sulfate A<lmi11istratie11, if 
patieRt is IRtrapartum, ar is aR uRstable ARtepartum ar Pastpartum. lA!heR the 
patieRt is stable the blaad pressure may be e\•ery 4 heurs ar mere frequeRt 
depeRdeRt eR patieRt saR<litiaR er pra>Jiders arders. 

GaRtiRuaus Sp02 <luriRg Ma!Jf!esium Sulfate iRfusieR far IRtFapart11m. 
Far Jl,Rtepartum aR<I Pastpartum patieRt Sp02 shesk with Vital SigRs. 
_ _ _ ,.... ,f • • • · • n.001 

bung SauR<ls E'"ery 2 heurs far aR llRstable ARtepartum, l11trapartum ar a11d first 24 haurs 
al Pastpartum. (11ee<liRg multiple IVP medisatiaRs that sause tashysaF<lia) ar 
eE'lery 4 haurs if the patieRt is saRsi<lere<I stable aR<I begiRRiRg 24 heurs .. 

be•1el el GeRssiaYSRes&; Ei>JeFy 4 heurs er mere frequeRtly <lepeR<leRt eR patieRtt saR<litie11. 
E:<lema, D+Rs, sleRus, headastte, Netify previ<ler ef aRy shaRges iR seR<litieR. 
•1isual <listurbaRses, epigastris . , ............ ~ 
Fetal Status aR<I uteri11e astivity GeRliRueus Fetal Ma11iteriRg <luriRg a HyperteRsi .. •e srisis YRtil patieRt is .. . . . 

' temperature • _, - '. • 
' ' 

l&-0 lffia1-
+etal heurly iRtake (IV a11<1 PO) whe11 eR MagResium Sulfate sheuld be less 
thaR125 mblhr. 
NPO with ise ships er as permitted by pravi<ler. 
0Yt(lut: 
GeRsi<ler Faley plasemeRt with urameter 
• • • - • .,I • .~ • •- • • ...... I. I& 

1. Utilii!e the Magnesium Sulfate Administration Polisy, this polisy, Eslampsia Polisy and 
pro¥ider Qorders to determine if assessment frequensy needs to be more frequent than 
in the shafts abo•1e.shange. Vital signs and assessments may always be more frequent 
based on the patient sondition. 

G. ANTEPAR+UM GNGGING ,b,SSESSMEN+ !See +able 1): 

418



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeeslaFR13sia GaFe Gt1iEfeliAes 
Page 11 of16 

.'.l.1 .--AA-"S-"-S e"'S"'S"-ftco><r-<s:Ui g:un:,,:s>--<o'>lf'-'S"<'e"'-'•"''e"'re"-"O"-r .\AY,U::'O"'rso:.e:unui "n g"'-"'p""rei:><e:uc>tl a""m"""P"'S"'i a'-'S"')"''m"P"'t~O"'m"-'S"-OA-r .... di=1<e"''"'.'e1ll o<+pi+m"""e"'n.i.t mof 

2. 

4. 

eclampsia 
Prolongation of pregnancy to optimize fetal maturation shall be weighed against risk of 
pregnancy continuation. 
3. Preeclampsia without severe features (mild):Refer to Related Document: 

a. 

b. 
G. 

d. 

Nursing Assessment FreEjuency for Patients with Pre eclampsia 
Obtain blood pressure, pulse, respirations every 4 hours. Include oxygen 
saturation values if patient is receiving magnesium sulfate. 
Assess lung sounds every 4 heurs. 
Evaluate deep tendon reflexes (DTR's), clonus, level of oonsoieusness (LOG), 
headache, visual disturbances, epigastric pain every feur hours. 
Obtain non stress test (NST) or monitor fetal heart rate with uterine activity fer a 
minimum of aO minutes every shift, as condition 'Narrants, and per provider order 

e. Assess fer fetal movement each shift 
f. Monitor intal<e and output (l&O) at a minimum every 2 hours. 
Severe Preeclampsia:Refer to Relatecl Document: Nursing Jl.ssessment FreEjuency 
for Patients with Pre Eclampsia 
a. Obtain blood pressure, pulse, respirations and 02 sats heurly. 
b. Assess lung sounds every two hours 
o. Evaluate deep tendon reflmms (DTR's), olonus, level of consciousness (LOG), 

headache, visual disturbances, epigastric pain every four hours. 
d. Monitor Fl=IR and uterine activity continuously 
e. Monitor l&O hourly 

l=I. INTRJl.PARTUM ONGOING ASSESSMENT (See Table 1): 
1. Preeclampsia without severe features (mild): 

a. Obtain blood pressure, pulse and respirations heurly Include oxygen saturation 
values if patient is receiving magnesium sulfate. 

b. Assess lung sounds every 4 hours. 
o. Evaluate deep tendon reflelms (DTR's), clonus, level of consciousness (LOG), 

headache, visual disturbances, epigastric pain every four hours. 
d. Monitor Fl=IR and uterine activity continuously 
e. Monitor l&O at a minimum every 2 hours. 

2. Severe Preeclampsia: 
a. Obtain blood pressure, pulse, respirations and 02 sats every ;JO minutes. 
b. Assess lung seunds every 2 hours 
o. Evaluate deep tendon reflmms (DTR's), clonus, level of consciousness (LOG), 

headache, visual disturbances, epigastric pain every feur hours. 
d. Monitor Fl=IR and uterine activity continuously. 
e. Monitor l&O hourly. 

I. POSTPARTUM TO DISCHARGE ONGOING Jl.SSESSMENT (See Table 1): 
1. Preeclampisa without severe features ( mild): 

a. Obtain blood pressure, pulse and respirations every feur hours. Include OJ<ygen 
saturation values if patient is receiving magnesium sulfate. 

b. Assess lung setinds every feur heurs 
o. Evaluate deep tenden reflmms (DTR's), clonus, level of consciousness (LOG), 

headache, visual disturbances, epigastric pain every feur hours. 
d. Monitor l&O at a minimum every 2 heurs, while on Magnesium Sulfate or every 4 

hours, otherwise 

419



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFOocfaRl~Sia Care GbliEleliRes 
Page 12 of16 

2. aevere Preeolampsia: 
a. Obtain blood pressure, pulse, respirations and 02 sats every hour during the 

lntrapartum peried for appreximately the first 24 hours after delivery then 
every four hours. 

b. 

G. 

d. 

Assess lung sound every 2 hours for the first 24 hours after delivery and then 
every four hours 
Evaluate deep tendon reflexes (DTR's), olonus, level of oonsoiousness (LOG), 
headaohe, visual disturbanoes, epigastrio pain every four hours. 
Monitor l&O hourly until MagnesitiHJ Sulfate disoontinued. 

E. REFERENCES: 
1. Chronic hypertension in pregnancy. ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 203. American 

College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet Gynecol 2019;133: e26-50. 
2. Gestational hypertension and preeclampsia, ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 222. 

American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet Gynecol 2020;135: 
e237-60. 

3. Maurice L. Druzin, MD; Laurence E. Shields, MD; Nancy L. Peterson, RNC, PNNP, 
MSN; Christa Sakowski, MSN, RN, C-ONQS, C-EFM, CLE; Valerie Cape, BSBA; 
Christine H. Morton, PhD. Improving Health Care Response to Hypertensive 
Disorders of Pregnancy, a California Maternal Quality Care Collaborative Quality 
Improvement Toolkit, 2021. 

M. Simpson, K., Creehan, P., O'Brien-Abel, N., Roth, C., & Rohan, A. (2020). Perinatal 
Nursing 5th ed. Philadelphia, PA: Wolters Kluwer. 

4. Druzin, M, ahields, L, Peterson, N, Gape, V, (20143). Preeolampsia Tooll<it: Improving 
Health Gare Response to Preeolampsia ( California Maternal Quality Gare Collaborative 
(CMQCC) Toolkit to Transform Maternity Gare) Developed under oontraot #11 10006 
with the California Department of Publio Health; Maternal, Child and Adolesoent Health 
Division, Published by the GMQGG. 

5. /\COG. Diagnosis and Management of Preeolampsia and Eolampsia #33. /\merioan 
Gollegeongress of Obstetrioians and Gyneoologists Praotioe lilulletin Number 33. 20102 
(Reaffirmed 20182). 

6. AGOG. Hypertension in Pregnanoy: Report of the Amerioan College of Obstetrioians 
and Gyneoelogists' Task feroe on Hypertension in Pregnanoy. Obstet Gyneool. 2013; 
122(5): 1122 1131. 

7. Payne 13, Magee L, Cote/\, et al. PIER.a proteinuria: Relationship with adverse maternal 
and perinatal outoome. Journal of Obstetrios and Gynaeoology Canada. 2011; 33:588 
§Sh 

!l. /\GOG Committee Opinion no. 514. Emergent therapy for aoute onset, severe 
hypertension with preeolampsia or eolampsia. Obstet Gyneool. 2011 (Reaffirmed 2019); 
118: 1465 1468. 

9. aimpson K, Crehan P. Perinatal Nursing 4§1
1> ed. Philadelphia: 

Wolters/Klmver/Lippinoott Williams & Wilkins; 202014. 

F. RELATED DOCUMENT($): 
1. Patient Care Services Procedure: Magnesium Sulfate, Administration in Obstetric 

Patients 
2. Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Eclampsia Management in the 

Antepartum, intrapartum or Postpartum Period. 
3. Women and Newborn Services Procedure: Fetal Heart Rate (FHR) 

Surveillance/Monitoring 

420



Women and Newborn SeNices 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPFeeslaFR13sia Cara C1:1iEleliAes 
Page 13 of16 

Jo 
Patient Care Serviaes Proaedure: Administration of Magnesium Sulfate in the 
Obstetriaal Patient 

V\lornen and Newborn Serviaes Poliay: Fetal Heart Rate SurveillenaeSurveillanoe and 
Monitoring 
Standards ef Care fer the l\ntepartum, lntrapartum er Pestpartwm patient 

1. Ealampsia Management in the l\ntepartum, lntrapartum er Pest Partum Period 

421



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPrees!aFR13sia Care Gl:lidel+Aes 
Page 14of16 

TABLE 1. NURSl~JG A88E88ME~ff FREQUE~JCY 

" ru Preeclampsia ·.vithout Severe Features (Mild) 

... - - . -" 

AAtepart11 IAtFapart11 Pestpart11 
~ m:!'. m:!'. 

BP, Pulse, Every 4 l9Bllfi.y Every 4 
Respirations, RellfS RellfS 
SaOO 
lung SounEis Every 4 Every 4 Every 4 

AetlfS RellfS RellfS 
lovol of 
Consciousnes 
s., Every 4 Every 4 Every 4 
EEiema, AetlfS RellfS RellfS 
D+Rs., 
cleA1:1s, 
Assessment 
for FieaEiaoFie, 
vi5tial 
Elisti;rbanoes, 
eMlastfiG ·-··-· 
Fetal StatYS Every sFiilt Continuous NIA 
and uterine 

T. - - ~ 

l&-G Every 2 Every 2 Every 2 
RellfS ROOFS RellfS 

(*)This is the minimum frequency recommended for the patient NOT on Magnesium 
Sulfate. 

- ... - . ~- ... - . -. . 
SeveFe PreeGlampsia lntrapart11m and Pestpart11m aA 
- - . .... .... 

BP, Pulse, Every :JQ minutes Eluring maintenance Magnesium Sulfate 
Respirations, Sa02 AElministration, if patient is lntrapart11m, or is an 11nstable 

Antepart11m or Pestpart11m. •Alhen the patient is stable the 
blood press11re may be every 4 he11Fs or mere fFeq11ent 
dependent en patient Genditien er prevideFs eFders. 

Continuous Sa02 during Magnesium Sulfate infusion for 
ilntrapartum. 
For Anlepartum and Postpartum patient Sa02 oFieok witFi 1,qtal 
~ig_r;; .. _ . . . O' 

lung Sounds Every 2 ROUFS foF an Unstable ,6,ntepart11m, lntrapart11m er 
PGstpart11m {needin!l m11ltiple IVP mediGaliens !Fial Ga11se 
taGhyGaFdia) er every 4 he11rs if the patient is Gonsi<lered 
stable,. 

bevel el 
Consciousness, 
Edema, !HRs, E•;ery 4 Rours or more freq11ently dependent on pt Gondilion. 
Glen11s, Notify previder of any ohan!JOS iR GoAditioA. 
Assessment leF 

422



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertension in Pregnancy GuidelinesPreeslam13sia Care GlJidelines 
Pa e 15 of 16 

Attachment 1: 
Antihypertensive Treatment Algorithm for Hypertensive Emergencies 

j.labetalol IV as Primary L Antihypertensive 

l 
Initial dose 

20 mg labetalol IV 

Repeat BP in 10 
minutes 

~p ~ 160 and DBP ~ 110 

L Give 40 mg labetalol IV 

( 
J Repeat BP in 10 

minutes 

SBP ~ 160 and DBP ~ 110 
Give 80 mg labetalol IV 

J Repeat BP in 10 
minutes 

SBP ~ 1fi0 and DBP ~ 110 
Give hydralazine 10 mg IV 

l Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160 and DBP ~ 110 

Give hydralazine 10 mg IV 
and obtain emergent 

consultation from 
maternal-fetal medicine, 

anesthesia, internal 
medicine, or critical care 

for transfer of care or 
continuous IV infusion 

J r 
J 

*Hydralazine IV as Primary 
Antihypertensive 

Initial dose: 5 - 10 mg 
hydralazine IV 

l Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160 and DBP ~ 110 I 
Give hydralazme 10 mg I~ 

J Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

If SBP ~ 160 or 
DBP~ 110 

Convert to labetalol pathway 
Give labetalol 20 mg IV per 

\...._ algorithm ___ _ 

I Repeat BP in 10 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160 °' DBP ~ 110 

Give labetalol 40 mg IV 
and obtain emergent 

consultation from 
maternal-fetal medicine, 

anesthesia, internal 
m edicine, or critical ca re 

for transfer of care or 
continuous IV infusion 

r 
Nifedipine PO as Primary 

Anti hypertensive 

Initial dose: nifedi pine 
10 mg PO immediate release 

I Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160 or DBP ~ 110 Give 
nifedipine 20 mg PO 

J Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160or DBP~ 110Give 
nifedlpine 20 mg PO 

J Repeat BP in 20 
minutes 

SBP ~ 160 or DBP ~ 110 

Convert to labetalol 20 

mg IV pathway 
and obtain emergent 

consultation from 
maternal-fetal medicine, 

internal medicine, 
anesthesia or critical care 

for transfer of care or 
continuous IV infusion 

ACOG Practice Bulletin 203, 
2019 

423



Women and Newborn Services 
Hypertens ion in Pregnancy GuidelinesPreeslaR'lJlSia Care G1,1i9elines 
Page 16of16 

Target BP: 130-150/80-100 mm Hg 

Once BP threshold is achieved: 
• Q10 min for 1 hr 
~ Q15 min for 1 hr 
• Q30 min for 1 hr 
• Q1hr for 4 hrs 

•intravenous hydralazine or labetalol should be given over 2 
minutes. In the presence of sinus bradycardia or a history of 
asthma, hydralazine or nifedipine are preferred as initial 
agents. If maternal HR> 110, labetaloi is preferred. 

Utilize the Magnesium Sulfate Administration Policy, this policy, Eclampsia Policy and Orders 
to determine if assessment frequency needs to be more frequent than in the charts above. 
Vital signs and assessments may always be more frequent based on the patient condition. 

424



{&>)Tri-City Health Care Dist r-r: l!IE=-=L-=E~T""E;:;---f;;-o-:11:-o-w----;;A,-d"'""m-=-i n-:is-t:-r-a""ti_v_e----, 
Oceanside, California Policy: Event Reporting 396 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

ISSUE DATE: -06/07 

REVISION DATE{st: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

,
6

•. PURPOSE 

SUBJECT: Adverse Reaction to Meds 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 
n/a 

1. Patient modioation events inol<1ding adverse roaotions m<1st be reported appropriately and aotod 
<1pon in a timely manner. This polioy defines the prooedure to be followed by tho Center when a 
medioation orrorlroaotion/ovent 000<1rs. 

B. POLICY 
1. The Center will adhere to the hospital's 13harmaoy poliey(s) related to modieation 

events/adverse reaotion and <1tilizo ap13ropriato hos13ital ro13orting forms. 
2. All adverse drng reaotions/modioation events will be reported immediately and 'Nill inol<1de 

notifioation of the 13raotitionor •,o;ho ordered tho drug, as well as tho patient' family. 
3. Apwopriato dooumontation will be rooordod in tho modioal rooord. 
4. Tho pharmaoy will report sorio<1s adverse drug reaotions to tho Food and Drug Administration, 

as reEJuirod. 

C. PROCEDURE 
1. Tho nurse will: 

a. Notify tho attending physioian of tho modioation ovent/reaotion 
b. Notify the patient/family of the inoident 
o. Complete the appropriate hos13ital reporting form 
d. Return oom13leted form to the Pharmacy immediately 
~ Deo<1ment the eventlreaotien, the orders rooeived, and the effoot/oonditien of the patient 

in the patient's medioal reoord. 

425



\®)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 
1. This Guideline has been developed to: 

SUBJECT: Age-Specific Guidelines 

--02./-2-007 /22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

a. Address the age-specific needs of various groups of patients that may be treated at the 
Center. 

b. Provide optimal age-specific care for the patient population served in the Center. 

B. POLICY: 
1. The program has been designed to meet the specific medical needs of the adult/ geriatric 

population. 
&.a. Under special circumstances and on a case-by-case basis, needs of other patient 

populations may be considered. 
Job. Neonate patients will not be treated at the Center. 

4. In the event that a patient frem anether age greup is treated at the Center, age specific 
guidelines will be utilized te eptimize care. 

i>,2. Age-related needs will be considered in the plan of care for each patient. 
€h3. Equipment and supplies used in the care of patients will be age-specific. 
M. Other resource persons/departments will be consulted as needed to validate and enhance the 

care provided. 
g_ Employee perfermance appraisals 'Nill reflect age specific evaluation. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. An age-specific plan of care will be developed for each patient treated at the Center. 
2. Age-specific factors/elements of care associated with each age group will be addressed during 

every encounter by the clinic staff using the tables .below. 
3. Appropriate intervention specific to each age group will be identified during the initial visit and 

reviewed periodically for appropriateness. 
4. Physical limitations/impairments, as well as learning or other deficits, will be considered when 

implementing educational/training measures. 
5. The education provided will be given at the level of understanding for each patient and will 

include family members whenever possible. 
6. Resource materials, persons and departments such as tho ER will be consulted to ensure 

appropriateness of tho treatment plan. 

426



. . 

. . . 

. · ... • . . . i · 1 I 
. ' . ., 

. . . . 

. ii f 1 • I I . l 1ltll 

I • 11 1111 . •I 

. I . t ·1 ! f . l . f I 

427



I . 
.. . . 

. •I HHHt •··. I ti 

I, 1 I 

428



. f : . . . . . 

. . 

. . 

· ti • U~ Ill U1Hi Ji . f · 

.·t!t t .iHttH ti• •H·ti. J 

429



020 
~~~ 

§.~& 
~&~ 

. . . . . 

. . 

. .. .. . I j 
. .. . . . . . . . . . 

I . . I 11 

430



.. . . . . . . I 
. " . . . . 

. 1Htfltf f H·I 

. · Hltti lf 

431



. . 

. .. . . . f . .. 
. . I . 

.. . 

. 1 · 1 11n ui inu 11 

: -}IJ . 

432



{&)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POblCY MANUAb 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Continuum of Care 

~07/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 
12/13 

1. Medical treatment is often specialized, focusing and/or targeting only the condition for which the 
patient presents. This results in fragmentation of medical care that can sometimes adversely 
affect the progress and wellbeing of the person seeking medical attention. Treatment of a 
patient must be all-inclusive to the extent possible or feasible and must consider such factors 
as: 
a. Insurance/primary care provider 
b. Physicians currently involved in care 
c. Other underlying illnesses/conditions being treated 
d. Current treatment regimens 
e. Medical services utilized by the patient 
f. Place and type of residence 
g. The Center considers integration of medical services to be an essential component of 

the purpose and model of the program. An individualized plan of care is developed for 
each patient treated, and reasonable effort is made to incorporate all pertinent agents/ 
agencies/therapies across the continuum of care. 

I B. POLICY: 
1. The Center physician will communicate his/her recommendations for the plan of care to the 

patient's primary physician whenever possible. 
2. Initial assessment of the patient will be conducted in such a way as to yield pertinent information 

that may impact the plan of care (Admission Assessment, H&P) 
3. The clinical staff will work to incorporate other aspects of care discovered during the admission 

process, notifying the Center physician of issues that may require medical intervention. 

I c. PROCEDURE: 
1. Physician Collaboration: Center physicians will collaborate with the patient's primary physician 

after initial visit, whenever possible. 
2. Coordination of Care with lnsurance/Primarv Care Providers: Communication procedures for 

insurance/primary care providers will be established during the referral/admission period. The 
office coordinator will inform the clinic staff of the proper procedures to follow when 
opportunities to coordinate care are identified. Patient information will be provided as requested 
by the insurance/primary care agent following all applicable confidentiality regulations and 
policies. Every effort will be made to comply with case management protocols as directed by 
the providers. 

433



Wound Care Center 
Policy Continuum of Care 
Page 2 of 2 

3. Hospital Admission: Direct hospital admissions from the clinic will be conducted according to 
hospital policy. The Center staff will provide patient medical information, reason for admission 
and admission orders, if obtained. The patient will be transported to the assigned room/area by 
the clinic staff to ensure safe and appropriate transport. 

4. Family Participation: Family members will be encouraged to participate in the plan of care and 
will be included in the education process. Significant others will be included in the process at 
the patient's request whenever feasible. 

5. Patient/Family Education materials: Educational materials will be provided to the 
patient/family/caregiver whenever available and in varying forms. This may include educational 
sheets, video, brochures, etc. Materials will be developed to cover significant issues/conditions 
to the extent that is feasible and appropriate to the level of understanding, and in some cases 
the language spoken (currently Spanish added). All distributed materials will be recorded in the 
patient record. 

6. Long-Term/Extended Care Facilities (L TCF/ECF): The long-term care facility plays a major role 
across the continuum of care. Collaboration in the plan of care will be encouraged with the 
patient's resident facility. Information regarding the treatment plan and other relevant 
information will be communicated to the facility within a reasonable amount of time after each 
patient visit. The clinician assigned to the patient will communicate by telephone as necessary 
with the assigned contact person to facilitate patient care. 

7. Home Health Referrals: For optimal treatment benefits, appropriate home health referrals are 
arranged per MD order after home support resources have been evaluated. The clinician may 
identify the need for home health support and make the recommendation to the clinic physician. 
Home health agencies will be selected based on past track record with providing reliable and 
quality services or patient's preference. In some cases, patients are referred to their primary 
care providers to obtain home health support. 

8. Home Instruction: After each clinic visit, the patient will be given written home instructions, 
which will be legible and inl a large enough font (12) for most patients to read. The assigned 
clinician will review the instructions verbally with the patient before they leave the clinic. An 
interpreter will be used if necessary. The clinician will evaluate the patient's comprehension to 
determine if additional instruction, reinforcement, and/or follow-up telephone call will be 
necessary to ensure patient understanding. 

9. Diagnostic Services: The Center staff will assist patients with their appointments for diagnostic 
services ordered by the Center physician, as appropriate. If the Center staff makes 
appointments at other facilities, the patient will be given verbal and written instructions. 

10. Supplies & Equipment: Reasonable effort will be made to assist patients with obtaining their 
medical supplies, equipment, etc. At the patient's request, recommendations may be offered for 
DME, pharmacy, etc. that the Center knows to be reliable with providing the necessary product 
in a timely manner. 

11. Telephone Support: Patients and their family can expect continued support from the Center 
staff during regular business hours during their tenure in the program. Patients/families are 
encouraged to call the Center for professional instruction and guidance or if they need clarity or 
additional information regarding the plan of care. Telephone inquiries will be directed to the 
appropriate personnel (e.g., case manager) for proper management. Telephone inquiries will be 
noted in the medical record. The Center physician will be notified for further orders, if indicated. 
When appropriate, the patient will be given information to contact the Center physician. 

434



(®)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POblCY MANYAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Diagnosis Specific Guidelines 

REVISION DATE~: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

02W07/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 
12/13 

1. Defines age-related diagnoses that may be treated at the Center 

I B. POLICY: 
1. For each diagnosis listed, the Center's clinical staff will follow the approved wound treatment 

guidelines regardless of age. 
2. The diagnoses that have been listed are provided by age category and are the most commonly 

treated in the age group designated. 
3. Diagnoses have not been listed for the neonate or infant, toddler, preschooler or school age 

as they will not be treated in the Center. 

TeddleF (1 q yeaFs) 
PFCscheel ( q 6 yeaFS) 
Scheel a§e (6 12 yeaFs) 

+ Burns 
+ Cen§enital feet deferniities 
~ Pest trnuma 
+-PFeSSUFe, secendaFy to 

Immobility 
+ Spina BifiEla 

Adolescent (13-18 years) 

v' Diabetes with neuropathy 
v' Diabetes with peripheral 

vascular disease 
v' Post-trauma 
v' Post-surgical wounds 
v' Sickle Cell Anemia 
v' Pressure ulcer, secondary 

to immobility 
v' Collagen/vascular disorders 
v' Burns 
v' Arterial Insufficiency 

Adult 
Geriatric 

(19-65 years) 
(66 years+) 

Sickle Cell Anemia 
v' Burns 
v' Diabetes with neuropathy 
v' Diabetes with peripheral 

vascular disease 
v' Venous statsis disease 
v' Collagen vascular disorders 
v' Post-trauma 
v' Pressure ulcer secondary 

to immobility 

435



l&J\ 
'tO rfTri-City Health Care District 

Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Adminsitration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Diagnostic Tests 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Timely reporting of diagnostic test results is an important aspect of planning or changing the 
course of treatment. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Diagnostic tests relevant to the diagnosing and planning of the patient's care will be included in 

the medical record in a timely manner. 
2. Ancillary/diagnostic testing may include: 

a. Laboratory 
b. Radiology 
c. Vascular lab 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The RN/case manager/PT will track/review all test results of their assigned caseload or 

physician assignment. 
2. The clinician will notify the Center physician of significant findings as directed by the physician 

(telephone or fax) and document the communication in the medical record. 
3. All results will be placed in the physician folder for review prior to placing in the patient chart. 
4. Once reviewed and initialed by the clinic physician, the results will be filed in the appropriate 

section of the patient record by the clinic staff. 
5. If the primary clinic physician is unavailable for critical or significant values, the patient's primary 

physician or designated on-call physician will be notified. 
6. Critical/significant values will be given to the Center's Medical Director or designee for follow-up 

when physicians involved in the care of the patient are not available. 

436



~1?/Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DA TE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Environment of Care (EOC) 

02J:J.007 /22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 
12/10 

1. In order to provide a safe environment for patients, visitors and staff, this policy identifies each 
aspect of the hospital's safety/EOG program as it relates to the clinic environment. 

I B. POLICY:-
1. Patients and visitors to the Center can expect a safe and sanitary environment. 
2. Associates of the Clinic will be ensured of a safe and sanitary work environment. 
3. Members of the staff will be competent in the safety/EOG standards set forth by the hospital. 
4. The clinic manager is responsible for the implementation of the safety/EOG program per 

hospital standards. 

I c. PROCEDURE: 
1. All staff members will be knowledgeable of and comply with the safety standards of the hospital. 
2. The Safety/EOG policies and procedures will be readily available to all associates and is located 

with the other P&P manuals. 
3. The hospital will provide safety/EOG training during the general orientation program each 

associate receives in the 30-day period from the date of hire. 
4. A unit-specific safety orientation will be presented to the new associate within the orientation 

period. 
5. Safety/EOG-related inservices will be presented at least quarterly and as neededthe monthly 

staff meetings. 
6. All associates will complete the annual competency requirements of the safety/EOG program, 

as required by the hospital. 
7. Safety-related incidents will be reported immediately, per hospital Incident Reporting policy. 
8. Topics/issues/plans to be addressed in the safety/EOG presentations include but are not limited 

to: 
a. Safety management 
b. Disaster 
c. Emergency preparedness 
d. Life safety 
e. Utility management 
f. Bioterrorism preparedness 
g. Bomb threats 
h. OSHA's exposure control plan for bloodborne pathogens 
i. TB control plan 

437



Wound Care Center 
Environment of Care 
Page 2 of 2 

j. Electrical power safety 
k. Loss of communication 
I. Hazardous materials (includes biohazardous) 
m. Fire safety 
n. Disaster plan 
o. MSDS program 
p. Infection control plan 
q. Emergency codes 
r. Security plan 
s. Medical equipment 

D. For more specific information, refer to the hospital's Environment of Care Manual. 

438



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POblCY MANUAb 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE 

SUBJECT: History & Physical 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Familiarity with the patient's medical history and current health status is essential to the plan of 
care developed for each patient seen at the Center. The initial process in the program consists 
of a thorough documentation of the patients' medical history and a physical examination. 
Factors to the chief complaint are the main emphasis of this process. 

B. POLICY 
1. As part of the initial evaluation, the Center physician will complete a history and physical per 

Medical Staff Policy; Medical Record Documentation Requirements using the hospital 
approved H&P form (must be legible) or may dictate a report if all the components of the 
Center's H&P form are addressed. 

2. As part of tho preparation for surgery, a pro operative history am! physical will be done that 
meets the follewing conditions: 
a. Tho H&P must be done prior to tho procedure/admission, per hospital policy 
b. If tho H&P was done more than 7 days prior ts tho dale of tho surgery, the primary 

physician or dosignoo must update tho H&P by indicating "no change", dating and 
signing tho H&P or rocerding any changes that have occurred before admissien/surgory. 

tr. Tho patient must have medical clearance prier ts any surgioal procedure. 

G. PROCEmUR!i 
1. Tho Genier physician will perform tho initial exam and medical history revio'N. 
2. Any staff physioian, primary physician, or designoo may de tho pro operative H&P and clear tho 

patient medically for surgery. 
2. Tho findings will be decumontod en tho appropriate forms or diotatod according to hospital 

policy/procedure. 

C. RELATED DOCUMENT: 
~1. Medical Staff Policy; Medical Record Documentation Requirements 

439



ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

{w)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE CENTl!R & 
HYPERBARIC CLINIC MEDICINE POLICY MANIJAb 

SUBJECT: Hospital Admission from the Center 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Wound Care Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

02/2{)07122 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. This policy delineates the procedure for an unplanned admission to the hospital directly from the 
Center. 

B. POLICY: 
1. Patient admissions to the hospital from the Center will be done in a safe and efficient manner. 
2. The clinic physician will discuss the recommendation to admit the patient with the patient/family 

and tho patient's primar/ physician. 
3. The Center will provide pertinent medical, demographic and treatment information to the 

hospital immediately upon admission. 

I C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Upon evaluation by the clinic physician, if admission is deemed necessary, orders for admission 

will be generated. 
a. The clinic staff physioian will contact the patient's primary physician to discuss his/her 

recommendation to admit the patient (if the patient is not triaged to the ER) 
b. If the primary physioian ooncurs, the patient will be adrnitted under the oare ef the 

primary physician 
c. The Admitting Department/nurse will be notified immediately by tho support 

stafflreceptionist about the pending admission. 
a. Wound Care Center (WCC) Registered Nurse (RN)/Case Manager will call the 

Administrative Supervisor (AS) and request a bed. 
b. AS will provide the name and phone number of the hospitalist that will admit the 

patient. 
c. WCC supervising physician will call the hospitalist and give report. The hospitalist 

will advise the supervising physician if they will accept the direct admit. 
d. If the patient is accepted for direct admission, the WCC RN/Case Manager will fax 

the demographic information to the AS. 
e. Depending on the bed availability the patient will do one of the following: 

i. Wait at the WCC for notice that a bed is available 
ii. Go straight to Registration at Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) 
iii. Go home and wait for a call from the AS advising them that a bed is 

available and they should go to Registration at TCMC 
d. A copy of pertinent medical, demographic and treatment information will be provided 

440



Wound Care Center 
Hospital Admission from the Center 
Page 2 of2 

o. Tho RN/case manager will provide a verbal report to tho unit nurse to ensure continuity 
of care 

f. Tho RN/case manager will act as liaison between the hospital and the family and answer 
any questions that might arise about the unplanned admission 

g. If the patient is not accompanied by family or significant other, the RN/case manager will 
make the appropriate notifications 

h. If the patient is a resident of an extended care facility, the RN/case manager will notify 
the Director of Nursing or designee about the pending admission 

i. Tho surgeon and/or the surgeon's office will schedule any surgical procedures planned 
during the hospital admission 

j. The patient will Ile kept in the Center and closely monitored until notified by the hospital 
Admitting Department or designated nursing unit. After clinic hours, tho nursing 
supervisor will provide instructions for patient disposition. 

k. The RN/case manager will coordinate the transfer of the patient to the designated 
nursing unit with a member of the Center staff and transport personnel, until the 
designated nursing unit officially receives the patient 

1,i. If the patient is unstable and cannot be admitted immediately to an acute care bed, the 
patient will be transferred via family member to the Emergency DepartmentER after 
tho ER has Ileen notified. 

441



ISSUE DATE: 

(®)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

-06/07 SUBJECT: Hypo-Hyperglycemia Management 

REVISION DATE{S-}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Hypoglycemia and hyperglycemia may be a life-threatening situation, requiring an immediate 
response. 
a. Hypoglycemia occurs when diabetic patients who are taking oral hypoglycemic 

medication or insulin have: 
i. Not eaten enough 
ii. Exercised more than usual 
iii. Taken more medialionmedication 

b. Hyperglycemia occurs: 
i. When oral agents/insulin is not enough or has not been taken 
ii. As a result of illness, stress, or too much food 

c. This policy provides the guideline for management of this population at the Center 

B. POLICY: 
1. Patients being treated at the Center who are taking insulin or oral hypoglycemic agents will be 

monitored and treated as necessary for hypoglycemia (blood sugar level less than (<) 70mg/dl 
or less than (<)#120mg/dl in the patient receiving HBOT). 

2. The most appropriate intervention to restore blood sugar level to within normal range will be 
utilized. 

3. Patients with blood sugar levels greater than ( > > 5400mg/dl will be directed to the ER for 
treatment. 

I c. PROCEDURE: 
1. Equipment: 

a. Finger puncture safety device 
b. Comfort Curve Accuchek Strip 
c. GTS - Glucose reflectance meter 
d. Fast-acting carbohydrate 

2. Hyperglycemia assessment and treatment 
a. Notify the Center/supervising physician of all elevated glucose levels for further orders 
b. Observe for signs and symptoms of hyperglycemia 
c. Patients with blood sugar level 3400mg/dl will be referred to the emergency room for 

treatment 
d. Patients with repeated episodes of elevated blood sugars will be considered for referral 

to a Diabetes Education Program 

442



Wound Care Center 
HypoMHyperglycemia Management 
Page 2 of 3 

3. Hypoglycemia assessment and treatment: 
a. Notify the Center/supervising physician for decreased glucose levels (less than [<] 

?Omg/dl or less than [<]-#120mg/dl in the patient receiving HBOT) 
b. Observe for signs and symptoms of hypoglycemia 
c. Patients with blood sugar level less than (<) ?Omg/dl will be treated as follows: 

i. NOTE: Patients receiving HBOT must be treated for hypoglycemia prior to entry 
into the hyperbaric chamber. Observational studies suggest that blood glucose 
decreases in diabetics undergoing HBOT by as much as 50mg/dl. 

f'4ii. If a patient is able to swallow: 
fa-11) Give patient one of the following (only the amounts listed): 

~a) 4 Eh!<lunces orange juice 
Jjb) 2-3 glucose tablets 
4jc) 4 wounces of regular soda (not diet) 
d) 1 cup water with 2 packets of sugar 

iii. If a patient is unable to chew: 
1) Give the patient 1 tube of oral glucose gel 

iv. If a patient is unable to follow direction, swallow or has a change in level of 
consciousness (LOC): 
§11) Call Paramedics 

ihv. If patient is on enteral feedings: 
1*1) Administer 8 ounces;;; of water with 2 packets of sugar through G-tube or 

NG tube 
h-lf hypoglyoemia persists, send patient to ER 

ihvi. Re-check capillary blood sugar 15 minutes after treatment. If blood sugar level 
continues to be less than(<) ?Omg/dl or less than (<)#120mg/dl in the patient 
receiving HBOT and/or signs and symptoms do not abate, repeat intervention in 
step (1) above (for patients who are able to swallow). 

iih-vii. After patient has responded to initial treatment, give additional food. If next meal 
is more than 1 hour away, give 2 packages of cheese and crackers. 

iv.viii. If patient's condition is unstable or hypoglycemic symptoms persist, notify the 
Center's supervising physician for possible referral to the ER for treatment. 

v-,ix. Instruct patients who develop hypoglycemia at the Center to monitor their blood 
sugar closely for at least 48 to 72 hours to prevent recurrence. 

vhx. When appropriate, use situation as a patient teaching opportunity. Teaching 
should be done after the hypoglycemia has been treated and resolved. Remind 
patient to: 
aj1) Carry glucose tablets or other fast-acting carbohydrate such as candy 
l:Jj2) Never skip meals 
Gj3) Never skip medication 

64. Documentation by supervising physician and/or RN 
a. Progress/clinician notes must include: 

i. Assessment prior to treatment 
ii. Treatment given 
iii. Response to treatment 

E,-5. NOTE: The elderly, debilitated, malnourished, or those with adrenal or pituitary insufficiency or 
alcohol intoxication are more likely to be susceptible to hypoglycemic episodes. 
a. Patients on biguanides (Glucophage), thiazolidinediones (Actos, Avandia) and/or alpha

glucosidase inhibitors (Precose, Glycet) are not likely to experience hypoglycemia 
except when receiving the oral hypoglycemic agents such as sulfonylurea and insulin. 

~D. REFERENCE(S): 
G-c1. A Core Curriculum for Diabetes Education, Second Edition 1998 
J=h.2. American Association of Diabetes Educators 

443



Wound Care Center 
Hypo-Hyperglycemia Management 
Page 3 of 3 

h3. The Prevention and Treatment of Complications of Diabetes Mellitus, Dept. of Health and 
Human Services, Public Health Services, Center for Disease Control, Atlanta, GA 1991, 
Chapter 2, Acute Glycemic Complications, pp 8-20 

JA. Parker and C. Fife, Hyperbaric Nursing, Chapter VI, pp 217-226. 

444



ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE CeNTeR & 
HYPERBARIC MEDICINECblNIC 

SUBJECT: Medical Emergencies 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Sudden and unexpected medical events may occur at any time. To minimize 
adverse/detrimental affects to the patient, prompt/immediate response from a competent and 
qualified staff is required. This policy outlines the process by which the clinic remains current 
and capable to respond effectively to medical emergencies. 

I B. POLICY: 
1. The provision for emergent care in the Center will remain current through the appropriate 

certification and practice of its staff members. 
2. All clinical staff will maintain current CPR certification anEI be competent in: 

a. IElentifying emergency situations 
b. The proper notification/communication process 
c. Palpating pulses 
d. Maintaining an adequate airway 
e. Tlie use of owygen tlierapy 
f. Perferming adequate chest cempression 

3. Response to an emergency by the clinical staff will be limited to basic CPR 
4. Basic emergency response equipment will be readily available in the clinic at all times and in 

good working order. 
5. Emergency equipment will be checked, per hospital policy, and replaced as necessary. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Once a valid emergency situation has been identified, other clinic staff members will be called 

immediately to assist and print patient demographics and medication list. 
a. The support staff (or any available staff member) will dial 911. 
b. Basic CPR will be administered until the advanced emergency team has arrived 
c. The support staff, with the assistance and direction from the clinical staff, will be 

responsible for coordinating the patient/visitor traffic flow, as well as the advanced 
emergency responder traffic. 

d. The support staff will also maintain order in the clinic and be available for questions from 
patients/families, etc. while adhering to all applicable privacy and confidentiality policies 
and regulations. 

e. The RN/case manager/PT will coordinate the clinic's emergency response activity and 
remain with the patient at all times. 

445



Wound Care Center 
Medical Emergencies 
Page 2 of2 

f. The RN/case manager/PT or designee will notify family/friends/caregiver of the 
emergency and provide a private waiting area. If family member or patient 
representative is not present, every effort will be made to contact the appropriate party. 

2. The nurse manager, program director, or medical director will conduct mock emergency 
scenarios periodically to assess staff readiness. 

446



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANYAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Medical Record Review 

2/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Documentation of assessment findings, procedure/treatment, etc. and appropriate signatures 
must always be included in the medical record. Pursuant to the hospital policy, the following 
defines the process used to identify incomplete records and the steps taken to correct 
deficiencies in the Center. 

I B. POLICY: 
1. All charts will be reviewed for incomplete information after each clinic visit and after discharge of 

patient from the program prior to transferring to the health information department of the 
hospital. 

2. Incomplete records will be returned to the appropriate clinician for completion. 
3. The quality management/improvement process will be utilized as needed to improve the 

compliance with record completion. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The offioe ooordinalorclinic lead nurse will review the medical record for incomplete 

information during the data entry process. 
2. The offioo ooordinalorclinic lead nurse will communicate the findings to the appropriate 

person(s). 
3. When indicated, the clinic physician will be notified and the medical records put aside and 

labeled using the hospital's customary flagging method. 
4. The clinician will be responseresponsible for ensuring that the record is completed. 

a. The clinician works collaboratively with the offioe ooordinalorclinic lead nurse to 
achieve record completion. 

5. The hospital's medical staff rules and regulations will be followed to complete the medical 
record. 
a. If the record is not completed within 30 days, the medical director or designee will be 

notified. 
b. Identified patterns of record deficiencies will be reported to the Center's physician quality 

director for review. 

447



(&)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE Cl!NTl!R & 
HYPERBARIC MEDICINECLINIC 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE: 

Wound Care Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Minor Debridement 

omtl07/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. It is necessary to distinguish between procedures that may be done at the Center and 
procedures that must be done in another setting, such as the operating room. This policy 
outlines the type of debridement procedure allowable at the Center. 

I B. POLICY: 
1. All applicable medical staff regulations/bylaws will be followed when performing invasive 

procedures in the Center. 
2. Minor debridement may be performed using topical or local anesthetic by the Center physician. 
3. Procedures requiring narcotic analgesia/sedation and/or involved surgical intervention will be 

performed in the surgical suite. 
4. The patient will be informed of the risks/benefits of the procedure and sign a written consent 

upon admission and give verbal consent prior to any invasive procedure, per hospital policy. 

I C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The scope of service is determined by the Center staff physician for non-emergent operative 

and other invasive procedures in accordance with "Assessment of Patients" standards. 
2. The determination of the appropriateness of the procedure(s) for a patient is based on: 

a. The patient's medical, anesthesia and drug history 
b. The patient's physical status 
c. The diagnostic data 
d. The risks/benefits of the procedure 
e. The need to administer blood/blood components, which would preclude clinic 

debridement 
3. The physician will discuss the risks/benefits associated with the procedure(s) as well as 

alternatives/options to the procedure(s) with the patient/patient representative before informed 
consent is obtainedsigned. 

448



ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

\&>)Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE &CENTER 
HYPERBARIC MEDICINECblNIC 

SUBJECT: Nutritional Screening 

REVISION DATE: 

Wound Care Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. PURPOSE: 

~07/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Adequate response to metabolic demands caused by certain illnesses/conditions is vital to the 
body's healing capabilities. Recognizing and treating malnutrition is often as important or equal 
to the primary diagnosis. Nutritional screening and management: 
a. Provides patient baseline nutritional status, which helps to determine appropriate course 

of action to ensure optimal nutritional support 
b. Allows the body to limit catabolism, promote healing, and go into an anabolic state. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All patients entered into the wound management program will be screened nutritionally upon 

admission. In addition, patients may be screened prior to surgery if applicable, and more 
frequently as indicated. 

2. Patients identified with nutritional needs during the screening process will have further 
evaluation as indicated. 

C. PROCEDURE: 
1. Nutritional screening is completed at the time of admission to the program, prior to surgery, and 

more frequently as indicated. 
2. The indicators for poor nutritional status requiring intervention include: 

a. Loss of appetite, near or complete starvation for 5 or more days 
b. Recent unintended weight loss >10%-15% of normal body weight 
c. Increased metabolic needs (e.g., fever, trauma, infection, burns, surgery) 
d. Blood glucose levels out of control 
e. Fluid loss from open draining wounds 
f. Chronic illnesses such as diabetes, peripheral vascular disease, chronic open wounds, 

renal failure, liver disease, or thyroid disease 
g. Low percentage (<20%) of lymphocytes 
h. Anticipated prolongation of surgical recovery time, including time to return to adequate 

oral intake 
i. Muscle contractures/wasting/atrophy 
j. Significant weakness 
k. Temporal muscle wasting 
I. Depression, if it affects appetite/intake of nutrient-dense foods 

3. The tests specific to nutritional deficit that may be ordered include: 

449



Wound Care Center Hyperbaric Clinic 
Nutritional Screening 
Page 2 of 2 

a. Prealbumin 
b. Serum albumin 
c. Serum transferrin level 
d. Hb A 1, 

e. Lipid panel 
f. CBC 
g. Chem 7 
h. The course of treatment is selected based on relevant clinical and laboratory findings, as 

appropriate. 
4. Intervention may include prescribing one or more of the following: 

a. Nutritional supplements such as Vitamin C, Vitamin E, Zinc, or multivitamins 
b. Protein and caloric intake, e.g., Progen powder, Ensure, Nephro, Glucerna 
c. Anabolic steroids, e.g., Oxandrin 
d. Diabetes counseling 
e. Recommendation for increased muscle activity such as active or passive exercises 
f. Consultation with the hospital's registered dietician to assess and develop a treatment 

plan to improve nutritional status 
g. Consultation with the hos13ital's gocial gorvices Do13artment for evaluation of home 

neeEls in the continuum of care 

D. REFERENCE(S): 
1. Carney D, Meguid M, Current Concepts in Nutritional Assessment, ARCH SURG/VOL 137, Jan. 

1992 
2. Hensrudd DD, Nutritional Screening and Assessment, Med Clin North Am, 1999; 83:1525-1546 
3. Bergstrom N, Bennett MA, Carlson CE, et al. Treatment of Pressure Ulcers Clinical Practice 

Guidelines, Number 15, Rockville, MD. Agency for Health Care Policy and Research, December 
1994. 

4. Pressure Ulcers in Adults: Prediction and Prevention. Clinical Practice Guideline, Number 3. 
AHCPR Publication 92-0047. Rockville, MD: Agency for Health Care Policy and Research, 
Public Health Service, US Department of Health and Human Services, May 1992. 

5. American Diabetes Association: Evidence-based nutrition principles and recommendations for 
the treatment and prevention of diabetes and related complications. Diabetes Care 25 (Suppl. 
1 ): S50-S60, 2002. 

450



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE & Cl!NTl!R 
HYPERBARIC MEDICINECblNIC 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

A. POLICY: 

SUBJECT: Scope of Services 

02/20 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. The Center for Wound Care & Hyperbaric Medicine ("Center") provides advanced outpatient 
therapy/treatment for chronic non-healing wounds and ostomies consistent with specific medical 
needs of the patients. The primary goal of the Center is to provide vital services to the 
population at risk, which includes patients of multiple and differing socioeconomic and cultural 
backgrounds. These are patients with diabetes, rental failure, peripheral vascular disease, 
hypertension, and many other chronic illnesses and their sequelae. 

2. The main objective of the program is to be a "Center of Excellence", providing state-of-the-art 
patient care service utilizing advanced treatment and prevention modalities. 

I B. AGE POPULATIONS: 
1. The program has been designed to meet specific medical needs of the adult population. Under 

special circumstances and on a case-by-case basis, needs of other patient populations may be 
considered. 

I c. TYPES OF PATIENTS: 
1. The patients seen in the Center are typically the outpatient population with chronic difficult-to

heal wounds, varying in age, who come to us from home or extended/long-term care facilities 
with underlying illnesses including: 
a. Age-related illnesses 
b. A variety of chronic illness, such as diabetes and its complications 
c. Multiple medical problems 
d. Auto-immune illnesses and their complications, such as vasculitis 
e. Post-traumatic injuries 
f. Vascular diseases, such as arterial and venous insufficiency 
g. Foot problems such as Charcot foot and diabetic foot ulcers 
h. Skin problems 
fh.i. Non-healing post-op incisions 

2. Patients are also seen pre- and post-operatively for ostomy site markings, education, lifestyle 
adaptation, peristomal skin issues and appliance needs. 

D. CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED 
1. The services provided by the Center include, but are not limited to chronic wound 

management/treatment including: 

451



Wound Care Center 
Scope of Services 
Page 2 of 3 

a. Wound debridement 
b. Wound excision 
c. Prescribing appropriate topical agents 
d. Wound remodeling 
e. Vascular assessment 
f. Nutritional assessment 
g. Infection control 
h. Edema control 
i. Offloading/pressure-relief methods and devices 
j. Hyperbaric medicine as an adjunctive therapy for Medicare-approved indications 

E. HOURS OF SERVICE 
1. The Center is open 5 days per week, Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to MG4:30 PM. 

F. STAFFING PLAN 
1. The Center is staffed with: 

a. Medical staff membersor contracted physicians whose disciplines may include 
orthopedic surgery, general surgery, vascular surgery, plastic and reconstructive 
surgery, emergency medicine, podiatry and podiatric surgery, family medicine, internal 
medicine, infectious disease, endocrinology, radiology, nephrology, or dermatology. 
Qualified practitioners are selected based on: 
i. Interest in an interdisciplinary approach and collaboration in the care of chronic 

non-healing wounds 
ii. Proven skills in a relevant discipline 
iii. Medical and specialty experience 
iv. Established reputation in the medical community 
v. Hospital staff privileges 
vi. Ability to perform the requirements of the service to be rendered 

b. Clinic staff members include a full-time qualified clinical manager, nursing/clinical 
personnel and clerical support staff. The type and number are selected based on 
qualifications, experience and clinic needs. Clinic needs are determined by the number 
of active patients in the program, the type and the acuity of patients, the type of service 
required by the patients and the overall requirements of the clinic. The members of the 
staff may include registered nurses, licensed vocational nurses, nurse 
practitioners/physician assistants, Certified Wound Ostomy Continence Nurses, certified 
hyperbaric technicians, physical therapists, medical assistsassistants, and clerical staff. 

G. PLAN FOR IMPROVING QUALITY OF CARE 
1. The quality management program is designed to measure outcomes and related processes of 

care and to seek ways to improve the quality of services provided at the Center. The key 
elements of the program are: 
a. Collection of meaningful data 
b. Selection of measurable indicators 
c. A valid method of data collection, management and storage 
d. Analysis of the data by qualified persons 
e. Reporting to pertinent hospital personnel and committees/teams 

2. The clinic results are compared to national and/or system-wide benchmarks, when available, or 
the Center's own historical data. Unmet goals are perceived as opportunities for improvement. 
Corrective actions are relevant to improving the services rendered. 

H. STANDARD AND PRACTICE GUIDELINES 
1. The policies, procedures and standards of care are developed using the most recent 

scientifically valid practice guidelines. Sources include professional practice guidelines and 

452



Wound Care Center 
Scope of Services 
Page 3 of 3 

standards such as the American Society of Plastic Surgeons, American Medical Directors 
Association, American College of Foot and Ankle Surgeons, American College of Foot and 
Ankle Orthopedics and Medicine, Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality, Royal College 
of Nursing, Gerontology Nursing Interventions Research Center, American College of 
Radiology, American Academy of Family Physicians, American Association of Clinical 
Endocrinologists, American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons, American College of Physical 
Medicine and Rehabilitation, and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

I. COMPETENCY/EDUCATION 
1. Qualifications for the clinical staff of the program include: 

a. Clinical competency, as determined by level of care provided 
b. Current State license, where applicable 
c. Current BGLS, where applicable 
d. Credentialing by the medical staff, where appropriate 
e. Certification in hyperbaric medicine 

2. Competency of the staff is based on: 
a. Education and training (licensing, certification and credentialing as appropriate) 
b. Ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to perform assigned duties 
c. Years of experience 
d. d. -Ability to communicate effectively with the medical staff, patients, and their families 

J,3. Allied health professionals will either be hospital employees or be credentialed by the medical 
staff services, as permitted by Medical Staff Bylaws. 

453



ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

~7'Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE GliNTliR& 
HYPERBARIC MEDICINE POblGY MANUAb 

SUBJECT: Standards of Care 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

~08/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Standards of care and practice must be delineated with the following objectives in mind: 
a. Provide patients and their families with an understanding of the services provided by the 

Center. 
b. Meet patient/family expectation, which is to have competent care providers when being 

treated at the Center. 
c. Define the standards of care and practice as required by governing and oversight bodies 

such as the Department of Health Services (DHS), Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
(CMS) & The Joint Commission (TJC), 

B. POLICY: 
1. All clinical staff will follow the Nurse Practice Act and Standards of Care and Practice,aR€1 

Consensus Standards from the Oncology Nwrsing Society (O~lS) & American Society of Clinical 
Oncology (ASCO) in the delivery of patient care. 

2. The Center will operate according to the established standards, which addresses all aspects of 
care. 

3. The standards of care and practice will be consistent with care and practice standards and 
mission of the hospital but will be specifically designed for the outpatient services provided at 
the Center. See Wound Care Standards of Care and Practice 

4. Standards will be developed collaboratively with other relevant disciplines to maintain constancy 
in the level of care provided throughout the institution. 

5. All activities including treatment plans, policies and procedures, documentation and 
performance improvement measures will correlate with the approved standards of care and 
practice. 

I C. PROCEDURE: 
1. The clinical manager/medical director and the clinical staff of the Center are responsible for 

developing the standards of care and practice. 
2. The hospital format is utilized and defines the: 

a. Standard of care as the expected outcome 
b. Standard of practice as the scope of service, the person responsible, and the timeframe 

for completion 
3. The standards will be reviewed and approved by Patient Care Services prior to implementation. 
4. All policies and procedures will be developed/revised utilizing the established standards. 
5. The performance improvement (Pl) efforts will incorporate the standards in the Pl activities. 
6. The designated infusion center team will review the standards biannually. 

454



Wound Care Center 
Policy Standards of Care 
Page 2 of 2 

7. The Standards of Care and Practice are delineated on the following pages. 

D. RELATED DOCUMENT!Sl: 
7.1. Wound Care Standards of Care and Practice 

455



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

1.
 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 a

 c
om

pe
te

nt
 a

nd
 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

nu
rs

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
, 

di
re

ct
in

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

hi
s/

he
r 

ca
re

. 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9
t:

J
tp

a
ti

e
n

t 
J

l'
ff

i;
j9

ja
ff

 G
e

1
tr

e
1

 
o

"e
.'

ie
) 

~f
Bf

ft
:A

B•
' 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 
H

y
p

e
rb

a
ri

c
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
C

e
fl

te
r 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 &

 
P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 
RN

 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

I 4
1 .

. i
.i

 .. i
 .. W

 ... 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

1.
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
sy

st
em

at
ic

al
ly

 e
va

lu
at

es
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
ef

fic
ac

y 
o

f n
ur

si
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 

a.
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
(P

l)
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

to
 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
's

 p
os

iti
on

, 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

, 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
• 

Id
en

tif
ie

s 
ke

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 i

m
po

rt
an

t f
o

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

• 
Id

en
tif

ie
s 

m
ea

su
re

s 
us

ed
 t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 e
ff

ic
ac

y 
o

f p
at

ie
nt

 
ca

re
 

• 
C

ol
le

ct
s 

da
ta

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ca
cy

 o
f p

at
ie

nt
 c

ar
e 

• 
A

na
ly

ze
s 

da
ta

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
o

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ca
re

 
• 

M
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
nu

rs
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e 
• 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 w
ith

 t
ea

m
 e

ffo
rt

s 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
cl

in
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

o
r 

he
al

th
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
• 

A
ss

is
ts

 w
tth

 t
h

e
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

b.
 

U
se

 P
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 in

iti
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

c.
 

U
se

 P
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 i

ni
tia

te
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

2.
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
ev

al
ua

te
s 

hi
s/

he
r 

ow
n 

nu
rs

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

tu
te

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
a.

 
E

ng
ag

es
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
el

f-
ap

pr
ai

sa
l 

on
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 b
as

is
, 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

ar
ea

s 
o

f s
tr

en
gt

h,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 a

re
as

 f
o

r 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

b.
 

S
ee

ks
 c

on
st

ru
ct

iv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 h

is
/h

er
 o

w
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
c.

 
T

ak
es

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

go
al

s 
d.

 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

es
 in

 p
ee

r 
re

vi
ew

, 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
3.

 
T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 p

ro
fic

ie
nc

y 
in

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. 

a.
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ns
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ta
te

 li
ce

ns
ur

e 
b.

 
M

ee
ts

 t
h

e
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

an
da

to
ry

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

o
f t

he
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
o

f t
he

 o
rie

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
nu

al
 

re
or

ie
nt

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

c.
 

H
as

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

o
f a

nd
 u

se
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ho
sp

ita
l a

nd
 C

en
te

r 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 a

cc
om

pl
is

hi
ng

 p
at

ie
nt

 c
ar

e 
d.

 
M

ee
ts

 o
r 

ex
ce

ed
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 

,n
ag

e 
8 

a
fB

 

45
6



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

··~
·-

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9
u

tp
a

t·
ie

1
1

t 
In

ft
:1

si
an

 G
en

t-
e;

 
.tt

e.'
-ie

t 
•'f

an
t:

Ja
! 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 H
y

o
e

rb
a

ri
c

 M
e

d
ic

in
e

C
e

R
te

F
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

R
N

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 &

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

-
-

-
A

N
D

A
R

D
O

 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

e.
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 o

ng
oi

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
cu

rr
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
f. 

S
ee

ks
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
sk

ill
s 

g.
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 a

nd
 s

ee
ks

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

ab
ou

t t
he

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

on
tin

uu
m

 o
f c

ar
e 

4.
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f p

ee
rs

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 o
th

er
 le

ve
ls

 o
f c

ar
eg

iv
er

s 
a.

 
S

ha
re

s 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
w

ith
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 
b.

 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

C
en

te
r's

 s
ta

ff
 w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

iv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

c.
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
es

 to
 a

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
av

or
ab

le
 t

o 
on

go
in

g 
cl

in
ic

al
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

5.
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
co

lla
bo

ra
te

s 
w

ith
 t

h
e

 p
at

ie
nt

/f
am

ily
/c

ar
eg

iv
er

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

on
si

st
en

t c
ar

e.
 

a.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

es
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

at
ie

nt
/f

am
ily

/c
ar

eg
iv

er
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 
pa

tie
nt

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
nu

rs
e'

s 
ro

le
 in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f c

ar
e 

b.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

co
ns

ul
ts

 w
ith

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ph

ar
m

ac
is

t f
o

r 
pa

tie
nt

 c
ar

e 
as

 n
ee

de
d 

c.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

m
ak

es
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 t
o 

ag
en

ts
/a

ge
nc

ie
s 

fo
r 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 o

f c
ar

e 
d.

 T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
co

lla
bo

ra
te

s 
w

ith
 i

nt
er

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

st
a

ff
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 t
o 

co
or

di
na

te
 a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
o

f c
ar

e 
6.

 
T

he
 p

la
n 

o
f c

ar
e 

an
d 

th
e

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 f

o
r 

ca
re

 is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 i
n 

a 
m

an
ne

r t
ha

t 
pr

ot
ec

ts
 a

nd
 a

dv
oc

at
es

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
o

f t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

. 
a.

 T
he

 S
ta

te
's

 N
ur

se
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

A
ct

 g
ui

de
s 

th
e 

nu
rs

e'
s 

pr
ac

tic
e 

b.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

en
su

re
s 

th
e 

co
nf

id
en

tia
lit

y 
o

f t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

/fa
m

ily
 

c.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

ac
ts

 a
s 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
/fa

m
ily

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
d.

 T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
de

liv
er

s 
ca

re
 in

 a
 n

on
-ju

dg
m

en
ta

l a
nd

 n
on

di
sc

rim
in

at
or

y 
m

an
ne

r t
ha

t 
is

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
to

 t
he

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

pa
tie

nt
 n

ee
ds

 
e.

 T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
de

liv
er

s 
ca

re
 in

 a
 m

an
ne

r 
th

at
 p

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

s 
pa

tie
nt

 a
ut

on
om

y,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 r

ig
ht

s 
f. 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
se

ek
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 t
o 

he
lp

 f
or

m
ul

at
e 

et
hi

ca
l 

de
ci

si
on

s 
7.

 
T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

us
es

 r
es

ea
rc

h 
fin

di
ng

s 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

a.
 T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

us
es

 i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 s

ub
st

an
tia

te
d 

by
 r

es
ea

rc
h,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

ao
pr

ov
13

_d
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 t

he
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l's
 s

co
pe

 o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 p
_o

si
tio

n,
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 e

fB
 

45
7



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

2.
 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 d
ire

ct
ed

 
to

w
ar

d 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
no

rm
al

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
ph

ys
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

st
at

us
 

an
d 

no
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
av

oi
da

bl
e 

co
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

3.
 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 d
ire

ct
ed

 
to

w
ar

d 
su

pp
or

t o
f 

em
ot

io
na

l, 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l 

an
d 

sp
iri

tu
al

 n
ee

ds
. 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9t
1t

p
at

·i
e;

1t
 H

lf
tJ

s
ie

n
 G

en
te

; 
P

a
N

e
) 

!f
an

t:
Ja

.• 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 H
y

p
e

rb
a

ri
c

 M
e

d
ic

in
e

C
e

R
te

r 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 O
F

 C
A

R
E

 &
 P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

RN
 

RN
 

RN
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

•~
1.

n1
9.

1.
 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
b.

 T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

es
 in

 r
es

ea
rc

h 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 t

he
 

in
di

vi
du

al
's

 s
co

pe
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 p

os
iti

on
, 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
T

he
 c

lin
ic

ia
n 

w
ill

: 
1.

 
A

ss
es

s 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

's
 c

ur
re

nt
 h

ea
lth

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d 

pe
rt

in
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
o

f 
pr

es
en

t a
nd

 p
as

t 
hi

st
or

y.
 

2.
 

C
ol

la
bo

ra
te

 w
ith

 p
hy

si
ci

an
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 in
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ca
re

. 
3.

 
O

bs
er

ve
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

t 
si

gn
s 

an
d 

sy
m

pt
om

s 
o

f c
om

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

4.
 

P
ro

vi
de

 n
ur

si
ng

 i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
5.

 
D

oc
um

en
t a

ll 
fin

di
ng

s 
o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

f t
he

 
pl

an
 o

f c
ar

e.
 

T
he

 c
lin

ic
ia

n 
w

ill
: 

1.
 

A
ss

es
s 

pa
tie

nt
 n

ee
ds

, 
id

en
tif

y 
de

si
re

d 
ou

tc
om

es
, 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

nu
rs

in
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 g

oa
ls

 in
vo

lv
in

g:
 

a.
 

E
m

ot
io

na
l 

ne
ed

s 
• 

O
bs

er
ve

s 
be

ha
vi

or
 th

at
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

pa
tie

nt
's

 e
m

ot
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 
• 

A
ss

es
se

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

fa
ct

or
s 

fo
r 

be
ha

vi
or

s 
• 

D
et

er
m

in
es

 n
ee

ds
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o 
be

ha
vi

or
s 

• 
Id

en
tif

ie
s 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
em

ot
io

na
l 

ne
ed

s 
b.

 
P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 n
ee

ds
 

• 
S

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 d

ur
in

g 
te

st
s/

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

• 
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

xp
re

ss
io

n 
o

f f
ee

lin
gs

 
• 

M
ak

es
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l r

ef
er

ra
ls

 f
or

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g,

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

• 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

fo
r 

pa
tie

nt
 p

riv
ac

y 
c.

 
S

pi
rit

ua
l 

• 
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

's
 r

el
ig

io
us

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
ns

/ 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

, 
et

c.
 

2.
 

E
va

lu
at

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 in

 t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

's
 

re
co

rd
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 a

fB
 

45
8



C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 
H

y
p

e
rb

a
ri

c
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
C

e
A

te
r 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 &

 
P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

4.
 B

ef
or

e 
in

iti
at

io
n 

o
f a

 
ch

em
ot

he
ra

py
 

re
gi

m
en

, 
w

o
u

n
d

 c
a

re
 

o
f 

H
B

O
T

 tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t,
 

ea
ch

 p
at

ie
nt

 is
 g

iv
en

 
w

rit
te

n 
do

ct
Jm

en
ta

tio
n,

 
in

cl
tJ

di
ng

, 
a

t m
in

im
um

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

e
d

u
ca

tio
n

.7
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

A
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

C
ar

e 
5.

 O
n 

ea
ch

 c
lin

ic
al

 v
is

it 
I 

R
N

 
or

 d
ay

 o
f t

re
at

m
en

t 
dt

Jr
in

§ 
ch

em
ot

he
ra

py
 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n.

 s
ta

ff:
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9t
:J

tp
at

ie
n

t I
1t

it
1s

ie
n

 G
en

re
.•

 o
"e

.'i
e,

 ·
'fa

A
tJ

a.
' 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

S
T

 
.. 

1~
1.

n1
m·

•·
 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

a.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
hi

s/
he

r 
di

ag
no

si
s 

b.
 

G
oa

ls
 o

f t
he

ra
py

 
c.

 
P

la
nn

ed
 d

ur
at

io
n 

o
f t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

ch
em

ot
he

ra
py

, 
dr

tJ
gs

, 
an

d 
sc

he
du

le
 

d.
 

C
on

fir
m

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 h
is

/h
er

 p
la

nn
ed

 t
re

at
m

en
t a

t 
e

a
ch

 W
o

u
n

d
 

C
e

n
te

r 
vi

si
tp

ri
o

r t
o 

ea
ch

 c
yc

le
; 

e.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

os
si

91
e 

sh
or

t 
an

d 
lo

ng
 t

er
m

 a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

~e
. 

R
eg

im
en

 
or

 d
w

g
 s

pe
ci

fic
 r

is
ks

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

r 
sy

m
pt

om
s 

th
at

 r
eq

ui
re

 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nt

ac
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
: 

• 
H

ow
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 th
e 

W
o

u
n

d
 C

e
n

te
rp

ra
ct

ic
e

 o
r 

or
ga

ni
;;:

at
io

n;
 

• 
S

ym
pt

om
s 

th
at

 s
ho

ul
d 

tr
ig

ge
r 

a 
ca

ll;
 

• 
W

h
o

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

al
le

d 
in

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
(o

nc
G

IG
§i

st
 G

F 

G
th

er
 p

rG
vi

de
r)

 

§7
f. 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
-u

p 
H

,g
. 

P
at

ie
nt

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 f

o
r 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
's

 r
ea

di
ng

 l
ev

el
/li

te
ra

cy
 a

nd
 p

at
ie

nt
/c

ar
eg

iv
er

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
. 

A
. 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

t c
lin

ic
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d/

or
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 s

ta
tu

s 
B

. 
D

oc
um

en
t v

ita
l 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
w

ei
§R

tp
ai

n 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
C

. 
V

er
ify

 a
lle

rg
ie

s,
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

re
ac

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

re
la

te
d 

tG
xi

ci
tie

s 
p

a
ti

e
n

t t
re

a
tm

e
n

t t
o

le
ra

n
ce

 
D

. 
A

ss
es

s 
an

d 
do

cu
m

en
t p

sy
ch

os
oc

ia
l 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
su

pp
or

t; 
ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

w
he

n 
in

di
ca

te
d.

 
E

. 
A

t 
ea

ch
 c

lin
ic

al
 v

is
it 

or
 d

ay
 o

f t
re

at
m

en
t d

tJ
rin

0 
ch

em
ot

he
ra

py
 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n,

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

's
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ed
ic

at
io

ns
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
un

te
r 

m
ed

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

th
er

ap
ie

s.
 A

n
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

ill
_l

he
 p

at
ie

nt
's

 m
ed

ic
at

io
ns

 a
re

 

P
a

g
e

 8
 e

f8
 

45
9



C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 H
v

p
e

rb
a

ri
c

 M
e

d
ic

in
e

C
e

A
te

r 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 O
F

 C
A

R
E

 &
 P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

E
nv

ir
on


m

e
n

t 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

T
h

e
 p

at
ie

nt
 c

an
 e

xp
ec

t 
I A

ll 
st

a
ff

 
to

 b
e

 tr
ea

te
d 

in
 a

 s
af

e,
 

sa
ni

ta
ry

, 
co

m
fo

rt
ab

le
 

an
d 

th
e

ra
p

e
u

tic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

G
'ti

 t
pa

~,
;e

ff
t 

h
lf

tA
s

is
n

 G
e

n
te

; 
P

a,
'i

e)
 !

f.a
n1

:1
a.

· 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

,,,_
 .....

. _._
 S

C
O

P
E

 O
F

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

by
 a

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 v
is

it.
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
I 1

. 
T

h
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
: 

a.
 

A
ss

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

an
d 

su
pp

lie
s 

w
ill

: 
• 

B
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 g

o
o

d
/s

a
fe

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
rd

e
r 

• 
B

e 
re

ad
ily

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
• 

B
e 

ke
pt

 c
le

an
 

b.
 

D
is

po
se

 o
f w

as
te

 p
ro

pe
rl

y 
by

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ho
sp

ita
l w

a
st

e
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
• 

ch
e

m
o

th
e

ra
p

y 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 h
an

dl
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
• 

B
io

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
w

as
te

 p
o

lic
y 

&
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 
• 

S
h

a
rp

s 
us

e 
&

 d
is

po
sa

l 
po

lic
y 

&
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 

c.
 

T
a

ko
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
th

a
t 

pr
ev

en
t 

cr
os

s-
in

fe
ct

io
n 

an
d 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 o
f 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 in

fe
ct

io
u

s/
co

m
m

u
n

ic
a

b
le

 m
ic

ro
o

rg
a

n
is

m
s 

by
: 

• 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ho

sp
ita

l t
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
-b

as
ed

 p
re

ca
ut

io
ns

 a
s 

it 
re

la
te

s 
to

 
th

o 
pr

ac
tic

e 
in

 t
h

e
 c

lin
ic

 
• 

H
a

n
d

w
a

sh
in

g
/h

a
n

d
 a

nt
is

ep
si

s 
( 1

) 
B

ef
or

e 
an

d 
a

ft
e

r 
pa

tie
nt

 c
on

ta
ct

 
(2

) 
B

ef
or

e 
an

d 
a

ft
e

r 
co

nt
ac

t 
w

ith
 p

a
tie

n
t w

o
u

n
d

s 
(3

) 
B

ef
or

e 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
o

r 
as

si
st

in
g 

w
ith

 c
lin

ic
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
(4

) 
A

ft
e

r 
co

n
ta

ct
 w

ith
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 s
u

rf
a

ce
s/

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

(5
) 

A
ft

e
r 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
ith

 b
o

d
y 

su
b

st
a

n
ce

s 
o

r 
m

uc
ou

s 
m

e
m

b
ra

n
e

s 
• 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
a

se
p

tic
 a

nd
 c

le
an

 t
ec

hn
iq

ue
, 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
cl

ea
n 

an
d 

sa
n

ita
ry

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

t 
d.

 
P

ro
vi

de
 f

o
r 

pa
tie

nt
's

 s
af

et
y 

by
: 

• 
Lo

ck
in

g 
w

he
el

s 
o

f c
ha

irs
, 

w
he

el
ch

ai
rs

 w
he

n 
tr

an
sf

er
ri

ng
 o

r 
as

si
st

in
g 

pa
tie

nt
s 

fr
om

 o
ne

 a
re

a 
to

 a
no

th
er

 
• 

N
e

ve
r 

le
av

in
g 

di
so

ri
en

te
d/

co
nf

us
ed

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
un

at
te

nd
ed

 
• 

A
ss

is
tin

g 
pa

tie
nt

s 
w

ith
 v

is
ua

l 
de

fic
it 

w
h

e
n

 a
m

bu
la

tin
g 

• 
A

ss
is

tin
g 

pa
tie

nt
s 

w
ith

 u
n

st
e

a
d

y 
g

a
it 

w
h

e
n

 n
av

ig
at

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 t

h
e

 
cl

in
ic

 
• 

P
la

ci
ng

 c
al

l 
be

lls
 a

t e
ve

ry
 p

a
tie

n
t 

ch
a

ir
 

• 
P

la
ci

ng
 p

er
so

na
l 

be
lo

ng
in

gs
 a

s 
cl

os
e 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 p

a
tie

n
t 

• 
U

si
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

ri
t 

ba
se

d_
Q

n 
ag

e 
an

d 
si

ze
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 a

fB
 

46
0



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
 

t 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 f
o

r 
hi

s/
he

r 
bi

op
hy

si
ca

l, 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l, 

so
ci

al
, 

nu
tr

iti
on

al
, 

fu
nc

tio
na

l, 
co

m
fo

rt
 a

nd
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 
fo

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f c
ar

e.
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

G
1:

1t
13

at
ie

R
t h

tf
tJ

si
ef

l 
G

en
te

1 
P

a:
'ie

, 
!f

an
"'

a•
' 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 H
y

p
e

rb
a

ri
c

 M
e

d
ic

in
e

G
e

R
te

r 

R
N

/P
T

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 &

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 

In
iti

al
 

vi
si

t 

.s.
c.c

1.1
.1.

1.w
.1.

 S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

e.
 

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

in
 l

ife
-t

hr
ea

te
ni

ng
 e

ve
nt

s 
by

: 
• 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ho
sp

ita
l's

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, 

e.
g 

.. 
fir

e,
 d

is
as

te
r,

 
se

cu
rit

y,
 e

tc
. 

• 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ca
rd

ia
c 

ev
en

t 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 

1.
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 v

is
it 

th
e 

cl
in

ic
ia

n 
w

ill
: 

a.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
o

r 
as

si
st

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ith

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 i
nc

lu
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, 

fr
om

 f
am

ily
 

m
em

be
rs

, 
fr

ie
nd

s,
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

s 
an

d 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

. 
b.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

m
ed

ic
al

 h
is

to
ry

 r
ec

or
ds

 
c.

 
R

ec
or

d 
re

le
va

nt
 m

ed
ic

al
 d

at
a 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

• 
La

bo
ra

to
ry

 fi
nd

in
gs

 
• 

A
lle

rg
ie

s 
• 

C
ur

re
nt

 m
ed

ic
at

io
n 

• 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 o
f d

ai
ly

 li
vi

ng
 

• 
N

ut
rit

io
na

l s
ta

tu
s 

• 
M

ob
ili

ty
 

• 
S

oc
ia

l 
ha

bi
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
o

f t
ob

ac
co

, 
ca

ffe
in

e,
 a

lc
oh

ol
, 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

dr
ug

s 
• 

P
as

t a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

 m
ed

ic
al

 h
is

to
ry

 
• 

P
as

t 
ho

sp
ita

liz
at

io
ns

, 
su

rg
er

ie
s,

 i
nv

as
iv

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ys
te

m
s 

• 
V

ita
l 

si
gn

s 
-

T
P

R
 &

 B
P

 
• 

P
ai

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
• 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

, 
o

r 
su

sp
ic

io
n 

of
, 

ab
us

e 
4

A
ss

es
s 

pa
in

 
e,

,d
. 

A
ss

es
s 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fu
nc

tio
na

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

f.e
. 

E
va

lu
at

e 
ho

m
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

>r
.f. 

A
ss

es
s 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
ne

ed
s 

l'h
g.

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

ge
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t f
o

r 
th

e 
ad

ol
es

ce
nt

, 
ad

ul
t a

nd
 g

er
ia

tr
ic

 p
at

ie
nt

 th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

fo
r: 

• 
G

ro
w

th
 &

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
• 

E
m

ot
io

na
l 

ne
ed

s 
• 

C
og

ni
tiv

e 
st

at
us

 

P
a

g
e

 8
 a

f8
 

46
1



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

A
ss

os
sF

R
on

 
t R

ea
ss

es
s

m
e

n
t 

P
at

ie
nt

/ 
F

am
ily

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

(c
on

tim
10

8)
 

T
h

e
 p

at
ie

nt
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

as
se

ss
ed

 f
o

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

a
t e

ac
h 

vi
si

t. 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

/f
am

ily
/ 

ca
re

gi
ve

r w
ill

 b
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

ea
bl

e 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 
pa

tie
nt

's
 il

ln
es

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 
pl

an
 o

f c
ar

e 
an

d 
th

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 to
 r

es
to

re
 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 b

ac
k 

to
 

op
tim

al
 h

ea
lth

. 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9
t1

tp
a

tj
e

n
t 

lf
lf

tJ
s

js
fl

 G
en

te
1 

P
ef

.i
e,

 l
f
a
n
~
a
.
'
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 

R
N

 

R
N

 

R
N

 

T
IM

E
· 

F
R

A
M

E
 

lR
ilia

+ 
¥i

si
t 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

• 
E

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 

• 
S

oc
ia

l 
ne

ed
s 

• 
D

ai
ly

 a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ee

ds
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
I T

h
e

 p
at

ie
nt

 is
 r

ea
ss

es
se

d 
a

t e
ac

h 
vi

si
t 

fo
r:

 
1.

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

la
n 

o
f c

ar
e 

a.
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

b.
 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f h
om

e 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 

c.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 c

ar
e,

 m
ed

ic
at

io
n,

 n
e

w
 il

ln
es

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

vi
si

ts
 

d.
 

W
ou

nd
 c

on
di

tio
n 

e.
 

S
up

pl
y/

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ne

ed
s 

f. 
S

ig
ns

 a
nd

 s
ym

pt
om

s 
o

f c
om

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

g.
 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 c

ar
e 

ne
ed

s 
h.

 
P

ai
n 

le
ve

l 
i. 

M
ob

ili
ty

 s
ta

tu
s 

j. 
M

en
ta

l s
ta

tu
s 

k.
 

E
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 
I. 

A
cu

ity
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
I N

ur
si

ng
 w

ill
: 

1.
 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t t
he

 l
ev

el
 o

f u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 t

h
a

t t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

/f
am

ily
 

ca
re

gi
ve

r 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

a
b

o
u

t t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

's
 il

ln
es

s 
an

d 
he

al
th

ca
re

 n
ee

ds
. 

2.
 

A
ss

es
s 

an
d 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

's
 a

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
re

ad
in

es
s 

to
 le

ar
n.

 
3.

 
D

ev
el

op
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

liz
ed

 t
ea

ch
in

g/
le

ar
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

. 
4.

 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 t

he
 c

lin
ic

 p
hy

si
ci

an
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 te
am

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 o

f t
he

 t
ea

ch
in

g 
pl

an
. 

5.
 

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 p
at

ie
nt

/f
am

ily
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
a.

 
O

ri
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 t
h

e
 C

en
te

r 
pr

og
ra

m
 

b.
 

E
xp

la
na

tio
n 

o
f t

es
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

c.
 

S
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

o
f m

ed
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
sp

on
se

s 
an

d 
si

de
 e

ff
ec

ts
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 e

f8
 

46
2



F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
 

P
at

ie
nt

/ 
F

am
ily

 
E

dt
,J

G
at

io
n 

P
at

ie
nt

 
R

ig
ht

s 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

(G
on

tin
ue

d)
 

T
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

se
ns

e 
o

f a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

as
 a

 p
er

so
n 

an
d 

o
f 

va
lu

e 
as

 a
 h

um
an

 
be

in
g 

an
d 

w
ill

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

se
ns

e 
o

f p
er

so
na

l 
id

en
tit

y 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
C

a
re

 &
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

9t
:l

tp
a~

·e
ff

t 
In

it
JB

ia
n

 E
en

re
 •

• n
e.

'-
ie

) 
•'

fa
tt

t:
Ja

/ 

C
e

n
te

r 
fo

r 
W

o
u

n
d

 C
a

re
 &

 H
y

p
e

rb
a

ri
c

 M
e

d
ic

in
e

6
e

R
te

r 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
I

B
IL

IT
Y

 
R

N
 

A
ll 

cl
in

ic
 

st
a

ff
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 C

A
R

E
 &

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 

T
IM

E


F
R

A
M

E
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

1ij
§l1

fd
ij1

iel
; 

.. ,,,
, 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

d.
 

S
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

s 
e.

 
P

at
ie

nt
 c

ar
e 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 

f. 
W

he
n 

to
 c

al
l 

an
d 

h
o

w
 to

 r
ea

ch
 t

he
 c

en
te

r 
g.

 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
h.

 
O

bt
ai

ni
ng

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

 d
is

ci
pl

in
es

 
6.

 
U

til
iz

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 te
ac

hi
ng

 m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 t
oo

ls
 

7.
 

E
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f t

he
 t

ea
ch

in
g 

8.
 

D
oc

um
en

t 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
at

ie
nt

/fa
m

ily
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l e
ff

or
ts

 
T

he
 s

ta
ff

 w
ill

: 
1.

 
P

ro
te

ct
, 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

al
l 

pa
tie

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

an
d 

ho
sp

ita
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 
2.

 
A

pp
ro

ac
h 

th
e

 p
at

ie
nt

 w
ith

 a
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

l 
an

d 
co

m
pa

ss
io

na
te

 a
tti

tu
de

 b
y:

 
a.

 
C

on
ve

yi
ng

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
 a

nd
 w

ar
m

th
 

b.
 

Id
en

tif
yi

ng
 t

he
m

se
lv

es
 a

t e
ac

h 
en

co
un

te
r 

c.
 

R
es

po
nd

in
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 to
 p

at
ie

nt
 n

ee
ds

 
3.

 
A

ss
is

t 
pa

tie
nt

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
se

ns
e 

o
f p

er
so

na
l i

de
nt

ity
 b

y:
 

a.
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

w
ha

t t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

 c
an

 r
ou

tin
el

y 
ex

pe
ct

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 
te

st
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
b.

 
R

es
pe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

's
 r

ig
ht

 to
 in

qu
iry

 a
nd

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
ei

r 
ill

ne
ss

, 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f c
ar

e 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s/

tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 

c.
 

M
ak

in
g 

pa
tie

nt
s/

fa
m

ily
 a

w
ar

e 
o

f t
he

ir
 r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

to
 

fo
llo

w
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
o

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 

d.
 

E
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 p
at

ie
nt

/fa
m

ily
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ca
re

 
e.

 
A

ct
in

g 
as

 p
at

ie
nt

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
f. 

U
se

 p
at

ie
nt

's
 p

ro
pe

r 
na

m
e 

o
r t

he
 s

ta
te

d 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 ra
g

e
 8

 a
fB

 

46
3



~~Tri-City Health Care District 
Oceanside, California 

CENTER FOR WOUND CARE-& HYPERBARIC MEDICINE 
POLICY MANUAL 

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 

REVISION DATE{S}: 

Department Approval: 
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: 
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 
Administration Approval: 
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 
Board of Directors Approval: 

I A. PURPOSE: 

SUBJECT: Vascular Screen 

02i2()08/22 
n/a 
n/a 

10/22 
11/22 

n/a 

1. Successful wound treatment/repair is dependent upon sufficient blood flow and oxygen perfusion 
to the tissue area. This policy outlines the processes/testing necessary to establish vascular 
integrity. 

B. POLICY: 
1. All patients with lower extremity wounds will be screened for vascular function. 
2. More advanced testing may be indicated/ordered as a result of initial screening process. 
3. Where H&P and non-invasive testing indicate a significant obstruction, a vascular or IR consult 

will be ordered. 

I c. PROCEDURE: 
1. Utilizing the approved form, the clinical staff will screen patients with lower extremity wounds for 

vascular function during initial visit and/or when changes occur using one or both of the following 
methods: 
a. Palpating appropriate pulses, i.e .. dorsalis pedis, posterior tibial 
b. If no palpable pulses, a hand-held Doppler will be utilized to check for audible pulses 

following manufacturer instructions. 
2. Documentation will include: 

a. Pulses 
i. P = PresentPalpable 
ii. D = lly-Doppler 
iii. A = Absent 

b. Color of extremity 
i. WNL (within normal limits) 
ii. Pale 
iii. Mottled 
iv. Red 
v. Pigmented 
vi. GtfiefDusky 
vi-,vii. Black 

c. Temperature of extremity 
i. WNL 
ii. Warm 
iii. Cool 

464



Wound Care Center Hyperbaric Clinic 
Vascular Screen 
Page 2 of 2 

iihiv. Cold 
d. Skin integrity of extremity 

i. WNbDry 
ii. Gi:)<Moist 
iii. Rash 
iv. Erythema 
v. Weeping 

3. Result of initial screen will be reported to the admitting physician. 
4. The clinic physician may order more advanced testing, such as basefArterial Doppler, 

AmVenous Duplex Scan, Angiogram, etc. after initial evaluation. 
a. If the test is to be performed in the hospital vascular lab, the olinioianclinic office staff 

will complete the appropriate request form and obtain required physician signaturewill 
fax the signed order to appropriate vascular lab staff 

b. The support staff will give the patient the phone number to the appropriate vascular 
lab to schedule an appointment. If the patient is unable to schedule an 
appointment, the Support staff will arrange the patient appointment with the vascular 
lab and notify patient with date, time and location and arrange transportation if needed. 

5. Patients with test results showing significant obstruction will be referred for vascular 
consultation. 

465



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
September 29, 2022 - 3:30 o'clock p.m. 

Meeting Held via Teleconference 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via 
teleconference at 3:30 p.m. on September 29, 2022. 

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via 
teleconference: 

Director Rocky J. Chavez 
Director Nina Chaya, M.D. 
Director George W. Coulter 
Director Gigi Gleason 
Director Marvin Mizell 
Director Adela Sanchez 
Director Tracy M. Younger 

Also present were: 

Steven Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer 
Candice Parras, Chief, Patient Care Services 
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer 
Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff 
Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel 
Susan Bond, General Counsel 
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant 

1. The Board Chairperson, Rocky Chavez, called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. with 
attendance as listed above. 

2. Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by Director Younger, seconded by Director Gleason and 
unanimously passed to approve the agenda as presented by a roll call vote. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Director Chavez led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4. Public Comments - Announcement 

Chairperson Chavez read the Public Comments section listed on the September 29, 
2022 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda. 

Cathy Cronce, RN and Edmundo Garcia, CNA Labor Relations Representative 
requested to speak under Public Comments. 

466



5. Reports - Information Only 

a) Geriatric Emergency Department Accreditation 

Dr. Cary Mells, Chairman of the Department of Emergency Medicine presented a 
report on Tri-City's Geriatric Emergency Department Accreditation (GEDA). He 
explained the American College of Emergency Physicians set up an accreditation 
process to ensure older patients receive well-coordinated, quality care at the 
appropriate level at every ED encounter. The project began 3-4 years ago and 
was spear-headed by the Gary and Mary West Foundation. Today every hospital 
in San Diego County has achieved the GEDA accreditation, making San Diego 
county the first in the nation to achieve this milestone. 

Directors asked questions and congratulated Dr. Mells on the accreditation. 

6. August, 2022 Financial Statements - Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Rivas, Chief Financial Officer reported on the fiscal year to date financials as 
follows (Dollars in Thousands): 

);:>- Net Operating Revenue - $55,094 
);:>- Operating Expense - $59,846 
);:>- EBITDA - ($891) 
);:>- EROE - ($3,250) 

Mr. Rivas reported on the fiscal year to date Key Indicators 
as follows: 

);:>- Average Daily Census - 120 
);:>- Adjusted Patient Days - 15,239 
);:>- Surgery Cases - 979 
);:>- ED Visits - 9,083 

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands): 

);:>- Net Operating Revenue - $27,411 
);:>- Operating Expense - $29,700 
);:>- EBITDA - ($205) 
);:>- EROE - ($1,599) 

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month Key Indicators as follows: 

);:>- Average Daily Census - 122 
);:>- Adjusted Patient Days - 7,978 
);:>- Surgery Cases - 476 
);:>- ED Visits - 4,679 

Mr. Rivas presented two graphs which reflected trending of the Average Length of 
Stay (ALOS) and Average Daily Census (ADC). 

7. New Business - None 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- September 29, 2022 

467



8. Old Business - None 

9. Chief of Staff 

September 2022 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical 
Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on September 26, 2022 

Dr. Showah presented the Medical Staff Credentials which included 12 Initial 
Appointments, 23 Reappointments, 15 Voluntary Resignations, 1 Request for 
Extension of Proctoring, 1 Automatic Relinquishment of Privileges and 1 
Additional Privilege Request. Dr. Showah also reported the Medical Staff Office 
have processed over 50 applications this past month, most of which were for 
temporary privileges. 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Younger to 
approve the September 2022 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments 
Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive 
Committee on September 26, 2022. 

10. Consideration of Consent Calendar 

Chairperson Chavez requested the following two agenda items be pulled: 

)> 10 (5) Approval of the implementation of a Critical Care lntensivist Program 
with CEP America-lntensivists PC dba Vituity, for a term of 36 months, 
beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2025, at an annual cost 
not to exceed $1,336,487 and a total term cost not to exceed $4,09,461; and 

)> 10 ( 12) Approval of the First Amendment Lease Agreement Renewal with 
OPS Enterprises, LLC at 3617 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA for an additional 
fourteen ( 14) year term beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 
2036. 

It was moved by Director Coulter and seconded by Director Mizell to 
approve the Consent Calendar minus the items pulled. 

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Directors: 

Directors: 
Directors: 
Directors: 

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason 
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
None 
None 
None 

11. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar 

1 O (5) Approval of the implementation of a Critical Care lntensivist Program 
with CEP America-lntensivists PC dba Vituity, for a term of 36 months, 
beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2025, at an annual cost 
not to exceed $1,336,487 and a total term cost not to exceed $4,09,461. 

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer explained the benefits of the Critical Care 
lntensivist Program for both the patient and caregivers that will provide 24-7 critical 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- September 29, 2022 

468



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
September 29, 2022 - 3:30 o'clock p.m. 

Meeting Held via Teleconference 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via 
teleconference at 3:30 p.m. on September 29, 2022. 

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via 
teleconference: 

Director Rocky J. Chavez 
Director Nina Chaya, M.D. 
Director George W. Coulter 
Director Gigi Gleason 
Director Marvin Mizell 
Director Adela Sanchez 
Director Tracy M. Younger 

Also present were: 

Steven Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer 
Candice Parras, Chief, Patient Care Services 
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer 
Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff 
Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel 
Susan Bond, General Counsel 
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant 

1. The Board Chairperson, Rocky Chavez, called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. with 
attendance as listed above. 

2. Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by Director Younger, seconded by Director Gleason and 
unanimously passed to approve the agenda as presented by a roll call vote. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Director Chavez led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4. Public Comments - Announcement 

Chairperson Chavez read the Public Comments section listed on the September 29, 
2022 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda. 

Cathy Cronce, RN and Edmundo Garcia, CNA Labor Relations Representative 
requested to speak under Public Comments. 

469



5. Reports - Information Only 

a) Geriatric Emergency Department Accreditation 

Dr. Cary Mells, Chairman of the Department of Emergency Medicine presented a 
report on Tri-City's Geriatric Emergency Department Accreditation (GEDA). He 
explained the American College of Emergency Physicians set up an accreditation 
process to ensure older patients receive well-coordinated, quality care at the 
appropriate level at every ED encounter. The project began 3-4 years ago and 
was spear-headed by the Gary and Mary West Foundation. Today every hospital 
in San Diego County has achieved the GEDA accreditation, making San Diego 
county the first in the nation to achieve this milestone. 

Directors asked questions and congratulated Dr. Mells on the accreditation. 

6. August, 2022 Financial Statements - Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Rivas, Chief Financial Officer reported on the fiscal year to date financials as 
follows (Dollars in Thousands): 

)> Net Operating Revenue - $55,094 
)> Operating Expense - $59,846 
)> EBITDA - ($891) 
)> EROE - ($3,250) 

Mr. Rivas reported on the fiscal year to date Key Indicators 
as follows: 

)> Average Daily Census - 120 
)> Adjusted Patient Days - 15,239 
)> Surgery Cases - 979 
)> ED Visits - 9,083 

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands): 

)> Net Operating Revenue - $27,411 
)> Operating Expense - $29,700 
)> EBITDA - ($205) 
)> EROE - ($1 ,599) 

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month Key Indicators as follows: 

)> Average Daily Census - 122 
)> Adjusted Patient Days - 7,978 
)> Surgery Cases - 476 
)> ED Visits - 4,679 

Mr. Rivas presented two graphs which reflected trending of the Average Length of 
Stay (ALOS) and Average Daily Census (ADC). 

7. New Business - None 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- September 29, 2022 

470



8. Old Business - None 

9. Chief of Staff 

September 2022 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical 
Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on September 26, 2022 

Dr. Showah presented the Medical Staff Credentials which included 12 Initial 
Appointments, 23 Reappointments, 15 Voluntary Resignations, 1 Request for 
Extension of Proctoring, 1 Automatic Relinquishment of Privileges and 1 
Additional Privilege Request. Dr. Showah also reported the Medical Staff Office 
have processed over 50 applications this past month, most of which were for 
temporary privileges. 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Younger to 
approve the September 2022 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments 
Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive 
Committee on September 26, 2022. 

10. Consideration of Consent Calendar 

Chairperson Chavez requested the following two agenda items be pulled: 

~ 10 (5) Approval of the implementation of a Critical Care lntensivist Program 
with CEP America-lntensivists PC dba Vituity, for a term of 36 months, 
beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2025, at an annual cost 
not to exceed $1,336,487 and a total term cost not to exceed $4,09,461; and 

~ 10 ( 12) Approval of the First Amendment Lease Agreement Renewal with 
OPS Enterprises, LLC at 3617 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA for an additional 
fourteen ( 14) year term beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 
2036. 

It was moved by Director Coulter and seconded by Director Mizell to 
approve the Consent Calendar minus the items pulled. 

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Directors: 

Directors: 
Directors: 
Directors: 

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason 
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
None 
None 
None 

11. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar 

10 (5) Approval of the implementation of a Critical Care lntensivist Program 
with CEP America-lntensivists PC dba Vituity, for a term of 36 months, 
beginning November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2025, at an annual cost 
not to exceed $1,336,487 and a total term cost not to exceed $4,09,461. 

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer explained the benefits of the Critical Care 
lntensivist Program for both the patient and caregivers that will provide 24-7 critical 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- September 29, 2022 

471



care physician coverage. Dr. Ma asked that the Board consider moving the term of 
the agreement up one month to begin October 1, 2022. 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Coulter to 
amend the start date for the implementation of a Critical Care lntensivist 
Care Program with CEP America lntensivists PC dba Vituity to October 
1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2025. 

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Directors: 

Directors: 
Directors: 
Directors: 

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason 
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
None 
None 
None 

10 (12) Approval of the First Amendment Lease Agreement Renewal with OPS 
Enterprises, LLC at 3617 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA for an additional fourteen (14) 
year term beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2036. 

Mr. Jeremy Raimo, Senior Vice President of Business Development stated the initial 
submission on the Lease Agreement with OPS was 14 years, however we were able 
to negotiate better terms and savings with a 7-year lease. Mr. Dietlin further explained 
the original agreement was a 10-year agreement which is up and restated at fair 
market value (FMV). 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Chaya to 
amend the term of the Lease Agreement with OPS Enterprises, LLC to a 
seven (7) year term beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 
2029. 

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows: 

AYES: Directors: 

NOES: Directors: 
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
ABSENT: Directors: 

12. Comments by Members of the Public 

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason 
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
None 
None 
None 

Chairperson Chavez invited comments from the public. Comments were received 
from the following persons: 

~ Edmundo Garcia, CNA Labor Rep 
~ Kathy Cronce, RN, Chair of the Professional Practice Committee 

13. Comments by Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO stated many of the issues brought up by today's speakers are 
happening at health facilities across the county and nationwide. However, we are 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 4- September 29, 2022 

472



making progress in that we have filled over 400 positions this calendar year. The 
large number of travelers were needed in order to fill the needs of the community. 

Mr. Dietlin commented on the Geriatric Emergency Accreditation report given by Dr. 
Mell's earlier today. He noted Dr. Mells and his group were already working on the 
accreditation process prior to the county's involvement and kudos to the team for 
being on the forefront of that. 

Mr. Dietlin thanked the Foundation for hosting the Physician Appreciation Reception 
and for all the support the Foundation has provided including the funds for the 
Emergency Department remodel. 

Mr. Dietlin reported currently Tri-City has three (3) COVID-19 positive inpatients (the 
lowest number we have seen in a long time) and county-wide there are 191 . 

Mr. Dietlin provided an update on the Psychiatric Health Facility collaborative 
between the county and Tri-City. Mr. Dietlin stated in a short period of time he 
anticipates the initiative coming to fruition with the announcement on the ground 
breaking. 

Lastly, Mr. Dietlin stated earlier today we heard from our independent financial 
statement auditors that for the 101h year in a row Tri-City has a clean audit with no 
adjustments. Mr. Dietlin thanked the accounting and finance staff for their hard work 
and integrity in our financials. 

Director Chaya thanked the Foundation for hosting the Physician Appreciation 
Reception. 

Director Chaya reported October 101h is World Mental Health Day and a good time to 
raise awareness of mental health issues around the world . She is proud that Tri-City 
is taking on the Psychiatric Health Facility project with the county. 

Director Coulter had no comments. 

Director Gleason thanked Dr. Mells for the report on the Geriatric Emergency 
Accreditation and stated it is equally wonderful that all Emergency Departments in 
San Diego are accredited . 

Director Gleason stated she is very confident that the hospital is moving forward in a 
positive manner. We have a strong foundation and now it is time to accomplish some 
of the things we have been trying to do in the last couple of years. 

Director Mizell also thanked the Foundation for hosting the Physician Appreciation 
Reception. 

Director Mizell commented on the recent story in the Heart of Tri-City Newsletter 
related to birth of premature twins and the wonderful care provided by TCMC's NICU 
team. He also commented on another story in the Heart of Tri-City Newsletter 
regarding the opening of the Pacific View OB/GYN clinic . 

Lastly, Director Mizell reported that our own Aaron Byzak wi ll be in the Carlsbad High 
School Hall of Fame and congratulated Aaron on that honor. 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- September 29, 2022 

473



Director Sanchez stated she is happy about the direction Tri-City Medical Center is 
going. She also commented on remarks made by today's speakers and stated the 
Board is committed to hearing everyone's viewpoint. Lastly, Director Sanchez 
commented on the importance of sharing our positive stories not only with the public 
but with staff members as well. 

Director Younger congratulated Dr. Mells on the Geriatric Emergency Department 
Accreditation. 

Director Younger also commented on the remarks made by today's speakers. 

14. Report from Chairperson 

Chairperson Chavez reported the Board is "dark" in October. The next Board 
meeting is scheduled for November 17, 2022 followed by the December Board 
meeting on December 15, 2022. 

Chairperson Chavez encouraged everyone to get their flu vaccine and COVID 
boosters. 

17. Adjournment 

There being no further business, Chairperson Chavez adjourned the meeting at 4:23 
p.m. 

Rocky J. Chavez, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Gigi Gleason, Secretary 

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- September 29, 2022 

474



TRI-CITY HEAL TH CARE DISTRICT 
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

September 29, 2022 -2:30 o'clock p.m. 
Via Teleconference 

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via 
teleconference at 2:00 p.m. on September 1, 2022. 

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via 
teleconference: 

Director Rocky J. Chavez 
Director Nina Chaya, M.D. 
Director George W. Coulter 
Director Gigi Gleason 
Director Marvin Mizell 
Director Adela Sanchez 
Director Tracy M. Younger 

Also present via teleconference were: 

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer 
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 
Candice Parras, Chief, Patient Care Services 
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer 
Jeremy Raimo, Senior Director of Business Development 
Susan Bond, General Counsel 
Jeff Scott, Board Counsel 
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant 

1. The Board Chairperson, Director Chavez, called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. with 
attendance as listed above. 

2. Approval of agenda 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Younger to approve 
the agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a roll call vote. 

3. Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session 

Chairperson Chavez made an oral announcement of the items listed on the 
September 29, 2022 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during 
Closed Session which included Hearing on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or 
Quality Assurance Committees and Reports Involving Trade Secrets with dates of 
disclosure to be determined. 

4. Motion to go into Closed Session 

It was moved by Director Younger and seconded by Director Coulter to go into 
Closed Session at 2:05 p.m. The motion passed unanimously. 

475



5. At 3:00 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted. 

6. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session. 

a) The Board heard Reports relating to Quality Assurance and Trade Secret matters 
and took no action. 

7. New Business 

a) Consideration to accept the Fiscal 2022 Financial Statement Audit 

Mr. Ray Rivas, CFO introduced Kyle Rogers, Senior Manager and Brian Conner, 
Partner with Moss Adams. 

Mr. Rogers and Mr. Conner presented the results for the year-ended June 30, 2022 
Fiscal Year Financial Statement Audit. Mr. Conner and Mr. Rogers reported the 
auditors will issue an unmodified opinion which reflects the Financial Statements are 
presented fairly and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In addition, there were no material weaknesses or 
proposed adjustments and no difficulties were encountered in performing the audit. 
Mr. Conner stated this is a definition of a clean audit and is a great accomplishment. 

Directors asked questions that were answered by the auditors, along with Ray Rivas, 
CFO. 

Mr. Dietlin commented on several things that occurred this past year that affected the 
bottom line. Contract labor became an issue like health systems have never seen 
before and it had a direct impact on the results. He also commented on the delay in 
IGT which could have been an additional $12 million to the bottom line and would 
have resulted in a positive EBITDA. Mr. Dietlin stated the future has been difficult to 
predict during this unprecedented pandemic, however we have been able to fill a 
significant number of positions and are also working on reducing our length of stay 
(LOS). Mr. Dietlin stated the Tri-City team did an unbelievable job in bringing in the 
resources needed, when they were needed most, to serve the medical needs of our 
community. He expressed his appreciation to the staff during this continued 
unprecedented time period. 

It was moved by Director Sanchez to accept the Fiscal 2022 Financial 
Statement Audit. Director Coulter seconded the motion. 

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting 

Directors: 

Directors: 
Directors: 
Directors: 

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason, 
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
None 
None 
None 

-2- September 29, 2022 

476



7. Adjournment 

Chairperson Chavez adjourned the meeting at 3:31 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Gigi Gleason 
Secretary 

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -3-

Rocky J. Chavez 
Chairperson 

September 29, 2022 

477



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 12, 2022- 4:30 o'clock p.m. 
Via Teleconference 

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via 
teleconference at 4:30 p.m. on October 12, 2022. 

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via 
teleconference: 

Director Rocky J. Chavez 
Director George W. Coulter 
Director Gigi Gleason 
Director Marvin Mizell 
Director Adela Sanchez 
Director Tracy M. Younger 

Absent was Director Nina Chaya, M.D. 

Also present were: 

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer 
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 
Candice Parras, Chief Patient Care Services 
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer 
Jeremy Raimo, SVP, Business Development 
Jennifer Paroly, Foundation President 
Jeff Scott, Board Counsel 
Susan Bond, General Counsel 
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant 

1. The Board Chairperson, Director Chavez, called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. with 
attendance as listed above. 

2. Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Mizell to approve the 
agenda as presented. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Chaya absent. 

3. Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session 

Chairperson Chavez made an oral announcement of the items listed on the 
October 12, 2022 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during 
Closed Session which included Reports Involving Trade Secrets and Conference with 
Legal Counsel regarding one matter of Potential Litigation. 

478



4. Motion to go into Closed Session 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Younger to go into 
Closed Session at 4:35 p.m. The motion passed (6·0-0-1) with Director Chaya 
absent. 

5. At 5:00 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted. 

6. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session. 

The Board in Closed Session heard Reports involving Trade Secrets and took no action. 

The Board in Closed Session was advised regarding a Potential Litigation matter and 
took no action. 

7. New Business 

a) Consideration to approve an Agreement with CNC Contractors Corp. for construction 
of the ED Remodel Project. 

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO reported bids have been received for the ED Remodel 
Project. The remodel will improve the look, feel and function of our Emergency 
Department. The Board is being asked today to consider awarding the qualified bid 
to CNC Contractors Corp. which will allow us to move forward with the construction 
phase of the project. He noted the project is primarily being funded by our Tri-City 
Hospital Foundation. 

Following discussion, it was moved by Director Gleason, seconded by 
Director Coulter and passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Chaya absent to 
approve an Agreement with CNC Contractors Corp. for construction of the 
ED Remodel Project. 

7. Adjournment 

Chairperson Chavez adjourned the meeting at 5:00 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Gigi Gleason 
Secretary 

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2-

Rocky J. Chavez 
Chairperson 

October 12, 2022 

479



~~. "'l"~ADVANCED HEALTH C ARE 
• .' . /:. F O R ~~n n 

~-~" ... t~~- ' u ~~ 
Building Operating Leases 
Month Ending October 31, 2022 

tsase 
Rate per Total Rent per Lease Term 

Lessor Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft. current month Beginning Ending Services & Location Cost Center 
6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC 
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 OSNC • Carlsbad 
Carlsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 200 
V#83024 9.552 $3.59 llal 13.283.34 07/01/17 06/30/27 Carlsbad, CA 92011 7095 
Cardiff Investments LLC 
2729 Ocean St OSNC • Oceanside 
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Approx 3905 Waring Road 
V#83204 10,218 $2.58 Ital 6.262.83 07/01 /17 07/31/24 Oceanside, CA 92056 7095 
Creek View Medical Assoc 
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic Vista 
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A 
V#81981 6,200 $2.70 (a) 4,310.00 07/01 /20 06/30/25 Vista, CA 92081 7090 
CreekView Orhopaedic Bldg, LLC 
1958 Via Centre Drive OSNC ·Vista 
Vista. Ca 92081 Approx 1958 Via Centre Drive 
V#83025 4,995 $2.50 (al 2,997.00 07/01/17 06/30/27 Vista, Ca 92081 7095 
JDS FINCO LLC 
499 N EL Camino Real La Costa Urology 
Encinitas, CA 92024 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 4 
V#83694 2.460 $2.15 (a) 1,722.00 04/01/20 03/31/23 Oceanside. CA 92056 7082 
Mission Camino LLC 
4350 La Jolla Village Drive Seaside Medical Group 
San Diego, CA 92122 Appox 115 N EL Camino Real, Suit A 
V#83757 4,508 $1.75 lal 7,142.39 09/01/21 10/31 /31 Oceanside, CA 92058 7094 
500 W Vista Way, LLC & HFT Melrose 
P 0 Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health 
La Jolla, CA 92038 Approx 510 West Vista Way 
V#81028 7,374 $1.67 (al 8,320.84 07/01/21 06/30/26 Vista, Ca 92083 7320 
OPS Enterprises, LLC North County Oncology Medical 
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Cl inic 
Oceanside, Ca 92056 Approx 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5 
#V81250 7,000 $4.12 lal 30,907.00 10/01/12 10/01 /22 Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086 
SCRIPPSVIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES 
P 0 Box 234296 OSNC Encinitas Medical Center 
Encinitas, CA 234296 Approx 351 Santa Fe Drive. Suite 351 
V#83589 3,864 $3.45 (a) 14,447.11 06/01/21 05/31/26 Encinitas, CA 92023 7095 
TCMC, A Joint Venture 
3231 Waring Court, Suit D Pulmonary Special ists of NC 
Oceanside, CA 92056 Approx 3231 Waring Court Suit D 
V#83685 1,444 $2.59 (a) 3,754.00 02/01/20 10/31/22 Oceanside, CA 92056 7088 

Total 93,146.51 

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, etc. 

480



·:~f.~L. ~~ADVANCED HEALTH CARE 
.. ~,, J,,fi.( .... - FOR ~~n n 

Education & Travel Expense 

Month Ending October 2022 

Cost 

Centers 

6185 ONSONC 

Description 

7290 REGISTRATION FOR VALUE BASED 

8700 AHIMA CCS 

8740 MSN FAMILY NURSE PRACTITIONER 

8740 PHARMACY 

8740 ADDICTION CONFERENCE 

8740 CONFERENCE 

8740 RADIATION SAFETY 

8740 CCR EXAM 

8740 CHARGE 

Invoice # 

101222 EDU 

102622 EDU 

92822 EDU 

90822EDU 

100622 EDU 

102022 EDU 

102722 EDU 

102022 EDU 

101722 EDU 

101722EDU 

..,'rt~• Jj"\_,., I u ~~ 
.• ~ ~7 ~•t. ; ~ . 

Amount Vendor # Attendees 

425.00 83334 WIEBOLDT, BERNADETIE 

340.00 82008 TRUDEAU, MONICA 

299.00 84171 RUBI GRRIEGO 

5,000.00 84176 JULIE HERBST 

120.00 82580 DROLSHAGEN, ASH LEY 

200.00 82938 FRI ENDBERG, HILLARY 

200.00 83767 DAGMARA KOLASA 

115.00 78903 NIGGLI KAREN 

200.00 81426 DACOME OLIVIA 

150.00 81863 LAMUNA, JOY 

**Th is report shows reim bursements to employees and Boa rd members in the Education 

& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00. 

**Detailed backup is available from the Finance depar tment upon request. 

481


	agenda.November.Regular Meeting.Public
	Chief of Staff – No Credentials this month
	Consideration of Consent Calendar
	     (9) Reports 
	Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 

	agenda.packet.Board Portal
	DOC008
	DOC009
	DOC010
	DOC011
	DOC012



 
 
    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: all pages
     Font: Times-Roman 14.0 point
     Origin: bottom right
     Offset: horizontal 18.00 points, vertical 18.00 points
     Prefix text: ''
     Suffix text: ''
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
     1
     1
     
     BR
     
     1
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     965
     125
     0
     1
     14.0000
            
                
         Both
         550
         AllDoc
         550
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     [Sys:ComputerName]
     18.0000
     18.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus3
     Quite Imposing Plus 3.0h
     Quite Imposing Plus 3
     1
      

        
     0
     481
     480
     481
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   PageTools
        
     Action: Rotate pages
     Range: all pages
     Rotate: 90° CCW
     Rotate only wide pages
      

        
     RotatePages
     1
     2
     1
     Wide
     627
     308
    
     qi3alphabase[QI 3.0/QHI 3.0 alpha]
     R90
            
                
         Both
         2
         AllDoc
         50
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus3
     Quite Imposing Plus 3.0h
     Quite Imposing Plus 3
     1
      

   1
  

 HistoryList_V1
 qi2base





